
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom 
Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom Public 
Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
/ South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
December 13, 2022 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor 
Agency / Folsom Public Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / 

South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, December 13, 2022 6:30 PM 

 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Effective July 7, 2022, the City of Folsom returned to all in-person City Council, Commission, and 

Committee meetings.  Remote participation for the public will no longer be offered.   

Everyone is invited and encouraged to attend and participate in City meetings in person. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Rohrbough 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Staff Presentation on New State Housing Laws 

2. City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

3. Approval of November 8, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

4. Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 
2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the 
Local Agency Special Tax Bond And Accountability Act 

5. Resolution No. 10950 - A Resolution Repealing Prior Resolution No. 8153, Adopting an Updated 
Records Retention Schedule, and Authorizing Destruction of Certain City Records in Accordance 
with the Records Retention Schedule 

6. Resolution No. 10951 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 2021-22 Enhancing Law 
Enforcement Activities Growth Special Account, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant 
for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police Operations in Accordance with 
State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds 

7. Resolution No. 10952 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 2022-23 Citizen's Option for Public 
Safety (COPS) Grant for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police 
Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds 

8. Resolution No. 10953 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Renewal of the 
Service Agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform, Dropcountr 
Business and the HOME+ Irrigation Module for Two Years 

9. Resolution No. 10954 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Peterson Brustad Inc. for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems 
Inspection Program 

10. Resolution No. 10955 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with 
The Permanente Medical Group, Inc. (TPMG) to Provide the Folsom Fire Department a Medical 
Director 

11. Resolution No. 10956 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation of Funds 

12. Resolution No. 10957 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Valve Truck and Appropriation of Funds 

13. Resolution No. 10958 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for Right of Way 
Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and Appropriation of 
Funds 

14. Resolution No. 10959 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Council to Cancel the Invitation for Bids 
for the Water Meter Replacement Program 

15. Resolution No. 10960 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to Install All-Way 
Stop Sign Control at the Intersection of Montrose Drive and Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping 
Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center 

16. Resolution No. 10962 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 1F Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 1F Subdivision 

Page 3



4 

17. Resolution No. 10963 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. for Environmental Consulting Services for the Benevento 
Family Park Project 

18. Resolution No. 10964 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 3A Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Phase 3A Subdivision 

19. Resolution No. 10966 – A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report 
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022 

NEW BUSINESS: 

20. Resolution No. 10961 – A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Grant Applications to the 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round 

21. Ordinance No. 1335 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 
8.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning the Folsom Fire Code (Introduction and First 
Reading) 

22. Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-Enacting Certain 
Chapters of Title 14, "Buildings and Construction", of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning 
Enforcement of Folsom Building Codes (Introduction and First Reading) 

23. Report on Traffic Roundabout Fact-Finding Mission and Direction to Staff Regarding Future 
Consideration of a Traffic Roundabout Policy 

CONVENE JOINT MEETING 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom Public Financing Authority / 
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / South of 50 Parking Authority Meeting 

ROLL CALL: Council / Board Members:   Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, 
Rohrbough 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

24. Approval of the September 13, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / 
Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing 
Authority Meeting Minutes 

25. Approval of the November 8, 2022 Joint City Council / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
Meeting Minutes 

26. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom 
Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking 
Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2022 

ADJOURNMENT 

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

  

Page 4



5 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will be in recess during the second half of December.  The next regular meeting will be 
January 10, 2023. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

 

 

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

This page intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



..tu {e5.,ffif-}st
l:: tll r tYlr t S"a tr$tlil I

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION/CITY COT]NCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND/ISSUE

During this past 2022 session, the California Legislature enacted a large volume of housing
production laws affecting local governments. Community Development staff will provide an

overview of the most significant new housing laws that will go into effect in2023. A summary
of the new housing laws most relevant to Folsom is also attached to this staff report.

ATTACHMENT

Summary of New State Housing Laws for 2023

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

MEETING DATE: r2n312022

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Staff Presentation on New State Housing Laws

FROM: Community Development Department

I
Page 7

12/13/2022 Item No.1.



ATTACHMENT 1

SUMMARY OF NEW STATE HOUSING LAWS FOR 2023

Page 8

12/13/2022 Item No.1.



SUMMARY OF NEW STATE HOUSING LAWS FOR 2023

A record number of Housing Bills were signed into law this year. Most of these laws
take effect on Janua ry1,2O23,with a few going into effect later in the year. Below is

a brief summary, broken down by category, of those laws that are most relevant for
Folsom.

Housing on Commercially Zoned Land

AB 2OIl and 586 - Housing Development on Commercially Zoned Sites

AB 2Oll creates a ministerial, CEQA-exempt, approval process for multifamily
housing developments that meet specified objective standards are Below Market
Rate (BMR) on commercially zoned property. The streamlined review process is very
similar to SB 35 of 2017 and requires prevailing wage. The law sunsets in 2033.

SB 6 allows residential development (No BMR requirements) on property zoned for
retail and office space without needing a rezoning, and allows project applicants to
invoke the Housing Accountability Act (HAA) to limit local discretion to deny or
condition approval. Requires prevailing wage.

Streamlining and Parking Reform

At32234 - Timelines for Post-Entitlement Permits

This law establishes a concrete and time-limited approval process for issuing post-
entitlement ministerial permits including building permits, demolition permits, and
permits for minor or standard excavation, grading or off-site improvements.

AB 2668 - SB 35 "Cleanup"

AB 2668 makes a series of technical and clarifying changes to SB 35 of 2017, a law
that provides for streamlined ministerial approval of qualifying housing and mixed-
use projects that conform to objective zoning requirements, pay prevailing wages
and meet minimum affordable housing requirements.

AB2097 - No Parking Minimums within Half-Mile of Public Transit

This law prohibits public agencies from imposing minimum parking requirements
on residential, commercial or other development projects located within a half-mile
of public transit. Public agencies may only impose parking minimums on such
projects if the agency can make certain written findings that the inability to impose
parking requirements would have substantial negative impacts.

Accessory Dwelling Units

AB2221- ADU Law Cleanup

This law contains clean-up language and clarifications to reduce permitting delays
for ADU applicants. The law also requires agencies that deny an ADU application to
provide a full set of comments to the applicant with a list of items that are deficient
and a description of how the application can be remedied.

Page 9

12/13/2022 Item No.1.



SUMMARY OF NEW STATE HOUSING LAWS FOR 2023

SB 897 - lncreased Heigh Limits for ADUs, Detached ADUs at Proposed
Multifamily Projects

This law increases the height limits that local governments may impose on ADUs by
allowing lB feet for detached ADUs located on lots that are within a half-mile of a
major transit stop, or detached ADUs on lots with an existing or proposed multistory,
multifamily dwellingi or 25 feet or base zone height (whatever is lower) for attached
ADUs.

Density

AB2334- State Density Bonus LawAmendments- Defining "Base Density";
Concessions in Very Low Vehicle TravelAreas

A82334 provides that if the density under the zoning ordinance is inconsistent with
the density allowed under the land use element of the general plan or specific plan,

the greater shall prevail. ln addition, this law dictates a method for determining the
"base density" in terms of units in cases where a localjurisdiction's general plan,
specific plan or zoning does not provide dwelling unit per acre standard for density.

Housing Element Annual Progress Reports

AB20194 and AB 2653 Greater Requirements for Annual Reports on Housing
Progress.

AB2094 requires that the annual report specifically detail the local government's
progress in meeting RHNA targets for the "extremely low income" category.

AB 2653 requires that the annual report additionally provide: the number of new
housing units built, the number of housing units demolished, information specifying
rental versus for-sale housing and details regarding approved projects that benefit
from AB 2Oll or the State Density Bonus Law.

For a more detailed summary of new Housing Laws please refer to Holland &
Knight's California's2023 Housing Laws: What You Need to Know

(website: https://www.hklaw.com/en/insights/publications/2O22llO/california-2O23-
housi n g -laws-what-you - need -to- know )

ln addition, the California Legislative lnformation website provides a search toolto
easily access the entire Bill text. https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/home.xhtml

Page 10

12/13/2022 Item No.1.



!: rr . : !

:i'{+1.:'1':t*:\':{
l' r:rit.:::a t: t.1tt !i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the City Manager's Financial Update

for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2022'23.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the

City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted

and actual revenues and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

This Financial Update is an analysis of the unaudited financial status of the City's major funds

for the first quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23, covering the three-month period from July

2022 throttgh September 2022. This report is a narrowed version compared to other quarterly

reporting periods due to the lack of data early in the fiscal year. This report was prepared with
an emphasis on analysis of projected revenues and expenditures, focusing on the available data.

POLICY / RULE

Section 5.05R of the Charter of the City of Folsom requires the City Manager submit to the

City Council a financial and management report showing the relationship between budgeted

and actual revenues, and expenditures and encumbrances on a quarterly basis.

1

MEETING DATE: 1211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal

Year 2022-23

FROM: Finance Department

Page 11

12/13/2022 Item No.2.



Section 3.02.050 (b) of the Folsom Municipal Code states ".... within 30 days afterthe end of
each quarter during the fiscal year, and more often if required by the City Council, the City
Manager shall submit to the City Council a financial and management report."

ANALYSIS

Unemployment Rates

Unemployment as of September 2022 was 3.7%o and 3.6%o in California and Sacramento
County, respectively, and in Folsom the unemployment rate was 2.4%. The table below
shows the unemployment rate over the last three years to illustrate the effects of the pandemic
on employment and the ongoing recovery.

Unemployment Rate

September ofeach year 2022 2021 2020

California 3.7 6.4 r0.7
Sacramento CounW 3.6 6.r 9.6
Folsom 2.4 3.9 6.r

General Fund Revenues

For FY 2022-23, total General Fund revenues are projected to be $103.5 million, an increase
over budget of $643,000. The increase is mostly in sales tax and charges for services.

Sales tax revenue for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is projected to end the fiscal year at $28.38 million,
an increase of $482,000 over budget. In comparison to FY 2021-22, sales tax revenue is
projected to increase approximately 1.73o/o over the FY 2021-22 amount of $27.90 million.

Through the first quarter, Charges for Services totaled $3.04 million and the projection for the
end of FY 2022-23 is $11.87 million. The $11.87 million is an increase from the budgeted
amount of $1 1.74 million and a decrease of $3.97 million from FY 2022-23. The increase over
the budgeted amount is mostly due to an anticipated increase in Parks and Recreation charges
of $133,000. The decrease in Charges for Services when compared to the prior fiscal year is
mostly in development charges of approximately $1.40 million, Public Works charges of
approximately $738,000, Fire Department charges of approximately $744,000 and other
charges of approximately $209,000. The reduction in development fees is reflective of slowing
development activity compared to prior years. The reduction in Public Works charges is
reflective of the decrease in the projected cost recovery for non-project expenditures. The
reduction in the Fire Department is a reduction of the reimbursement from California Office
of Emergency Services for wildfire strike teams.

Property tax is not received in the first quarter; however, the year-end projection is estimated
to be at the budgeted $36.05 million, an increase of $2.83 million or 8.50% over the $33.23
million received in FY 2021-22. A comparison of home sales during the first quarter of FY
2022-23 and FY 2021-22 shows the number of homes sold decreased by 48 or 19.51Yo. The

2 Page 12

12/13/2022 Item No.2.



average median sales price through the first quarter of FY 2022-23 was $755,000, an increase

of 5.38o/o over the first quarter of FY 2021-22.

General Fund Expenditures

Total FY 2022-23 expenditures are projected to be $103.65 million, an increase of $809,000,

or 0.79o/o, over the budgeted amount of $102.84 million. The projection includes an increase

in salaries and benefits of $930,000 for the Fire Department, due to changes in the

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City and Firefighters Local 522 adopted

atthe September27,2022,City Council meeting. The projection also includes Fire Department

overtime costs coming in $1.6 million over budget. These increases are partially offset by

savings due to vacant positions in both the Fire and Police Departments.

It is also projected that expenses will exceed the budget in the Community Development

Department by about $448,500 mainly due to plan check and building inspection support.

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance

For FY 2022-23, total expenditures are projected to exceed revenues by $165,000 and the

General Fund is projected to end the year with an unassigned fund balance of $23.1 million.
As a comparison, the unassigned fund balance in FY 2020-21was $19.20 million (audited)

and the final FY 2021-22 amount is estimated to be $23.3 million (unaudited and currently

incomplete). The unrestricted fund balance as a percentage of expenditures is projected at

22.28% for FY 2022-23 and an unaudited estimate of 23.69% for FY 2021-22, an increase

from the FY 2020-21 amount of 21.38o/o. A chart displaying the past and projected unassigned

fund balance is below:

Unassigned General Fund Balance
23.69%

s2s,000,000

s20,000,000

s1s,000,000

s10,000,000

ss,ooo,ooo

7931%

ill

22:28% 2s,00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

o.00%

2L.38o/o

TT54%

7.70%

s-

r1.30%

I I tl ll
FYO9 FY1O FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY1.5 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY2O FY21. FY22 FY23

I Unassigned rttrun355igned FB as % of Expenditures

a
J Page 13

12/13/2022 Item No.2.



Enterprise Operating Funds

The Solid Waste, Water and Wastewater Utility Operating Funds are all projected to end the
fiscal year with operating revenues exceeding operating expenses. Net assets in all three funds
are projected to decrease after capital expenses are included. In the case of Water and

Wastewater, the capital expenses are for capital projects and in Solid Waste it is the purchase

of replacement vehicles.

A comparison of the current fiscal year-end projection to FY 2022-23 budgeted revenues and

expenses shows charges for service revenues in Water are currently projected to increase by
$100,000 (0.53%) and operating expenses are projected to decrease by $350,000 (2.89%).
Decreases in expenses are mainly due to salaries and benefit savings related to position
vacancies for part ofthe year.

Wastewater Operating charges for services revenues are projected to remain unchanged

compared to the budget and operating expenses are projected to increase by $180,000 (3.35%).

Solid Waste Operating charges for services revenues are projected to increase by $500,000
(2.43%) and operating expenses are projected to increase by $155,000 (094%).

Expenses for capital outlay are currently projected to increase across all three proprietary funds
compared to FY 202I-22 due to budgeted project and vehicle replacement costs.

Internal Service Fund

The Compensated Leaves Fund ended Fiscal Year 2021-22 with a negative unrestricted fund
balance of $11,548. The current projection is for the unrestricted fund balance to recover only
slightly during Fiscal Y ear 2022-23 .

Submitted,

V*d*
Elaine Andersen
City Manager

Tamagni
Finance Director/CFO

4 Page 14

12/13/2022 Item No.2.



Book77 Page 1

Folsom City Council
November 8,2022

City Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, November8,2022 6:15 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:15 p.m. with Mayor Kerri Howell presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel Anticipated Litigation, lnitiation of Litigation Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One Potential Case

Motion by Councilmember Sarah Aquino, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguezn to adjourn
to Glosed Session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the following roll call
vote:

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECONVENE

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

City Attorney Steven Wang announced no final action was taken.

DRAFT - Not fficial approved by the City Council Page 15

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book 77 Page2
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

ADJOURNMENT

The special meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 6:30 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DMFT - Not fficial approved by the City Council Page 16

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book 77 Page 3
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

City Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, November 8, 2022 6:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at6:32 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell presiding

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione
Senior Recreation Coordinator Ted Ocampo
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Community Development Director Pam Johns
Library Director Thom Gruneisen

PLEDGE OF GIANCE

Grand Marshal of the Veteran's Day Parade Miles McKiernan led the pledge

AGENDA UPDATE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that there was a revised staff report for item 6

BUSINESS F THE FLOOR:

None

DMFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 17

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book77 Page 4
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. Resolution of Commendation Honoring Veterans and Veteran Organizations

Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione introduced Senior Recreation Coordinator Ted
Ocampo made a presentation and introduced Veteran and Grand Marshal of the Veteran's Day Parade
Lieutenant Coronel Miles McKiernan.

2. Presentation of the Folsom Tourism Business lmprovement District Annual Report by the Folsom
Tourism Bureau

PresidenVCEO of Greater Folsom Partnership Joe Gagliardi introduced Director of Tourism Sally
Buchanan who made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

GONSENT GALENDAR:

3. Approval of October 25,2022 Regular Meeting Minutes

4. Resolution No. 10941 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Waterfluence, LLC to Meet the Requirements of Assembly Bill 1668 and Senate Bill 606
Regarding Landscape lrrigation for Commercial, lndustrial, and lnstitutional Sites Serviced by
Dedicated lrrigation Meters

5. pulled for comment

6. Resolution No. 10943 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Sewer
Easement and Maintenance Agreement between 9900 Greenback Lane LLC and the City of
Folsom for the Construction of the Greenback Sewer and Lift Station No.3 Project (revised)

7 . Resolution No. 10944 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with The Pape Group, lnc. dba Ditch Witch West for the Purchase of a Trailer-Mounted Vacuum
and Appropriations of Funds

8. pulled for comment

9. Resolution No. 10946 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Cyclone Technology for the purchase of a CY5000 Hard Surface Cleaning System

10. Resolution No. 10947 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Vesta Modular for a Five-Year Lease of a Modular Trailer for the Waste and Recycling
Division

11. pulled for comment

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino, to approve
Gonsent Galendar items 3-4,6-7 and 9-10.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 18

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book77 Page 5
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

CONSENT CALENDAR PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

5. Resolution No. 10942 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Eagle Aerial Photography lnc. dba Eagle Aerial Solutions to Meet the Requirements of
Assembly Bill 1668 and Senate Bill 606 Regarding Landscape lrrigation for Residential Sites

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski pulled the item to ask for clarification regarding aerial photography
uses. Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake responded.

Motion by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, to
approve Resolution No. 10942.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

8. Resolution No. 10945 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Dokken Engineering for the Folsom Boulevard Class I Overcrossing
Feasibility Study

Mayor Kerri Howell pulled the item to comment regarding possible funding opportunities to include in

the Feasibility Study. Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione responded.

Motion by Mayor Kerri Howell, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, to approve Resolution
No.10945.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

1 1 . Resolution No. 10949 - A Resolution Approving a Five-year Extension to the Agreement
Between the City of Folsom and the Folsom Tourism Bureau Relative to the Folsom Tourism
Business lmprovement District

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez pulled the item for clarification and to comment regarding the Business
lmprovement District standards.

PresidenVCEO of Greater Folsom Partnership Joe Gagliardi and Director of Tourism Sally Buchanan
responded.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember YK Chalamcherla, to
approve Resolution No. {0949.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 19

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book77 Page 6
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Gouncilmember(s):
Gouncilmember(s):

Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
None
None
None

CONVENE JOINT MEETING

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers/Board
Members Present:

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY MEETING

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers/Board
Members Absent:

None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
CFO/F|nance Director Stacey Tamagni

PUBLIG HEARING:

12. Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell
Ranch) SpecialTax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

i. Resolution No. 10948 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing
the lssuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch)
Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022the Execution of a First Supplemental lndenture Providing
therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and Authorizing
Necessary Actions and the Execution of other Documents in Connection therewith

ii. Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the lssuance, Sale, and Delivery of not to
Exceed, $15,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022; Approving the
Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution
and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, Authorizing Changes
thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom;
Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and
Execution and Delivery of each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to lmplement
the Proposed Financing

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation, noting the correction of the resolution
number in item 12(ii) to Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 20

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book77 Page 7
Folsom City Council

November 8,2022

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public hearing was
closed.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 10948.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at7'.45 pm.

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

OLD BUSINESS:

13. Report Back on Underutilized and Vacant City-Owned Properties and Direction to Staff

Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council. Library Director Thom Gruneisen provided additional clarification.

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Will Kempton
2. Jim Snook

The City Council discussed options and asked questions of staff. Their direction to staff was to sell Site

0, contactWAPAto see if they are interested in purchasing Site 11, remove Site 12from the list, retain

Site 3 and contact adjacent property owner to discuss purchase, contact Diamond Glen HOA and

Kikkoman to see if either are interested in purchasing Sites 7 and 8-if not, retain and activate, rezone

Sites 4, 5 to become part of park site and/or future trail connection to Historic District, and explore
development opportunities for Sites 1, 2, 9 and 10.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 21

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



Book77 Page 8

Folsom City Council
November 8,2022

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced the upcoming Holiday Lights Contest, the ice-skating rink
opening in Historic Folsom, the Palladio Tree Lighting, the Historic District Tree Lighting and that the
City is accepting commission and committee applications. She spoke about the Urban Land lnstitute
Expert Panel discussion regarding development for the City's Central Business District and
congratulated Police Officer Mitch Bates on his retirement and thanked him for his service.

GOUNCIL COMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez thanked all Veterans for their service and expressed excitement for the
Veteran's Day Parade and the opening of the ice-skating rink. She talked about the Women's
Conference and commented regarding Sacramento making the list for traffic and food studies.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla commented regarding the Folsom Plan Area Open House, HART of
Folsom's dog walking event and announced that the homeless shelter is looking for volunteers. He

thanked Veteran's for their service and congratulated Officer Mitch Bates on his retirement.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowskithanked the promoters of the Rio Del Lago 100 Mile Run, expressed
excitement about the ice-skating rink and congratulated the Twin Lakes Food Bank for a successful
Gala.

Councilmember Sarah Aquino congratulated Officer Mitch Bates on his retirement. She gave an

update regarding progress made with the issue of kids hanging out after school at the Walmart
Shopping Center.

Mayor Kerri Howell reminded everyone to drive safely and to clean their gutters before it rains. She
wished her colleagues good luck in the City Council election.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Kerri Howell adjourned
the meeting at 8:38 pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 22

12/13/2022 Item No.3.



i'{.+ | ,::-; {'i;1Jl

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: r2n3/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Receive and File 58-165 Annual Reports for Community
Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17,

No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply
with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act

F'ROM: Finance Department

MMENDA ACTI

It is recommended that the City Council receive and file 58-165 Annual Reports for
Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19,

No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and

Accountability Act.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act (the "Act"), enacted by Senate

Bill 165, is codified in California Government Code Sections 50075 through 50077 and 53410

through 53412. The Act requires:

o that any local special tax measure subject to voter approval contain a statement

indicating the specific single pu{pose of the special tax
o that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to that purpose

o the creation of an account into which the proceeds shall be deposited
. an annual report containing specified information concerning the use of the proceeds.

The Act imposes similar accountability requirements with respect to any local bond measure

that is subject to voter approval that would provide for the sale of bonds by a local agency.

These requirements only apply to local agencies that have imposed special taxes or issued bond

measures subject to voter approval after January I,2001.

1

Page 23

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



The City currently has 18 districts which have imposed special taxes or issued bond measures

subject to voter approval after January 1,2001. These districts are:

a Community Facilities District No. 13 (American River Canyon North Maintenance

District)
Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway II)
Community Facilities District No. 2013-l (Water Facilities and Supply)

Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area 1

Community Facilities District No. 16 (The Islands at Parkshore) Improvement Area2
Community Facilities District No. l7 (Willow Hill Pipeline)

Community Facilities District No. l8 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements

and Services)
Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch)

Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch)

Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch)

Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights)

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 1

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area2
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 3

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 4

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 5

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area 6

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvemerrt AreaT

The Chief Fiscal Officer of these 18 districts hereby submits the annual reports for each of
these districts.

POLICY / RULE

1. California Government Code, Section 50075.3 states the chief fiscal officer of the

levying local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than January 1,

2002 and at least once a year thereafter. The annual report shall contain both the

following: (a) The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b) the status of any

project required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 50075.1(a).

2. California Government Code, Section 53411states the chief fiscal officer of the issuing

local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than January 1,2002
and at least once ayeat thereafter. The annual report shall contain both the following:
(a) The amount of funds collected and expended; and (b) the status of any project
required or authorized to be funded as identified in Section 53410(a).

3. California Government Code, Section 50075.1(a) requires a statement indicating the

specific purposes of the special tax.

2 Page 24

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



4. California Government Code, Section 53a10(a) requires a statement indicating the

specific purposes of the bond.

ANALYSIS

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North Maintenance District,
was established July 24, 2001 primarily to fund the maintenance of landscape areas in
American River Canyon North, as well as collecting for other authorized services. In fiscal
year2022, the district collected $113,140 and expended $11I,876. The cashbalance atyear
end was $84,543 and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 14, Parkway II, was established September 25,200I to
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district.

$18,200,000 in bonds were issued May 9, 2002, and partially advance refunded July 19, 2007.

In fiscal year 2018, additional bonds were issued. The 2007 bonds were refunded on July 11,

2017,and with the final maturity for the bonds in this district remaining at September 1,2032.

In fiscal year 2022, the district had$16,424 in collections and expended $1,396 from the

acquisition and construction fund, leaving a balance of $2,010,361 remaining. The status of
the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 2013-1, Water Facilities and Supply, was established

January 14, 2014 to fund all or a portion of the water treatment and storage and distribution
facilities, water supply costs, and other costs pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan

and Agreement. In fiscal year2022,the district collected $2,120,466 and expended $1,985,818.

The cash balance atyear end was $998,359, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 16, The Islands at Parkshore, was established March 10,

2015 to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public facilities within the district,
and to fund ongoing maintenance of the improvements within the district. In fiscal year 2022,

Improvement Area I had no collections nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a remaining

balance of $0. The debt service reserve account for Improvement Area I had a balance of
$431,046. On July 18,2019, bonds were issued for Improvement Area2.In fiscal year2022,

Improvement Area 2had $149 in collections and no expenses for the project fund, leaving a

balance of $174,870 remaining. The debt service reserye account for Improvement Area2had
a balance of $237,975. In fiscal year 2022, the district collected an amount of $192,068 and

expended $99,070 for maintenance. The cash balanc e atyear end was $520,1 86, and the status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 17, Willow Hill Pipeline, was established March 24,2015
to finance water facilities, including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and

rehabilitation project, within or in the vicinity of CFD No. 17. In fiscal year 2022, the district
had no collections nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. The debt service

reserve account for the district had collections of $243 in the current year with no expenditures,

leaving a balance of $408,728. The status of the district is on-going.

J
Page 25

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Community Facilities District No. 18, Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide Improvements and

Services, was established December 8, 2015 to finance the Willow Hill Pipeline facilities,

offsite water facilities, sanitary sewer system, aquatic center phase I and2, quarry road, water

infrastructure, interchanges, selected trails and roadway widenings, and other backbone

facilities to serve the Folsom Plan Area. In addition, the planned services to be financed include

the maintenance of parks, trails, landscape corridors, medians and open spaces; streets, street

light and safety light maintenance; and storm drainage facilities maintenance. In fiscal year

2022, the district collected $965,247 and expended $337,537. The cash balance in the

maintenance account atyear end was $I,625,823, and the status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 19, Mangini Ranch, was established January 12,2016 to
finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water

system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;

Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized

services to be funded from the levy include open space improvements, operations, and

management; landscape corridor maintenance; street light, median, storm water, and

community amenities maintenance; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items

described above. $28,530,000 in bonds were issued August 10,2017.In fiscal year 2020, an

additional $ 14,040,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2022, the district had no collections

nor expenses for the project fund, leavingabalance of $0. In fiscal year2022, the debt service

reserve account had collections of $8,987, leaving abalance of 53 ,253 ,682. In fiscal year 2022,

the district collected $206,077 and expended $30,357 in the maintenance account. The cash

balance in the maintenance account atyear end was 5616,612, and the status of the district is

on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 20, Russell Ranch, was established November 14, 2017 to

finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water

system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;

Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. In fiscal yeat 2022, the

district had no collection nor expenses for the project fund, leaving a balance of $0. In fiscal
year 2022,the debt service reserve account collected $362,leaving a balance of $1,022,862 in
the reserve account. The status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 21, White Rock Springs Ranch, was established February

13,2018 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. On

December 5, 2019, $9,695,000 in bonds were issued. On April 21, 2021, an additional

$11,815,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2022, the district expended $2,988,426 from
bond proceeds, leaving a balance of $0 in the project fund. The debt service reserve account

collected Sl,222,leaving abalance of $1,551,233. The capitalized interest account expended

$169,418, leaving a balance of $0. The status of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 22, Folsom Heights, was established November 27 ,2018 to

finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system, recycled water

4 Page 26

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space improvements;

Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized

services to be funded from the levy include landscape corridor maintenance; open space

improvements, street light maintenance; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items

described above, As of June 30, 2022the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 1, was established

May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the

levy include open space improvements; landscape coridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community

amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items

described above. $12,925,000 in bonds were issued on October 30,2020. On April 21,2022,

an additional $11,855,000 in bonds were issued. In fiscal year2022,the district had collections

of $10,683,862 andexpended 5445,497 from bond proceeds, leaving a balance of $12,419,165
in the project fund. The debt service reserve account had a balance of $1,774,993. The

capitalized interest account had collections of $179,921 and expended $255,121, leaving a

balance of $179,921. In fiscal year 2022, the district collected $153,120 and expended $3,204

in the maintenance account. The cash balance at year end was $ 149,91 6, and the status of the

district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 2, was established

May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the

levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items

described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 3, was established

May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,

recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the

levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items

described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

5
Page 27

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 4, was established
May 26,2020 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items
described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 5, was established
May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee

Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items
described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 6, was established
May 26,2020to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water system,
recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open space

improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure Fee
Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from the
levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items
described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status

of the district is on-going.

Community Facilities District No. 23, Folsom Ranch Improvement Area 7, was established
December 14,2021 to finance public facilities improvements including transportation, water
system, recycled water system, drainage system, wastewater system, park, parkway, and open
space improvements; Specific Plan infrastructure fee infrastructure; Special Plan Infrastructure
Fee Obligation; and other expenses. Additionally, the authorized services to be funded from
the levy include open space improvements; landscape corridor maintenance; street light
maintenance; median and entry maintenance; neighborhood park maintenance; community
amenities; storm water management; and miscellaneous costs related to any of the items
described above. As of June 30,2022, the district had no collections nor expenses. The status
of the district is on-going.

6
Page 28

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no discernable financial impact on the City of Folsom.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines $ 15061(bX3).

ATTACHMENT

1. SB-165 Annual Report for Community Facilities Districts

Submitted,

tacey Tamagni
Finance Director

I

7 Page 29

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 30

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



SENATE BILL 765

Senate Bill 165, filed with the Secretary of State on September 19, 2000, enacted the Local Agency

Special Tax and Bond Accountability Act. This Act requires that any local special tax or local bond

measure subject to voter approval contain a statement indicating the specific purposes of the special

tax, require that the proceeds of the special tax be applied to those purposes, require the creation of an

account into which the proceeds shall be deposited, and require an annual report containing specified

information concerning the use of the proceeds. The Act only applies to any local special tax measure or
local bond measure adopted on or after January L,2O0t in accordance with Section 50075.1 or Section

53410 of the California Government Code.

Some of the requirements of the Act are handled at the formation of the Special Tax District and others
are handled through annual reports. This Section of this report intends to comply with Section 50075.3

or Section 53411 of the California Government Code that states:

"The chief fiscal officer of the issuing local agency shall file a report with its governing body no later than

JanuaryL,2OO2,andatleastonceayearthereafter. Theannual reportshall containall ofthefollowing:
(a) The amount of funds collected and expended.
(b) The status of any project required or authorized to be funded as identified in subdivision (a) of

Section 50075.1 or Section 534L0."

The requirements of the Act apply to the funds for the following Districts

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North
Established luly 24, 2OOt

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 13, American River Canyon North ("CFD") primarily funds the
maintenance of landscape areas of American River Canyon North included within the boundaries of the
CFD. ln addition to the maintenance costs, the CFD also provides funding for costs associated with
collecting and administering the special taxes and annually administering the CFD, The special tax funds
levied may pay for any authorized service. The City may also accumulate funds for authorized services.

The CFD's authorized services include the following:

1". The repair and maintenance of parkways, landscaping, open space, greenbelts, bikeways,

irrigation facilities, soundwalls, street lights on arterial parkways, monuments and signs, and other
appurtenance within and along public right-of-way.

2. Cost of scheduled inspections of the maintenance of landscaped areas.

3. Utility bills associated with the maintenance of landscaped areas.

4. CFD formation and annual administration costs.

5. Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

legal, and administration.

t
Page 31

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Fiscal Year 2021/22 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #13 Detail

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

Revenues:
American Riler Canyon North Direct Levy

lnterest Earned
Total Rerenues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2022 Maintenance Disfrict Fund Gash Balance

$

$ 83,279

112,461
679

$ 1 13,140

$ 19,477
9,762

48,810

1,495
4,621

228
22,698

$ 107,091

(4,786)

$ 84,543

06l30l202t
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

06l?ol2022
Balance

Service
Status

583,279 s113,140 51.rL,876 s84,543 On-going

2
Page 32

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase ll)

Established September 25, 2OOt

Purpose of Special Tax

Community Facilities District No. 14 (Parkway Phase ll) ("CFD") provided funds to finance the acquisition
and construction of certain public facilities and the payment of certain fees relating to public facilities
generally described as the construction of portions of Blue Ravine Road, Parkway Drive, East Natoma

Street and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Blue Ravine Road lntersection, together with street lights,

soundwalls and landscaping and hardscape improvements, the construction of drainage improvements

within Humbug/Willow Creek Parkway, improvements to the existing sewer lift station at Willow Creek

Parkway and related force mains and the construction of fire facilities and parks within the CFD.

Fiscal Year 202U22 Collectio.ns & Expenditures

Series 2017 Special Tax Refunding Bonds

Bonds lssued July LI,2OI7
s14,640,000

CFD #14 Detail

June 30, 2021 Acquisition & Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance: $ 1,995,333

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2017 Refunding Bonds

lnterest Eamed
Transfers ln

16,424

Total Rewnues $ 16,424

Expenses:
Construction
Transfers Out

$

$

Total Expenses:

Change in ReceiwblesiLiabilities

June 30, 2022 Acquisition & Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance

3

$

(1,3e6)

$ 2,010,361

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l202L
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2022
Balance

Refunding

Escrow

Deposit

its,240,76s So 5\5,240,764 So so So so

Project Fund 1,790,000 2,003,382 8,049 1,995,333 16,424 1,396 2,010,36t

Cost of

lssua nce
88,992 88,992 0 0 0 0 0

Bond

Proceeds
389 389 0 0 0 0 0

Page 33

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply)
Established January L4, 2OL4

Purpose of Special Tax

Water Treatment, Storage and Distribution Facilities

Generally, all work and improvements to design, construct, install and upgrade the public water

treatment, storage and distribution facilities described below, all to be located on public property

(whether the dedicated road right-of-way, dedicated easements, or publicly-owned land), including but
not limited to mobilization, clearing, grubbing, tree removal, protective fencing and erosion control,

dewatering, lime treatment, trenching, and related appurtenant work and facilities, together with the

costs and expense of engineering design, plan review, construction-related surety bonds or like security

instruments, construction staking and management, inspection, permitting costs, and any like fees and

costs incidental to such construction and installation for the following items:
o Water Systems Optimization Review Program costs including:

o Costs for engineering, tests and studies, legal and other professional services and

project administration
o Willow Hill pipeline lining improvement costs

e Water treatment, pumping and conveyance facilities required to treat, pump and convey water
from the City's water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan including:

o Water treatment Plant uPgrades

o Pump station, booster pumps and related appurtenances

o Additional water conveyance facilities and connections

Water Supplv Costs

Annual water supply costs to the City pursuant to the Water Supply and Facilities Plan and Agreement

between the City of Folsom and Certain Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area recorded on January 24,

20L3.

Other Costs

ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the
facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation and environmental remediation); engineering

and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction

of the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the distric! issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the
amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out
the authorized purposes of the distric! and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the district and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

0613012021
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project
Status

S863,711 52,120,466 S1,985,818 S998,3ss On-going

4

Page 34

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



CFD #2013-1 Detail

June 30,2021 Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
CFD 2013-1 Water Facilities & Supply Direct Levy

Prepayment
lnterest Earned

Total Rerenues:

Expenses:
Water System Optimization Repayment (8 of 10)

Water Supply
CFD Admin
Transfers Out

Total Expenses

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2O22Fund Cash Balance:

$ sos,zt t

$ 2,041,140
64,737
14,589

$ 2,120,466

$ 179,813
1,715,254

19,'135

30,770

$ 1,944,972

(40,846)

$ 9s8,359

5
Page 35

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 16 (The lslands at Parkshore)

lmprovement Area No. 1 and lmprovement Area No. 2

Established March tO, 2Ot5
lmprovement Area No. 1 Bonds lssued March 15, 2018

lmprovement Area No. 2 Bonds lssued July 18, 2019

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 16 (The lslands at Parkshore) ("CFD")

include the following: construction of sanitary sewers (including gravity sewers, manholes and

appurtenances), storm drains (including inlets, outlets, channels, structures, junctions, manholes and

catch basins), water facilities (including distribution mains and appurtenances), power, telephone and

gas utilities, street improvements (including curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping and striping, traffic

signals and street lights), bridge improvements, park improvements, landscaping and slope planting, all

within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing,

grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto.

All street and bridge improvements include widening, paving and/or re-paving, striping, and/or re-

striping, pedestrian sidewalks or other related improvements or appurtenances, and utilities are located

within the public right of way.

All facilities and related costs eligible to be funded include all City development impact fees, sewer

connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic mitigation fees, park fees, and other City

fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own

and operate the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for

such facilities.

Services
It is intended thatthe CFD will be eligible to fund allor a portion of the costs of construction, operation,

maintenance, repair, and servicing of parks, landscaping and irrigation improvements, street and

landscape lighting, fencing and/or walls, sidewalks, trails, pathways, water quality/drainage basins,

wetlands, and appurtenant facilities within or adjacent to the CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements and for

the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with

6
Page 36

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021l22 Collections & Expenditures

lmprovement Area 1 Facilities

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

05l30l2022
Balance

Project

Fund
54,932,77s 54,932,775 54,932,77s so so so so

Cost of

lssua nce
333,096 333,095 333,096 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
430,680 430,580 0 430,680 366 0 437,046

lmprovement Area 2 Facilities

CFD #16 lA2 Fund Detail

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Gonstruction Fund Cash Balance: $ 174,721

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2019 Bonds

lnterest Earned 149

Total Relenues: $ t+s

Expenses:
Progress Payment #1 to Lewis Land Dewlopers, LLC

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabil ities

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Cons{ruction Fund Gash Balance

$

$

$

$

7

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

0613012022

Balance

Project

Fund
s2,798,453 52,799,4s9 52,623,738 5774,727 s149 so 5174,870

Cost of

lssuance
257,582 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
237,773 947 0 238,720 0 745 237,975

$ 174,870

Page 37

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Services

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended
Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project
Status

s427,788 s192,068 sss,oTo ss20,186 On-going

CFD #16 Maintenance Fund Detail

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
CFD #16 (lAl) Seruices Direct Levy

CFD #16 (lA2) Services Direct Lei4y

lnterest Earned
Total Rerenues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receilables/Liabilities

June 30, 2022Malntenance Dis{rict Fund Cash Balance:

$

$ 427,188

$ go,gsz

98,064
3,647

$ 192,068

8,597
72,101
4,502

15,359

$ 100,559

1,488

$ 520,186

8
Page 38

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline)
Established March 24, z0ts

Purpose of Special Tax

The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline) ("CFD") include

the following: water facilities (including the Willow Hill Transmission Pipeline construction and

rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or appropriate related thereto), all within or in

the vicinity of the CFD. The public facilities shall include all related clearing and grubbing, grading and

appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or markings related thereto,

CFD bond proceeds may not be used to pay, or reimburse previously-paid, development related fees,

including, but not limited to, development impact fees, City community services fee, development

processing fees, school fees, sewer connection fees, water connection fees, drainage fees, traffic

mitigation fees, and other City fees related to facilities.

All public facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the public facilities. The public facilities should be constructed

pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own

and operate the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities. The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for

such facilities.

Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current

Year

Expenses

0613012022

Balance

Acquisition and

Construction Fund
55,700,000 S5,7oo,ooo ss,700,000 So 5o $o So

Reserve Account 408,381 4r3,823 5,338 408,485 243 0 408,728

Underwriter's

Discount
96,254 96,254 96,254 0 0 0 0

Cost of lssuance 327,r95 346,289 308,132 0 0 0 0

9
Page 39

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 18

(Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services)

Established December 8, 2015

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The planned public facilities for Community Facilities District No. L8 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide

lmprovements and Services) ("CFD") include the following:

Willow Hill Pipeline Facilities - These facilities consist of water facilities (including the Willow Hill

Transmission Pipeline construction and rehabilitation project, and all ancillary work necessary or

appropriate related thereto), all within or in the vicinity of the CFD. The improvements shall include all

related clearing and grubbing, grading and appurtenances, and any removal or temporary signage or

markings related thereto.

Off-site Water Facilities - These facilities consist of existing and new facilities such as a water treatment
plant, a pump station and expansion thereof, transmission pipelines, reservoirs, and the distribution
system to serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Sanitary Sewer System - These facilities include a series of transmission pipelines, pump stations, and

force mains, to serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Aquatic Center Phase 1 - These facilities include a competitive swimming pool, a recreation activity

pool, and related support pool-related buildings and structures, such as maintenance and locker room

facilities, which will serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Quarry Road - These facilities include the special road design along Prairie City Road from U.S. Highway

50 to White Rock Road or alternative route to accommodate heavy truck traffic to and from potential

future aggregate quarry sites south of the Folsom Plan Area as identified in the City's Truck

Management Plan approved by the City Councilon December 6,20t1. via Resolution 8933.

Water lnfrastructure - These facilities include the development of water pipelines, booster pump

stations, pressure regulating stations, water treatment plant, water reservoirs, land costs, off-site

capacity building, and systems optimization efforts throughout the CFD'

Aquatic Center Phase 2 - These facilities include a community center, gymnasium, multi-purpose

classrooms, a senior center, teen activity rooms which will serve the Folsom Plan Area.

Selected Trails - These facilities consist of a portion of the 30 miles of trails proposed to be built in the
Folsom Plan Area. The comprehensive bike system consists of Class I paths and Class ll bike lanes

connecting residential neighborhoods with schools, parks, and other major destinations. The plan costs

include trails, intersection protection, trail bridges, undercrossings, and design fees.

lnterchanges - These facilities include the modifications to existing interchanges and the construction of
new Highway 50 interchange improvements including the acquisition of land.

Selected Roadway Widenings - These facilities include the necessary infrastructure improvements to
widen the Oak Avenue, Empire Ranch Road, and Prairie City Road from two to four lanes.

10
Page 40

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Other Backbone Facilities - These consist of additional backbone public facilities needed to serve the

Folsom Plan Area. The additional backbone public facilities include parks, transit services, fire facilities

and equipment, police facilities and equipment, municipal service center, corporation yard, solid waste,

branch library, and transportation.

All facilities shall include attributed costs of engineering, design, planning, construction staking,

materials testing and coordination of the facilities. The facilities should be constructed pursuant to
plans and specifications approved by the City (or other governmental entity that will own and operate

the same).

The foregoing description of the types of facilities eligible to be financed is general in nature and

includes any appurtenant work and incidental expenses relating to the facilities, The final nature and

location of the facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and specifications for
such facilities.

Services

The planned services to be financed by the CFD include the following: park, trail, landscape corridor,

median, and open space maintenance; street, street light and safety light maintenance; and storm

drainage facilities maintenance.

The CFD annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance

and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage facilities and drainage

systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks, monuments, statuary, fountains, water quality

ponds, park facilities, open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the open space

areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other buffer areas between

the open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, drainage swales and other ornamental

structures and facilities, entry signage, street pavers, art work, and monuments and all necessary

appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and equipment,

as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs include an

allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services andlor equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

FiscalYear 2O2Ll22 ections & Exoenditures

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

05l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

s998,113 s965,247 $337,537 51,62s,823 On-going

1.r

Page 41

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



CFD #18 Detail

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

Revenues:
Area-Wide Maintenance Direct Lely
Reimbursements
lnterest Earned

Total Rerenues:

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly Landscape Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges
Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2022Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

$
$

$ 998,113

956,863

8,384
$ 965,247

$ 133,688
22,327

177,136

32,390

117

2,344

$ soa,oos

30,466

$ 1,625,823

12

Page 42

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch)

Established January L2, 2OLG

SpecialTax Revenue Bonds, Series 2017lssued August 23,20L7
Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 lssued August 7,2019

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails
(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation
improvements:

r Scott Road.

. Easton Valley Parkway-from Scott Road to Placerville Road.

r Street "A"-from Scott Road to Placerville Road.

o Street "B"-from Scott Road to White Rock Road.

o White Rock Road-at selected intersections.
r Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to: water
storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances, gate

valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -
such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

13

Page 43

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and water quality

measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be

limited to pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains;

lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting, drainage,

sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Other Expenses: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidentalexpenses as authorized bythe Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing

the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering

and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction

of the public facilities; costs of project/construction managemenU costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination

of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

Services
The authorized services to be funded from the levy and collection of annual special taxes include those

set forth below in addition to the costs associated with collecting and administering the special taxes

and annual administering the CFD. The CFD will be eligible to fund all or a portion of the costs of

reconstruction and/or rehabilitation, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement, and servicing of

the following items not otherwise subject to funding from the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide lmprovements and Services):

Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including general

maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and bike trails and

their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions] within open space), creation

and maintenance of fire breaks, permits, vandalism/graffiti, flood conveyance (vegetation/tree

T4

Page 44

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



removals), beaver dam removals, outfall/drainage swale maintenance, erosion control/bank

stabilization, native planting/replanting, pre and post emergent, maintenance activities as required by a

404 permit, and open space overarching maintenance & management plan and repair and replacement

of facilities within open space areas in the project area.

The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within the CFD,

including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

The maintenance of street lights, including any utility costs related thereto

The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation

Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse,

Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales constructed

between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering, GlS,

legal, and city and county administration costs.

The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs, reconstruction or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities maintained

by the CFD as determined by the administrator.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, rehabilitating, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment,

apparatus or facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or

fixtures in areas to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of personnel necessary or convenient

to provide the services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and

replacements and for the future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by

the City, either with its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof.

Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Fund

Initial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l202L
Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

0613012022

Balance

Project

Fund
s41,0s0,500 541,,072,408 s4r,072,408 5o So so So

Underwriter's

Discount
408,799 408,799 408,799 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssua nce
685,000 685,000 685,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
3,180,625 3,288,370 43,675 3,244,695 8,987 0 3,253,682

Capitalized

I nterest
1,487,509 1,487,509 I,487,509 0 0 0 0

15
Page 45

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Services

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

s440,892 5206,Q77 Sgo,gsz 5616,672 On-going

CFD #19 Detail

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Gash Balance

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Levy

Reimbursements
lnterest Earned

Total Rercnues:

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly LandscaPe Maintenance
Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receilables/Liabilities

June 30, 2O22Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

$ 440,892

$ 201,958

4,119

$ 206,077

$ 10,888
16,572

25

$ za,soz

(2,050)

$ oto,otz

822

16
Page 46

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch)

Established November 14, 2Ot7

Bonds lssued June 5, 2018

Purpose of Special Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) ('CFD") include any and all

improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City

Council on September 8,20!5, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities, include, but

are not limited to:
r Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station;
r Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;
r Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

r Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and
. Grand Prairie lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed above

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
o Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road.

r Alder Creek Parkway-from Scott Road to the Empire Ranch Road.

o Grand Prairie Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

r Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A"'
r Empire Ranch Road-from property line to White Rock Road.

r Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Potable and Non-Potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of

development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

L7
Page 47

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to

meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,

pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main line; force mains; lift stations;

odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing

(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public art; active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the Distric! issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

FiscalYear 202U22 Collections & Expenditures

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Fund
s12,ooo,ooo s72,0L9,37t 5t2,0t9,37t 5o 5o so 5o

Underwriter's

Discount
135,864 135,864 135,864 0 0 0 0

Cost of

lssua nce
318,236 318,236 318,236 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
1.,022,500 1,022,812 312 'J.,022,500 362 0 t,o22,862

Capitalized

I nterest
804,968 804,968 804,968 0 0 0 0

18
Page 48

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch)

Established FebruarY 13, 2018

SpecialTax Bonds, Series 2019 lssued December 5,2019
SpecialTax Bonds, Series 2021 lssued April8,2021

Purpose of Special Tax

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 2L (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("CFD") include

any and all improvements that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by

the City Council on September 8, 2015, including any future amendments thereto. These facilities,

include, but are not limited to:
r Zone 4/5 Booster Pump Station;
r Zone 5 Water Tank and Zone 6 Booster Pump Station;

. Highway 50 Water Transmission Line;

r Street "A" lmprovements;
r Alder Creek Parkway lmprovements; and

r Grand Prairie Road lmprovements.

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
o Placerville Road-from Highway 50 to White Rock Road.

r Grand Prairie Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Placerville Road.

r Scott Road-from Alder Creek Parkway to Street "A"'
o Street "A" -from Placerville Road to Empire Ranch Road.

r Sycamore Creek Crossing,

r Rock Springs Ranch Road.

o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the

CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Potable and Non-Potable Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all on- and

off-site backbone water and recycled (or non-potable water facilities) designed to meet the needs of
development within the CFD. These facilities include, but are not limited to, potable and non-potable

mains, valves, pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related

thereto such as site clearing, grading, and paving; services, and appurtenances; wells; water treatment,

distribution, and storage facilities; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators; site

lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates and

fencing; and striping and signage.

19
Page 49

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD, These facilities include, but

may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls, and water quality

measures; detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage ways/channels, pump

stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates and fencing; and striping and signage and other

improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include all wastewater facilities designed to

meet the needs of development within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to,

pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force mains; lift
stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related thereto; and related sewer system

improvements.

park, Parkway, Open Space and Preserve lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all

improvements to parks, parkways, and open space required for development within the CFD. These

facilities include, but may not be limited to grading; turf, shrubs and trees; landscaping irrigation; site

lighting; drainage; sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing

(including soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges; public art; active and passive park and open space

improvements (including respites and overlooks); related monumentation and signage; storm drain

crossings; environmental mitigation for wetlands, hawk, and other species for infrastructure under the

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program and authorized facilities herein; access gates and fencing; and

related park, open space and preserve improvements,

Payment of Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program ("SPlF") Obligation: Authorized facilities include

payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF obligations

within the entire CFD:

r SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component);
r SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component;
o SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component; and

r SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

20
Page 50

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

CFD #21Fund Detail

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Gonsfruction Fund Caslr Balance: $ 2,979,962

Revenues:
Proceeds from Series 2019 Bonds

Proceeds ftom Series 2021 Bonds

lnterest Earned
Total Rerenues:

b<penses:
Progress Payment #7 Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF
Progress Payment #8 Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF
Progress Payment #9 Paulson Re Master Fund ll LLC-PSNF

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwblesiliabilities

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Consfruction Fund Cash Balance:

$
8,355

108

$ 8,463

$ 1,807,454
1 , 1 36,052

44,920

$ 2,988,426

(0)$

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Fund
52!,106,647 521,202,0ro 5r8,222,048 52,s79,962 5s,+es 52,988,426 So

Underwriter's

Discount
230,285 230,285 230,285 0 0 0 0

Cost of
lssuance

650,000 650,000 650,000 0 0 0 0

Reserve

Fund
r-,550,000 1,550,011 0 1,550,011 r,222 0 7,55L,233

Capitalized

I nterest
50s,s60 505,660 336,242 169,4r8 0 169,4r8 0

21
Page 51

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights)

Established November 27, 20Lg

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 22 (Folsom Heights) ('CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and culverts;

clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry seal), and

decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bike trails

(including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street lights, signalization, and

traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion control; median and parkway

landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus Rapid Transit improvements

including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements; masonry walls; traffic control and

agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible improvements for the roads listed herein

also include any and all necessary underground potable and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm

drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities include the following transportation

improvements:
r Summit Street
o Prima Drive
o Empire Ranch Road

r Alder Creek Parkway
r Folsom Heights Drive
o Other public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property

within the CFD, including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities, including those

expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District, designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage'

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities, including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation

District, designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto

- such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage'

22
Page 52

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities,

including those expected to be owned or managed by the City and/or the El Dorado lrrigation District,

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but
may not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines;

force mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20t5, including any future amendments thereto.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the cost of planning and designing the

facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation, remediation and mitigation); engineering and

surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and demolition costs incidental to the construction of

the public facilities; costs of project/construction management; costs (including the costs of legal

services) associated with the formation of the CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the

amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of taxes; costs of calculating and providing

reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out

the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses incidental to the formation and

implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion, inspection and acquisition of the

authorized facilities.

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:

r Landscape corridor and enhanced open space maintenance; and

o Street light maintenance.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

23
Page 53

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021l22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

So So so So On-going

0613012021.

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

So 5o So So On-going

24
Page 54

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



€ity of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 {Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 1
Established May 25, 2O2O

Speciaf Tax Bonds, Series 2020lssued October 30,2020
Special Tax Bonds, Series 2021 lssued April 27, 2022

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (CFD"\ include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete andlor pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto' Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

r All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

25
Page 55

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD, These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:

. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

a

a

a

a

26
Page 56

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2OI7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

r The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.

. Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

r Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs,

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the city related to the CFD.

27
Page 57

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Fiscal Year 2021l22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Fund

lnitial
Deposit

Prior Years

Additions /
lnterest

Prior Years

Expenses

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Current Year

Additions /
lnterest

Current Year

Expenses

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Fund
$22,554,233 S11,88s,1s3 59,7O4,352 52,180,800 Sro,eae,soz s44s,497 5r2,4r9,165

Underwriter's
Discount

279,649 r47,821. L47,82t 0 131,828 131,828 0

Cost of

lssuance
510,000 260,000 260,000 0 250,000 250,000 0

Reserve

Fund
1,774,0OO 883,031 0 883,031 891,962 0 7,774,993

Capitalized

I nte rest
606,308 426,458 !7t,337 255,12t L79,92r 255,tzL 179,92r

CFD #23,A1 Fund Detail

June 30, 2021 Acquisition and Construction Fund Cash Balance: $ 2'180,800

Revenues:
Proceeds ftom Series 2O22Bonds
lnterest Earned

Total Rewnues

Expenses:
Progress Payment #1 East Carpenter lmp. Co', LLC

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2022 Acquisition and Gonsfruction Fund Cash Balance

$ 10,678,1 13

5,748
$ 10,683,862

$ 445,497

$ 445,497

$ 12,419,165

28
Page 58

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Services

06l30l2o2L
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

05l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

So S153,120 s3,204 irlg,grc On-going

CFD #23,A1 Detail

June 30, 2021 Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance:

Revenues:
Mangini Ranch Maintenance Direct Lery

Reimbursements
lnterest Earned

Total Rercnues

Expenses:
Water & Utilities
Monthly LandscaPe Maintenance

Repairs & Replacement
Departmental Charges

Project Construction
CFD Admin
Other Expenses
Transfers Out

Total Expenses:

Change in Receiwbles/Liabilities

June 30, 2022Maintenance District Fund Cash Balance

$

$

$ 153,120

$ 153,120

2,247
1,004

$ 3,251

47

$ 149,916

29
Page 59

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 {Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 2
Established MaV 26, 202O

Purpose of Soecial Tax

Facilities

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

30
Page 60

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to

parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements, Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20!5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

. SplF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

. SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities'

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2017, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

31
Page 61

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation'
. Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

o Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs'
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2o2L
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

so So SO So On-going

06l30l202L
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

So $o 5o So On-going

32
Page 62

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



' 
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 3
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

r All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD, These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

33
Page 63

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

. SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

. SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

. SPIF Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of

taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 20L7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

34
Page 64

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

. The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
o The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
r Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to anyof the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or
replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021l22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

so So So So On-Boing

06/3012O2t
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

So So so so On-going

35
Page 65

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 4

Established MaY 26, 202O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:

acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;

masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities

include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto'

36
Page 66

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component

SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
r Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June 9, 2Ot7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

37
Page 67

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto'

The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.

Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.

The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 202U22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

a

a

a

a

a

a

o

a

0613012021

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

So SO so so On-going

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Amount

coll6cted

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

so so So 5o On-going

38
Page 68

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 5
Established MaV 25, 202O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities

The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the

following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry

seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground

utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street

lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

r All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:

water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by

generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

39
Page 69

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for

authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)

SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component

SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities,

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
o Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2O!7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

t

a

a

40
Page 70

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

o The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
. The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021122 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l202L
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30l2022
Balance

Project

Status

So So $o so On-going

06l30l2O2L

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

so 5o so So On-going

4t
Page 71

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 6
Established May 26, 2O2O

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project management; bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,

sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion

control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

o All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,

gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and appurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping

and signage and other improvements related thereto.

42
Page 72

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities

designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force

mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities

include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized

facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements

that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,20t5, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities

include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of L982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenq costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,

inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities,

Services

The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:
. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including

general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management

Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 2OL7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

a

a

43
Page 73

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within

the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

. The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.

. The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.

r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.

o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.

o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs'

o The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry

monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities

maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the

enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other

buffer areas between the enhanced open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry

signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or

facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to

be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the

services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the

future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its

own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund

administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 2021/22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Amount
Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

So So So So On-going

0613012021

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

06l30lZO22

Balance

Project

Status

SO So So So On-going

44
Page 74

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

lmprovement Area 7

Established December L4, 2O2L

Purpose of Special Tax

Facilities
The public facilities for Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) ("CFD") include the
following:

Transportation lmprovements: Eligible roadway improvements include, but are not limited to:
acquisition of land and easements; roadway design; project managemenU bridge crossings and

culverts; clearing, grubbing, and demolition; grading, soil import/export, paving (including slurry
seal), and decorative/enhanced pavement concrete and/or pavers; joint trenches, underground
utilities and undergrounding of existing utilities; dry utilities and appurtenances; curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, bike trails (including onsite and off-site), enhanced fencing, and access ramps; street
lights, signalization, and traffic signal control systems; bus turnouts; signs and striping; erosion
control; median and parkway landscaping and irrigation; entry monumentation; bus shelters, Bus

Rapid Transit improvements including transfer stations and regional public transit improvements;
masonry walls; traffic control and agency fees; and other improvements related thereto. Eligible

improvements for the roads listed herein also include any and all necessary underground potable

and recycled water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage system improvements. Authorized facilities
include the following transportation improvements:

All public roadway improvements designed to meet the needs of development within the CFD,

including internal subdivision streets and related underground utilities.
a

Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all water facilities designed to meet

the needs of development of property within the CFD, These facilities include, but may not be limited to:
water storage, treatment and distribution facilities including waterlines and appurtenances, gate valves,

pressure reducing stations, flow meters, fire hydrants, and other improvements related thereto such as

site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations and power; stand-by
generators; site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access

gates, and fencing; and striping and signage.

Recycled Water System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all recycled water system

facilities designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include,

but may not be limited to: treatment and distribution facilities including pipelines and appurtenances,
gate valves, flow meters, booster pump pressurization system, and other improvements related thereto -

such as site clearing, grading and paving; curbs and gutters; booster pump stations; stand-by generators;

site lighting, drainage, sanitary sewer, and water service; landscaping and irrigation; access gates, and

fencing; and striping and signage.

Drainage System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all drainage and storm drain

improvements designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: excavation and grading, pipelines and ailpurtenances, outfalls and

water quality measures, detention/retention basins, drainage pretreatment facilities, drainage

ways/channels, pump stations, landscaping and irrigation; access roads, gates, and fencing; and striping
and signage and other improvements related thereto.

45
Page 75

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



Wastewater System lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all wastewater facilities
designed to meet the needs of development of property within the CFD. These facilities include, but may

not be limited to, pipelines and all appurtenances thereto; manholes; tie-in to existing main lines; force
mains; lift stations; upgrades to existing lift stations; odor-control facilities; and permitting related

thereto; and related sewer system improvements.

Park, Parkway and Open Space lmprovements: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements to
parks, parkways and open space required for development of property within the CFD. These facilities
include, but may not be limited to: grading, turf, shrubs and trees, landscaping irrigation, site lighting,

drainage, sanitary sewer and water service, pedestrian and bicycle trails, protective fencing (including

soundwalls), pedestrian/bicycle bridges, storm drain crossings, wetland mitigation, hawk mitigation for
authorized facilities herein, access gates and fencing and related open space improvements. Authorized
facilities include acquisition of any and all parkland as well as open space/bike trail/public access

easements required for development of property within the CFD.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee lnfrastructure: Authorized facilities include any and all improvements
that are included in the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Program adopted by the City Council on

September 8,2015, including any future amendments thereto.

Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee Obligation: Subject to the provisions of the Act, authorized facilities
include payment of the following SPIF obligations for all development that would be subject to SPIF

obligations within the entire CFD:

SPIF lnfrastructure Fee (including the SPIF Set-Aside component)
SPIF Public Facilities Land Equalization Fee Component
SPIF Parkland Equalization Fee Component
SPI F Administrative Fee.

Other lncidental Expenses and Bond lssuance Costs: ln addition to the above facilities, other incidental

expenses as authorized by the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, including, but not limited to,

the cost of planning and designing the facilities (including the cost of environmental evaluation,

remediation and mitigation); engineering and surveying; construction staking; utility relocation and

demolition costs incidental to the construction of the public facilities; costs of project/construction

managemenU costs (including the costs of legal services) associated with the formation of the Mello-Roos

CFD; issuance of bonds (if any); determination of the amount of taxes; collection of taxes; payment of
taxes; costs of calculating and providing reimbursements from one-time special tax payments; or costs

otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the CFD; and any other expenses

incidental to the formation and implementation of the CFD and to the construction, completion,
inspection and acquisition of the authorized facilities.

Services
The services to be financed by the CFD include the following:

. Open Space improvements, operations and management, monitoring, maintenance (including
general maintenance, signage, City owned fence maintenance, trash and debris collection, and

bike trails and their appurtenances [drainage culverts or pipes from adjacent subdivisions]

within open space), creation and maintenance of fire breaks, Permits, Vandalism/Graffiti, Flood

Conveyance (Vegetation/tree removals), Beaver dam removals, Outfall/drainage swale

maintenance, Erosion control/bank stabilization, Native planting/replanting, Pre and post

emergent, maintenance activities as required by a 404 permit and Operations and Management
Plan-Conservation and Passive Recreation Open Space, dated June9, 20L7, and repair and

replacement of facilities within open space areas in the Project Area.

a

a

46
Page 76

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



. The maintenance of on-site landscape corridors and paseos designed to serve land uses within
the CFD, including general maintenance, masonry walls, accent lighting, water and utility costs.

r The maintenance of streetlights, including any utility costs related thereto.
r The maintenance of medians, entries, and entry monumentation.
o Neighborhood park maintenance, and repair and replacement.
r Community amenities, such as a community clubhouse.
o Storm water management, water quality structural controls, including drainage swales

constructed between storm drain facilities and receiving waters.
o Miscellaneous costs related to any of the items described above including planning, engineering,

GlS, legal, and city and county administration costs.
r The levy of special taxes to accumulate sinking funds for anticipated future repairs or

replacement costs of landscape corridors, irrigation facilities, medians, entries and entry
monumentation, lighting, neighborhood parks, storm water management and other facilities
maintained by the CFD as determined by the Administrator.

Annual maintenance functions and costs generally will include the installation, maintenance and

servicing of ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, street lighting, fencing, sound walls,

sidewalks, monuments, enhanced open space maintenance including but not limited to maintaining the
enhanced open space areas located adjacent to avoided or created habitat mitigation areas and other
buffer areas between the enhanied open space and vertical development, bike trails, walkways, entry
signage, street pavers, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities (including water and electricity) and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City. Annual maintenance costs

include an allowance for long-term repair and replacement of improvements.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the maintenance of the services described above:

obtaining, repairing, reconstructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas to
be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits of the personnel necessary or convenient to provide the
services, and other related expenses and the provision of reserves for repairs and replacements for the
future provision of services. lt is expected that the services will be provided by the City, either with its
own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination thereof. The CFD may also fund
administrative fees of the City related to the CFD.

Fiscal Year 202U22 Collections & Expenditures

Facilities

Services

06l30l2O2t
Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

So So So So On-going

061301202t

Balance

Amount

Collected

Expended

Amount

0613012022

Balance

Project

Status

So 5o So So On-going

47
Page 77

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



This page intentiona,Ily Ieft blank
to facilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLS()l\{
DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE

Page 78

12/13/2022 Item No.4.



| ::iiiiii j:, ti.!:

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTIQN

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10950 - A Resolution Repealing
Prior Resolution No. 8153, Adopting an Updated Records Retention Schedule, and

Authorizing Destruction of Certain City Records in Accordance with the Records Retention

Schedule.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City last formally updated its records retention schedule in2007. Since then, certain
laws have changed and new types of records have been created, necessitating an update in
retention schedules. The update is necessary to ensure that the City will be in compliance
with current legal requirements and will be able to better utilize current technology.

Earlier this year, the City retained an expert consultant in local government records, Gladwell
Governmental Services, Inc. (GGS), to review and update its records retention schedules.

GGS and staff from the City Clerk's Department worked with representatives from all City
departments to review and update individual department record schedules based upon current

I

MEETING DATE: t2n3t2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10950 - A Resolution Repealing Prior
ResolutionNo. 8153, Adopting an Updated Records Retention
Schedule, and Authorizing Destruction of Certain City Records

in Accordance with the Records Retention Schedule

F'ROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 79

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



legal standards and best practices. Going forward, retention schedules will be reviewed on

an annual basis to ensure that updates are made in a timely manner.

POLICY/ RULE

Retention standards are established by a wide variety of State laws and industry standards.

The retention periods identified within the updated schedules are in compliance with State

laws and are in alignment with the standard business practice for Califomia cities.

ANALYSIS

In simple terms, records retention schedules establish the o'retention" (how long files will be

kept) ofrecords based upon record classification. The purpose ofarecords retention
program is to apply efficient and economical methods to the creation, utilization,
maintenance, retention, preservation, and disposal of all records managed by the Ctty. An
efficient and thorough records retention program reduces costs and improves efficiency for
the City.

It is standard business practice for California cities to authorize the routine destruction of
records that have met or exceeded their adopted retention period. Destruction of records is

conducted under strict standards and is authorized only after department staff have obtained

written authorization through a mandated series of review and approval from:

Department Head
City Clerk
City Attorney
City Manager

1.

2.
3.
4.

Records may only be destroyed after going through the established approval process.

FINANCIA I,IMPACT

The adoption of an updated retention schedule will result in efficiency gains and cost

savings. The City will realize significant savings both in labor and storage expenses,

including the avoidance of future storage and related costs.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10950 - A Resolution Repealing Prior Resolution No. 8153,
Adopting an Updated Records Retention Schedule, and Authorizing Destruction of
Certain City Records in Accordance with the Records Retention Schedule

2 Page 80

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



2. City of Folsom Records Retention Schedules (redline version to illustrate changes)

3. Resolution No. 8153 - A Resolution Adopting a Records Retention Schedule for the
City of Folsom (2007)

Submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

J Page 81

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



Attachment 1

Page 82

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10950

A RESOLUTION REPEALING PRrOR RESOLUTION NO. 8153,
ADOPTING AN UPDATED RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE, AND

AUTHORIZING DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN CITY RECORDS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

WHEREAS, the maintenance of outdated records beyond their useful life is expensive

and inefficient, and is not necessary after a certain period of time for the effective and efficient
operation of the government of the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, Section 34090 of the Government Code of the State of California provides
a procedure whereby any City record which has served its purpose and is no longer required may
be destroyed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom previously adopted Resolution No.8153, approving a

Records Retention Schedule; and

WHEREAS, the City has completed a comprehensive review of the types of records

maintained by each department as well as the legal requirements for maintenance of each record
type:

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CrrY OF F',OLSOM DOES
RESOLVE AS F'OLLOWS:

Section 1. Resolution No. 8153 is hereby repealed.

Section 2. The records of the City of Folsom, as set forth in the Records Retention
Schedule dated December 2022 and incorporated herein by this reference, are hereby authorized
to be destroyed as provided by Section 34090 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of
California and in accordance with the provision of said schedule upon the request of the

Department Head and with the consent in writing of the Department Head, City Clerk, City
Attorney and City Manager, without further action by the City Council.

Section 3: Updates are hereby authorized to be made to the Records Retention
Schedule, without any further action by the City Council, with the consent of the Department Head,

City Clerk, City Attorney and City Manager.

Section 4. The term "records" as used herein shall include documents, instructions,
books, microforms, electronic files, magnetic tape, optical media, or papers; as defined by the

California Public Records Act.

ResolutionNo. 10950
Page I of2

Page 83

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13tr day of December, 2022, by the following roll-call

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10950
Page2 of2

Page 84

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



Attachment2

Page 85

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



Page 86

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



HOW TO USE RETENTION SCHEDULES
@1995-2021 Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wrlften permission

A legend explaining the information presented in the retention schedule has been printed on the back of
each page for your easy reference; an index to locate records is also provided.

The specified retention period applies regardless of the media of the record: lf a record is stored on paper

and a computer file on a hard drive, both records should be destroyed (or erased) after the specified period
of time has elapsed.

Copies or duplicates of records should never be retained longer than the prescribed period for the original
record.

STRUCTURE: CITYWIDE. DEPARTMENTS & DIVISIONS

The City-wide retention schedule includes those records all departments have in common (letters,
memorandums, purchase orders, etc.). These records are NOT repeated in the Department retention
schedule, unless that department is the Office of Record, and therefore responsible for maintaining the
original record for the prescribed length of time.

Each department has a separate retention schedule that describes the records that are unique to their
department, or for which they are the Office of Record. Where appropriate, the department retention
schedules are organized by Division within that Department. lf a record is not listed in your department
retention schedule, refer to the City-wide retention schedule. An index will be provided for your reference.

BENEFITS

This retention schedule has been developed by Diane R. Gladwell, MMC, an expert in Municipal
Government records, and will provide the City with the following benefits:

. Reduce administrative expenses, expedite procedures

. Free filing cabinet and office space

. Reduce the cost of records storage

. Eliminate duplication of effort within the City

. Find records faster

. Easier purging of file folders

. Determine what media should be used to store records

For questions, please contact the City Clerk.

AUTHORIZATION TO DESTROY RECORDS:

Destruction of an oriqinal record that has exceeded its retention period must be authorized according to
City Policies & Procedures prior to destroying it.

. lf there is a minimum retention ("Minimum 2 years"), destruction of the document must be
authorized before it is destroyed, as it is an original record.

Copies, drafts, notes and non-records do NOT require authorization, and can be destroyed "When No
Longer Required."

o lf there is NOT a minimum retention ("When No Longer Required"), it does NOT need to be
authorized prior to destruction, as it is a preliminary draft / transitory record or a copy.

On every page of the schedules (near the top, just under the column headings) are important instructions,
including instructions regarding holds on destroying records. "Litigation, complaints, claims, public
records act requests, audits and/or investigations suspend normal retention periods (retention
resumes after settlement or completion)."

Page 87

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE LEGEND
@1995-2022 Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

OFR (Office of Record): The department that keeps the original or "record copy." Usually it is the department that originates the record, unless the item is for
a City Council meeting (then it is the City Clerk.)

Records Description: The record series (a group of like records).

Transitory Records not retained in the ordinary course of business, that do NOT have substantive content: Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or intra-
agency memoranda and records having only transitory value. Examples: Telephone messages, meeting room reservation schedules, logs, source records
entered into a computer system that qualifies as a "trusted system", etc.

Non-Record: Documents, studies, books and pamphlets produced by outside agencies, preliminary drafts not retained in the ordinary course of business.

Retention/Disposition: Active: How long the file remains in the immediate office area (guideline)
lnactive: How long the file is in off-site storage, stored on Optical Disk or Microforms (guideline)
Total Retention: The total number of years the record will be retained

For file folders containing documents with different retention timeframes, use the document with the longest retention time.
P = Permanent
lndefinite = No fixed or specified retention period; used for databases, because the data fields are interrelated.

Vital? = Those records that are needed for basic operations in the event of a disaster.

Media Options (guideline) - the form of the record: Mag = Electronic Computer Magnetic Media (Hard drives, Networks, USB Drives, Cloud, etc.)
Mfr = Microforms (aperture cards, microfilm, microfiche, or jackets)
Ppr = Paper
OD = Optical Disk, CD-r, DVD-r, WORM, or other media which does not allow changes

Scan / lmport (guideline): "S" indicates the record should be scanned into the document imaging system;
"1" indicates the record should be electronically imported into the document imaging system;
"M" indicates the record should be microfilmed

Destroy Paper after lmaged & QC'd / Trustworthy Electronic Record: "Yes" indicates the electronic record may serve as the OFFICIAL record
(and the paper version may be destroyed, or the record may be electronically generated and never exist in paper format;) lF the document has been
imaged (electronically generated, scanned or imported and placed on Unalterable Media - DVD-R, CD-R, or WORM, or microfilmed), and both the
images and indexing Quality Checked ('OC'd"). The electronic record or image must contain all siqnificant details from the oriqinal and be an
adequate substitute for the oriqinal document for all purposes, and other legal mandates apply. lncludes all electronic records which are to serve as
the Official Record.

Leqend for leqal citations ($: Section)
CC: CivilCode (CA)
CFC: California Fire Code
EVC: Evidence Code (CA)
FTB: Franchise Tax Board (CA)
HUD: Housing & Urban Develop. (US)
PC: Penal Code (CA)
UFC: Uniform Fire Code
W&l: Welfare & lnstitutions Code (CA)

B&P: Business & Professions Code (CA)
CCP: Code of Civil Procedure (CA)
CFR: Code of Federal Regulations (US)
FA: Food & Agriculture Gode
GC: Government Code (CA)
LC: Labor Code (CA)
PRC Public Resources Code
USC: United States Code (US)

CBC: California Building Code
CCR: California Code of Regulations (CA)
EC: Elections Code (CA)
FC: Family Code (CA)
H&S: Health & Safety Code (CA)
Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen..: Attorney General Opinions (CA)
R&T: Revenue & Taxation Code (CA)
VC: Vehicle Code (CA)

Page 88

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

City Clerk

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Finance /
Accounting

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or

Retentions aoo

-

Retentions beo

Office of
Record
(oFR)

006

005

004

003

002

001

to or the "Lead tf are the refer to

act and a full file folder Iast document + 2 since destruction is

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Agenda Packets / Staff Reports: City
Council, RDA & PFA (prior to 1988)

Affidavits of Publications / Public Hearing
Notices / Legal Advertising / Affidavits of
Posting / Proof of Publications

Administrative Hearings / Appeals
inek*des: Except Code Enforcement and
Truancies (which are retained bv Cifu
Clerk)

Accounts Payable, lnvoices, Petty Cash,
Warrant Requests, etc.

lf ALL backup is forwarded to Finance

Accounts Payable, lnvoices, Petty Cash,
etc.

lf backup is kept in the Lead Dept. (cell
phone bill backup, Gity Attorney
invoices, etc.)

Accident, lncident, lnjury reports /
Potential Claims: PUBLIC OR
EMPLOYEES / CITY PROPERTY (Not
resulting in a claim)

Send copies of Significant lncidents or Property
Recovery to Citv Attornev / Risk Manaoement

Record Series Title

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

2 years

When Ne
tongeF

neqt*ire+-
Minimum

Resolution +
2 vears

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

5 years

5 years

Total
Retention

Yes: While
Active lssues

Yes: Before
Payment

Yes: Before
Payment

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD+

yeafs

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

GC 534090.7

Brown Act challenges must be filed within 30

or 90 days of action; Statute of Limitations on
Municipal Government actions is 3 - 6
months; GGP $5337 et seq; 349,'1; GC

ss34090, e+e€o-+(€)e+)_

Department preference; GC 534090

All originals go to Finance (these are copies);
GC 534090.7

Department Preference; Meets municipal
government auditing standards; Published

@
@;GC
s340e0

Department Preference; Workers
Compensation cases for employee accident
reports that result in a claim are maintained
in Workers Compensation Files; GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 1 of 14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 89

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

act resumes after seftlement or
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 ce b file folder.
to the that is NOT the Office of Record or the "Lead tf are the to schedule.

o_rrice or i ::::J: 3::Record I I

(oFR) | *"' 
I

008

007

00

00

Agreements & Contracts:
ADMINISTRATIVE FILES - NOT funded
by a grant

(Correspondence, Project Administration,
Project Schedules, Certified Payrolls,
lnvoices, Logs, etc.)

Exceptions: Animal Control, Class lnstructors,
Custodial, Greenwaste, Maintenance, Roll-Off
Contracts (see Schedule for the Administrative
Services, Community Development or Parks &
Recreation)

Agreements & Contracts, Leases, MOUs,
etc. Agreement or Contract includes all
contractual obligations

(Agreement or Contract includes all
co ntractu a I o b I ig ati on s (e. g. Amen d ments,
Scope of Work or Successfu/ Proposal)

Record Series Title

Completion +
10 years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Total
Retention

Yes: Before
Completion

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD

Ppr

Media
Options

s/r

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Up€n-
gemptetiec

Yes: After
QC&OD

Up€n-
eempt*iec

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

6C'd?

Covers E&O Statute of Limitations
(insurance certificates are filed with
agreement); Published Audit Standards=4-7
years; Statute of Limitations: Contracts &
Spec's=4 years, Wrongful Death=comp. + 5
years, Developers=comp. + 10 years;

Statewide guidelines prepese lerminatien + 5
years;-CCP $$336(a), 337 et. seq., GC

s34090

All agreements, service agreements, and
contracts are sent to the City Clerk; GC

s34090.7

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageCW -2of14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 90

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Finance OR
City Clerk

City Clerk

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

when the act file folder last document + 2 srnce file folder.
to the that is or the "Lead tf are the to retention schedule.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

012

nla
nla

011

010

009

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

records act audits and/or retention resumes

Div
No.

Budgets - Finals

City Clerk is OFR Post-1983,
Finance is OFR Pre-1983

Brochures: See Reference Manuals
Bids: See Aqreements & Contracts

Audits / ACFR - Annual Comprehensive
Financial Reports GAFR-€€r+pret+ees+ve-

+sd+€p+Fi€ns-

Agreements & Contracts:
UNSUCCESSFUL BIDS.
UNSUCCESSFUL PROPOSALS OT

RESPONSES to RFPs (Request for
Proposals) and/or RFQs (Request for
Qualifications) that don't result in a
contract

Agreements & Contracts:
ADMINISTRATIVE FILES -WITH grant
funding

(Correspondence, Project Administration,
Project Schedules, Certified Payrolls,
lnvoices, Logs, etc.)

Record Series Title

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

2 years

After Funding
Agency Audit,

if required,
whichever is

longer or
Completion
+10 years

Total
Retention

Yes: Current
Fiscal Year

Yes: Before
Completion

Vital?

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD
A#e+5
veaf€

Yes: After
QC&OD

Upon-
eespl€+isf

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Final must be filed with County Auditor; GC

s34090.7, 40802, 53901

Copies; GC 534090.7

The RFP i RFQ and the successful proposal

becomes part of the agreement or contract
(City Clerk is OFR); GC 534090

Meets auditing standards; Grants covered by
a Consolidated Action Plan are required for 5
years; Uniform Admin. Requirements for
Grants to Local Governments is 3 years from

expenditure report or final payment of
g ra ntee o r su bg rantee ; s+atewide-guidelines-

24
CFR 85J4 91.105(h), 92.505, & 570.502(a),
28€FR€€J4 29 CFR 97 .42; 4O CFR 31 .42:

44 CFR 13.42:45 CFR92.42: OMB Circular
A-110 & A-133.320(g); GC $34090; GC

s8546.7

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 3 of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 91

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Staffing Dept.

Staffing Dept.

City Clerk OR
City Attorney /
Risk Manage.

City Attorney

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

to Office of Record or the "Lead tf are retention schedule.

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 ,s file folder

act normal retention or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

018

017

016

015

014

013

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Commissions, Committees & Boards:
Citizens Advisory Bodies Formed by CITY
COUNCIL

AGENDAS, AGENDA STAFF REPORTS
(AGENDA PACKETS)

Including handouts, affidavits of posting,
proof of publications, public hearing
notices, staff reports and supplemental
information

Commissions, Committees & Boards:
AUDIO RECORDINGS of Meetings /
Audio Tapes

Claims

City Attorney / Risk Management is OFR
Post-2008,
City Clerk is OFR Pre-2008

City Attorney Opinions

Citizens Concerns Trackinq Software /
CRM Software / Citizens Response
Manaqement Database

Cash Receipts Detail / Backup i Accounts
Receivable Detail / Refund Detail

Building Security Videos

Record Series Title

When Ne
tongeF

neq*ireg-
Minimum 5

years

Minimum 2
years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

(Upon
Settlement)

P

lndefinite

2 years

1 years

Total
Retention

Yes: Before
Settlement

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Tape
(Mas)

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mao, Por

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Media
Options

s/t

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

After
S€+tl€\q€{*

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

City preference; Brown Act challenges must
be filed within 30 or 90 days of action; GC

SS340e0, 54960.1 (c)(1 )

City preference; State law only requires for
30 days; GC 554953.5(b)

City Attorney is OFR for lawsuits; Risk
Management administrates claim; GC

ss34090.7, 34090.6

Department Preference; GC 534090

GC E34090

Deoartment oreference (data is inter-related):

Department preference (not all detail is sent
to Finance; GC 534090

Records regular and ongoing operations as
well as public activities; GC SS34090.6,
60201 et seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 4 of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 92

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead
(Responding

)Dept.

Lead Dept.

Staffing Dept.

Staffing Dept.

records act normal retention resumes after settlement or

to the or the "Lead are to retention

and a full file folder last document + destruction is

Office of
Record
(oFR)

022

021

020

019

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Copies or duplicates of any record

Contracts: See Aqreements

Complaints / Concerns from Citizens
(operational : excludes Police)

Committees Internal - Attended by
employees: All Records

(e.9. Records Management Committee, ln-

House Task Forces, etc.)

Commissions, Committees & Boards:

External Organizations

(e.q. Countv Board of Supervisors)

Commissions, Committees & Boards: City
Gouncil Subcommittees

(Composed solely of less than a quorum
of the City Council)

Commissions, Committees & Boards:
Citizens Advisory Bodies Formed by CITY
COUNCIL

MINUTES, RESOLUTIONS, BYLAWS

Record Series Title

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

2years

2years

When No
Longer

Required

2 years

P

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&Op1+

yeaf€

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

GC 534090.7

City preference to be consistent with
correspondence; Statute of Limitations for
personal property, fraud, etc. is 3 years;

Claims must be filed in 6 months; CCP

$$338 et seq., 340 et seq., 342,€€{€€45+
GC 534090

GC 534090

Non-records

All recommendations are presented to the
City Council; GC $34090 et seq.

Notes taken to facilitate the writing of the
minutes can be destroyed after minutes have
been adopted; GC $34090 et seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 5 ol 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 93

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Dept. that
Authors

Document
or

Receives the
City's Original

Document

Dept. that
Authors

Document
or

Receives the
City's Original

Document

records act audits retention resumes
Retentions be

Retentions applv to the de

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

024

023

and a full file folder last document + 2 file folder.

00

00

of Record or the "Lead tf are retention schedule.

Div
No.

Correspondence - TRANSITORY /
PRELIMINARY DRAFTS, lnteragency and
lntraagency Memoranda not retained in
the ordinary course of business

Gontent NOT Substantive. or NOT made
or retained for the purpose of
preservinq the informational contenl for
future reference

(e.9. calendars, checklists, e-mail or social
media postinqs. instant messaqinq,+hal

eendue+e++usiness; invitations, instant
messaging, logs, mailing lists, meeting
room registrations, speaker slips. staff
videoconference chats. notes and
recordinos. supply inventories, telephone
messaqes. text messaqes. transmittal
letters, thank yous, requests from other
cities, undeliverable envelopes, visitors
logs, voice mails, webpaqes, etc.)

Correspondence - ROUTINE

{Content relates in a substantive way to
the conduct of the public's business)

(e.9. Adrninistrative, Chronological,
General Files, Letters, Memorandums,
Miscellaneous Reports, Press Releases,
Public Records Requests, Reading File,
Working Files, etc.)

Record Series Title

When No
Longer

Required

2 years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

business. or ARE made or retained for the
puroose of preservinq the informational
content for future reference are saved by
placing them in an electronic or paper
(project) file folder endjelaingd-follhq
applicable retention period. lf not mentioned
here, consult the City Attorney to determine if
a record is considered transitory / preliminary
drafts. GC 534090, GC 56252 :64 Ons Cal

Attv. Gen. 3'17 i'|981)): Citv of San Jose v.

Superior Court (Smith). 5218066. Supreme
Court of California, 2017

business-

the GONTENT of the record. Records
where either the Content relates in a
sr rhstantive wav to the conduct of the oublic's

Electronic and paper records are
cateoorized. filed and retained based uoon

GC S34o9o

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 6 of 14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 94

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Human
Resources

Lead Dept.
(except for

Utilities)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

to the or the "Lead tf are the to retention schedule.

acf ls and a full file folder Iast document + 2 file folder

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

029

028

027

026

025

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Grievances and lnformal Complaints
(Employees)

Grants / CDBG / Reimbursable Claims i
Subventions / FEMA Claims / OES Claims
(SUCCESSFUL Reports, other records
required to pass the funding agency's
audit, if required)

Send Grant Financial Reports to Finance

Applications (successful), program rules,
regulations & procedures, reports to grant
funding agencies, correspondence, audit
records, completion records

Grants (UNSUCCESSFUL Applications,
Correspondence)

GIS Database lData lLayers (both City-
wide and Specialized)

Drafts & Notes: Drafts that are revised
(retain final version)

Record Series Title

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

After Funding
Agency Audit,

if required -
Minimum 5

years

2 years

When No
Longer

Required

When No
Longer

Required

Total
Retention

Yes: Before
Disposition

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Send all grievances to Human Resources; All
State and Federal laws require retention until
final disposition of formal complaint; State
requires 2 years after action is taken; GC

ss1 2946,1 2960. 34090

Meets auditing standards; Grants covered by
a Consolidated Action Plan are required for 5
years; Uniform Admin. Requirements for
Grants to Local Governments is 3 years from
expenditure report or final payment of
grantee or subgrantee; sta+e*ide-guidelines-

24
cFR 8#4 e1.105(h), e2.50s, & 570.502(a),
28€FR€@ 29 CFR 97 .42; 40 CFR 31 .42:

44 CFR 13.42:45 CFR92.42: OMB Circular
A-1 10 & A-133.320(g); GC S3a090; GC

88546.7

GC S34o9o

The Lead Department should print out
historical documents (or save source data)
prior to replacing the data, if they require the
data or output for historical purposes;
Department Preference (Preliminary
documents); GC $34090 et seq.

As long as the drafts and notes are not
retained in the "Regular Course of Business"
Consult the City Attorney to determine if a
record is considered a draft. GC 534090,
GC 56252

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW -7 of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 95

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

City Clerk

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

City Attorney

City Attorney /
Risk Manage.

to the that is the or are refer to retention schedule.

when the act is a + ,s file folder.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

036

035

034

033

032

031

030

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Newspaper Clippings

Municipal Code and City Charter (these
are copies)

Minutes (City Council, RDA, PFA)

Material Data Safety Sheet (MSDS) /
Chemical Use Report Form (or records of
the chemical / substance / agent, where &
when it was used)

Leave Slips

Lawsuits, Litigation, Pending Litigation

lnsurance Certificates for Agreements and
Contracts

normal retention resumes

Record Series Title

When No
Longer

Required

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

30 years

When No
Longer

Required

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

(Upon
Settlement)

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

Total
Retention

Yes: Current
Original

Yes (all)

Yes: Before
Settlement

Vital?

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

S

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
oc&op

No

No

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#eF
ha€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

AfteF
S€fi|€men+

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Non-records - may be obtained from the
newspaper company; GC 534090

Return any whole unused codes to the City
Clerk; Originals maintained by City Clerk
Permanently; GC 534090

Originals maintained by City Clerk
Permanently; GC 534090.7

Previous MSDS may be obtained from a
service; MSDS mav be destroved as lonq
as a record of the chemical / substance /
aqent. where & when it was used is
maintained for 30 vears; Applies to qualified

employers; 8 CCR 3204(dX1XA) et seq,
(BX2 and 3)

Preliminary draft / transitory record; GC

s34090, GC 56252

Risk Management administrates claim; GC

ss34090.7, 34090.6

lf a certificate cannot be matched to a
contract, send to Finance; GC 534090.7

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - I of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 96

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

feag-Sept

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Human
Resources

City Clerk

Lead Dept.

when the act is a last document + 2 s/nce file folder.
to the that is NOT the or "Lead tf are the to retention schedule.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

s4+

040

039

038

037

068

0s

00

00

00

00

00

NeT Eleetiens Petitiens fer lnitiative;

Gity Clerk sehedule

Personnel Work Schedules

Personnel Files (Supervisor's Notes)

Personnel Files

Ordinances - City Council

Oaths of Office - Commissions /
Committees

records act audits and/or retention resumes or

Record Series Title

lJear

2 years

1 year
(After lncorp.
ln Evaluation)

Upon
Separation,

Send to
Human

Resources

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

4 years

Total
Retention

Before
Annual

Performance
Evaluation

Before
Separation

Yes (all)

Vital?

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

No

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Net related te eleetl
ferpe*iens;ee{gg++S

GC 534090

Preliminary Drafts or Notes maintained in a
separate folder to be incorporated into
performance evaluation, or to document
progressive discipline; GC $34090 et seq.

Ensure records kept in Department files
comply with City policy (all originals are sent
to Human Resources); GC 534090.7

Originals maintained by City Clerk
Permanently; GC 534090

Statute of Limitations: Public official
misconduct is discovery of offense + 4 vears.
retirement benefits is 6 vears from last
action: statewide quidelines propose

Termination + 6 vears: GC Q34090: PC

Q$801.5.803(c)r 29 USC 1113

@
term ef effiee and 4 years after th€ expiratien
ef term and dees net delineate between the
$l*e.,++$+++ge

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Govemmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageCW -9of14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 97

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.
(Who

Ordered the
Appraisal)

Lead Dept.
(Who

Ordered the
Appraisal)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

audits and/or normal resumes after settlement or
when the act is a last document + 2 since destruction is folder.
to the that is NOT the or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

048

047

046

045

044

043

o42

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Real Estate Appraisal Reports:
Purchased Property, Funded Loans

Real Estate Appraisal Reports: Property
NOT purchased, Loans not funded, etc.

Purchase Orders, Procurement &
Contracting Records (RFPs,

Specifications, Contracts, Amendments,
Successful Bids, Notice of Award, RFQs,
etc.)

Public Relations / Press Releases
(Newsletters)

Public Records Act Requests and copies
of records produced

Policies & Procedures - Department-
Speeific (NOT City-Wide) Except Police

Policies & Procedures - Gity-wide
User Fee & Schedules for City

Record Series Title

When Ne
tong€F

eeq*reg-
Minimum 5

vears

2 years

10 years

2 years

2 years

Superseded +

5 years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

Total
Retention

Yes: Before
Purchase

Yes: Before
Completion

tf are the refer to

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

s/l

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

l+aetive

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'd?

Not accessible to the public until purchase

has been completed; meets grant auditing
requirements; 24 CFR85.42 & 91.105(h), &
570.502(b); 29 CFR 97.42, GC 534090

Not accessible to the public;€tatewide-
eu+ee+nes-snew++ea+s; GC SS34090,
6254(h)

Department preference for grant auditing
requirements (errors & omissions does not
apply);{@
@

@ienaire-
years; CCP SS337. 337.1 (a), 337.1 5, 343:
GC 534090

GC S34o9o

GC S34o9o

City preference ; S+a+ewit*r*gtuidelines-

@;Gc
s34090

City Clerk is OFR (copies); GC S34090.7

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 10 of 14

Updated: 1O11312022

Page 98

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

City Clerk

records act audits and/or resumes after seftlement or
Retentions be

Retentions app

Office of
Record
(oFR)

053

nla

nla

052

051

050

049

act is and a full file folder last document + 2 stnce file folder
v to the de

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

00

00

00

00

00

or the "Lead tf are the refer to

Reports and Studies (Historically
significant - e.9., Zoning Studies, plans,
environmental reports)

Reference or Working Files: See
Correspondence

Reference Materials: Brochures, Manuals,
and Reports: Produced by OUTSIDE

ORGANIZATIONS (League of California
Cities, Chamber of Commerce, etc.)

Reference Materials: Brochures, Manuals,
and Reports: Produced by OTHER
Departments

Reference Materials: Brochures, Manuals,
and Reports: Produced by YOUR
Department

Records Destruction and Storage Lists i
Certificate of Records Destruction

Real Property (Recorded Property Related
Documents)

(Abandonments, Deeds, Deed
Restrictions, Easements, Liens, Lot Line
Adjustments, Reconveyances, Resale
Restrictions, Quitclaims, Vacations,
condemnations, easement agreements,
Right of Entry Agrgqlenfg, etc.)

Record Series Title

P

When No
Longer

Required

Superseded

When Ne
t€ngeF

eegtair€+-
Minimum 2

vears

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
oc&oD{4

yeafs

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Administratively and Historically significant,
therefore retained permanently; GC 534090
maintained independent of project files

Non-Records

Copies; GC 534090.7

@lccS34oeo

GC 534090.7

Send all originals to the City Clerk; GC

s34090.7

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 11 of 14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 99

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

Lead Dept.

when the act a +2 since destruction is file

audits and/or normal retention resumes or

to the that is NOT the Office of Record or the are refer to retention schedule.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

060

059

058

057

056

055

054

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Subpoenas

Special Projects / Subject Files / lssue
Files

Special Event Permits

Speaker Cards (submitted at public
meetings)

Safety: OSHA lnspections & Citations,
Log 200 and Log 300,301,301A

Resolutions - City Council, RDA, PFA

Reports and Studies (other than
Historically significant reports - e.g. Annual
Reports, plans, strategic plans)

Record Series Title

2 years

When Ne
tong€F

eequire+-
Minimum 2

VEATS

Expiration + 2
years

When No
Longer

Required

5 years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

10 years

Total
Retention

Yes: During
Class or
Program

Yes (all)

Vital?

Mag. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

No

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq

GC S34o9o

Preliminarv drafts / Transitory records not
retained in the ordinary course of business
(used to accurately produce minutes); GG

534090 et seq.

Calif. Labor Division is required to keep their
records 7 years; OSHA requires 5 years;
State law requires 2 years; 8 CCR

S3203(bX1), Gc S340e0.7; LC S642ec

Originals maintained by City Clerk
Permanently; GC 534090.7

lnformation is outdated after '10 years;

;-
GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 12 of 14
Updated: 1011312022

Page 100

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

to the Office of Record or the "Lead tf are the to

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 file folder.

records act audits resurnes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

064

063

062

061

Record
Series

No.

00

00

00

00

Div
No.

Training - ALL COURSE RECORDS

(Attendance Rosters, Outlines and
Materials; includes Ethics, Harassment
Prevention. Tailqates, & Safety training)

Time Sheets i Time Cards / Overtime
Sheets / Overtime Cards

Tapes: See Boards & Commissions

Surveys / Questionnaires (that the City
issues).

lf a summary of the data is compiled, the
survey forms are considered a draft or
transitory record, and can be destroyed as
drafts (When No Longer Required)

Record Series Title

7 years

10 years

2 years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

s4

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

lfia€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

A,ftec?
years

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

6C'd?

Department Preference; OSHA requires 5
years for safety records; S{atewiCe-

@Calif.Labor
Division is required to keep their OSHA
records 7 years; Ethics Training is 5 years;

EEOC/FLSAJADEA (Age) requires 3 years
for promotion, demotion, transfer, selection,
or discharge; State Law requires 2 -3 years;
I CCR $3203 et seq., 8 CCR 14300.33(a);
29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2),29 CFR 1904.33,29
CFR 1904.44; LC $642e(c); Gc SS12946,
12960. 34090, 53235.2(b), 53237.2(b\

Departments retain original individual
(signed) time cards, and submit a summary
to Payroll; 10 years to facilitate grant audits;
Meets auditing standards (audit + 4 years);
IRS requires 4 years; Ca. requires 2 yr min.;
FTB keeps 3 years; Published artieles sher+

;-
IRS Res $31.6001-1(eX2), R&T 519530; LC

$ 1 17a(d); Gc 534090

GC 534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 13 of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 101

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY-WIDE STANDARDS (00)

Lead Dept.

Lead Dept.

e+verc*

HOLDS: Litiqation. comp,

to the that is NOT the Office af Record or are the refer to retention

when the act is and a +2 since destruction is

'*ff;'l::".iJiii":
(oFR) | *'' 

I

067

066

e65

00

00

00

sints. c

Volunteer / Unpaid lntern Applications &

Agreements - Unsuccessful or Pending
Applicants

Volunteer / Unpaid lntern Applications &
Agreements - Successful

Training Geurse Reeerds: City Spensered

@
@
@ien_
Plans (lAP); AfterAetien ReBerts (AAR); Plans;
Preparedness Training & Exereises; Reseuree
Manaqement, eemmunieatiens, ete,

act audits and/or normal retention after settlement or

Record Series Title

3 years

lnactive /
Separation +

3 years

Sene-g-e*V-
Clerk

Total
Retention

Vital?

Ppr

Ppr

Magr
*qfe€B;

Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Ves+4fiet
e€e+

When
+Fadive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Department preference (Courts treat
volunteers as employees);
EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years

for promotion, demotion, transfer, selection,
or discharge; 29 CFR 1602.31 &

1627.3(bXl )(i)&(ii), GC SS12e46,12e60,
34090

Department preference (Courts treat
volunteers as employees);
EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years

for promotion, demotion, transfer, selection,
or discharge; 29 CFR '1602.31 &
1 627.3(bX1 Xi)&(ii), Gc SS1 2e46, 1 2e60.
34090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CW - 14 of 14

Updated: 1011312022

Page 102

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY ATTORNEY
Divisions: City Attorney (16), Risk Management (17)

City
Attorney

City
Attorney

City
Attorney

City
Attorney

City
Attorney

City
Attorney

CITYATT
HOLDS: Lit

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 stnce
the record is not listed refer to the

Record Div
Office of
Record
(oFR)

Series No.
No.

153

152

008

015

151

150

normal retention

16

16

16

16

16

16

Lawsuits / Litigation

Final Settlement Only

Lawsuits i Litigation

Except Final Settlement

Agreements & Contracts with Outside Legal
Counsel

City Attorney Opinions

Bankruptcies (Where City does not pursue a
claim)

Amicus Briefs

Record Series Title

P

tongeF
negt*ir€d-
Minimum 5

vears

L€ng€F
eeguir€d-
Minimum

Completion
+ 10 vears

P

2 years

When Ne
tenge+

eequire+-
Minimum 2

VCATS

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Resolution

Yes: Until
Resolution

Yes (before
oompletion)

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag. Ppr

Media
Options

S

S

s/t

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#e+
Se++led

Yes: After
oc&oD

A#eF
Sefrted

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#er-
eempletien

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
fJC'.1?

Department Preference; GC 534090

Depaftment Preference; Covers various
statute of limitations; CCP SS 337 et seq.; GC

SS 911.2, 94#, 34090, 34090.6; PC 5832.5

Covers E&O Statute of Limitations; Published

;
Statewide guidelines prepese terminatien + 5

tears; CCP SS336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Description/Gom ments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. ozOoz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageCA-1o12
Updated: 611012022

Page 103

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY ATTORNEY
Divisions: City Attorney (16), Risk Management (17)

City
Attorney /

Risk
Manaqe.

City
Attorney /

Risk
Manage.

City
Attorney

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Gomments / Reference

the record is to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is last document + 2 file folder.

030

016

050

155

154

17

17

16

16

16

lnsurance Certificates (for Contracts, Vendors,
and City-issued Certificates etc.)

Claims - After 2008

City Clerk is OFR Pre-2008

Records Destruction and Storage Lists /
Certificates of Records Destruction - City
Attorney Records only

(contains orivileoed information)

Pitchess Motions, Subpoenas Regarding
Personnel, Restraining Orders for Employees,
etc.

Personnel lssues / Skelly Meetings (Advice
File)

1 1 years

t€ng€F
neguire+-
Minimum 5

VEATS

P

2 years

5 years

Yes:
Before

Completion

Yes: Until
Resolution

Yes: Until
Separation

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag. Ppr

Mag,
oD,

Mfr
Ppr

S

S

S

S

Yes: After
QC&OD
Afte+4
yea+s

Yes: After
QC&OD

Afre+
Se$led

Yes: After
QC&OD
A#e+*
yeafs

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#eF
Sepa+a+ien

resumes after

Longest Statute of Limitations is 10 years;

Conforms with Agreement Retention;

; CCP
Q337 et seq.; GC S34090

Department Preference; Covers various
statute of limitations; CCP SS 337 et seq.; GC

SS 911.2, 94+6, 34090, 34090.6; PC 5832.5

Department Preference; GC 534090 et. seq.

cc s34o9o

Department Preference; EEOC/FLSA/AD EA
(Age) requires 3 years for promotion,

demotion, transfer, selection, or discharge;
State Law requires 2 -3 years; retirement
benefits is 6 years from last action; 29 CFR
1602.31 & 1627.3(bxii), 8 ccR S320a(dX1) et
seq., GC SS12946.12960 34090;29 USC 1113

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageCA-2ot2
Updated: 611012022

Page 104

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

e+Verc*

Finanee /
Revenue

feaa-Oept

c74

004

170

0e5

r Record I DivOfficeof | ^ I -.I Senes No.Record No.(oFR) 
I

I

21

2+

z+

21
Administrative Hearings / Appeals:
inelndes:Code Enforcement and Truancies

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or

003 2+ Payme*
Ua*,+er

1

@inanee

normal retention

Finan€e+
Aeeesnting

eepies--

t€figeF
Wa+an+*equestsr€

Record Series Title

Agenda Packets / Staff Reports: City
Council, RDA (Redevelopment Agency).
Successor Aqencv. Oversiqht Board. & PFA
(Public Financinq Authority) - (Prior to 1988)

in+

@iens

neeeipt geeks / lnv
+ta+m-Cil+in$€te,

tengeF
eeq+*iree-
Minimum

Resolution +

2 years

Total
Retention

Follows
Retention of

Subject
Matter

2jears

SJear€

Vital?

Yes+-lJn+il_
Peid

Yes: While
Active
lssues

Yes: Until
After

Meeting

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

Mag, Mfr.
OD. Ppr

[+agr+ilfh
gSt-Ppr

A4a#+rory

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

s++

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Y-es#
erep

4-year

Yes: After
QC&OD

Description/Comments / Reference

Department preference; GC 534090

acf is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.
the not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

Department Preference (large documents
were separated out, some attachments
are not in files); GC $34090 et seq.

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 1 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 105

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Com ments / Reference

record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide

when the act is and a full file folder /asf +2 since destruction is file

records act audits normal retention resumes after settlement or

172

171

21

21

Agreements & Contracts - Maintenance

Agreement or Contract includes all
contractual obligation s (e. g.

Amendments, Scope of Work or
Successfu/ Proposal)

Examples of Maintenance: Custodial, grants,

landscape maintenance, painting, tree trimming,
software, education MOU, employment,
telephones, newsletter, employment, sole source
or waivers of bids, copiers, etc.

Agenda Packets / Staff Reports: City
Council, RDA (Redevelopment Aqencv),
Successor Aqencv. Oversiqht Board. & PFA
(Public Financing Authority) (1988 Forward)

lncluding handouts, affidavits of agenda postings,

staff reports and supplemental information

Completion +
5 years

P

Yes (before
completion)

Yes: Until
After

Meeting

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

s/r

S

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#e+
eemptetie+

Yes: After
QC&OD
2jears

Statute of limitations is 4 years for
contracts; Errors and Omissions does not
apply; s+atewid€€lllide+ines_pf€pe,se-

@
i
@
@ccPSS337.
337.1(a),337.15, 343; GC 534090

Department Preference (The minutes are
the permanent record); GC $34090 et
seq.

FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell covernmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC -2of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 106

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

City Clerk 173

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

21

Record Series Title

Agreements & Contracts - ALL Non-
lnfrastructure

Agreement or Contract includes all
contractual obligations (e.9.

Amendments, Scope of Work or
Successfu/ Proposal)

Examples of NONlnfrastructure: Consulting,
disposal, franchises, housing, leases, legal

services (except those with outside counsel),
mutual aid, professional services, services, street
light repairs, STA - measure A, plan check
services, surveys and studies for repairs-water-
sewer, etc.

Total
Retention

Completion +

10 years

Vital?

Yes: Before
Completion

Media
Options

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/l

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Yes: After
oc&op

AfteF
eempt+ien

records act audits and/or retention resu/'nes after seftlement or

Descri ption/Comments / Reference

Covers E&O Statute of Limitations;
Published Audit Standards=4-7 years;

Statute of Limitations: Contracts &
Spec's=4 years, Wrongful Death=comp.
+ 5 years, Developers=comp. + 10 years;

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 s/nce b file folder.
record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

+-+yearslGCP $$336(a), 337 et. seq.,
GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 3 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 107

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

records act audits normal retention resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + destruction is file folder.

176

175

288

174

21

21

21

21

Assessment District Protest Letters.
Ballots, Tally Sheet, & Envelopes - Prop.
218 proceedings

Results are in Election History file

Annexations / Boundaries / Consolidations i
LAFCO - Final Council-Approved Documents

Agricultural Preseryes / Williamson Act

Agreements & Contracts - Infrastructure,
DDAs, OPAs, MOUs, MOAs, Housing
RegulatoryAgreements (Agreementor
Contract includes all contractual
obligations (e.9. Amendments, Scope of
Work or Successfu/ Proposal and
Noflces of Completion))

Examples of I nfrastructure: Architects, Buildings,

bridges, CaIPERS, covenants, deferred
improvement agreements, design/build,
development, environmental, Joint Powers, MOUs,
park improvements, paving, property & property
restrictions, redevelopment, reservoirs, sewers,
sidewalks, slurry seals, street & alley
improvements, se+t+ement subdivisions, utilities,
water, trails construction, traffic studies, solid
waste, etc.

2 years
6-m€=

P

P

P
Yes: Before
Completion

Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

s/t

s/t

S

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
oc&oD

Yes: After
QC&OD

After-
eemptetien

GC S53753(eX2) DeBa4men+preferenee-

@

€€nsti{u{i€n-A+Xl]+

Land Records; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; All infrastructure,
JPAs, &4'4{*u€l-Aid contracts should be
permanent for emergency preparedness;

Statute of Limitations is 4 years; 10 years
for Errors & Omissions; land records are
permanent by law; CCP SS337. 337.1(a),
337.15, 343; GC 534090, Contractor has
retention requirements in 48 CFR 4.703

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without priorwriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 4 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 108

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

feae+ep+

Citv Clerk

City Clerk

records act and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Description/Gom ments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for
the act is and a full file Iast document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

179

012

178

+77
r€us€d+

011

274

21

21

21

21

21

21

City Council Actions Database

Budgets (Finals) - Post 1983

Finance is OFR pre-1983

Bonds: lssued by the Gity, PFA, or RDA:
Official Statements / Certificates of
Participations (COPs) rcEDlGSqrn_utily_
Facility Districts) / Assessment Districts

iniens-

Arrdit Renorts / ACFR - Annual
Comprehensive Financial Reports and
related Audit Opinions (Use 01 1-21: 177 is
obsolete)

Assessment / Maintenance / Landscape &
Lighting / Street lmprovement District
Pro.iects / Community Facilities Districts
(FORMATION, BOUNDARIES)

lndefinite

P

Cancellat.,
Redemption
or Maturity +

10 years

gepie+-
When Ne
tengeF

ReeuiFed

P

P

Yes

Yes: Until
Maturity

Yes: Until
Completed

Mag

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

[ ag6Ppr

Maq. Mfr.
OD. Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

s/t

s/l

s/t

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-yeaf

Data Fields / Records are interrelated;
cc s34o9o

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; Statute of
Limitations for bonds, mortgages, trust
deeds, notes or debentures is 6 years;

Bonds issued by local governments are
10 years; There are specific requirements
for disposal of unused bonds; CCP

$$336(a)(1 ) & (2), 337.5(2); Gc S43e00
et seq.

eepies=,ee{Ca09+.7

Department Preference; GC Q34090;
Departments keep cooies GC Q34090.7

Department Preference; Statute of
Limitations is 4 - 10 years (for Errors &
Omissions); CCP SS337. 337.1(a),
337.15, 343; GC 534090.7

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 5 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 109

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Sta#in+
Dep+

City Clerk

Human
Reseurees

Record
Series

No.

180

474

01€

Div
No.

2+

21

21
s+s€tu+ed

When Ne
tengeF

Cequiree-
l[inimum-$

yea+s

€{aim€--P+i€}F{€F+g€8

eity Atterney / Rjsk Management is eFR Pest
2e08

records act

e+tyeb+*- e{€ 2+

audits

Record Series Title

€€UN€IL

{A€ENDA+ €Kffi)

@ing;
ien

Commission & Gommittee Applications /
Advisory Board Applications /
Correspondence / Attendance (oaths of office
for appointed officials)

When Ne
t€ng€F

eeguir€+-
lltinimum-?

yeafs

Total
Retention

When Ne
tong€r-

neSuire+-
l/linimum4

)ear€

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 5

vears

Yes: Until
P.ese{u+ien

Vital?

A4a#pr

Magr+'a+rr
g+,-Ppr

Media
Options

+'4ag;+p+

Mag, Ppr

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Ves+&
eres

A,fte+€e$ed

Description/Com ments / Reference

@

34090

@ieus-

normal retention resumes or
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 srnce ,s file

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards

W
@

Department Preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 6 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 110

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

e+verc*

City Clerk

eiry+e*

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Citv Clerk

e+Veer*-

Record
Series

No.

e4

+23

181

0{}

2+

21

2+

Div
No.

2+

@
nOministrative; gn

Reperts; Reading File; Werking Fites; ete,)

Commissions & Committee Rosters / Maddy
Act List

€OUN€IL

FORMATIEN

Record Series Title

Economic lnterest Filinqs (FPPC 700 Series
Forms - Statement of Economic lnterests):
ELECTRONICALLY FILED

@
e+e+natf-eeurse-e++l*siness-

(e,9, ealendars; eheeklists' e mail that dees

@ing'
+'sgffiai++Fgf+st€!-meeting-feom-

iee-
maits-,e+e-J

"yea+s

5 years

P

Total
Retention

10 years

When Ne
teng€F

eequiree

Yes

Vital?
Media

Options

A4aS,Pf+

Mag, Ppr

l*a+,+++
e++pr

Maq. Mfr.
OD. Ppr

l*ag'+pr

resurnes after seftlement orrecords act audits and/or normal retention

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/r

Ves=*ftec
Q€{-ED
+g+ea+s

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

QC
Yes: After

Description/Comments / Reference

ee-s34ege

Department Preference; GC 534090

file folder.act and a full file folder last document + 2 stnce

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards

Statements fi led electronicallv are
required for 10 vears: Citv maintains
copies onlv: oriqinal statements are filed
with FPPC: GC S81009(fl&(q): GC
Q84615

@ing-
@
@
@
@
se52

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC -7 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 111

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

F+e+++e-
Ma+shall-&

Fi+e-
Preventien

Lead Dept.

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for
when the act is and a full file +2 since destruction is file folder

records act normal retention resurnes or

187

44

186

185

9't0

184

183

182

21

2+

21

21

21

21

21

21

FPPC Biennial Review (History)

FirewerksStand lffi
aeptieatiens)

FPPC

Correspondence re fi ling requirements
(Attendance Rosters, Outlines and Materials
for programs provided by the City)

Emergency Plans / Disaster Preparedness
Manuals, etc.

Employee Authorization/Delegation

Economic lnterest Filings (FPPC Form 635 &
602) - Lobbyist Authorization & Reporting

Economic lnterest Filings (FPPC 700 Series
Forms - Statement of Economic lnterests):
PUBLIC OFFICIALS (Elected. lncludes City
Council Members, Planning Commission
Members, City Manager, City Treasurer &
City Attorney - "87200 filers")

Economic lnterest Filings (FPPC 700 Series
Forms - Statement of Economic lnterests):
DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES or
Consultants (specified in the City's Conflict
of lnterest code)

5 years

2Jears

5 years

Superseded
+ 2 years

5 years

5 years

4 years

7 4 years

Yes

Mag, Ppr

Maq=+p+

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

S

Yes: After
OC&OD

lfia€tive

Department Preference; GC 534090

c€{34e99

GC SS34090, 53235.2(b)

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

2 CCR 18615(d)

Department Preference; City maintains
copies only; original statements are filed
with FPPC; Gc $81009(fxg)

City maintains original statements; GC

$8100e(e)(s)

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 8 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 112

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

Citv Clerk
€een'-

Bevetep

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Gomments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.

343

191

222

190

177

189

188

3B

21

21

21

21

21

21

lntergovernmental Affairs (Correspondence
regarding legislation / State & Federal bills)

Historical Records (e.9. lncorporation, City
Seal, Sister City, Groundbreaking, property
dedications, old Newspaper Clippings, etc.)

Grand Jury and Related Documents

General Plan, Elements and Amendments

FPPC Form 801, 802, 803, 806 Gifts or
Tickets to Agency or Behested payments or
Report of Public Official Appointments

FPPC SEI Communications
(if Content relates in a substantive wav to the
conduct of the public's business)

FPPC Logs (SEl and Campaign Disclosure)

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

vears

P

P 5 vears

P

7_4years

2 years

5 vears P

No

Yes (all)

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

S

s/t

S

No

No

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#er

Yes: After
QC&OD

Department Preference; GC 534090

City Clerk determines historical
significance; records can address a
variety of subjects and media. Some
media (e.9. audio and video tape) may be

limited because of the media's life
expectancy; GC 534090

Department preference: 5 years is the
retention oeriod for the Grand Jury: GC

s34090

GC S34o9o
(Council approved documents)

2 CCR 18615(d): 2 CCR 18702.5(bX3):
GC $8'1009(e); GC Q34090 Fai+Pelitieal
@iens-
s{€944+{€)

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 9 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 113

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

€€mm-
Sevelepl
Ptann+ng

feae-Bep+

ciqr
ASerFey

ei$ee*

Human
Reseu+ees

ciqr
*terney+

Risle
A4a+age;

records act normal retention resurnes after settlement or
when the act is and a full file folder Iast document + 2 ,s file folder.

lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

035

034

x4

0#

1S

1+2

48+

039

Record
Series

No.

21

21

z+

2+

2+

2+

2+

2+

Div
No.

Municipal Code Administration, Distribution,
etc. and City Charter

Minutes (City Council, RDA (Redevelopment
Aqencv), Successor Aqencv. Oversiqht
Board. & PFA (Public Financinq Authoritv)

ie-

@

feaveSlips

fawsuits-++*iga+ion

g+nd-Se+eme*gnty

tawsuits++itiga+i€+

lnsuranee Pelieies (€ity ewned); Certifieates
ef Self lnsured

lnsuranee Certifieates fer Agreements and
€ent+aets

Record Series Title

2 years

P

P

teng€F
Cequiree

P

When Ne
t€ng€F

eequire+-
l*ir+imrm-$

yeilFti

P

gegies-

teng€F
Cequ+reg

Total
Retention

Yes (all)

Yes+--lJntil-
Reselutien

Yes: Until
Resels{,ien

Yes: Befere
gxpiratie"

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Aqagr+il+Fr

eD'Ppr

I4affir

Aaag,+l+
g+,-Ppr

ldagt-M+h
eB;_Ppr

Mag-,+ilfr;
e};PpF

A'4ag6+f+

Media
Options

S

s++

S

s

s

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

No

Yes+ A,fter-
Q€+€D

A#e+
Am€nd€d

Y-es+4fiet
Qre

Afte+€ettled

Y€s+&
ee{=es

Afte+€ettted

Ves+&ere
A#er-

Cxpim+ien

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

GC S 34090

GC S34o9o

s34eew

@ieus-
;

s832S

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 10 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 114

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

feaa-Sep+

Gity Clerk

City Clerk

eivelex

City Clerk

193

g4

042

041

037

e36

192

21

21

2+

21

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

21

z+

21

is not listed refer to the Retentionthe

Petitions (submitted to Council on any
subject. Examples: parking requests, traffic
calming requests, etc.).

NOT Elections Petitions - for lnitiative, Recall
or Referendum petitions, see the City Clerk
schedule

Ordinances and Logs (City Council)

Itewspaper+lippings

Municipal Code, City Charter and History File

@

Record Series Title

Proclamations / Commendations / Eagle
Scout Presentations

iee

Policies & Procedures - City-Wide
User Fee & schedules for City

Superseded
+ 5 years

1 year

P

When Ne
tong€F

Resuir€d

P

Total
Retention

2 years

SuBe+sede+
+++ears

Yes (all)

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Pfr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

Mag, Ppr

n+ae+pr

S

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

Yes: After
QC&OD

Ns

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

No

Description/Comments / Reference

City preference; S{atewtdegids'l+nes-

Ur"U"re supersegeO GC

s34090

Not related to elections; Law requires 1

year for petitions; GC 550115

GC 534090 et. seq

GC 534090

act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or
when the act is and a last document + 2 since destruction is

GC 534090

@ines-

w

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Govemmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 11 of 19
Updated: 81512022

Page 115

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY GLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

feaO+ep+
(Wh€-

+dered+h€-
nppraeaD

feag-Sep+

City Clerk

City Clerk

€€mm-
S€vetop+
Ptann+ng

when the act is a full file folder /asf +2 since destruction is file folder,

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

lf the record is not listed to the Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

s+7

045

044

911

n5

Record
Series

No.

2+

21

21

21

z+

Div
No.

Publie Relatiens

$ewse+ers)

Public Records Act Requests and copies of
records produced (duplicate 199-21 is

obsolete)

Public Programs
First-Time Homebuyer, Down-payment
Assistance Programs
Council Policies and Programs
lnclusionary Housing Programs (excludes the
individual loan aqreements or housinq /
propertv restrictions. which are retained bv
Communitv Development)

Planninq Proieet Fl
ffi

@+eingr
ie-

@

Record Series Title

z:years

21ear€

2 years

Superseded
+ 5 years

P

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

$CagrPfr

lqag-Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

AqaC-,+r+r
eD,_PpF

Media
Options

5

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Ves-4fiet
ec-&-gp

When
ln€€tive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

€254{h)

€g$4e9o

GC 534090

City preference; Statewideenide,li++es-

@;GC
s34090

envir€nmen+a+4€+e+minati€n€-are-

34€9e+

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 12 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 116

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder,

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes after seftlement or

fead-gep+
When Ne

t€ngeF
eeqsire+-
Mininnu+$

yeafs

Y-es:4.ftee
QC{-gD

lfia€tive

(\4h€-
o4a 2+ b

Purehase e+,-Ppr
*ppra*at) 97J+€€{3409e

lf the record is not listed here, refer to the Retention for City-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

196

195

194

049

Record
Series

No.

21

21

21

21

Div
No.

Recordings / Tapes of City Council Meetings.
Audio Recordings / Tapes or DVDs - when
a Video Recording is EI available

Recordings / Tapes of City Council Meetings-
Audio Recordings / Tapes or DVDs - when
a Video Recording_!$ available

(The video recording serves as the Permanent
record)

Recordings / DVD-R of City Council Meetings
- Video Recordings / DVD-R or VGR (ALL)

Real Property (Recorded Property Related
Documents)

(Abandonments, Deeds, Deed Restrictions,
Easements, Liens, Lot Line Adjustments,
Reconveyances, Resale Restrictions,
Quitclaims, Vacations, condemnations,
easement aqreements. Promissory Notes.
Riqht of Entrv Ageements. etc.)

Record Series Tille

P

6mo

P

P

Total
Retention

Vital?

Tape
(Mas)

Tape
(Mas)

Tape
(Mas)

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
oc&op

N€

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Department preference; State law only
requires for 30 days; GC S54953.5(b)

Department preference; State law only
requires for 30 days; GC S54953.5(b)

Department preference; Video recording
of meetings are only required for 90 days;
GC 5534090.7,60201

GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 13 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 117

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

e*Verc*

City Clerk

eityeC*

e*fele*

e*Verc*

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

records act audits and/or normal retention resurnes after settlement or
when the act is and a file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

the record is not listed refer to the Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

o57

055

+99

954

0s

198

197

050

Record
Series

No.

2+

21

2+

x

2+

21

21

21

Div
No.

Speaker Cards submitted at publie meetings

Resolutions & Logs (City Council, RDA
(Redevelopment Aqencv). Successor
Aqencv. Oversiqht Board, & PFA (Public

Financinq Authoritv)

Reperts and Studies (ether than Histerieally
si
Plan+S+rate9+,e+{ans)

rep€4s)

Redevelopment Plan / Formation
Central Folsom Redevelopment Project Area

Records Retention Schedules

Records Destruction and Storage Lists /
Certificates of Records Destruction

Except for City Attorney and Police (contains
privileged information)

Record Series Title

When Ne
L€ng€F

Resuir€d

P

21eafs

++Vears

P

P

P

10 years
P

Total
Retention

Yes (all)

Yes: Before
Purchase or

Sale

Vital?

P€+

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

+'4ag;Pfr

A4a#r

*+ae-,+ilfr;
gSr-Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

S

sl+

S

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

No

Y-es+.4.ftet
e€-8-gD
+g+ea+s

Yes: After
QC&OD
:+ears-ee

ssperseded

Yes: After
QC&OD
2lears

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

GC 534090 et. seq

G€-s€409e

@
signifieant-tl+erefure+etained_

@

GC S34o9o

GC 534090 et. seq

Department Preference; GC $34090 et.

seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 14 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 118

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21\, Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

HOLDS: Lit

e+Verc*

fead+epe

eityele*

Office of
Record
(oFR)

e+Y'ee*

Record
Series

No.

063

7e8

s6+

060

2+

2+

2+

Div
No.

4

isssesF

Subpeenas

Record Series Title

Time Sheets / Time Cards / evertime Sheets
/€Arc*ime€afds-

P

eyears

2ifear€

Total
Retention

+g+ea+s

Vital?

$4aWfF
eD'Ppr

l+ag-,+pr

+lagrPpr

l+ag=+pr

Media
Options

records act audits and/or normal resumes after settlement or

lmagel
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Yes: After2
yeafs

Description/Com ments / Reference

GC{34O9O

GC{34e9s

act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction file folder.
the not refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 15 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 119

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City Clerk

ei$+te*

e+vee*

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Descri ption/Gomments / Reference

lf the record is not listed to for Standards

when the act is a full file folder Iast document + 2 since destructioh is

act audits normal retention resur?es or

200

0s

0€4

21

z+

?+

Treasurer's Reports / Quarterly Financial
Statements / Strategic Plan Update / Monthly
lnvestment Reports (to Council)

frem estside 4geneies (e,9,; ether Peliee er
fire-gepa*m€fi+s)

@
Preparedness Training & Exereises; Reseuree

@

I
i@

10 years

P

T1ear€

Mag, Ppr

n*ag,+l+ery

MagF+il+rr
ODr+fr

s

s

Yes: After
ecs+

When

fica€+ive

Department preference; GC $34090 et.

seq.

@i
W
@
W
@W
se23#€)

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 16 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 120

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

HOLDS: Litt

City Clerk

Office of
Record
(oFR)

City Clerk

City Clerk

Citv Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

203

202

201

Record
Series

No.

206

205

204

21

Div
No.

22

22

22

22

22

Water Rights
lncludes consulting for water and annexation

Record Series Title

FPPC Campaign Filings (400 Series Forms):
OTHER COMMITTEES (PAGS - not
cand idate-controlled)

FPPC Campaign Filings (400 Series Forms)
THOSE NOT REQUIRED TO FILE
ORIGINAL WITH CITY CLERK (copies)

FPPC Campaiqn Filinqs i400 Series Forms &

Form 501 ): ALL ELECTRONIGALLY-FILED
STATEMENTS

FPPC Campaign Filings (400 Series Forms &
Form501): UNSUCCESSFUL
CANDIDATES

FPPC Campaign Filings (400 Series Forms &
Form 501): SUCCESSFUL CANDIDATES
(Elected Officials)

Candidate File: Nomination Papers,
Candidate Statements, etc. - SUGCESSFUL
CANDIDATES

lncludes Code of Fair Campaign Practices, Media

Sheet, copy of Certificate of Election, oaths of
office, etc.

ELI

normal retention resumes after settlement orrecords act audits

P

P

Total
Retention

7 years

4 years

10 vears

5 years

Term of
Office + 4

years

Vital?

Yes (all)

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Yes: After
2 years

No

Descri ption/Comments / Reference

Department preference (copies); GC

s34090.7

+2 since destruction is b filewhen the act is and a full file folder /asf

record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide

Paper must be retained for at least 2
years;GC $81009(c)(g)

Paper must be retained for at least 2
years; GC 581009(bxg)

Statements fi led electronicallv are
required for 10 vears: GC Q81009(b)&(q):
GC 884615

Paper must be retained for at least 2
years; GC S81009(bxg)

Paper must be retained for at least 2
years; CCP$583.320(aX3); GC

58100e(bXg)

unsueeessfi*l; CA law states term of office
and 4 years after the expiration of term
and does not delineate between the two;
EC S17100

FOLSOM, GA. OzOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 17 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 121

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: GITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

Citv Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

records act audits and/or normal retention resurnes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Description/Com ments / Reference

record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

208

207

22

22

22

Elections - GENERAL. WORKING or
ADMINISTRATION Files

(Corresoondence. Aoplications for vacancies on
the Council, Citv Measures, Precinct Maps. Countv
Election Services. Candidate Statements to be
printed in the Sample Ballot. Candidate Manuals
and Guides. etc.

Elections - HISTORICAL €ENERAI,
WORKNG er ABMINISTRATION Files

( ien-
Se+iees;Sam pl e Ballot, Ori g i nal Certif icate of
Election, Copies of Resolutions declarinq Final
Results.@
Vete'etc.)@

Candidate File: Nomination Papers,
Candidate Statements, etc. -
UNSUCCESSFU L CANDIDATES

lncludes Code of Fair Campaign Practices,
Media Sheet, FPP€ Ferm 700; etc.

2 vears

P

Election + 4
years

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

S No

GC 834090

Retained for Historical Value, GC 534090

unsueeess+uE-CA law states term of office
and 4 years after the expiration of term
and does not delineate between the two;
EC 517100

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 18 of 19

Updated: 81512022

Page 122

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: CITY CLERK
Divisions: Administration (21), Elections Consolidated (22), Elections Stand Alone (23)

City-Cterk

eiv+e*

g*lr€terk

e+Verc*

eityeb*
e+ty+ter*
e+Vebr*
e*feer*
e+Vee*

ei+Ste*

e*reC*
e*V++e*

ffiin-€€niu{rt

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Com ments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder Iast document + 2 destruction is file folder.

records act audits and/or normal retention resurnes after settlement or

Results + 8
months, or

Final
Not accessible to the public; The 8 month
retention applies after election results, or

City Clerk 209 22
Elections - Petitions (lnitiative, Recall or
Referendum)

Ppr examination if no election, unless
+

is a legal or FPPC proceeding. EC
oetition

ss1 7200(bx3) , 17400

oetition is
insufficient

*
m
44

4A

21+

216
45
214
24
H
41
214

4
23

a

23

n
23
23

2C

4
2e

23

23

Ve+e++nOex-grisinat

neeerd-a++e+ting-P{a€

+a$Snee+s

Rester ef Veters

W
B€ll€ts-++errR€€€un+

Balle+s--4fterEleetien

@
Withdrawals

+BBrca+ens

S-ve.a+s

€-m€,

6-m€.

S1ears

6-m€-

6-m€,

gfi€=
6-m€'

6€€=

4-year

6-m€=

6-m€=

PB+

Ppr

Ppr

Uae-ldfr'
g+,-Ppr

Ppr

Ppr

Ppr

Ppr

PB+

Ppr

Pp+

Pfr

Effi4+o+r

E€€{#S4

w3e4

Eq{ru
E€+1+5€3
EW7306

E€#73g6
E€#4e2

@
ss0{J5

E€+{#s2

E€+1+505

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CC - 19 of 19
Updated: 81512022

Page 123

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY MANAGER
Division: Citv Manaqer Administration (26), Communications (?). Economic Development (38)

Citv
Manaqer /
Commun.

Citv
Manaqer /
Commun.

City
255 26 Speeches / PowerPoint Presentations

When No
Longer Mag, Ppr

Notes, drafts, or preliminary documents; GC

$34090 et seq.Manager

Manaqer / Archive Social Database 2 years Mao, Ppr GC Q34090

City
Manager

City
Manager

City
Manaqer

City
Manager

City
Manager

records act audits and/or retention or

CITY MANAGER

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div lmage: Destroy

No. Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper after Description/Gomments / Reference
M=Mfr lmaged &

the record is not listed Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder + since destruction is

254

253

252

251

250

26

26

26

26

26

Resident's Newsletters

Press Releases

Projects, Programs, Subject & lssues (lssues
and/or projects will vary over time - e.g.
Hotels, Developments, etc.)

Department Files

City Manager Reports to Council (Key
Updates)

City Manager Correspondence

Customer Response Letters &
Correspondence

2 vears

Minimum 2
VEATS

When Ne
tsng€r

eeguired-
Minimum 2

VEATS

When Ne
teng€+

eequiree-
Minimum 2

vears

2 years

2 years

2 years

Yes: While
Active
lssues

Maq, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

GC Q34090

Department Preference: GC Q34090

GC S34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

lf Content relates in a substantive wav to the

conduct of the public's business: GC 534090

lf Content relates in a substantive way to the
conduct of the public's business: GC 534090

lf Content relates in a substantive way to the
conduct of the public's business: GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageCM-1of2
Updated: 81512022

Page 124

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GITY MANAGER
Division: City Manaqer Administration (26), Communications (?). Economic Development (38)

Citv
Manaqer i

Econ.
Develop.

Citv
Manaqer /

Econ.
Develop.

Citv
Manaqer /

Econ.
Develop

City
Manager /

Econ.
Develop.

Citv
Manaqer /

Econ.
Develop.

when the act is and a + since destruction is
the record is not listed to

o_ffice of ::::"': i::
'i3"'"Ji I ru'' 

]

344

343

342

341

340

38

38

38

38

38

Prospects: Economic Development Projects /
Correspondence

lntergovernmental Affairs (Correspondence
regarding legislation / State & Federal bills)

Folsom Tourism Board (FTB)

Folsom Tourism Business lmprovement
District (FTBID)

Folsom Economic Development Corporation
(FEDCorp)

records act audits and/or retention

Record Series Title

When Ne
tong€F

eeguir€d-
Minimum 2

VCATS

teng€F
Ceguire+-
Minimum 2

VEATS

to€ger
nequire+*
Minimum 2

vears

Whe+{{e-
t€ng€F

eeguire+-
Minimum 2

vears

When Ne
t€nge+

eequireA-
Minimum 2

vears

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Department Preference; GC S34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageCM -2of2
Updated: 81512022

Page 125

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develop. /
Arborist.

Comm.
Develop. i
Arborist.

Comm.
Develop. /
Arborist.

Comm.
Develop. /
Arborist.

Comm.
Develop. i
Arborist.

ARBORIST (35)

Comm.
Develop /
Admin.

Comm.
Develop /
Admin.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION (29)
records act audits and/or in normal retention resumes after seftlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Description/Gomments / Reference

the record is not listed to the Retention for Standards
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder

304

303

270

260

261

35

35

35

29

29

Tree lnventory

Tree lnspections

Arborist Reports

Arborist Plans / Tree Plans

Arborist Citations / Notices to Correct / Case
Files

Projects & Subjects (Proposed
Developments, etc.)

Bonds: Subdivision Bonds, Logs and
Correspondence

City Clerk holds these and provides to
Community Development upon request

lndefinite

5 vears

5 vears

Suoerseded
+ 2 years

Minimum
Resolution +

5 vears

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

years

Release of
Bond /

Security + 2
years

Maq. Por

Mag, Ppr

Mao. Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Maq, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr
S No

Department preference (data is inter-
related): GC S34090

Department preference; GC Q34090

Department preference: GC Q34090

Department preference: GC Q34090

Department preference: Case is open until
satisfactorilv resolved (some cases are not
resolved); GC S34090

Department preference; GC 534090

Securities (Performance Bonds, Letters of
Gredit, CD's, etc.) are released after the
Notice of Completion is issued and replaced
with the Warranty Bond, which is released 't

year after the Notice of Completion date.
GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 1 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 126

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions: Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop" & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develop. /
Arborist.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Comm.
Develop i
Building

305

Record
Series

No.

263

262

264

Div
No.

30

35

30

30

UOJ(I

Record Series Title

Building Permit Database (e-TRAK|T with
HDL Leqacv data)

Tree Leqal Cases (mav include accidents.
claims, issues of liabilitv)

Building Permits (All)

lncludes Soils Reports

Building Permits - Applications Withdrawn
or lncomplete

P

Minimum
Resolution +

5 vears

Total
Retention

When No
Lonqer

Required
P

Life of the
Structure

P

Vital?

Yes (all)

Yes (all)

Mag. Ppr

Media
Options

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag

Ppr
Mfr, OD

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Documents
scanned to

Permit
Tracking
database

Plans
Scanned to

lmageVu
System

s/l

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
QG'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD

Description/Comments / Reference

Department preference: GC 534090

records act audits and/or normal retention resu/nes after settlement or
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

Department Preference (may be considered
transitory / preliminary drafts); GC 534090,
GC 56252

Department Preference - Data is

interrelated; GC 534090, H&S 519850

2012 - See

306 35 +
Maq. Ppr

1

Department preference; GC Q34090

ARBORIST

BUILDING

Au

Comm.
Develop. /
Arborist.

Minimum
PermitTree Permits (mav include permits for

removal, pruninq. replanting, mitioation)

I
uA€-s€s+cBc s106.4.2, GC 534090,
H&S S19850

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 2 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 127

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions: Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Comm.
Develop /
Building

when the act is and last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

records act audits retention resurnes after settlement or

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Building Plans - Finalled - SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL - SFR and
APPURTENANCES

Mag-

Department preference; Law requires for
the life of the building for commercial only;

Ulu€pin+s+-spe€ifi€a+ien€'; CBC and-UAG
require plans be retained 180 days from
completion date for residential and
appurtenances; UA€{3033; CBC $$1 041
& 107.5 {€G42; H&SS19850, GC S34090

265 30 180 davs
904ays,

Yes (all) s/t
QC&OD

Ppr

the record is not listed refer to the Retention Wide

Office of
Record
(oFR)

267

266

Record
Series

No.

30

30

Div
No.

Building Plans and Construction Documents -

Finalled - INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL,
MULTI-FAMILY DWELLINGS, PLACES OF
PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION, TENANT
IMPROVEMENTS, PRODUCTION HOMES

(includes commercial structural plans,
Hazardous Materials Questionnaire, etc.)

Construction Documents (Need more
specifics of what thev want to retain) -
Finalled - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL -
SFR and APPURTENANCES

Record Series Title

P

P

Total
Retention

Yes (all)

Yes (all)

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD
Finalled +

4-year

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Department Preference; Law requires for
the life of the building for commercial only;

;
CBC SSI!4J 3 I !251€6J.2; H&SS1 e850,
GC 534090

Department preference; Law requires for
the life of the building for commercial only;

gts€prin+s+speeifiea++ens; CBC an4{JAG
require plans be retained 180 days from
completion date for residential and
appurtenances; UAG{3O33; CBC SSI !42
& 107.5 1Q+4*; H&SS19850, GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 3 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 128

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Commun.
Develop. /
Buildinq

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Communitv
Develop. /
Buildinq

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Comm.
Develop /
Building

Comm.
Develop. /

Code
Enforce.

Record
Series

No.

269

268

272

30

30

Div
No.

31

when the act is a full file folderand

Record Series Title

Requests & Permissions to Receive Copies
of Plans / Architect's Approval

Reports: Building Activity (Monthly, Annual)

Gonstruction Notices
(correction notices, compliance orders, stop
work notices, etc.)

California Buildinq Codes / lnternational
Buildinq Codes i Uniform Buildinq Codes

Graffiti Abatement

Department preference; Case is open until
satisfactorily resolved (some cases are not
resolved); City Clerk maintains original staff
reports and resolutions that are presented

to Council;CF€#€4-+4 GC 534090

31 Mag, Ppr271

years
um

CODE ENFORCEMENT &

Comm.
Develop. /

Code
Enforce.

Code Enforcement / Abatement Case Files
(lncludes appeals)

Yes: Until
Resolution

When No
Longer

Required -

records act audits

2 vears

When No
Lonqer

Required
P

Until Cleared
or Project

Completion

Minimum
While

Ordinance is
in Force

Total
Retention

ENGINEE

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

Vital?

R|NG (32t

Maq,
Mfr, OD.

Ppr

Media
Options

Maq. Ppr

Mag

Ppr
Mfr, OD

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

Yes: After
QC&OD+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Description/Comments / Reference

normal retention settlement orresurnes
last document + 2 since destruction is folder

lf the is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards

GC $34090 et seq.

Preliminary drafts not retained in the
ordinarv course of business (the database is
the oriqinal)€€pa*m€n++referen€eiGC
534090 el_seq.

Department Preference_.G1e!iminAryilaftS-:
the Buildinq Permit is the final official
record); GC 534090

cc Q50022.6

Department Preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 4 of 171

Updated: 7 13112022

Page 129

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), PlanninS (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Comm.
Develop. /

Planning or
Building

Comm.
Develop. /

Enqineerinq

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. i

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Planning or
Building

Record
Series

No.

277

276

275

274

273

278

32

32

32

Div
No.

32

32

32

Encroachment Permits: Permanent
(Structures in the City's Riqht of Wav,
Retaininq Walls, etc.)
lncludes I nsurance Certifi cates

Developer Payment / Trusts (Contractor's
Trusts)

(ln project file, originals to Finance)

Assessment i Maintenance / Landscape &
Lighting / Street lmprovement District Projects
i Community Facilities Districts
(FORMATTON, BOUNDARIES)

Abandonments / Vacations (Streets) -
Private Development Project Files
(Recorded documents maintained by the
Gity Clerk)

Record Series Title

Flood Control: Reports & Studies

Engineering Comments: Planning & Building
Projects / Plan Check Comments

Encroachment Permits: Temporarv (Street
Permits, Temporarv Construction, Sidewalk
Repairs, Traffic Control, Transportation
Permits. Utility Cuts. etc.)
lncludes I nsurance Certifi cates

Follows
Retention for

Project

P

P

Total
Retention

P

Z 5 years

Minimum 2
years

P

records act audits and/or in normal retention resumes after settlement or

Yes (all)

Vital?

Yes: Until
Completion

Yes: Until
Completion

Yes: Until
Completed

Media
Options

Maq. Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Ppr
Mfr, OD

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Mag, Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

s/t

S

s/t

Yes: After
QC&OD+

yeaF

Yes: After
QC & OD+

yeafs

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD+

yeaF

Yes: After
oc&oD+

yeaf

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards

Description/Comments / Reference

GC S 34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

GC $34090 et seq

Department Preference; Statute of
Limitations is 4 - 10 years (for Errors &

Omissions); CCP SS337. 337.1 (a), 337.15,
343; GC 534090.7

GC $34090 et seq

when the act is and a fullfile last document + 2 since destruction is file

Department Preference (l nformation
Systems maintains digital aerials); GC

s34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 5 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 130

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions: Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), PlanninS (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

City Clerk

Comm.
Develop. /

Engineering

280

279

Record
Series

No.

284

283

049

282

281

Div
No.

32

32

32

32

32

32

32

Geotechnical and Soils Reports

Record Series Title

Subdivision Project files

Real Property: (recorded property related
documents) Rights of Way, Easements

Private Development Construction
lnspections

lmprovement Plans

Grading Permits & Plans

Transportation Permits / Wide Load Permits

Total
Retention

P

P

P

P

P

Expiration +
2 years

P

Vital?

Yes (all)

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Media
Options

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD S

S

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

S

S

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD2

yea+s

Yes: After
QC&Op+

yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD+

year

Yes: After
QC&OD+

year

Yes: After
QC&Op+

yeaF

retentionrecords act audits and/or resurnes after seftlement or

Description/Comments / Reference

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.
the record is not refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

GC S34o9o

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference (copies); GC

s34090.7

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC S34090

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 6 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 131

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Parks+-
Re€re€ti€n-

€€'mm-
Sevelop,+

faneseape+
tigh+in+
Bistriets

Parks+-
Re€re€+i€4q-

€€mlF-
gevel€p,+

ta€ds€ap*
fiChfrFrr
Bistrie+s

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Depad-
Prevtdine
Serviee /

W€+k

285

274

Record
Series

No.

295

33

Div
No.

33

33

@
W

Record Series Title

Plannine Proieet F

ffi

@eingr
ie-

Netieing ; Enviren mental Determinatiens; Staff
@

Maps; Planned Unit Develepments (PUD); Site

ffi

Gen+rae+s

Syears

Total
Retention

P

gemptetien-+

5:year€
Ves{ge+e+e
eemptetien)

Yes: Until
Ssbmitte4
te+eunty

Vital?

Yes

Mag-
@

Ppr

*qag6+pr

Media
Options

Mag,
S#F,€D-

Ppr

s#

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s

records act audits and/or normal retention resu/nes after settlement or

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
QC'd?

Yes-
When

Ves{a+e+
€eme{€t+en

)

Descri ption/Comments / Reference

@ing-W

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

fellew threugh with permit may be destreyed

@

@

te be kept a "reasenable perred ef time"; 11

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD -7 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 132

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Depa*-
Previe+ng-
Serviee /

Werk

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

AND
City Clerk

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

%

Record
Series

No.

288

291

290

289

Div
No.

33

34

34

34

34

Record Series Title

Agricultural Preserves / Williamson Act

2+7 33 s:yea+s *+aePpr

D€pa*-
ereveing

Werk i

€ep9

l4affag€men+Sys*em)

Environmental Determinations / CEQA:
Environmental lmpact Reports (El Rs),

Negative Declarations, etc. )

Inside City boundaries

Census, Demographics

Annexations / Boundaries / Consolidations /
LAFCO

Total
Retention

lnde$nite

P

When No
Longer

Required

P

P

Vital?

Mag

Media
Options

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/r

s/t

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
OC&OD

Description/Comments / Reference

act audits and/or retention resumes or
when the act is and a full file folder Iast document + 2 since destruction is file

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for

Department preference; GC 534090

Usually filed in the project file; Final
environmental determinations are required
to be kept a "reasonable period of time"; 14

CcR S15095(c); GC S340e0

Census Bureau is OFR; GC $34090 et seq

Land Records; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 8 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 133

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develoo /
Planninq

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Description/Comments / Reference

?

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards

when the act is and a full file folder Iast document + 2 since destruction is file

records act audits and/or in normal retention resumes settlement or

Commun.
Develop. /
Planninq

Environmental Determinations / CEQA:
Environmental lmoact Reports (ElRs).

Neqative Declarations. etc. ) Project
Approval or
Denial + 2

years

Not all internal communications and notes
are required to be saved: "E-mails that do
not provide insiqht into the proiect or the
agencv's CEQA compliance with resoect to
the proiect - are not within the scope of
section 21167.6, subdivision (e) and need
not be retained." Golden Door Properties.

Maq.
Correspondence submitted to. or Ppt

D

21167

294

293

278

292

34

34

34

34

Materials Boards

Master Plans, Specific Plans, Bikeway Plans,
etc.

General Plan. Elements and Amendments

Flood Zones

Environmental Determinations / CEQA:
Environmental lmpact Reports (ElRs),
Negative Declarations, etc.)

Outside City boundaries

After
Completion
of Proiect

P

P

P

When No
Longer

Required

Yes (all)

Mao. Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Ppr

s/t

s/l

S

Yes: After
Amended

Yes: After
Amended

Yes: After
oc&oD+

yea+

Preliminarv Drafts; GC Q34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Non-records; ElRs and Negative
Declarations within the City Boundaries are
with the project file

FOLSOM, CA. OzoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 9 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 134

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions: Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop

l+J65+62'.72
+6+62'.70

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Paper
after

lmaged &
Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed to the Retention for Sfandards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

298

297

296

295

34

34

34

34

Preliminary Review File-- NO Aooli on

Form Submitted

Planninq Proiect Files - Withdrawn or
Expired Applications

Examples: Conditional Use Permits (CUPs),
Design Review, Lot Line Adjustments, Parcel
Maps, Planned Unit Developments (PUD), Site
Plans, Tentative Subdivisions, Variances, Zone
Changes, etc.

Planninq Proiect Files - Approved &
U naoproved Temporarv Entitlements :

Christmas Tree Lots, Debris Boxes,
Temporary Signs, etc.

Phn ntna Praiccf Fitee - Annrnvad *
Denied Permanent Entitlements

(lncludes Associated CEQA Noticing,
Conditions of Approval, Findinqs, Public
Noticing, Environmental Determinations, Staff
Reports, Plans & Maps)

Examples: Conditional Use Permits (CUPs),

Design Review, Lot Line Adjustments, Parcel
Maps, Planned Unit Developments (PUD), Site
Plans, Tentative Subdivisions, Variances, Zone
Changes, etc.

When No
Longer

Required

Expiration +

2 5 years

Expiration +
2 years

P

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr
S

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
lffaetive

Preliminary Documents (no application
submitted); GC S34090

Department preference; prejee*-nave-a-+

pe+iee+as-expire+ GCSS34090,€4090+

Temporary uses; Department maintains
complete files for administrative purposes;

GCSS34090

Deoartment preference ;Prejeets-have-a?

@

@Department
maintains complete files for administrative
purposes; Final environmental
determinations are required to be kept a

"reasonable period of time"; 14 CCR

S1 5095(c); GCSS34090, 34090.7

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 1O of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 135

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Comm
Develop/
Planning

Comm.
Develop i
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

Comm.
Develop /
Planninq

Office of
Record
(oFR)

ei$ge+f-

Commun.
Develoo. /
Redev. &
Housing

e*Vele*

Comm.
Develop /
Planning

301

300

299

Record
Series

No.

771

770

s0€

302

34

Div
No.

86

34

34

34

86

86

Regional Organizational Studies & Programs
where other Agencies are the Lead (e.9. Air
Quality Studies, etc.)

Project Log lndex / Spreadsheet i Binders of
Historic Actions

Preliminarv Review WITH Application Form
Submitted

Record Series Title

Applications for Loans: Rejected (First Time
Home Buyers, LifeiSafety, etc.)

eeune+-nSA-8+F+

Zoning Maps of Siqnificant Historical Value

Zoning Amendments, Zoning Text
Amendments

@iens-
€ePsl

)EVELOPME

P

Minimum 2

vears

Total
Retention

gepies--
When Ne
t€ng€F

neeuired

P

P

When No
Longer

Required

tsngeF
Reeuired

2 years

Yes (all)

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Media
Options

Mag-
M+E-OD'

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Magr
MfE-gDr

Pp+

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD S

s/l

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Ves**e+
e€+€+-
23ears

Yes:_After
QC&OD

N€

Yes:_After
QC&OD

Ne

Yes:_After
QC&OD

No

Description/Comments / Reference

Department Preference (copies); GC

s34090.7

Non-records; GC $34090 et seq

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference: GC Q34090

when the act is and a folder Iast document + 2 since destruction is file folder.
record is not listed refer to the Retention Wide Standards

s34O9H

GC S34o90

GC{3409e+

Department Preference; City Clerk
Maintains originals of all documents that
were presented to Council; GC 534090.7

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 11 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 136

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Commun.
Develoo. /
Redev. &
Housing

Planning

G€mmun-
Deve+op,+
Redev=&
F+eusing

Commun.
Develop. /
Redev. &
Housing

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
Record Series Title

Total
Retention

Vital?
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Paper
after

lmaged &
Description/Comments / Reference

No.

the record is not listed for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.

records act audits and/or normal retention resu/nes after settlement or

775

774

+4

772

86

8€

8€

86

Housing Programs: Grants

WITHOUT a Recapture / Resale Restriction

ffi'-

b€undaries

Envirenmental Bet i€ns-

beunda+ies

Economic Development (lssues andior
projects will vary over time - e.g. Proposed
Hotels, etc.)

Loan Pav-off
OR

Foroiveness
+ 5 vears

q,frer+undin€

Ag€n€)F
Aud+H+

resr$Fed*
Minirnum 5

yeafs

tengeF
nequireg

P

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

years

Yes: While
Active
lssues

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Pfr

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

sir
Yes: After
QC&OD
21ears

HUD requires 5 vears after the proiect

comoletion; documents imoosinq recapture
/ resale restrictions are 5 vears after the
affordability period terminatesl Uniform
Admin. Requirements for Grants to Local
Governments is 3 years from expenditure
report; @
yars;24 CFR SS92.508, 570.502, 982. 1 58.

884.214:29CFR97.42; HUD Notice PIH 98.

48. 99-49; GC 534090

@ive-
Deelaratiens within the City Beundaries are
with+hefreje€t++e

@

W

GC 534090

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 12of 171

Updated: 7 13112022

Page 137

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions: Admin. (29), Arborist (35). Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), Planning (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Commun.
Develoo. /
Redev. &
Housino

Commun.
Develop. /
Redev. &
Housing

Gommun.
Develop. /
Redev. &
Housing

Record
Series

No.

776

777

86

Div
No.

86

when the act is a full file folderand

Record Series Title

Housing Programs: Loans (First Time Home
Buyers, Life/Safety, etc.)

WTHOUT a Recapture / Resale Restriction

Approved by RDA Citizens Advisory
Committee

Redevelopment Project Files: lncludes
@Planning
Documents, Phases, etc.

Housinq Proqrams: Affordable Housinq
Proiects. Rehabilitation. CDBG-funded
Housinq Proiects. HOME, etc.

WITH a Recapture / Resale Restriction

Loan Pay-off
OR

Forqiveness
+ 5 Years

Total
Retention

Life of
Project Area

Lonqer

5 vears after
the

Affordabilitv
Period

Terminates,
or the Written
Aqreement
Terminates,
Whichever is

records act audits and/or

Vital?

Period
Terminates

Yes:
Before

Completion

Media
Options

Ootical
Disk

(Laserfic

he)

Mag

Ppr
Mfr, OD

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes
(Laserfiche)

s/t

S

Yes: After
oc&op

4-year

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD

Ne

Yes: After
QC&OD

Description/Comments / Reference

normal retention resumes or
last document + 2 since destruction is file folder,

lf the record is listed refer to the Retention for Sfandards

HUD requires 5 vears after the proiect

completion: documents imposino recapture
/ resale restrictions are 5 vears after the
affordability period terminates: Uniform
Admin. Requirements for Grants to Local
Governments is 3 years from expenditure
report;@
years 24 CFR SS92.508, 57 0.502, 982. 1 58.

884.214: 29 CFR97.42; HUD Notice PIH 98.

48. 99-49; GC 534090

Department Preference; e++V-l*ana9eF

@;Gc
s34090.7

HUD reouires 5 years after the project

completion: documents imposinq recapture
/ resale restrictions are 5 vears after the
affordabilitv period terminates: Uniform
Admin. Requirements for Grants to Local
Governments is 3 years from expenditure
report; 24 CFR QQ92.508. 570.502.
982j 58. 884.21 4: 29 CFR 97 .42: HUD
Notice PIH 98-48. 99-49: GC 534090

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 13 of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 138

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: GOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Divisions:Admin. (29), Arborist (35), Building (30), Code Enforce. (31),

Engineering (32), PlanninS (34), Redevelop. & Housinq (86)

Commun.
Develop. /
Redev. &
Housino

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Finan€e

Commun.
Develoo. /
Redev. &
Housing

Commun.
Develoo. /
Redev. &
Housing

Record
Series

No.

78e

779

778

86

86

Div
No.

86
Staternent ef lndebtedness / Annual Repert te

@

Site Clearance / Soils Remediation /
Mitigation

Relocation Files

Redevelopment Proiect Files:
Correspondence, Administration, etc.

Record Series Title

P
When Ne
tengeF

nequireg

Settle + 5
years

2 years

Total
Retention

gepies-
When Ne
tong€F

nequireg

Vital?

Yes:
Before

Completion

Yes: Until
Settlement

Media
Options

Mag-,+pr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Maq. Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

S

Yes: After
QC&OD

N€

Yes: After
oc&op

lna€tive

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

Description/Comments / Reference

records act audits and/or retention resumes after settlement or
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder,

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Sfandards

eepes.,€e$Aagg+7

C€p+es; GC 534090.7

Consistent with Claims; CCP SS 337 et
seq.; GC SS 94+ 34090, 34090.6; PC

s832.5

Department Preference: GC Q34090

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page CD - 14of 171

Updated: 713112022

Page 139

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefidf#ase{92} Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

800

Record
Series

No,

801

Div
No.

90

90

Record Series Title

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) /
Jobs: lnfrastructure and Facilities
Gonstruction where Utilities is the lead
department:

Permanent File (Plans, Specifications,
Bids/RFPs, Successful Proposal, lnspection
Records, Materials Testing Reports,
Grading Permits, Soils Reports, Studies,
Surveys, etc.)

Gapital lmprovement Projects (ClP) /
Jobs : lnfrastructure and Facilities
construction where Utilities is the lead
department:

Administration File (Project Administration,
Certified Payrolls, Project Schedules, etc.)

Total
Retention

P

Completion +
1 0 years or

After Funding
Agency
Audit, if
required,

whichever is
longer

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completed

Vital?
Media

Options

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

S

S
Yes: After

QC & OD+
yeaf

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Yes: After
QC & OD_+

yeaf

Description/Gomments / Reference

For disaster preparedness purposes (City Clerk
does not maintain Specifications, RFPs, Plans,
Materials Testing Reports, etc.); GC S34090

records act audits and/or resumes after
a full file folder last document + 2 s/nce file folder,

the record is not listed to for

Send original Notices of Completion to the City
Clerk; Retained for disaster preparedness
purposes (City Clerk does not maintain Plans,
Materials Testing Reports, etc.); GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 1 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 140

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURGES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Se+idfruas+e{92); Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

records act normal retention after settlement or

lf the record is not for Sfandards
when the act is and a full file folder last document + since destruction is

Office of
Record
(oFR)

806

805

804

803

802

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

90

90

90

90

90

Record Drawings / "As-Builts"

Project Files: Regional Projects: Water
Forum / Regional Water, etc.

Preliminary Studies i Project Assessments
(Not Acquired or Developed)

Master Plans / Studies: Water, Sewer
Master Plans, etc.

Grants / Reimbursable Claims / Subventions
(UTILITIES - SUCCESSFUL Reports, other
records required to pass the funding
agency's audit, if required)

Applications (successful), program rules,
regulations & procedures, reports to grant funding
agencies, correspondence, audit records,
completion records

Record Series Title

P

When No
Longer

Required

tonge+
neqt*re+-
Minimum 2

VEATS

P

After Funding
Agency
Audit, if

required -
Minimum 8

years

Total
Retention

Yes (all)

Yes (all)

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

S

S

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

No

Yes: After
QC & Op+

yea+

Yes: After
oc-&_Qp

Yes: After
QC&OD

Ns

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Department preference; GC 534090

Other Agencies are the Lead, and maintain
records; GC 534090 et seq.

Department Preference; GC 534090

Some master plans do not go to Council;
Department Preference for historical purposes ;

GC 534090

Department preference; Meets auditing
standards; Grants covered by a Consolidated
Action Plan are required for 5 years; Uniform
Admin. Requirements for Grants to Local
Governments is 3 years from expenditure report
or final payment of grantee or subgrantee;

@;2cFR
200.334:@
++saJP{Eh 24 CFR 8+.4+ 91 .1 05(h), 92.505, &
570.502(a), 28€FR€ffi 29 cFR 97.42;40
r.Er: e4 At. 44 atrF2 1q Lt. L C.trA At AU. OMB
Circular A-110 & A-133.320(g); GC $34090; GC

Q8546.7

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. OZOoz Gladwell covernmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page W&QWR - 2 of 14
Updated: 812212022

Page 141

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefiefnfas+e-€Z! Waste Water (93), Water (94)

{J+il+ties*
Haza+det*s-

Ma+e+ial

{J+ilitie+l
l+azaCe$s-

S/ate+ial

U+ilities4
Haza+d€ss-

Ma+erial

U+il+ties4
S€lid-ll/asle-

erl4aza+det*s
Ma{e+ial

tJ+ilities4
Flrazardeus-

Ma+eriat

City Clerk

Utilities /
Engineering

&
Compliance

lf the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Sfandards

when the act is and a +2 since destruction is file folder

normal retention resu/??es

Office of
Record
(oFR)

8€

e12

81+

81€

809

808

807

Record
Series

No.

9+

9+

9+

9+

9+

90

90

Div
No.

Heuseheld Hazardeus Waste €elleetien

ffi+ie+t-

@

Cmpteyees)

Was+e

i@

Water Rights

Subject / Reference I Library

Record Series Title

P

P

Sepa+atien-+
31e€r€

C+year€

Atdi+-+-S
yea+s

P

tongeF
eequireg-
Minimum 2

vears

Total
Retention

Yes

Yes (all)

Vital?

Magr
M+rgsr

Pp+

Mag-
U+t€D;

P"r

Mag,
M+iOS,

PpF

Mag-
M+r,-eD'

Per

Magr
M+E-gDr

Per

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Por

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Media
Options

S

si+

s

slr

s

S

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Ves=4fiet
e€+€D

When
fi+aetive

Yes: After
Q€SD

Ves-:f*et
ec+€B

l€a€tive

Yes: After
o€-&-oD

Yes=jfier
ereD

When
lfi€€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

N€

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Department Preferenee te eemply with Permit

@

waste generaters are required fer 3 years); I

Department Preferenee; GG 534090; 1'1 GCR
+s€€o=8td)

Department preference (copies); GC 534090.7

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq.

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. OZOoz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page W&QWR - 3 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 142

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefigfp*as+e{92)i Waste Water (93), Water (94)

U*ilities4
Selid Waste

er-Hazardeus
Mate+C

Utilities-l
S€lid-1#€sfe

utilities4
S€lid-lrry€$e

{J+iHties-l
S€{id-l#aste

u+ilities-l
Haza+de++s-

Ma+e+ial

u+it+ties*
++azaFdess-

tda+erial

audits and/or normal retention resurnes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Description/Gomments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide

when the act is a +2 since destruction is

84S

el€

g1+

81€

845

&14

*

92

s2

s2

9+

9+

e+e=

€€rq+afrina+ed-Si{es

ianee-

eeeyetlng-Even+s

$+years

eempte+ien-+
S1ears

P

+g-Vea+s

When Ne
t€ngeF

neg{rired-
Minimum 2

Yeafs

P

Veslge+e+e
€empleti€n)

Mac-
V+r,eg;

Ppr

Magr
[q+;osr

Ppr

Mag-
l*+€sr

PPr

l+agr,+W

Magr+pr

Mag-
l#+eB'

Per

sll

sll

s/+

sil

Yes: After
e€-&.eD

Yes&
e€+€p

Afte+-
eempte+ien

Yesi\Fhec
e€-8-€D

+naetive

Ves+1,+er-
e€-&€p

When
fiqa€+ive

Department Preferenee; Censistent with statute

cFR 262,40; I CCR 3204(dXl )$); 22 CCR
W

Department preferenee; ea {co2 ^^-^rr^^^^ r^

reeui
s34990

FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-35'16 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 4 of 14
Updated: 812212022

Page 143

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (9t), SefiA-+gasie{94 Waste Water (93), Water (94)

{J+ili{ie's4
S€l+d{#€s+e-

er-HazaCeus
Ma*eriat

U+ilitie+l
Selid Waste

tJttilities4
S€{id-lAlaste

{J+i}ities*
S€+id{#as[e

{J+il+tie+l
€elidl#asie

{J*ilities*
Selid Waste

{#ilities*
S€fid-l#as{e

{J+ilities4
S€{id-lltlasfie

record is
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is folder.

records act audits and/or normal retention

Office of
Record
(oFR)

&27

826

&25

w

923

*2

&2+

829

Record
Series

No.

92

I

+2

+2

92

s2

92

92

Div
No.

ia-
i

W

ele-.)

en$

l{aza+d€{rs-lAras*e

Record Series Title

lndefinite-

+g-Vears

Sfears

Superseeee

P

lg+Vears

lAlhen-

Sspe{€ede+
EF

Upon-
Seearatien

+years

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

Mag

*+ae,+W

t!4a9,+pr

*+ae,+pr

Mac,
M+c,€D;

Ppr

Mag,
*n+rgB;

PPF

Mag+pr

*qagr+pr

Media
Options

s#

st+

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes+A#eF
ereg
l+a€tive

Yes+lfiet
ec-&€D

N€

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC',d?

F40se

Oratt wnen me new en
e+€e+

BeBa*ment Breferene

Bepartment Preferenee; Selid Waste Transfer /
Preeessing is 3 years; Nen hazardeus Ash
Bispesal is 5 years; 14 CCR 17379(a); 11 CGR
18660,8(d); 14 €CR 17414(b);GC S31090 et,

se+

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 5 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 144

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), SefiA+*ase{92} Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Finance

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

{Jtilities4
Wastewaier

{Jtilitiesl
S€{id-l#as[e

U+itities*
S€lid-+o*€sfe

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Description/Comments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

the not the Retention for Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + ts file

records act audits normal retention resurnes or

{J+ili+ies-A

Sefi4\Ar'asb- Aett etf gentraee (een

@ eempbtien

Magr
VestA#ec
e€+€p

lna€tive'

828 * t
s:years

Per
Ma+e+ial

834

833

832

83+

839

w

93

93

93

93

92

92

Chemical Usage Reports i Bills of Lading

Chains of Custody - Wastewater twate+-
es+ng jns+ru€+iens)

AQMD Permits (Generators, etc.)

ARB)

Waste Hauler Permits

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

17 years

Expiration of
Permit + 5 2

VEATS

P

s-years

Expira+r€n-+-
2-vears

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mac-
M+r'-eD;

Pfr

A4ag6Ppr

*+agr+pr

g+
Y-es+4fiet
ec-&€++

yeaf

Attached to invoices; GC 534090

Department Preference to conform with NPDES
retention for bacterioloqical and organics for
potable water ; GC $34090 et seq.; 40 CFR
141.33(a) and (bX1): 22 CCR Q64470

40 CFR 70.6: Depa*menlpreferenee;GC
s34090

w

FOLSOM, CA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without priorwritten permission

Page W&QWR - 6 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 145

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefiefn+as+e-€Zl Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Lead Div

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater
OR Maint.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

{J{itities*

837

836

023

835

Record
Series

No.

g3g

838

93

93

Div
No.

93

93

93

93

when the act is and a

Confined Space Entries

Record Series Title

M

Generator Operation Logs (forf\ll fixed4
sta+ien€+y generators) i lnspections

FOG Proqram (Fat, Oil & Grease)

Daily Safety Checks / DMV Reports / Daily
Work Reports / Vehicle lnspections / Daily
Equipment Checks

Daily Logs / Diaries i*lant€pe+atiens-
€heeklis+sJ Reports / Round sheets / Check
sheets / Shift Supervisors Logs fgpe+a+er
tess

Correspondence - Regulatory Agencies

7 years

When Ne
tengeF

*equired-
Minimum 10

VCATS

Z 3 years

Total
Retention

g+y€ar€

5 3 years

5 years

2 years

Vital?

Yes: While
Active
lssues

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

Mag, Ppr

Mao. Ppr

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag-
M+r€D;

Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s++

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QG'd?

Ves+{+er-
e#g-+

yeaf

Description/Comments / Reference

13 CCR 1234(c): GC 534090

Department preference (EPA can go back 7
years); 40 CFR 122.411)(2)

Department preference; Some correspondence
from Regulatory Agencies need to be retained
for long periods of time; GC S34090

8 CCR 51s7(d)(14) & (e)(6): 29 CFR
1 91 0.1 46(eX6): GC S34090 €€d€-€'f+€d€ral

14#$@

audits and/or normal retention or
since destruction is+ b

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Sfandards

2 years is required by AQMD; GC 534090

for 3 vears: 40 CFR 403.12: GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference (meets State
requirements): NPDES Monitorinq records
reorrired for 3 vears: POTW reoorts are reouired

FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 7 of 14
Updated: 812212022

Page 146

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefid+gas+e{92); Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Lead Div.

U+ilities*

{Jtili{ies-l
Vr'asiewa+e+

Lead Dept.

act normal retention after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Description/Comments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

the record is not for Standards
when the act is and a full file folder /asf + since destruction is

846

845

844

843

84

841

840

93

93

93

93

93

93

93

Permits (Various Operating Permits)

Outside Agencies - Organizations

Wastewater Collections Operateds-
Certifications

Operations & Maintenance Manuals / O & M
Manuals

NPDES Permits Wastewater

W
Celleetien

Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) / Safetv
Data Sheets (SDS) / Chemical Use Report
Form (or records of the chemical /
substance / agent, where & when it was
used)

P

When No
Longer

Reouired

Expiration +
2 vears

Sen+Cepf
te Human
Rese+*ees

Superseded'
Minimum 2

vears

Cxpira+ien-+-
T1ea+s

7+ears

30 years

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Magr
U+I-OB,

PBr

l+aq,+p+

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

s/t

s/l

s++

S

Yes: After
QC & OD+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes+4,*ec
ec-&-gD-+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD

lna€tive

Department preference; GC 534090

Non-records; GC 534090

@;Gc
s34090+

Department preference; GC S34090

Be^artment preferenee; Permits are fer 5 years;

Menitering reeerds required fer 3 years; 40 CFR

W

NPBES erder; Meni
years in Federal law
12244

Previous MSDS may be obtained from a
service; MSDS may be destroyed as long as a
record of the chemical i substance / agent,
where & when it was used is maintained for 30
years; Applies to qualified employers; Claims
can be made for 30 years for toxic substance
exposures; 8 CCR 3204(dX1XBX2 and 3),29
cFR e10.1020(dxl xiixB), GC s34oeo

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 8 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 147

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefief#ase{92)r Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities i
Wastewater
OR Maint.

records act audits and/or normal retention or
when the act is and +2 since destruction is file folder.

lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Sfandards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

852

851

850

849

848

847

Record
Series

No.

93

93

93

93

93

93

Div
No.

Sewer Svstem Manaqement Plans (SSMP)
and Audits. Sanitarv Sewer Overflows
(SSOs). / Sanitary Spills Overflow
Prevention Plan (SSOPP) and Sanitarv
Sewer Overflow Response Plan

SCADA Database (Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition) - Wastewater

Safety & Certificates - Employee Training

lncludes copies of certifications and training
not sent to Human Resources

Reports, Monitoring, Samples, Studies &
Testing (Annual i monthly / daily:
Calibration, compliance, flow data, meter
readings, etc.)

Pumping Stations / Sewer Lift Stations /
Motor Logs, etc.

Process Control Documents i SOPs -
Standard Operating Procedures

Pressure Vessel Certifications or Permits
(Air Compressors, Propane, etc.)

Record Series Title

5 vears

lndefinite

Sepa+a*ien-+
a5 years

7 years

P

Superseded
+ 2 vears

Expiration of
Certificate or

Permit

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

Maq, Ppr

Mag

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Media
Options

S

s/r

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
+Fae+ive

Yes: After
QC & OD+

yea+s

Yes: After
QC & Op+

yea+

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

40 CFR 122.41(iX2); SWRCB Order 2006-03:
GC Q34090

Department preference; plans must be updated
everv 5 vears arrdits are reorrired everv 2 vears:

Data is interrelated; system qualifies as a
"trusted system"; GC SS34090, 12168.7

Department Preference to conform with NPDES
retention; California Labor Department
maintains their records for 7 years; OSHA
requires 5 years for safety records; State law
requires 2 years; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age)
requires 3 years for promotion, demotion,
transfer, selection, or discharge; State Law
requires 2 -3 years; 8 CCR $3203 et seq., 8
CCR 14300.33(a); Zg CFR 1627.3(b)(ii), 29 cFR
1904.33,29 CFR 1904.44: LC $6429(c), GC

ss1 2946, 1 2960, 34090

Department Preference; 40 CFR 122.a1$Q);
WC S13263.2(b) et seq; GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference; 40 CFR 122.41{j(2);
WC S13263.2(b)et seq; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090 et. seq

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page W&QWR - 9 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 148

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Se[dfruas+e{92} Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Utilities /
Wastewater

OR
Collections
OR Maint.

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Utilities /
Wastewater

Depart.
Providing
Service i

Work

the record not

Record
Series

No.

858

857

856

855

854

853

859

93

93

93

93

Div
No.

93

93

93

when the act is a full file folderand

TV Collection Line lnspection Tapes / Video
lnspections / Video Tapes or Digital
Recordings (all lines)

State Reports

Spill Reports

Record Series Title

Work Orders / Service Requests - NOT
entered in CMMS Database (or partial

information entered into CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains originals;
Division requesting service is considered a
coov)

Work Orders / Service Requests - All
lnformation Entered in GMMS Database

Work Orders / Service Requests CMMS
DATABASE (Computerized Maintenance
Management System)

Underground Service Alerts (USA's) / Dig
Alerts - City

lndefinite

3 years

P
10 years

10 years

5 years

Total
Retention

5 years

When No
Longer

Required

Vital?

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag

Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

records act normal retention settlement or

Destroy
Paper
lmaged &

QC'd?

Description/Comments / Reference

Data is interrelated; GC 534090

Department Preference (the Reqional
Notification Center has the obliqation to retain
the notice for 3 vears); GC S$a216.2(d) &

4216.3(d),34090

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq

Department preference; 3 years is required for
spill reports; 40 CFR 122.41t)(2)

Department preference; Spill reports have the
potential to be involved with Clean Water Act
actions; GC 534090

last document + destruction is
Retention for Wide Standards

City preference; CCP SS338 et seq., 340 et
seq.,342, €€{€94+ GC 534090

Preliminary drafts (the database is the original);
GC 534090

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 10 of 14
Updated: 812212022

Page 149

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURGES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefidf#as+e-(g+ Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities i
Water

Lead Dept.

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Record
Series

No.

Div lmage: Destroy
Office of
Record
(oFR)

No. Total
Retention

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Record Series Title Vital?

M=Mfr lmaged &
Description/Comments / Reference

S=Scan QC'd?

the record is not listed for Wide Standards

the act is and a full file +2 since destruction is file folder.

records act audits normal retention resumes after settlement or

865

864

863

862

861

860

94

94

94

94

94

94

Fire Hydrant lnspections / Flushing

Environmental Agencies / Regulatory
Agencies

Customer Concerns Database: Odor / Taste
/ Visual Complaints

Confined Space Entries & Logs (Permitted
entries into confined spaces such as sewers
and storm drains in order to comply with
regulations)

Chain of Custody (Water testing
instructions)

Backfl ow: Cross-Connection Backfl ow
Device lnspections, Maintenance,
Certifications

10 years

When Ne
t€ng€F

Required-
Minimum 10

vears

When Ne
teng€F

neguire+-
Minimum 5

VCATS

Z 3 years

5 years

5 years

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; GC $34090 et seq

Department Preference; GC 534090

5 years is required in State and Federal law for
any complaints; 40 CFR 122A1OQ) & 40 CFR

1a1.33(b); 22 CcR 64453(a); 22 CCR 64470/a\

8 CCR 5157(dX14) & (eX6): 29 CFR
1 91 0. 146(eX6): GC Q34090 €€de-€++eC€{€f

1441+t@

22 CCR 64453(b) et seq.; 40 CFR 141.33(a)

Department Preference; Meets California
Department of Health requirements (3 years)

cc s34090

FOLSOM, GA. OZOOZ Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 11 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 150

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Sefidfplas+e-(92)r Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Lead Div.

Lead Dept.

Utilities /
Water

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper after
Description/Comments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

record is not listed refer to the Retention

when the act is and full file folder last document + 2 ,s

records act audits and/or in normal retention after settlement or

870

869

868

867

866

94

94

94

94

94

Regulatory Agency Reports / Compliance
Reports: Monthly and Quarterly Reports,
including backup data

Recycled Water - Permits, Annual Report,
Correspondence, Recycles Water User
Files

Operations & Maintenance Manuals / O & M
Manuals

Pressure Vessel Certifications or Permits
(Air Compressors, Propane, etc.)

Laboratory Records

Bench Sheets, Chain of Custody, Check-in
Sheets, Monthly Lab Analysis Sheets, Out ol

Lab Test Reports, Self-Monitoring Reports

When Ne
t€ngeF

eeq+ire+-
Minimum 5

years

10 years

Superseded'
Minimum 2

vears

Expiration of
Certificate or

Permit

12years

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

S

Yes: After
QC & OD+

veaf

Department Preference; Hazmat discharge
records are required for 3-5 years; 40 CFR
122.410(2)

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090 et. seq.

Department preference to comply with lead &
copper regulations; EPA i Good Laboratory
Practice Standards for studies relating to health
effects, environmental effects, and chemical fate
tests require 10 years for Lab records, raw data,
master schedule sheets, protocols, quality
assurance inspections, training, experience, job

descriptions, maintenance and calibration
records and reports; Monitoring records required
for 3 years; 22 CCR 64400.25: 22 CCR 564470,
40 CFR 141.33(a); 40 CFR 141.91

FOLSOM, GA. OZOOz Gtadwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 12 of 14
Updated: 812212022

Page 151

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (9t ), Sefie-l#as+e{92} Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

{J+i+ities4
Water er Fire

HOLDS: Litiqa

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Description/Gomments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

the record is not listed refer to the Retention

when the act is a full file folder last document + 2 s/nce file folder.

877

876

875

874

873

872

-
g4

records act audits and/or

94

94

94

94

94

94

s4

Water Quality Reports / Consumer
Confidence Reports

Water Pressure Charts

Water Conservation Rebates / Proqram -

Toilet Retrofit Proqram. lrriqation. Turf
Replacement. Washer. etc.

Vulnerability Assessment / Emergency
Response Plan / Risk & Resiliencv
Assessment I Hazad l4rlisatialflAt

Underground Service Alerts (USA's) - City

SCADA Database (Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition) - Water

@in+
Appa+a+us

P

5 years

When Ne
tengeF

eequire+-
Minimum 12

vears

Superseded
Minimum 2

vears

3 years

lndefinite

Seeara+ien-+
S0:years

Yes

rns susoend normal retention periods (retention resurnes after settlement or completion).

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag

*qaS,PpF

s/l
Yes: After

QC & OD+
years

Department preference; State law requires 12
years, federal 10 years; 40 CFR 141.33(a);22
CCR 64470; 22 CCR S64483: GC $34090

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq

Department preference to meet municipal
qovernment auditinq standards; GC 534090 et
seq.

Confidential; GC 534090

cc s4216.2(d) & 4216.3(d)

Data is interrelated; system qualifies as a
"trusted system"; GC SS34090, 12168.7

i

I

texie substanee expesure; a ^^D !2'n'1^\1a\ ^*

1910,1020(dX1xi); GC ss12916; 1'oa^ 3'1090

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR - 13 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 152

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES
Divisions: Engineering Compliance (90), Hazardous Material (91), Se$a-+Vas+e-€ZI Waste Water (93), Water (94)

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

Utilities /
Water

880

879

878

Record
Series

No.

94

Div
No.

94

94

when the act is and a

Record Series Title

Wells, Well Permits (includes abandoned
and destroved wells)

Water Usage Reports

Water Standards and Specifications

When Ne
tongeF

eeq*ire+-
Minimum 5

years

Total
Retention

P

When Ne
torgeF

eequiree-
Minimum 2

VEATS

Vital?
Media

Options

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/l

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Yes: After
QC & Op+

yea+s

audits and/or resumes

Description/Gomments / Reference

Department preference; GC 534090 et seq.

Department Preference; GC S34090

+2 since destruction is file folder.
the record is not the Retention for Wide Standards

Department preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA, OZOOZ Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page W&QWR- 14 of 14

Updated: 812212022

Page 153

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANCE
Divisions: Accounting (a0), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue @$, Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Accounting

Finance /
Accounting

Finance /
Accounting

Finance /
Accounting

Finance /
Accounting

Finance /
Accounting

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

360

359

358

357

356

355

the record is not listed

40

40

40

40

Div
No.

40

40

Journal Entries / Journal Vouchers / Budgel
Adjustments

General Ledger: Final year-end AND Chart
of Accounts / Organization Structure (Print
out when Rollover is Done)

Fixed Assets - Annual Listing (Source
Documents)

Financial Services Database (SunGard)

Record Series Title

Reports: Annual State or Federal: State
Controller's Report, Redevelopment
Statement of lndebtedness, Street Report,
Local Government Compensation Report,
Propertv Manaqement Plan. Obliqation
Payment Schedules. Due Diliqence
Reviews, Gas Tax, MOE (Maintenance of
Effort) Report, Fixed Charge Special
Assessment Report. Public Self lnsurer
Report (SlP Report)etc.

Reports, Subsidiary Ledgers,
Reconciliations, Registers, Transaction
Histories, Balance Sheets, Proof & Merge
Reports, etc. (MONTHLY OR PERIODIC)

Does NOT include year-end General
Ledger.

When No
Longer

Required

10 years

5 years

5 years

lndefinite

Total
Retention

5 years

Yes

Vital?

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag

Media
Options

Mag

Ppr
Mfr. OD.

sil

s/t

s/r

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/r

audits and/or in normal retention orrecords act

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-vear

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
()t:'d2

Yes: After
QC&OD

Description/Gomments / Reference

Department preference: Pnblishe4a*iele+

vea+s-a+vea++ GC 534090

lncludes permanent assets (for compliance
with GASB 34); GC 534090

Data Fields / Records are interrelated; GC

s34090

a full folder Iast document + 2 since destruction is
for

Department Preference; Meets auditing
standards; GC 534090

Preliminarv drafts / Transitory records not
retained in the ordinary course of business
Financial system qualifies as a trusted system
and can re-create reports accurately; s{atewide.
g[@;Gc534090

Department Preference; meets municipal
govemment auditing standards; Statute of
Li m itations is 4 yea rs ; sta{ewide-guiC€lin€€-
prepese+ud+t+-FyeaFs; GC 534090, CCP S

337

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 1 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 154

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANGE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue $Q, Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Disburse.

Finance /
Budget

Finance i
Budget

Finanee /
A€€€untin+

Audil

Finance /
Audit

City Clerk

FINANCE / AUDIT {4I)
records act

when the act is and a full file folder Iast document + 2 stnce ,s b file folder.
lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

366

365

364

3S

362

3+011

Record
Series

No.

43

42

42

++

41

41

Div
No.

1099's, 1096's-lssued

Budgets - Preliminary, Backup Documents

Budgets - Adopted i Final - Prior to 1983

City Clerk is OFR Post-1983

Statement ef lndebtedness / Annual Repert

@
ffiien_
Pavment SehedH iq€nee-

@
Assessment Repeft
ReBert (SlP ReBert)

Single Audits / Transportation Audits / Light
Rail Audit / PERS Audit, et.

Audit Reports i
Comprehensive Financial Reports CAFR

and related Audit Opinions

Record Series Title

5 years

When No
Longer

Reouired
S+ea+s

P

When Ne
tenge+

eeq*iree

5 years

Pcsple€-:-
When No

Longer
Reouired

'or investioati'

Total
Retention

Yes:
Current

Fiscal Year

Yes:
Current

Fiscal Year

normal retention resumes after settlement or

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mac-
M{rr€&-

PpF

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

s/t

s/l

s++

s/l

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-year

Yes: 1

yea{

Yes: After
QC&OD

{-ye€r

Yes: After
QC&OD
lyear

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
OC'.1?

Department Preference; IRS: 4 years after tax
is due or paid (longer for auditing & contractor
delinquency); Ca. FTB: 3 years; IRS Reg

531.6001-1(eX2), R&T S1e530, Gc 534090

Preliminarv Drafts Department Preference; GC

s34090

Department Preference; Must be filed with
County Auditor; GC 534090.7, 40802, 53901

eepies;ee{Aa0g0J

Department Preference (meets municipal
government auditing standards); GC 534090

Department Preference (copies - included in
City Council Aqenda Packets); GC 534090.7

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 2 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 155

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: FINANCE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41 ), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenu e (44), Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Payroll

Finance /
Payroll

Finance /
Payroll

Finance /
Payroll

E / PAYROLL

Finance /
Disburse.

Finance i
Disburse.

Finance /
Disburse.

records act normal retention resumes after

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Gomments / Reference

refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 file folder.

371

370

369

368

367

oo2

44

44

44

44

43

43

Deferred Compensation (City Statements)

Deduction Files (Deferred Compensation,
PERS, etc.

DE-6 & 941 Forms - Quarterly Payroll Tax
Returns / OASDI

CaIPERS Reports

W-9s

Checks / Warrant Registers

Accounts Payable / lnvoices and Backup

(lncludes lnvoices, Travel Expense
Reimbursements, Warrant Request, etc.)

5 years

When No
Longer

Reouired

5 years

5 years

Vendor
lnactive + 3

VEATS

5 years

10 years
Yes: Until

Paid

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mao,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

s/l

s/r

s/t

S

s/t

s/t

s/r

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD
2+ea+s

Yes: After
oc&oD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

+year

Produced by Deferred Comp. Provider;
e€nsi€ten+rf*i+trprepesed+tatewide3uidelines;
published articles for bank statements show 4 -
7 vears; GC S304090,26 CFR 16001.1

Department Preference; Preliminary
documents used to facilitate Payroll
deductions; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference; IRS: 4 yrs after tax is
due or paid; Ca. FTB: 3 years; Articles show 7
years; IRS Reg $31.6001-1(eX2), R&T $19530;
29CFR 516.5 - 516.6,29USC 436, GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Meets IRS Auditinq Standards: GC S34090

Department Preference ; Statute of Limitations
is4years;@
+-S-vea+s; GC 534090, CCP S 337

Department Preference to facilitate grant audits
or clai m re i m bu rsem e nts ; Statewide3uide,l+nes-

shew€-+vears; GC 534090

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 3 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 156

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANCE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue (44), Payroll(45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Revenue

Finance /
Revenue

Finance /
Revenue

E

Finance /
Pavroll

Finance /
Payroll

Finance /
Payroll

records act audits and/or retention resui'nes after settlement or
when the act is full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.

the record is not listed refer to the Retention

Office of
Record
(oFR)

376

375

374

373

372

Record
Series

No.

45

45

45

44

44

Div
No.

Developer Payment / Trusts (Contractor's
Trusts)

(ln proiect file, originals to Finance)

Business License Applications,
Registrations and Renewals

Accounts Receivable / Daily Envelopes /
Cash Receipts / Petty Cash / Revenue
Daily Receipt Books / lnvoices to Outside
Entities / Alarm Billinq, etc.

W-4s

W-2's

Payroll Reports

Record Series Title

Close + 5
years

5 years

5 years

No Lonqer in
Effect + 4

years

5 years

When No
Longer

Required

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Paid

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Maq.
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Media
Options

s/r

s/t

s/t

s/l

s/t

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-year

Yes: After
1 vear

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
oc&op

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oe'd?

Department Preference; S+a+ewid€€{iide+in€s-

snew€-++ears;-G C 534090

Meets auditing standards; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference; Sta+ewideSuigeUnes-

snew+-++ear+GC 534090

for the return period to which the records relate.
or the date such tax is paid. whichever is the
later- GC 634090: 26 CFR 31. -1 GC

460201

Department preference: IRS Requlation 31-
6OO1-1 forrr vears after the drre date of such tax

Department Preference; IRS: 4 yrs after tax is
due or paid; Ca. FTB: 3 years; Articles show 7
years; IRS Reg $31.6001-1(eX2), R&T $19530;
29CFR 516.5 - 516.6, 29USC 436, GC 534090

PERS Buy-backs are reconstructed through
Human Resources; Transitory records not
retained in the ordinary course of business
Financial system qualifies as a trusted system
and can re-create reports accurately; sta+ewids

@;GC534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 4 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 157

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANGE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41 ), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenu e (44), Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Treasurer

Finance /
Treasurer

City Clerk

Finance /
Treasurer

Finance /
Treasurer

Finance /
Revenue

act audits and/or normal retention resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

,s listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and +2 since destruction is

382

381

380

379

378

377

46

46

46

46

46

45

lnvestments / Arbitrage / Bonds (Receipts /
Advisor Reports and Statements / Trade
Tickets / LAIF (Local Agency lnvestment
Fund))

Escheat (Unclaimed money i uncashed
checks)

Bonds: lssued by the City, PFA, or RDA:
Official Statements / Certificates of
Participations (COPs)

See Bank Statements for statement
retention.

Bank and Trustee Statements, Outstanding
Check Lists, Daily Cash Summaries, Bank
Deposits, Bank Transmittal Advice,
Cashier's Reports

Assessment District Accounting / Payment
Administration Records

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT)

Maturity + 5
years

5 years

Fyllv
Defeased

Caneeila+,
eedemetien-
€++,4a+uri+y +

10 years

5 years

5 years

5 years

Yes: Until
Paid

Yes: Until
Maturity

Yes: Until
Paid

IEASURER (/

Yes: Until
Paid

Mag
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

s/l

sir

s/r

s/t

s/t

s/t

Yes: After
oc&op

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
oc&op

Yes: After
QC&OD

Department Preference; Meets auditing
standards; Published articles show disposal + 7
years for security brokerage slips; statewide-

@FTGReg'srelY
on "self-enforcement"; GCSS 34090, 43900

Department preference; All tangible property
held by government agencies escheats after 3
years; Statute of Limitations is 1 year for seized
property; Meets auditing requirements; CCP

SS340(4), 151e; GC S340e0

Department Preference; Statute of Limitations
for bonds, mortgages, trust deeds, notes or
debentures is 6 years; Bonds issued by local
governments are 10 years; There are specific
requirements for disposal of unused bonds;
CCP $$336(aX1) & (2), 337.5(2); GC $43e00 el
seq.

Department Preference; Published artieles

years; GC 534090,26 CFR 1.6001-1

Department Preference; meets municipal
government auditing standards; GC 534090

Department Preference; S+a+ewiOe-g*ieemes-

sh€i#€-+-v€ersi-GC S34090

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 5 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 158

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANGE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue (44), Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finanee /
*eeeun+ng-
OR-U{i{+*f

Br+ing

Admin..
Services /

Utility Billing

LITY BILLING 4

City Clerk

Finance /
Payroll

City Clerk

Finance /
Treasurer

when the act is and a

lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Sfandards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

387

386

385

384

383

Record
Series

No.

+7

46

46

46

46

act audits and/or normal retention or

Div
No.

A€€€un+s

Checks deoosited to Bank (City scans them
for the Bank. rather than phvsicallv takinq
the checks to the bank to deoosit them.)

Treasurer's Reports / Quarterly Financial
Statements / Strategic Plan Update (to
Council)

Reconciliations

Monthly lnvestment Reports

lrrevocable Letters of Credit

Record Series Title

7+ea{€

Follow Bank
lnstructions

Cooies -
When No

Lonqer
Required
+vears

When No
Longer

Required

Copies -
When No

Lonqer
Required
+vears

Release of
Security

+ since destruction is file folder.

Total
Retention

Vital?

Magr
M+-€B=

Per

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr. OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Media
Options

s++

s/t

s/r

s/l

s/r

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Ye€+-Afte+-

e€-&-og

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
oc&oD

Yes: After
QC&OD

No

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oc'd?

intermatien remaln

Vears; tvteets aueitl
tien preperty (tiens are geed fer 10 years frem

These are bank instruments. and not City
records: per bank aqreement.

Department preference (Copies); GC 534090.7

Preliminarv Drafts / Transitory records not
retained in the ordinary course of business; GC

s34090

Department preference (Copies); GC 534090.7

Securities (Performance Bonds, Letters of
Credit, CD's, etc.) are released after the Notice
of Completion is issued and replaced with the
Warranty Bond, which is released 1 year after
the Notice of Completion date. GC 526202

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 6 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 159

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANCE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue (\, Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Admin..
Services i

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services i

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billino

Finance /
Utility Billing

Finanee /
U+ti++++ng

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

records act audits and/or in normal retention resumes
Retentions beoin when the act is completed. and implv a full file folder b.o. last document + 2 veard. since destruction is normallv performed bv file folder,
lf the record is not listed to the

Office of
Record
(oFR)

389

388

Record
Series

No.

47

+

Div
No.

Water Billino: Pavment Plans:
Amortization, Alternative Pavment Plans.
Deferrals, etc.

Water Billinq: NSF Checks i Adiustments
to Customer accounts

Water Billino: Non-pavment Notices /
Notice of Pavment Delinquency &
lmpendino Discontinuation (lnitial. Final)

Water Billino: Appeals - Pavment
Delinquencv & lmpendinq Discontinuation

Utilitv Billinq Database

Temporary Hvdrant Meters

Reports / Meter Reading Reports

(Frinteuts frem dat

Dailv Receipts, Cash Receipts, Overs and
Shortaqes

Record Series Title

Expiration or
Completion o1

Payment Plar

When No
Lonqer

Reouired

When No
Lonqer

Reouired

Final
Decision + 2

VCATS

lndefinite

Close + 2
vears

When No
Longer

Reouired

lndefinite,

5 years

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

Maq.
Ppr. Mfr.

OD

Maq.
Ppr, Mfr.

OD

Maq,
Ppr. Mfr.

OD

Maq.
Ppr. Mfr.

OD

Mag

Maq,
OD. Mfr.

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Magr
M+r-€D-

Per

Maq,
OD. Mfr.

epr

Media
Options

s/t

s/l

s/l

s/r

s/t

s/r

#+

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Y€€+-Afre+
a€&B

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
()t:'d"

Documented or attached to Customer Record
in database GC Q34090: H&S $116910

Documented or attached to Customer Record
in database GC Q34090: H&S Sl 16908

Documented or attached to Customer Record
in database GC $34090: H&S Q116908

Documented or attached to Customer Record
in database GC S34090; H&S 8116908

Data Fields / Records are interrelated; GC
Q34090

GC Q34090

Preliminary drafts not retained in the ordinary
course of business (the database is the
original); GC $34090 et seq.

sent lsfrnaneeice-S34

Consistent with Cash Receipts & Accounts
Receivable: Published articles show 3 - 6
vears' Other citv shows nermenent: Cooies are

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 7 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 160

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANGE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenue @$, Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance

Sendees /
Technology

Services

Finance

Sendees /
Technology

Services

Finance

Sewiees /
Technology

Services

Finance i
Utility Billing

Finance /
Utility Billing

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

Admin..
Services /

Utilitv Billinq

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention
when the act is folder last document + since destruction is

normal retention resurnes

124

123

122

391

390

12

12

12

47

47

lnventory, lnformation Systems

Backup Tapes - MONTHLY

Backup Tapes - DAILY / WEEKLY

Water Receipts or Remittance Stubs i
Utility Receipts / Stubs from Bills (when
oavment is submitted)

Water Meter lnventory

Water Billinq: Report of Annual
Discontinuations of Residential Service

Water Billinq: Policv on Discontinuation of
Residential Service for Nonpayment

When No
Longer

Required

When No
Lonqer

Required
4-year

When No
Lonqer

Required
S+veeks

4 months
Afrer+tudi++"

€emBte+e

lndefinite

Minimum 2
VEATS

When
Superseded;
Minimum 2

vears

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mag.

Mag

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq.
Ppr. Mfr.

OD

Maq,
Por, Mfr,

OD

s/l

s/r

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Preliminary documents not retained in the
ordinary course of business; GC $34090 et
seq.

Used for Disaster Recovery Purposes Only;
Store off-site in commercial storage for disaster
recovery; Considered a copy and can be
destroyed when no longer required; retention
based on administrative value; recycle tapes;
GC $34090 et seq.

Used for Disaster Recovery Purposes Only;
Considered a copy and can be destroyed when
no longer required; tapes are in autochangers
and are ovenryritten; store off-site in a
commercial facility for disaster recovery
purposes; GC 534090 et seq.

Preliminary Documents; GC $34090 et seq

Department Preference (data is interrelated);
GC 534090 et seq.

Must post to Website: H&S Q116918: GC

s34090

Must post to Website; H&S 8116906: GC
Q34090

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 8 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 161

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: FINANCE
Divisions: Accounting (40), Audit (41 ), Budget (42), Disbursements (43), Revenu e @$, Payroll (45), Treasurer (46), Utility Billing (47)

Finance /
Technoloqy

Services

Finance

Sen+iees /
Technology

Services

HOLDS: Litioation. complaints. claims. public records act requesfs. audits and/or investiqations suspend normal retention per
when the act Iast document + 2 since destruction is

the record is not listed to the Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

125

Record
Series

No.

12

12

Div
No.

UNALTERABLE MEDIA (WORM / DVD.T /
CD-r / Blue Rav-R) or other unalterable
media that does not permit additions,
deletions, or chanqes

Network Configuration Maps & Plans

Record Series Title

P

When No
Longer

Required

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

OD

Mag

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

resumes after settlement or

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
()(]'.1"

Records (when the electronic record serves as
the official record): GC 60200. 12168.7. EVC
1550, 2 CCR 22620 et seq..

For leoal comoliance for Trustworthv Electronic

Preliminary documents not retained in the
ordinary course of business; GC $34090 et
seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page FIN - 9 of 9
Updated: 811912022

Page 162

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE . FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall / Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

Fire /
Admin.

Fire i
Admin. or

Police

Fire /
Admin.
S+ate-efl

€alifls+nia

Fire I
Admin

City Clerk

Fire /
Admin.

Fire I
Admin.

Fire /
Admin. Or

Police

Fire i
Admin

records act audits and/or resumes after

lf the record is not listed Standards

when the act is and a full file folder + destruction is

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

428

427

426

425

424

423

422

421

420

51

51

51

51

51

51

51

51

51

Div
No.

ISO Insurance Ratings

Fire lnvestigation Reports - OTHER
THAN ARSON (in Fire lncident RMS
Database)

Fire lncident RMS LEGACY Database
(Firehouse)

FCC Licenses

Emergency Plans / Disaster
Preparedness Manuals, etc.

DMV Pull Notices (Fire Employees Only)

Daily Safety Checks / Daily Work
Reports / Vehicle lnspections / Daily
Equipment Checks

Citizen's Emergency Response Training I

Neighborhood Training

Course Records, Roster, etc.

Annual Reports / Fire lncident Statistics

Record Series Title

1 5 years

When No
Longer

Required

When No
Longer

Required

Expiration +

2 vears

Superseded

When
Superseded

or
Upon

Seoaration

2 years

l0 2e years

P

Total
Retention

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Media
Options

S/I

s/t

s/l

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
Superseeee

Yes: After
QC&OD

{na€{ive

Yes: After
QC&OD

Supe+seeee

Yes: After
QC&OD

N€

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Department Preference (rated every 10 years);

GC 534090

Police retains capital crimes; data is in RMS
database; GC $34090 et seq.

Does not include anv Patient Care Reports:
Arson lnvestiqations are retained outside the
database:@;-
GC $34090 et seq.

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090.7

Department preference; Transitory or source
records not retained in the ordinary course of
business; CHP audits every 2 years; Bureau of
National Affairs recommends 2 years for all
supplementary Personnel records; GC 534090

13 CCR 1234(c): GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Retained for historical and administrative value;
GC 534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. OzOoz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission PageF-1of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 163

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE . FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall/ Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

Fire /
Admin

City Clerk

Fire /
Admin. or

Police

Fire /
Admin.

Fire /
Admin.

Fire I
Admin

a full file folder Iast document + 2 /s b file

normal resumes after settlement or

is not listed refer to the Retention for

Office of
Record
(oFR)

008

007

429

Record
Series

No.

51

51

51

Div
No.

Mutual Aid Agreements, Joint Power
Authorities: ADMINISTRATIVE FILES

(Correspondence, Project Administration,
Project Schedules, Certified Payrolls,
lnvoices, Logs, etc.)

Mutual Aid Agreements, Joint Power
Authorities

Fire lnvestioation Reports - ARSON onlv

(lncludes Patient Care Reports)
Fire lncident RMS lmaoeTrend Database

Fuel Loq (Mileaqe. Fuel Tank Level. etc.)

Monthly Statistical Report / Run Statistics

Record Series Title

Completion
+ 10 years

Copies -

When No
Longer

Required

P

VCATS

Minimrrm 20

5 vears

When No
Longer

Reouired

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before

Completion

Yes

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag.
Mfr, OD.

EpI

PpI

Mag,
Ppr

Media
Options

s/l

s/l

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snrn

Yes: After
QC&OD

Up€n-
gempletien

Yes: After
oc&op

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'd?

Covers E&O Statute of Limitations (insurance
certificates are filed with agreement); Published
Audit Standards=4-7 years; Statute of
Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4 years,

Wrongful Death=comp. + 5 years,

Developers=comp. + 10 years; Sta+ewide-
; CCP

S$336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

Originals Maintained by City Clerk or County
Clerk of the Board; GC 534090.7

No statute of limitations on prosecution: GC

S34090 et seq.

9444.22 CCR70751b) & 71551k\:22 CCR
7 07 51 (c\. 7 1 551 (c). 7 3543b\. 7 47 3 I (a\.

7 5055h\. 7 5343{a\. 77 1 43b\. W &t 1 41 24.1 :

CMS Pub. 100-4, Chapter 1 , Section 1 10.3

18. but not less than 7 vears: GC Q34090 et
seq. CCP Q340.5, GC 834090; H&S
681797.98(e) 123145:42 CFR 482.24(b\.9 CCR

reorrirecl for 7 vears: minors until 1 vear after aoe
lnchrdes electronic Patient Care Reoorts - adults
GC Q34090

Meets municioal oovernment auditino standards:

Considered a preliminary draft / copy (the Fire

database is the original); GC $34090 et seq.

Descri ption/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-35'16 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission Page F -2of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 164

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE - FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall/ Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (52)

e*VeC*

Fire /
Admin.

Utilities /
Water or

Fire

Fire i
Admin.

Fire I
Admin.

the record is not refer

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is folder.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

065

433

432

431

430

Record
Series

No.

54

5'1

51

51

51

Div
No.

@

@ies-

@
Plans; Preparedness Training & Exereises;

Telestaff Database (staffi ng )

Respiratory Fit Tests for Breathing
Apparatus

Personnel Files - Training File (Fire
Employees Only)

(Training related to essential functions -

e.q. Water Rescue Boat, etc.)

Personnel Files - Medical File (Fire
Employees Only)

(Annual Physicals are not forwarded to
Human Resources)

Record Series Title

Sen+{e€ity
Glerk

Minimum 5
VCATS

Separation +

30 years

Separation +

5 40 years

P

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Separation

Yes: Until
Separation

Vital?

Magr
M+e-eS'

Ppr

Mag
Ppr

Mag
Mfr, OD.

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Media
Options

s

s/t

s/r

s4

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: When
lt+a€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

empleyees eutside

@

Department preference; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference; Claims can be made for
30 years for toxic substance exposure; Claims
are required for five years after the end of
compensation, or injury, whichever is longer;8
ccR S3204(d)(1) et seq., 8 CCR 51 44 I CCR

15400.2; 29 CFR 191 0.1020(dXl Xi). GC
8Q1 2946, 1 2960, 34090

Department preference; GC SS12946, 12960,
34090

Department preference; Files maintained
separately; Claims can be made for 30 years for
toxic substance exposure;8 CCR $320a(d)(1) et
seq., B CCR 5144. B CCR 15400.2;29 CFR
1q1n 102nld\11'r/i\ Gc ss1294q12908" 34oeo

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. OzOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission PageF-3of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 165

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE . FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall/ Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

Fire / EMS

Fire / EMS

Fire I
Ooerations

HOLDS: Liti

-

Fire / EMS

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Record Series Title

Total
Retention

Vital?
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Description/Gom ments / Reference

not listed to the Retention for Standards
when the + file

436

435

audits and/or in normal retention
Department Preference; adults required for 7

r 1

10 years is recommended by
AH I MA fo r "health ca re provi ders" ; €alifernia-

Ambulance Billing / Patient Care Reports
/ PCRs (EMS transportation) Reports:
ALL (medical and non-medical.)

Mag, Yes: After
QC&OD

n+e+-l-Vea+
434 52 20 years Mfr oD, sti Statute of Limitations for health providers is 3

years; Federal law requires 3 years, statewide
guidelines propose 3 years; HIPAA provides
privacy regulations for patient's health records;
1

Ppr

9444. 22 CCR 707 51 (c\ & 7 1551 (c\: 22 CCR
7 o7 51 (c\. 7 I 551 G\ 7 3543{a\. 7 47 31 (a).

7 5055(a\, 7 5343G)', 7 7 1 43(a\, W &l 1 41 24.1 :

CMS Pub. '100-4, Chapter 1 , Section 1 10.3

52

52

HIPAA Policies and Procedures (Health
lnsurance Portability and Accountability
Act)

EMS Complaints / CQI (Continuous
Quality lmprovement) i Quality
Assurance

Controlled Substance lnventory Records

Superseded
+ 6 years

3 years

3 vears Yes

Mag
Mfr OD

Por

Mag
Ppr

Mag.

Ppr

S
Yes: After
oc&op 24 CFR 164.530(i)

Statute of Limitations for health providers is 3

Yearsi
ccP Q340.5. GC 534090

Department Preference: 24 CFR Q1304.04.
1310.04

FOLSOM, GA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission PageF-4of6

Updated: 711212022

Page 166

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE . FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall / Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

Community
Develop i
Building

Fire / Fire
Marshall &

Fire
Prevention

Fire / Fire
Marshall &

Fire
Prevention

Community
Develop /
Building or
Planning

Fire / Fire
Marshall &

Fire
Prevention

Fire i Fire
Marshall &

Fire
Prevention

and/or
and a full file folder /asf + destruction is

is not listed refer to the Retention

Office of
Record
(oFR)

441

440

439

438

437

Record
Series

No.

53

53

53

53

53

Div
No.

Fi reworks Stan d lnspeetiens
Fireworks Permits

Fireworks Stand I nspections

Fire Code Permits / Special Event
Permits (assembly permits, candle
permits, tent permits, fire hydrant use,
open flame, etc.)

Conditions of Approval
(Original COA maintained in project file)

Business lnspection Files - Citations /
Notice of Violations

Business lnspection Files - Approvals,
lnspeciions. Fires, Modification /
Alternative Methods or Materials I
Citatiens / Netiee ef Vielatiens

Record Series Title

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

P

2 years

Expiration +
2 years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Required

Minimum 2
years

Life of the
Structure or
Activitv. or
Minimum 5

years.
Whichever
is Lonqer
tif+eF

Ct#ldiflg-
l{inimum3

vea+s

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before
Event

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag
Ppr

Mag,
Ppr

Mag
Ppr

Maq,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Media
Options

s/l

s/l

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=-Snan

Yes: After
QC&OD
A,fter5
yeaf€

Yes: After
QC&OD

A#e+€;
YE€fS

resumes after

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

Depa4men+pre+eFeneei Copies (Building

maintains originals) GC S34090J e+€eq=

GC S34o9o

GC S34o9o

Preliminary Drafts or Copies; GC $34090 et seq.

Depariment Preference: GC Q 34090 et seq.

Required for the Life of the Structure or Activitv.
nr Mini mrrm 5 veers CFC ES 1 A_1N/1AA

E4€4€ffi.+GC S34oe0

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission PageF-5of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 167

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE - FIRE
Divisions: Administration (51), EMS (52), Fire Marshall / Fire Prevention (53), Operations / Suppression (54)

Fire I
Operations

Fire /
Operations

Gommunity
Develop /
Building

443 53
Record Drawings ("As-Builts") and CAD
drawings of buildings

Copies -
When No

Lonqer
Required

P

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr
s/r

Yes: After
QC&OD
A#e+F
yeafs

Copies (Buildinq

534090.7 else+

I

Fire / Fire
Marshall &

Fire
Prevention

records
Iast document + 2 since destruction is

lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

445

444

442

Record
Series

No.

54

54

53

Div
No.

Station Log Books (lncidents - kept at
Fire Stations)

Alarm Profiles & Reports, False Alarms

Public lnformation / Education (when
produced internally)

Record Series Title

20 years
P

2 years

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

vetrc

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before
Event

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag,
Ppr

Mag,
Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Sr:an

No

cn oeriods hetention resurnes after seftlement or completion)

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Retained for historical and administrative value;
GC 534090

GC S34o9o

Department Preference; GC 534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. OzoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission PageF-6of6

Updated: 711212022

Page 168

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

HUMAN RESOURCES (57)

a Iast document + 2 since destruction is
lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

474

473

472

471

470

Record
Series

No.

57

57

57

57

57

Div
No.

COVID-l 9 Notifi cations to Emplovees

Classification Specifications

Classification / Reorganization Studies (for
employee classifications and department
structures)

CaIPERS Administration

(lncludes actuarial reports, service credit
reports, annual employee listing, circular
letters, etc.)

Benefit Plan Documents & Contracts

(lncludes 457, 401A, Long Term Care,
Retirement Health Saving, Medical, Dental,
etc.)

Benefit Brochures & Forms

Record Series Title

3 vears

teng€F
eeq*rea-
Minimum 6

years

When Ne
teng€F

eeguir€+-
Minimum 2

VEATS

V+he+N€-
tengeF

eeguiFe+-
Minimum 2

vears

tenge+-
eeq*ireg-
Minimum-
Duration of

the Contract
+ 6 2 vears

When No
Longer

Reouired

Total
Retention

Yes: For
Duration of
Contract

normal retention resumes after

Vital?

Maq, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

LC 86409.6(k). GC 834090

Department preference; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA
(Age) requires 3 years for promotion,

demotion, transfer, selection, or discharge;
State Law requires 2 -3 years; retirement
benefits is 6 years from last action; 29 CFR
1602.31 & 1627.3(b)(ii), 8 ccR S320a(dX1) et
seq., GC SS12946, 12960.34090;29 USC
1113

Bureau of National Affairs recommends 2
years for all supplementary Personnel records;
Wage rate tables are 1 or 2 years; State
requires 2years;29 CFR 516.6(2),29 CFR
1602.14, GC SS12946, 12960,34090

Department Preference; Bureau of National
Affairs recommends 2 years for all

supplementary Personnel records; GC 534090

Retirement benefits is 6 vears from last action:
Federal law requires 6 years after filinq date
for retirement: EEOC / ADEA (Age) requires 1

year after benefit plan termination; State Law
requires 2years after action; 29 USC 1113 29
CFR 1627.3(bX2); GC SS12946,12960, 34090

Non-records

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageHR-1of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 169

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Police /
Admin.

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Office of Record
Div
No.

Total
Retention

Media
Options

l=lmport
M=Mfr

Paper after
lmaged &Record Series Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

(oFR) No.

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction

478

477

476

475

57

57

57

57

DMV Pull Notices - (All employees, except for
Fire and Police and Solid Waste, who retain
their own)

Discipline Files - Peace Officers - WITHOUT
Sustained Findinq of Misconduct

(lncludes investigator information,
investigation notes, statements, testimony,
correspondence, etc.)

Discipline Files - Peace Officers - WTH
Sustained Findinq of Misconduct

Discipline Files - Employees (Non-Peace
Officers)

(lncludes investigator information,
investigation notes, statements, testimony,
correspondence, etc.)

Department of Fair Employment & Housing
(DFEH or EEOC) Claims / Harassment
Claims

When
Superseded

or
Upon

Separation

Final
Disposition
+ 5 Years

Final
Disposition
+ 15 vears

Separation
+ 5 years

Final
Disposition
+ 3 years

normal retention resur??es

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Department preference; Transitory or source
records not retained in the ordinary course of
business; CHP audits every 2 years; GC

s34090

Department preference; Consistent with
Lexipol Policv: State requires for at least 5
vears for Citizen's complaints: other State &
Federal laws require retention until final
disposition of formal complaint: State requires
2 vears after action is taken: Statute of
Limitations is 4 vears after the discoverv of the
offense for misconduct in office: EVC

81045(bxl). GC SS12946, 12960 34090, PC
QQ801.5, 803(c), 832.5(b), VC 52547

PC 832.7; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

All State and Federal laws require retention
until final disposition of formal complaint; State
requires 2 years after "fully and finally
disposed";2 CCR 7287.0: GC SS12946,
12960. 34090

FOLSOM, GA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageHR-2of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 170

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

records act normal resumes after

e:
Office of Record

Div
No.

Total
Retention

Media
Options

l=lmport
M=Mfr

Paper after
lmaged &Record Series Record Series Title Vital? Description/Gomments / Reference

(oFR) No.

the record is Retention for Wide

when the act is Iast document + 2 /s

482

481

029

480

479

57

57

57

57

57

Labor Relations Files

(Negotiation Notes, Correspondence,
lnterpretation of MOU Provisions,
Documentation, etc.)

lnsurance Policies (City owned), Certificates
of Self-lnsured

l-9s

Grievances and Informal Complaints (all)

EEO-4 Reports and records required to
generate EEO-4 report (Self-ldentification
Form, etc.)

Drug & Alcohol Test Results (All - Positives
and Negatives)

25 years

P

Separation
+ 3 vears

Separation
+ 6 years

3 years

5 years

Yes: Before
Expiration

Yes: Before
Disposition

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag Ppr

s/l

s/l

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD
gxp+ratiea

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

274Ab\3): INS Rule 274a-11Dl2L

reouires 2 -3 vears: 8 CFR 274a.2; 29 CFR
1627.3(b\(1): GC SS12946. 12960. 34090; INA

Required for 1 yearfrom termination or 3
vears from hirinq. whicheve
FLSA / ADEA (Aqe) requires 3 vears for "anv
nther forms of emnlovment inouirv": State Law

Department preference; All State and Federal
laws require retention until final disposition of
formal complaint; State requires 2 years after
action is taken; GC SS12946, '12960, 34090

29 CFR 1602.30; 29 CFR 1602.32 GC 534090

D.O.T. Requires 5 years for positive tests,
refusals, annual summaries, etc, 1 yearfor
negative tests; EEOC / FLSA / ADEA (Age)

requires 3 years physical examinations; State

Law requires 2years;29 CFR 1627.3(b)(1)(v),
Gc SS12946, 12960, 34090;49 CFR 655.71
et seq.; 49 CFR 382.401 et seq.

FOLSOM, GA Ozooz Gtadwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageHR-3of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 171

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

act audits and/or in resumes after
Retentions
lf the record is not listed Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

486

485

484

483

the act is and a full file folder

Record
Series

No.

57

57

57

57

Div
No.

Personnel Files - Employees
(Oaths of Office)

(Emplovment Development Department
Glaims for Paid Familv Leave / FMLA,
Disabilitv lnsurance Claims & Additional
lnformation)

OSHA Loqs - 200, 300. 301. 301A. etc.

Personnel Background Packet - Successful
(Except Police)

LiveScan Responses or Logs (CORI

Responses) for Unsuccessful Applicants

LiveScan Responses or Logs (CORI

Responses) for Employees and Volunteers

Record Series Title

P

Separation
+ 4 vears

5 vears

P

4 $years

50 years

qst documen

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Separation

Yes: Until
Separation

Yes: Until
Separation

Yes: Before
Separation

+ since destruction is

Vital?

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Maq. Mfr.

OD, Ppr

Maq, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

sir

s/r

s/l

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Separa+ton-+-
4-yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Department Preference; Statute of Limitations
for Retirement Benefits is 6 years from last

action; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3
years for promotion, demotion, transfer,
selection, or discharge; State Law requires 2 -
3 years; 8 CCR 5144,8 CCR 15400.2;29
cFR 1910.1020(dX1Xi), GC SS12946, 12s60,

34090, 3105; LC 51 198.5; 29 CFR 1602.14;
53235.2(b); 53237.2(b\; LC S1 1 98.5

Department Preference; GC SS12946. 12960,
34090,

OSHA requires 5 years; State law requires 2
vears; 8 CCR 14300.33. 8 CCR Q3203(bX1).
GC Q34090: LC Q6429c

Department Preference (unsuccessful
employees are kept by Police); GC 534090

$Ce)+eqt*iFes-€yea+si State Law requires 4
2-€ years; 29 CFR '1602 et seq &
1 627.3(a)(5) and (6),4-€€RJ287${e}2}, 2

CCR 11013(c); 8 ccR S11040(7.( c)), GC

ss12946,12960, 34090

Department Preference to cover the possible

length of employment of any employee or
volunteer (DOJ allows retention for legitimate
business needs); must be maintained in a
secure and confidential file; DOJ lnformation
Bulletin No. 02-17-BCll; $ 34090 et seq.

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA ozOoz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

PageHR-4of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 172

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

HOLDS: Litt

when the act is
lf the recort

Office of
Record
(oFR)

490

489

488

487

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or

'ls nof /isf

Record
Series

No.

57

57

57

57

for Wide Standards

Div
No.

Recruitment and Testing File

(lncludes Advertisements, Unsuccessful
Applications. Job Brochures, Test Data,
Testing Analysis & statistical Metric, Job
Analysis, Rating Sheets, Scantrons, Rater's
Profi le & Confidentiality Agreement,
Flowchart, Eligible Lists, etc.)

Recruitment Database (NeoGov)

Pitchess Motions, Subpoenas Regarding
Personnel, Restraining Orders for
Employees, etc.

Personnel lssues i Skelly Meetings (Advice
File) - Excludes Police

Personnel Files - Medical File (all employees
EXCEPT Fire and Police)

Record Series Title

tsngeF
eegrrired-
Minimum 4

3 years

Minimum 4
years

2 years

5 years

P

+ since destruction is b

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Separation

Yes: Until
Separation

Vital?

Mag, Mfr.

OD" Ppr

Maq. Mfr.
OD. Ppr

Mag. Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

s/r

s/t

SI

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Sepa+a+ien-

Yes: After
QC&OD

Sepa+a+ien-+-
q-yeat_

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

Department preferenee; EEOC / FtSA / ADEA

$ge)+equires+-aaea+s; State Law requires 4
2-€ years; 29 CFR 1602 et seq &
1 627.3(aX5) and (6),+€€R-728+3(e{2), 2

CCR 1'1013(c): 8 CCR S11040(7.( c)), GC

ss12946,12960. 34090

State Law requires 4 vears: 29 CFR 1602 et
seq & 1627.3(aX5) and (6), 2 CCR 1 101 3(c): 8

CCR S11040(7.( c)). GC QQ12946. 12960,
34090

GC S34o9o

Department Preference ; EEOC/FLSA/ADEA
(Age) requires 3 years for promotion,
demotion, transfer, selection, or discharge;
State Law requires 2 -3 years; retirement
benefits is 6 years from last action; 29 CFR
1602.31 & 1627.3(bxii), I CcR $320a(d)(1) et
seq., GC SS12946, 12960.34090;29 USC
1113

Department preference; Files maintained
separately; Claims can be made for 30 years
for toxic substance exposure; 8 CCR

S3204(dXl ) et seq. .8 CCR s144 8 CCR
15400.2: 29 CFR 1910.1020(dX1 Xi). GC

8S12946, 12960, 34090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageHR-5of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 173

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: HUMAN RESOURCES
Administration (57)

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

records act audits resumes after
when the act is

If the record

Office of
Record
(oFR)

495

494

493

492

491

s nof /ist

Record
Series

No.

57

57

57

57

57

to the Retention for Standards

Div
No.

Workers Compensation or Disability Claims /
Employee Accident Reports

lncludes all Accident, lncident, or lnjury
Reports and associated MSDS

Workers Compensation Claim Runs

Verifications of Employment, Child Support

Unemployment Insurance Files

(lncludes Employment Development
Department Claim Forms, Determination of
Claims, Benefit Audit, Claims Processing
Reports, Correspondence, etc. )

Studies & Surveys Conducted on Behalf of
the City (Compensation Surveys, Sick Leave,
Attrition, Benefits, etc.)

Record Series Title

Separation
+ 30 years,

OR
Termination
of Benefits +

5 years
(whichever
is lonqer)

5 years

When No
Longer

Required

2 years

When Ne
tengeF

neguire+-
Minimum 2

vears

ast documen

Total
Retention

+ since destruction is

Vital?

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
oc&op

When
lq€€tive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

Department preference; Claims can be made
for 30 years for toxic substance exposure;
Claims are required for five years after the end
of compensation, or injury, whichever is
longer8 CCR 5144, 8 CCR 15400.2;29 CFR
1e10.1020(dx1 xi), Gc ss12946, 12960.
34090

Department preference (meets auditing
standards and allocation formulas); GC

s340e0

Content does NOT relates in a substantive
wav to the conduct of the public's business)
Transitery reeerds net retained in the erdinary

+e-puglies+usinessFC $34090 et seq.

GC S34090

Department preference; GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PageHR-6of6
Updated: 711212022

Page 174

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: LIBRARY
Library (59)

Library

Librarv

Library

Library

Lead Dept.

Library

Library

records act normal retention resurnes

LIBRARY

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for
and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction file folder.

523

522

521

520

59

59

59

59

Librarv Commission
MI N UTES, BYLAWS, RE$IIUIIONS

Librarv Commission
AUDIO REGORDINGS

Librarv Commission
AGENDAS & AGENDA PACKETS

ILS i lntegrated Library System / Library
Management System / Database

Patron and material catalogue database -
The City is a subscriber to Sacramento

Grants: LSGA (Library Services and

Construction), LSTA (Library Services and
Technology), CLLS (California Librarv
Literacy Services): IMLS (lnstitute of
Museum & Library Services), and PLF
(Public Library Foundation) ONLY. For all
others. follow Citv-wide Schedule.
(SUCCESSFUL Reports, and Financial
lnformation) Send copy of application and
awarcl to Administrafive Services

Community Postings / CEQA Postings for
Other Agencies

Collection Agency Assignments &
Statements

P

2 vears

P

When No
Longer

Required

Final
Expenditure

+ 5 Years

When No
Longer

Required

l lyears

Yes

Maq. Ppr

Maq, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Maq. Mfr,
OD. Ppr

Mag

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

s/t

s/l

sit

After QC

After QC

Yes:
After QC

&op

ln€€tive

GC Q34090

Department preference: onlv 30 davs is mandated:
GC S34090.6

Department preference: Oriqinal Staff Reports are
filed in the oroiect file: GC Q34090

Department preference; Data Fields / Records are
interrelated; GC 534090

Per California State Library Records Management
Program Requirements (April 27,1998); GC 534090

Non-records; GC 534090

Department Preference; Negative credit information
remains on credit reports for 7 - 1O years; Meets
auditing standards; City does not Lien property
(Liens are good for 10 years from recording date,
and may be extended by re-recording lien); WC
36729: GC 534090

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageL-1of2
Updated: 81512022

Page 175

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



REGORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: LIBRARY
Library (59)

Library

Library

Library

Library

Library

HOI DS: Lit

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Descri ption/Gomments / Reference

the record is Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and +2 since destruction is folder.

528

527

526

525

524

records act audits and/or resutT?es

59

59

59

59

59

Release Forms / Exhibit Waivers / Photo
Releases (Artists / Exhibitor's)

Receipts for Lost Books, etc.

Program Sign Ups (e.9. Summer Reading)

Patron Applications for Library Cards
(lncludes parental consent card for minor
children)

Library Statistics / Circulation Reports

2 years

2 vears

When No
Longer

Required

When No
Longer

Required

When No
Longer

Reouired

Yes:
Before
Event

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

GC S34o9o

GC S34oe0

Preliminary / Transitory documents not retained in
the ordinary course of business; GC 534090

Department Preference; Preliminary Drafts /
Transitory records not retained in the ordinary course
of business; GC 534090

Copies / Preliminary Drafts; GC 534090.7

FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

PageL-2of2
Updated: 81512022

Page 176

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (11), Landscape & Liqhtinq (33). Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary(64)

Public
Works /
Admin &

Engineering
or Parks &
Recreation

Public
Works /
Admin &

Engineering
or Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

PARKS

?etentions b

tf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Record Div
Office of
Record
(oFR)

Series No
No.

538

537

536

535

a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is

62

62

62

62

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) i Jobs -
Parks Facilities: Permanent File

Plans, Specifications, Bids/RFPs,
Successful Proposal, Change Orders,
Materials Testing Reports, Grading Permits,
Hazardous Materials Plans, Notice of
Completion, Construction Manager's Logs,
Photos, Soils Reports, Studies, Submittals,
Surveys, etc.

Bikeway Projects, etc.

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) / Jobs -
Parks Facilities: Ad!!Iaig3lq!!q_Ei!g

Project Administration, Certifi ed Payrolls,
lnspections, P@ect Schedules, Progress
meetings, Real Estate Appraisals, etc.

Bikeway Proiects, etc.

Agreements for Contractors: Class
lnstructors, Sports Leagues, etc.

Activity / Special Programs / Special Event
Files

Record Series Title

P

10 years or
After

Funding
Agency
Audit, if
required,

whichever is

Completion +
5 years

\A/hen-+{e-
teng€F

eegr+ired-
Minimum 5

VEATS

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completion

normal resumes after

Vital?

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

s/l

s/l

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-year

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-year

Yes: After
QC&OD

lff€€tive

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
oe'd?

All permanent project files are maintained in
Engineering no matter what department was
involved in the project; retained for disaster
preparedness purposes (City Clerk does not
maintain Plans, Materials Testing Reports, etc.)
Statewide guidelines propose Permanent for
lnfrastructure plans; GC 534090

Some grant funding agencies require audits;
Statute of Limitations for Errors & Omissions is 10
years; Published Audit Standards=4-7 years;
Statute of Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4
years, Wrongful Death=comP. + 5 years,
Developers=comp. + 10 years; Statewide-

ccP
SS336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

The statute of limitation for errors and omissions is

notapplicable; Statewidet|tlidelinesfrepese_

eentraets&eempletien+lyearsfer i€F

@;ccP$$336(a),
337 et. seq., GC 534090

Department preference; GC S34090

>rmed bv file folder.

Description/Comments / Reference

PageP-1of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 177

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (11). Landscape & Liqhtinq (33). Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary(64)

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation

HOLDS: Li

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

the Retention for Sfandards
Retentions when the act is +2 since destruction is

548

547

546

545

544

543

542

541

540

539

014

records act audits

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

Subject / Reference Files: Subjects other
than Specifically Mentioned in Retention
Schedules

Sign-in i Sign-out sheets

Registration / Fee & Charge / Liability
Forms / Release of Liability Forms /
Permissions / Waivers i Sign-in Sheets for
Skate Park, etc.: Camps, Field Trips,
Authorization to give Medicine, etc.

Recreation Database

Playground Equipment lnspections

Pesticide Application Records

Lifeguard Certification & Licenses

Facility Use and Equipment Applications,
Books, Alcoholic Beverage Applications

Evaluations/Surveys (Program Evaluations)

Donations (Money)

Cash Receipts Detail / Backup / Refunds

tengeF
eeguired*
Minimum 2

VEATS

2 years

2 4 years

lndefinite

10 years

2 years

Separation +

3 vears

2 years

When No
Longer

Required

2 years

2 years

Yes:
Before
Event

resurnes

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq.

GC 534090

Statute ef timitatiens any ",',liability feunded upen

previeee+e#s-+yearq GC S34090;C€P{$3C+
3B

Department Preference; data is interrelated; GC

s34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference (agricultural pesticide

records are required for 2 years); GC 526202; 3
CCR 6623,40 CFR 171.11 et seq.

Department Preference; GC SS12946,1 2960,
34090

cc s34o9o

Department Preference (Transitory record not
retained in the ordinary course of business); GC

s34090

Summaries are sent to Finance; GC 534090

Summaries are sent to Finance; GC 534090

PageP-2of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, GA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 178

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (1'1). Landscape & Liqhtinq L33). Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)

Parks &
Recreation

Sen+iees-/
Facilities

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Depart.
Providing
Service i

Work

Parks &
Recreation

audits and/or resurnes after settlement or
rct is completed. and implv a full file folder b.q. Iast document + 2 vears

the record is not listed refer to the Retention

Office of
Record
(oFR)

008

552

551

550

549

Record
Series

No.

11

62

62

62

62

Div
No.

Contract Administration: Custodial, etc.

Work Orders / Service Requests - NOT
entered in CMMS Database (or partial

information entered into CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains originals;
Division requesting service is considered a

copy)

Work Orders / Service Requests - All
lnformation Entered in CMMS Database

Work Orders / Service Requests CMMS
DATABASE (Computerized Maintenance
Management System)

Swimming Pool Chemicals: Log of
Ghemicals Added

Record Series Title

Completion +

5 years

5 years

When No
Longer

Required

lndefinite

5 3Syears

s

Total
Retention

Yes (before
completion)

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

. slnce desi

Media
Options

s/r

ruction is normallv performed bv file folder.

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
fle'.{"

Depa rtment preference; meets auditing standards;
Statute of limitations for contracts is 4 years;

Errors and Omissions does not apply;+ublishe*
ines-

@;cCP$$336(a),
337 et. seq., GC 834090

City preference; CCP $$338 et seq., 340 et seq.,
342, G€{S945=q GC S34oeo

Preliminary drafts (the database is the original);
cc s34090

Data is interrelated; GC 534090

Department Preference; M

;-
GC Q34090 et seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

PageP-3of8
Updated: 611Ol2O22FOLSOM, CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 179

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (1 1), Landscape & Liqhtinq (33). Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Parks &
Recreation

Sen+iees-/
Facilities

Lead Dept.

Parks &
Recreation

Adlsin-
Sen+iees-/

Facilities

Parks &
Recreation

Admin-
Sen+iees-,t
Facilities

HOLDS: Lit
Retentions beqin when the act is completed. and implv a full file folder G.q. last document + 2 veard. since destruction is normallv pen

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

120

119

118

117

116

115

11

11

11

11

11

11

Work Orders / Service Requests - All
lnformation Entered in CMMS Database

Work Orders / Service Requests CMMS
DATABASE (Computerized Maintenance
Management System)

Regulatory Permits

Pressure Vessel Certifications or Permits
(Air Compressors, Propane, etc.)

lnspections: Sidewalks, City Facilities

Daily Safety Checks / DMV Reports / Daily
Work Reports / Vehicle lnspections / Daily
Equipment Checks

Record Series Title

When No
Longer

Required

lndefinite

Expiration +

2 years

Expiration of
Certificate or

Permit

10 years

2 years

Total
Retention

ations susoend normal retention oeriods (retention resurnes after settlement or completion)

Vital?

Mag Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Ppr

Media
Options

S

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-yeaf

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
fJC'd"

Preliminary drafts (the database is the original);
GC 534090

Data is interrelated; GC 534090

Department preference; GC S34090

Department preference; GC $34090 et. seq

Department preference to show due diligence; GC

s34090

13 CCR 1234(c\: GC 534090

tmed bv file folder.

Description/Comments / Reference

PageP-4ofB
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 180

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



Divisions:
RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION

Faci ities { 11 & & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)\ I andscane I iohtino /33\ Parks

Parks &

Recreation
€€fi1s-

Develop-J
Landscape
& Lighting
Districts

Parks &
Recreation

€€mfi-
Develep-J
Landscape
& Lighting
Districts

Parks &
Reereatien

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

when the act is and + ls file folder

records act audits and/or resumes after seftlement or

the record is not listed Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

285

274

#

121

33

33

e

11

Div
No.

Contract Administration: Maintenance
Contracts

Assessment / Maintenance / Landscape &

Lighting / Street lmprovement District
Projects / Community Facilities Districts
(ASSESSMENT ROLLS)

Fi+es

Work Orders i Service Requests - NOT

entered in CMMS Database (or partial

information entered into CMMS Database)

(Division providing seryice retains originals;
Division requesting service is considered a

copv)

Record Series Title

Completion +

5 years

5 years

\Alften-No-
tengeF

neguire+-
Minimum4

Veia+S

5 years

Total
Retention

Yes (before
completion)

Yes: Until
Submitted
to County

Vital?

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

IAag;PpF

Mag Ppr

Media
Options

s/r

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD
eempt*ie

R

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
(te,d?

Statute of limitations is 4 years for contracts;
Errors and Omissions does not apply; statewide-
guidelines propes

@ienaire-
agreemen+q CCP SS337. 337.1(a), 337.15, 343;
GC S34090

Department Preference (meets auditing
standards); GC S34090.7

City preference; CCP $$338 et seq., 340 et seq.,
342, €€.sSS45=c GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

PageP-5of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, GA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 181

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (1 1). Landscape & Liqhtinq (33). Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

Depart.
Providinq
Service /

Work

120 11
Work Orders / Service Requests - All
lnformation Entered in CMMS Database

Depart.
Providing
Service /

Work

gepa#-
P+eviding
S€nfi€e+

Werk

normal retention resurnes after settlement or
a full file folder Iast document + 2

refer to the Retention for

Office of
Record
(oFR)

287

286

295

Record
Series

No.

33

33

33

Div
No.

Work Orders / Service Requests - NOT
entered in CMMS Database (or partial

information entered into CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains originals;
Division requesting service is considered a
cnnv\

Work Orders / Service Requests CMMS

DATABASE (Computerized Maintenance
Management System)

Planninq Proi
ffi

@eing'
te-

@

Design Review; tet tine Adjsstments; Pareel
Maps' Planned Unit Develepments (PUD); Site
Plans; Tentative Ssbdivisiens; Varianees; Zene

@

Record Series Title

5 years

When No
Lonqer

Required

lndefinite

P

Total
Retention

IAILS (63I

Ye.s

Vital?

Mag Ppr

Maq Ppr

Mag

A4ad+rery

file folder.

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes-
When

lna€tive

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
af(l'.1?

City preference; CCP $$338 et seq., 340 et seq.,
342, €€{€84S GC S34oeo

Preliminary drafts (the database is the oriqinal):
GC Q34090

Data is interrelated; GC 534090

permit witnin Z Vear
whieh the applieant dees net fellew threugh with

fer administrative BurBeses; Final envirenmental

"reasenable peried ef time"; 14 €CR 915095(e);
c€s$4egq€4sse+

Description/Gomments / Reference

PageP-6of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 182

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & REGREATION
Divisions: Facilities (11). Landscape & Liqhtinq (33), Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Public
Works /
Admin &

Engineering
or Parks &
Recreation

Public
Works /
Admin &

Engineering
or Parks &
Recreation

act audits and/or in retention or
Retentions b
lf the record ls nof /lsted Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

557

556

555

554

553

the act is and a +2 s/nce file folder,

Record
Series

No.

64

64

64

63

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) / Jobs -
Trails: Administration File

63
Project Administration, Certified Payrolls,
lnspections, Project Schedules, Progress
meetings, Real Estate Appraisals, etc.

Div
No.

Animal Medical Database (contains
controlled substance inventories, veterinary
treatments, etc.)

Animal Acquisition Contracts / Agreements

Adoption Agreements (Cats, etc.)

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) / Jobs -
Trails: @!_l!!g

Plans, Specifications, Bids/RFPs,
Successful Proposal, Change Orders,
Materials Testing Reports, Grading Permits,
Hazardous Materials Plans, Notice of
Completion, Construction Manager's Logs,
Photos, Soils Reports, Studies, Submittals,
Survevs. etc.

Record Series Title

lndefinite

Expiration -
Minimum 10

years

Adoption + 3
years

P

vv,,,y,euv,,

10 years or
After

Funding
Agency
Audit, if
required,

whichever is

Total
Retention

Yes

Yes:
Before

Disposition

\NCTUARY (64)

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completed

Vital?

Mag

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

s/l

s/t

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD
eemBte+ro

R

Yes: After
oc&oD

4-year

Yes: After
QC&OD

+year

Destroy
Paper
after

lmaged &
6n.d?

Department Preference; Covers various statute of
limitations; 3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC

$597.1(d); CCP $$336(a), 337 et. seq., GC

Q34090

Department Preference (Fish & Game owns the

animals); CCP SS337. 337.1(a),337.15, GC

s34090

3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC 5597.1(d);
CCP $$336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

All permanent project files are maintained in
Engineering no matter what department was
involved in the project; retained for disaster
preparedness purposes (City Clerk does not
maintain Plans, Materials Testing Reports, etc.)

+n+pas*rueturc+tans; G C 534090

Some grant funding agencies require audits;
Statute of Limitations for Errors & Omissions is 10

years; Published Audit Standards=4-7 years;

Statute of Limitations: Contracts & Spec's=4
years, Wrongful Death=comP. + 5 years,

Developers=comp. + I 0 years;€tatewide-
6gp

SS336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

Page P -7 of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 183

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PARKS & RECREATION
Divisions: Facilities (11), Landscape & Liqhtinq (33), Parks & Rec. (62), Trails (63), Zoo Sanctuary (64)

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation i

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Parks &
Recreation /

Zoo

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No. Total

Retention
Media

Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Paper
after

lmaged &
Record Series Title Vital? Description/Comments / Reference

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for
a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is

565

564

563

562

561

560

559

558

64

64

64

64

64

64

64

64

USDA lnspection Reports

Special Events - Zoo

Regulatory Agency Permits

Parties / Facility Use and Equipment
Applications, Books, Alcoholic Beverage
Applications

(Birthday Parties & Other)

Coun$ Health Department lnspections

Controlled Substance lnventory Records
(anesthesia, tranquilizer)

Annual Permits to House Animals

Animals - lndividual Records (includes
Captive Bred Wildlife, lmports, Quarantines,
Veterinary Treatment Records, etc.)

10 years

Longer
Required -
Minimum 5

Expiration +
2years

2 years

Expiration +

2years

5 years

5 years

Sale or
Expiration -
Minimum 2

vetrs

Yes

Yes:
Before
Event

Yes:
Before
Event

Yes:
Before
Event

Yes

Yes

resumes after

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Department Preference (accredited every 5
years); GC $34090 et seq.

Department preference; GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

Department preference for USDA accreditation
and permitting; required for 2 years after inventory
or transaction; 21 CFR 51304.04, 1310.04

Department preference for USDA accreditation
and permitting; Animal treatment records are
required for 3 years; FA $32003(e); GC 534090 et
seq.

Department Preference; 3 years is required; FA

$32003(e), PC $597.1(d); CCP SS337,338; GC

s34090

PageP-8of8
Updated: 611012022FOLSOM, GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page 184

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (1 1). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Admin.

Fire /
Admin. Or

Police

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Reee+ds

Finance
Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin

POLICE ADMINISTRATION (68I

Retentions
lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

596

595

594

593

592

591

590

640

639

374

last document + 2 since destruction is file folder,

Record
Series

No.

68

68

68

68

68

68

68

73

73

68

Div
No.

Departmental Assignments & Rosters

Citizen's Emergency Response Training /
Neighborhood Training

Course Records, Roster, etc.

Carry Concealed Weapon Permits (CCW) -
Denied

Carry Concealed Weapon Permits (CCW) -
Approved

Carry Concealed Weapon Permits (CCW) -
Retired Employees

Business Permits (Regulatory) -
TECHNICIAN / DRIVERS: Massage
Technician, Taxi Driver, etc.

Business Permits (Regulatory) - BUSINESS
OWNER: Massage, Taxi, etc.

Alarm Notification / False Alarms i Permits

Alarm Billing

Accounts Receivable / Daily Envelopes /
Cash Receipts / Petty Cash / Revenue Daily
Receipt Books / lnvoices to Outside Entities
/ Alarm Billinq, etc.

Record Series Title

2 years

104e years

5 years

Expiration +

5 vears

Expiration +

5 vears

Expiration +
2 years

Expiration +

2 vears

2years

epie€-
When Ne
tongeF

nequire+
5 vears

5 years

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Paid

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

s/r

resurnes after seftlement or

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snan

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
Superseged

Yes: After
QC&Op+

yeaf

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'd?

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

(meets municipal qovernment auditinq
standards). GC 534090.5

flcn:rlment Preference - Police sends invoices

Department Preference;€ta{ewide€'uide+ifi€s-

sne#C-+far$-GC 534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM GA OzOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 1 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 185

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (1 1), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Human
Resources

Police /
Admin.

records act

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper after
Description/Gomments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &

not listed here refer to the Retention for Standards

when folder last document + 2 since destruction is

601

600

599

598

597

68

68

68

68

68

lnternal Affairs lnvestigations / Complaints -
WITHOUT Sustained Findinq of
Misconduct@
+ereeSuperviseqt+eviews

lnternal Affairs lnvestiqations / Complaints -
lnvolvinq Peace Officers WITH Sustained
Findinq of Misconduct

Hearings / Hearing Officer (Parking, Tows,
etc.)

Equipment & Uniform Authorization

Employee Grievance Files / Supporting
Documents

DMV Pull Notices (Police Employees Only)

Final
Disposition
+ 5 years

Final
Disposition
+ 15 vears

2 years

2 years

Copies -
When No

Longer
Reouired

When
Superseded

or
Upon

Seoaration

normal retention resumes

Mag, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Consistent with Lexipol Policv: State requires
for at least 5 years for Citizen's complaints;
other State & Federal laws require retention
until final disposition of formal complaint; State
requires 2 years after action is taken; Statute
of Limitations is 4 years after the discoverv of
the offense for misconduct in office. -4e+

sh€€+ing€iEvC Sl 045(bXl ), GC SS1 2946,
12960 34090, PC SS801.5, 803(c), 832.s(b),
vc s2547

PC 832.7 ; GC Q34090

GC 534090

GC $34090 et seq

Copies; GC 534090.7

Department preference; Transitory or source
records not retained in the ordinary course of
business; CHP audits every 2 years; GC

s340e0

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD -2of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 186

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (1 1), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Human
Resources

Police /
Admin.

Pel.iee4
Admin;

Retentions beqin when the act is completed. and implv a full file folder b.q. last document + 2 veard. since destruction is normallv peiormed bv file folder.

lf the recor(

Office of
Record
(oFR)

607

606

605

604

603

€e2

'is nof /ls

Record
Series

No.

68

68

68

68

68

68

Div
No.

Personnel Photographs

Personnel Files - Medical File (Police
Employees Only)

(Annual Physicals are not forwarded to
Human Resources)

Personnel Background Packet -
Unsuccessful (not hired)

Personnel Background Packet - Successful

Permits: Entedainment

Record Series Title

P

P

When Ne
tongeF

nequ+reg-
Minimum 4

3 years

5 years

Expiration +
2 vears

Final
giseosit+e+
+++ea+s

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Separation

Vital?

Mag,
OD,

Mfr
Ppr

Mag,
OD,

Mfr
Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

[4ag;+pr

Media
Options

s/l

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Sean

Yes: After
QC&Op+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

r)e'd"

Department Preference; GC S 34090 et seq

Department preference; Files maintained
separately; Glaims can be made for 30 years
for toxic substance exposure; 8 CCR

S3204(dX1) et seq., 8 CCR 5144. 8 CCR
15400.2; 29 CFR 1910.1020(dX1Xi), GC

ss1 2946, 1 2960. 34090

Bepartment preferenee; EEOC / FtSA / ADEA

$S€)+eq{*ires-+€jfears; State Law requires 4
2-3 years; 29 GFR 1 602 et seq & 1627.3(a)(5)
and (6),+€€R+29+3(e{2}, 2 CCR 1 1 01 3(c);
8 ccR 51 1040(7.( c)), Gc SS12e46, 1 2e60.
34090

Department Preference (copies); GC $
34090.7

GC 534090

ires-
fer at least 5 years fer Citizen's eemplaints;

len-
until final dispesitien ef fermal eemplaint; State
requires 2 years after aetien is taken; Statute

the effense fer miseen

vc{2547

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM GA OzOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 3 of 17
Updated: 711212022

Page 187

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions:Admin.(68), Animal Control (11), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police
Admin-

S€Fd€es-/
Animal
Control

Police
Adffiin-

Sen',iees-/
Animal
Control

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

Police /
Admin.

State of
California

and/or resumes after
when the a full file folder last document +

lf the recorc

Office of
Record
(oFR)

102

101

612

611

610

609

608

426

here refer to the Retention for

Record
Series

No.

10

10

68

68

68

6B

68

68 Police lncident RMS Database i Police logs

Div
No.

Animal Licensing Printouts

Animal Control Cases (Bite Reports, Cruelty,
etc.)

Use of Force Supervisory Reviews

Reports and Studies regarding Police
operations (not historical - manpower, etc.)

Reports and Studies - Historical

Press Releases - Police Onlv

Policies & Procedures / Lexipol / Operation
Directives / General Orders (Department
Policies and Procedures)

Record Series Title

3 years

When No
Longer

Required
(minimum 3

vears)

2 years

When No
Longer

Required -
Minimum 2

vears

P

2 years

P

lncident
When Ne
t€fig€r-

Res{rired

s

Total
Retention

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr
OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,
OD, Ppr

ts file

Media
Options

s/t

s/r

sit

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snan

Yes: After
QC&Op+

yeaf

Yes: After
QC&OD

SuBerseded

Yes: After
QC&OD

lnaetive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

O(]'.1?

3 years is required; FA S32003(e), PC

5597.1(d); GC 534090 et seq.

3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC

5597.1(d); GC $34090 et seq.

GC SS12e46, 12960,34090, PC SS801.5,
803(c), 832.5, VC 52547

Department Preference; GC $ 34090 et seq.

Department Preference; GC $ 34090 et seq

GC S34o9o

Department Preference; GC $ 34090 et seq

N€n+e€ord€-(use the State system); GC

$34090 et seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. Ozooz Gladwell covernmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 4 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 188

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLIGE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police

Senriees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen*iees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police
Adfrin-

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police
Admin-

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sep*iees-/
Animal
Control

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No,

lmage Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper after Description/Gomments / Reference
M=Mfr lmaged &

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Standards
full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is

107

008

106

105

104

'103

10

10

10

10

10

10

Controlled Substance lnventory / Records

Contract Administration: Animal Control
Services

Citizens Service Logs

Citations

Animal Trap Agreements

Animal Services Databases / Animal License
Database, etc.

Date of
lnventory +

2 years

Completion
+ 5 years

When No
Longer

Required

10 years

2 years

lndefinite

Yes

Yes
(before

completion
)

Yes

normal retention

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

Mag

Required for 2 years after inventory or
transaction; 21 CFR 51304.04, 1310.04

Department preference; meets auditing
standards; Statute of limitations for contracts is
4 years; Errors and Omissions does not apply;
published audit standards is 4-7 years;

vear+CCP $S336(a), 337 et. seq., GC 534090

Transitory records not retained in the ordinary
course of business; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference; may contain felony
charges (DA determines); GC $34090 et seq

GC $34090 et seq

Department preference - used for locating
animals; 3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC

5597.1(d); GC $34090 et seq.

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 5 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 189

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police

Senriees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen+iees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sewiees-/
Animal
Control

Police

Sen*iees-/
Animal
Control

records act audits and/or

Retentions
the record is not listed here refer to the Retention for

Office of
Record
(oFR)

113

112

111

110

109

108

act and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

Record
Series

No.

10

10

10

10

10

10

Div
No.

Return to Owner Records

Public Nuisance Cases (barking dogs, etc.)

Owner Release for Euthanasia

Notice of Violations

lmpound Records / Transportation Records

Daily Activity Reports

Record Series Title

10 years

When No
Longer

Required
(minimum 3

vears)

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

Total
Retention

Yes

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag i Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq

GC 534090 et seq.

3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC

$5e7.1(d); cc 534090

Department Preference; consistent with animal
record retention requirements; GC 534090 et
seq.

Covers various statute of limitations; 3 years is
required; 1 year is required forthe
transportation of dead animals; FA $32003(e),
PC $597.1(d); CCP SS336(a),337 et. seq.,3
CCR 1 180.15; GC $34090

Department Preference; GC 534090 et seq

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. OZOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 6 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 190

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions:Admin.(68), Animal Control (11), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Commun

Police /
Commun.

Police /
Commun.

Police /
Gommun.

Police /
Commun

Police /
Commun

MUNICATIONS / CAD

Police
Admin-

Se+viees-/
Animal
Control

records act normal retention

the Retention for Wide Standards

when the file folder last document + 2 file folder.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

615

614

613

** The Gounty of Sacramento is the office of record for
animal control services prior to July 1, 2009, subsequent
lo fhal fhe Citv of Folsom becomes the office of record.

114

69

69

69

10
Treatment Records (Vaccination records,
medical treatments, etc.)

Div
No.

Vacation Checks / Patrol Requests

Officer Recordinqs: Bodv-Worn Cameras &
MAV (Mobile Audio Videos - 8 - Records or
@

Officer Recordinqs: Bodv-Worn Cameras -
that are NOT evidence

Officer Recordinqs: Bodv-Worn Cameras -
that ARE evidence. Officer lnvolved
Shootinqs / Detention or Arrest /
Gomplaints

fficer Recordings: Mobile AudioA/ideo
Recordings that are not evidence ("hip

recorders", etc.)

Audio Recordings or Tapes - (CAD/RMS)
Recordings of Telephone & Radio
Communications Dispatch Tapes (CAD)

Record Series Title

2 years

P

davs
It/inimrrm 6C

Evidence,
Minimum 2

vears

Follows
retentinn for

1 year

1 year

3 years

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Maq

Maq.

Maq,

Mag

Mag

Mag

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

GC 534090 et seq.

PCQ 832.18(bXSXE): GC S34090.6 et seq.

PCQ 832.18(bX5XA); GC S34090.6 et seq.

PCQ 832.18(bX5XB)&(C): GC Q34090.6 et seq.

Department preference; Recordings that
become evidence are stored with evidence -
these are preliminary documents / transitory
recordings not retained in the ordinary course
of business; GC $3a090.6(a)

Department Preference; S+a{ewide-$$delines-
p+€pesel€+days (legally mandated for 100

days); (may be discoverable or made public in
some circumstances), GC SS34090, 34090.6

3 years is required; FA $32003(e), PC

S5e7.1(d); Gc S340e0

)n resumes after settlement or completion).

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD -7 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 191

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
lnvestiqat.

Police /
lnvestigat.

Police /
lnvestigat.

Police /
lnvestigat.

Police /
lnvestigat.

Police /
Commun

?etentions t

the record is not listed refer to the

Office of
Record
(oFR)

619

618

617

616

678

the act is and a full file folder +

Record
Series

No.

70

70

70

70

69

Div
No.

lntelliqence Files

lnformant Files

Gang Files

Detectives lnvestigation Files and Arrest
Files (Official Reports)
(includes but is not limited to Suicide and
Dead bodies (natural deaths)

Detectives lnvestigation Files and Arrest
Files (Notes)

H.E.L.P. Documents / Registration

act audits and/or

Record Series Title

5 vears

When Ne
teng€F

eequiree-
Minimum 2

years

When Ne
tong€F

neg{*ireA-
Minimum 2

vears

Transferred
into

Record's
Files

VVNCN NO

Longer
Panr rirad

teng€F
eequiree-
Minimum 2

VEATS

l

Total
Retention

flGATION {70)

Vital?

Ppr. Maq

Ppr, Mag

Ppr, Mag

Ppr, Mag

Ppr, Mag

Mag, Ppr

destruction is

Media
Options

S/M/I

resumes after

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

fJC'.1"

Files contain criminal intelliqence information
concerning an individual only if there is
reasonable susoicion that the individual is
involved in criminal conduct or activitv and the
information is relevant to that criminal conduct
or activitv.
Misleadinq. obsolete or unreliable information
is required to be destroved: remaininq records
must not be retained lonqer than 5 years; 28
CFR 23.20(h); GC Q34090

lnformant information: Does not contain
criminal intelligence information concerninq
individuals: Department preference; GC

s340s0

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq.

Transfer all Official Reports to Records to be
placed in the Day Files.

Preliminarv drafts not retained in the ordinarv
course of business: GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference; GC 534090 et seq.;
Identification of persons who may be at risk of
being lost due to medical and/or mental
condition (record series J65added 05n7/2013)

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 8 of 17
Updated: 711212022

Page 192

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police i
Operation

S

POilCe /

Operation

Poltce /
Operation

s

Police /
Operation

s

Police /
Operation

s

Police /
Operation

S

Police /
Operation

s

Police /
lnvestigat.

Police /
lnvestigat.

audits and/or or
and a full file folder +2 since destruction

lf the recort

Office of
Record
(oFR)

628

627

626

625

624

623

622

621

620

refer to the

Record
Series

No.

71

71

71

71

71

71

71

70

70

Div
No.

Range Schedules

Patrol Ride-A-Long Waiver Form

PAS Device Calibration Logs

Logs: Various (Vehicle Assignment, Patrol
Shift Activity, etc.)

Hospital Mandated Reporting

Canine / Equine (Police Dogs & Horses)
Program Files: Animal Files

Canine / Equine (Police Dogs & Horses)
Program Files: Action Reports, Monthly
Reports

Secondhand Dealer Permits i Pawn Broker
Permits & Licenses

Pawn Slips

Record Series Title

When No
Longer

Reouired

2 years

2 years

When No
Longer

Reouired

When No
Longer

Required

Separation
+ 3 years

\+he+Ne-
tong€F

eequire+-
Minimum 2

vears

Close of
Business +

2 vears

3 years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Ppr, Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr, Mag

Ppr, Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Preliminary documents not retained in the

ordinary course of business; GC 534090 et
seq.

GC $34090 et seq

GC $34090 et seq

Preliminary documents not retained in the
ordinary course of business; GC 534090 et
seq.

Hospital maintains records; GC $34090 et seq.

3 years is required for animal care / treatment
records; FA $32003(e), PC $597.1(d);GC
534090 et seq.

GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

Department Preference (Dealers are required
to keep for 3 years); Non-records used for
investigations; Originals entered into the State
Automated Property System; most agencies
retain for 2 years; B&P S21633; GC 534090

>rmed bv file folder.

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD -9 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 193

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Property &
Evidence

Police /
Records

Police /
Operation

S

POilCe /
Operation

q

ruilue /

Operation

Retentlons beqin when the act is completed. and implv a full file folder b.q. last document + 2 veard. since destruction is normallv per
lf the recorc

Office of
Record
(oFR)

638

637

636

635

634

633

632

631

630

629

rs nof /is

Record
Series

No.

72

72

72

72

72

72

72

71

71

71

Div
No.

Property Tag Logs

Property Dispositions

Property Chain of Custody

Lost and Found ltems (Records of Disposal)

Gun and Narcotics Destruction Log
(Documents related to)

Forfeiture Notification

Crime Report Photos, Mug Shots

Traffic Control: Radar Trailer Surveys,
Special Event Action Plans, etc.

Traffic Control: Radar Calibration Records

Temporary Holding Facility Logs, Visitor
Logs, Operations Booking Log

Record Series Title

2years

2 years

2 years

2years

2 years

l4years

Follows the
Retention ol
the Crime

Reoort

when No
Longer

Required -

Minimum 2
vears

Life of the
Equipment

2 years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC & OD-+

yea+

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

GC 534090

Per Federal DOJ requirements (Equitable
Sharinq Guide): GC 534090

Department Preference; GC 534090

GC $34090 et seq.

Department preference; GC $34090 et seq

GC $34090 et seq.

)rmed bv file folder

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. OzOoz Gladwell covernmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 1O of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 194

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLIGE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (1 1). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Peliee i
Reee+ds

Peliee /
Reeerds

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Peliee /
Reeeds-
Admir+

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Peliee i
Reeerds

Finanee
P€li€e+

Reeerds

the record is not for Wide

when the act is and Iast document + 2 ,s

Office of
Record
(oFR)

646

#

644

643

ffi

642

641

64e

€9

Record
Series

No.

B

4

73

73

k

73

73

B

k

Div
No.

ERIME_REPORF$-

vatueexeeeas$f-ggg

Citations - Parking, Traffic, Marijuana,
Cannabiq / Transmittal Logs

Citation Log Books (#s / ranges) - Parking,
Traffic

Bi€yel€-R€gistrati€n i€en€es

Arson Registrations: Juveniles released
from California Youth Authority

Arson Registrations: Adults

+ta+m-C+l+ing

records act

Record Series Title

Sjea+s

2jears

2years

2 years

2jears

Age 25 or
Sealing
Date + 5

VCATS

Por
Deceased

21ear€

C€pies-
When Ne
tonge+

eequire+
s-y€ar€

Total
Retention

Yes

normal resumes after

Vital?

l*agrPfr

A4aS,+pr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

A4a#r

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

lgagr+pF

Uag;Pp+

Media
Options

sl$#t

s/t

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snan

Yes: After
QE

Yes: After
QC & Op+

yeaf€

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

Cll]'.1?

€W4090-etse+

GC $34090 et seq

GC 534090 et seq.

cc-s€4ege

Pursuant to PC 5457.1 et seq.; lf released from
CYA, records are destroyed after age 25 or
sealing pursuant to W&l $781; GC S34090.7

Department preference; Pursuant to PC

$457.1 et seq.; required to register for life; lf
released from CYA, records are destroyed
after age 25 or sealing pursuant to W&l 5781;
GC 534090.7

€€#4e9O

Description/Com ments / Reference

FOLSOM CA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 11 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 195

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

when the act is and a full file folder +
the

Office of
Record
(oFR)

650

649

648

647

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

73

73

73

73

GRIME REPORTS

Misdemeanor - Adult Marijuana I
Cannabis - H&S Sl 1357(b)(c)(d)(e) or H&S

511360(b) (with procedure in H&S S11361.51
- Except those with outstanding stolen
Dropertv, includinq firearms, or lost firearms

CRIME REPORTS

Child Abuse or Neglect lnvestigation Reports
- Unsubstantiated or lnconclusive

CRIME REPORTS / INCIDENT REPORTS:

Ghild Abuse or Severe Neglect
(Substantiated)

CRIME REPORTS:

ALL, Except lmaged Reports, or Gapital
Grimes, Homicide, Juvenile, Child Abuse
(substantiated), Elder Abuse
(substantiated), & Sexual Assault (Rape),
Suicide, and those specifically mentioned
in the schedule

CRIME REPORTS

Lost Property: Firearms entered into
CLETS (if not Permanent Retention)

records act audits and/or normal

Record Series Title

Conviction
or Arrest (lf

No
Conviction)
+ 2 years

No Further
Report on
Suspected

Abuser + 1C

vears

Date of
lncident +

1 0 vears,
lf No

Subseouenl
Reoorts

5 years

Until Found
or

Recovered
P

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Yes

Yes

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq, Mfr,

OD. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

file folder.

Media
Options

SiMiI

S/M/I

S/M/I

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scrn

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC &OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oe'd"

(Courts and other Agencies "Shall" destroy);
H&SS 1 1361.5 et seq.

Pc SS1 1 169(c),1 1 170(a)(3)

PC $Q1 1 169(i); '1 1 170(a): GC $34090

Department Preference; Provided there are no
outstanding warrants, unrecovered identifiable
items, criminal deaths, they are not historically
significant, and it is not classified under PC

5800 & 290 and H&S 511850; Stat. of Limit. is
2 yrs; Destroy juvenile marijuana after age18;
H&S S11361.5, GC 534090, PC 5802, PC

SS187, 800 et seq.

@;cc534090,
€8€k)r+8-1kt)

rn resumes after settlement or comoletion)

Description/Com ments / Reference

FOLSOM CA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 12of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 196

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Peliee /
ReeeCs

Police /
Records

Peliee /
Reeeds

Police /
Records

act audits and/or

the record is not Wide Standards

the act is and a full file + since destruction is

Office of
Record
(oFR)

656

655

654

653

w

651

Record
Series

No.

73

73

re

73

73

73

Div
No.

CRIME REPORTS:

Sealed Juvenile and Ward Cases - Except

those with outstanding stolen property,
includinq firearms, or lost firearms

CRIME REPORTS

Misdemeanor Marijuana $1 1357(e) -
Juvenile on School Grounds during
School Hours (with orocedure in H&S

CRIME REPERTS:

ffi

ien-

Res+raiainq€fd€rs

CRIME REPORTS:

Missing Persons

CRIME REPERTS:

Miens

+lse€ee-Mariit+ana

CRIME REPORTS:

Misdemeanor - Juvenile Marijuana i
Cannabis - H&S Sl 1357(E) - Except those
with outstanding stolen property, including
firearms, or lost firearms

Record Series Title

Sealing
Date + 5
years (or

Court
Order)

Offender is
18 Years

otd

+yea+s

Found /
Recovered
+ 2 years

S1ea+s

2 years or
Juvenile 18
years old

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Yes+
Befere-

Sisfosi+ien

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Y€€+
Befere-

Siseosi+ien

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

laagrPfr

Mag, Ppr

l+agt+pr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

SiMiI

S/M/I

sl$#l

S/M/I

slA#r-

S/M/I

resumes after

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
OC&OD

Yes: After
8C@

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
e€-@

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

Statute of Limitations runs up to age of majority
+ 8 years; sealed records for juveniles and
wards of the Court must be destroyed 5 years

after sealing date; CCP SS340.1, GC 534090;
W&l QQ389(a), 781(d)

(Courts and other Agencies "Shall" destroy);
H&SS 1 1361.5 et seq., 1 1357(e)

Department Preference; GC 534090

lf no subsequent conviction ("Shall" Destroy);
H&S 511361.5

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 13of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 197

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions:Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police i
Records

refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is last document + 2 stnce file folder.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

662

679

661

660

659

658

657

records act audits

Record
Series

No.

73

73

73

73

73

73

73

Div
No.

LiveScan Applications / Fingerprint
Applications

Lists and logs
. NCIC Validations / DOJ Validation lists
* Wanted Person printout logs from

Sacramento County Repository
* Background checks (local) for outside

agencies

Guns: Dealers Record of Sale (DROS)

Field lnvestigation Cards (Fls)

Crime Statistics / Uniform Crime Reports
(UCR) - Summaries (BCS)

CRIME REPORTS / INCIDENT REPORTS:

Vacatur Relief Granted bv Court - Victim
of Human Traffickinq (Nonviolent Crimes)

CRIME REPORTS:

Factually lnnocent Petition Accepted
Records Sealed Pending Destruction -
Except those with outstanding stolen
propertv, includinq firearms, or lost firearms

CRIME REPORTS

Capital Crimes / Serious Felonies / Major
Grimes / Sex Crimes - Capital Crimes
(Crimes Subject to the Death Penalty), Sex
Crimes (PC 5288, 290) linchrdes hrrt is nof

limited to substantiated or conclusive reports
of child abuse or serious neglect, elder
abuse. and rape)

Record Series Title

2 years

2 years

2 years

After Entry
into RMS

2 years

+ within 1

vear

Court Order

Date of
Arrest + 3

years

P

Total
Retention

Yes:
Before

Disposition

Yes

retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq. Mfr,
OD. Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Media
Options

S/M/I

S/M/I

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC &OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

GC$ 34090 et seq.

GC 534090, CC 1786.10
+J l TCounty is office of record for wanted
person logs

GC 534090

Preliminary documents; GC $34090 et seq.

Department preference; GC 534090

lndividual petitions Court ("Shall" Destroy): GC

Q34090: PC 5$236.14(k): 236.1 5(k)

lndividual petitions District Attorney; Sheriff
concurs that person is factually innocent, then
seals record ("Shall" Destroy); GC $34090; PC

$851.8(a)

Department Preference; DOJ retains CACI
(Child Abuse Central lndex) informaiion for
adults 100 vears: others have no limitations on
commencement of action; Courts keep
permanently PC SS 261, 286,288,288(a),
288.5, 289, 289.5,290,799, 803(h), 11169 et
seq.: 11170(a). W&C 707(b)

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 14 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 198

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (1 '1), Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Records

Police i
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Court

Peliee /
ReeerCs

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

records act

Office of
Record
(oFR)

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper after
Descri ption/Gomments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &

refer to the Retention for Standards

Retentions when the act last document + 2 since destruction is

669

668

667

050

666

665

664

663

73

73

73

73

73

re

73

73

Sex Offender Registrations: Juveniles

Sex Offender Registrations: Adults

RMS Database

Records Destruction and Storage Lists /
Certificates of Records Destruction - Police
Records only

(contains privileged information)

Order after Hearing (Restraining Order,
Emergency Protective Orders (EPO),
Temporary Restraining Order (TRO))

LiveScan Responses or Logs (CORI

Responses) for Sworn_Peace Officers and
Volunteers

(Human Resources keeps all employee
resoonses)

LiveScan Responses or Logs (CORI

Responses) for Business Licensees,
Emplovees of Citv contractors. (e.9. Adult
Related Businesses)

P or Sealing
Date + 5
years (or

Court
Order) or
Deceased

Por
Deceased

lndefinite

1 0 vears P

Life of the
Order

Sjea{€

50 years

2 years

Yes

normal retention

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Mfr,

OD, Ppr

Mag

Uag,+q+,
O+,-Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

S/I

s++

Yes: After
QC & Op+

Yeafs

Yes: After
QC & OD+

yeaFs

Yes: After5
yeafs

Pursuant to PC $290 et seq.; W&l 5781

Department Preference; Pursuant to PC $290
et seq.

Data Fields / Records are interrelated; GC

s34090

Department Preference; GC $34090 et. seq

Court records - originals retained by the Court;
GC $34090 et seq.

@ie+-+s-
e+se+.r+g+Sa1€9ata)'

Deparlment Preference to cover the possible
length of employment of any employee or
volunteer (DOJ allows retention for legitimate
business needs); must be maintained in a
secure and confidential file; DOJ lnformation
Bulletin No.02-17-BCll;GC$ 34090 et seq.

Department Preference (DOJ allows retention
for legitimate business needs); must be
maintained in a secure and confidential file;
DOJ lnformation Bulletin No. 02-17-BCll; GC$
34090 et seq.

FOLSOM GA ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 15ol 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 199

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLIGE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

Police /
Training

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Police /
Records

Retentions
lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record
(oFR)

677

676

675

674

673

672

671

670

full file last document + 2 since destruction is file

Record
Series

No.

74

73

73

73

73

73

73

73

Div
No.

Personnel Training File - Officer Training -
BY EMPLOYEE (lncludes POST printouts)

lncludes Retiree Fire Arson Qualifications

Weapons Database / Department Weapons

Warrants (Served)

Video Recordings - lnterview Room, etc.

Traffic Collisions / Accident Reports (No
lnjuries)

Traffic Collisions / Accident Reports -
lniuries, no fatalities

Traffic Collisions / Accident Reports -
Fatalities

Subpoenas (all)

STOP Source Data, Audit Loq / Racial and
ldentitv Profilinq Act (RIPA) Annual Report

Record Series Title

Separation
+ 10 years

lndefinite

2 years

'l years

5 years

5 years

P

2 years

3 vears

Total
Retention

Yes

Vital?

74

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Media
Options

S/M/I

S/M/I

S/M/I

resumes after seftlement or

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Snan

Yes: After
oc&op

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

OC'.1?

Department preference; Rosters are sent to
POST; OSHA requires safety training 5 years;
EEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years for
promotion, demotion, transfer, selection, or
discharge; State Law requires 2 -3 years; ; 8

CCR 53203 et seq., I CCR 14300.33(a); 29
cFR 1627.3(bX2),29 CFR 1904.33,29 CFR
1904.44; LC $6429(c); Gc SS12946, 12960,
34090, 53235.2(b). 53237.2(b)

Data Fields / Records are interrelated; GC
s34090

GC S34o9o

Records regular and ongoing operations; GC

S34090.6(a)

Department Preference to be consistent with
CHP requirements (Fatal collisions are
retained by CHP for 5 years); GC 534090

Department Preference (Fatal collisions are
retained by CHP for 5 years); GC 534090

Department Preference (Fatal collisions are
retained by CHP for 5 years); GC 534090

GC 534090

11 CCR 999.228: 11 CCR 999.229; GC
834090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 16 of 17

Updated: 711212022

Page 200

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: POLICE
Divisions: Admin.(68), Animal Control (11). Dispatch (69), lnvestig. (70), Operations (71), Property Evid. (72),

Records (73), Training (74)

e*Vele*

Lead
Dept.

records act

to the Retention for Wide Standards
when the last document + 2 srnce file folder.

Office of
Record
(oFR)

0€5

064

Record
Series

No.

74

74

Div
No.

iee-
er+ire-Sepa*m€n+s)

Training - Department Training Records -
COURSE RECORDS

(Attendance Rosters, Outlines and Materials:
includes Use of Force training, safety
training, etc.)

Record Series Title

Seng+e-ei*V
C+erk

When Ne
te€g€F

eeg$Fed--
Minimum 7

years

Total
Retention

normal retention or

Vital?

l+ag-,+,#r-
effiF

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Ves+4*er
ec-€-e+

When
lnaetive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

oc'd?

by empleyees eutside the CiV; See Gity Clerk

@

Rosters are sent to POST; S+a+ewide-

@;Calif.Labor
Division is required to keep their records 7
years; OSHA requires safety training 5 years;

EEOCiFLSA/ADEA (Age) requires 3 years for
promotion, demotion, transfer, selection, or
discharge; State Law requires 2 -3 years;29
CFR 1627.3(bxii), 8 CCR S3204(dX1) et seq.,
GC SS12946, 12960. 34090

Description/Gom ments / Reference

FOLSOM GA. OzoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission from GGS (909) 337-3516

Page PD - 17 of 17
Updated: 711212022

Page 201

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91). Solid Waste (92). Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering or
Parks &

Recreation

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering or
Parks &

Recreation

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

records act audits and/or normal retention resumes
Retentions beq
lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Standards

Office of
Record (OFR)

704

703

702

70'l

700

document + 2 since destruction is b file folder.

Record
Series

No.

78

78

78

78

78

Div
No.

Engineering Studies / Surveys - Preliminary
Studies / Project Assessments (Not Acquired
or Developed)

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) / Jobs
Permanent File

Plans, Specifications, BidsiRFPs, Successful
Proposal, Change Orders, Materials Testing
Reports, Grading Permits, Hazardous
Materials Plans, Notice of Completion,
Construction Manager's Logs, Photos, Soils
Reports, Studies, Submittals, Surveys, etc.

Capital lmprovement Projects (ClP) / Jobs:
Administration File

Project Administration, Certified Payrolls,
lnspections, Project Schedules, Progress
meetings, Real Estate Appraisals, etc.

Aerial Maps / Photographs - Analog or Digital

Abandonments / Vacations (Streets) -
Gapital lmprovement Projecis / City-owned
Property

Record Series Title

t€ng€F
neguired-

Minimum 10

vears

P

Completion +
1 0 years or

After Funding
Agency Audit,

if required,
whichever is

longer

P

P

Total
Retention

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes (all)

Vital?

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Media
Options

s/r

s/t

s/t

s/l

S

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD
+Raetive

Yes: After
oc&oD
lJear

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-year

Yes: After
QC&OD

4-yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD
2+eafs

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC',d?

Department Preference; GC 534090

All permanent project files are maintained in
Engineering no matter what department was
involved in the project; retained for disaster
preparedness purposes (City Clerk does not
maintain Plans, Materials Testing Reports,
etc.) @ee-
Permanent fer lnfrastrueture plans; GC

s34090

Some grant funding agencies require audits;
Statute of Limitations for Errors & Omissions
is 10 years; Published Audit Standards=4-7
years; Statute of Limitations: Contracts &
Spec's=4 years, Wrongful Death=comp. + 5
years, Developers=comp. + 10 years;

Statewide guidelines prepese terminatien +

SJearsi CCP $$336(a), 337 et. seq., GC

s34090

Department Preference (l nformation
Systems maintains digital aerials); GC

s34090

GC 534090 et seq.

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page PW - 1 o'f 11

Updated: 812712022

Page 202

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91), Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Admin &

Enqineerinq

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Office of
Record (OFR)

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Enqineerinq

707

706

705

Record
Series

No.

059

78

78

Div
No.

78

78

when the act is a fulland

Maps, Plans and Drawings (Final Maps,
Parcel Maps, Record of Survey, Right of Way,
Tract Maps, "As-Builts", Record Drawings,
etc.)

Geotechnical Reports

Engineering Studies / Surveys (City Built
Projects)

Record Series Title

Special Projects / Studies / lssues

Private Development / Land Development :

Administration File / Construction
lnspection
Construction lnspections. Correspondence.
Dailv Loos. lnsoector's Records. Photos. etc.

Private Development / Land Development:
Permanent Files
Certificate of Acceptance / Approval (copy).
Dedications. Abandonments. Drainaqe.
Drivewav. Private Lab Verifications, Testinq
Lab Final Reports. Studies, Reports,
Geotechnical and Soil Reports / Hvdroloqv
Reports, etc.

last

P

P

P

Total
Retention

tongeF
negu+Fe+-

Minimum 10

VEATS

10 vears
Comoletion +

P

Vital?

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes: Until
Completed

Yes (all)

Mag Ppr

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Media
Options

Mag

Ppr
Mfr OD

Maq,
Mfr. OD.

Ppr

Maq,
Mfr. OD,

epr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

s/l

s/t

S

s/t

S

audits and/or normal retention after settlement or

Yes: After
QC&OD

+ye€+

Yes: After
QC&OD
+Faetive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Yes: After
QC&OD
++Vea+s

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

Description/Gomments / Reference

Department preference: retained for disaster
preparedness purposes: GC Q34090

Drafts should be destroyed; Some maps are
also retained by Planning; Selected maps
are retained in Public Works for
administrative purposes; GC 534090,
34090.7

Department Preference; GC $34090 et seq

Department Preference; GC S34090

destruction is+ b file
the refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

Department preference; GC 534090

is 10 vears: Statute of Limitations: Contracts
& Spec's=4 vears. Wronqful Death=como. +
5 years, Developers=comp. + '10 years: CCP

Q337 et. seq., GC Q34090

Statrrte of I imitations for Errors & Omissions

FOLSOM, GA. OzOOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page PW -2of 11

Updated: 812712022

Page 203

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91), Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Fleet Manage.

Publie Werks i
Sfee++qanae€=

Lead Dept.

Public Works /
Fleet Manage.

Lead Depart.
Publie Werks /
E+ee+++anace,

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

Public Works /
Admin &

Engineering

records act audits

the record is not listed refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is

Record Div

office of , series No'

Record (oFR)j No' 
I

715

714

713

712

711

710

709

708

79

79

79

79

79

78

78

78

Vehicle & Equipment History Files

Usea-O++ispes+

Pressure Vessel Certifications or Permits (Air
Compressors, Propane, etc.)

Fueling (meter readings, consumption
reports)

AQMD Permits (Generators, etc.)

Traffic Studies lTraffic Counts / Schools /
Traffic Calming Requests

Traffic Speed Surveys

Survey Books / Field Notebooks

Record Series Title

Disposal of
Vehicle or

Equipment +
2 years

3-years

Expiration of
Certificate or

Permit

5 years

5 ?years

t€€geF
eequiree-

Minimum 10
vears

1O€ years

P

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

MaCPp+

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

S

S

resumes after settlement or

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

1-yea+

Yes: After
QC&OD
+s.ye€fs

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Department preference; lf a motor carrier,
required for 18 months after vehicle is sold;
CHP requires life of vehicle; OSHA requires
1 year;8 ccR S 3203(b)(1); a9 CFR
3e6.21(bX1); 4e cFR 3e6.3(c); ccP 5337
et. seq., 13 CCR 1Xa$); GC 534090

@
ffi

Department preference; GC 534090 et. seq.

Consistent with Accounts Payable; s{a{ewide

1@Gc
s34090

40 CFR 70.6; Depa*men{pre{e+ene+GC
s34090

Department preference, GC 534090

Department preference (required every 5
years); GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Description/Com ments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell covernmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PagePW-3of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 204

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions: Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91). Solid Waste (92). Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works
utilities /

Hazardous
Material

Public Works
{Jtili{ies /

Hazardous
Material

Public Works
Utilities /

Hazardous
Material

Public Works
U{ilities / Solid

Waste or
Hazardous

Material

Public Works
u+ilities /

Hazardous
Material

Public Works /
Fleet Manaqe.

Public Works i
Fleet Manage.

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Office of
Record (OFR)

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Descri ption/Comments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QC'd?

is not listed refer to the for Wide Standards

when the act is a full file folder last document + 2 destruction is file folder.

records act audits normal retention resumes after settlement or

813

812

81'l

810

809

717

716

91

91

91

91

91

79

79

Household Hazardous Waste Collection
Facility - Spills or Chemical Exposures

Household Hazardous Waste Collection
Facility - Permit, Operating Plans, Waste
Analysis Plan, Contingency plan, etc.

Employee Training Records (Haz Mat
Employees)

Disposal Receipts / Manifests -- Hazardous
Waste

Accounts Receivable / Checks for Grants for
Disposable Recyclable Hazardous Waste,
including Electronic Waste

Vehicles-@
Disoosal at Auctions / Sales

Vehicle Titles ("Pink Slips")

P

P

Separation +

3 years

30 years

Audit + 5
years

2 years

Sale or
Disposal

Yes

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Ppr

S

s/r

S

s/l

S

Yes: After
QC&OD

lfi€€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

l€a€+ive

Yes: After
QC&OD

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
lfia€tive

Department Preference to comply with
Permit requirements; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference to comply with
Permit requirements; GC $34090 et seq.

Department Preference to comply with
permit requirements; GC SS12946, 12960.
34090

Department Preference; Consistent with

statute of limitations for employee exposure
to hazardous materials (test results for
hazardous waste generators are required for
3 years); I CCR S3204(dX1) et seq., 8 CCR
5144.8 CCR 15400.2:29 CFR
1 e1 0.1 020(dx1 xi), Gc ss1 2946, 12960,
34090; 22 CCR I 66262.40

Department Preference; GC 534090; 14

ccR 18660.8(d)

GC S 34090

Given to Auction House / New Owner; GC

s34090

FOLSOM, GA. OZOoz Gladwell Govemmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page PW -4of 11

Updated: 812712022

Page 205

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SGHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91). Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works
Utitities / Solid

Waste

Public Works
Utilities / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U+il.ities / Solid

Waste

Public Works /
Hazardous

Material
Fleet Manaee,

Public Works
Utilities /

Hazardous
Material

Public Works
Utili{ies i

Hazardous
Material

HOLDS: Litiqa

when the act is and a

lf the record is not listed here. refer to the Retention for Citv-Wide Slandards

Office of
Record (OFR)

818

817

816

714

815

814

)n, comp

Record
Series

No.

92

92

92

7S

91

9't

aints. c

Div
No.

Contract Administration: Green waste,
etc.

Contaminated Sites

AB 939 Compliance / SB 1383 Compliance
(Orqanic Waste Collection and Recvclinq)

Used Oil Disposal

Recycling Events

lnvestigations into Environmental
Contamination (Hazardous Materials)

act audits and/or normal retention or

Record Series Title

Completion +

5 years

P

10 years

3 years

t€nge+
nequireg--
Minimum 2

vears

P

rcument + 2 veard. since destruction is normallv performed bv file folder

Total
Retention

Yes (before
completion)

Vital?

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag
Mfr OD

Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr, OD,

Ppr

Media
Options

s/t

s/t

sir

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

AfreF
C€mp+etien

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
fic€€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

When
+nae+ive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Statute of limitations is 4 years for contracts;
Errors and Omissions does not apply;

Vears ter nen-eapita
ien-

@ccP
SS337. 337.1 (a), 337.15, 343; GC 534090

Department preference; GC $34090 et seq

Department preference; SB 1383
compliance is required for 5 years: 14 CCR

$ 18995.2: GC 534090

22 cCR 66266.1 30(c)(5), H&S

525250.1 8(b), 25250.19(a)(3) et seq.

Department preference; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Description/Comments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA, ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PagePW-5of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 206

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIG WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (9'1). Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works
U{il.i{ies / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U{ilities / Solid

Waste

Public Works
Utili*ies / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U+itkies / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U{ilitires / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U{ilities / Solid

Waste

Public Works
U{itiiies / Solid

Waste or
Hazardous

Material

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or
when the act is full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is file folder.

the record is not listed refer to the Retention

Office of
Record (OFR)

825

824

823

822

821

820

819

Record
Series

No.

92

92

92

92

92

92

92

Div
No.

Recycling Facility / PIA / CERF

Quarterly Monitoring Reports

Landfill Monitoring (Groundwater, Methane,
etc.)

lntegrated Waste Reports / Daily Records /
Weight Records / Hazardous Material
Screening i Tonnage Report

DMV Pull Notices (Solid Waste Employees
Only)

Disposal Receipts / Manifests - Non-
Hazardous Waste

Disposal Receipts -- Hazardous Waste /
Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)

Record Series Title

5 years

Superseded

P

lO-&years

When
Superseded

or
Upon

Separation

3 years

3 3e years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr oD,

Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD,

Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag,
Mfr OD

Ppr

Media
Options

s/l

s/l

sir

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD

tna€tive

Yes: After
QC&OD

N€

Yes: After
QC&OD

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Department Preference, GC 534090

Reports are cumulative and are considered
a draft when the new one is produced; GC

534090 et seq.

Department preference; GG $34090 et seq

Department preference (becomes part of
waste stream); GC 534090 et seq.

Department preference: Transitory or source
records not retained in the ordinary course ol
business; CHP audits every 2 years; GC

s34090

Department Preference; Solid Waste
Transfer / Processing is 3 years; Non-
hazardous Ash Disposal is 5 years; 14 CCR
17379(a);14 CcR 18660.8(d); 14 ccR
17414(b); GC 534090 et. seq.

14 CCR 18812.4. GC 634090 ei. seo.

@W

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. OZoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PagePW-6of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 207

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions: Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91). Solid Waste (92). Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Stormwater

Public Works /
Stormwater

Public Works
Uti{ities / Solid 830 92

Waste Management Plans (Recycling of
construction materials during building of 5 years Mag, Ppr Department Preference; GC 534090

Public Works
Utilities / Solid

Waste

Public Works
Utilities / Solid

Waste or
Hazardous

Material

Public Works
U{ilities / Solid

Waste or
Hazardous

Material

Public Works
U{ilities / Solid

Waste

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy
Office of

Record (OFR)
Record Series Title

Total
Retention

Vital?
Media

Options
l=lmport Paper

Description/Comments / Reference
M=Mfr lmaged &

S=Scan QC'd?

refer to the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and + since destruction is

records act normal retention resurnes or

719

718

829

828

827

826

80

80

92

92

92

92

NPDES Permits - Stormwater

NPDES Monitoring Reports

Waste Hauler Permits

Roll-off Contracts (Contracts to provide roll-
offs for construction sites)

Solid Waste Management Databases:
Residential service orders and bulkv waste
aooointments. Commercial service orders.
recvclinq compliance. and customer history.
Hauling records. Roll-off / Debris Box, etc.
Satabase{Ae€ess)

Reports to Regulatory Agencies (CalRecvcle

Bear4 etc.)

Expiration + 7

years

7 years

Expiration + 2

years

Completion +

5 years

lndefinite

10 years

Yes: Until
Expiration

Yes: Until
Completion

Yes

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag
Mfr, OD

Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

s/r
Yes: After
QC&OD

lfia€*ive

Department Preference; Monitoring records
required for 3 years; 40 CFR SS122.21,
1 22.41 . I 22.44; C€P{337-e++e+'., Gq
834090

Department preference to comply with
RWQD's NPDES order; Monitoring records
required for 3 years in Federal law; 40 CFR

SS122.21, 122.41, 122.44: GC Q34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

The statute of limitation for errors and
omissions is not applicable; Statewide-

@

@;CCP$$336(a),
337 et. seq., GC 534090

Data Fields / Records are interrelated; GC

s34090

Department Preference; GC 534090

FOLSOM, CA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

Page PW -7 of 11

Updated: 812712022

Page 208

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material(91), Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Depart.
Providing

Service / Work

Depart.
Providing

Service / Work

Depart.
Providing

Service / Work

Public Works /
Streets

STREETS (81)

Public Works /
Stormwater

Public Works /
Stormwater

to the Retention for
when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 since destruction is

records act audits and/or in normal retention or

Office of
Record (OFR)

727

726

725

724

723

722

721

720

Record
Series

No.

82

82

81

81

81

81

80

80

Div
No.

Gustomer Comments

Audits & Bit lnspections (CHP Commercial
Vehicle lnspection): DMV & CHP

T {82} Note: Was Transferred to Reoional

Work Orders / Service Requests - NOT
entered in CMMS Database (or partial

information entered into CMMS Database)

(Division providing service retains originals;
Division requesting service is considered a
coov)

Work Orders / Service Requests - All
lnformation Entered in GMMS Database

Work Orders / Service Requests CMMS
DATABASE (Computerized Maintenance
Management System)

lnspection Logs: Sidewalks, Streets, etc.

Stormwater Annual Reports

Stormwater Program: Unauthorized
Discharges / Violations

Record Series Title

2 years

5 years

5 years

When No
Longer

Required

lndefinite

10 years

3 years

Resolution +

3 years

Total
Retention

S

Vital?

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Mag, Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Yes: After
QC&OD
lfi€€tive

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

GC S 34090

Department Preference; Consistent with
CHP requirements; OSHA-r€quir€sl+eafi+

49 CFR 396.11
et seq.: GC 534090

City preference; CCP $$338 et seq., 340 et
seq., 342, G€{594+GC S34090

Preliminary drafts (the database is the
original); GC S34090

Data is interrelated; GC 534090

Department preference; GC 534090

Department preference; Monitoring records
required for 3 years; 40 CFR SS122.21,
122.41: 122.44: GC Q34090

Department preference; NPDES records are
required for 3 years; 40 CFR 122.a1OQ);
122.44; GC 534090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, CA. OzoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved
Do not duplicate or distribute without prior written permission

PagePW-8of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 209

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91). Solid Waste (92). Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

the Retention for Wide Standards

when the act is and a full file folder last document + 2 s/nce file folder.

records act audits and/or resumes after settlement or

Office of
Record (OFR)

734

733

732

731

730

729

728

Record
Series

No.

82

82

82

82

82

82

82

Div
No.

Pre-Trip lnspections

Personnel Testing and Training Programs
(Attendance Rosters, Outlines and Materials
for Specialized Training)

Passenger Counts

Licenses & Permits

Guidelines: Federal, Local, State

Grants - FTA: Capital Equipment - Buses,
Computers

Dial-A-Ride Applications

Record Series Title

5 years

Separation +

7 years

5 years

Expiration + 2
vears

Superseded
+ 2 vears

After Fundinq
Aqencv Audit.

if required -
Minimum 5

years

5 years

Total
Retention

Vital?

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Media
Options

lmage:
l=lmport
M=Mfr

S=Scan

Destroy
Paper after
lmaged &

QC'd?

Consistent with CHP requirements; OSHA
requires 1 year; 8 Ca. Code Reg. $
3203(bX1); GC $34090; 13 GCR 1234(c):

CHP audits take place up to 5 years;

@
g+id€lin€siEEOC/FLSA/ADEA (Age)
requires 3 years for promotion, demotion,
transfer, selection, or discharge; 29 CFR
1672.3(bxii), 8 CCR S3204(d)(1) et seq., GC

ss12946, 12960.34090

Department Preference; Consistent with
Accounts Receivable and Cash Receipts;
GC $34090

GC S34090

GC 534090

Department preference; Uniform Admin.
Requirements for Grants to Local
Governments is 3 years from expenditure
report or final payment of grantee or
subgrantee;@
years., 2 CFR 200.334: 7€FR
@;24CFR&EJ2,
91.105(h), 92.505, & 570.502(a), 28€FR
W 29 CFR 97.42; 40 CFR 31.42: 44
CFR 13.42: 45 CFR 92.42: OMB Circular A-
110 & A-133.320(9); GC $34090; GC

s8546.7

Meets municipal government auditing
standards; GC S 34090

Description/Gomments / Reference

FOLSOM, GA. OZoOz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

PagePW-9of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 210

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions: Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91), Solid Waste (92). Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works i
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works i
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

Public Works i
Transit

Public Works /
Transit

records act normal retention resurTres after settlement or

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy

Office of
Record (OFR)

Record Series Title
Total

Retention
Vital?

Media
Options

l=lmport Paper
Descri ption/Gomments / Reference

M=Mfr lmaged &
S=Scan QG'd?

lf the record ls nof /lsted to for Standards

the and a full file folder /asf + since destruction is file folder.

741

740

739

738

737

736

735 82

82

82

82

82

82

82

Triennial Reviews

Transportation Manaqement Svstem
Database

Transit Securitv Loqs

Terminal lnsoections

Surveys i Transfer Agreement Analysis
(Passengers transfer to another transit
system)

Surveyor Sheets / Random Counts

Special Event Transportation

Safety Check Lists

Route Service Adjustments (Blue Sheets) -
Missed Miles i Hours

Ridership Data, Daily Reports, DAR i Dial-a-
Ride Worksheets

Reports: Progress, State & Federal

5 years

Minimum 5
VCATS

2 vears

10 vears

2years

When No
Longer

Required

2 years

5 years

When No
Longer

Reouired

5 years

5 years

Mag Ppr

Maq, Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Maq, Por

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Maq. Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Mag Ppr

Consistent with other safety requirements;
GC S 34090

Department preference: GC QQ 34090

GC Q 34090

Department preference: GC Q 34090

GC S34090

Drafts / source records entered into
database and not retained in the ordinary
course of business; GC 534090

GC Q 34090

Consistent with CHP requirements; OSHA
requires 1 year; 8 Ca. Code Reg. $
3203(bXl ); GC 534090

Drafts i source records entered into
database and not retained in the ordinary
course of business; GC 534090

Consistent with Fare & Passenger Counts,
Accounts Receivable and Cash Receipts;
GC 534090

Consistent with CHP requirements; OSHA
requires 1 year; 8 Ca. Code Reg. $
3203(bXl ); Gc S340e0

FOLSOM, GA. Ozooz Gladwell Governmental services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

PagePW-10of11
Updated: 812712022

Page 211

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: PUBLIC WORKS
Divisions:Admin Engineering (78), Fleet Management (79), Hazardous Material (91), Solid Waste (92), Stormwater (80), Streets (81), Transit (82)

Public Works /
Transit

Pu
Transit

audits and/or normal

Record
Series

No.

Div
No.

lmage: Destroy
Office of

Record (OFR)
Record Series Title

Total
Retention

Vital?
Media

Options
l=lmport Paper after

Description/Comments / Reference
M=Mfr lmaged &

S=Scan QG'd?

record refer to the Retention for
when the act is and a +2 since destruction is file folder,

Videotapes of Vehicle Operations

Vehicle & Equipment Historv Files (Transit

Vehicles ONLY)

When No
Lonqer

Reouired

Disposal of
Vehicle + 2

VEATS

Maq. Ppr

Maq, Ppr

resumes after settlement or

Preliminarv drafts not retained in the
ordinarv course of business; (Records public

activities): GC Q 34090

Department preference; lf a motor
carrier. reouired for 18 months after
vehicle is sold: CHP requires life of
vehicle: OSHA reouires 1 vear: 8 CCR Q

3203(bX1): 49 CFR 396.21(bX1): 49
CFR 396.3(c): CCP $337 et. Seq.. 13

CCR 1234(fl: GC Q34090

FOLSOM, CA. OZooz Gladwell Governmental Services, lnc. (909) 337-3516 - all rights reserved

Do not duplicate or distribute without prior wriften permission

Page PW - 11 of 11

Updated: 812712022

Page 212

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



Attachment 3

Page 213

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



that:

RESOLUTION NO.8153

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE
FOR THE CITY OF FOLSOM AFID

RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO'S 6951 AllD 7743 (PREVIOUS RECORDS
RETENTTON SCHEDULES)

WHEREAS, the city desires to establish an orrderly and routine method of record

retention; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that certain city records are out of date or no longer
in use; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish procedures for the lawful, orderly and

efficient retention and destnrction of records,

NOw, THEREFORE, BE IT RBSOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

t. Records shall be retained for the time period specified in the "City of Folsom
Master Records Retention Schedule, October 2007";

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 34090, a city department head, with the

written consent of the City Manager or hiVtrer designee and the written consent of the City
Attorney or his/trer designee, may destroy any city record, document, instrument, book or paper,

under his/her chargg without making a copy thereof, after the same is no longer required and in
compliance with the "City of Folsom Master Records Retention Schedule, October 2007".

3. Except as otherwise provided in this resolution and pursuant to Government Code
Section 34090, this resolution does not authorize the destruction of:

(a) records affecting the title to real property or liens thereon;
(b) court records;
(c) records required to be kept by statute;
(d) records less than two years old;
(e) the minutes, ordinances, or resolutions of the legislative body or of a city

board or commission.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 34090.5, a city
department head or his/her designee may authorize the destruction of records which have been

imaged and stored as provided in Section 34090.5.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 34090.7, a city
department head or his/her designee may destroy duplicate records which are less than two years

old if they are no longer required.

Resolution No. 8153
Page I of2

Page 214

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



6. Prior to the destruction of any material pursuant to this resolution, the department

head of the department generating the records or his/her designee shall examine the records to

determine if the records contain anything of historical interest or value. If the department h€ad

deems the records to be of historic interest or value, the material shall be maintained in a safe

and secure manner as directed by the City Clerk; utd

7. Resolution No's.6951 and7743 are hereby rescinded'

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 9th day of October 2007, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Council Member(s): King, Miklos, Starsky, Howell, Morin

NOES: Council Member(s): None

ABSENT: Council Membe(s): None

ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): None

-r
J. Morin, MA

AfiEST:

Oqrsr-.-;ScXn ftf
Christa Schmidt, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 8153
Ptge? of2

Page 215

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



This page intentiono.lly left blCInk
to facilitote double- sided printing .

CIT Y OF

FOLS()l\{
DI3'INCTIVE gY NATURE

Page 216

12/13/2022 Item No.5.



ir ' ; ii iill ,:., r|i
,, lrri:t:ri 5. !Jtr ii

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No.l095l - A Resolution

Accepting Fiscal Year 2021-22 Enhancing Law Enforcement Activities Growth Special

Account, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for the Purchase of Technology and

Equipment to Improve Police Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and

Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGRO / ISST]8,

In fiscal year 1996197 the State of California first enacted the Citizen's Option for Public Safety

(COPS) program under Assembly BilI3229. Under this program, cities and counties receive

state funds to augment front-line police services. The City of Folsom Growth grant award for
FY 2021-22 is estimated at$82,297.24.

Government Code Section 30061 requires that these funds shall be appropriated pursuant to a

request from the Police Chief or the Chief Administrator of the law enforcement agency that

provides police services for the respective city. The request for use of this funding shall speciff
the front-line law enforcement needs of the requesting entity including the personnel,

equipment, and programs that are necessary to meet those needs.

MEETING DATE: r211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10951 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year

2021-22 Enhancing Law Enforcement Activities Growth Special

Account, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for
the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police

Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and

Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Police Department

1

Page 217

12/13/2022 Item No.6.



POLICY / RULE
The Citizen's Option for Public Safety program is an on-going state program, but it requires a

separate budget appropriation for continued funding. The funds must be used to supplement

and not supplant existing local funding for law enforcement services.

ANALYSIS
tlo Enhuttcing Law Enforcement Activities Growth Special Account, Citizen's Option for
Public Safety (COPS) Funds cannot be used for administrative overhead allocations in excess

of 0.5 percent, nor can the allocation be used to fund the costs of any capital project or

construction project that does not directly support front-line law enforcement services.

The City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Department are committed to utilizing technology

to identiff and deter criminals. The Folsom Police Department is also committed to acquiring

and updating equipment in the department in order to provide services to the public as well as

to be as efficient with staff time as possible.

The Chief of Police requests approval to utilize A83229 Citizen's Option for Public Safety

state growth funds in the amount of $82,297.24 for the purchase of technology and equipment

to improve police operations.

IMPACT
There aro no matching requirements for the A83229 funds and no direct impact on the General

Fund. Because Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funds are required to be separately

appropriated, staff is also requesting an appropriation of $82,297 .24 to be added to the police

department budget as COPS funding installments for fiscal year202ll22 are received from the

County of Sacramento Department of Finance. The additional appropriation will be applied

the fiscal year 2022123 budget in the Police Department in the General Fund (Fund 010).

ATTACHMENTS
Resolution No. 10951 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 202112022 Enhancing Law
Enforcement Activities Growth Special Account, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS)

Grant for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police Operations in
Accordance with State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Richard Hillman, Chief of Police

2 Page 218

12/13/2022 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10951

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FISCAL YEAR 202I.22 ENHANCING LAW
ENF'ORCEMENT ACTIVITIES GROWTH SPECIAL ACCOUNT, CITIZEN'S OPTION

FOR PUBLIC SAF'ETY (COPS) GRANT F'OR THE PURCHASE OF'TECHNOLOGY
AND EQUIPMENT TO IMPROVE POLICE OPERATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH

STATE REQUIREMENTS AND APPROPRIATION OF' F'UNDS

WHEREAS, the State of California enacted the Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS)

program, under Assembly Bill 3229,to fund front-line law enforcement services; and

WHEREAS, the COPS Growth funding available to the City of Folsom for fiscal year 2022-23

is $82,297.24; and

WHEREAS, these state funds are separate and apart from the proposed allocations from the

City's general fund and an additional appropriation is needed; and

WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has requested to allocate and appropriate these funds for the

purchase of technology and equipment to improve police operations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby authorizes the use of the A83229, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) state funding in

accordance with the request of the Chief of Police to purchase technology and equipment to improve

police operations.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT FITRTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized

to appropriate an additional $82,297.24 as expenditures and as intergovernmental revenue in the General

Fund (Fund 010) to the Police Department budget in fiscal yeat 2022123.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l3th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No.l095l
Page I of I

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 219

12/13/2022 Item No.6.



This page intenti,onolly left blonk
to facilitote double-sided printing .

clfY oF

F(}LSOM
DISTINCTIVg IY NATURE

Page 220

12/13/2022 Item No.6.



(. :;irtt,!l a! !..ri::

Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: t21t312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10952 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year

2022-23, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for
the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police

Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and

Appropriation of Funds

F'ROM: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Strff t.""--""dr that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10952 - A Resolution

Accepting Fiscal Year 2022-23, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for the

Purchase-of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police Operations in Accordance with

State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

@StateofCaliforniafirstenactedtheCitizen'soptionforPub1icSafety
(COPS) program under Assembly Bill3229. Under this program, cities and counties receive

rtut. fundr io augment front-line police services. Grant awards are based on per capita

population, with $100,000 being the minimum guaranteed award. The City of Folsom grant

award for FY 2022-23 is estimated at $130,651.

Government Code Section 30061 requires that these funds shall be appropriated pursuant to a

request from the Police Chief or the Chief Administrator of the law enforcement agency that

provides police services for the respective city. The request for use ofthis funding shall speciff

ihe front-line law enforcement needs of the requesting entity including the personnel,

equipment, and programs that are necessary to meet those needs.

POLICY / RULE
Th" Cttt"*'r Optton for Public Safety program is an on-going state program, but it requires a

separate budget appropriation for continued funding. The funds must be used to supplement

and not supplant existing local funding for law enforcement services.

1

Page 221

12/13/2022 Item No.7.



ANALYSIS
Th" Citir*'s Option for Public Safety Funds cannot be used for administrative overhead

allocations in excess of 0.5 percent, nor can the allocation be used to fund the costs of any

capital project or construction project that does not directly support front-line law enforcement

services.

The City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Department are committed to utilizing technology

to identiS' and deter criminals. The Folsom Police Department is also committed to acquiring

and updating equipment in the department in order to provide services to the public as well as

to be as efficient with staff time as possible'

The Chief of Police requests approval to utilize A83229 Citizen's Option for Public Safety

statefundsintheamountof$l30,65l forthepurchaseoftechnologyandequipmenttoimprove
police operations.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
Ther" ate 

"" -"t"hing requirements for the A83229 funds and no direct impact on the General

Fund. Because COPS Funds are required to be separately appropriated, staff is also requesting

an appropriation of $130,651 to be added to the police department budget as COPS funding

installments for fiscal year 2022123 arc received from the County of Sacramento Department

of Finance. The additional appropriation will be applied to the Fiscal Year 2022123 Budget in
the Police Department in the General Fund (Fund 010).

ATTACHMENTS
Res"l"tio" Nol0g52 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 2022-23 Citizen's Option for
Public Safety (COPS) grant for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police

Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Richard Hillman, Chief of Police

2Page 222

12/13/2022 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10952

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 CITIZEN'S OPTION FOR
PUBLIC SAFETY (COPS) GRANT FOR THE PURCHASE OF TECHNOLOGY ANn

EQUIPMENT TO IMPROVE POLICE OPERATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
STATE REQUIREMENTS AND APPROPRIATION OF T'UNDS

WHEREAS' the State of California enacted the Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS)

program, under Assembly Bill 3229,to fund front-line law enforcement services; and

WHEREAS, the COPS funding available to the City of Folsom for fiscal year 2022-23 is

$130,651; and

WHEREAS, these state funds are separate and apart from the proposed allocations from the

City's general fund and an additional appropriation is needed; and

WHEREAS, the Chief of Police has requested to allocate and appropriate these funds for the

purchase of technology to improve police operations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby authorizes the use of the A83229, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) state funding in

accordance with the request of the Chief of Police to purchase technology and equipment to improve

police operations.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized

to appropriate an additional $130,651 as expenditures and as intergovernmental revenue inthe General

Fund (Fund 010) to the Police Department budget in fiscal year 2022-23.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10952

Page I of I Page 223

12/13/2022 Item No.7.



This page intentionally left blonk
to focilitate double-sided printtng .

CI?Y OF

FOLSOM
D'StINCTIVE IY XATUNE

Page 224

12/13/2022 Item No.7.



:f '..1 t, l .:ii,l i,'r''f
t...i!:,t.:rra t r, j,14, I

Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / COI]NCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10953 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Renewal of the Service Agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base

Platform, Dropcountr Business and the HOME+ Irrigation Module for Two Years.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In April 2014, the City executed Agreement No. 173-21 14-075 to begin working with
Dropcountr, Inc. to provide a digital platform to City of Folsom residents to support water

management initiatives. The software allows users access to their water use data, provides

notification of leaks, supports rebate programs and assists the City in its efforts in water

conservation education. In June 2018, the City executed Agreement No. 173-21 18-030,

extending the original service agreement for an additional three years through Jwrc 2021.ln
June 2020, the agreement was amended to include Dropcountr BUSINESS, a commercially
friendly feature set, to support Folsom's non-residential water customers.

In June z\zl,through Resolution 10652, the City Council authorized execution of a one year

agreement with DropCountr, Inc. for use of the continued use of the platform plus the addition
of the HOME+ Irigation module to help monitor water use associated with inigation. This

service agreement expired on June 30,2022.

I

MEETING DATE: t211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10953 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Renewal of the Service Agreement with
Dropcountr, Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform,
Dropcountr Business and the HOME+ Inigation Module for Two
Years

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 225

12/13/2022 Item No.8.



More than 4,000 City of Folsom water customers are registered to use the Dropcountr platform

and they have achieved an average TYoreduction in water use. The participation rate continues

to increase as the City grows and State regulations for water use associated with drought

mitigation and increased water use efficiency continue to be enforced.

Digital systems that support water management are part of a growing market, and new smart

water applications offering more flexibility and different features are being developed. The

Environmental and Water Resources Department wishes to continue providing the valuable

services of the Dropcountr platform to Folsom water customers, but also wants the flexibility
to take advantage of new technology in the future. The Department therefore recommends

renewing the service agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. for two years.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of theFolsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The Dropcountr platform provides customers with convenient access to their specific water

use data, either via an app or on the web. Dropcountr users are no longer limited to viewing
monthly water usage on bills, but instead can view their daily and hourly use data. Information
provided by Dropcountr enables customers to better understand data, monitor consumption

and take action to save water and reduce their monthly bills. In addition to rebate information
and water saving tips, users can receive notifications of burst or continuous flow leaks,

enabling much faster leak identification and resolution. This product supports the customer

service role of the Water Conservation division in its endeavors to assist customers conserve

water.

The current service agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. expired on June 30,2022. To continue

providing service to the City of Folsom, Dropcountr, Inc. requires that a subscription

agreement is signed. The proposed service agreement will support ongoing initiatives of the

City of Folsom, Environmental and Water Resources Department during aperiod of increasing

need for water management due to drought conditions and on-going State regulation. Two
payments of $63,000, one for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and one for Fiscal Year 2023-2024) will
ensure Folsom citizens have access to water use data, with enhanced features, for the remainder

of this fiscal year.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Renewal of the current service agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. costs $63,000 per year for the

next two years, for a total of $126,000. Sufficient funds have been budgeted in the Water

Operating Fund (Fund 520) for FY 2022-23 and will be included in the FY 2023-24 budget

process.

2 Page 226

12/13/2022 Item No.8.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The customer information system is not considered a project and therefore, is exempt from
environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality Act as noted in Chapter

2.5 - Definitions, Section 21065 - Project.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution 10953 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Renewal of the

Service Agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform,
Dropcountr Business and the HOME+ Irrigation Module for Two Years.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 227

12/13/2022 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10953

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
RENEWAL OF THE SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH DROPCOUNTR,INC. FOR USE
oF'THE DROPCOUNTR BASE PLATX'ORM, DROPCOUNTR BUSINESS AND THE

HOME+ IRRIGATION MODULE FOR TWO YEARS

WHEREAS, the Environmental and Water Resources Department currently utilizes
Dropcountr software to support water conservation initiatives; and

WHEREAS, the current service agreement expired at the end of June 2022; and

WHEREAS, current drought conditions mean that there are ongoing State regulations

associated with drought mitigation and increased water use efficiency; and

WHEREAS, the Environmental and Water Resources Department wishes to continue
providing the Dropcountr platform to Folsom water customers at a two year cost of $126,000;
and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) in FY 2022-23 will be included during theFY2023-24budgetprocess; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute a renewal of the Service Agreement with Dropcountr,

Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform, Dropcountr Business and the HOME+ Irrigation
Module for Two Years.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of December, 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10953
Page 1 of 1 Page 228

12/13/2022 Item No.8.



'i:i, :i'

::.,':l l i.'': i i:\'l
ii:'1r,:.:ii{ a: ilt,

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10954 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agieement with Peterson Brustad Inc. for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection

Systems Inspection Program.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) operates and maintains fourteen

large water storage tanks, each storing 1.2 million to 4 million gallons of potable water, three

small water tanks storing below 15,000 gallons each, and al3l acre foot open water reservoir.

As part of the City's routine maintenance schedules, regular inspection and maintenance

re*i""s are necessary that require specialty technical expertise and equipment'

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Peterson Brustad

Inc. for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program for a

not-to-exceed amount of $175,461.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of theFolsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

1

MEETING DATE: 1211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10954 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Peterson Brustad Inc.

for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems

Inspection Program

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 229

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



ANALYSIS

On August 3,2022, the City requested proposals from consultants for cleaning, structural

inspection, coating/lining inspection, cathodic protection systems inspections, and reporting

for various water storage sites throughout the City of Folsom over a five year period as part of
the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program. On August 26,

2022, EWR received proposals from Peterson Brustad Inc., Alisto Engineering Group, Water

Works Engineers, LLC, and CSI Services, Inc. On September 9,2022, EWR staff requested

additional information from the four proposers to provide sample reports from previous

projects including a structural assessment report, below ground cathodic protection inspection

ieport, and a water storage tank cathodic protection report. Peterson Brustad, Inc., Alisto
Engineering Group, and Water Works Engineers, LLC, provided the requested documentation

including a representative sample of a desktop structural inspection using field generated data.

CSI responded to the request for additional documents stating "Our decade long experience

with the City's tanks and their proper maintenance approaches indicates that this extensive

type oTanalysis is not required. However, should the City's intent be to complete this type of
formal analysis (desktop structural analysis), we respectfully withdraw our proposal".

Therefore, CSI's proposal was removed from consideration. Peterson Brustad Inc., Alisto

Engineering Group, and Water Works Engineers, LLC all provided desktop structural analyses

including prioritization schedules for any recommended or required repairs as part of the

submitted scope and fees.

The proposals were evaluated by three EWR staff members for technical evaluation prior to

reviewing project costs. The proposals were reviewed and scored for project understanding,

project team staffing, and recent relevant experience. The technical evaluations were scored as

shown in Table 1.

Table l: Consultant Technical Scores without Costs

After reviewing each proposal for project understanding, project team staffing, and recent

relevant project experience, the proposals were reviewed for project costs. The fee schedules

for the scope of work outlined in the request for proposal from each consultant are shown in

Table2.

Consultant Fee Amount
Peterson Brustad Inc. $175,461.00

Alisto Engineering Group s249,430.00

Water Works Engineers, LLC $376,887.71

CSI Services, Inc. N/A

2

Consultant EWR 1 EWR 2 EWR 3 Total Average

Peterson Brustad Inc 75 60 55 190 63.3

Alisto Engineering Group 75 48 54 t77 59.0

Water Works Engineers, LLC 74 65 67 206 68.7

CSI Services, Inc. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Page 230

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



Table 2: Consultant Proiect Costs

Peterson Brustad Inc. was determined to provide the best value to the City based on the fee

amount, past municipal project experience involving work of similar scope and complexity
including staff coordination and technical knowledge and expertise for these types of
inspections. Table 3 shows the overall total scores including project costs.

Consultant Technical
Score (Ave.)

Cost Score Total Score

Peterson Brustad Inc 63.3 25.0 88.3

Alisto Engineering Group s9.0 17.6 76.6

Water Works Engineers, LLC 68.7 tt.6 80.3

CSI Services, Inc N/A N/A N/A
Table 3: Consultant Overall Scoring Including Project Costs

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Peterson Brustad

Inc. for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program in the

amount of $175,461.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Sufficient funds are available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for the Water Storage

Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program. The following table summarizes

the total project cost over the S-year period outlined in the request for proposals:

Fiscal Year Contract Amount
FY 2022-23 s37,646.40
FY 2023-24 $37,624.40
FY 2024-25 $34,269.40
FY 2025-26 s34,247.40
FY 2026-27 $31,673.40

Total $175,461.00

EWR recofllmends that an agreement be executed with Peterson Brustad Inc. for a total
contract amount of $175,461.

ENVIRO AL REVIEW

This project is routine maintenance of existing infrastructure and therefore, is categorically
exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act as noted

in Title 14 - California Code of Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the

California Environmental Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301 -
Existing Facilities.

JPage 231

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10954 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Peterson Brustad Inc. for Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection
Program.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4 Page 232

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10954

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH PETERSON BRUSTAD INC. FOR THE WATER STORAGE

TANK AND CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEMS INSPECTION PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City operates and maintains fourteen large water storage tanks, each

storing 1.2 million to 4 million gallons of potable water, three small water tanks storing below

15,000 gallons each, and a 131 acre foot open water reservoir; and

WHEREAS, regular inspection and maintenance services are necessary that require

specialty technical expertise and equipment; and

WHEREAS' the City of Folsom has developed a scope of work to obtain the services for
underwater tank maintenance inspection which includes inspection, condition assessment and

maintenance of all sixteen tanks and the open water reservoir including tank and pipeline cathodic

protection systems over a five year period; and

WHEREAS' Peterson Brustad Inc. by reason of their past experience and abilities for
performing these types of services, is qualified to perform the required engineering and

administration services for the project and provide the best value to the City; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been budgeted and are available in the Water Operating

Fund (Fund 520); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Peterson Brustad Inc. for the Water

Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program for a not-to-exceed amount of
$17 5,461 over five years.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10954
Page I ofl

MAYOR

Page 233

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



This page intentionally left blank
to facilitote double-sided printtng .

CITY OF

FOLSOM
DIATINCTIVE EY NATURE

Page 234

12/13/2022 Item No.9.



I f ,i 
.. i .:: i l, j' :'r'[

:..r1iit.1ilt

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCII, ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10955 - A
Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with The Permanente Medical
Group, Inc. (TPMG) to provide Folsom Fire Department a Medical Director.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Fire Department provides a paramedicine based level of pre-hospital emergency
care for sick and injured persons throughout all areas of the City. The Fire Department
provides this level of service by having paramedics on all fire apparatus including fire engines,
fire trucks, and ambulances. To provide this advanced level of service, some medications,
such as narcotics, require a physician to order (California Code of Regulations, Title 22,
100168). A physician also provides general medical oversight, directs EMS training direction
to field personnel, provides input and direction for county EMS protocols, and provides
medical expertise coordinated with the Fire Department EMS Chief.

The previous Medical Director contract expired the month of June 2022 and services were
shared with four other agencies (Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, Cosumnes Fire
Department, Sacramento City Fire Department, and Sacramento Regional Fire Emergency
Communications Center). The cost of the Medical Director's contract was built into the annual
cost for each agency to the Sacramento Regional Fire Emergency Communication Center. The

I

MEETING DATE: l2l13/2022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10955- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Contract with The Permanente Medical
Group, Inc. (TPMG) to Provide the Folsom Fire Department a

Medical Director

FROM: Fire Department

Page 235

12/13/2022 Item No.10.



five-way split of services was no longer viable as demand for services dramatically increased.

An assessment was done and a need for each agency to have its own Medical Director was

identified.

Staff is recommending that the City approve an agreement with The Permanente Medical

Group, Inc. naming Bryan Sloane, MD as the Folsom Fire Department Medical Director. The

total three-year contract price is $115,200 ($38,400 per year).

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that

contracts for supplies, equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of
$66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

Section 2.36.120 Contracting for designated professional services of the Folsom Municipal
Code does not require a competitive bid process.

ANALYSIS

The previous Fire Service Medical Director contract expired in June of 2022. That contract

provided one physician to be shared between five agencies (Sacramento Metropolitan Fire

District, Cosumnes Fire Department, Sacramento City Fire Department, Sacramento Regional

Fire Emergency Communication Center, and Folsom Fire Department). As demand for the

Fire Service Medical Director began to increase between the five agencies, and with
individualized needs of each department, one Medical Director was no longer efficient.
Individual agencies were not receiving the guidance, oversight, training, or medical direction

required.

The Medical Director is an advocate for the Fire Services agency they represent at the

Sacramento County Emergency Medical Services Agency (SCEMSA). The Medical Director

has direct input in discussion of paramedic scope of practice, training, and steering the region

to modern and advanced medical care. The Medical Director not only assists in creating new
protocols but is also instrumental in providing department specific training to the paramedics

on these new protocols.

With a dedicated Medical Director to the Folsom Fire Department, training can be specialized

to meet the needs of Folsom Fire Department. Folsom Fire Department specific EMS data can

be analyzed to determine areas where improvement can be made. Additional training can be

made available such as cadaver labs sponsored by the Medical Director. This allows for hands-

on training of actual high-risk, low frequency procedures in real time on real "patients". This

type of training is highly valuable and was not possible under the previous medical director

system.

2 Page 236

12/13/2022 Item No.10.



The Folsom Fire Medical Director will provide medical oversight and expertise to continuous
quality improvement (CQI) programs by reviewing and analyzing EMS effectiveness, system

trends and needs to ensure EMS system excellence. In addition, the Folsom Fire Medical
Director develops and assists in the formulation of policies and procedures; participates in call
reviews with firefighter/paramedics, and firefighter/EMTs; assists in problem solving in field
clinical decision making; and participates in investigations/disciplinary actions of EMS
personnel.

The Folsom Fire Medical Director would also oversee all EMS exposure and post exposure

prophylaxis programs for infectious diseases.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The cost for the Medical Director services was included in the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating
Budget of the Fire Department as the combined cost to the Sacramento Regional Fire
Emergency Communications Center. The contract for the Medical Director services will be

for a three-year period in the amount of $l15,200 or $38,400 per year. The contract amount

will cover Medical Director services exclusively for the Folsom Fire Department.

ENVIRO AI, REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(bX3) of the California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10955 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract

with The Permanente Medical Group, Inc. (TPMG) to Provide Folsom Fire Department a

Medical Director.

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

J Page 237

12/13/2022 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. I.0955

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONTRACT WITH THE PERMANENTE MEDICAL GROUP,INC. (TPMG) TO

PROVIDE THE FOLSOM FIRE DEPARTMENT A MEDICAL DIRECTOR

WHEREAS, City of Folsom desires to engage a licensed physician to provide Medical
Director services to the Fire Department; and,

WHEREAS, the Fire Department staff has completed extensive research and validated

through an interviews process to determine a qualified Medical Director; and,

WHEREAS, the agreement will be for the amount of $38,400 annually for a three year

period for a total of $l15,200; and,

WHEREAS, the three-year agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREX'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the City Manager is authorized to execute a three-year agreement with The Permanente

Medical Group, Inc. representing Bryan Sloane, MD, for a total amount not to exceed $115,200.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 13ft day of December 2022,by the following ro11-

call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:

MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10955
Page I of I Page 238

12/13/2022 Item No.10.



ri::t;rr-ri,l .! l.1t! 1:

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: r21t312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 10956 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement withNational Auto Fleet

Group for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation of
Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10956 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation
ofFunds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) recognizes the need to maintain
a fleet of vehicles that will be able to provide reliable, efficient and responsive service. In
coordination with Fleet staff, current department vehicles are reviewed to help identiff priority
vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and pulpose. This agreement will
facilitate replacement of a dump truck used by the Utility Maintenance division that, based on

this review, has exceeded its' expected service life in terms of age, mileage and ongoing

maintenance costs.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with National Auto
Fleet Group for the purchase of a dump truck for a not-to-exceed amount of $97 ,277 .93.

1

POLICY / RULE

Page 239

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $66,141 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for
the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public
procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

EWR staff coordinated with the Fleet staff to review current department vehicles, to help

identiff priority vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose.

A vehicle identified as high priority for replacement is the dump truck used by the Utility
Maintenance, Water Division. This is an essential piece of equipment used by Utility
Maintenance for carrying product and materials necessary for infrastructure repair work. The

current dump truck was purchased in2002, the hydraulics are failing, and the bed cannot be

lifted when there is a full load. The truck is therefore unable to be used to its full potential,

which in turn reduces overall efficiency of the division. This resolution allows for purchase of
a replacement vehicle.

EWR staff coordinated with Fleet staff to obtain a quote from Sourcewell, previously known
as the National Joint Powers Agency, for the required vehicle. Sourcewell is a national

cooperative purchasing entity of which the City of Folsom is a member. The City has purchased

numerous items through Sourcewell.

National Auto Fleet Group has a current contract with Sourcewell and provided a quote for the

requested dump truck for atotal of $97,277.93.

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council
authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the

purchase of a dump truck for a total amount not to exceed $97,277 .93 '

FINANCIA I,IMPACT

An appropriation in the amount of $97,280 will be required for the purchase of this vehicle.

Staff proposes to transfer $97,280 from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602)to the Water

Operating Fund (Fund 520) as a transfer out from the Capital Replacement Fund.

The replaced vehicles will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, section 2.36.220,

Disposition of surplus personal property.

2

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Page 240

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10956 - A Resolution AuthoriAngthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 241

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10956

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL AUTO T'LEET GROUP FOR THE PURCHASE OF A

DUMP TRUCK AND APPROPRIATION OF'F'UNDS

WHEREAS, Environmental and Water Resources Department staff has validated the
need to purchase a dump truck based on an approved replacement schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through Sourcewell, which used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to National Auto Fleet Group in an

amount not to exceed $97,277.93; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation will be required in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) for this purchase; and

WHEREAS, staff is proposing to transfer from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund

602) the additional funds needed, in the amount of $97,280; and

WHEREAS, suffrcient funds are available in the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602)
for this transfer; and

WHEREAS, replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal
Code section2.36.220, Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the
purchase of a dump truck for a not-to exceed amount of $97,277.93.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$97,280 in the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602) as a transfer to the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) and to appropriate an additional expense and revenue in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) inthe amount of $97,280.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this l3th day of December, 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10956
Page I of2 Page 242

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10956
Page2 of2 Page 243

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



This page intentionally left blqnk
to facilitqte double - side d printtng .

CITY OF

F()LS()M
org"txcTlvE lY llaTuRE

Page 244

12/13/2022 Item No.11.



'!'i'ii,,"1 {.l';\'l
;r t: r-i.t; i:

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: t211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10957 - A Resolution Authorizing the Crty

Manager to Execute an Agreement withNational Auto Fleet

Group for the Purchase of a Valve Truck and Appropriation of
Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Departments recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10957 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Valve Truck and Appropriation

ofFunds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) recognizes the need to maintain

a fleet of vehicles that will be able to provide reliable, efficient and responsive service. In

coordination with the Fleet staff, current department vehicles are reviewed to help identifu

priority vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose. This agreement

wiil fatilitate replacement of a valve truck used by the Water Qualrty division that, based on this

review, has exceeded its' expected service life in terms of age, mileage and ongoing

maintenance costs.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with National Auto

Fleet Group for the purchase of a valve truck for a not-to-exceed amount of $75,556.78.

I

POLICY / RULE

Page 245

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of theFolsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

EWR staff coordinated with the Fleet staff to review current department vehicles, to help

identiff priority vehicles for replacement based on service life, mileage and purpose.

A vehicle identified as high priority for replacement is the valve truck used by the Water

Quality Division. This is an essential piece of equipment used for exercising valves within the

water distribution system, which is a requirement of the California code of regulations. The

current valve truck was purchased in2006 and has already undergone various repairs, resulting

in the vehicle and equipment being out of service for a total of at least 10 weeks during the

past year. Separate purchase of the truck bed and equipment has already been approved by City

bouncil through Resolution 10929. This resolution allows for purchase of the vehicle on which

the truck bed and equipment will be assembled.

EWR staff coordinated with Fleet staff to obtain a quote from Sourcewell, previously known

as the National Joint Powers Agency, for the required vehicle. Sourcewell is a national

cooperative purchasing entity of which the City of Folsom is a member. The City has purchased

numerous items through Sourcewell.

National Auto Fleet Group has a current contract with Sourcewell and provided a quote for the

requested valve truck for atotal of $75,556.78.

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council

authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the

purchase of a valve truck for atotal amount not to exceed $75,556.78.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

An appropriation in the amount of $75,557 will be required for the purchase of this vehicle.

Staff proposes to transfer $75,557 from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602)to the Water

Operating Fund (Fund 520) as a transfer out from the Capital Replacement Fund.

The replaced vehicles will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, section 236.220,

Disposition of surplus personal property.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

2

ATTACHMENT

Page 246

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



Resolution No. 10957 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Valve Truck and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 247

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10957

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL AUTO FLEET GROUP FOR THE PURCHASE OF A

VALVE TRUCK AND APPROPRIATION OF F'UNDS

WHEREAS' Environmental and Water Resources Department staff has validated the
need to purchase a valve truck based on an approved replacement schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through Sourcewell, which used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to National Auto Fleet Group in an

amount not to exceed $75,556.78; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation will be required in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) for this purchase; and

WHEREAS, staff is proposing to transfer from the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund
602) the additional funds needed, in the amount of $75,557; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602)
for this transfer; and

WHEREAS' replaced equipment will be sold in accordance with Folsom Municipal
Code section2.36.220, Disposition of surplus personal property; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW' THERJFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the
purchase of a dump truck for a not-to exceed amount of $75,556.78.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate
$75,557 in the Capital Replacement Fund (Fund 602) as a transfer to the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) and to appropriate an additional expense and revenue in the Water Operating Fund
(Fund 520) in the amount of $75,557.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Resolution No. 10957
Page I of2 Page 248

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10957
Page2 of2 Page 249

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



This page intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitate double- side d printtng .

CITY OF

FOLS()M
DISTIXCTIVA BY IAIURE

Page 250

12/13/2022 Item No.12.



1, ;l,iiilt t. i,,.t1 ti

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECO ATION / CITY COUN ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10958 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute

Amendment No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal,

Inc. for Right of Way Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project

and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKG / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department identifies sswer infrastructure

rehabilitation and replacement projects through sewer master plans and ongoing sewer

condition assessment programs. As a condition of the City's State permit for its wastewater

collection system, the Environmental and Water Resources Department is required to perform

ongoing condition assessments on the wastewater system and correct any defects/deficiencies

identified through this process.

Through these efforts, portions of the water and wastewater system in the City have been

identified as needing rehabilitation or replacement (R&R). A comprehensive plan has been

developed for the R&R of these aging or failing systems and much of this work has been

completed in recent years. The next phase of the R&R program includes the replacement and

1

MEETING DATE: t2n312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10958 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for
Right of Way Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and

Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 251

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



relocation of sewer lines within Natoma Street and the Persifer and Mormon Alleys, between

Stafford Street and Coloma Street.

This project will rehabilitate approximately 5,000 feet of sewer infrastructure along Natoma

Street and the Persifer and Mormon Alleys between Stafford Street and Coloma Street, as well
as relocate private sewer laterals. Through the City's sewer condition assessment progrirm,

City staff has had to perform continual maintenance in this area in order to sustain operations

of these systems. These pipes are beyond their serviceable life and require rehabilitation and

replacement.

During the 70Yo design phase of the new sewer system, it was determined that the best design

option would be to construct multiple portions of the sewer mainline on three (3) separate

parcels of private property. If a sewer mainline is located within private property, a Right of
Way Easement is required which gives the City permission to access the private property to
make any necessary repairs to the mainline. On October 27, 2022, the City entered into
AgreementNo. 173-21 22-060withBenderRosenthal,Incintheamountof$56,880toprovide
three Right of Way Easements.

During the 100% design phase, City staff conducted further field investigations and determined

that aportion of the new sewer mainline should be relocated to optimize the layout for design

and construction and future operation of the sewer system. The final design called for
constructing the new sewer mainline onto an additional three (3) separate parcels of private
property. This requires obtaining three additional Right of Way Easements from Bender

Rosenthal, Inc. Bender Rosenthal, Inc. will work with City staff to prepare the necessary

surveying and documentation to obtain right of way easements for three (3) private properties.

These easements will allow the City to access the sewer mainline and sewer lateral for any

repairs or replacements that are needed in the future.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

AmendmentNo. I includes the following tasks to complete the right of way easements:

o Obtaining records, field surveying, documents, and record maps

2 Page 252

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement
(Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for Right of Way Services for the

Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project. Amendment No. I will be in the

amount of $37,380 and the new contract amount, including Amendment No. 1 is $94,260.

FIN IMPACT

The Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project was included in the FY 2022-23

Capital Improvement Plan with a total project budget of $4,990,000. Staff is now projecting

the total project costs to be approximately $5,145,000. With this new projection of costs an

additional appropriation will be needed. Staff is requesting an appropriation of $155,000 for
the total project budget of $5,145,000. This appropriation will be in the Sewer Operating Fund

(Fund 530) and funds are avarlable for this appropriation. Sufficient funds are available in the

Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530) for this amendment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project is replacement and/or improvement of existing infrastructure with negligible or

no expansion of use and therefore is categorically exempt from environmental review under

the California Environmental Quality Act as noted in Title 14 - California Code of
Regulations, Chapter 3 - Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental

Quality Act, Article 19 - Categorical Exemptions, Sections 15301 (Existing Facilities), 15302
(Replacement or Reconstruction), andlor 15304 (Minor Alterations to Land).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10958 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment

No. I to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for Right

of Way Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and

Appropriation of Funds.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J Page 253

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10958

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT
NO. I TO THE AGREEMENT (CONTRACT NO. 173-21 22-060) WITH BENDER

ROSENTHAL,INC. FOR RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES FOR THE NATOMA ALLEY
REHABILITATION AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT AIID APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City is currently implementing its Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP)

which consists of condition assessment, as well as operation and system improvements; and

WHEREAS' the City has identified this project as a priority to maintain integrity and

operation of the sanitary sewer collection system; and

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from environmental review under the

California Environmental Quality Act; and

WHEREAS, Bender Rosenthal, Inc. by reason of their past experience and abilities for
performing these types of services, are qualified to perform the required right of way services for the

project; and

WHEREAS, the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project was included in the

FY 2022-23 Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation will be required in the amount of $155,000; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Wastewater Operating Fund (Fund 530) for
the appropriation; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21

22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for Right of Way Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation
and Replacement Project for a not-to-exceed amount of $37,380 increasing the total contract not-to-
exceed amount to $94,260;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$155,00 in the Wastewater Operating (Fund 530) from available fund balance.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Resolution No. 10958
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 254

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10958

Page 2 ofZ Page 255

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



This page intentionally left blank
to facilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSONI
DISTII{CTIVE EY XATURC

Page 256

12/13/2022 Item No.13.



:-. l+ i,,'{ { ii'!l'l
t' -;1:r!.-::l I r t;i: i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 10959 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Council to Cancel the

Invitation for Bids for the Water Meter Replacement Program.

BACKGRO / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) has identified the need to
purchase water meters of various types and sizes for installation on new homes and to replace

older water meters that may be reaching the end of their serviceable life. As required by State

Law, water meters have been installed on all new homes since 1992, with metered rate billing
for all the City's water customers beginning in20l3. Water meters are used for water metering,

water conservation and are an integral part of the water billing process.

The City currently has approximately 22,500 installed water meters, which range in size from
5/8-inch to l2-inch. It is anticipated that approximately 175 of these need to be replaced

annually. To meet this demand of the most widely used meters, staff issued a request for bids

for the supply of 5/8-inch ,314-inch, and 1.5-inch to lO-inch water meters.

During the time of the bid when potential bidders could ask questions regarding the bid,
questions were received by EWR staff about the type of meters required in the bid package.

Several potential bidders indicated that water meter manufacturers would be transitioning to

I

MEETING DATE: 12t1312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10959 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Council to Cancel the Invitation for Bids for the Water Meter
Replacement Program

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 257

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



water meters incorporating newer technology or alternate types of water meters that were not

included in the bid package specifications. Based on review of these questions, staff considers

that there is good cause, and it is in the best interest of the City to cancel the invitation for bids.

Canceling the bid allows staff time to research new water meter technology to determine the

best value for the city regarding accuracy requirements, longevity, and reliability of the various

water meter types. On completion of this research, EWR will issue a new, more

comprehensive, meter bid package with revised specifications and opportunity to allow

proposers to bid specific meter types.

This resolution authorizes the City Council to cancel the invitation for bids for the Water Meter

Replacement Program

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.180 of the Folsom Municipal Code. where stated in the

invitation for bid, the city council may cancel an invitation for bid, a request for proposal, or

other solicitations, or may reject any or all bids or proposals when it is for good cause and in
the best interests of the city (Ord. 723 53 (part), 1991).

ANALYSIS

Bids were solicited by advertising in the October 11,2022, edition of the Sacramento Bee, on

the City of Folsom website, and online at www.ClPlist.com. Due to the questions received

from proposers during the bid process, staff recognized the need for a more comprehensive

meter bid and further research to encompass multiple meter styles and technologies. EWR

recommends the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 00000 - A Resolution

Authorizing the City Council to Cancel the Invitation for Bids for the Water Meter

Replacement Program.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Canceling the invitation for bids for the City of Folsom Water Meter Replacement Program

will have no financial impact to the City.

ENVIRO REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

ResolutionNo. 10959 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Council to Cancel the Invitation for

Bids for the Water Meter Replacement Program.

2 Page 258

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

-l Page 259

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

4Page 260

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10959

A RE,SOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL TO CANCEL THE
INVITATION FOR BIDS F'OR THE WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, staff has identified the need to purchase water meters for installing on new

homes as required by State Law and to replace older water meters that may be reaching the end

of their serviceable life; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Bids for the supply of water meters of various sizes was

issued on October 11,2022; and

WHEREAS' based on questions received from proposers during the bid process, staff
recognized the need for a more comprehensive meter bid and further research to encompass

multiple meter styles and technologies used by meter manufacturers; and

WHEREAS, based on the information received during the bid process, the City Council

finds good cause and in the best interest of the City to cancel the invitation for bids for the Water

Meter Replacement Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that the invitation for bids for the Water Meter Replacement Program is hereby canceled.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10959
Page I ofl Page 261

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



This page intenti.onally Ieft blCInk

to facilitate double-sided printing .

FOLSOM
CITY OF

DISTI}{CTIVE tY IIATURE

Page 262

12/13/2022 Item No.14.



I t 'f i .;-: :i : i\'[
a,.:1.'rt.:r ti !!,!! ri

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: t211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10960 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public
Works Department to Install All-Way Stop Sign Control at the
Intersection of Montrose Drive and Lowe's/Trader Joe's

Shopping Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10960 - A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to Install All-Way Stop

Sign Control at the Intersection of Montrose Drive and Lowe'slTrader Joe's Shopping Center

and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department received a request to evaluate the safety of the intersection of
Montrose Drive and Lowe's lTrader Joe's shopping center and Home Goods/Target shopping
center. Montrose Drive is classified as a local roadway and serves as a north-south connection
between East Bidwell Street and Natoma Street. Most of the concerns are related to vehicle
speeds of approaching traffic southbound from School Street and a concern about the line of
sight of approaching vehicles when turning out from the Lowe's lTruder Joe's shopping center.

Staff requested that an all way stop sign analysis be performed by the City's on-call traffrc
engineering consultant, Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Their conclusion was that "the
intersection of Montrose Drive at TargetlTrader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway satisfies
AWSC (All-Way Stop Control) warrant guidance specified by CMUTCD (California Manual
of Uniform Trafhc Control Devices) methodologies. Furtheflnore, based on the vehicle speeds

along Montrose Drive and field observations, there are two turning movement (eastbound

tuming left and right) with substandard intersection sight distance and stopping sight distance.

1

Page 263

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Based on these findings, it is recommended that the City consider the conversion to AWSC

control at this intersection."

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 10.12 of the Folsom Municipal Code grants the City Council final authority with respect

to the placement of new stop signs.

ANALYSIS

This item was considered by the Traffic Safety Committee at its October 27,2022, meeting

which the Committee voted unanimously to recommend an all-way stop control. A copy of the

Action Summary from that meeting is attached to this report.

The Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Multi-Way Stop Sign Analysis warrant analysis is also

attached to this report.

F'INAN IMPACT

Installation of new signs and markings should not exceed $6,000 and will be paid out of the

Traffic Safety Projects, Project No. 8023, which is funded through Measure A (Fund 276).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review.

ATTA S

1. Resolution No. 10960 - A Resolution Authorizing lhe Public Works Department to

Install All-Way Stop Sign Control at the Intersection of Montrose Drive and

Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center

2. Action Summary - Traffic Safety Committee, October 27,2022

3. CMUTCD Multi-Way Stop Sign Warrant Analysis performed by Kimley-Horn and

Associates,Inc.

4. Map of Intersection

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

2 Page 264

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10960

Page 265

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10960

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC WORI(S DEPARTMENT TO

INSTALL ALL-WAY STOP SIGN CONTROL AT THE INTERSECTION OF

MONTROSE DRIVE AND LOWE'S/TRADER JOE'S SHOPPING CENTER AND
HOME GOODS/TARGET SHOPPING CENTER

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department received a request to evaluate traffic safety at

the intersection of Montrose Drive and Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping Center and Home

Goods/Target Shopping Center; and

WHEREAS, the intersection is currently side street stop controlled; and

WHEREAS, Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. assessed the intersection and determined

that all-way stop control is warranted based on line of sight and traffic volume; and

WHEREAS, the Traffic Safety Committee reviewed the request at its October 27,2022

meeting and voted unanimously to recommend all-way stop control; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Traffic Safety Projects,

Project No. 8023, utilizing the Measure A Fund (Fund 276); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the Public Works Department to install all-way stop sign control at the intersection of
Montrose Drive and Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping

Center.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call

vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 10960
Page I of I Page 266

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Attachment 2

Draft Action Summary - Traffic Safety
Committee, August 26, 2021

Page 267

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



City of Folsom
TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

MEETING MINUTES
4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 27th,2022

Effective July 7, 2022, the City of Folsom is returning to all in-person City Council, Commission,
and Commiftee meetings. Remote participation for the public will no longer be offered. Everyone
is invited and encouraged to aftend and participate in City meetings in person.

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
Meeting called to order 4:08 pm

2. ROLL CALL:
nuil.V, gor"h, Delp, Galovich, McGee, Soulsby, Washburn

Present: Bailey, Bosch, Galovich, Soulsby Absent: Delp, Washburn

3. APPROVE ACTION SUMMARY
Action Summary of the regular September 22nd,2022, meeting will stand

approved unless any Committee member requests a revision.
Bosch moved to approve Bailey seconded. Committee unanimous.

4. BUSINESS FROM F'LOOR/GOOD OF THE ORDER
Discuss any items not on the agenda that a member of the public wishes to bring to

the Committee's attention. The Commiffee cannot take formal action on the item but can
request that it be placed on a future agenda for further discussion if necessary.
A resident asked for an update regarding the new Pedestrian Signs coming on East

Natoma and Bosch gave an update.

5. ACTION ITEMS
1. NEIGHBORIIOOD ISSUES

a. MONTROSE DRM STOP SIGN
Soulsby moved and Bailey seconded, committee unanimous. Traffic safety recommends

that City Council approve an all -way stop sign at the intersection of Montrose Drive and

Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center.
b. PARIGHORE DRIVE &PLAZA DRIVE STOP SIGN

REQUEST
Bosch moved and Soulsby seconded, committee unanimous. This item was recommended
to be postponed to a future agenda

c. RANDALL DRM & SANTANA WAY STOP SIGN
REQUEST

Bailey moved and Soulsby seconded, committee unanimous. They recommend that the
Public Works Department request that the petition submitter request additional signatures

of support from the two homes on the corner closest to the proposed single stop sign and

that they get more signatures from residents on Santana way.

Agenda.Oct.22

Page 268

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. PROJECT UPDATE FOR MEDIAI\ BARRIER

PROJECT ON EAST NATOMA
Bosch provided an update and answered questions.

b. LIST OF FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

7. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 5:52

Agenda.Oct.22

Page 269

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Attachment 3

CMUTCD Multi-way Stop Sign Warrant
Analysis

Page 270

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



KimleyDHorn

Memorandum
To:

From:

Date:

Re:

Zach Bosch, City of Folsom

Amy Butler, El

Robert Paderna, P.E., RSPr

lntersection Evaluation
Montrose Drive at Target/Troder Joe's Shopping Center Driveway

October 7,2022

The purpose of this memorandum is to document the results of a traffic engineering evaluation of the

intersection of Montrose Drive at Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway (the "study

intersection") in the City of Folsom, California. Kimley-Horn understands that the City of Folsom has

received requests to evaluate the existing traffic conditions at the study intersection and to perform an

All-Way Stop Control (AWSC) warrant analysis. The study intersection is currently a Side-Street Stop

Control (SSSC) intersection with free movements along Montrose Drive. This evaluation has been

completed to evaluate the need for intersection traffic controlor other safety modifications based on

observed existing conditions and traffic volume data.

Data Collection
A site visit was completed on September 14,2022,1o observe intersection lane configurations, existing

traffic control, speed limits, lane utilization, adjacent land uses, and other readily apparentfeatures that

were deemed by Kimley-Horn to be relevant to the Scope of Services.

Four (4) roadway segment volume counts were collected from 6:00am to 10:00pm on a Thursday, Friday,

and Saturday (September 8th, l"6th, and August 27th, respectively), due to the hours of operation of the

businesses that access the study intersection's driveways. These counts were conducted along the

approaches to the study intersection and speed data was also collected along the Montrose approaches.

Site location can be seen in Exhibit 1. The traffic count sheets are provided in Attachment A.

Traffic ControlWarrants
An All-Way Stop Control (AWSC) warrant evaluation was completed for the study intersection based on

the methodologies noted in Section 2B.07 of the Californio Manuol on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

(CMUTCD), 20L4 Edition (Revision 6, March 30, 202L). The evaluation of the AWSC warrant requirements

determined that the warrant is satisfied for the study intersection. Summary sheets for the warrant

evaluation are included as Attachment B to this memorandum.

lntersection Sight Dista nce

An evaluation of sight distance for the study intersection was completed based on observed horizontal

and vertical geometric conditions. These evaluations were performed in accordance with the guidelines

presented in the Geometric Design of Highwoys ond Streets,2011-, published by the American Association

of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), and the Highway Design Monual, published by

Caltrans. The results of this evaluation are presented in Table 1 (see Exhibit l for a graphical depiction of

the sight distance observations).

kimley-horn.com 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 300, Sacramento, California 95814 916 858 5800

Page 271

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Obstructed >m0214 >500 250LeftA
N00250 ObstructedRieht 2t4B

Eastbound
(Trader Joe's Driveway)

Acceptable>500 >500 250Leftc
250 AcceptableRieht >500D

Westbound
(Target Driveway)

Notes: SD = Sight Distonce, ISD = lntersection Sight Distance
1 Passenger Vehicles, assumed design speed of 35 mph due to 85h % i2 mph for southbound/northbound approoches

2 Obstructed indicates that an object at o height above the elevotion ofthe adjocent roadway blocks the drivers'view
s Achievable Sight Distance refers to the condition anticipoted to be ochieved with removal or maintenance of roodside

veqetation, incl udins the me ntioned intermediote obstructions,

;i:1,)lr iJ i r,i

.i't', i:irirl i ;r l.,i:tl

i r 
' 

I i l : I I ii 1 
, ; : 1 , r , : '

,i tll

i:i,t,t, ii t:"','i11'1,'r'i',1 l'1r 'i"l,,l!irrt' ,;]

/.'.i,1ili.,v'i:,11 '

':j :t ili;1 ii,,
rli,,r'l: jrrrl lr'

irij;1.i,;iji,,.t rr

,,jl:lrr 
ij.,1: llii

li ;lr ',,.
,1":,,lliirt",

'i iiii liilrlri,

KimleyDHorn
Table 1- Summary of Sight Distance Observations

The intersection sight distance for the eastbound Trader Joe's Driveway approach looking to the left

(vehicles looking toward southbound Montrose Drive) is insufficient. Currently, there is vegetation

obstructing views for these motorists. lf these obstructions were to be removed it would be possible to

achieve acceptable intersection sight distance requirements. Caltrans' Highway Design Manual states that

"the minimum value for corner sight distance at both signalized and unsignalized intersections shall be

equalto the stopping sight distance as given in Table 201.1, measured as previously described." Table

2OL1.r presents the Stopping Sight Distance (SSD) based on design speed. Due to an 85th percentile speed

of 32 mph for the northbound approach, the design speed used to determine the SSD was 35 mph. The

SSD associated with 35 mph is 250 feet.

Summa rv and Recommendations
The intersection of Montrose Drive at Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway satisfies AWSC

warrant guidance specified by CMUTCD methodologies. Furthermore, based on the vehicle speeds along

Montrose Drive and field observations, there are two turning movement (eastbound turning left and

right)with substandard intersection sight distance and stopping sight distance. Based on these findings, it

is recommended that the City consider the conversion to AWSC control at this intersection.

Attachments:

Exhibit 1- Sight Distance Observations

Attachment A - Traffic Count Sheets

Attachment B - AWSC Warrant Analysis Worksheets

1 Caltrans Highway Design Manual. May 7,2012. Page 200-L

lnte$cctlon Enluatlon
Montrose Drive at Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway

Page 2 of 2

October 7,2O22
Page 272

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Montrose Drive at TargeUTrader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway - lntersection Evaluation

NOT TO SCALE

'-&t

-t.
I

L-*
fl-

a#

'i: d'

t"

t
:tf't

"f{ :*i

-.#

t
4
$

*

f

*
.tt

l\_-,
-{

Exhibit 1

Sight Distance Obseruations

O Signt Triangle Obstruction Area

r Obstructed Required Sight Distance

r Acceptable Sight Distance

Kimley>)Horn Page 273

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



KlmleyDHorn

Attachment A
Traffic Count Sheets

I nte rsecti o n Eva luation
Montrose Drive at Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway

Page 274

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



PrePared by NDS/ATD

Propar€d by tlotlonal Dato & Suryeylng Sorylcoo

VOTUME
Montrose Dr N/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Thursday

Dalet 9/8/2022

City: Folsom

Project fl : CAZZ 
-07 

O18L _O02

DAITY TOTALS
SB

2,687

NB

2,283 4,970

rzo
133
87
lfj? 442

L2:OO

L2tt,s
12:30
12t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

60
86
50
46

60
47
37
56 )oo 242

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

90
110
85
92 377

1,3:00
13:15
l3:30
13:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

50 40
47 63
42 43
43 1A2 49 195

01:00
O1:15

01:30
O1:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

77)

94
93
86
qg

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

43
46
33
5g

51
47
53
40 191 181

14:00
14:15
14:30
L4:45

02:00
02:15
02:30
O):d\

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
n
o

78
7f
96
101 348

15:00
15:15
15:30
1S:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

42 36
34 39
35 67
56 167 45 IAL

03:00
03:15
03:30
03:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0

86
99
76
118 379

15:00
16:15
16:30
16:45

0
0
U

0

0
0
0

37 49
53 46
39 37
s2 181 66 198

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

L24
100
96
81 40L

17:00
L7:Ls
L7:lO
L7t4S

0

0
0

0
0
0
0

67 57
51 49
57 39
37 212 44 189

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
n

05:00
05:15
05:30
05:45

81
70
7A
7) )q1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

40
29
36
1)

4t
47
34
AO 1q6 117103

z2
28
24
29

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

O6:00
05:15
06r30
O6:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

t9
76
L7
20

3
12
7
g 31 72

57
55
53
4\ 210

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

35 22
29 26
26 27
21 173 22 97

35
56
83
L48 32t

07:00
07:15
07:30
O7:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

927
22 34
43 40
s6 130 92 193

1g?

61
51
49
c)

138
103
82
80 403

20:00
20:15
20:30
20:45

0
n

0
0

0
0
0
0

32 29
22 29
28 2r
19 101 13 92

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

34 104
41 62
32 50
)4 1?,1 56 272

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

100

29
23
26
)2

79
61
81
9) ?n?

21:00
2!:15
21:30
2a:45

0
0
0
0

14150
TTL?O
15Lt0
13539470

o9
09:15
09:30

0
0
0

0
0

30
28

31
53

69
87
65
7A 299

22100
22tL5
22t30
22t45

0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0

0
0
U

0

0
0
0
0

27 42
31 56
32 33
4't 1?1 17 168

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

23:00
23t15
23:30
2AAE

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

n

0
0
o

97
106
116
105 424

11:00
11:15
11:30
11:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

47 50
40 66
43 73
60 190 45 234

31151855 TOTATS 1556 1s59727 tt28TOTATS

62.7%37.3% SPLIT % 50.o%50.0%39.2% 60.8%SPUT %

WB TOTALSB EB EBSBWB TOTAL PM Period NBAM Period NB

Total

AM Peak Hour
AM Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor

11:30 07145

308

0.740

11:30

0.875 0.891
210 474

PM Peak Hour
PM PkVolume

Pk H? Factor

16:45 12:00

242
o.703

12:00

o.a47 0.831
227 u2

7 - t Volume
7-9PeakHour
7 - 9 PkVolum€

Pk Hr Factor

267
07:30

r74
o.t77

07:45

308

o,740

125
07:30

472

o.797

4- 6 volume
4 - 5 PeakHour
4 - 6 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Fador 0.847

387

16r45

2t!
0.799 0.883

16:45 16r45

227 438

393 780

Page 275

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared by NDS/ATD

Pbpar€d by lhilonsl Data & Suilrylng Sodlcoo

VOLUME
Montrose Dr N/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Friday

Datet 9/t6/2022
City: Folsom

Project #: CA22 _07 0L81 
-002

99
96
Llz
q1 ?q8

12:00
L2:15
L2:30
12:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

60
52
56
53

39
44
56
18 22t

00:00
00:15
00:30
00:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

41)

103
90
r07
'11)

13:00
13:15
13:30
l?:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

51
39
47
70

52
5L
60
42 205 207

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
n

01:00
01:15
01:30
01:45

100
B7
724
\62 S23

L4t00
14:15
14:30
L4t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

57 43
65 72
74 50
70 266 92 257

02:00
02:15
02:30
o?:4\

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

103
52
83
50

70
52
52

))7 2R8

L73
104
135
103 515

15:00
15:15
15:30
15;45

03:00
03:15
03:30
O3:45

0
0
n

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

rr2
113
LZO
1)1 466

16:00
16:15
16:30
15:45

0
0
0
0

U

0
0
0

50
58
65
64

62
55
55
\7 229 237

0
0
0
0

0
U

0
0

0
0
0
o

0

o

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45

103
101
106
97 407

L7:00
L7tts
17:30
L7t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

52 51
54 47
52 s4
39 L97 58 2rO

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

ld1

93
85
89
n1110

23
25
24
16

18:OO

18:15
18:30
18:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

46
48
38
36

47
37
51
45 180 168

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

zo
15
T7

5
10
7
g ?1 7q

06:00
05:15
06:30
06:45

68
64
67
55 2s4

33
45
72
1lq 7AS

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

42 26
35 29
39 28
25 1-47 30 173

07:00
07:15
07:30
O7:4\

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

825
L2 33
47 31
s3 114 S2 177

U

0
0
o

0
0
0
o

45
19
1I
15

37
30
20
')? 10q go

82
49
31
37 199

133
79
87
a4 383

20:00
20t15
20:30
2O:45

OE:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

36 97
23 56
37 50
33 129 51 254

30
36
18
)\ 109

21:00
21:15
2L:30
2L4S

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

17 13
22 74
135
1R70739

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

63
46
49

^)

29
34
27
)A 1'lR )oo 318

92
80
76
70

09:00
09:15
09:30
09:45

11?

88
73
84
TR

ZZiOO
22tLs
22:?0
22t45

n

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

44 44
20 53
29 5s
4) 13q 46 198

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

0
0

o

0
U

n

L24
I?4
L27
tt4 499

23:00
23:15
23:30
2*45

11:00
11:15
11:30
lf,:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

58 66
51 83
40 87
52 20r 62 294

36311928 TOTAIS 18301801TOTATS 728 1200

65.t%t4,7% SPLIT % 49.6% 50.4%SPUT % 37.8% 62.2%

WB SB EB WB TOTALSB EB TOTAL PM PeTiod NBAM Period NB

DAITY TOTALS
NB

2,529

SB

3,030 s,559

Total

AM Peak Hour
AM Pk volume

Pk Hr Factor

11:00 11:O0 11:0O

0.866 0.856 0.93I
207 298 499

PM Peak Hour

PM PkVolume
Pk Hr Factor

14:L5 14:45 14115

0.943 0.801 0.861

279 330 596

7 - 9 Volume
7-9PeakHour
7-9PkVolume

Pk Hr Factor o.722

425

O7:45

285

0.735

668

07:45

4t4
o.804

07:30

153

243 4 - 6 volume
4-6PeakHour
4 - 6 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Fac{or 0.923 0.915 0.963

16:00 15:15 15:00

229 238 466

426 447 a7g

Page 276

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NDS/ATD

PlopaFd by Natlonsl Data & Suil€ylng Servls

VOLUME
Montrose Dr N/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Saturday

Datet 8/27/2022

City: Folsom

Prof ect #: C A22 _07 0t8I _0O2

r72
109
115
'to'l 477

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

50 62
48 6t
45 70
s) 195 49 242

12:00
L2:L5
L2t3O
t2:45

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

93
113
104
1t4 424

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

37
58
57
58

55
55
47
55 214 210

01:00
01:15
01:30
01:4q

0
0
0
0

0
n

0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

358

96
88
96
7A

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

43 53
42 46
45 5L
?6 166 42 1,92

14:00
14:15
14:30
t4:45

02:00
02:15
02:30

'J2t45

0
U

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

ro7
96
96
83 3a2

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

50 57
45 51
52 44
44 r91- 39 191

03:00
03:15
03:30
03:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0

0
90
95
94
85 365

16:00
16:15
15:30
15:45

0
0
0
0

46440
52430
54400
49 ZOr 37 764 0

04:00
04:15
04:30
OA:4\

0
0
0
0

U

0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

84
78
80
77 ?19

0
0
0

0
0

0

33
40
4L

177 1)

51
38
39
A\ 746

17:00
Ut15
L7:3O
L7145

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

109
77
51
65 30661

8
20
tz
)'l

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

37 72
30 4r
34 27
31 732 34 774

05:00
06:15
05:30
05:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

6
LI
6

24 L2 37

2
9
4
9

73
55
49
s2 229

25
26
L7
19 A7

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

35 38
24 31
27 22
34 L20 L8 109

07:O0
07:15
07:30
O7:A\

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

16
19
I7

)g 12 59

9
7
5
7

132

39
35
26
?)

49
47
65
q4 )1\

20:00
20:L5
20:30
2'Jt45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

20
6
7t
77

19
29
15
15 54aa

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

940
L9 28
26 39
20 74 34 74t

LOz

32
24
23
23296

77
65
81
73

21:00
2l':Ls
2l:3O
2Lt45

0
0
0
0

0
0

0

18 14
177
10 13
13 58 10 44

09:00
09:15
09:30
Og:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

34 43
70 45
34 47
4f i 31 30 155

22:OO
222L5
22t?O
22:45

0
0
0
0

0
n

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

99
80
92
L27 398

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

0
0
0
0

0

0
0

50 49
25 5s
30 62
63 168 64 230

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

n

0
o

98
106
98
109 47r

23i00
23:15
23:30
2l:45

11:00
U:15
11:30
11 :45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

54
67
58

171 61

44
39
40
4R 240

3054L528 L5261468 TOTAISTOTATS 872596

67,5%32.594 SPUT % 5A.Oo/o 5O.O%sPuT % 59.4%40.6%

DAILY TOTALS
SB

2,398

NB

2,L24 4,522
Total

AM P€ak Hour

AM Pk Volume

Pk Hr Factor

7!:45 11:45 11:45

0.955 0.907 0.967
r9r 254 445

PM Peak Hour

PM Pk Volume
Pk Hr Fector

13:00 12r00

242
0.864

12:00

0.955 0.950
274 437

4- 6 volume
4-6PeakHour
4 -.6 Pk Volume

Pk H. Factor 0.954 o.932 0.961

16:15 16:00 15r00

374 3X0 684

206 a64 365

Page 277

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared by NDS/ATD

PFpoBd by lStlonsl lrata & Suryoying Soilhoo

VOTUME
Montrose Dr S/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Thursday

Date:9/8/2022

City: Folsom

Project *: CA22_070L81-001

DAITY TOTALS 3,286

SBNB

2,228 5,5L4

Total

r37
r49
92
109 487

1Z:oo
t?tLs
12:30
L2:45

0
0
n

0

0
0
0
0

66 77
36 113
37 55
s3 r92 56 295

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

LO7

to4
103
106 420

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

65

63
5C

42
32
40
47 161 259

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
0
o

01:00
01:15
01:30
01:45

105
109
91
116 42L

14:00
L4tts
14:30
a4t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

59
68
46

L76 72

46
4I
45
44 245

02:00
02t15
O2:3O
O):4\

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

93
111
95

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

37 56
49 62
28 68
54 168 48 234

03:00
03:15
03:30
03:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

!72
98

0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0

40 66
50 62
36 62
4A 174 71 261

16:00
15:15
15:30
L6t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
n

0
o

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45

rLL
98

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

63 62
55 56
50 48
a7 20s 55 ZzL

17:00
L7tLs
LTtlo
L7t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

05:00
05:15
05:30
05:45

339

96
85
86
72'tog

22
37
25
)A

L8:0O
18:15
18:30
18:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

44 52
44 4t
38 48
32 1s8 40 181

05:OO

06:15
06:30
O6:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

18
2L
18
18 75

16
7
633

4

82
76
7Lqs 22'-

4L
64
85
144 124

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

4t 4L
35 41,

29 42
23 128 36 160

07:00
07:15
07:30
07145

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Lr 30
22 42
42 43
s8 133 86 ZOr 0

70
62
58
17 227

20:00
20tLs
20:30
2O:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

32 38
30 32
28 30
't2 702 25 L25

r.31
101
92
91 415

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

3s 96
47 60
39 53
)7 142 64 273

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

113

31
32
29
t1

89
7L
85
8g 334

Zl.:OO
2L:L5
ZLt30
2Lt45

0
0
0
0

200
200
t20
74660

12
L7
747

1"t09:00
09:15
09:30
09:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

30 59
27 44
27 58
34 118 55 21"6 0

22i0O
22115
22t30
2rr45

0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

0
0
n
o

79
101
74
94 348

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

28 51
29 77
32 42
40 129 54 279

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

94
ro2
118
10? 4'17

Z3:0O
23tts
23:30
23145

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

l1:00
11:15
11:30
l1:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

44 50
30 72
4Q 78
48 162 55 255 0

3558TOTAIS 204715111956TOTATS 717 LZ39

64.5%SPLIT % 57.5%42.5%95.5%sPuT % 36.7% 63.3o/o

5,5r4
Total

PM Peak Hour

PM Pkvolume
Pk Hr Fadot

12:0016i45 12:00
4812L6 295

0.8170.8s7 0.653

AM Peak Hour

AM Pkvolume
Pk Hr Factor

11:30

190

o.720

11:30

3L7

o_701

u:30
507

0.851
482

16:00

26r
0.919

861379
16:1516145

454276

0.857

4

4-6PsakHour
6 PkVolume

Pk Hr

4'14

07t45

295

749

O7t4507:30
468776

0.759

7-9
7-9PeakHour
7 - 9 Pkvolume

Page 278

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



PrePared bY NDS/ATD

Repar€d by lhlonal m t Sufl€ylng Sodlcta

VOLUME
Montrose Dr S/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Friday

Datet 9/16/2022

City: Folsom

Proiect il: CA22-070181-001

DAITY TOTALS
SB

3,6L3

NB

2,483 6,096

Total

L09
ro4
rL3
704 430

LZ:OO

L2tL5
12:30
L2:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

70
62
67
70 269

42
46
34 161

39

0

00:15
00:30

0
0
0

U

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

rttS

108
109
113
ron

0
0
0

0
0
0

58
55
69

48
51
58

242

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

01:00
01:15
01:30
01:45

16r
135

14:00
L4:L5
14:30
L4145

n

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

63
88
64
93 308

73
71,

67 268

5702:00
O2:L5
02:30
O2:AS

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
n

0

7r4
t47

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

54 98
57 57
44 103
\7 )1) 64 322

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

03:00
03:15
03:30
O3:45

529

138
130
135
1)6

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

76
73
86
73 308

57
49
E? 221

6216:00
16:15
15:30
16:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45 109

L75
113
10? 450

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

60
66
69
64 259

59
44
3S 191

4917:00
t7t15
L7:lO
L7t45

05:00
05:15
05:30
O6:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
n

0
o 0

r77
97
98
a7 399

28
27
30
1q 11R

1.8:0O

18:15
18:30
18:45

0
U

0

0
0
0
0

47 70
36 61
47 51
34 164 53 235 0

06:15
O6:30

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

622
10 77
Lt 19
t1. 38 22 80

297

78
81
73
55

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

38
44
38
38

4Q
37
35
)7 13q 158

39
49
77
1)A 293

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

10 29
L2 37
44 33q? 119 75 774

07:00
07:15
07:30
07t45 93

67
42

42
27

0
028

20

20
22
14

0
0

105

0
0
0
0
0
0

56
39
22
L7
L6
20
7

Lzl
92
88
86 387
100
85
90
RO 356

2O:45
21:00

20:00
20:15
20:30

27:L5
21:30
2L:45

0
0
0

0
0
0

84
62
50

30
38

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

11

140

2361)O

25
33
33
)q

53

51

08:00
08:15
08:30

09:15
09:30
09:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
o

0

91
92

22ioo
22tL5
Zzt?O
22145

0
0
0

49
57
56

34
36

0
0
0

57
54
38

0
0

96
98

752
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
U

0
o

0
n
o

145
150
L?6
1ta cqq

23:00
23:15
23:30
23145

10:00
10:15
10:30

11:15
11:30
11:45

4013TOTAIS L723 22902083TOTATS 760 1323

65,8%SPLIT % 57.r%42.9%s4,2%sPilT% 63.5%36.5%

6,096

Total

L0:45 11:00 11l00AM Peak Hout
AM Pk Volume 199 364 s55

Pk Hr

4-6PeakHour
4 - 6 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor

15:00

567

16:00

308

0.895

16:00

Peek Hout 14r00 t4t45
351

14:15

0.891 0.958

PM Pkvolume 268 508

227 529

4- 412 979
PK

Page 279

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NDS/ATD

PFpsEd by ll8tlonal DstE E Sudoylng Srvl$

VOTUME
Montrose Dr S/O Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy

Day: Saturday

Daret 8/2'1/2022

City: Folsom

Project #: CA22-070181-001

WBEB Total

5,130

L!7
tr6
113
LLt 457

12:00
t2:15
1213rl
72145

0
0
U

0

0
0
0

50 67
47 69
38 75
46 181 55 276

00:00
00:15
00:30
00:45

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

483

\u
128
!17
177

13:0O
13:15
13:30
13:45

n

0

0

0
0
0
0

52
70
73

2rr 77 272

59
58
44
50

01:00
01:15
01:30
O1:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

LL4
109
118

14:00
L4tls
14:30
t4t45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

51 53
47 68
46 72
39 L77 59 262

02:00
02:15
02:30
rl2245

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1.13

110

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

64 63
46 67
56 54
D 208 57 247

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

03:00
03:15
03:30
03:45

424

10s
105
101
111

15:00
15:15
15:30
16:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

47 58
48 57
52 49
s1 198 62 226

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
o

102
96
92
93 383

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

49 53
34 62
38 54
3s 160 s4 223

17:OO

L7tLs
17:30
L7:45

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0 t20

81
73
72 346

5
18
9

1g 51

18:0O
18:15
18:30
18:45

0
0
0

0
0

0

34 86
32 49
27 46
35 t28 37 2r8

06:00
06:15
06:30
O6:45

0
0

0

0
0
0
0

23
99
z7
10239 28

88
59
54
54 255

0

0
0

0
0
0
0

31 57
23 36
28 26
)9 110 26 14593

23
28
22
70

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

07:00
07t75
07:30
07t45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

13
L9
t7

10
9
5
7

49
34
33
?q 1q1

20:0O
20t15
20:30
2O:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

32
t3
19
2L 85

2t
74
74 66

1745
42
64
53 2L4

08:00
08:15
08:30
Ol:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

936
\2 30
25 39
)1 67 42 I47

36
27
31
71 t77

75
70
84
g6 325

21:00
2l:t5
2L:lO
21:45

0
0
0
0

13230
15710
13180
125417630

09:00
09:15
09:30
O9:45

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

33 42
20 50
33 51
47 133 49 r92

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
o

n

0
0
o

119
97
113
174 453

22:00
22:15
22i3o
22145

10:00
l0:15
10:30
10:45

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

50 59
32 65
44 69
52 L78 72 275 0

ago

108
L27
135
1)A :45

2?:\5
23:30

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

U

0
n

0

0
0
0

n
11:00
11:15
11:30
11:4q

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

36 72
45 82
45 90
4\ 171 75 319

3504t626 TOTALS 1493 201:TOTATS 503 1023

683%sPuT % 42.6% 57.4%?t,7%37.Lo/o 62.9%sPuT %

5,130

Total

PM Peak Hour
PM Pk Volume

Pk Hr Factor

13:15

486

o.949

13:1513:0O

2a32Lr
0.894 0.919

AM Peak Houa

AM PkVolume
Pk Hr Fador

11:15

499
11:30 11:00

1A7 319

0.935 0.886 0.924
807

16:00

424
16:15

200

0.962

449

16:45

231

4-6
4-6PeakHout

- 6 Pkvolune
Pk Hr Factor

7 - 9 volume
7-9PsakHour
7-9Pkvolume

30798
08r00O8:00 08:00
21467 147

0.570 0,875Pk Hr

Page 280

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NDS/ATD

VOIUME
Target Dwy E/O Montrose Dr

Day: Thursday

Datet 918/2022

City: Folsom

Project f : CAz2-070181-003

53
35
39
46 t73

12:00
t2:t5
12:30
12:45

34 19
10 25
20 19
2t 85 25 88

o
0
0
0

O0:OO

00:15
00:30
00:45

45
44
48
4'l 178

0
0
0
o

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

27 18
2t 23
23 25
23 94 18 84

01:00
01:15
01:30
O1:45

147

47
33
28
45

25
18
LT

15
L7
25

0
0
0
0

14:00
L4tLs
14:30
14:45

02:00
02tt5
02:30
O2t45

30
47
4t
32 1.44

0
0
0
n

15:oo
15:15
15:30
15:45

L8
24
22

L7
19

62

O3:00
03:15
03:30
O1:45

53
49
34
46 142

0
0
0
o

16:00
16:15
16:30
15:45

28 25
27 22
L4 20
24 93 22 89

04:00
04:15
04:30
O4:45

37
60
48
35 180

23 1,4

35 25
27 2r
L6 101 19 79

0
0
0
0

17:00
L7tr's
L7:X0
L7t45

05:00
05:15
05:30
05:45

151

47
40
M
30

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

22 25
22 18
25 L9
t4 83 t6 7827

6
LI
7
3

4
6
3
L

5
4

05:00
06:15
06:30
05:45

19:45
20:00

19:00
19:15
19:30

20tLs
2O:30

20245

5
9
6
15 36
19

76

10
L7
30

3
2
7

3
7
5

6
7
4

19

L4 3145

3
13
t6

39
27
25

24
25

71. 54 18 66

'L410
L2 L3
443948

2Q

L4
14

19
13
r'l-

07:45
08:00

07:00
07:15
07:30

08:15
08:30
08:45

10
8

21:00
2Lt15
2L:?Q
27:45

5
3
9

7
4
5
1 t7 26106

29
22
27
za

79 10
10 72
14 13
L2 55 76 5l-

O9:00
09:15
09:30
09:45

0
0
0
o

38
49
35
53 L7S

22:0O
22t15
22:30
22145

10:00
10:15
10:30
1O:45

21,
29
22

L7
20
13
23 30 70273

0
0
0
n

35
38
45
qn 16R

23:00
2?tL5
23:30
2?r4S

11:00
11:15
11:30
11:45

22 t3
2L 17
26 19
24 93 26 75

L4L9725 694588 TOTATS297 29tTOTAI.S

70.7%48.9%5L.1%29.3% sPuT %SPUT % 49.5%50.5o/o

2,OO7

Total

AM Peak Hour

AM Pk volume
Pk Hr Factor 0.772 0.850 0,47,

11r15 10:00 11:15

105 102 186

PM Peak Hour
PM Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor 0.779 0.910 0.796

L6t4E 12145 X6:45

109 91 191

7 - 9 Volume
7-9PeakHour
7 - 9 PkVolume

Pk Hr Factor

O8:00 08:00 08:(Xt

0.703 o!94_,,,,____9.613
45 3l 76

62 s0 ttz 4 - 6 volume
4-6PeakHour
4 - 6 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor

16:45 16:00 16.'45

o.779 0.890 0,796
109 89 191

194 168 t62

Page 281

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NDS/ATo

VOLUME
Target Dwy E/O Montrose Dr

Day: FridaY

Date:9/L6/2022

City: Folsom

Prolect fl : CA22_070181-003

EB WB

992 2,069r,077

180

4L
46
56
37

12:00
12:15
12:30
12t4S

23 18
26 20
27 29
19 95 18 85

0
0
0
0

OO:OO

00:15
00:30
00:45

55
34
34
q? 176

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

28 27
16 18

79 15

37 94 22 82

0
0
0
0

01:00
01:15
01:30
01:45

45
60
46
sl )oA

14:00
14:15
14:30
14:45

19 26
34 26
21- 25
33 707 20 97

0
0
0
0

0Z:00
O?tls
02:30
O7:4\

61
47
40
41 189

33 28
27 20
22 18
24 106 17 83

0
0
0
o

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

03:00
03:15
03:30
O3:45

193

50
49
42
42

28 32
24 25
2s 17
2s L9z L7 91

0
0
0
0

16:00
L6:L5
15:30
16:45

04:00
04:15
04:30
O4:45

167

49
38
42
?n

0
0
0
o

L7:OO
t7tLs
L7:lO
t7:45

30 19
20 1.8

z0 22
22 92 1"6 75

05:00
05:15
05:30
OS:45

37
40
33
2a 138

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

18 19
2L L9

15 18
12 66 16 72

9
4
6
6 25

06:00
05:15
06:30
06:45

5
2
3

2
3
5

1?)

28
35
30
)ca)

6
6
9

11

1.9:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

10 18
L6 19
tt L9

77 54 L2 68

07:00
07:15
07:30
O7:d\

4
4
5

2
2
5

1

23
23

716
914
r"3 10
53454572

8
20
19
23

20:00
20tL5
20:30
ZOt45

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

3
5
6

5
15
t3
1,4 tr 2547

I
6

21:00
2!tL5
21:30
2l:45

3
5
4
8

8
4
2
0 t4 20113

23
31
30
29

72 L1,

L7 74
L4 L6

74 57 ls 56

09:00
09:15
09:30

0
0
0
o

22i0O
22tL5
22230
22145L52

33
32
s2
35

L6 L7
22 10
29 23
20 87 15 65

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

0
0
0
o't93

53
55
36
49

2l:OO
23tLs
23:30
23245

11:00
11:15
11:30
ll:LS

35
23
14

32
22
2L 28 10093

t482TOTATS 7ta764587313 274TOTAI.S

7L.6%SPUT % 5L.6% 44.4%24.4%46.7%53.3%sPr-lT %

EB

L,O77

Total
2,069

WB

992

Pk Hr o.7L4

AM Peak Hour

AM PkVolume

10:30 11:00 10:30

195

7-9P€akHout
7 - 9 PkVolume

Pk Hr Factor

08:00 08:00 08:00

o.783 0.568 o.720
47 25 72

7-9 62 42

99 100

PM Peak Hour
PM PkVolume

Pk Hr Factot 0.890 0,952 0.902

L4t15 13:45 14:15

220

4 - 6 Volqme
4-6PeakHour
4 - 6 Pkvolum€

Pk Hr Factor

16:15 16:00 16r00

0.867 O.7LL 0,804
104 193

194 166 360

121 99

Page 282

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NOS/ATD

VOLUME
Target Dwy E/O Montrose Dr

Day: Saturday

Date: 8/27 /2022

City: Folsom

Project #: CAz2-070181-003

1,935
WB

913

EB

L,O22

L77

51
34
4t
51

29 22
22 12
\9 22
2s 95 26 82

0
0
0
0

12:00
l2:L5
12:30
Lz't45

00:00
00:15
00:30
O0:45

55
48
48

13:0O
13:15
13:30
13:45

2\
23
27
30

25
2l

7t\

0
0
0
0

01:00
01r15
01:30
01:45

43
50
49

27 !7
2L 22
31 19
26 105 23 81

0
0
0
o

14:00
14:15
14:30
t4:45

02:00
02:15
02:30
O2:45

213

63
48
52
qo

15:15
15:30
15:45

40 23
2a 20
2A 24
27 723 23 90

0
0
0
0

03:00
O3:15
03:30
03:45

46
37
37
39 159

26 20
14 23
20 77
19 79 ZO 80

0
0
0
o

15:00
16:15
16:30
15:45

04:00
04:15
04:30
O4:45

36
'29

43
70 124

17:00
17tLs
L7t3O
t7:45

18 18
L2 t7
19 24
7760968

0
0
0
0

05:00
05:15
05:30
05:45

108

31
28
22
27

74
16
18

50 10 58

L7
72
4
17

1
?.

0
c 11

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

06:00
06:15
05:30
O6:4q

0
0
2

t
2

0

90

19
23
23
25

910
749
10 13
L3 46 72 44

3
5
4
5 l7

19:00
19:15
19:30

07:00
07:15
07:30
O7:45

0
1

3

3

3
4
1

2 10 7
13
!4
20

6?

15
19
18
11

20:15
20:30
20t4S

4
5

72
4

9
9
8
9 2535

9
7

9
4

6
L2
9
7 2934

08:15
08:30

3
7
4

7
2

3
3

4
1

4
7 10 15

28
33
33
46 140

21:00
2L:t5
21:30
2l:45

09:00
09:15
09:30
Og:45

II
15
T2

22

17
18
2I

0
0
0
o

22tOO
22:15
22il0
22145

31
47
47
46 17I

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

19
24
19

23
28
24

0
0
0
o175

39
52
39
4q

23:00
23:15
23:30
23145

11;00
11:15
11:30
11 :45

24
22
't6

15
30
23
20 25 A766

1358TOTATS 6M714577TOTATS 308 269

70.2%29,8% sPuT % s2.6% 47.40153.4% 46.6%sPuT %

AM Peak Hour

AM Pk volume

Pk Hr Factor

LL:15 10:15 11:15

0.850 0.927 0.899
toz 89 ta?

PM Peak Hour

PM Pk Volume

Pk Hr Factor

14:30

125

0.781

13:00 15:00

0.842 0.845

101 ztc

7 - 9 volume

7-9PeakHour
7-9PkVolume

Pk Hr Factor 0.708 0.806 0.829

44

08:00

34

36

08:00

29

80

08:00

63

Page 283

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared bY NOS/ATD

VOTUME
Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy W/O Montrose Dr

Day: Thursday

Dalez 9/812022

City: Folsom

Project #: CA22 
-07 

0I8L 
-004

74
73
60
79 2a6

12:OO

LztLs
L2:30
L2t45

47
48
33
44

27
25
aa

35L72 Lr4

0
0
0
0

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:aS

76
70
68
6q 279

0
0
0
o

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

59 L7
46 24
44 24
38 t87 27 92

01:00
01:15
01:30
O1:45

76
75
63
a2 296

44
50
45
48

32
25
L8

0
0
0
0

14:00
14:15
t4:3O
L4.45

02:00
Q2:L5
02:30
02145

?46

59
67
55
61

0
0
0
n

L5:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

45
38
36

23
19

82

03:00
03:15
03:30
O3:45

75
70
66
cq 266

0
0
0
o

16:00
16:15
15:30
L6:45

46
47
44
33

29
73
22
22t70 96

O4275
04:30

50
7t
60
56 2!7

0
0
0
o

17:00
L7tLs
17t3O
L7t45

34 L6
42 29
4L 19
32 r49 24 88

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

50
43
48
40 181

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

28 22
28 1s
31 17
27 LL4 13 67

2
4
8
4 18

7
3
4
2

I
L

4
210 6

06:00
06:15
05:30
06:45

1r8

42
38
33
)\

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

27 15

23 15
2t t2
1587951

3
5
4
I 2t

07:00
07:15
07:30
OTrAS

2
4
2
4

1
).

2
5 9T2

26
30
43
51 150

20:00
20:15
20:30

tz 14
12 L8
24 t9
29 77 22 73

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

23
26

5
1

131

55
40
49
a7

2L:L5
21:30
2L:45

10
t2
9

0
0

r

59

LT
T7
15
o

5
1

O9:00

09:15
09:30
Og:45

30
27
28

13
2l

0
0
0
0

64
77
72
6S 274

22:00
22:L5
22t30
22145

34 30
43 34
36 36
38 1s1 27 r27

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

0
0
0
n191

64
72
81
7A

2tt15
23:30

11:00
11:15
11:30
I I :tl6

38
46
48
47

26
26
33
27t79 112

20247296 732939 TOTATSs33 405TOTAI.S

68,4%53.9% 36.7%tr.6% sPuT%56.8% 43.2%sPuT %

2,967

Total

AM Peak Hour

AM PkVolume
Pk Hr Factor

11:30 10:00 11:30

190 127 302

0_990 0.882 0.932

PM Peak Hour

PM Pkvolume
Pk Hr Factor

72:45 12tO0 14:00

x93 114 296

0.818 0.814 0.902

7 - g Volume
7-9PeakHout
7 - 9 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor

89 82 L7l
08:00 08:00 08:00

77 73 150

0.664 0.830 0.735

4 - 6 Volume
4-5P€akHoul
4- 6 PkVolume

Pk Hr Fador

319 184 s03

16r00

266

0.887

16:00 16:00

170 95

o.904 0.828

Page 284

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Prepared by No5/ATD

VOLUME
Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy WO Montrose Dr

Day: Friday

Date:91t6/2022

City: Folsom

Proje€t #: CA22_070181-004

65
74
9I
7S 328

12:00
LZtlS
12:30
12:45

50 35
46 28
55 36
50 20L 28 t27

o
0
0
0

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:45

344

92
77
86
95

L3:OO
13:15
13:30
13:45

53 39
44 27
50 36
53 200 42 L44

0
0
0
0

01:00
01:15
01:30
O1:45

55
94
73
7q 111

0
0
0
o

14:00
14:15
14:30
L4t4S

39 26
55 39
43 30
48 185 31 126

O2:tS
02:30

88
7I
88
61 tO8

0
0
0
o

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

52 36
39 32
60 28
39 190 22 118

03:00
03:15
03:30
03:45

88
84
85
71 328

16:00
15:15
16:30
16:45

55 33
48 36
60 25
46 209 25 tL9

0
0
0
0

04:00
04:15
04:30
OA:45

7Sn

65
64
71
qR

0
0
0
o

LTiOO
LTtLS
L7:?O
17t45

44 2L
40 24
46 25
35 165 23 93

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

797

55
52
48
42

18:00
18:15
18:30
18:45

39 L6
34 18
31 L7
33 L37 9 60

2
z
2
3 9

06:00
05:15
06:30
O6:45

1
0
2
3

L

2
0
0 3 6

46
46
38
?? 161)6

2
5
2
16

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

26 20
28 18
22 16
22 98 77 65

07:00
07:15
07:30
O7:45

T

2
I

11

t
4
1
5 15II

32
29
32
12 105

17 15
236
239
871434fla

26
43
50
59

20:00
20:L5
20:30
2O:45

719
26 17
28 22
30 91 29 87

08:00
08:15
08:30
08:45

9
5
3
9 26

21:00
zLtL5
21:30
21145

2

2
2

7
5
1
7 20 6197

51
51
58
37

09:00
09:15
09:30
Oq:4E

34 17
31 Z0
29 29
22 1.16 15 81

0
0
0
0

ZZiOO
22tt5
Z2t3O
22:45263

62
64
70
67

10:00
10:15
10:30
10:45

39 23
33 31
35 35
39 746 28 rI7

0
0
0
o

96
109
87
a7 ?79

23:00
23t15
23:30
23245

51 45
64 45
54 33
s5 224 32 155

11:00
11:15
11:30
LLt45

2t68tosz TOTATS t476 892TOTATS 46L591

59.2%?o.8% SPLIT % 37.7%62.3o/osPuT % s6.2% 43.4%

EB

3,4202,067

WB

1,3s3

Total

AM Peal Hour

AM Pk Volume
Pk Hr Factor 0.875 0.861 0.859

L1:00 11:00 11:00

?79224 155

PM Pcek Hour
PM Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factol 0.871 0.857 0.905

15:00 13:00 13:00

209 144 344

7 - 9 Volume
7-9PeakHour
7.9 Pkvolume

Pk Hr Factor

08:00

L02
08:00

87

0.7.50

08:00

o.758 0,794
9l t7a

102 204 4 - 6 Volume
4-6Peakllout
4 - 6 Plvolume

Pk tlr Factol

15:OO 16:00 16:00

0.871 0.826 0.932
209 119 z2g

374 2r2 586

Page 285

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



PrePared bY NDs/ATo

VOTUME
Trader Joe's Shopping Center Dwy WO Montrose Dr

Day: Saturday

Datet 8127 /2022

City: Folsom

Proiect #: C A22 _O7 O78I 
-O04

EB

2,16L

WB

1,388 3,549

Total

85
59
91
8q 331

0
o
0
o

1Z:OO
12:L5
L2'i3O
L2:45

49 37
44 25
50 47
53 196 32 135

00:00
00:15
00:30
OO:45

87
93
91
104 375

55 31
52 4L
52 39
65 225 39 150

0
0
0
o

13:00
13:15
13:30
13:45

01:00
01:15
01:30
O1:45

92
92
78
nq 351

0
0
0
o

14:OO

14:15
14:30
L4t45

52 40
57 35
55 23
53 2L7 36 r34

02:00
0Z:15
02:30
O2:45

75
89
90
a4 338

42 33
56 33
50 40
54 ZO2 30 136

0
0
0
o

15:00
15:15
15:30
15:45

03:00
03:15
03:30
O3:45

89
85
70
7A ?))

16:00
15:15
16:30
16:45

54 35
47 38
42 28
50 193 ?8 rZ9

0
0
0
0

04:00
04:15
04:30
04:45

64
67
75
\4 760

0
0
0
o

17:00
L7t15
l7:30
!7 t45

2L
23
33
12

43
44
42
42 171 89

05:00
05:15
05:30
O5:45

L92

50
s2
40
40

40 20
27 25
26 t4
23 Lt6 17 76

2
2
1
6 tt

18i00
18:15
18:30
18:45

06:15
06:30

7
7

0
1

I
3 5 36

48
39
30
4L 158

19:00
19:15
19:30
19:45

35 13
25 14
15 15
28 103 13 5527

5
3

11
8

3

1

4
4

2
2

7
4 15 L2

07:00
07:15
07r30
O7245

4L
3L
27

126

27
36
31
17

20:00
20:15
20:30
2O:45

30 1L
256
16 1-t

14854 32

08:00
08:15
08:30
O8:45

10 17
25 LI
16 15
21" 72 t7 54

4
5

21:00
2L:L5
2l:3O
21145

z
0
I
L

13
4
4
7 422

50
52
64s3 2r9

22
22
25
18

28
IU
39
35 L3Z a7

09:00
09:15
09:30
09:45

0
0
0
0

79
70
86
a7 322

22:OO

22tL5
ZZi3o
22t45

10:00
10:15
10:30
1O:45

46 33
35 34
44 42
54 180 33 L42

0
0
0
n

93
95
95
qn ?74.

23:00
23:15
23:30
23:45

11:00
U:15
11:30
11tt4

55 38
55 39
65 3'J"

51 277 39 I47
24701079 TOTAIS 9401530TOTATS 448531

69.6%51.9% 38.L%?o.4% SPUT%sPuT % 58.5% 41.50/6

TOTALWBEBSBTOTAL PM PCTiOd NBWBEBSBAM Period NB

13:15

159229
0.913

Peak Hour

PM PkVolume

PK Hr
AM Pk Volume

Pk Hr Factot

1O:30 11:0010:45
374230 752
o.9740.885

AM Hour

364 2!8
16:00 16:00 l6:00

193 129 ?22

0.894 o.849

4-6PeakHour
- 6 Pk Volume
Pk Hr Factor

15387

OSiOO 08:00 08:00

72 54 126

0.794
9 Pk Volume

7 - 9 Volume

7-9PeakHour

Page 286

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Spot Speed Study
Prepared by: National Data & Surveying Services

City of Folsom

Location: Montrose Dr & TargeUTrader Joe's Shopping Genter DwyDN|E.812412022
TIME: 13:15-14:15 Posted Speed: 25 MPH Clear/Dry Proiect #: 22-0701 80-001

Northbound & Southbound Spot Speeds

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

32

34

r36
(L

T

!40
ooo_ 42
U)

44

46

4A

50

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

68

70

10

Number of Vehicles

SPEED PAMilIETERS

(:lass Count Ranoe
50th

Parcentlle
85th

Percenlile
IO MPH

Pace I in Prc.
Percent in

Pace %/#BelowPaco o/"1*Abov6 Pace

ALL 203 20 -39 2E mph 32 mDh 24 -33 177 87% 60/" I 14 6'/0 I

5

ALL VehiclesSpeed
mph

<='10

'11

12

13
14

16
17

19
20 1

21 1

4

24 14
17

2
27
28 24

21

3l
31

32 't0
12

3,

35
36 3

1

eo

40

42
43

45
46

4t
49
50

52
53
54
55

57
58

61
62

65
66

69
>=7O

---
-
I

-

I

-
I
I
I

15 20 25 30

Page 287

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



KimleyDHorn

Attachment B

Wa rra nt Ana lysis Worksheets

I nte rse cti o n Ev a I u ati on
Montrose Drive at Target/Trader Joe's Shopping Center Driveway

Page 288

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Multiway Stop Warrant Analysis (100%)

Hours

Hourly Volumes (veh/hr)

Maior Street Approach Minor Street Approach

Montrose Dr
Target/Trader Joe's

Shoppine Center Drivewav
6:00 AM 95 76

7:00 AM 239 29

8:00 AM 341 110

9:00 AM 3IL L74
10:00 AM 354 244
L1:00 AM 433 298
12:00 PM 4L7 275
1:00 PM 396 294
2:00 PM 420 28L
3:00 PM 4L9 262
4:00 PM 400 279

5:00 PM 370 237

6:00 PM 313 193

7:00 PM 235 L57

B:00 PM t73 113

9:00 PM L01 42
Daily 50L7 3005

Highest 8 Hours

Average
Threshold

Threshold Met
Warrant Met?

KimleyDHorn 10t6t2022

Page 289

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



Attachment 4

Map of Intersection

Page 290

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



G6€

€6o

$j€

a

a

G

a

G€

t€

a

Page 291

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



This page intentionally Ieft blonk
to facilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSOl\{
DIgTINCTIVE BY N TURE

Page 292

12/13/2022 Item No.15.



.:;: t.

i ' i +,i '{ r:.1 }\'l
*: t rt: r:

Folsom City Council
Staff Re

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10962 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lF Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lF Subdivision.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase

lF Subdivision was approved by the City Council on March I0,2020.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F

Subdivision. The Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision will
create a total of 99 single-family high density (SFHD) residential lots. With the approval of
the Final Map, the subdivision process for this phase will be complete.

MEETING DATE: t211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10962 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lF Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision

FROM: Community Development Department

I

Page 293

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



MANGINI PARKWAY

PHASE lF

F
[J]
H
&Fa
F]
F]I!

FA

Fa
r!

..-._.. ^3

rR4SnWgct!sF{tt

Ii.i
IE
E;
3lt,

I
t
3

,",. ..- ' ,,

The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision is located on the north side of White
Rock Road, west of East Bidwell Street, south of Mangini Parkway and east of the future Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 2 subdivision in the Folsom Plan Area (FPA) (see above).

POLICY / RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance
require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

2
Page 294

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF
Subdivision have been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City
departments. The Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been
satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lF Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information
concerning when the condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit,
etc.), which City department is responsible to verifu that it has been satisfied, and comments
or an explanation on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F Subdivision (PN l9-091) on March
10,2020 in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project
is consistent with this Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all
mitigation measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition,
none of the conditions described in Section21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have
occurred. Therefore, no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10962 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the
Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F Subdivision

2. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision Final Map

4. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map

J

Submitted

Page 295

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



PAM JOHNS, Community Development Director

4
Page 296

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10962. A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
THB CITY MANAGER TO EXBCUTE A SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFFERS OF
DEDICATION FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASB lF SUBDIVISIONO AND APPROVAL OF THE
FINAL MAP FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT F'OLSOM

RANCH PHASE lF SUBDIVISION

Page 297

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 10962

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OF'FERS OF DEDICATION FOR THE

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lF SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL OF
THE F'INAL MAP FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT F'OLSOM RANCH PHASE lF

SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF subdivision
has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase lF subdivision; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accep, subject to improvement, any and all offers
of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF subdivision is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute
the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as

Toll Brothers West, Inc. in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and accept the offers of dedication
for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES

NOES

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10962
Page I ofl Page 298

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 2

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lF SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

Page 299

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Code Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY:

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAILTO;

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
City Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF 'OLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and enterecl into this day of .-_--,2022, by and

betweei the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as 
o'City", and Toll West,Inc. which will do

business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc., a Delaware Corporation hereinafter referred to

as "Subdivider"

A.

RECITALS

Subdivider has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land

located within the corporate limits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the

Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the

Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council

of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Toll Brothers at

Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision and is herein referred to as the "subdivision".

Subdivider has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improviments (ai shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit

A), including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

bik.*ayr, rto-r- drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public

utility fu"ititi.r, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in orrequired by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

oftn. City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by

the City. Th" for.going improvements, more specifically listed on Dxhibit A attached hereto,

are hereinafter referred to as'othe recluired improvements"'

B

C

1

Page 300

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



D. City Council has required as a condition precedenl to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enters into and executes ihis sub<tivision improvement agreement with the City

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

Ilerlbrrnance ol'lVork. Subdivider agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his own

..p""* tt* t.q"iiia i*ptouements as shown on the approved plans and specifications

ofihe subdivisi,on, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development

Department, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or

modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to erors, omissions,

changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer' The

apprJved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by the

Su-UaiuiAo as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved

in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,

as shown on B*I'iUit-R, iS THREE MILLION EIGHTY.NINE THOUSAND SIX

HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00).

WoLk: Satislhction ol'City l-urgineel. Atl of the work on the required improvements is

t" b" d""" 
"t 

the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's

Improvement Stanaards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable

Ciiy ordinances or state and fbderal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Wtxk:-Tiu'!e fbl Ctturmenccment and Pct'tormatlcc. Work on the required

i*pto;;"d- .hulibe completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months

from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the

commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall notif the City Engineer in writing

of the date fixed by subdivider for commencement of the work.

Time of Essencel Extension.

a. 'fime is of the essence of this Agreement. The date fbr completion of the work

of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16'36.110 of
the Folsom MuniciPal Code.

Inrproyentsnt Sectlt'ity. Concurrently with the execution of this'Agreement, the

Subdivider shall furnish the CitY:

a. Improvement security in the sum of THREE MILLION EIGHTY-NINE
rdOUS,q,ND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS
(S3,089,634.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the total

estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the cost of any

other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this Agreement,

conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

b. Separate improvement security in the sum of THREE MILLION EIGHTY-
nfNn THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/100

DOLLARS ($3,0890634.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the

2

1

2

3

4.

5

Page 301

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



6

7

estimated cost of constructing the required improvements, securing payment to

the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing labor, materials, or

equipment to them for the construction of the required improvements.

c, The subdivider shall deposit with the city THREE THOUSAND AND

NOi100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to corect deficiencies and conditions caused by the

Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

construction of the subdivision.

d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (10%)

conshuction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placernent of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Governmcnt Code of the State of California,

and an estirnated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities'

In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

!l!An Checkins and lnspeqtiorr Fecs. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the

checking, filing, aud processing of irnprovement plans and specifications, and for

inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established bY the CitY'

lnclemniltcatiorr ancl ['[olcl l-larmlesg. The Subdivider shall indemni], protect, defend,

*". 
^"d 

h;id the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

**o.r, or omissions of Subdivider or Sub<iivider's officers, employees, volunteers, and

agents during performance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,

oi fro- any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subclivider's work. It is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnify and hold

harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil

Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under

this Agreemlnt does not relieve Subdivider fi'om liability under this indernnification

and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to

any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have

beln deteimined to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this

Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider aoknowledges and agrees to

thi provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Subiivider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

imployeei, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisfy any judgement that may be

renderld against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result

thereof.

3

Page 302

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



8. Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perform any ofthe
Required Improvements shall, at their expense, maintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreernent or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever
first occurs, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisf'actory to the City. The
maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be
treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

Minimum l-iniits of lLsura.nce. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than:a

b.

c.

2

J

Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 cornbined single limit per
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Autornobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's
Compensation lirnits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
Califomia and Employers Liability limits of $ 1,000,000 per accident

Dcch.rctibles ancl Selt'-lnsuFd ltetentiorrs. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the
City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investi gations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other Insuratrce llrovisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

l. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to
be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products
and completed operations of the Subdivider; premises oumed,
leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,
hired or bonowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the
City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the
City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the
Subdivider's insuranoe and shall not contribute with it.

4

B

Page 303

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



C. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies

shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
offi cials, employees or volunteers.

D The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer

shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,

officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or
cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after

thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt

requested, has been given to the City.

2

J

Acggpl4hiljtJ-qfllugtglg. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's

rating of not less than A: VII.

e. V$LiltlisLAlgAlqggg. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,

the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy

are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its

behalf. -Ihe City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all

required insurance policies at any time'

Title to Improvements. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements

constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon

completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. 'fhe City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such

improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications,

approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City lmprovement Standards and

Siandard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws

and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

Warranty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective

materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Warranty Security)

throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year following

completion and written acceptance of the improvements (Warranty Security Period). The

amount of the Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction

of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agrcement,

which shall be retained for the Wananty Security Period.

5

d

9

10.

Page 304

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ll

t2.

13

14.

Repair or. ltecoustruction ol'Det'cg-tive Work ot Materials. If, within the Warranty Security

P.ri"d 
"r 

thr applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improv"*itrt furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work

done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications referred to herein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act

promptly or in accordince with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

iepaiis or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City rnay, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within

thirty (30) days of the date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agrel that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall

girarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

M.NeitherSubdividernoranyofSubdivider'sagentsor
contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement.

Notice ol'Urcach arlcl Dctnult. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

cxtension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruplcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

.t.ditor*, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve writien notiCe upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this

Agrecment, or of any portion thereof.

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take
ln the event of any such notice,

over and complete the work and the

surety within fifteen (15) days after therequired improvements; provided, however, that if the

serving ofsuch notice ofbrcach upon it does not glve the City written notice of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen ( 1 5) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable , for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the C ity, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

plant or other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefor

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, afler giving notice of
breach of the Agieement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument,

6

Page 305

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



15. Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsomo CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices requircd to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Toll Wcst,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc., a

Delaware Corporation
2330 East Bidwell Street, Suite 201

Folsom, CA 95630
ATTN; Greg Van Dam, Vice President - Land Development

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorney's FeeF. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,

the prevailing party shalt be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to

any other relief to which he may be entitled.

17. Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in

interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City

may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's

Office.

7

Page 306

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows

SUBDIVIDER

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers Westo Inc.,

A Delaware Corporation

BY BY:

Print Name: Print Name:

Title: Title

DATE:

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporation

DA
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

DATE
Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

DA'l'11

Pam Johns
COMMLINITY DEV ELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

DA

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF ..SUBDIVIDER'' MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section I 189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision

8

Page 307

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



55i?4

ExhibitA

FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estimate SummorY

for
TollBrothers - Phose lF

Total Costs Phase lF

Total

$ qezs,eoo

Cost to
Complete

$ 3,099,634

Cost

7 of4
Page 308

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estlmote for

Toll Btothers - Phase 7F

Unlt Prlce

$ so.oo

$ 7o.oo

$ 4,5oo.oo

$ 1,000,00

s 1,s00.00

$ so0.0o

subiotal sewer

5 ss.oo

$ so.oo

S z,ooo.oo

$ 5,000,00

$ r,ooo.oo

$ z,5oo.oo

$ 3,soo,o0

5 r,500.00

Cost to
Total Complete Complete

s 6,660.00

33,300.00 50% r6,650.00

%

Item No quontlty Unlt Dcsctlptlon

slte Preparatlon & Earthwork

1 33.3 Ac Clearing & Grubblng

2 33,3 AC Eroslon Control

Sallltary Sewer SVstern

100%S zoo.oo

$ r,ooo.oo $

(

Subtotal Gradlng & slte Prep $ 3e,960.00 $ 16,6s0.00

1

1

3

4

5

6

799

?,x27
20

101

1

1

1,030

43r.

293

369

466

1,381

11

11

3

1

11

20

2

LF 6" Sanltary Sewer, PVc sDR 26

LF 8" Sanltary Sewer, PVC sDR 26

EA 48" Standard Sanltary Sewer Manhole

EA 4" ssnltary s€wer Servlce

€A 6" Flushlne Branch

EA connect lo Exlstlng Sewer Maln

LF 12" stotm Draln, RcP ct lll
LF 15" storm Draln, RCP Cl lll

LF 18" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

LF 24" Storm Draln, RcP Ct lll

LF 30r' storm Draln, RCP cL lll

LF 36" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

EA 48"StsndardStotmDralnManhole
EA 60"StandatdStormDralnManhole

EA T2" standard storm Draln Manhole

EA 84" Storm Draln Manhole

EA TypeGot-7 (on'Grade) Dralnage lnlet

EA ModllledType'B'Dralnagelnlet
EA connect to Erlstln8 storm Draln Maln

$ 39,050.00 8096 s(
s
(
$

$

7,990.00

46,578,00

18,000.o0

20,200.00

300,00

100,00

$ ?32,890.00

s t0,000.00
8016

80%

$ 101,000,00 8096

s 1,500.00 80968U4

L soo.oo 80%

s 46s,840.00 S 93,168.00

storm Draln Svstem

Potrble Water Dlstrlbution System

1

3

4

5

6

7

I
I
10

11

12

13

s 4s.oo

$ ss,00

_s 60,qq

5 q-so!-

L___Zqa9_
I 8o.oo

$ s,000.00

$ z,ooo.oo

S 9,ooo.oo

$ 11,ooo,oo

$ 4,s00,00

5 3,s00.00

5 soo.oo

SubtotalStorm Draln S 545,220,00

so%
s0%

s0'6

_ 50%

-_TE-
50%

s0%

5096

s0%

5096

50%

_ 5096

50o/6

-J 23,705,00

$ 17,s80.00

$ 23,s85.00

$ 32,620.00

S 110,480.00

S ss,ooo.oo.

$ 77,ooo.oo

S _t7,qgq!g_
$ 11,000,00

I 49,soo.oo

$ _. zo,ooo.oo

5

s 46,3s0,00

s 247,77530

10,650.00

$ 46,009190

s 7s,ooo,oo

$ lol,ooo.oo
5,-,___1,!!q4q_

23,175.00

11,852.s0

8,790,00

11,992.50

16,310.00

55,240.00

27,s00.00

38,500.00

13,500,00

5,500.00

24,750.09

35,000,00
500.00

272,6!9.0o

247,775.O0

r0,650,00

46,000.00

75,000.00

101,000,00

7,500.00

3,500.00

5,000,00

$ 4sq,4!40

1,000.00

I
d

s(
)
$

s
t

s
4

s
(
d

9

1

2

3

4

5

5

7

I

4,505

273

23

15

101

3

1

2

LF S" Water Maln, PVC C900 cL 235

LF 6" Water Maln, PVC C900 Ct 235

EA 8" Gate Valve

EA Fire Hydrant Assembly (6" Lead & Appurtenanccs)

EA 1" Woter Service

EA 4" glow"off Valve & Box

EA 2" lrrlgatlon Servlce

EA coilnection to Exlstlng Water Maln

016

0%

01(

096

$

$

$
(

$

$
(
)

-$ 3,soo.oo 096

S 5,ooo,oo o%

Subtotal Poiable Water $ 495,425'00

2ot 4

Page 309

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cosi Estlnate tor

Toll 0rothers - Phase tF

Unlt Prlco

Subtotel Concrete

Tot.l

$ 20,s60.00 096

$ 18,0s0.00 .. 096-T 
r4r,roooo -T--

3.502,00 096

$ 180,162.00

$ 4,149.00_

$ ?,100.00

S 3s,ooo.oo

S 405,714.00

Cost to
Complste Compl.ts

%

It€m No Quantlty Unlt Doocrlptlon

Conctet€

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

1,028

122

7,L10
206

30,027

138

7

t4

tF Modlfled Type 2 vertlcal curb & Gutler (w/ 6" A0l

tF Modlfled Type 2 S"Vertlcal Curb & Gutt€r (w/ 6n ABI

tF ModlfledType I Rolled Curb & Gutter

LF 8"Type 5 Curb

SF Sldewalk (6" PCC/ d' As)

LF Modltled Type 5 Medlsn curb
EA ConcreteSurveyMonum€nt

EA Sldewalk curb ltEmp

lon AsphsltConcrete(Type'Brl
Ton Aggregate Sase(Class 2l

SF Pavement MsrklnSs

EA Street NameslSn Post

EA Stop Slgn {fi1-11 on street Name Post (sl8n onlyl
tF 12" Whlte Strlpe Umlt Llne (stop Llno)

LF 4" lrllgallon Sleeve, schedule 80 PVc

S 8o,oo $ 225,280,00

S t87,7oo.oo

$ 880'00

$ . 1,o3o.oo

$ 1,500,00

$ ts,oo

Subtotal Streelwork

$ rg?.qo

$ 2,970,00

$ 41e,s22.00

$ 8,000,00 s g0[,n00.00

$ 5,000.00 5 s,ooo.oo."

096

$ zo,oq

I 2s.oo

s 20,00

$ 17,00

s 6.09.
q 30.00

s 300.00

S z,soo.oo

J

20,550,00

18,050.O0

142,200,00

3,502,00

180,162.00

4,140.00

2,100,00

3spo0,00

096

096.

016

016 $
ge6__ _ s
0t6 $
09{ s

s
0s$
09{ s

s
s
s
s
s

$

s

s

Stre€two?k

2,816

9,385

176
5
5

96

198

Streat Llghts & Jolnt Tr€nch

1

2

3

4

5

6

s 20,00

$- s.oo

S am.oo

_ i__,__!00!!_
$ :,oo

096
101

L

20

096

$ qos,zr*,oo

225,280.00
187,700.00

880,00

1,000,00

1,500,00

192,00

2,970.00

s 419s22.00

s 808,000,00

s s,000.00

$ 232,ooo.oo

s 1,045,000,00

1
1

3

LoT Jolnt Trench txcavatlon & Backflll

EA Streetllght Service Polnt

EA LED streetllght {lncludlnB condult, wlrlnS &

eppurt€nances) $ rt,eoo'oo

Subtotal Slreei LlShts & JolntTrench

I zs2,ooo,oo o%

S l,o4s,ooo.oo

3ol 4
Page 310

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



FOTSOM PLAN AREA
C.ost Estlmatetor

Toll Erothers - Phose 7F

Unlt Prlce

s s.oo

_$_____,!r!9_

Tolal

59,555,00

s44,110.00

$ r6s,84o.oo

$ .. s4s,zlo.oo

TOTALS $ lIZl,SOe.OO

ComplBte

096 s

___199%_ s

Cosl lo
complete

59,565,00

S s9,55s.oo

$ 3,089,634.00

Cort to ComPlete

5 r,oas,ooo.oo

$ 59,665.00

$ 280,880,00

$ 3,089,634,00

%

ltomNo Quantlty Unlt Dsscrlptlon
londicEplng & sound walls

11,933

15,546

SF Landscape & lrlgatlon
SF Masonry Sound Walls

$

$

Totsl
contlngency

fotal Cost Esllmate

tlnmlr-P-hele-1E

Slte Preparatlon & Earthwork
Sanltary Sewer System

Slorm Draln Syrtem
potable Wrter Dlstrlbutlon System

Concreto

Streetwork
street tl8hts & Jolnt lrench
Landscaplnt & Sound walls
Contlngency (10%)

Subtotal landscaplng & Sound walh s 603,775,00

Total Cost

39,960.00

$ qo21,4s6,oo I r,8o8,7s4.oo

ffri] T- {orrsooo -3 
,so"B8ooo

s

$ $ 15,550.00.

s 93,168,00

$ 2?e,510.00

$ 496,425.00

$ {05,n4.00
i r19,g2z.oo

4ol 4
Page 311

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



BOND #
PREMIUM:.--.----.--.-___----

PERFORMANCE BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation in the State of

California, and Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,lnc., a

Delaware Corporation, (hereinafter designated as "Principal") have entered into an agreement where

by principal agiees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, which said

ugr..*"nt, Oatea _ 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF
Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby refemed to and made a part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for

the faithful performance of said agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, We, the PrinciPal, and

."f.*-d t" * th" c,t$ ifi,i,ii'.il;il:*11iH"Tfi't?lTfJft.;lH,fiT.?{fi?$"#3i;3T1ff"'.
HUNDRED THIRTy-Fouir AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($30089,634.00), lawful money of the United

States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

successors, executors, and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep

and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof

made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein

specified, and irrall respects aocording to their true intent and meaning, and shall indernniS and save

himless the City, its oificers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, thcn this obligation shall

become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor,

there shall bi included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees,

incuped by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any

judgment rendered,

'l'he surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition

to the terms of the ugr""meni or to the work to be performed thercunder or the specifications

accompanying the sime shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive

notice of any iuch change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to

the work or to the sPecifications.

Page 312

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on 2022.

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(PRTNCTPAL)

BY
(sURETY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

Page 313

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



BOND #
PREMIUM

I,ABOR & MATERIALS BO]$D
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsoln, a Municipal Corporation of the State of
California, and Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation (hereinafter designated as "Principal"), have entered into an agreement

whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF
Suhdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the

performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Folsom to secure

the claims to which reference is made in Title 15 (cornmencing with Sectiorr 3082) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code of the State of California;

NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly
bound unto the City of Folsom and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and other

persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code

of Civil Procedure, in the sum of THREE MILLION EIGHTY-NINE THOUSAND SIX
HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00) for materials furnished or

labor thereon of any kind, or fbr amounts due under the llnemployment Insurance Act with respect to

such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount

hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face

amount thereof, cost and reasonable expenses and fees, including reas<lnable attorney's fees, incuned

by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed

as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered'

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed thatthis bond shall inure to thc benefit ofany and

all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title l5 (commencing with
Section 3082) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their

assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and

void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full fbrce and effect.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or

ad{ition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any

manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,

extension, alteration, or additiorr.

Page 314

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on ,2422.

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(suRETY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

Page 315

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 3

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lF SUBDIVISION
FINAL MAP

Page 316

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

IHE UNDERSIGNED OOES HEREEY STATE THAT W ARE THE ONLY PMNES HAVING ANY RECOro TNE
INTEREST IN THE REAL PROPERry NCLUDEO WfrIN THE BOUNOARIES OF THIS FINAL MAP OF
'TOLLBROIHERS AT FOLSW RANCH PffASE 1F'ND DO HEREBY DECURE IHE CONSENT FROM NO

OffER PERSON IS NECESSARY, AND WE CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF THIS
FINAL MAPND DO HEREBYDEDICATEASPUBLIC RIGHTS€F.WAYAND AS PUBLIC lTILIfr ESEMENTSTO
THE CIW OF FOLSOM. WGINIPARMAY. EST SIOWELL STREETAND A PORTION OF TIMBER LANE.

i NEREBY STAE THAT I HAVE *MINED THIS FIN& MAP OF'TOLL EROTHERS AT FOLW MNCH
PHASE 1F'AND FIND IT TO 8E SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS THE ENTATIVE MAP APPROVED BYTHE
CN COUNCIL OFTHE CIry OF FOLSOM. AND THAT ALL PROVISIONS OF IHE SUSDIVISION MAP ACT AND

ALLAPPLI*8LE CIry ORDIMNCES HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WTH.

WE OO HEREEY OEDICATE FOR SPECIFIC PURPOSES IHE FOLLOWING:

1. A PUBLIC EASEMEffi FOR NE NSTALLAIION AND MAINTENANCE OF DRAIN, qS. SEWR AND

WATER PIPES AND FOR UNDERGROUND WRES AND CONOUITS FOR AECNPAL. ELEVISPN AND

@MMUNICATIONS SERVICES. TOGflHER WITH AW AND AL PPURTENANCES PERTAINING

frERETO ON. OVER, UNDER AND ACROSS LOTS AT. Y, Z AND M AND THOSE STRIPS OF LANO

SHOWN HEREON AND DESIGNAED'PUSLIC UTILIil BSEMENT" (PUE).

2, A PUBLIC 4SEMENT FOR PEDESTRIN ACbESS ON. OVER AND ACROSS LOTS Y, M, Z, AND A

POffiION OF LOTS AT & J ND THOSE STRIPS OF UND SHOW HEREON AND DESIGNATED
.PEDE5TRIAN 

ACCESS EASEMENT' (PAE),

3. A PU8lIC SEMENT NO RIGHTOF.WAY FOR THE INSIALUIION, REPAIR. REMOVI OR

REPSCEMENT OF SNDSCAPINC TMflHER WTH AW ANO ALL APPURTEMNCES PERTAINING
THERETO ON, OWR, UNDER, ACROSS AND ABOVE LOTS Y. M, Z AND A PORTION OF LOI J ANO

THOSE STRIPS OF UNDS SHOM HEREON AND DESIGNATED UNDSSPE EASEMENI' (LE),

STryEN R. KMHN. RCE4S291

CIfl ENGINEER
crwoF FoLsoM
LICENSE EXPIRES: 09/30/2024

DATE:

CIry SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE qAMNED THIS FINA MAP OF'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM MNCH
PHASE lF"ANDINSATISFIEDfrAT$IDMAPISECHNICALLYCORRECT,

4, AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS NO EGRESS FOR SUPPORTAND USE 8Y LAW ENFORCEMENT, FIRE

PROTECTION, WELFffiE AND OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES, THEIR VEHICLES AND PERSONNEL OVER

LOTS A, B AND SRIPS OF LAND ACROSS LOTS J & Z SHOWN HEREON AND DESIGNAT€D

'EMERGENCY VEH1CLE ACCESS WEMEM" (€VA),

5, A PUSLIC ilSEMEM FOR CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTAINING CENRLIUD MIL DELIVERY 8OXES,
PEDESTALS ANO SUBS T@ETHER WITH NY AND ALL PPURTENANCES PERTAINING THERfrO
1NCLUDING PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR DELIVERY AND RECEIPT OF MAIL ON, OVER AND ACROSS

SR|PS OFUND FIVE(5) FEET INWIDTH CONTIGUOUSAND OWSIDETHE PROPERry LINEOF LOTSA

&B(PRIVATE ROADS).

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT
(ffi
CIilSURVEYOR
LICENSE ExPIRES: 06/30/2024

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OfrER OFFICER COMPLETING ffIS CERTIFIqTE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IDENTII OF THE INOIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICb THIS CERTIFICATE IS

ANACHED AND NOTTHE MUTHFULNESS. ACCUMCY OR VAIIDIry OF THAT DOCUMENT.

STAIE OFruIFORNIA CIry CLERK'S STATEMENT
couNfl oF_

TOLL WEST INC. WHICH WILL OO BUSINESS iN CALIFORNIA
AS TOLL BROTHERS WEST INC..
ADEUWARE CORPOilTION

BEFORE ME,-, A NOTARY PUBLIC
I HEREBY SIATE THATTHE CIry COUNCILOFTHE CITYOF FOLSOM HASAPPROVED THIS FINA MAP OF

'TOLL BROTHERS AI FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 1F', ND HAS A6EPTED. ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLIC,

SUUECI TO IMPROVEMENTS, AL RIGHTSOF-WAY AND EASEMENTS OFFERED HEREON FOR

DEDICATION IN ACCOROANCE WfrH THE TERMS OF THAT OFFER AND HAS APPROVED THE

AEANDONMENT OF NE EASEMENTS LISED hEREON.

NAME: GREGORYS-VAN DAM
TITLEI VICEPRESIDENT

PERSONALLY APPEARED 

-

WHo PRoVED To ME oN THE BAsIs oF SATISFAC-u-Y--EVibIJjEET6.--BEfrETEF56iF'G6G
MME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED TO THE WITHIN 1NSTRUMENT AND ACKNOREDGED TO ME THAT

HE/SHtrHfl EXECUTED THE SAME IN HIS/HERNHER AUTHORIZED CAPACIryOES), AND ftAT BY

HBHERMEN SIGMTURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENTTHE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTIfl UPON BEMLF OF

WHICH THE PERSON(S)ACED. reCUEO THE INSIRUMENT,

I CERTIil UNOER PENALry OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STAE OF WIFORNIATHATTHE
FOREGOING P&GMPH IS TRUE NO CORRECT,

WIftESS W HANO AND OFFICII SEAL.
BY:

CHRISTA FREEMNIE
clfl ctERK

DATE:-

NAME: SCon ESPING
TITLE: ASSISTANT SECRETARY

DATE

9GNAruRE

W PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUS'NEsS

PRINTED MME RECORDER'S STATEMENT

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT F|LEDTH|S...................'_DAyOF _,202,AT_.M.tNBOq OFMAPS

AT PAGE- ATTHE REOUESTOF MACNY &SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS, INC. TITIETO THE UND
INCLUDED IN THIS FIN{MPBEINGVESTEDAS PER CERTFIqE NO. ON
FILE INTHIS OFFICE.

mNMre 
oocuMENTNO. _

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER W DIRECTION AND IS BASED UPON A FIELO SURVEY IN

CONFORMANCE WB ftE R€OUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT AND LOCru ORDINANCE AT

THE REQIEST OF FOLSOM Ril ESTATE SOUTH, LLC, A DEUWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN

JANUARY 2020. I HEREBY STAE ruT THIS FINAL MAP SUBSTANTIALY CONFORMS TO THE
CONOITIONALLY aPPROVED TENTATIVE MAP| THAT THE MoNUMENTS wlLL BE oF THE CHAMCTER AND
WILL OCCUPY THE POSITIONS AS INDICATED AND WILL 8E SET BY DECEMBER 31, 2024, NO ftAT SAID
MONUMENTS WLL BE SUFFICIENTTO ENBLE THE SURVry TO BE RflMCO.

MYCOMMISSION CSMISSION NUMBERI

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTffER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFIATE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IDENTIT OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE D@UMENT TO WHICH ftIS CERTIFICATE IS

ANACHFD AND NOT THF MIFHflN NFSS ACCIIRACY OR VAI IDIW OF THAT DOCUMFNT.
$CRAMENTO COUNfr RECORDER
STAE OF CALIFORNIA

MACKAY & SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS. INC,

STATE OFSLIFORNIA FEE:S_
COUNryOF

FOR REVIEW ONLY ON- BEFORE NOTARYPUBLIC

PAULFERGUSON. JR., PS 9265

EXPIMTION DATEi MRCH 31,2024
PERSONALLYAPPEARED-
wHo pRowo ro ME oN ffi mAiiSiACEF ryDEilEm BE rHETmrcG
NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBED IO BE WTNIN INSTRUMENT ANO ACKNOWEDGEO TO ME THAT

HASHATHEY EXECWED THE SAME IN H€/HERtrHEIR AUTHORIEO CAPACIW(ES). ANO THAT SY

HISHEffiHEIR SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSRUMENTTHE PERSON(S), OR TtsE ENNry UPON BEHALF OF
WHICH THE PERSON(S)ACTED, ilECUTEO THE INSTRUMENT.

I CERTIry UNDER PEWry OF PERJIRY UNOER THE UWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIATNATTHE
FOREGOING PAMGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORECT.

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 1F
BEING PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN ND SO OESIGNA]ED ON IHAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED 'PARCEL MAP' FILED
FOR RECORD ON JUNE 3, ?019 IN BOOK 2S OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9, SACBMENTO COUNTY

RECORDS, BEINGA PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 & 20. TOMSHIP 9 NORTH, MNGE 8 gST, M.D.B.M.

o IE:______114422_

NAVD88 BENCHIVARK{ITY OF FOLSOM

BilCHMRK'77' ELEVATION=380.28 MVDsE

BM$ DISK STAMPED 'CIry OF FOSOM BM 77'ON THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A CONCreTE
DRAINAGE STRUCTURE, LOCATION OFStrE IS PPROXIMATELY 13@ FEET SOUTH OF THE INERSECTION
OF MANGINI PARruAY AND E. SIDWELL SNEET ON THE SST SIDE OF E. BIDELL SIREfl.
APPROXIMATE UTITUOE: N38O37 30.01 LONGITUOE: W1210 06 49,04

ELEVATION OFSO,2SWAS ESTABLISHED BYA DIFFERENTIALLEVEL CIRCUI] FROM COUNTY BENCHMARK
UO1HOg STAMPED'K€5fl IN FEBRUARY2OI4 BY MACKAY AND SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEERS, INC,

WTNESS MY ffiDAND OFFICIAL SE{.

CITYOFFOLSOIVI . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET ,I OF 9

+
ClTY

SEE SHEET 2 FOR TRUSTEE'S STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

SIGMTURE PRINTED MME

MY PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESS IS-COUNry

MYCOMMISSION EXPIRES: WCOMMISSION NUMBER:

mACnY&somPs
flott$ PlNs auRwos
i@5cM&R6e. su6r$ idelo qes4 €6ni@

Page 317

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



TRUSTEE'S STATEMENT

NAME:

l|TLEl

NOTARY'S

STATE OF CALIFORNA

couNryoF _

FIRSTAMERISN T1RE COMPANY, N TRUSTEE UNDER THAT CERTAIN DEED OF TRUSTAND ASSIGNMEM

OF RENTS WNH flroRE FILING, RECORDED AUGUST 24 2O2O AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 202008240892

AND AMENDED BY DOCUMENT NUMEER2O?10122009, RECORDED JNUMY 22, 2021, OFFICIAL

RECOROS, HEREBYCONSENTS TO THE RECOROATION OFTNIS MAP AND THE SUBDIVISION OF THE LANDS

SHOWN HEREON,

NOTFS
ALL CURW D]MENSIONS ARE MDIUS, DELTA AND ARC LENGfr, ALL DISTNCES SHOWN ARE

GROUND DISTANCES ND ARE IN FEETAND DECIMALSftEREOF. DUE TO ROUNDING THE sUM OF
INDIVIDUAL DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUALIHE OWML! DIMENSION.

THIS FIN& W CdTAINS 34,2Ih ACRES GROSS CONSISNNG OF 1OO ESIDENTIAL LOTS

ANDSEfrERED LOTS. THE RESIDENTII LOTS ARE NUMSERED WITH THE FOLLOWNG

SEOUENCES:4 - K. THE LEnERED LOTS ARE: M, AI, A, B. G, J, Y ANDZ

,GEOTECHNIC{ ENGINEERING
(PROJECT NO. E170S.92) WAS
?019, AND IS AVAILABLE FOR
DEVELOPMENI OEPARTMENT,

STUDY UPDATE FOR REGENCY AT FOLSOM UNCH"
PREPAR€D BY YOUNGDAHL CONSULTING GROUP, INC IN MAY,
PUBLIC INSPECTION AT BE CIfr OF FOLSOM COMMUNN

4. ALL FRONT LOT CORNERS WILL BE Sfl WTH A 1' DIAMETER BRASS DISC STAMPED'LS 9265'ON
THESIDEWAIKWITHAl.OOFOOTOFFSSONTHESIDEPROPERryLINEEXTENDED. (SEEDETAILS

HEREON).

5, RilR CORNERS WILL BE SflS FOLLOWS (UNLESS SHOWN OIHERWSE)
5.r. FOR LOTS463 -49s, d99 - 503,527 528,5S-v1 ANO COMMON UNES OF 4994$ A5@510/511

WLL BE SEI WTH A S8' REBAR AND PLreTE CAP STAMPED 'LS 9265'.
5.2. FORLOTS4-452,497,59-509,515-522.524'526,529-537,g2ANoCOMMONLINESOF

513/515 WILL BE SETWtrH A4JO FOOT OFFSET ON THE SIDE LOT LINE WITH A 98" REBM AND

PLSTIC CAP STAMPED 'LS 926$ {sEE DETAIL TH IS SHEET).
5.3, FOR LOTS 498, 512, 523 AND 543 WHICH FIL WITHIN A MSONRY SOUND/RETAINING WIL

WILL 8E SET WTH A 3/4' BUSS TAG STAMPEO 'LS 9265' TO THE FACE OF WALL 2.OO FOOT
ABOVE GROUNOOR ON TOP OF THEWALL.

6 LOTS A AND B IPRIVATE FOAD) StsOW\ UEREO! SHAL- BE GV\-ED IN FEE SIMPLE TO qE
REGENCY A- FOLSOM SNCH OWNERS ASSOCIATION (FILED WtrH SECRETARY OE STAE STATE
OF CALIFORNIA ON 2/41202. FLI\G t 499707) N A PRMA1E qOAO FOR TdE BENECIT A!0
GENEML USE OF THE LOTS SHOWN HEREON.

7. LOT G AND LOT AT SHOWN HEREON SruL BE GMNED IN FEE SIMPLE TO THE EGENCY AT

FOLSOM MNCH OWNERSNSOCIATION S COMMON AREAS FORTHE SENEFIIAND GENERAL USE

OFIHE LOTS SHOW HEREON.

8. LOTS Y. Z, AND M ARE UNDSCAPE LOTS TO BE DEED€D IN FEE TO THE CIry OF FOLSOM AND

MAINTANED BYTHE CIflOF FOLSOM,

9, LOT J 15 AN OPEN SPACE LOTNO WILL BE DEEDED IN FEE TO THE CIil OF FOLSOM BY SEPAMTE
DOCUMENTAND SUBJECT TO AE PRVATE ROrc EASEMENT (PRE) SHOWN HEreON. ftE PRVAIE
ROAD ASEMEM (PRE) SHOWN ON LOT J IS APPURTENAM TO LOT 1A. OF 431 BM 1, SHOM
HEREON AND WLL bE MAINIAINED BYTHE REGENCYAT FOLSOM MNCH OMERS ASSOChTiON.

10 A PRIVATE PEDESTRIN ACCESS ENEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT AND GENEML USE OF THE
MEMBERS OF THE REGENCY AT FOLSOM RNCH OWNERS ASSOCIATION ON, OVER AND ACROSS
THOSE STRIPS OFUNDSHOWN HEREON NDDESIGMED "PRIVATEPEOESTRIAN ACCESS'IPPA).

11. THE PRIVAE ROAO EASEMENT (PRE) ND PRIVATE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT (PLE) SHOM ON LqTJ
ARE APPURTENANT TO LOTS A AND 8, SHON HEREON AND W[ BE MAINTAINED BY NE
REGENCY AT FOLSOM MNCH OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

12. THIS MAP IS A PORTION OF ffE WSTING TENTATIVE MP SUBDIVISION, TOLL BROTHERS AT

FOLSOM MNCH RESOLUTION NO. 1frM PASSED ND AMPTED BY THE CIfl COUNCIL, CIry OF

FOLSOM, MARCH r0,2020.

13, PROPERTY SU&ECT TO COWNNTS, CONDIIIONS ANO RESTRICTIONS AS CONTAINEO IN THE

DEED ffiOM CANERINE HOLTHOUSE MNGINI AND ALBERT O. MNGINI (WHO ACQUIRED TITLE AS

ALBERT D, MANAGIND WIFE AND HUSBAND, RECORDED SEPEMBER 12. 2@2, (BOOK) 20020912
(PAGE) 282, OFFtCt[ RECOROS AND RE{ECORDED MAY 9, 2007, (BOOK) 2m705m (PAGE) 525

OFFICIAL RECOROS.

14 PROPERry SUSJECT TO THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINEO IN TIE DOCUMENT ENItrLED
^FIRSTAMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENTAGREEMENI'RECORDED JULY 15,2014 AS

B@K20140715. PAGE 34 0F OFFICI& RECORDS.
. DOCUMENT(S) DECLARING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF RECORDED JANUARY 29, 2016N B@K

201 601 29, PAGE 03& OF OFFICIAL RECORDS-
. ,PARTA! ASSIGNMENT AND NSUMPTION AGREEMENT REUTIVE TO frE FOLSOM SPECIFIC

PLAN AMENDED ND reSTATEO TIER I DEVEL@MEM AGREEMENT RECORDED

AIGUST 24, 2O?0, AS NSTRUMENT NO. 2O2OO824O8S OF OFFICIAL RECORDS,
. DOCUMENT(S) OECURING MODIFICATIONS THER€OF RECORDED OCTOEER 6, 2O2O AS

BOOK 20201006, PAGE 1911 0F OFFICII RECORDS-

15, PROPERfl SUSJECITOIHETERMS. CONDITIONS, PROVISIONSANDSTIPUUTIONS AS CONTAINED
IN frE AGREEMENT ENTITLED "WATER SUPPLY AND FACILtrIES FINANCING PUN AND

AGREEMENT", BYNO BEruEEN THE CIN OF FOLSOM, AND FOISOM REAL ESTATE SOUN, [C. ET
AL, RECORDED JAIUMY 2A 20 1 3, (B@K 20 I S'24 {PAGE) 1 382, OFFICIAL RECORDS: AMENDMENI

TO frE WATER SUPPLV AND EACILITIES FINNCING PUN AND AGREEVENT, RECORDED JUNE 3

2014, gOOK 20140603 PAGE 959, OFFICIAL RECOrcS: AND AMENDMENT TO THE WAER SUPPLY
ANO FACILITIES FINANCING PLN NO AGREEMENT. RECORDED JUNE 3,2014, BOOK 2014603

. PAGE960,OFFICIALRECORDS.

16. THE UND DESCRIBED HEREIN L|ESWITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE CIil OF FOLSOM COMMUNIil
FACILtr|ES OISTRICT 2013i MATER FACILITIES & SUPPLY), AS DISCLSED BY THAT CERTAIN

SSESSMENT MAP. RECORDEO DECEMBER S,2013, AS (BOOK) 20121230 (PAGE) 311, AND IS

SU&ECTTO AW FUTUREASSESSMENTfrEEOF

17. PROPERff SUilECT TO AN EASEMilI OWR SAID UND FOR AVIqTION NO INCIOENTA

PURPOSES, AS GMNED TO THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO AND frE CIfr OF FOLSOM, IN DEED

RECORDEDJ!1Y15,2014, (8OOK)20140715(PAGE)360,OFFICIALRECORDS.

18. THE UNO DESCRIBED HEREIN LIESWININ THE BOUNDARY OF THE CIB OF FOLSOM COMMUNIfr
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.17 (WILLOW HIIL PIPELINE), AS DISCLOSED BY TUT CERTAIN

ASSESSMENT MAP. RECORDED FEBRUARY 10,2015, AND RECORDED MARCH 25,2015
(BOOK) 201S325 {PAGE) 353, AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE ASSESSMENT]HEREOF.

19. THE UND LIES Wff frE BOUNOffiIES OF PROPOSED SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROEMEffi
DtsrRtcrN0.2.

20, PROPERry SIBJECT TO FOLSOM CORDOVA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL FACILtrIES

IMPROVEMENT DISRICT NO. 3 PER 20060707 O,R. 0662.

21. PROPERry SUBJECT TO NE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DOCUM€NT ENTITLED

SGREEMENT AFFECTING REI PROPERfr ONCLUSIONARY HOUSING AGREEMENT)' PER DN

2021W20615.

22. NE UND OESCRIBED HEREIN LIES WtrHIN THE BOUNDARY OFBE CIfl OF FOLSOM, COMMUNIry

FAC|LnES D|STRICT NO. 18 (FOLSOM PUN AREA - WDE IMPROWMENTS AND SERVICES), AS

DISCLOSED BY BAT CERTAIN ASSESSMENT MAP, RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 2015, AS
(BOOK)20i5'2O9IPAGfl A27 ANDISSUBJECT-OANYFUTJREASSESSMEM-HEREOF.'. 

DbCdMENTISJ DECSRING MODIFCATONS THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMEER 16, 2018 AS

B@K 20181116, PAGE q65 OF OFFICAL RECOrcS.

23. THE IND DESCRIEED HEREIN LIESWTHIN THE BOUNOARY OF THE CIryOF FOISOM COMMUNIry

FACTLITIES DISTRICT N0.23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENTARil NO.3 RECORDED JUNE 8,2O2O

AS (BOOK) 2O2M6O8 (PAGE) 1611 AS DISCLOSED BY THAT CERTAIN ASSESSMENI MAP (BOOK)130

OF MPS AT (PAGE)27, RECORDED APRII 20 2O2O OFOFFICIAL RECORDS,
. DOCJMEM(S} DECURING MODIFICfIONS -HEREOF FECORDED DEC€MBER 20, 2021 AS

Bm< 20211220. PAGE 0572 0F OFFICIAL RECOrcS.

24. LOI J SHOWN HEreON IS SUEJECT TO THE PHASE 1 - REGENCY AT FOLSOM MNCH ruEL
MODIFICATION PUN, PREPffiS BY MACMY AND SOMPS, ON FILE IN THE Cfr OF FOLSOM

COMMUNIfl OEVELOPMENT DEPARfr ENT.

25. ANY EASEMENT FOR WATER COURSE OWR THAT PORNON OF THE UND LYING WTHIN IDER
CREEK, TOGETHER WTH ANY RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF THE PUBLIC FOR FISHING ANO RECREATION

PURPOSES OVER THE PORTION OF TNE LAND MAT E PRESENTLY COWREO BY WAER
DISCLOSED ON ASSESSOR PLAT BOOK 72 PAGE 6.

26, PURSUANT TO SECTION HglG) OF N€ SUBDVISION ACT NE FILING OF THIS FINAL MP SHALL

CONSTITUTE ABNDONMENT OF THE ESEMENTS LISED BELOW, NOT SHOM HEREON:
A RIGHIS-OF-WAY AND LgPAWE AOJACENT TO OR WITHIN gST BIDWELL STREET ND

MANGINI PARMAY N SHOWN ON PARCEL 2 PER 236 PM 9 (Nil RIGHTS{F.WAY AND

LPAUP.E DEDICATED WITI THIS MAP)

B PRWIOUSLY DEDICATED RIGUTO+WAY FOR ROADAND UTILI-IES (UNGINI DAR<WAY) PER

20170329 OR OvOND DN 202204151002 (NEW RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ASEMENTS DEDTCATED

WITH THIS MAP]

1.

2.

3.

DATE

0N- ANOTARYPUBLIC

PERSONALLYAPPEARED
WdOPFOVEDTOME ON THEBSIS OFSATISFACTOPY ryDENCETOBENE PEFSON(S)WHOSF NAME(S)

]qARE SUESCRIEED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HASHE/THEY

EXECUTED THE WE ]N HISERtrHEIR AUflORZED CAPACIil(IES) AND ftAT BY HI9HEffiEIR
SIGNAIURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S). OR THE ENTIff UPON BEH{F OF ffiICB THE

PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTEO THE NSNUMENT.

I CERTlry UNDER PENALry OF PERJURY UNDER THE UWS OFTNE STAE OF CALIFORNATHATTHE

FOREGOING PAMGRAPH ISTRUE AND CORRECT.

W]TNESS MY HANDAND OFFtrhL Sru.

SIGNATURE PRIMEDNAME

MY PRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESSIS COUIry

WCOMMISSION ilPlRESr- W COMMISSION NUMBER: 

-

I FGFNI)

r'DA. BR6S DISK(ryP)

l

-l
E IF

E lic ta
E ts
"l

I

"'-i

!
FRONT LOT CORNER -ATTACHED SIDEWALK

ryPICAL,I'OFFSET

BASIS OF BEARINGS

mclhY&s0mPsflottEtr Plmss suffios
r@scdhlrR6h subr$ tud' qes4 plo?nj$

REAR LOTLINE

5/8'
REBARCAP

REAR LOT CORNER
WPICAL4'OFFSET

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 2 OF 9

o
F
I
o
a

H
@

@

o
}I

1)

BM

BNOY

ciL
MR
DN

HOA

too
LE

(oA)

OR

PLE

PRE

PUE

(R)

SF

SECTION CORNER AS NOED

SECTION ONE.OUARTER CORNER AS NOTED

FOUND MONUMENTAS NOTED

STANDARO CIry OF FOLSOM MONUMENT reLL STAMPED'LS 9265"TO BE SET PER (3X4)

3i4'IRON PIPEWIH ruSTCPLUG STAMPED'LS92S'TO EESET PER (3)

5i8" REEAR WTH PUSTIC CAP STAMPED "LS 5750" TO BE Sfl PER (1)

5/8' REEAR WTH PUSTIC CAP STAMPEO' LS 917f TO BE SET PER (6)

SETSTANDARO CIfl OF FOLSOM MONUMENTWELL STAMPED'LS 9265"

SET ]4' IRON PIPE WtrH PLASTIC PLUG STAMPED "LS 9265'

SET 5]8' REBAR. 4' OFFSET WITH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED ''LS 9265' PER NOTE 5 ON TH IS SHEET

SET 5/8' REEAR WtrH PSIIC CAP STAMPED \S 9265'

SET 3/4' BMSS IAG STNPED 'LS 9265"

DIMENSION POINT

RECORD OATA PER REFERENCE

ACRES

BOOK OF MFS
BOUNDMY
CENTERLINE

OECUMIION OF CONENTSAND RESTRICTIONS

OOCUMENTNUMBER O,R.

EMERGENCY VEH ICLE ACCESS ENEMENT
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCBTON

IRREVOqELE OFFER DED]CATION
UNDSCAPEENEMENT
OWruL
OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMENTO COUNfl

::R11'J$#&?,T::#.',f('EEN.TEll) !EGENa-------qeu!!Es
PARCELMP 

- 

BOUNOARY

PRVATEPEDESTRIANACCESS(SEENOTElO) 

- 

LOTLINE

PRIVATE ROrcWAY MEMENT (SEE NOTE 1 I) LOT LINE & RIGHT OF WAY
pUBLtC UT|L|TSSEMENT EXiSTINGRIGHT{F-WAY

MDALaEARTNG 
-_- 

CENTERLINE

RTGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENTLINE

SQUAREFEfl 
-'-- 

sEcTtoNLlNE
ADJACENT PROPERry LNE

SHEETINDEXNUMBER SHEfl INDEXLINES

THE BASIS OF BffiINGS FORTHIS MAP IS THE NORTHEASTERLY
LINE OF LOT H AS SHOW ON THAT CERTAIN FINAL MP TITLED
TOLL BROIHERSAT FOLSOM WCH PHASE 18 6 1C'FILED FOR
RECORD ON SEPIEMBER 13,2021 IN BOOK 431 OF MAPS. AT
PAGE 1, SACRAMENTO COUNry RECORDS AND HAVING A
BEffiING OF NORfr 61'16'34'WEST BEruEEN THE FOUND
MONUMilTSSHOM HEREON.

REFERENCES
(1) 236PM9
(2) 43r BM 1 (TBPHASE 1B& lC)
(3) 4328M2(MRPHASE 3 BRGE LOT)
(4) 41 BM 3lMRPHASE 3VILUGE4)
(5) DN 201912171593
(6) DN202204110S7{CERTIFICATEOF

CORRECTION)
(7) 41 BM2(MR PHASE3VILLAGE2 &3)

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE, 1F

BEING PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNATEO ON THAI CERTAIN MAP TITLED "PARCEL MAP' FILEO

FOR RECORO ON JUNE 3. 2019 IN BOOK 236 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9 SACMMEN]O COUNry
RECORDS, BEINGAPORTIONOFSECTIONS 17&20.TOWNSHIP9NORIH, RANGES EAST. M.D.B.M.

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNry . CALIFORNIA

Page 318

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



520519518

525

517

(:.j
LOTTCOUR

462461460459

4U

487

458

486

465

457

466

485

488

456

467

484

455

468

483

4y

I

509

I
I

I
LOT

DCR

Ix
_l. t,,

LOT

Y/

I

LOTJ

i),

U

to

LOTLANE-

TOTA

511

I

{.e)

J

t
I

tl
ll
1l
LI
i--r

LOT J

rt)

291

\ --5
K/

I,
f--

U
Eo
tu
o
Oao

MANGINI NCH
PHAS€ 3 WGE LOT

LOi 5
432 BM 2

ti
| | uncr ror

LOT 15
l1:gseurorl

FOUNDSTNDAro
ctryoFFoLsoM
MONUMENTWELL
STAMPED'1S9171"

231

I

I

l\

232
LOT

ilANGINI RANCH
PHASE J LNCE IOT

LOT 12
432 BM 2

-(] or prn
ll l>nr rorqrnrrorar 234

30'

2A

244

PUAPAEl3)

_ _i!01

\ oeprn
DN 201910r

30 PUE/PE{2)

210

LOT

rosmO, ^,.

,')'

LOT B

..1 s5

i57

lsa

i5s

l60

| 6r

laz

69

70

276

PMCEL 1A

2J6 PM 10

{

t-
il

64
LOT H

431 BM

WEIL PER COUNry STANDMDS

TOLL AROTHERS AT FOLSOV RANCH

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

65

.-.

67

s
\-

I

i

LOT 1A
431 8M

LOT
BMLOT H

431 BM 1

274 215

/ 4J1

273

CONSTRICTION.TO
BE RESF TO COUNfr.
STANDAROS ANER
IMPBWEMENTSARE 

-,GoMPLETED PER (1). i
zst 

"

277

I

c#enrrue/--: l

+
LOT ]A

PHASE 18 & lC
431 BM 1

BITETRATL 
/

1,/
) r ^-. i--x

zsal I .", 1250,,
i !249

TOLL EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RNCH
PHASE 18 & IC

431 8M l

280

iz+si

287

290

291

\ 10.

LOT H
431 BM 1

29',

z:a ,'zrr.,^ \'236/

291

6

291

0 60 r20 240

--:SilE: 1'=120'

FINAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1F

BEING PARCEL 2 N SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATEO ON THAT CERTAIN MAP TITIED "PARCEL MAP' FILED

FOR RECORD ON JUNE 3,2019 IN BOOK 236 OF PACEL MAPS AT FAGE 9, SCUMENTO COUNTY

RECORDS EEINGA POFTION OF SECTIONS I7&rc OMSHIPg NORTH. SNGE 8 EAST, M,0,8.M.

291

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM WCH
PHASE I8 & 1C

431 BM 1

mACTAY&somPs
Ereills F|NS gUWOB
r@scdlrR6tu su6r$ Mr. uew! p16l?hirue

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 3 OF 9
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 319

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Curve Table

Lengh

8.85'

1 1.35'

12i8'

1024

2AAA'

8.17

10.35

27.41'

6 63'

6.24'

y3E

l9_21

30.27'

123.S'

4.19

47.69'

2'11\5',

3'35!d

a's's'
2'33'45

6'38 €"

29a502'

9"52'33'

8"46!5"

Q"24'12

2',44'52'

1.2S23"

98'29 37"

1'3/26"

6'5611"

35'30'27'

12'391S

s'09'05'

232.04'

1E1.50'

24.0d

6.00

176.50'

16.00'

17.00'

18150'

92.00

260.0q

240.00'

20.00

678.00'

2S.00

2m.00'

200.00

31.00

c1

Q

c3

c4

c5

c6

c7

c6

c9

c10

c11

c14

c17

Line Table

Len9S

4.00'

22.4!

20.00

15.24'

Beanng

N09'059.E

N24'38'29ry

N72"17'42',E

N81"48'50'E

L1

L2

L3

L4

!d'/
.6

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1F

BEING PARC4 2 AS SHOWN AND SO DESIGNATED ON THAT CERTAIN W TITLED 'PARCEL MAP" FILED

FOR RECGD ON JUNE 3. 2019 IN BOOK 236 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9, SACUMENTO COUNW

RECOROS, BEINGAPORTIONOF SECTONS 17A20. TOMSHIP9 NORTH, MNGE 8EAST. M.D.B.M.

clry oF FOLSOM . SACMMENTo cOUNry . CALIFORNIA

mAG[itY&s0mPS
40NES Utm SURvsE

.cA$6n €6)ftrr4

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 4 OF 9

n=:oz.so R "*

B,
'9

MANGINI RANCH

PHASE 3 LARGE LOT
LOT 12

432 BM 2

22

//e

22'

450

125'PUE

!-

1
12.s'PUE

+
30'PU4SPAE(3)

PLE/FAE

PTE/PE

A=23"0803'
L=8.08'

)'
(n

s

t.-"o
471 0204040

--:SCALE:1'=4O'
(tt

4E1

12,5 PUE\--
'.1\

?e-
9

+ >--4'
PARCEL 1A

236 PM 10

aa,

R=s.00'

L=15.10

s

492

c&

i
€

-7-
?c.-

9
L=68.091o4)

R:210.00'

2@

// '30'PUE/LE/PAE(2)

r--
I

ocn (m+ r)een /
DN 201912171592&
DN 201912171593

LOT J
133324C

\ OPEN SPACE

\

491

st\e€r 
6

T--
sQt,

v

LO'I H

}eeTOLL BROTHERS ./ ,1.. - _ -
AT FOLSOM RANCH 

,---__ /

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS

PHASE 1B & 1C !
__431 BM 1 i
OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

FWRE EIKE
TRAIL

LOT J

SHEET4 OF 9

1

493
5.979SF

rl0 PUE

l=30.S9'

-'\
4.00'

lOPUE

496
5 593 SF

479
4,764SF

t 476

F-12.5'PUE
(

Page 320

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



i'",1ii"i--------+-
2i5 i 216

-----MANGTNT nnnCx - pnnsr
VILLACE 2 & J

441 BM 2

N&'1430E

N89"14'30',E 413.il

T-

PHASE 3 LARGE

LOT 12
432 BM 2

--

r 
^r 

S PU4WAE(3)\ ----'--
MANGINI RANCH

217

150.00

LOT J

MANGINI

LOT B

t

9Hou

tuu
ong6
6

F-
F
t.ll
I.J.J

Ia
UJt!
a

6

F,utu
E.
F
a

J)
U

=o6
F
@

U
-{

I

LOT Y
Q,142 SF

PUEtrEFAE

^ =lj',r$9
, =rsr,a6j.9l!

LO'T
2.4774C
PUAWA

A-83'g'02"

I

L-r2.5'PUE
ILOT G
I

I

J

263.64'

R=228!0' A4"g'03'

_ _[8ejl4siE_]!12',-
R=272.m'4=5"22'10"

PUE

LOT J

APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE
OF FUTURE BIreTUIL

Line Table

Langfi

30.16'

kBdng

N81.5153'EL1

449 ",e5j4 
-

2 2

22

*/"
h

/ 12.5'PUE

472

P I

i
I
I
I

l-- 12.5 PUE

FUT!RE

480

12.5 PUE

TIMBER LANE
(PRVATE ROD)

LOT A
2.q7&
PUE/EVA

PER

\-' 1---+'
L=122.30

40NE6 P4X6 SURWOB
1od ffi& Rls otu $h i$ Rdilnb. cAsm p6t!!e

DN201912171593
SEE SHEETT

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 5 OF 9

51

B

,ry

1O'PUE /\

A=98'4'37'
L=q.34 489

\
10 PUE

+

/

u

L=29.17'488

tA=B'46'33'
L:30.99

49312.5 PUE SEE SHEET 6

0204080

---rSCI(E: 1"=40'

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1F

BEING PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN ANO SO DESIGNATED ON THAT CERIAIN MAP TITLEO'PffiCEL MP' FILED

FOR RECORD ON JUNE 3, 419 IN BOOK 236 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9. SACUMEMO COUMY
RECORDS, BEING A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 &20, TOWSHIP 9 NORTH, NG€ 8 EST, M.D,B.M.

clryoFFoLSOM . SACRAMENToCOUNT . CALIFORNIA

NACIGY&SOMPS
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS. LEGEND AND REFERENCES

d- 462
P 4,990SF

12.5'PUE

463
s,811 SF

-a-----

a 459
4,S0 SF

458
4,380 SF

457
4,3& SF

453
4,495SF

452
4,498SF

451
4,499SF

125'PUE-l
R=522.m'

67.S

L=26/8'
487

5,101 SF

3 485
R 4,200 sF

466
4,320SF

---T---
12.5 PUE

s 467
f, 4,345SF

e
484

4,272 SF

481
4,672SF

Page 321

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



489
6,731 SF

IdPUE

4=98'29 37"
L=9.38

491 u
7,150 SF

492
5,979 SF

N75.6'34"E(R)

10'PUE -'1

A=88'46 33'

I

I
I
I
I

22

LOT J
r3.9324C

OPEN SPACE

\4(n

s

I

PER
&

{

\u^
ti',

(n

rflI
F

SEE SHEET 5
485 485483

..-'-'- - "^t

\ N52.2713W

487484
442

481

4E0

I25'PUE

-9/ f''

TIMBER LANE
(PRIVAE ROAD)

" LOTA
2.477t{C
PUE/WA

N I 2_5'PUErR=228.m 44'903"

_ _q8qq30jE_l!!4'-
R=272.00 A=5'22'10"

R=20.00 A+3'g'02
N77'2022'E(R)

APPROXIMATECENERLINE
OF FUURE

SEE SHEET 7

q

8.00'

SEE SHEfl7

Line Table

L€i9h

22.49

30.16

2000

8eadng

Nl0'46 07',W

NEl'5f53^E

N72',17'4tE

L1

12

B

Curve Table

L€nglh

627'

12.77

6.24

ftlb

6'S1f

2'852',

1'423',

2S.00'

2@.00'

240.00

cr

c2

c3

617.4311X2XO4)

/ ----\ \

,- 493

k

\..,
\i,
'f'

494

APPROXIMTE
FUIURE BIKEIRAIL

P

500

+<+.-

",>:f!,

I

I

_d

(6. s
.t

LOT J
r 3.932+AC

OPENSPACE

542

LOT H

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RNCH
PH6E 1B & lC

431 Bil 1

0204080

--:SCALE: 1"=4O'

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1F

BEING PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN NO SO DESIGNAIED ON IHAT CERTAIN MAP TITLED "PARCEL MAP FIIED

FG RECORD ON JUNE 3, 2019 IN BOOX 2S OF PSCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9, SCUMENTO COUNTY

RECOROS. EEINGA PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 ! 20, TOMSHIP 9 NORTH, SNGE 8 EASI, M-D.B.M,

CITYOF FOLSOI\iI . SACRAMENTOCOUNW . CALIFORNIA

nhcrhY&solps
ilotts Puxft guffi@
!@5cHb!'R6tu $br$ Mr A!F3 proterm

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 6 OF 9
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 322

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



12.61'
16.76'

-_______l

821'21',2t

R=81.00'LOT G
20,47 SF

L- rzs'pue
I

I

I

461

12.5'PUE

1______

---1---
12,5 PUE

463

460

LOT t
U

C)
Io

UNGINI RNCH
PHASE 3 LARGE LOT

1015-4328M2
MANGINI RANCH PHASE J

VLLAGE 2 & J
441 BM 2

u
do

\---L-ir--L-- E.Uo
x

u
doI

MANGINI
I

I

I

LOT Y
I

I

I

-t
I

I

I

1

I

I

ll
tl
t)-r- - -!'1- -
I 3'
I llr.El
lJl
tl

30!0
LOT Z

19,370SF
PUSLgPAE

42,142SF E
PUE/LE/PE

t
I

I

I

I

I

I

T
PUg

LAPS

512
459

J

LOT J
13S32SC

OPEN SPACE

N84"@51'E
o)
F
ut
ulIo
t1l
IJJ
U)

LOT A
2A77AC
PUAEVA

N--t63E-
DALEA LANE

IPRVATE ROAD)

150!0

()
F
ul
ulIa
[!
u.J
(t)

14.51' H\08'0216W

OF FUTURE
BIKETMIL

I
I

6 
N23'0822'W b

\-uog"n:zz"w t.zz
F-N20'Y25w 23.14' d

22 b

3ir

FNo2"S'ZW 13.13

?

464 CENTERIINE 510
BIKETRAIL Line Table

Lengh

17.69

25.35'

14.57

24,50'

30-16

&arire

N57'St0"E

s05'21'38'W

s16'24'4"W

N81'51 53'E

L1

12

L3

L4

L5

d 6

,,u"rnrr""ro.oz'_f
Ar512lS L-22.59

12.5' PUE

I

J nzs'tzsex.uj
.9

r51
A/^6

ar'

509

I

447 I

I

l
n' 22

I

I

I

I
\

e

n.69

p
508

TIMBER LANES
(MVATE ROS) l-- 12.5',PUE

+
-€- rr'-(,6m' N32"@4'E 20.58',

PER

I
12.5PUE f 507

I
I

N77"26',22',E(R)

,5q-- I

o'i"F*

SEE SHEET 8 0204080:-:
SC[E: 1"=40'b

\4

\?o
*ro',r'on^* rr.ooJ 506CENERLINE

OF FUURE
EIKETUIL

R"30.0

'r!.-
\2.
'i*

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 1F

BEING PARCEL 2 AS SHOWN AND SO OESIGMTED ON THAT CERTA]N MP IIILED "PMCEL MP' FILED

FOR RECORD ON JUNE 3, 2OI9 IN BOOK 236 OF PARCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9. SACMMENTO COUNTY

RECOROS, BEING A PffiTION OF SECTIONS I7 &20, TOMSHIP 9 NORTH. NGE 8 ENT. M.O.B.M,

1.24.$
4 10'

LOT J
N24'4d01'E

13.93UC
OPEN SPACE

R=35.00 A=31"14'25"

SEE SHEET 6
505

R=36.00'A=109'3931"

499

v, 12.5'PUE

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNry . CALIFORNIA

<o^ DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 7 OF 9SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF
BEARINGS,LEGEND AND REFERENCES \, 500 N3645'55E

504

mAClhY&s0mPS
4OdEF P4IR SUREOB
lECd&R.sotu $h r$Ro, L.CASm €6nj6

Page 323

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



SFE SHEEI 
6

LOT J
13.9324C

OPENSPACE

.-n-;tl=zi-zwi
4.21"m'r5' L=1126 

a_'" "'
_-E!os,so:

"+'21)9

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

SEE SHEET 7
22'

I
I543

I,U

gl".

?2'

,
I

LOT J
13.934AC

OPEN SPACE

499

69s$(TlE)

LOT H

21

sEESHEfl7, /

-' tot I/ 13532N
OPEN SPACE

13515

I

I

I

l
tl
tl
II
ll
I 

-DcRAREA 
2 PER I

| / DN2a1s1z17tss2& Iy' 0N201912171593-

PER

/-------
,' Lor J

13.932$C
OPEN SPrcE

510

125'PUE

1___

529

PHASE 1B & 1C
45r BM r

F
UJ
ul
I
u)
til
ul
U)

DN
DN

\

I

N35"52 55€

LOT H
TOLL BROTHERS AI FOLSOM RNCH

PHASE ]B & 1C
4J] BM ]

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 1F
BEING PARCE! 2 N SHOM NO SO DESIGNATED ON GAi CERTAIN MAP TITLED "PARCEL W' FILEO

FOR RECORD ON JUNE 3, ?019 IN EOOK 236 OF PffiCEL MAPS AT PAGE 9, SACRAMENTO COUNW
RECGOS BEINGAPORTION OFSECTIONS 17&&, TOWNSHIP9NORTH. NGES AS, M.D.B.M.

6\*
le
\4

is

LOT H
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RNCH

PHASE 18 & ]C
4lt 8M l

X
\€
is

CIryOF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNry . CALIFORNIA

nACI([Y&s0mPS
don@a PmxEG 3llwffi
rccr.bd!R4.wsles0,Rruib,d($78 Fr)7nir8

0201040

-

SCALE: l-=4O'
LOT 14

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOTSOM RANCH
PHASE 18 & ]C

451 BV lDECEI\4BER 2022

SHEET 8 OF 9 SHEET 8 OF 9

531
4,530 SF

(-,r.r'tut
\ s33\ s,095 sF

t:.s pue --{
534

5,1&SF

E0.00

541
4,800sF

tr.s'pue J

&.00

A=22'1954'
L=1 1.69'

5,4S SF

508 a
4 538 SF

A=1'2043'

507
4,332SF

62.13

s03
4,745SF

12,5PUE

501
4,987 SF

I

F
I

I

I

I

I

Page 324

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



SEE SHEET 7

AE

,az

-{
ssoj

*-I

trF
FE!-n>Vz
ZQP
I ): ) ?
;I;A>;E]4://n+(A zF*- IU)<, co
li-j5

.H(O

'i o-trv)
cz

Fq=92-
efrD?aa
;.F:l<r
AFTP;.a
EcEes-JX!
a4.,/)

q8B

E9:
-z!6

ifrA
s-- E

69>
=-6Nzq

lx9
6x7

iEi
=!;
!34
6r:

dolz'-i
n8i
EiP

<ET

o
=
oa
To-ao
a
on

mzfo
oocz
i

o
tr
Toazt

iz

a=
-5c=
<oiI* eE

I

:

.(H

I

I

I
I

I

l-.,

-i

d

SECTION

o

"L

4

pc-

.y'. +
,&

/

zsb !

I

a

q
s

1

q

o

*
\.

A
6a
IMmommi<
,offi
^nY8

N
ON

afi
g@

@T
m
m
-l
@

o-n
@

VOYAGER

DRIVE

v\\
\d-

'i-,

@

6
on
@

4zoI
mo
mzo
zo
A
mT
m
mzo
m
@

z -+\- -P ili 
=gBi =rEI ."FoI i8e

r 3l< QIE z'r 
3iE lE! il>tz'

l-.-A-l

o

I
I

I

I

I

I

zo
z

\ l$

io

!p
;Iz6a
=---
z9-
-

l@

m
m

I
m
m+
Toxz
I
m

i-
P3

4
€3

e

p

E

/.+

\

I

t
r3
rj
IR

I
I
I

I

A'1
4

g

I
I

/;

E5E
H+
BE

a
D

-9
rBS

_R3-
=5

(
I
q

€

IIs

o,sz

L

fr;E

JPT

aa=

t_
I

Nol'02 SW 430.3511X2XCt)

EAST BIDWELL STREET

_t
4
=-\.-I

o
-----------f-_-

LOT B

i.1-l^l-iisisiaiR,j iiiiii CRTEKSIONE - PHASE 1

429 8M I

i$

77.74'

qs

ilo

T.
ETE
bdi

SL

oc

B]

\

"eu
T't
a
d

€

:

Page 325

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 4

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lF VESTING
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 326

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



I il r-,!i :
tl. .:. -,

-;i--

VICINITY MAP
i#
gJIl : lla!l:.1
L,r.I.f:.!+=--L+tjr!l!--.-r .,- ". 

,-.._t

!:r!
t!
rl
It

1"9E.=-J.-

IffATVE W NrcMrcN

I'a'- -"

-'\:_
I llll I l+t I

I ._.f:::-:=-1 -.1

\. -- "i'I --:\ I!#

lJr ll
L.....-

.6l-g:"--Irt
it
i t:

I

reGtrryATrcSMNCg?H&:

za -*-

COVER SHEET
I,ESTING TENTATTVE SUBDryISION MAP

# To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch

NOE

ll+l

usN(rygsom

Page 327

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



It

fi,ltl'i
l .1.-" lil',"

tr '1,'. 'l i l',..

r liltl'''

!

r'l,

I
s'-lili r

'T.'l ll' '-lj(r\; 1

itiii

ii;ii
I
Ii

ql
4l
EI€'
en
Gll
tslYO!<l
EI

(. ... ,

:l

.Xilil
'i <b

1

,!

5

3

*

()
tr
Cg

&
)-{

oo
o
fr{
6
u)
t-r
(.)

-q
o
l-,(

m

o
F-.(

.,;-

- it

z
a
Hzo

<raJ5
Al V)

z>
LF
I:Hx<
Yt-.-z

lrl
t<
(,
z
H
F.
v)
r$

I

teo4s ttgapl€ lsol

t.w aattilBt Ntqlt

llil

I

I

3i
kd
hq

E6

I

Page 328

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 5

TABLE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL
BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE lF'VESTING

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 329

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans and

the final map for the project. The

approved improvement plans are in
substantial compliance with the
preliminary grading and drainage
plans, the preliminary site and utility
plans, the tree preservation/removal
plans, the preliminary landscape plans

and the community design guidelines.

The final map for this subdivision is in
substantial compliance with the

approved Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map.

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

Final Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development

Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

1. General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit, datcd January 24,2020
2. Illustrative Master Plan Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
3. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps, dated February 5,2020
4. Backbone Infrastructure Exhibit, dated February 5, 2020

5. Conccptual Phasing Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
6. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated February 5, 2020

7. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated February 5,2020
8. Prcliminary Tree Preservation/Removal Plan, dated Fcbruary 5,2020
9. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, daled' Jantary 24,2020
I 0. Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24,2020
1 1. Local Road Section Exhibit, dated January 24, 2020
1 2. Trail System Modifi cation Exhibit, dated I anuary 24, 2020
13. Walkability Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
14. Trailhead and Signage Exhibit, dated January 24, 2020
15. Dog Park Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
16. Model Home Complex Exhibit, dated Janvry 24,2020
17. Product Mix Exhibit, dated Janu.ary 24,2020
18. Streetscene Exhibit, dated August 30,2019
19. Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated August 30, 20 l9
20. Residential Design Details, dated August 30,2019
2 l. Color and Materials Board, dated August 30, 201 9

22. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated March 7, 201 9

The Gencral Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Development Agreement Amendments,

Planned Development Permit, Design Review, and Inclusionary Housing Plan are approved for the

development ofa 8O4-unit single-family residential subdivision (Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch).

Implementation ofthe project shall be consistent with the above referenced items and these conditions of
approval.

Mitigation
Measure

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAI(A}TENTJE PARI(WAY, ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGII\N PARKWAY

PROJECT (PN 19-o9r)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

IIOUSINGPLANPDPERMIT

#

Resolution No. 10670

Page I of 140

Page 330

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the both the required on-site and off-
site improvements for the Phase 1F

subdivision.

The small-lot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase I F subdivision
was approved by the City Council on

March 10,2020.

The smalllot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F subdivision
was approved by the City Council on
March 10.2020.

Comments

Improvement plans for East Bidwell
Street, Mangini Parkway, RegencY
Parkway and the subdivision have

been approved by the City and these

improvements are currentlY under
construction.

cD (E)

CD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD (PXE)

cD (P)

Responsible
Department

OG

M

M

When
Reouired

G, I

Development Rights
The approval of this Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map conveys the right to
develop- As noted in these conditions of approval for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map, the City has identified improvements necessary to develop the subject

parcels. These improvements include on and off-site roadways, water, Sewer, storm drainage.
lmhr^\/emPnfclandscaping, sound-walls, and other

Validity
This approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map sha1l be valid for a period of
twenty four months pursuant to Section 16.16.110A of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Subdivision Map Act. The term of the approved Inclusionary Housing Agreement shall track

the term of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, as may be extended from time to

time pursuant to Section 16. I 6. I l0.A and 16.16.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Act-
FMC Compliance
The Small-Lot Final Map shall comply with the Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision

Map Act.

Condition of Approval

Plan Submittal
Al1 civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be submitted to

the Community Development Department for review and approval to ensure conformance with
this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements ofthe City of
Folsom.

Mitigation
Measure

4

#

1

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY,AIID
SOUTH OT' MANGINI PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT GN r9-09r)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT

SPGP AI\IDINCLU$ONARYSL PD

Resolution No. 10670

Page 2 of 140

Page 331

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOMRANCH PROJECT GN 19491)

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJ(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, A NTI INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The final map for the Phase lF
subdivision includes all required public
right-of-way and public utility
easements necessary to serve all lots in
the subdivision. The public right-of-
way and public utility easements are

shown on thc final map. The
residential streets serving the lots in
this subdivision are private and are

shown on the final map-

The required street names are shown
on the final map for the subdivision.

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (EXP)

CD (EXP)

When
Reouired

M

M

Condition of Approval

Public Right of Way Dedication
As provided for in the First Amended and Restated Development Agreement (ARDA) and the

Amendments No. 1 and 2 thereto, and any approved amendments thereafter, the

owner/applicant shall dedicate all public rights-of-way and corresponding public utility
easements such that public access is provided to each and every lot within the traditional home

portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project as shown on the Small:Lot Vesting

Tentative Subdivision Map (Lots 1-214). \n addition, public utility easements shall be provided

for public utilities within private streets to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

Street Names
The street names identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Maps:

Avazedo, Black Sage, Blue Oak, Blue Sky, Boulder Creek, Bridgeview, Brookview, Clearview,

Clubhouse, Cold Creek, Copperwood, Coyote Ridge, Creekwood, Crestview, Dalea, Dawn
Light, Deer Park, Eagle View, Edgewood, Emerald Glen, Fallen Leaf, Fountain Heights, Fox

Hollow, Gateway, Glenbrook, Glenridge, Goldenrod, Granite Point, Grey Hawk, Gully,
Heather Glen, Heritage Oaks, Iron Oak, Japanese Maple, Knollbrook, Lone Tree, Longview'
Manzanita, Maple, Meadow Crest, Midway, Monument, Nettle, Oak Bridge, Oakridge, Olive
Orchard, Pacific Wren, Panorama, Paradise, Patina, Pinyon Pine, Quail Run, Rainbow Ridge,

Ravine, Redtail, Regency Parkway, Rimrock, Robinwood, Rock Ridge, Rocky Creek, Rocky
Point, Sagewood, Salvia, Scenic, Skymeadow, Skyway, Springcreek, Starling, Sundown, Sunny

Oaks, Sunnlview, Sweetwater, Timber, Upland, Vale, Valley View, White Cedar, Wildwood.

Mitigation
Measure

#

6.

7

Resolution No. 10670

Page 3 of 140

Page 332

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant complied with all
applicable mitigation measures from
the FPASP FEIR/EIS and other
approved environmental documents
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Additionally, construction
inspection and monitoring is being
conducted throughout construction by
the Citv and/or its Consultants.

Comments

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisfies this condition.
The subdivision improvement
agreement will be executed by the City
Manager upon approval by the City
Council.

CD

Responsible
Department

CD (PXEXB)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

OG

When
Required

OG

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance
with all environmental mitigation measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

(FEIR/EIS) as amended by the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch CEQA Addendum dated

F ebruary -2020 (Attachment 3 1 to the staff report)

Condition of Approval

Indemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its agents,

officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents,

officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annui any approval by the City or any of its

agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or legislative body
conceming the project, which claim, action or proceeding is brought within the time period

provided thereforc in Govemment Code Section 66499.37 or othcr applicable statutes of
limitation. The City will promptly notify the owner/applicant of any such claim, action or
proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in
the defense, the owner owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemniff
and hold harmless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition

The City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding ifboth ofthe following occur:

. The City bears its own attomey's fees and costs; and

. The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such claim,
action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. The

owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless ofwhether a Final
Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this project.

Mitigation
Measure

9.

FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCIT PROJECT GN 19-091)

NORTE OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AI'ENUE PARI(WAY, A}{D
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD,

DASP
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY

PLANPD AI\D

#

Resolution No. 10670

Page 4 of 140

Page 333

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT NOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK A}'ENT]E PARK\ryAY, A}[D
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJ(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMtr,NTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, USIONARY IIOUSING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivision and verified that it is in
compliance with Amendment No. 1

and No. 2 to the First Amended and
Restated Tier I Development
Agreemcnt.

The owner/applicant has funded and
participated in a MMRP reporting
program performed by the City's
consultant (Helix) and/or City staff.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E)

cD (P)

When
Required

M

OG

Condition of Approval

ARDA and Amendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. 1 and 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved amendments

thereafter by and between the City and the owner/applicant ofthe project including but not

limited to Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development
Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Easton Valley Holdings, LLC, Amendment

No. 2 to the First Amendcd and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and betwecn the

City of Folsom and West Scott Road, LLClToil West Coast, LLC, Amendment No. 2 to the

First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between the City of
Folsom and Oak Avenue Holdings, LLC, and Amendment No. 3 to the First Amended and

Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the Cily of Folsom and Folsom Real

Estate South. LLC/Toll West Coast. LLC.
Mitigation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program
pursuanttoCityCouncilResolutionNo.2634andPublicResourcesCode2i08l.6' The

mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

FEIR/EIS and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS have been

incorporated into these conditions of approval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects

on the environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the

mitigation measure column. Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation
monitoring (e.g., staff and consultant time).

Mitigation
Measure

#

10

l1

Resolution No. 10670
Page 5 of 140

Page 334

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TITE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, AIID

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA, DAAMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PDPERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant provided onsite
security during construction and has

incorporated line of sight guidelines
into landscaping plans at interseclions
which have been reviewed and

approved by the City.

The owner/applicant has pa'id all
current taxes and fees associated with
this subdivision.

The owner/applicant has paid all taxes
and fees associated with this
subdivision and filed a tax segregation
request for applicable taxes.

Responsible
Department

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT
12. The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all

reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be

considered:

A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be

constructed around the perimeter of construction areas.

Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at intersections

or screen overhead lighting.

G, I,B PD

a

a

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND

cD (P)(E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

Condition of Approval

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the rate

and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No' 1 to the

Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement.

Assessments
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay off any existing assessments against the property, or

file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

Mitigation
Measures

#

13.

14

Resolution No. 10670
Page 6 of 140

Page 335

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

The City has not yet utilized any

outside services for any type of legal
issues for this subdivision. Ifat any
time during the development of this
subdivision, any outside legal services
were necessary, the owner/applicant
would be required to comply with this
condition.

Comments

The Owner/Applicant shall pay all
required City fees and Folsom Plan
Area wide fees prior to issuance of
building permits.

CD (PXE)

cD (P), PW
PK

Responsible

OG

When

B

Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to assist in the

implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing and/or revising

agreements andlor other documentation for the project. If the City utilizes the services of such

outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel

selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City
for all outside legal fees and costs incurred and documented by the City for such services. The
owner/applicant may be required, at the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to submit a deposit

to the City for these services prior to initiation of the services. The owner/applicant shall be

responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless of whether a deposit is

Condition of Approval

FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area development
impact fees in place at the time ofapproval or subsequently adopted consistent with the Public

Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, unless

exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant shall be subject to all applicable Folsom
Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees in effect at such time that a building permit is

issucd. These fees may includc, but are not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee,

Specific Plan Infiastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation

Management Fee, Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee,

Housing Trust Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on this
project will begin on the date offinal approval (March 10, 2020), or otherwise shall be

governed by the terms of Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at

and the ARDA.the fee rate set forth

Mitigation
Measures

16.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN

WEST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD,NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OT OAKAVENTIEPARKWAY, AND
SOTITH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

19-091)

INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLANSL PDDA
It

15.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 7 of 140

Page 336

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL ATFOLSOMRANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, AI\D
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City has provided notice to the
owner/applicant for various
Consultants performing services for
the development of thrs subdivision.
The City has collected deposits in
advance of such work for construction
inspcction related services for this
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has verified that the
proposed walls and fences for the
subdivision are in compliance with the
Folsom Ranch Central Design
Guidelines.
The owner/applicant is currently
constructing the on-site and off-site
public and private improvements for
the Phase 1F subdivision. The public
and private improvements will serve
all of the lots in the subdivision. The
Phase lF subdivision is aphased
portion ofthe 593 age-restricted
dwelling units which are included in
the approved Regency Phase 1 vesting
tentative subdivision map. The
tentative subdivision map for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe age-restricted
Regency project has been approved by
the City Council.

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (PXE)

GRADING PERMIT RTQUIREMENTS

cD (PXE)

cD(E), PW,
FD

When
Required

C, I,M,B

G, I,B

B

Condition of Approval

Consultant Services
Ifthe City utilizes the services ofconsultants to prepare special studies or provide specialized

design review or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide notice to the

owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and the

owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred and documented in utilizing
these services, including administrative costs for City personnel. A deposit for these services

shall be provided pnor to initiating review of the Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans,

or beeinnine inspection. whichever is applicable.

Vl/alls/Fences/Gates
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors ofthe walls, fences, and gates shall

consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24,2020
subject to review and approval by thc Community Dcvclopment Department to ensure

consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines.

Roadway I mprovement Phasing
The owner/applicant shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map with each applicable phase. Roadways shall be to the

ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

For the purposes ofthese conditions, phasing ofthe project is defined per Figure ES-6 ofthe
Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019 (Attachment 31 to the staff report)
and the following:

Phase I consists ofthe first 305 age-restricted dwelling units within Regency Phase 1, all
located on the eastern portion ofthe Project site and labeled as"2021" on Figure ES-6 of
the Transportation lmpact Analysis dated November 20,2019 (Attachment 3 I to the staff

a

report). Phase I also includes an additional 45 model home units that would be used for
sales and marketing purposes initially. Conditions ofapproval for Phase 1 shall be met
before issuance of the hrst building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

fr

t7

18.

l9

Resolution No. 10670
Page 8 of 140

Page 337

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF E,AST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PI) AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING
Condition
Satislied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition of Approval

a Phase 2 consists ofthe next 377 dwelling units (240 age-restricted dwelling units located
within Regency Phase I on the eastem portion ofthe Project site, and 137 Traditional
Subdivision units located on the western portion ofthe project site.) These units are labeled

as"2022" on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019
(Attachment 3 I to the staffreport). Conditions of approval for Phase 2 shall be met before

issuance ofthe 306th Regency Phase 1 building permit (excludes 45 model home units) or

the first building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the project site.

a Phase 3 consists of the remaining 543 dwelling units (466 age-restricted dwelling units
within Regency Phase I and 2 plus 77 Traditional Subdivision units) These units are labeled
as"2023" and2024 on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis datedNovember

20,2019 (Attachment 3l to the staffreport). Conditions ofapproval for Phase 3 shall be

met before issuance ofthe 546th age restricted building permit for Regency Phase l/Phase 2

or the 138th building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the Project site.

The following conditions defined the roadway improvements which shall be installed for each

ohase. as described above.

Mitigation
Measures

Resolution No. 10670
Page 9 of 140

Page 338

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



The
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the subdivision. The owner/applicant
is currently constructing the on-site
and off-site public and private
improvements for the Phase lF
subdivision. The public and private
improvements will serve all of the lots
in the subdivision. The Phase 1F

subdivision is a phased portion ofthe
593 age-restricted dwelling units
which are included in the approved
Regency Phase 1 vesting tentative
subdivision map. The tentative
subdivision map Phase 2 portion of the

age-restricted Regency project has

been approved by the City Council.
The vesting tentative subdivision map
for Phase 3 was approved by the City
Council but has not yet moved forward
into development at this time.

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

Phasing of Roadways

Roadway construction shall be phased as described in the Transportation Impact Analysis and

as shown on Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019
(Attachment 3l to the staffreport). Changes in the timing and/or progression of construction of
homes may result in a change in the timing and/or sequencing ofroadway construction subject

to review and approval by the Community Development Department.

Phase 1

. Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street to Driveway #4 located on the south

side of Mangini Parkway as a two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first building
permit in Regency Phase 1.

o Constnrct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F.

. Construct Mangini Parkway/Driveway #4 intersection, East Bidwell StreeVRegency

Parkway intersection, and intemal project roads as required to access to new homes.

Phase 2
o Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 to Oak Avenue Parkway as a twolane

roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the

project.
o Consffuct Oak Avenue Parkway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway #1 prior to issuance of

the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the project.
o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #1 to White Rock Road as an EVA access

prior to issuance ofthe first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the Project.

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway #l intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #2

intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #4 intersection, and internal project roads as

required to access new homes.
. Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to planned bridge over

creek at the vr'estem ofthe Phase 2 active adult homes.

Phase 3

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #l to White Rock Road as a two-lane
roadway prior to issuance of the 138th Traditional Subdivision building permit within the

project.

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page l0 of 140

Page 339

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
Satisfied?

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Comments

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Reouired

B

Phasing of Improvements to SpeciJic Intersections

Improvements to specific intersections identified in the November 20, 2019, Transportation

Impact Study (Attachment 3 I to staff report) shall be constructed as follows in Condition Nos.

22-52:

Mangini Parhuay (Segment 1)

Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street westerly to Driveway #4 ("Sheet C") as a

two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 building permit.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Condition of Approval

construct Regency Parkway from prior terminus to Mangini Parkway prior to issuance of
the 546th Regency Phase t building permit within the project.

All driveway intersections and the Oak Avenue Parkway/Mangini Parkway intersection shall be

a

are built.ofthoseas the

Mitigation
Measures

22

WEST OFNAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTHOFWnJTE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENTIEPARI(WAY,AND
SOTIIII OF MANGIM PARJ(WAY

BROTTTERS AT FOLSOM RAIYCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)FORTHETOLL

A}[DPDDASP

CONDITIONS OF

HOUSINGPLAII
!

2l

Resolution No. 10670

Page ll ofl40

Page 340

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
Wf,ST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEIYT]E PARKWAY, AI\D

SOI.TTH OF MAI{GINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT . AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306th
building
nermit-

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the first building permit in
the Phase 3 portion (Traditional Lots)
ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

The Community Development
Department has reviewed
and.approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction,
This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 306'h building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

R

B

.B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parlaatay (Segment 2)

Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 ("Street C") to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-
lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the

project.

Timing: Prior to issuancc of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to the planned bridge over
creek at the westem edge ofthe Regency Phase 1 Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306'h Regency Phase 1 building permit.

Mifigation
Measures

#

23.

24.

25

Resolution No. 10670

Page 12 of 140

Page 341

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
'issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision)

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision)

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546th building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, Thc VTSM for the

Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

CD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

B

B

B

When
Required

Oak Avenae Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a twolane roadway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway 1

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit'

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as an EVA from Driveway I to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Condition of Approval

Regency Parkway (Segment 3)

Construct Regency Parkway as a twolane roadway from the eastern edge ofthe planned bridge

over the creek bisecting the project site to Mangini Parkway.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546ft overall Regency

Phase 112 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mifigation
Measures

28

u.

26.

27

CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN

WEST OF AAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWIilTEROCKRON),EAST OF OAKAVENT'E PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARIililAY

1e491)

AND INCLUSIONARYPDPERMIT PLANDAGP

Resolution No. 10670

Page l3 of i40

Page 342

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
Satisfred?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 1386
building
permit in
Phase 3

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

cD (E), PW
FD

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

B

Construct Driveway as shown in (Figure 43 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: Oak Ave Parkway shall be barricaded south ofDriveway 1 and configured as

an EVA;
. Southbound: one sharedthrough-left lane;
r Westbound: one shared lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway 1 (Stage 1)

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Driveway 1 to White Rock Road'

Timing: Prior to issuance of the 1 38th Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

29.

30.

CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RAIICH PROJECT (PN

WEST OFEASTBIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWIIITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENTIEPARKWAY,AND
SOUTH OFMANGIM PARKWAY

19-091)

ANDINCLUSIONARYPDPERMTTDAGP

#

Resolution No. I0670
Page 14 of 1 40

Page 343

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be
satisfred
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 138n
building
permit in
Phase 3

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch proj ect (Traditional
Subdivision).

cD (E), PW,
FD

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

-LUsI(-,NA

B

When
Required

B

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway 1 (Cumulative Right-of-Way)

Applicant shall dedicate rightof-way to City of Folsom for futwe construction of the ultimate

Driveway 1 intersection (Figure 45 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact Study):

. Northbound: one left-tum lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a 150' right turn taper;

r Southbound: one left-turn lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a I 50 right tum taper;
. Westbound: one shared lane;
. Eastbound: one shared lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway 1 (Stage 2)

construct driveway as shown in (Figure 44 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact

Study):

. Northbound: one shared through-right lane with a 150' right turn taper;

. Southbound: one shared throughJeft lane;

. Westbound: one shared lane;

. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 138'h Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

32

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTII OFWIIIIUROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY,AIID
SOUIII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

ANDPDDASPGP HOUSINGPLAN
4

31

Resolution No. 10670

Page l5 of 140

Page 344

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT GN 19-091)

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVNNIJEPARKWAY, AND
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARKWAY

GPA CDA A ltitl'NTllrifTtNTS vTslt{ PRRMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLANDA SL PD
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546s
building
permit in
Phase 2

Comments

This condition will be satished with
the future development ofthe Phase 3

portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project (Traditional
Subdivision).

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 5461h building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe To11

Brothers at Foisom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, The VTSM for the

Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Recuired

B

B

Condition of Approval

M ang ini P arkw ay/Driv ew cry 2

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 46 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact

Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;

. Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;

. Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;

. Control: side-sheet-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit'

Mangini Parla,oay/Regency Parkway (Driveway 3)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 47 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact

Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;
r Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60'pocket with 60'taper;
o Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
. Conffol: side-street-stop-contro1.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase 1/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

t+

1t

J+.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 16 of 140

Page 345

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306s
building
permit in
Phase I

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance ofthe 306'h produclion
building permit in the To11 Brothers at

Folsom Ranch Regency project. The

Phase 1 portion ofthe Regency project
consists of593 dwelling units.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved

Transportation Impact Study. Thesc

required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this intersection
and are currently under constnrction.

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW
FD

B

When
Required

B

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 49 of the November 20,2019 Transportation lmpact

Study):

o Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one shared throughjeft tum lane;
o Eastbound: one shared through-right turn lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

Mangini Parlatay/Driveway 5 (Stage 1)

Condition of Approval

M angini P arkway/D riv ew ay 4

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 48 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact

Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;

. Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;

o Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;

o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

36.

35.

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, AAST OF OAKAVNNUEPARKWAY,ANI)
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT

DA INCLUSIONARY EOUSINGPD
4f

Resolution No. 10670

Page 17 of 140

Page 346

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 1.

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306'h
building
permit in
Phase 1

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the public and private
improvcment plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These

required improvements are included in
the approved plans tbr this intersection

and are currently under construction.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 306tb building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project. The Phase 1 portion
of the Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units.

Comments

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

B

When
Reouired

B

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Stage

Construct driveway as follows:

. Northbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a i50' pocket with 60' taper;

. Southbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;

. Eastbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

I

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parh,rtay/Driveway 5 Right-of-Way

Applicant shall dedicate righGof-way to City of Folsom for future construction of the ultimate

Mangini ParkwayiDriveway 5 intersection (Figure 50 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation

Impact Study):

o Northbound: one shared lane;
. Southbound: one right tum lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper and one shared throughJeft

lane;
e westbound: one through-right lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;

. Eastbound: one through-right lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;

. Control:side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

38.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTIT OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTJEPARKWAY, AND
SOIJ"TH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT

DA HOUSINGPLAITPD ANI)

It

37

Resolution No. 10670

Page l8of140

Page 347

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546th building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of593
dwelling units, Thc VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

cD (E), PW,
FD

Responsible
Department

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6)

Modifu driveway as shown in (Figure 51 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact

Study), unless intersection has been signalized:

. Northbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;

r Southbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
. Eastbound: one shared lane, plus a 300' northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street

to receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second NB lane on East Bidwell Sheet

starting from Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300' acceleration lane);

. Westbound deparfure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
o Control: side-street-stop-contro1.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase 112 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

WEST OF EASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTIIOFWHITE ROCKROAD,EAST OT OAKAVEIYTJE PARI(WAY,AND
SOTTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

RANCTT PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM

ANI)PDPERMTT HOUSINGPLAI\SLDAGP

It

39

Resolution No. 10670

Page l9 of 140

Page 348

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The final map for the subdivisron
includes the required right-of-way for
the Mangini Parkway/Regency
Parkway intersection. The right-of-
way dedication is shown on the final
map.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parlmay/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Right-of-llay

The owner/applicant shall dedicate righfof-way to City ofFolsom for future construction ofthe
ultimate Mangini Parkway/Driveway 6 intersection (Figure 52 of the November 20, 2019,

Transportation Impact Study):

o Northbound: one leftturn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper, two through lanes, and a

right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;
. Southbound: one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and two

left tum lanes in a 250' pocket with 120'taper. (Note that the FPASP assumed a single

southbound left turn lane.);
o Westbound: one shared left-through-right lane, and one right tum lane;

o Westbound deparfure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers approval.
. Eastbound: one shared lane

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase 1 building permit

Mitigation
Measures

#

40.

WEST OF'EASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWHITE ROCKROAD, NAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARI(WAY,AND
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT

PLAIIAND INCLUSIONARYDA

Resolution No. 10670

Page 20 of 140

Page 349

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

Comments

The required stop conhol for the
various sfeet intersections are shown
on the approved plans for the
subdivision. The Community
Development Department will veri$
compliance with this condition pricir to
building permit issuance.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), Plv,
FD

When
Reouired

B

Condition of Approval

Phase I Internal Stop Control

Stop Control shall be installed at the following five locatiorns within the Regency Phase I
portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

. Regency Parkway/Street A (two-way-sto.pcontrol)' Stop on A, qo control on Regency'
r Regency Parkway/Street D (two-way-stop-control). Stop on D, no control on Regancy.
. Regency Parkway/Sheet E (all-way-stop-coffro1).
r RegencyParkway/Street F (two-way-stop-control). Stop on F, no control on Regency.

o Street DlSteet S (all-way-stop-conrol).

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location ofStop Control is shown in Figure 24,page 73 oftheNovember 20,2079,
Transportation Impact Study.

Timing; prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permir

Mitigation
Measures

41.

#

Resolution No. 10670

Page 21 0f140

Page 350

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
wili be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3.

Condition
Satished?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 3066
building
permit in
Phase 1 -

The required stop control for the
various street intersections will be
shown on the approved plans for the

future Phase 3 subdivision (Traditional

Subdivision). The Community
Development Department will veriff
compliance with this condition prior to
building permit issuance in Phase 3.

Comments

The required stop control for the

various street intersections is shown on
the approved plans for the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department will verif' compliance
with this condition prior to issuance of
the 306th building permit in Phase l

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Required

B

Phase 2 Internal Stop Control (Traditional Subdivision)

Stop Control shall be installed at the lollowing locations:

o Street TA./Street TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TA.
r Street TA"/Street TG (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TG, no control on TA.
o Street TB/Sheet TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TB.

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in preceding Figure 25, page 74.

Timing: prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Condition of Approval

Phase 7 Internal Stop Conffol (Regency Phase 1)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations within the Regency Phase I portion of
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

o Regency Parkway/Street G (two-way-stop-control). Stop on G, no control on Regency.

o Regency Parkway/Street H (two-way-stop-control. Stop on H, no control on Regency-

Roundabouts may replace stop conffol at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in Figure 24,Page 73 ofthe Novembet 20,2019,
Transponation Impact Study.

Timing: prior to issuance of the 306th Regency Phase 1 building permit (excludes 45 model
home unit building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

43.

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OFWITITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY,AN'D
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

ANDPDSPGP HOUSINGPLANSL

42

Resolution No. 10670

Page 22 of 140

Page 351

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2.

Comments

The required stop conhol for the

various street intersections will be

shown on the approved plans for the

futwe Phase 2 subdMsion. The
Community Development Department
will verifr compliance with thrs

condition prior to building permit
issuance in Phase 2.

cD (E), PW,
FD

Responsible
Department

When
Recuired

B

Condition ofApproval

Regenqt Phase 2Intemal Stop Control

Stop Contol shall be installed at any internal Regency Phase 2 intersections with four (or more)

legs as directed by the City Engineer. Roundabouts may replace stop control at intemal

intersections with authorization ftom the City Engineer.

Timing; Pri,or to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546t overall Regency

Phase 1/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

44.

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page23 ofl40

Page 352

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OFAASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OFOAKAVENUEPARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PtrRMIT, AIID TNCT,USIONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 1386
building
permit in
Phase 3.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied with
the development ofthe Phase 3 portion
(Traditional Subdivision) of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Oak Ave Parkway/ll'hite Rock Rd

Implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) has programmed to realign
this portion of White Rock Road and building a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-
Turns. Expand or construct a signalized intersection as follows:

o SB: A single shared lane for left and right tums.
o EB: A through lane and a lefVU-tum in 300' pocket plus taper.
. WB: A through lane and a right-tum in 300' pocket plus taper.
o Signalize with protected phasing for left turns and U-tums.
o Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority adopted standards.

OR

(B) Channelize the intersection on the existing White Rock Road alignment to restrict turning
movements to westbound right turns and southbound right tums. The westbound right tum
requires a 365' deceleration lane, and the southbound right tum requires a 960' acceleration lane
(Figure 53 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study).

Timing: Prior to opening the segment of Oak Avenue Parkway between Driveway 1 and White
Rock Road, or prior to issuance ofthe 138th Traditional Subdivision building permit, whichever
occurs first.

Mitigation
Measures

45

Resolution No. 10670

Page 24 of 140

Page 353

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVEIITIEPARKWAY,AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA,DA A ltifT'NTTilfr.NTC (f WTelUf PDPERMIT ANI) IN(--I,TISTONARY TIOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satislied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

Comments

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA
has executed a construction contract
with Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to
construct the Capital Southeast
Connector from Prairie City Road to

East Bidwell Street. The construction
contract was executed in December of
2020. Grading and construction
commenced in April 2021. The project
will include the relocation and

signalization of the existing White
Rock Road/East Bidwell Street
intersection. The project is expected to
be complete in the Spring of 2022.The
owner/applicant will pay the
Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee prior to issuance of
all building permits in the subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/White Rock Road

Signalize the existing White Rock Rd/East Bidwell Street intersection implementing either (A)
or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Cormector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has programmed

to relocatc and signalize the East Bidwell StrceVWhite Rock Road intersection as shown in the

October 2017 geometric conceptual drawing , or equivalent improvements (i.e., three

southbound approach lanes, four eastbound approach lanes, and three westbound approach

lanes). Figure 54 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study provides a conceptual

intersection layout for this mitigation. Under option A, fair share is defined as the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch Project's responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee. The Applicant is required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee. Option A can be considered to be implemented once the JPA has let
contracts for construction ofthe new intersection. This will ensure that the mitigation is
constructed before project traffic adds 5 or more seconds of delay to the intersection.

OR

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Strect/White Rock Road intersection with thc
existing geometry. Figure 55 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study provides

a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

46.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 25 of 140

Page 354

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WI,ST Otr'EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITT' ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUf, PARKWAY, AND

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit in the
subdivision.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 5461h

buiiding
permit in the
Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the construction of these required
improvements including the plans for
the modification to the existing traffic
signal. Thcse improvements are

currently under construction.

This condition of approval will be
satisfied during the development ofthe
future Phase 2 portion (Regency Phase

2) ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project. The vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Phase 2

(Regency) portion ofthe project has

been approved by the City Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Mangini Pktty

Signalize the intersection with the following geometry (Figure 56 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study) :

. NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-tum
lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper;

. SB: One left-tum lane ina200'pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-turn
lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;

. EB and WB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right-turn lane in a 2O0'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Mangini Pkwy

Expand the intersection and update signal cohfiguration as follows (Figure 57 ofthe November
20, 2019 Transportation Impact Study):

a

a

NB: One left-turn lane ina200'pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and one right-tum
lane in a 1 50' pocket with a 60' taper (the second through lane should be developed 300'
south of the intersection);
SB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-tum
lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;
EB and WB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one tbrough lane, and one

right-tum lane in a 20O'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency
Phase l/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

47

48.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 26 of 140

Page 355

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTHNRS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OTEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTEOFWITITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENTIE PARKWAY,ANI)
SOUTH OF MAIIGIM PARI(WAY

GPA" SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI\
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit in the
subdivision.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has approved the plans for
the reconstruction and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek
Parkway intersection in accordance
with this condition.

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit grading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Deparffnent for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be

constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance of the 546d building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
ofthe project.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and signalize the East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway intersection as shown in
Figure 58 ofthe November20,2019, Transportation Impact Study:

o NB Approach: One U-tum lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60'taper.
. SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane.

o WB Approach: One right tum lane, plus one left-tum lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper'

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and modify signal at the East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway intersection as

shown in Figure 59 of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study:

. NB Approach: One U-turn lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper, two through lanes, and

one right fum lane in a I 50' pocket plus 60' taper.
. SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 240' pocket plus 60' taper, and two through lanes. Thc

second SB through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way, the estimated taper for
merging the two southbound lanes into one should be 660 feet long based on a 55 mph
design speed and 12-foot lane width.

. WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe flrst Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase ll2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

49

50.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 27 of 140

Page 356

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit grading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Department for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be
constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance ofthe 546!h building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
ofthe project.

Comments

The required improvements in this
condition have been completed and

accepted by the City. These
improvements were constructed as part
of the off-site improvements for the

Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7

subdivision.

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Reouired

B

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell SVSavannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry
(Figure 6l ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

r NB Approach: One through lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;

. SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 1 50' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

o WB Approach: One left tum lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

. SB departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left
tum traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phasel/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell St/Savannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry
(Figure 60 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

o NB Approach: One shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;

. SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

o WB Approach: One left turn lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

o SB departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left
turn traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 1 building pennit.

Mitigation
Measures

52.

#

5l

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AI'ENT]D PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MAITGIIV PARJ(WAY

(PN 19-.09r)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT

ANDINCLU$ONARYPD PERMIT PLAI{DAGP

Resolution No. 10670
Page 28 of 140

Page 357

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OT'EAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTIIOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY, ANI)

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEI[DMENTS, SLVTSM. PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the phasing plan for Phase I
ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project. The Ciry Engineer
has approved the phasing plan to
verify that the proposed roadway and
infrastructure is appropriate for each
phase.

The owner/applicant has provided
copies of fully executed rights-of-entry
from privately owned parcels that
adjoin the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project. The fully executed
rights-of-entry are on file with the
Community Development Department.

During the course of grading and
conslnrction for the subdivision no
mine shafts or tunnels were located or
discovered.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

G, I,M

G, I

G

Condition of Approval

utility I nfr astructure

Utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate
and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer.

a

a A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway
and utility phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City Engineer shall

determine what roadway and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to serve
the sub-phase.

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the owrership or
control of the owner/applicant, all rights-of-entry, and if necessary, a permanent easement shall

be obtained and provided to the City. All rights of entry, construction easements, either
permanent or temporary and other easements shall be obtained as set forth in Amendments No.
I and 2 to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all affected parties and shall be recorded
with the Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable, prior to approval ofgrading and/or
improvement plans.

Mine Shafi Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts,
tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project site, with
specific recommendations for the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet all applicable
health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be prepared by an

appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be reviewed and approved
bv the Citv prior to approval of erading plans.

Mitigation
Measures

53.

54.

55

Resolution No. 10670
Page 29 of 140

Page 358

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJSCT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, AI{D

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJCWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, ANI) INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLA}{

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved and will review and approve

al1 proposed traffic control plans

necessary to construct the required
subdivision improvements. Grading
and construction of thc subdivision
improvements commenced in August
of 2020 and will continue through to
the second quarter of2022.

The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits and

copies are available from the

Community Development Department.

The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits
including Section 401 water quality
certification and copies are available
from the Community Development
Department.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (E)

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

When
Required

G

G, I

G

Condition of Approval

Prepare TrafJic Control Plan.
Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared by the owner/applicant. The Traffic Control Plan prepared by the

owner/applicant shal1, at minimum, include the following measures:

a

a

a

Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity during non-construction periods,

possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of constmction signage.

Maintaining altemate one-way traffic flow past the lay down areaand site access when
feasible.

Healy trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest commute
hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

A minimum 72-honr advance notice ofaccess restrictions for residents, businesses, and

local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification of altemative routes

and detours to enable for the avoidance ofthe immediate construction zone.

A phone number and City contact for inquiries about the schedule ofthe construction
throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in a local newspaper,

via the Citv's web site, or at City Hall and will be updated on a monthly basis'

State and Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide evidence

that said pcrmits have bccn obtained, or that the permit is not required, subjcct to staff revicw

Drior to approval of any grading or improvement plan.

lltater Quality C ertift.cation
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required before

issuance ofthe record ofdecision and before issuance ofthe Section 404 permit. Before
construction in any areas containing wetland features, the owner/applicant shall obtain water
quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater
quality certification shall be implemented pursuant to the permit conditions.

Mitigation
Measures

#

56.

57

58.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 30 of 140

Page 359

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WIilTE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\TIE PARI(WAY, A]\[D

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMTT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a

geotechnical engineer and
implemented recommendations for this
mitigation measure. A geotechnical

report outlining these

recommendations is available from
Communitv Develoomcnt DeDartment.

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans for all
infrastructure improvements required
to serve this subdivision. The City
Enginecr has reviewed and approved
all required improvement plans to
serve this subdivision. Copies ofthe
improvement plans are available fiom
the Community Development
Deoartment.
The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans in accordance with
the City's Standard Specifi cations.

Responsible
Department

cD (E) Pw

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS

CD (E)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G

M

I

Condition of Approval

L an ds lide /S lop e F ailure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading activities
to identiff existing landslides andpotential slope failure hazards. The said engineer shall be
notified a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or grading to facilitate meetings with
the grading conhactor in the field.

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improvements necessary

to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved by the Communiry
Development Department prior to approval of a Final Map.

Standard Construction Specifications and Details
Pubtic and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes
and trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements shall be provided
in accordance with the latest edition ofthe City ofFolsom Standard Construction Specfrcations
and Details andthe Desisn and Procedures Manual and Improvement Standards.

Mitigation
Measures

#

59.

60

6l

Resolution No. i0670
Page3l of140

Page 360

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAI}, NORTH OT WEITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAI( AVEI\I]E PARKWAY, AIID

SOUTH OF MAI\GIM PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLU$ONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed all
sewer and water infrastructure within
the streetright ofway. The outfall
sewer line has been installed within
easements or planned right of way
within future streets.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (E)

When
Required

I

Condition of Approval

Water and Sewet Infrastruclure
All City-owned water and sewer inffastructure shall be placed within the street right of way. In
the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area other
than the public right ofway, such as through an open space corridor, landscaped area, etc., the
following criteria must be met;

o

a

a

a

The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements

An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations, maintenance
and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along the entire water and/or
sewer line alignment. However, no access road is required within the two pedestrian paseos

(Lot BI and BJ) as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map)
In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on private
residential property.
The domestic water and irrigation system owned and maintained by the City shall be
separatelv metered per Citv ofFolsom Standard Construction Speci/ications and Details.

Mitigation
Measures

#

62.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 32 of 140

Page 361

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEI\UE PARKWAY,AI\D
SOUTH OF MANGIIV PARI(WAY

A Nl-rlNTrl\/lDl\nTS (r ItTClt/l PD PERMIT INCT,IISTONARY HOUSING PLANANDGPA" SPA,DA
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a

Lighting Plan for all roadways and this
subdivision in accordance with the
Design Guidelines and City Standards
for Street Lighting. A copy of the
lighting plans are available from the

Community Development Department.

The owner/applicant has coordinated
with all various utility agencies. All
required utility easements are shown
on the final map for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (P)

cD (PXE)

When
Reouired

I

M

Condition of Approval

Lighting Plan
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the

Community Development Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the Folsom
Ranch Central District Design Guidelines:

Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on

adjacent properties;

Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential areas

and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures that are of
unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;

Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened

lighting, and appropriate signage in the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare

from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and

Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping design in
the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall

site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only the sign face with no

off-site slare.

a

a

a

O

Utility Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and.completion ofthis project

with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall provide

the Citv with written confirmation of public utility service prior to approval of all final maps.

Mitigation
Measures

63

64.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 33 of 140

Page 362

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUEPARI(WAY, AND

SOT]TH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMENDMEIYTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has reconstructed
a portion of East Bidwell Street to the

satisfaction of the Community
Development Department. There is a
general note on the approved
improvements plans requiring
compliance with this condition.

All proposed utility sewice to the lots
in this subdivision have been placed
underground.

The Owner/applicant has completed
the infrastructure allowing for the
water meter fixed network system.
Meters will be fumished and installed
during home construction for each

individual metered connection.

The approved improvement plans for
this subdivision include vertical
concrete curb in compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E), EWR

cD (PXB)

When
Reouired

I, OG

M

I

I

Condition of Approval

Rep lacin g H azar dou s F ac ilitie s
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public

sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site frontage and/or

boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department.

Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be placed

underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's cost. The
owneriapplicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground easements for the electrical
facilities that will be necessary to service development ofthe proiect.

Water Meter Fixed Nework System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish and install all infrastructure associated with
the water meter fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water meter within
the project.

Vertical Curb
All curbs 

'located 
adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicured, and where parking is

allowed shall be vertical.

Mitigation
Measures

#

65

66.

6'7

68.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 34 of 140

Page 363

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

YesA11 Class II bike lanes have been

coirsfiucted in accordance with the
Specific Plan, Design Guidelines and

City standards,

CommentsResponsible
Department

cD (E)(P)

\Dhen
Reouired

I

Condition of Approval

Aass II Bikelanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped and the legends painted to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Departrnent- No parking shall be perfiIitted within fte Class II bike

lanes.

#

69.

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page 35 of 140

Page 364

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit the
various phase

of
development.

The approved landscape plans for East
Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway and
White Rock Road include the required
sound walls with the required
heights.along all of these public streets
in accordance with the
recommendations of the noted
acoustical study.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site plans for each and every lot in
the subdivision to verify compliance
with this condition.CD (EXP)LO

Noise Barriers
Based on the Environmental Noise Assessment (the "2019 Noise Assessment") prepared by
Bollard Acoustical Consultants on November 24,2019, the following measures shall be
implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department:

. 6-foot-tall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constnrcted along all
residential property boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak
Avenue Parkway prior to occupancy of any residences adjacent to the aforementioned
sfieets.

r For the proposed Traditional Subdivision portion of the project located at the northeast
comer of White Rock Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, a 7-foot-tall solid noise barrier,
relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent
to White Rock Road prior to occupancy of any residences adjacent to White Rock Road.

r For the proposed Regency Phase I and Phase 2 portions ofthe project (which are located at
the northwest comer of the intersection of White Rock Road and East Bidwell Street and

north of White Rock Road in the central portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
project site), an 8-foot-tall solid noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be
constructed along all residential property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

. Suitable materials for the traffic noise barriers include masonry and precast concrete panels.

The overall barrier height may be achieved by utilizing a barrier and earthen berm
combination. Other materials may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical
consultant and approved by the Community Development Department prior to use.

. Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences in this
development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve
compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria.

For the first row ofhomes located within the Traditional Subdivision porlion ofthe project
located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing second-floor building
facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

70.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 36 of 140

Page 365

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF'EASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTHOFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENIIE PARKWAY,AND

SOI,]TII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMEIYTS, SLVTSM. PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLA}[

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has provided
updated Master Plans for approval
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Copies of the Master Plans are

available from the Community
Development Department. The storm
drainage system for the subdivision
provides for no net increase in run-off
under post development conditions.

Responsible
Department

cD(E), EwR,
PW

When
Required

C, I

Condition of Approval

Master Plan Updates
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater Master
Plan, and Water Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to the
approved master plans, if applicable, for the proposed changes to the master plans as a result of
the proposed project. The updates to the master plans for the proposed project shall be reviewed
and approved by the City prior to approval ofgrading and/or improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location, and

timing ofthe proposed facilities. Improvements shall be constructed in phases as the project
develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any necessary off-site
improvements to support development ofa particular phase or phases, subject to prior approval
by the City. Off-site improvements may include roadways to provide secondary access, water
transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a looped water system, sewer tmnk mains
and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-potable water pipelines and infrastructure, and
drainage facilities including on or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure from that
shown on the approved master plan shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master
plan has been revised and approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be

modified to accommodate the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the
City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these studies and the latest edition of
the City ofFolsom Standard Construction Soecifications and Details. andthe Desisn and
Procedures Manual and Improvement Standards.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-off under post-development
conditions.

Mitigation
Measures

#

71

Resolution No. 10670
Page 37 of i40

Page 366

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTITERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVNNUE PARKWAY,AND
SOTITH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit from the State
Regional Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for
stormwatcr runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),

which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeling. The
Owneriapplicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and
SRWQCB.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (E)

When
Recuired

G, I

Condition of Approval

Best Management Practices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that meet
the requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implcment Best Management Practiccs (BMPs) that
comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley RWQCB, to

reduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed information about the SWPPP and

BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek
and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The
owner/applicant shall establish a baseline ofconditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow
conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and 1O0-year storm events. These baseline conditions
shall be used to develop monitodng standards for the stormwater system on the Specific Plan
Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring pro$am shall be

submitted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be
designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in
Chaptcr 3A.9, "Hydrology and Watcr Quality," arc mct and shall bc dcsigned as off-stream
detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson
Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project
conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as necessary. The
mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met for 5 consecutive
years without undertaking corrective measwes to meet the performance standard.

Mitigation
Measures

#

72.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 38 of 140

Page 367

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TgE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OT OAK AVENI.IE PARKWAY, ANI)

SOUTH OF MANGII\I PARI(WAY
GPA- SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfred?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has complied
with this provision and completed
periodic on-site cleaning and sweeping
ofthe oroiect site.

The Community Development
Department, the Fire Department and
the Parks & Recreation Department
have reviewed and approved the Fuel
Modification Plan (FMP) for the
subdivision. The fuel modification
easement, where applicable, is shown
on thc finai map for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

FIRE DEPT REQUIREMENTS

CD (P). FD

When
Recuired

OG

M,B

Condition of Approval

Litter Control
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and sweeping of
all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. A1l on-site storm drains shall be cleaned

immediately before the commencement of the rainy season (October l5).

Prepare fael modiftcation plan (FMP).
The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan consistent with the FPA Open Space

Management Plan to the City for review and approval by the City. Final approval of the plan

shall occur prior to the issuance ofa building permit for any new construction. A Fuel
Modification Plan shal1 consist of a set of scaled plans showing fuel modification zones

indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an irrigation plan. A
fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one of the following: a

California state liccnsed landscape architcct, or state licenscd landscape contractor, or a
landscape designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official.

Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to new property owners.

Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan shall be submitted to the City for
approval prior to implementation.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 30-foot-wide fuel modification easement(s) for all
residential properties located adjacent to open space areas within the development. The

owner/applicant shall dedicate easements, if applicable, for the required fuel modification
buffer. The fuel modification easement(s) shall be shown on the Final Map. The

owner/applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance of the fuel modification areas until
such time that the City takes ownership ofthe open space areas that are to be deeded to the City
within the projcct site.

Mitigation
Measures

#

73

74

Resolution No. 10670

Page 39 of 140

Page 368

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has designed and

received approval for all weather
access improvements and fire hydrants
for this subdivision. Permits for
vertical construction will not be issued
prior to these improvements being
completed. As of October 1,2022,the
City has issued approximately 1800

Certificates of Occupancy in the

Folsom Plan Area.

CD (P), FD

Responsible
Deoartment

G, I,M,B

When
Required

Condition of Approval

All-ll'eather Access and Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before combustible

materials are allowed on any project site or other approved altemative method as approved by
the Fire Department. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed)

shall be provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on any project

site or other approved alternative method as approved by the Fire Department. (All-weather
access is defined as six inches ofcompacted aggregate base from May 1 to September 30 and

two inches asphalt concrete over six inches aggregate base from October to April 30). The

building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the property.

Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire

Department.
o Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow for the

proposed residential portion ofthe project is determined to be 875 GPM for one hour'

r All public streets shall meet City ofFolsom Street Standards.

o The maximum length ofany dead-end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance with the

Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Department)'
o All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided

before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-weather access is

defined as 6" of compacted AB from May I to September 30 and 2"AC over 6" AB from
October I to April 30

o The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area may be required to be completed

and operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes within the Folsom

Plan Area is met.

Mitigation
Measures

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTHOFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARI(WAY,AIID
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

T FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)BROTHERSACONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL

AND INCLUSIONARYSL PDDAGP
!

75.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 40 of 140

Page 369

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condltion
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition ofApprovalMitigation
Measure

#

..:jr.l-.'i..l \.-t"til:.it-s'.r r;jl, :,:,1,31:,r.,t,.---L,,.>:]
'rf

:r. :

ResolutionNo. 10570

Page 41 of 140

Page 370

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant obtained a Tree
Permit from the Community
Development Department for the
removal of protected oak trees that

were impacted by the grading and

construction ofPhase I ofthe Toll
Brothcrs at Folsom Ranch projcct.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.

The owner/applicant paid inJieu
fees for the removal of some trees,

the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
El Dorado County lor the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protccted fiecs in accordancc with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within
the Phase I portion ofthe
subdivision were fenced offaround
their boundaries in advance ofthe
cornmencement of grading and
construction and the City verified
compliance by inspecting the fence
in advance of

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G,I

The owner/applicant shall obtain a tree removal permit, mitigate for removal of protected and

heritage trees in accordance with Chapter 12.16 ofthe City ofFolsom Municipal Code for Tree

Preservation, and minimize indirect impacts to trees to be preserved. This shall include the

following:

r A Tree Permit Application containing an application form, iustification statement, site map,

preservation program, and arborist's report shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom by the

owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Permit prior to commencement of any grading or site

improvement activities.

A Mitigation Plan shall be prepared by the owner/applicant to mitigate for the removal of
the protected Canopy Oak Trees and Isolated Oak Trees within the development site. The

Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall consist of replacement trees and/or payment

of"In-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch bases consistent with 10-14, l0-15 ofthe FPASP.

Replacement trees may be located within the boundaries of the development parcel, a

natural parkway, landscape corridor or passive or preserve open space zone, preferably

within the Folsom Plan Area. The Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall be

subiect to review and approval by the City. The Mitigation Plan for the Canopy Oak Trees

shall be consistent with the mitigation requirements established by the Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan.

The Conservation Areas shall be fenced prior to construction. In addition, oak trees to be

preserved within the Passive Recreation Open Spaces shall be fenced with high-visibility
fencing prior to starting construction. The fencing shall be installed outside the tree

preservation zone of oak trees, and shall surround the entirety of the tree preservation zone

area. Parking ofvehicles, equipment, or storage ofmaterials is prohibited within the Tree

Protection Zone of Protected Trees at a1l times. Signs shall be posted on exclusion fencing

stating that the enclosed ffees are to be presewed. Signs shall state the penalty for damage

to, or removal of, the protected tree.

t

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measure

WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY,ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY

PROJECT (PN 19-09r)COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

ANDPD PERMIT PLANDA

76.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 42 of 140

Page 371

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF' APPROVAL FOR TEE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTHOTWIIITE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVEIYTIE PARKWAY,AND

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, ANI) INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has retained an
ISA certified project arborist. The
project arborist was on-site during
the removal ofall protected oak trees

and was presenl during grading
within the tree protection zone
(TPZ) of those tree that were to bc
preserved. All ofthe preserved trees

were identified, tagged and TPZ
fencing was placed around them
prior to commencement of grading
in Ausust of2020.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (PXE)

When
Required

G

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall retain an ISA certified project arborist for implementation ofthe
project. The project arborist shall be responsible for overseeing onsite tree removal and tree
preservation. Oak trees located adjacent to construction areas that may be indirectly
impacted due to work within or near the Tree Protection Zone shall be identified and tagged

by the project arborist during construction activities. The indirectly impacted trees shall be

monitored by the project arborist for five years in accordance with the Conceptual Oak Plan

and FPASP EIR/EIS Mitigation Measure 3A.3-5. Trees that appear to be dead or dying
within five years of project implementation will be replaced as per the requirements of this
Plan-

Mitigation
Measure

#

'77

Resolution No. 10670

Page 43 of 140

Page 372

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD,NORTII OFWIilTE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEI\TIEPARKWAY,AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARJ(WAY

GPA,SPA,DA AMIINDMENTS. SLVTSM. PI' PERMIT. AI\D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit
in the
subdivision.

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department is currently reviewing
the landscape and streetscape plans

for this subdivision. Prior to plan
approval, the Community
Development Department will
review the plans for compliance with
this condition.

The landscape and irrigation
improvements for all open space

parcels in the subdivision will be
constructed upon completion ofthe
roads and lots that adioin them.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

CD (P)

When
Reouired

B

I, OG

Condition of Approval

Landscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect
and approved by the City prior to the approval ofthe first building permit. Said plans shall

include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree planting exhibit
demonstrating sufticient diversity and appropriate species selection to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department. The tree exhibit shall include all street fiees, accent

trees, parking lot shading trces, and mitigation trees proposed within the development. Said

plans shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's declarations and

restrictions pertaining to water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient requirements

as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance.

Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most current American National
Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall not be

allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved

landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period. The

owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage.

Owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape

water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all
landscapins in the To11 Brothers proiect.

Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights ofway and in public open space lots shall be installed when
the adjoining road or lots are constructed.

Mitigation
Measure

#

78.

79.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 44 of 140

Page 373

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TEf, TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT GN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OT'OAKAVENUE PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA A iltrDNTrlt,|-llN'ris CI \/'FQtuf PD DE DNfiTT AND INCLUSIONARY ErlTIs.IN(: PI,AN
Condition
Satislied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The required subdivision
'improvement agreement is included
as part ofthe City staffreport
accompanying the final map for City
Council approval. The resolution
approving the final map for this
subdivision includes a statement
authorizing the City Manager to
execute the subdivision improvement
agreement for the subdivision along
with approval of the final map.

Thc owner/applicant has executed an

Inclusionary Housing Agreement
with the City. The agreement allows
the owner/applicant to provide an in-
lieu fee assigned to each building
permit in the subdivision. The inlieu
housing fee will be paid at the time
of buildine oermit issuance.

Responsible
Department

M,A.P

CD (E)

cD (P)(E)

When
Required

M

M

Condition of Approval

Subdivision Improvement Agreement
Prior to the approval ofany Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agteement with the City, identifying all required improvements, if any, to be

constructed with each proposed phase ofdevelopment. The owner/applicant shall provide

security acceptable to the City, guaranteeing construction of the improvements.

The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council, and the

Inclusionary Housing Agreement approved by the City Attorney shali be executed prior to
recordation ofthe first Small-Lot Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

Mitigation
Measures

#

80.

81

Resolution No. 10670
Page 45 of 140

Page 374

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivisions CC & R's and verified
that all required disclosures in this
condition of approval are included.

cD (P) PKM

Department of Real Estate Public Report
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Department ofReal Estate Public
Report and the CC&R's for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project the following items:

l) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity to the
proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities (basketball courts,

a baseball field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground equipment) that may
generate noise impacts during various times, including but not limited to evening and

nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also disclose that the existing public parks

include nighttime sports lighting that may generate lighting impacts dwing evening and

nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos and naturally
occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or historic
object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance ofany archaeological
site or historic property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight path and

that overflight noise may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site af,ea zoned or used for
agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by written
disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any

transferee ofthe potential adverse odor impacts fiom surrounding agricultural
operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the County of
Sacramento conceming any such property within the County zoned for agricultural uses

within one mile ofthe subject property being transferred.

6) The project site is located adjacent to the fuhue JPA Connector which may generate

noise impacts during various times including but not limited to evening and nighttime
hours.

82.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 46 of 140

Page 375

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARIilryAY

GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY PLAI\
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has dedicated a

12.5' PUE along all roadway utility
corridors as well as intemal streets

within the subdivision. The public
utility easements are shown on the
frnal map.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the phasing plan for Phase

lF ofthe Toll Brothers oroiect.
The owner/applicant provided all
necessary public utility easements,

grant deeds. offers ofdedication or
temporary construction easements

required to build all ofthe required
Backbone Infrastructure needed to

serve the subdivision. These were
recorded with Sacramento County
Recorder bv separate instrument.
The owner/applicant has installed
new benchmarks per the direction of
the Cily Engineer and the new
benchmarks have been placed in
compliance with this condition of
approval.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

CD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

M

M

Condition of Approval

Pubnc atihty Easements
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the public and private sfteets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-foot
(12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas and

Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all public and private street

rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate

cxtraordinary facilitics as determincd by thc Cify. Thc width of the public utility easements

adjacent to public and private right ofway may be reduced with prior approval from public
utility companies
Final Map Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be filed by the owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall be to the

satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

B ackb o n e I nfr astr u cture
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. 1 thereto, the owner/applicant shall

provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary Infrastructure
to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights ofway, public utility
easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements, inevocable off'ers of
dedication and tempotary constructlon easements. All requ'ired easements as listed necessary

for the Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by the City and recorded with the

Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the

ARDA, and any amendments thereto.

New Permanent Benchmarks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the (NAVD 88)

datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any othcr locations in the vicinity ofthe
projecVsubdivision as directed by the City Engineer. The type and specifications for the

permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the Cify. The new benchmarks shall be piaced by
the owner/applicant within 6 months from the date ofapproval ofthe vesting tentative
subdivision map.

Mitigation
Measures

4fr

83

84

85

86.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 47 of 140

Page 376

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHTTE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AWNUE PARI(WAY, ANI)
SOUTII OF' MANGIM PARJ(WAY

Atr/IIINTTIUfTTNTC CT l/Ts.llil DFD]\ TT TNr.T .ITSTr|N AN\/ IT(IIISIN(: PLANPDGPA, SPA,DA AI\D
Condition
Safisfied?

Yes

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance of a

building permit.

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance ofa
building permit.

Yes

Comments

The final map for this subdivrslon
includes the required easement for
the placement of centralized mail
delivery units. The USPS will
provide the owner/applicant with the
location of the mail delivery unit and

will provide a concrete pad for thc
placement is the specified location in
the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department shall verify that the
owner/applicant has provided the
required recorded copy ofthe final
map to the CDD prior to building
nermit issuance in the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department shall verify that the
owner/applicant has provided the
required recorded copy of the final
map to the FCUSD prior to building
Dermit issuance in the subdivision.
The owner/applicant has executed al1

ofthe required Specific Plan
Infrastructwe Fee

Crcdit/Rcimbursement Agreements
for the Phase 1 subdivision. The
executed agreements are on file with
the Community Development
DeDartment.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (P),
FCUSD

cD (E)

When
Required

M

B

B

M

Condition of Approval

Centralized Mail Delivery Units
A11 Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of
centralized mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for the

placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such base shall

be determined pursuant to the applicable requirements of the U. S. Postal Service and the City
of Folsom Community Development Department, with due consideration for street light
location, traffic safety, sccurity, and consumer convenicnce.

Recorded Final Map
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy of the

recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development Department. The

exception to this requirement are model homes; subject to approval of the Community
Development Department, building permits for model homes only may be issued prior to
recordins of the Final MaD.

Recorded Final Map
Prior to issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova
Unified School Disftict with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

C redil Reim b ur s em e nt Agre em ent
Prior to the recordation of the first Small-Lot Final Map, the owneriapplicant and City shall

enter into a credit and reimbursement agreement for constructed improvements that are included
in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilitics Financing Plan.

Mitigation
Measures

87

88

89

90.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 48 of I 40

Page 377

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommenhResponsible
DeDartnent

When
Reauired

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

ARCIIITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

#

j :' :.i: 3.:, r,r-,1. 3, ::,: .. ?.,.1.i.( ;i :'..: I

ResolutionNo- 10670
Page 49 of 140

Page 378

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition wili
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building perrnit.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site and building plans in the
subdivision to verifu compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the
subdivision.

cD (P) (B)B

The Regency Phase 1 portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project
(Lots l-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdiyision Map) shall comply with
the following architecture and design requirements:

1. This approval is for five, one-story mastff plans in four architectural styles with tbree

color and material options each for the Regency portion of the Toll Brothers project.

The applicant shall submit building plans that comply with this approval and the

attached building elevations dated August 30, 2019.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Regency single-family and

townhome residential units shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations,

materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot permits to
assure no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roof-line, same elevation
style, side-by-side, or across the street from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings. For lots abutting
the open space areas, mechanical equipment shall be located out ofview from open

space areas.

5. Decorative light fixtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design
Guidelines and unique to each architectwal design theme, shall be added to the front
building elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

6. A minimum of one street shall be planted in the front yard of each residential lot
within the subdivision. A minimum of two trees are required along the street-side of
a1l comer lots. All front yard irrigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to a
Building Permit Final.

7. A maximum of 25o/o of thetownhome product located on interior lots shal1 been
permitted to have a side entry at the primarv entrance location to the residence.

9l

Resolution No. 10670
Page 50 of 140

Page 379

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit.

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit
in Phase 2 or
Phase 3

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site and building plans in the

subdivision to verify compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the
subdivision.

Comments

This condition will be required as

part of the Phase 2 or Phase 3

portion (Traditional Subdivision) of
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
project.

cD (P) (E)

CD (P) PR

Responsible
Denartment

B

B

When
Required

M ec hanic al E quip me nt S cre enin g
All mechanical equipment shall be concealed from view ofpublic and private streets,

neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department.

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential units within the traditional

Subdivisions (Lots 1-21 4 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) and

Regency Phase 2 (421 unmapped residential units) portions of the Toll Brothers at Folsom

Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review and/or Planned Development
approval from the Planning Commission for ail residences to be built within the

aforemcntioned portions of the projcct area. If thc architecture is not consistent with the

Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines, the owner applicant may modifu the plans

or apply for a modification to the Design Guidelines to be reviewed by the Planning

Commission.

In addition, the fina1 design ofthe clubhouse within the Regency Phase I portion ofthe project

shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. If other clubhouse

structures are proposed with the Regency Phase 2 portion ofthe project or the traditional

Subdivision portion ofthe project, they will also be subject to review and approval by the

Planning Commission.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

93

#

92.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

FOLSOMCONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTIIERS AT PROJECT (PN 19-091)

ARYEOUSINGPLAIISL PDPERMITGP

Resolution No. 10670

Page5l ofl40

Page 380

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAI- FOR THN TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WDST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARJ(WAY, AF[I)

SOUTH OF MAI\GIM PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

The creation of
the Phase 2

regency private
amenity lots
will be part of
the future Phase
2 subdivision.
Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
342"d building
permit.

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
590th building
oermit.

Comments

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks
Plan for the required park land
transfers and the modified plans are

on file with the Community
Development Department.

The final map for this subdivision
includes the creation ofLot D (5
acres) and includes a note that Lot D
will be granted to the Regency HOA
by separate instrument. The other
lots in Phase I will be created with
future phased maps in the Regency
project.

The Community Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development of the
Regency age-restricted project to
verify compliance with this
condition.
The Communify Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development of the
Regency age-restricted project to
verify compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
Department

PARKS AI{D RECREATION REQUIREMENTS

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

When
Reouired

B

M, OG

B, OG

B, OG

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall modify the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks Plan to identify the

relocated public park lands that are outside ofthe project area prior to issuance ofthe first
building permit for Regency Phase 1. The relocated parklands shall include 8 acres adjacent to
the planned Local Park No. 4 (LP4) which is 2.3 acres in size, resulting in a 10.3-acre park site.

The remaining 2 acres shall be relocated adjacent to Local Park No. 2 (LP2) which is 1. 1 acres

in size, resulting in a 3.1-acre park site. Final parkland location and size shall be approved by
the Parks and Recreation Director.
The owner/applicant shall provide 7.5-acres ofprivate recreation facilities within the
"Regency" Phase I Subdivision (Lot D: 5.0-acres)(Lot G: 0.5-acres)(Lot F: 0.5-acres)
and"TraditionalHomes"Subdivision(LotE:1.5-acres)portionsoftheproposedprojectas
shown on the Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps. The final size and location of
the private amenity within the "Regency" Phase 2 Subdivision as shown on the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Master Plan Exhibil will be determined with approval of the future
entitlements associated with "Regency" Phase 2.

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (342nd building permit) within Phase lB of the

Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated

January 24,2020, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private amenity and

maintain continual progress until completton.

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (590th building permit) in Phase 1C of the

Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated
January 24,2029, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe two private dog-park
amenities and maintain continual progress until completion.

Mitigation
Measures

It

94.

95

96.

9'7

Resolution No. 10670

Page 52 of I 40

Page 381

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
137th building
permit in Phase
1

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
last building
permit in Phase

I

The Community Development and

Parks Departrnents will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

Comments

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

cD (E) (P),

PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

Responsible
Denartment

G, I, OG

G, I, OG

B, OG

B

When
Reouired

Prior to the issuance of the last building permit within Regency Phase 1 , the owner/applicant

shall complete grading of the public trails on Lots H, I, J, and N, and the Class I trail parallel

to Mangini Parkway on Lots Q and R, as shown on the Toll Brothers Public Trails System

Modification Exhibit ard Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, dated Januaty 24' 2020.

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all graded subdivision trails

completed Class I trail parallel to Mangini Parkway within the responsibility of the

development Homeowner's Association (HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City.

The City shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result ofthese trails

until the transfer of Ooen Soace ownershio to the City is complete.

and

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance ofall private trail connections within the

responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association (HOA) in perpetuity. The City
shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result ofthese private trail
connections to the public trails within the subdivision.

76 building permit within Traditional Subdivision portion of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private

amenity and maintain continual progress until completion.

Prior to issuance of the 1 3

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

100.

101

#

98.

99

WEST OF EAST BIDWALL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGII\I PARJilryAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTItrRS AT

AND INCLUSIONARYDASP PI,AI[SL

Resolution No. 10670

Page 53 of 140

Page 382

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTI{ERS AT FOLSOM RANCII PROJECT (PN T9-091)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD,NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARJ(WAY, ANI)

SOUTH OF MAITGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

Condition shall
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Parkland.

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks
Plan for the required park land
transfers and the modified plans are

on file with the Community
Develooment DeDartment.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the CC&R's for the
subdivision that include this
restriction and wiil monitor the
proiect to ensure compliance.

Responsible
Department

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

MISCELLANEOUS REOUIREMENTS

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P)

When
Required

OG

G,I

B

OG

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenanoe of all 86. I -acres of Open Space (Measure

W Open Space) and fuel modification buffers, in accordance with the Folsom Pian Area Open
Space Master Plan, within the responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association
(HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City. The City shall not incur any maintenance
responsibility or expense as a result ofthis Open Space until the transfer ofOpen Space

ownership to the Cify is complete. In addition, the Open Space shall not be deeded to the City
until devclopment on both sides adjacent to the Open Space are complete and at such a timc
the Citv is readv to take ownershio.
Parkland dedications shall be calculated as net acreage.

The owner/applicant shall update the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to reflect all changes and
modifications to the General Plan Land Use and Specific Plan Land Use diagrams, tables, and
exhibits to reflect changes resulting from the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project prior to
issuance of the first building permit to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

The Regency Phase I (Lots 1-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map dated October 1'1 , 2019) and the Regency Phase 2 unmapped portions of the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch project shall be limited to age-restricted (Age 55+) residential units.

Mitigation
Measures

#

t02

103

104.

105

Resolution No. I0670
Page 54 of 140

Page 383

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OFOAKAVENUE PARKWAY, AI\D

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA" DA AMENDMENTS, SLWSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLU$ONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Ycs

Yes

Comments

The Toll Brothcrs at Folsom Ranch
subdivision does not have any frontage
along US HWY 50 and therefore this
condition does not apply to the
subdivision.

The construction staging area for the
subdivision is not located near any
existing sensitive biological resources,

land uses or existing residences. The
construction area is shown on the plans

for the subdivision and the plans have

Mitigation Measures
Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Progran (MMRP). Table 1 below describes the mitigation measures from
the FPASP (May 201 l) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility Alternative (November 2012), Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Deciaration (December 2014), the Westland Eagle Specific Plan Amendment (September

20 1 5). and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Proiect.

Responsible
Agency

Aesthetics

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department.

Timing

l. Plans and

specifications:
before approval
of grading plans

and building
permits

2. Construction:
before the
approval of
occupancy
permits

associated with
residential and

commercial
units

3. Maintenance:
in perpetuity

Before approval
of grading plans
and during
consffuction for
all project
phases.

Mitigation Measures

Construct and Maintain a Landscape Corridor Adjacent to U,S. 50. The project applicant(s) for any
particular discretionary development application adjacent to U.S. 50 shall fund, construct, and maintain a

landscaped conidor within the SPA, south ofU.S. 50. This conidor shall be 50 feet wide, except that the

landscaped conidor width shall be reduced to 25 feet adjacent to the proposed regional mall. Landscaping

plans and specifications shall be approved by Caltraas and the City of Folsom, and constructed by the project
applicant(s) before the start ofearthmoving activities associated with residential or commercial units.

Landscaped areas would not be required within the preserved oak woodlands. As practicable, landscaping

shall primarily contain native and/or drought tolerant plants. Landscaped conidors shall be maintained in
perpetuity to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom.

Screen Construction Staging Areas. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application shall locate staging and material storage areas as far away from sensitive biological resources and

sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas shall

be approved by the appropriate agency (identified below) before the approval of grading plans for all project

phases and shall be screened from adjacent occupied land uses in earlier development phases to the

maximum extent practicable. Screens may include, but are not limited to, the use of such visual baniers such

Mitigation
Number
(Source)

3A.1-1

(FPASP
ETRyEIS)

34.1-4 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

19

#

106
-1

106

Resolution No. 10670
Page 55 of 140

Page 384

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

been approved by the Community
Development Department.

The Community Development
Depadment (CDD) has reviewed and

approved lighting plans for subdivision.
The plans are in compliance with the

condition ofapproval.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
ofbuilding
permits.

as berms or fences. The screen design shall be approved by the appropriate agency to further reduce visual

effects to the extent possible.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be

developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, and Caltrans) to reduce to the extent

feasible the visual effects of construction activities on adjacent project land uses that have already been

developed.

Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and Implement a Lighting
Plan.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall:

> Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-intensity nighttime lighting and glare as

part ofthe Folsom Specific Plan design guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to design

features, namely directional shieiding for street lighting, parking lot lighting, and other substantial light
sources, that would reduce effects ofnighttime lighting. In addition, consideration shall be given to the

use of automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting featrues to further reduce excess nighttime light.

> Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to prevent the light from shining off of the surface

intended to be illuminated.

To reduce impacts associated with iight and glare, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall:

> Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on adjacent

properties.

> Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime sporthg activities, and./or security

shall be screened or aimed no higher than 45 degrees above straight down (half-way between shaight

down and straight to the side) when the source is visible from any off-site residential property or public

roadway.

> For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight fixtures that are ofunusually
high intensity or brightness (e.g., harsh mercury vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or

that blink or flash.

> Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or finish, neunal,

earthtoned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby

roadways.

> Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscape design in the Folsom

Specific Plan area. Lighting fxtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall site design.

3A.l-s (FPASP
ErRl/ErS)

106
-3

Resolution No. 10670
Page 56 of 140

Page 385

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Cify and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and
verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Air Quality
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

> Lighting ofoff-site facilities within the City ofFolsom shall be consistent with the City's General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe off-site detention basin shall be consistent with Sacramento County General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe two local roadway connections from Folsom Heights off-site into El Dorado Hills shall

be consistent with El Dorado County General Plan standards.

A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within the each agency's judsdictional boundaries (specified

below) shall be submitted to the relevant jurisdictional agency for review and approval, which shall include

the above elements. The iighting plan may be submitted concunently with other improvement plans, and

shall be submitted before the installation ofany lighting or the approval ofbuilding permits for each phase.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the

approved lighting plan.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by Construction of On-Site
Elements. To reduce short-term construction emissions, the project applicant(s) for any particular
discretionary development application shall require their contractors to implement SMAQMD's list of Basic

Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices, and Enhanced

Exhaust Control Practices (list below) in eflect at the time individual portions ofthe site undergo

construction. In addition to SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction operations shall comply with
all applicable SMAQMD rules and regulations.

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

> Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not limited to soil piles,

graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access roads.

> Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucla fransporting soil, sand, or other

loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways

should be covered.

> Use wet power vacuum sheet sweepers to remove any visible trackout mud or dirt onto adjacent public

roads at least once a day. Use ofdry power sweeping is prohibited.

> Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).

34.2-lt
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-4

Resolution No. 10670
Page 57 of 140

Page 386

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



> All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as soon as possible.

In addition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used.

> Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment offwhen not in use or reducing the time of idling to 5

minutes (as required by the state airborne toxics control measwe [Title 13, Section 2485 ofthe

California Code of Regulations]). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the

entrances to the site.

> Maintain all construction equipment in properworking condition according to manufacturer's

specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in

proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas

> Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However, do not overwater to the

extent that sediment flows offthe site.

> Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed 20 mph

> Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in disturbed areas as soon as possible.

Water appropriately until vegetation is established.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads

> Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash off all trucks and equipment leaving the site.

> Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to l2-inch layer ofwood chips,

mulch, or gravel to reduce generation ofroad dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

> Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the construction site

regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take conective action within 48 hours. The

phone number of SMAQMD and the City contact person shall also be posted to ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices

> The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City of Folsom Community Development

Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating that the hear.y-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more) off-road

vehicles to be used in the construction project, including owned, leased, and subcontractor vehicles, will
achieve a project wide fleet-average 20% NOX reduction and 45% particulate reduction compared to the

most cunent Califomia Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of construction.

Acceptable options for reducing emissions may include use oflate-model engines, low-emission diesel

products, altemative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-treatment products, and/or other options as

they become available, The project applicant(s) of each project phase or its representative shall submit to

the City of Folsom Community Development Department and SMAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all

off-road construction eouioment. eoual to or greater than 50 hp, that would be used an aggregate of40 or

Resolution No. 10670

Page 58 of 140

Page 387

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

construction in the Summer of2020.The
compliance table is on file wittr the City.

The City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department
shall not grant
any grading
permits to the
respective
project
applican(s)
until the
respective
project
aoolicant(s)

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction for
all project
phases.

more hours during any portion ofthe construction project. The inventory shall include the horsepower
rating, engine production year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece ofequipment. The inventory shall

be updated and submitted monthly ttroughout the duration ofthe project, except that an inventory shall not
be required for any 30-day period in which no construction activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the

use ofhearyduty off-road equipmen! the project representative shall provide Slv[{QMD with the

anticipated construction timeline including start dat€, and name and phone number ofthe project manager

and on-site foreman. SMAQMD's Construction Mifigation Calculator can be used to identifl an equipment

fleet that achieves this reduction (SMAQMD 2007a). The project shall ensure that emissions from all off-
road diesel powered equipment used on the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for more than three minutes in
any one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired

immediately, and the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of
noncompliant equipment. A visual survey ofall in-operation equipment shall be made at least weekly, and

a monthly summary ofthe visual survey results shall be submitted tlroughout the duration ofthe project,

except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction

activity occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type ofvehicles surveyed as well as

the dates of each swvey. SMAQMD staffand/or other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to

determine compliance. Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede other SMAQMD or state rules or
regulations.

> If at the time of conskuction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or new guidance applicable to

construction emissions, compliance with the regulation or new guidance may completely or partially
replace this mitigation ifit is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained herein, and if
SMAQMD so permits.

Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOx Emissions Generated by Construction of On-
Site Elements.

Implementation ofthe project or the other four other action altematives would result in construction-
generated NOx emissions that exceed the SMAQMD threshold of significance, even after implementation of
the SMAQMD Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices (listed in Mitigation Measure3A.2-1a). Additionally,
Mitigation Measwe 3A.4-l (Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG
Emissions, pages 3A.4-14 to 15) has the potential to bodr reduce and increase NOx emissions, depending on
the types ofaltemative fuels and engine types employed. Therefore, the project applicant(s) shall pay

SMAQMD an off-site mitigation fee for implementation of any of the five action altematives for the purpose
of reducing NOx emissions to a lessthan-significant level (i.e., less than 85 lb/day). All NOx emission
reductions and increases associated with GHG mitigation shall be added to or subtracted from the amount
above the construction threshold to determine off-site mitigation fees, when possible. The specific fee

amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction emissions can be more accurately determined: that
is, ifthe City/USACE select and certify the EIR/EIS and approves the Proposed Project or one ofthe other

3A.2-lb
(FPASP
ErRyErs)

106

-5

Resolution No. 10670
Page 59 of 140

Page 388

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior

have paid the
appropriate off-
site mitigation
fee to
SMAQMD.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans

by the City.

Before issuance

of subdivision
maps or
improvement
plans.

four other action alternatives, the City and the applicants must establish the phasing by which development

would occur, and the applicants must develop a detailed construction schedule. Calculation of fees associated

with each project development phase shall be conducted by the project applicant(s) in ionsultation with
SMAQMD staffbefore the approval of grading plans by the City. The project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application shall pay into SMAQMD's off-site construction mitigation fund to

further mitigate construction generated emissions of NOx that exceed SMAQMD's daily emission threshold

of 85 lb/day. The calculation of daily NOx emissions shall be based on the cost rate established by

SMAQMD at the time the calculation and payment are made. At the time of writing this EIR/EIS the cost

rate is $16,000 to reduce 1 ton of NOx plus a 5% administrative fee (SMAQMD 2008c). The determination

of the final mitigation fee shall be conducted in coordination with SMAQMD before any ground disturbance

occurs for any project phase. Based on information available at the time of witing this EIPJEIS, and

assuming that Construction would be performed at a consistent rate over a 19-year period (and averaging of
22 work days per month), it is estimated that the off+ite construction mitigation fees would range from

$517,410 to 5524,149, depending on which altemative is selected. Because the fee is based on the mass

quantity of emissions that exceed SMAQMD's daily threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total fees would

be substantially greater ifconstruction activity is more intense during some phases and less intense during

other phases ofthe lg-year build out period, and in any event, based on the actual cost rate applied by

SMAQMD. (This fee is used by SMAQMD to purchase off-site emissions reductions. Such purchases are

made through SMAQMD's Heavy Duty Incentive Program, through which select owners of heaq'-duty

equipment in Sacramento County can repower or retrofit their old engines with cleaner engines or

technologies.)

Analyze and Disclose Projected PMro Emission Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors Resulting

from Construction ofOn-Site Elements. Prior to consfuction ofeach discretionary development entitlement

of on-site land uses, the project applicant shall perform a project-level CEQA analysis (e.g., supporting

documentation for an exemption, negative declaration, or project-specific EIR) that includes detailed

dispersion modeling ofconstuction-generated PMro to disclose what PMro concenhations would be at nearby

sensitive receptors. The dispersion modeling shall be performed in accordance with applicable SMAQMD
guidance that is in place at the time the analysis is performed. At the time of writing this EIR/EIS,

SMAQMD's most current and most detailed guidance for addressing construction-generated PMro emissions

is found in ils Guide to Air Quality Assessment in Sacramento County (SMAQMD 2009a). The project-level

analysis shall incorporate detailed parameters of the construction equipment and activities, including the year

during which construction would be performed, as well as the proximity ofpotentially affected receptors,

including receptors proposed by the project that exist at the time the construction activity would occur.

Specific Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan (AQMP) (Tonence Planning 2008), a

Appendix C2. The AQMP is intended to improve mobility, reduce vehicle miles
copy ofwhich is included in
traveled, and improve air

3A.2-1c
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.2-2 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-6

106
-7

Resolution No. 10670
Page 60 of 140

Page 389

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP cond'itions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on hle with ttre City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Depaxtment

Before the

approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans

by the
SMAQMD and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

quality as required by AB 32 and SB 375. The AQMP includes, among others, measures designed to provide

bicycle parking at commercial land uses, an inte$ated pedestrian/bicycle path network, transit stops with
shelters, a prohibition against the use the wood-burning fireplaces, energy star roofing materials, electric

lawnmowers provided to homeowners at no charge, and on-site hansportation altematives to passenger vehicles
(including light rail) that provide connectivity with other local and regional altemative transportation networks.

Develop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Construction-Generated
.Toxic Air Contaminant Emissions. The project appiicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application shall develop a plan to reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by prcject

construction activity associated with buildout ofthe selected altemative. Each plan shall be developed by the

project applicant(s) in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and

approval before the approval of any grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are the least likely to bc

occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and prohibiting heavy trucks from iclling.

Applicable measures shall be included in all project plans and specifications for all project phases.

The implementation and cnforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall be funded by the project

applicant(s) for the respective phase of development.

Implement Measures t0 Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air
Contaminants. The following measures shall be implemented to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to
Toxic Air Contaminants.

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to emit TACs or host TAC-
generating activity (e.g., loading docks) shall be located away from existing and proposed on-site

sensitive receptors such that they do not expose sensitive receptors to TAC emissions that exceed an

incremental increase of 10 in I million for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest corner

ofthe SPA shall be set back as far as possible tom the boundary ofthe corporation yard and/or relocated

to another area.

> Where necessary to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to an incremental increase of 10 in 1 million
for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0, proposed commercial and industrial
land uses that would host diesel tmcks shall incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main

propulsion engine idling time through altemative technologies such as, IdleAire, electrification of truck

parking, and alternative energy sowces for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely tumed off.

> Signs shall be posted in at all loading docks and truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered

delivery hucks must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to

reduce idlins emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

34,2-4a
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.2-4b
(FPASP
ErwErs)

106

-8

106

-9

Resolution No. 10670
Page 61 of 140

Page 390

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant obtained approval

for an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan

from the SMAQMD prior to
commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

approved Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan

is on file with the Community
Development Department.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.

This subdivision is residential and is not

adjacent to ary odorous land uses and is

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of all
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where

applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the
approval of
building
permits by the
City and

throughout
project
construction,
where

Motor Vehicle ldling, which was approved by the California Office of Administrative Law in January

2005.

> Implement the fotlowing additional guidelines, which are recommended in ARB's Land Use Handbook:

A Communify Health Perspective (ARB 2005) and are considered to be advisory and not regulatory:

. Sensitive receptors, such as residential units and daycare centers, shall notbe located in the same

building as dry-cleaning operations that use perchloroethylene. Dry-cleaning operations that use

perchloroethylene shall not be located within 300 feet ofany sensitive receptor. A setback of 500 feet

shall be provided for operations with two or more machines.

. Large gasoline stations (defined as facilities with a throughput of 3.6 mi'llion gallons per year or greater)

and sensitive land uses shall not be sited within 300 feet of each other. Small gasoline-dispensing

facilities (less than 3.6 million gallons oftkoughput per year) and sensitive land uses shall not be sited

within 50 feet ofeach other.

the SPA then the project applicant shall prepare an Asbestos Dust Control Plan for approval by SMAQMD as

required in Title 17, Section 93105 ofthe California Code ofRegulations, "Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control

Measure for Construction, Grading, Quarrying, and Surface Mining Operations." The Asbestos Dust Control

Plan shall specifu measwes, such as periodic watering to reduce airborne dust and ceasing construction

during high winds. Measures in the Asbestos Dust Control Plan may include but shall not be limited to dust

control miasures required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-la. The project applicant shall submit the plan to the

Folsom Community Development Department for review and SMAQMD for review and approval before

construction of the first project phase. SMAQMD approval ofthe plan must be received before any asbestos-

containing rock (serpentinite) can be distu6ed. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust Control Plan by

SMAQMD, the applicant shall ensure that construction conhactors implement the terms of the plan

throughout the construction period.

Implement Measures to Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Odorous Emissions'

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the

following measures:

> The odor-producing potential of land uses shall be considered when the exact type offacility that would

occupy axeas zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses is determined. Facilities that have

the potential to emit objectionable odors shall be located as far away as feasible from existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest comer

of the SPA shall be set back as far as possible from the boundary of the corporation y4id C4diSl]gigcatgd

3A.2-s (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.2-6 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-10

106

-11

Resolution No. 10670

Page 62 of 140

Page 391

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

not adjacent to the future Corporation
Yard.

The Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit from the State
Regional Water Quality Control
Board(SRWQCB). TheNDES
Permit requires the implementation
of BMP's, monitoring and reporting
for stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water

Biological Resources

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before approval
of improvement
and drainage
plans, and on an

ongoing basis

throughout and

after project
construction, as

to another area. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.24b to limit exposure to TAC

emissions.)

> Before the approval ofbuilding permits, odor control devices shall be identified to mitigate the exposure

ofreceptors to objectionable odors if a potential odor-producing source is to occupy an area zoned for
commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses. The identifted odor control devices shall be installed

before the issuance ofcertificates ofoccupancy for the potentially odor-producing use. The odor

producing potential of a source and control devices shall be determined in coordination with SMAQMD

and based on the number of complaints associated with existing sources ofthe same nature.

> The deeds to all properties located within the plan area that are within one mile ofan on- or off-site area

zoned or used for agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by a written

disclosure from the hansferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any transferee ofthe
potential adverse odor impacts from sunounding agricultural operations, which disclosure shall direct

the transferee to contact the County of Sacramento concerning any such property within the County

zoned for agricultural uses within one mile ofthe subject property being transfened.

> Truck loading docks and delivery areas shall be located as far away as feasible from existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> Signs shall be posted at all loading docks and truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered

delivery trucks must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to

reduce idling emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

Motor Vehicle ldiing, which was approved by California's Oflice of Administrative Law in January

2005. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to host diesel trucks shall

incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main propulsion engine idling time ttrough

altemative technologies such as, IdleAire, elechification of truck parking, and alternative energy sources

for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely tumed off. (This measure is also required by

Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

Design Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid and Minimize
Erosion and Runoffto All Wetlands and Other Waters That Are to Remrin on the SPA and Use Low
Impact Development Features,

To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrology, the project applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development application shall include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and

sediment control plans in their improvement plans and shall submit these plans to the City Fublic Works
Department for review and approval. For off-site elements within Sacramento County or El Dorado County

iurisdiction (e.g., off-site detention basin and off-site roadway connections to El Dorado Hills), planq shall be

3A.3-la
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

r06
-12

Resoluiion No. 10670
Page 63 of 140

Page 392

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),
which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeling.
The Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and
SRWQCB. There are no off-site
elements outside the City limits for
this subdivision.

Before approval of these improvement plans, the required for all
project phases.discretionary development application shall obtain NPDES MS4

Municipal Stormwater Permit and Grading Permit, comply with the City 's Grading Ordinance and County

all measures in their drainage plansdrainage and stormwater quality standards, and commit to implementing

and erosion and sediment conhol plans to avoid and mrnlmlze erosron and mnoff into Alder Creek and all

wetlands and other waters that would remaln on-site. Detailed information about stormwater runoff standards

and relevant city and county regulation is provided in chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and water Quality."

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development entitlement shall irnplement stormwater

qualrty ireatment controls consistent with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South

Flacer Regions in effect at the time the application is submitted. Appropriate runoff controls such as berms,

storm gates, off-stream detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration systems, and sediment traps

shall bi implemented to control siltation and the potential discharge ofpollutants. Development plans shall

incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) features, such as pervious sfips, permeable pavements,

bioretention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gUtter downspouts, and rain gardens, where

appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on water_quality,

nyarology, and sheam geomorphology and is specified as a method for protecting water quality in the

pioposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems shall be used for all roadway crossings over

wetlands and othei raters that are retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain

the natural and restored channels ofcreeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed with

sufficient span width and depth to provide for wildlife movement along the creek conidors even during high-

flow or flood events, as specified in the 404 permit.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary

development appliiation shall prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement

Best Managemint Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the

Centrat Vailey RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed information about the

SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

Each project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek and associated

tributiries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The project applicant(s) shal1 establish a

baseline ofconditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and

100-year storm events. These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the

stormwater system on the SPA. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring pro$am

shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be

designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,

"Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins. Discharge sites

in6 AldeiCreek and associated tributaries, as well as hibutaries to Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo

to ensure that conditions met. Conective measures shall be

Resolution No. 10670

Page 64 of 140

Page 393

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The MDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline

modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has recorded
Declarations of Covenants &
Restrictions (DCR's) in compliance with
the requirements of the USACE permit.

The DCR's are shown on the final map.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of
grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities for
any project
development
phase

containing
wetland
features or other
waters of the

U.S. The MMP
must be

approved before
any impact on
wetlands can

occur.

Mitigation shall
be implemented
on an ongolng
basis

throughout and

after

implemented as necessary mitigation measures will be satisfied when the are met

for 5 consecutive yeaxs without undertaking conective measures to meet the performance standard.

See FEIR/FEIS Appendix S showing that the detention basin in the northeast corner ofthe SPA has been

moved off stream.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado County for the roadway connections, Sacramento County for the

detention basin west ofPrairie City Road, and Caltrans for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements) such that

the performance standards described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met'

Secure Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net

Loss of Functions and Values of Wetlands, Other Waters of the U.S,, and Waters of the State.

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking activity associated

with each distinct discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application requiring filI ofwetlands or other waters ofthe U.S. or waters ofthe

state shall obtain all necessary permits under Sections 401 and 404 ofthe CWA or the state's Porter-Cologne

Act for the respective phase. For each respective discretionary development entitlement, all permits,

regulatory approvals, and permit conditions for effects on wetland habitats shall be secured before

implementation of any grading activities within 250 feet ofwaters ofthe U.S. or wetland habitats or lesser

dislance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, including waters

ofthe state, that potentially support Federally listed species. The project applicant(s) shall commit to replace,

restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance with USACE and the Central Valley RWQCB) the

acreage ofall wetlands and other waters ofthe U.S. that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded with
implementation ofproject plans for that development increment. Wetland habitat shall be restored, enhanced,

and/or replaced at an acreage and location and by methods agreeable to USACE, the Central Valley

RWQCB, and the City, as appropriate, depending on agencyjurisdiction, and as determined during the

Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes. As part ofthe Section 404 permitting process, a draft

wetland mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) shall be developed for the project on behalf ofthe project

applicant(s). Before any ground-disturbing activities in an area that would adversely affect wetlands and

before engaging in mitigation activities associated with each discretionary developmant entitlement, the

project applicant(s) shall submit the draft wetland MMP to USACE, the Central Valley RWQCB,

SaCramento County, El Dorado County, and the City for review and approval of those portions of the plan

over which they have jurisdiction. The MMP would have to be finalized prior to impacting any wetlands.

Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigation monitoring shall continue for a minimum of 5

years from completion ofmitigation, or human intervention (including recontouring and grading), or until the

performance standards identified in the approved MMP have been met, whichever is longer.

As part of the MMP, the project applicant(s) submit plans for the creation ofaquatic habitat

in order to adequately offset and replace the and services that would be lost at the SPA.
shall prepare and

aquatic functions

3A.3-1b
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-13

Resolution No. 10670
Page 65 of 140

Page 394

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



constnrctlon, as

required.
account for the temporal loss of habitat, and contain an adequate margin of safety to reflect anticipated

success. Restoration ofpreviously altered and degraded wetlands shall be a priority of the MMP for
offsetting losses of aquatic functions on the SPA because it is typically easier to achieve functional success in
restored wetlands than in those created from uplands. The MMP must demonstrate how the aquatic functions

and values that wouid be lost through project implementation will be replaced.

The habitat MMP for jurisdictional wetland features shall be consistent with USACE's and EPA's April 10,

2008 Final Rule for Compensatory Mitigation for Losses ofAquatic Resources (33 CFR Parts 325 afi'332
and 40 CFR Part 230) and USACE's October 26, 2010 Memorandum Re: Minimum Level of Documentation

Required for Permit Decisions. According to the Final Rule, mitigation banks should be given preference

over other types ofmitigation because a lot ofthe risk and rmcertainty regarding mitigation success is alleviated

by the fact that mitigation bank wetlands must be established and demonstrating functionality before credits can

be sold. The use ofmitigation credits also alleviates temporal losses ofwetland function while compensatory

wetlands are being established. Mitigation banls also tend to be on larger, more ecologically valuable parcels

and are subjected to more rigorous scientific study and planning and implementation procedwes than typical
permittee-responsible mitigation sites (USACE and EPA, 2008). Permittee-responsible on-site mitigation areas

can be exposed to long-term negative effects ofsunounding development since they tend to be smaller and less

buffered than mitigafion banks. The Final Rule also establishes a preference for a'\ratershed approach" in
selecting locations for compensatory mitigation project locations, that mitigation selection must be "appropriate

and practicable" and that mitigation banks must address watershed needs based on criteria set forth in the Final

Rule. The watershed approach accomplishes this objective by expanding the informational and analytic basis of
mitigation project site selection decisions and ensuring that both authorized impacts and mitigafion are

considered on a watershed scale rather than only project by project. This requires a degree offlexibility so that

district engineen can authorize mitigation projects that most effectively address the case-specific circumstances

and needs ofthe watershed, while remaining practicable for the permittee. The SPA includes portions ofthe
Alder Creek, Buffalo Creek, Coyote Creek, and Carson Creek Watersheds. The majority of the SPA is wiftin
the Alder Creek Watershed. Alder Creek and Buffalo Creek are part of the Lower American fuver Watershed.

Carson Creek and Coyote Creek are part of the Cosumnes River Watershed. Mitigation credits may be available

within the Cosumnes Watershed, but not within the American fuver Watershed and not within the sub-

watersheds ofthe SPA. Therefore, aquatic habitats may need to be restored or created on the SPA and adjacent

off-site lands, preferably within the a{fected watersheds, in order to successflrlly replace lost fimctions at the

appropriate watershed scale where loss of firnction would occur. It is not likely feasible to provide

compensatory mitigation for all aquatic resource impacts on site.

Therefore, a combination ofon-site and off-site permittee-responsible mitigation and mitigation banking

would likely be necessaxy to achieve the no-net-loss standard.

The SPA is located within the service areas of several approved mitigation banks (e.g., Bryte Ranch, Clay

Station, Fitzgerald Ranch, and Twin City Mitigation Bank). The majority of compensatory mitigation for
wetland impacts is proposed to be accomplished at an agency approved mitigation bank or banks authorized

to sell credits to offset impacts in the SPA. The applicants' biological consultant, ECORP, has identified

Resolution No. 10670

Page 66 of 140

Page 395

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



auaitatitlty ofapproximately 31 vemal pool credits and 228 seasonal wetland credits at mitigation banks

whose service area includes the SPA. Additional credits may also be available from pending, but not yet

approved, mitigation banks. However, availability is subject to change and, as noted above, a combination of
mitigation bank credits and permittee-responsible on and off-site mitigation may be necessary to fully offset

project impacts on wetlands and other waters of the U.S. If USACE determines that the use of mitigation

bank credits is not sufficient mitigation to offset impacts within the SPA, the October 26, 2010 Memorandum

Re: Minimum Level of Documentation Required for Permit Decisions requires USACE to specifically

demonsffate why the use ofbank credits is not acceptable to USACE in accordance with Section 33 CFR

332.3(a)(l).

Compensatory mitigation for losses of stream and intermittent drainage channels shall follow the Final Rule

Guidelines, which specify that compensatory mitigation should be achieved th'rough in-kind preservation,

restoration, or enhancement within the same watershed, subject to practicability considerations. The wetland

MMP shall address how to mitigate impacts on vemal pool, seasonal swale, seasonal wetland, seep, maxsh,

pond, and intermittent and perennial stream habitat, and shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented

io avoid and/or mitigate any off-site project-related impacts. The wetland compensation section ofthe habitat

MMP shall include the following:

> Compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites. In General, compensatory

mitigation sites should meet the following criteria, based on the Final Rule;

. located within the same watershed as the wetland or other waters that would be lost, as appropriate and

practicable;

' located in the most likely position to successfully replace wetland functions lost on the impact site

considering watershed-scale features such as aquatic habitat diversity, habitat connectivify, available

water sources and hydrologic relationships, land use trends, ecological benefits, and compatibility with

adjacent land uses, and the likelihood for success and sustainability;

> A complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site preservation areas and off-

site compensatory mitigation areas, including wetland functional assessment using the California Rapid

Assessment Method (CRAM) (Collins et al. 2008), or other appropriate wetland assessment protocol as

determined tbrough consultation with USACE and the USFWS, to establish baseline conditions;

> Specific creation andrestoration plans for each mitigation site;

> Use of Cfu{M to compare compensatory wetlands to the baseline CRAM scores from wetlands in the

SPA. The compensatory wetland CRAM scores shall be compared against the highest quality wetland of
each type from the SPA;

> Cfu{M scores, or otler wetland assessment prctocol scores, from the compensatory wetlands shall be

compared against the highest quality wetland scores for each wetland type to document success of
compensatory wetlands in replacing the functions ofthe affected wetlands to be replaced;

Resolution No. 10670
Page 67 of 140

Page 396

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



> Monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements, and the following elements:

. ecological performance standards, based on the best available science, that can be assessed in a
practicable manner (e.g., performance standards proposed by Barbour et al. 2007). Performance

standards must be based on attributes that are objective and verifiable;

. assessments conducted annually for 5 years after construction or restoration of compensatory wetlands

to detemine whether these areas are acquiring wetland functions and to plot the performance trajectory

ofpreserved, restored or created wetlands over time.

. assessments results for compensatory wetlands shall also be compared against scores for reference

wetlands assessed in the same year;

. assessments analysis conducted annually for 5 years after any construction adjacent to wetlands

preserved on the SPA to determine whether &ese areas are retaining flurctions and values. Assessments

results for wetlands preserved on site shall also be compared against scores for reference wetlands

assessed in the same year;

I analysis ofassessments data, including assessment ofpotential stressors, to determine whether any

remedial activities may be necessary;

. conective measures if performance standards are not met;

. monitoring of plant communities as performance criteria (amual measure of success, during monitoring
period) and success criteria (indicative of achievement of mitigation habitat requirement at end of
monitoring period) for hydrologic function have become established and the creation site "matures"

over time;

' GIS analysis of compensatory wetlands to demonshate actual acreage of functioning wetland habitat;

. adaptive management measures to be applied if performance standards and acreage requirements are

not being met;

r responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

. responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifuing success or prescribing

implementation or conective actions.

A final operations and management plan (OMP) for all on- and off-site permittee-sponsored wetland

preservation and mitigation areas shall be prepared and submitted to USACE and USFWS for review,
comment and preliminary approval prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA. The

plan shall include detailed information on the habitats present within the preservation and mitigation areas,

the long-term management and monitoring ofthese habitats, legal protection for the preservation and

mitigation areas (e.g., conservation easement, declaration ofrestictions), and funding mechanism
information (e.g., endowment). A final OMP for each discretionary development entitlement affecting
wetlands must be approved prior to construction.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 68 of 140

Page 397

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Caiifomia
Department of
Fish and Game
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department.

Before the
approval of
grading and

improvement
plans, before
any ground

disturbing
activities, and

during project
construction as

applicable for
all project
phases.

USACE has project will require an individual permit. In
detail proposed wetland

its stage and once approved

by USACE, the MMP for the project is expected to

that would ensure no net loss

restoration, enhancement, and/or

replacement actrvltles of aquatic functions m the project vicinity Approval and

implementation ofthe wetland MMP shall alm to tully mitigate all unavoidable impacts on jurisdictional

waters of the U.S. including jurisdictional wetlands. In addition to USACE approval, approval by the Cily

Sacramento County, El Dorado County, and the Cenhal Valley RWQCB, as appropriate depending on

agency jurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes, will aiso

be required. Approvals fi'om Sacramento County and El Dorado County shall be required for impacts

resulting from off-site project elements occurring in these counties, such as the off-site detention basin in

Sacraminto County and the roadway connections into El Dorado County. To satisS the requirements ofthe
City and the Cenhal Valley RWQCB, mitigation of impacts on the nonjurisdictional wetlands beyond the

jurisdiction of USACE shall be included in the same MMP. All mitigation requirements determined through

this process shall be implemented before grading plans are approved. The MMP shall be submitted to

USACE and approved prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA. Water quality

certification pursuant to Section 401 ofthe CWA will be required before issuance ofa Section 404 permit.

Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the project applicant(s) shall obtain water

quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater quality

certification shall be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project appticant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans, El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Avoid Direct Loss 's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests. To mitigate impacts on Swainson's

hawk and other raptors (including bunowing owl), the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a

qualified biologist to conduct preconstruction surveys and to identify active nests on and within 0.5 mile of
the SPA and active burrows on the SPA. The surveys shall be conducted before the approval of grading

and/or improvement plans (as applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the

beginning of construction for all project phases. To the extent feasible, guidelines provided in Recommended

Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Suweys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk

Technical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. If no nests are

found, no further mitigation is required.

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's hawks and other raptors shall be avoided by

establishing appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area

until the young have fledged, tire nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has determined in

consultation with DFG that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment. DFG guidelines

recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-mile-wide buffers, but the size of the buffer may be adjusted if a
oualified biolosist and the City, in consultation with DFG, determine that such an adjustment would not be

34.3-2a
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-14

Resolution No. 10670

Page 69 of 140

Page 398

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verificd compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.The
compliance table is on file witl the City,

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of
grading,

improvement,
or construction
plans and

before any
ground
disturbing
activity in any
project
development
phase that
would affect
Swainson's
hawk foraging
habitat.

likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring ofthe nest by a qualified biologist during and after

construction activities will be required ifthe activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

lf active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval before

any ground-disturbing activities.

The City shall consult with DFG. The mitigation plan may consist of installation of one-way doors on all
burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and construction of artificial bunows within the project

vicinity, as needed; however, burrow owl exclusions may only be used ifa qualified biologist verifies that the

bunow does not contain eggs or dependent young. Ifactive bunows contain eggs and/or young, no

construction shall occur within 50 feet ofthe bunow until young have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there

are no owls inside burrows, these bunows may be collapsed.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), such that the performance

criteria set forth in DFG's guidelines are determined to be met.

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2b: Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan.

To mitigate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat, the project applican(s) ofall project phases shall

prepare and implement a Swainson's hawk mitigation plan including, but not limited to the requirements

described below.

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans or before any ground-disturbing activities, whichever

occurs first, the project applicant(s) shall preserve, to the satisfaction ofthe City or Sacramento County, as

appropriate depending on agencyjurisdiction, suitable Swainson's hawk foraging habitat to ensure 1:1

mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's hawk foraging habitat lost as a result ofthe project, as determined

by the City, or Sacramento County, after consultation with DFG and a qualified biologist.

The l: I habitat value shall be based on Swainson's hawk nesting distribution and an assessment of habitat
quality, availabilify, and use within the City's planning area, or Sacramento County jurisdiction. The

mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the Staff
Report Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of
California, which call for the following mitigation ratios for loss of foraging habitat in these categories: 1:1 if
within 1 mile of an active nest site,0.75:1 if over I mile but less than 5 miles, and 0.5:l if over 5 miles but
less *ran 10 miles from an active nest site. Such mitigation shall be accomplished through credit purchase

fiom an established mitigation bank approved to sell Swainson's hawk foraging habitat credits to mitigate

losses in the SPA, if available, or through the transfer offee title or perpetual conservation easement. The

mitigation land shall be located within the known foraging area and within Sacramento County. The City, or
Sacramento County if outside City jurisdiction, after consultation with DFG, will determine the

appropriateness of the mitigation land.

3A.3-2b
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-15

Resolution No. 10670
Page 70 of 140

Page 399

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Before approval of such proposed mitigation, the City, or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin,

shall consult with DFG the appropriateness ofthe mitigation. Ifmitigation is accomplished through
of the land to maintain

regarding
then suchconservation easement, an easement shall ensure the continued management

for impacts on habitat at the off-site detention basin.

Swainson's hawk foraging values, including but not limited to ongoing agdcultural uses and the maintenance

of all existing water rights associated with the land. The conservation easement shall be recordable and shall

prohibit any activity that substantially impairs or diminishes the land's capacity as suitable Swainson's hawk

habitat.

The project applicant(s) shall transfer said Swainson's hawk mitigation land, though either conservation

easement or f;; title, to a third party, nonprofit conservation organization (Conservation Operator), with the

City and DFG named as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified

conservation easement land manager that manages land as its primary function. Additionally, the

Conservation Operator shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation organization that meets the criteria of
Civil Code Section 8i5.3(a) and shall be selected or approved by the City or County, after consultation with

DFG. The City, or County, after consultation with DFG and the Conservation Operator, shall approve the

content and form ofthe conservation easement. The City, or County, DFG, and the Conservation Operator

shall each have the power to enforce the terms ofthe conservation easement. The Conservation Operator

shall monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms of the easement.

The project applicant(s), after consultation with the City, or County ofjurisdiction, DFG, and the

ConiervationOperator, shall establish an endowment or some other financial mechanism that is suffrcient to

fund in perpetuity the operation, maintenance, management, and enforcement ofthe conservation easement.

If an endowment is used, either the endowment funds shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands

within the City's jurisdiction or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin to be dishibuted to an

appropriate third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they shall be submitted directly to the third-party

nonprbfit conservation agency in exchange for an agreement to manage and maintain the lands in perpetuity.

The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or fiansfer any interest of any conservation €asement or

mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval ofthe City and DFG. Mitigation lands established

or acquired for impacts incuned at the off-site detention basin shall require approval from Sacramento

County prior to sale or transfer of mitigation lands or conservation easement.

Ifthe Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manage, maintain, and enforce the

interest shall be transferred to another entity acceptable to the City and DFG, or Sacramento County and

DFG depending onjurisdiction ofthe affected habitat. The City Planning Department shall ensure that

mitigation habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's planning area is properly established

and is functioning as habitat by reviewing regular monitoring reports prepared by the Conservation Operator

of the mitigation site(s). Monitoring ofthe mitigation site(s) shall continue for the first 10 years after

establishment of the easement and shall be funded tfuough the endowment, or other appropnate funding

mechanism, established by the project applicant(s). Sacramento County shall review the monitoring reports

Resolution No. 10670
Page 7l of 140

Page 400

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to comnencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval ofany
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Before the
approval of any
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County and Caltrans).

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies. To avoid and minimize impacts

to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey

for any project activity that would occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August
3 l). The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any activity occuning
within 500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas ofriparian scrub vegetation.

The survey shall be conducted within 14 days before project activity begins.

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no further mitigation is required. If a colony is found, the

qualified biologist shall establish a buffer around the nesting colony. No project activity shall commence

within fte buffer axea until a qualified biologist confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size ofthe
buffer shall be determined in consultation with DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100 to 500 feet,

depending on the nature ofthe project activity, the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and other

relevant circumslances.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries (i.e., U.S. 50

interchange improvements) must be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase in
consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans) and must be sufficient to achieve the
performance criteria described above.

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts, The project applicant ofall project phases

containing potential bat roosting habitat shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct surveys for roosting bats.

Surveys shall be conducted in the fall to determine if the mine shaft is used as a hibemaculum and in spring
and/or summer to detemine if it is used as a maternity or day roost. Surveys shall consist of evening

emergence surveys to note the presence or absence of bats and could consist ofvisual surveys at the time of
emergence. If evidence of bat use is observed, the number and species ofbats using the roost shall be

determined. Bat detectors may be used to supplemenl survey efforts. Ifno bat roosts are found, then no

further study shall be required.

Ifroosts ofpallid bat or Townsend's big-eared bats are determined to be present and must be removed, the

bats shall be excluded from the roosting site. A mitigation program addressing compensation, exclusion
methods, and roost removal procedures shall be developed in consultation with DFG before implementation.

Exclusion methods may include use of one-way doors at roost entrances (bats may leave but not reenter), or
sealing roost entrances when the site can be confirmed to contain no bats. Exclusion efforts may be restricted

during periods of sensitive activity (e,g., during hibemation or while females in matemity colonies are

nursing young). The loss of each roost (if any) wiil be replaced in consultation with DFG and may include

construction and installation ofbat boxes suitable to the bat species and colony size excluded from the

oripinal roostine site. Roost reolacement will be imolemented before bats are excluded from the orieinal

3A.3-2c
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.3-2d
(FPASP
ErR/XrS)

r06
-16

106

-17

Resolution No. 10670

Page 72 of 140

Page 401

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Envhonmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

constmction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

U.S. Army
Corps of
Engineers,
Sacramento

District; U.S.
Fish and

Wildlife
Service; and
City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval ofany
grading or
improvement
plans, before
any ground

disturbing
activities within
250 feet ofsaid
habitat or lesser

distance
deemed

sufficiently
protective by a
qualified
biologist with
approval from
USFWS, and on
an ongoing
basis

throughout
construction as

applicable for
all projeci
phases as

required by the
mitigation plan,

BO, and/or
BMPs.

roost sites. Once the replacement roosts are constructed and it is confirmed that bats are not present in the

original roost site, the mine shaft may be removed.

Secure Take Authorization for Federally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates and Implement All Permit
Conditions. No project construction shall proceed in areas supporting potential habitat for Federally listed

vernal pool invertebrates, or within adequate buffer areas (250 feet or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS), until a biological opinion (BO) or Not

Likely to Adversely Affect (lrILAA) letter has been issued by USFWS and the project applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development entitlements affecting such areas have abided by conditions in the BO
(including conservation and minimization measures) intended to be completed before on-site conskuction.

Conservation and minimization measures shall include preparation of supporting documentation describing

methods to protect existing vemal pools during and after project construction, a detailed monitoring plan, and

reporting requirements.

As described under Mitigation Measure 3A.3-1a, an MMP shall be developed that describes details how loss

of vernal pool and other wetland habitats shall be offset, including details on creation of habitat, account for

the temporal loss ofhabitat, contain performance standards to ensure success, and outline remedial actions if
performance standards arc not met.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application potentially affecting vernal

pool habitat shall complete and implement a habitat MMP that will result in no net loss of acreage, function,

and value of affected vernal pool habitat. The final habiiat MMP shall be consistent with guidance provided

in Programmatic Formal Endangered Species Act Consultation on Issuance of404 Permits for Projects with
Relatively Small Effects on Listed Vernal Pool Crustaceans within the Jurisdiction of the Sacramento Field

Office, California (USFWS 1996) or shall provide an altemative approach that is acceptable to the City,
USACE, and USFWS and accomplishes no net loss of habitat 

'acreage, 
function, and value.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application "potentially affecting vernal

pool habitat" shall ensure that theie is sufficient upland habitat within the target areas for creation and

restoration ofvemal pools and vernal pool complexes to provide ecosystem health. This standard shall be

accomplished by requiring the project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application affecting
vernal pool or seasonal wetland habitat to identify the extent of indirectly affected vernal pool and seasonal

wetland habitat, either by identifoing all such habitat within 250 feet ofproject construction activities or by
providing an altemative technical evaluation. Ifa lesser distance is pursued, this distance shall be approved

by USFWS. The project applicant(s) shall preserve acreage ofvernal pool habitat for each wetted acre of any

indirectly affected vemal pool habitat at a ratio approved by USFWS at the conclusion ofthe Section 7

consultation. This mitigation shall occur before the approval of any grading or improvement plans for any

project phase that would allow work within 250 feet of such habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, and before any ground disturbing activity
within 250 feet ofthe habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with
approval from USFWS. The prolect applicant(s) will not be required to complete this mitigation measure for

3A.3-2g
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-18

Resolution No. 10670
Page 73 of 140

Page 402

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to cofiurencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Department of
Fish and Game
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of
grading or
improvement
plans or any
construction
activities
(including
clearing and
grubbing) that
affect the bed
and bank or
riparian and

freshwater
marsh habitat
associated with
Alder Creek
and other on-
site or off-site
drainage
channels and

ponds.

mitigated to the satisfaction of USFWS another BO

specific habitat acreage are mitigated by one project
again in another phase of the

phase or elemeni,

the project applicant(s) will not be required to mitigate for it project).

A standard set ofBMPs shall be applied to construction occurring in areas within 250 feet of off-site vernal

pool habitat, or within any lesser distance deemed adequate by a qualified biologist (with approval from

USpWS; to constihrte a sufficient buffer from such habitat. Refer to Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water

Quality - Land" for the details of BMPs to be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

deveioped by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-4a: Implement Section 602 Streambed
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall obtain a

from DFG for all construction activities that would occur in tle
Section t602

streambed alteration agrcement bed and bank

of Alder Creek and other drainage channels and ponds on the SPA. As a condition of issuance ofthe
streambed alteration agreement, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application affecting riparian habitat shall hire a qualified restoration ecologist to prepare a riparian habitat

Mitlp. fne draft MMP shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented to avoid and/or compensate for

impacts on the stream channel ofAlder Creek and other drainage channels within DFG jurisdiction, and the

bed and banks ofthe on-site ponds. Mitigation measures may include establishment or restoration ofriparian
habitat within the project's open space areas along preserved stream conidors, riparian habitat restoration off-

site, or preservation and enhancement ofexisting riparian habitat either on or offthe SPA. The compensation

habitat shall be similar in composition and structure to the habitat to be removed and shall be at ratios

adequate to offset the loss ofriparian habitat firnctions and services at the SPA. The riparian habitat

compensation section of the habitat MMP shall include the following:

> compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites;

> complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site and off-site preservation and

restoration areas;

> site-specific management procedures to benefit establishment and maintenance ofnative riparian plant

species, including black willow, arroyo willow, white alder, and Fremont cottonwood;

> a planting and inigation program ifneeded for establishment ofnative riparian trees and shrubs at

shategic locations within each mitigation site (planting and irrigation may not be necessary if
preservation offunctioning riparian habitat is chosen as mitigation or ifrestoration can be accomplished

without rrigation or planting);

> in kind reference habitats for comparison with compensatory riparian habitats (using performance and

success criteria) to document success;

3A.3-4a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-19

Resolution No. 10670
Page 74 of 140

Page 403

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on frle with the City.

Califomia
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gmbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

> monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements (compensatory riparian habitats

shall be monitored for a minimum period offive years);

> ecological performance standards, based on the best available science and including specifications for
native riparian plant densities, species composition, amount ofdead woody vegetation gaps and bare

ground, and survivorship; at a minimum, compensatory mitigation planting sites must achieve 80%

survival ofplanted riparian trees and shrubs by the end ofthe hve-year maintenance and monitoring
period or dead and dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring continued until 80% survivorship is

achieved;

> corrective measures ifperformance standards are not met;

> responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

> responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifying success or prescribing

implementation or conective actions.

Any conditions ofissuance ofthe Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be implemented as part ofproject
construction activities that adversely affect the bed and bank and riparian habitat associated with Alder Creek

and other drainage channels and ponds that are within the project area that is subject to DFG jurisdiction. The

agreement shall be executed by the project applicant(s) and DFG before the approval ofany grading or
improvement plans or any construction activities in any project phase that could potentially affect the bed and

bank of Alder Creek and other on-site or off-site drainage channels under DFG jurisdiction and their
associated freshwater marsh and ripadan habitat.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach
applicable project phase with the Caltrans.

Conduct Surveys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement Avoidance and
Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

retain a qualified botanist to conduct preconstruction surveys to determine ifvalley needlegrass grassland is
present on the SPA. This could be done concunently with any special-status plant surveys conducted on site

as special-status plant surveys are floristic in nahre, i.e. require that all species encountered be identified, and

require preparation of a plant community map. If valley needlegrass grassland is not found on the SPA, the

botanist shall document the findings in a letter report to the City of Folsom, and no further mitigation shall be

required. Valley needlegrass grassland was not found in any of the off-site project elements.

Ifvalley needlegrass grassland is found on the SPA, the location and extent ofthe community shall be

mapped and the acreage ofthis community type, ifany, that would be removed by project implementation

shall be calculated. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application

affecting valley needlegrass grassland shall consult with DFG and the City ofFolsom to determine

appropriate mitigation for removal ofvalley needlegrass grassland resulting from project implementation.

Mitigation measures shall include one or more ofthe following components sufficient to achieve no net loss

of vallev needleerass grassland acreaee: establishment ofvallev needlegrass grassland within proiect's open

3A.3-4b
(FPASP
EIR/f,IS)

106

-20

Resolution No. 10670
Page 75 of 140

Page 404

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe owner/applicant obtained a Tree

Permit from the Community
Development Department for the

removal ofprotected oak trees that
were impacted by the grading and
construction ofPhase I ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020.

The owneriapplicant paid in-lieu
fees for the removal of some trees,

the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
El Dorado County for the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protected trees in accordance with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within the

Phase 1 portion ofthe subdivision were
fenced offaround their boundaries in
advance ofthe commencement of
grading and construction and the City
verified compliance by inspecting the

fence in advance of grading.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase

containing
protected trees

or oak
woodland.

Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak
Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and Minimize Indirect Impacts 0n Oak Trees

Retained On Site. The project applicant(s) shall prepare an oak woodland mitigation and monitoring plan.

The project applicant(s) ofall on- and off-site project phases containing oak woodland habitat or individuai

trees shatt adiire to the requirements describeal below, which are consistent with those outlined in California

Public Resources Code 21083.4. Pursuant to Sacramento County General Plan policy, the acreage ofoak
woodland habitat for determining impacts and mitigation requirements was calculated as the oak tree canopy

area within stands ofoak trees having greater than 10% cover plus a 3O-foot-radius buffer measured from the

outer edge ofthe tree canopy. Oak trees located in areas greater than 30 feet from stands meeting the grealer

than 10% tree canopy cover criterion were considered isolated trees and not part ofthe blue oak woodland

community, Mitigation for impacts on isolated oak trees is discussed separately below.

> Preserve approximateiy 399 acres ofexisting oak woodlandhabitat in the SPA (this acreage is based on

the extent of oak woodland habitat as determined from aerial photograph interpretation; however,

following completion of ground verification by a qualihed arborist, the actual amount ofoak woodland

present within impact areas could be slightly greater or lesser than the amount calculated from aerial

photograph and, therefore, the amount presewed could also be siightly greater or lesser than 399 acres)

> Create 243 acres of oak woodland habitat in the SPA by planting a combination ofblue oak acorns,

seedlings, and hees in the following SPA locations:

. Non-wooded areas that are adjacent to or contiguous with the existing oak woodland habitat.

. Preserve and passive open space zones throughout the SPA.

. Open space areas that are adjacent to existing oak woodlands that will be impacted by project grading

(i.e. catch slopes).

. O*rer practical locations within the SPA in or adjacent to open space.

. Oak Woodlands Mitigation Planting Criteria

The following oak woodland mitigation planting criteria shall be used to create oak woodland habitat:

> A minimum of 55 planting sites per acre (with a total of 70 units, as defined below) will mitigate for one

acre of oak woodland impacts. A combination ofacorns, seedlings, and various sizes of container trees

(#1 container, #5 container, #15 container) or hansplanted trees shall be incorporated into the planting

design. Mitigation acreage that is planted solely with larger oak trees (no acorns) shall have a minimum

of 35 planting sites per acre. The units are defined as follows:

3A.3-s (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-21

Resolution No. 10670
Page 76 of 140

Page 405

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



. One established acorn equals one unit (acorns will be over planted to maximize potential germination).

. One oak seedling equals one unit.

. One #1 container oak tree equals two units.

. One #5 container oaktree equals three units.

. One #15 container oak tree equals fowunits.

. One 24-inch boxed oak tree equals six units.

. One transplanted oak tree equals four units per trunk diameter inch (dbh).

. Native non oak species characteristic of oak woodlands shall be included in the mitigation planting plan

to augment overall habitat values. Each non oak tree species shall represent unit values described above

for oak hees, but non oak species shal1 comprise no more than 10% ofthe mitigation plantings.

> Preserve and protect existing off-site oak woodland habitat. Existing, unprotected oak woodland habitat

within Sacramento aad E1 Dorado Counties may be secured and placed under conservation easement in

lieu ofonsite mitigation measures ifnecessary. The off-site locations would be managed as oak

woodland habitat in perpetuity.

> Create oak woodlands offsite. Plant a combination ofblue oak acoms, seedlings, and ffees at off-site

location(s), ifneeded to achieve the creation goal of 243 acres ofnew blue oak woodland habitat. This

measure would only be needed if 243 acres ofblue oak woodland could not be created in the SPA. Off-
site creation shall follow the same guidelines as outlined in the Mitigation Planting Criteria for onsite

creation. Off-site tree planting shall occur at sites within Sacramento County that should naturally

support blue oak woodland and shall be used to restore former blue oak woodland habitat that has been

degraded or removed through human activities. Restoration shall be designed to result in species

composition and densities similar to those in the SPA prior to project development. Planted areas shall

be placed under conseryation easement and managed as oak woodland habitat in perpetuity.

> The oak woodland mitigation plan prepared by the project applicant(s) shall include a maintenance and

monitoring program for aly replacement trees. The program shall include monitoring and reporting

requirements, schedule, and success criteria, Replacement oak trees shall be maintained and monitored

for a minimum ofeight years from the date ofplanting and inigation shall be provided to planted trees

for the first five years after planting. Any replacement trees that die during the monitoring period shall

be replaced in sufficient numbers to achieve 80% survival rate for planted trees by the end ofthe eight
year maintenance and monitoring period. Dead and dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring
continued until 80% survivorship is achieved. Security acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover

maintenance and monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department.

The security will be forfeited ifthe pioject applicant or designated responsible party fails to provide

maintenance and monitoring and meet the success criteria.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 77 of l4O

Page 406

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation

The project applicant(s) of all on-site project phases containing oak woodland habitat or isolated trees and the

off-site Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue interchange improvements to U.S' 50; Rowberry Drive

Overcrossing; and the underground sewer force main shall develop a map depicting the tee canopy of all oak

trees in the survey area and identifying the acreage oftree canopy that would be preserved and the acreage

that would be removed. A tree permit for removal of isolated oak hees (those not located within the

delineated boundary of oak woodland habitat) shall be obtained from the City Planning Director. As a

condition ofthe tree removal permit, project applicant(s) shall be required to develop a Planting and

Maintenance Agreement. The City's Tree Preservation Code requires compensatory mitigation and the City
and the project applicants have developed a plan, as set forth Section 10 ofthe Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan (attached to this EIR/EIS as Appendix N) specifically to avoid and minimize adverse effects on isolated

oak trees from project development and to provide compensatory mitigation for removal ofprotected trees in

the SPA. In addition to the language contained in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the following elements

shall be included in a protected tree mitigation plan to be developed by the project applicants and agreed

upon by the City:

> Proiect applicant(s) ofprojects containing isolated oak trees shall retain a certified arborist or registered

professional forester to perform a determinate survey oftee species, size (dbh), condition, and location

for all areas ofthe project site proposed for tree removal and encroachment of development. The

condition of individual trees shall be assessed according to the American Society of Consulting Arborists

rating system with the following added explanations:

' 5 = Excellent; No problems - hee has no structural problems, branches are properly spaced and tree

characteristics are nearly perfect for the species.

. 4 = Good; No apparent problems - hee is in good condition and no apparent problems from visual

inspection, Ifpotential structural or health problems are tended at this stage, future hazard can be

reduced and more serious health problems can be averted.

' 3 = Fair; Minor problems - There are some minor structural or health problems that pose no immediate

danger. When the recommended actions in an arborist report are completed correctly the defect(s) can

be minimized or eliminated.

. 2 = Poor; Major problems - the tree is in poor condition, but the condition could be improved with
conect arboricultural work including, but not limited to: pruning, cabling, bracing, bolting, guying,

spraying, mistletoe removal, vertical mulching, and fertilization. Ifthe recommended actions are

completed correctly, hazard can be reduced and the rating can be elevated to a 3. If no action is taken

the tree is considered a liability and should be removed.

. i = Hazardous or non conectable condition - the tree is in exfemely poor condition and in non-

reversible decline. This rating is assigned to a tree that has stnrchrral and/or health nroblems that no

Resolution No. 10670

Page 78 of 140

Page 407

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



, amount oftree care work or effort can charge. The issues may or may not be considered a dangerous

situation. The tree may also be infested with a disease or pest(s) that is non-controllable at this time and

is causing an uracceptable risk of spreading the disease or pests(s) to other trees.

.0=Dead-thetreehasnosignificantsignsoflife(deadorveryclosetobeingdead).

Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation Planting Criteria

> The determination for whether an isolated tree shall be preserved, removed without compensation, or
removed with compensatory mitigation shall be based on the condition and size ofthe tree as follows:

. Trees rated 0 or 1 may be removed with no mitigation.

. Trees rated 2 may be removed at 50% of the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

' Trees rated 3, 4, and/or 5 may be removed at the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

. Native isolated oaks measuring 24 inches or greater dbh for a single trunk or 40 inches or more for a

multi-trunked tree and rated a 3 to 5 shall be retained, unless retaining wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall
(from bottom of footing to the top of the wall) would be required to protect the tree(s) from mass

grading ofthe SPA properties.

' Native oaks measuring b etween 12 and. 24 inches dbh and rate d a 4 or 5 shall not be removed or
mitigated unless wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall (from bottom offooting to the top ofthe wall) would be

required to protect the hee(s) from mass grading of the SPA properties. Trees in this size class but rated

2 or 3 shall not be removed unless unreasonable costs to save the tree(s) (greater than the cost of
implementing the isolated oak tree mitigation planting criteria described here) would result.

. Native oaks measuring 5 inches or greater dbh but less than 12 inches dbh shall not be removed unless

unreasonable costs to save the hee(s) (greater than the cost of implementing the isolated oak hee

mitigation planting criteria described here) would result.

. Native oak trees measuring I inch or greater dbh but less than 5 inches dbh may be preserved to receive

a Small Tree Preservation Credit (STPC). Any tree that is to be considered for preservation credit shall

be evaluated, included in the arborist report, and shall have been found to be rated a 3, 4, or a 5. Credits

shall only be accepted ifthe tree protection zone (TPZ) (i.e., the outer edge ofthe tree canopy drip line)
is protected with fencing in the exact manner that 5 inches dbh and greater trees are protected on a

construction site, and the spacing is equal to the proper tree spacing dictated by the Folsom Master Tree

List. STPC shall not count ifthey the tree is in a poor growing space due to its position within the TPZ

of another protected fee to be preserved. The City shall accept the preservation of native oak trees in
this size class as credit towards the total removed inches based on the following STPC criteria:

> Folsom Municipal Code requires one ofthe following be planted as compensation for each diameter inch
of protected tree removed:

Resolution No. 10670
Page 79 of 140

Page 408

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

City of Folsom

Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing

. half of a 24-inch box tree;

r one #15 container tree;

. two #5 container trees; or

. $ 1 50 inlieu payment or other fee set by City Council Resolution.

> The Planting and Maintenance Agreement shall include a planting plan, planting and inigation design

details, and a weaning schedule for the establishment period. The pian shall include a 5-year

establishment period for trees and 8 years for planted acoms with an annual monitoring report that

includes conections needed with proposed work plan, and notice ofcompliance within 90-days of annual

monitoring report. Security in an form acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover maintenance and

monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department. The security will be

forfeited ifthe project applicant or designated responsible party fails to fhlfill the Planting and

Maintenance Ageement.

> To avoid and minimize indirect impacts on protected hees to remain on the SPA, the project applicant(s)

of all affected project phases shall install high visibiiity fencing outside the outer edge of the drip lines of
all trees to be retained on the SPA during project consfuction. The fencing may be installed around

groups or stands of trees or whole wooded areas bust must be installed so that the drip lines of all trees

are protected. Grading, henching, equipment or materials storage, parking, paving, irrigation, and

landscaping shall be prohibited within the fenced areas (i.e. drip lines ofprotected trees). Ifthe activities

listed cannot be avoided within the drip line of a particular tree, that tree shall be counted as an affected

tree and compensatory mitigation shall be provided, or the tree in question shall be monitored for a
period offive years and replaced only ifthe tree appears to be dead or dying within five years ofproject

implementation.

Through a combination ofthe mitigation options presented above along with the proposed on-site

preservation ofblue oak woodland habitat in the open space areas, the project applicant(s) can satisfy the

mitigation requirements for removal oftees protected under the Folsom Municipal Code while also

mitigating the impacts on oak woodland habitat, as determined through consultation with the Sacramento

County Planning Department (for County off-site impacts only) and/or the City of Folsom.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach
applicable project phase with Caltrans.

Conduct Environmental Awareness Training for Construction Employees'

Prior to beginning conskuction activities, *re Project Applicant shall employ a qualified biologist to develop

and conduct environmental awareness training for construction employees. The fiaining shall describe the

importance ofonsite biological resources, inciuding special-status wildlife habitats; potential nests ofspecial-
status birds; and roosting habitat for special-stahrs bats. The biologist shall also explain the importance of
other resoonsibilities related to the orotection ofwildlife during construction such as inspecting open trenches

(Addendum)
ws-t106

Resolution No. 10670
Page 80 of 140

Page 409

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and
constmction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

California
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

California
Departrnent of
Fish and Game,
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, within
suitable tadpole
habitat.

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, within
suitable
northwestem
pond turtle
habitat.

and looking under vehicles and machinery prior to moving them to ensure there are no lizards, snakes, small

mammals, or other wildlife that could become trapped, injured, or killed in construction areas or under

equipment.

The environmental awareness program shall be provided to all construction personnel to briefthem on the

life history of special-status species in or adjacent to the project area, the need to avoid impacts on sensitive

biological resources, any terms and conditions required by State and fsderal agencies, and ttre penalties for
not complying with biological mitigation requirements. If new construcfion personnel are added to the

project, the contractor's superintendent shall ensure that the personnel receive the mandatory haining before

starting work. An environmental awareness handout that describes and illustrates sensitive resources to be

avoided during project consfuction and identifies a1l relevant permit conditions shall be provided to each

person.

Conduct Preconstruction Western Spadefoot Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction western spadefoot

survey within 48 hours ofthe initiation ofconstruction activity within suitable tadpole habitat (e.g., vemal

pools, seasonal wetlands, and drainages with standing water) for westem spadefoot. Ifno westem spadefoot

individuals are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist shall document the findings in a letter

report to CDFW and the City, and no further mitigation shall be required. Ifwestern spadefoot individuals

are found, the qualified biologist shall consult with CDFW to determine appropriate avoidance measures.

Conduct Preconstruction Northwestern Pond Turtle Survey'

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconsffuction northwestern pond

turtle survey within 48 hours ofthe initiation ofconstruction activity within suitable habitat for northwestem

pond turtle. Ifno northwestern pond turtles are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist shall

document the fmdings in a letter report to CDFW and the City, and no frrther mitigation shall be required. If
northwestern pond turtles are found, the qualified biologist shall capture and relocate the turtles to a suitable

preserved location in the vicinity ofthe project.

ws-2
(Addendum)

IYWPT-1
(Addendum)

r06
-23

106

-24

Resolution No. 10670
Page 81 of 140

Page 410

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City,

On June 10,2019, the US Army Corps

ofEngineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
constnrction. All required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Department.

On June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps
ofEngineers, in consultation with the
City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
lctters arc on file with the Community
Development Departrnent.

Califomia
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Depatment

Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department;
U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers;

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
gound
disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

During all
construction
phases

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Preconstruction Nesting Bird Survey,

The Project Applicant shall conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey of all areas associated with
construction activities on the project site within 14 days prior to commencement of construction during the

nesting season (l Februarythrough 31 August).

If active nests are found, a no-disturbance buffer around the nest shall be established. The buffer distance

shall be established by a qualified biologist in consultation with CDFW. The buffer shall be maintained until
the fledglings are capable of flight and become independent ofthe nest, to be determined by a qualified
biologist. Once the young are independent ofthe nest, no fudher measures are necessary. Pre-construction

nesting surveys are not required for construction activity outside ofthe nesting season.

Comp$ with the Programmatic Agreement,

The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a management framework for
identiffing historic properties, determining adverse effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required

under Section 106 ofthe National Historic Preservation Act. This document is incorporated by reference. The

PA is available for public inspection and review at the California Office of Historic Preservation 1725 23rd

Sheet Sacramento, CA 95816.

Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the California Register ofHistoric
Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or
Destruction Cannot be Avoided.

These steps may be combined with deliverables aad management steps perfonned for Section 106 provided
that management documents prepared for the PA also clearly reference the Califomia Register ofHistorical
Resources (CRHR) listing criteria and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Prior to ground

disturbing work for each individual development phase or off-site element, the applicable oversight agency
(City ofFolsom, El Dorado Counfy, Sacramento County, or Caltrans), or the project applicant(s) of all
project phases, with applicable oversight agency, shall perform the following actions:

> The project applicant shall retain the services ofa quaiified archaeologist to perform an inventory of
cultural resources within each individual development phase or off-site element subject to approval

under CEQA. Identified resources shall be evaluated for listing on the CRHR. The inventory report shall

also identifv locations that are sensitive for undiscovered cultural resources based upon the location of

NB-1
(Addendum)

3A.Sla
(Addendum)

3A.S1b
(Addendum)

106

-t<

106
:26

106
31

Resolution No. 10670

Page 82 of 140

Page 411

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



known resources, geomorphology, and topography. The inventory report shall specifu the location of
monitoring of ground-disturbing work in these areas by a qualified archaeologist and monitoring in the

vicinity of identified resources that may be damaged by construction, if appropriate

> The identification ofany sensitive locations subject to monitoring during construction ofeach individual

development phase shali be performed in concert with monitoring activities performed under the PA to

minimize the potential for conflicting requirements.

> For each resource that is determined eligible for the CPJIR, the applicable agency or the project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the

services of a qualified archaeologist who shall determine if implementation ofthe individual project

development would result in damage or destruction of "significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources.

These findings shall be reviewed by the applicable agency for consistency with the significance

thresholds and heatment measures provided in this EIR/EIS.

> Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid impacts on eligible or lised
resources. Alternatively, these resources may be preserved in place ifpossible, as suggested under

Califomia Public Resources Code Section 21083.2. Avoidance ofhistoric properties is required under

certain circumstances under the Public Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800.

> Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the project applicant(s) ofall project phases

(under the applicable agency's direction) shall prepare and implement treatment measures that are

determined to be necessary by a qualified archaeologist. These measures may consist ofdata recovery

excavations for resources that are eligible for listing because ofthe data they contain (which may

contribute to research). Alternatively, for historical architectural, engineered, or landscape features,

treafnent measures may consist of a preparation of interpretive, nanative, or photographic

documentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable oversight agency for consistency

with the significance thresholds and standards provided in this EIFVEIS.

> To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation Measure, the archaeologist

retained by either the applicabte oversight agency or the project applican(s) ofall project phases shall

Fepare an appropriate prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant prehistoric, ethnographic,

and historic themes and research questions against which to determine the significance of identified

resources and appropriate featment.

> These steps and doclments may be combined with the phasing ofmanagement and documents prepared

pursuant to the FAPA to minimize the potential for inconsistency and duplicative management efforts.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jwisdictional boundaries shall be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans)'

Resoiution No. 10670
Page 83 of 140

Page 412

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesOn June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps

of Engineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction, All required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Department. Compliance
with this condition is monitored through
consfuction inspection.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department;
U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
grubbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring If Required, Stop Work if
Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Perform Treahnent or
Avoidance as Required,

To reduce potential impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of a1l

project phases shall do the following:

> Before the start ofground-dishrbing activities, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall retain a

qualified archaeologist to conduct training for construction workers as necessary based upon the

sensitivity ofthe project APE, to educate them about the possibility ofencountering bwied cultural

resources and inform them ofthe proper procedures should cultural resources be encountered.

> As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-la and 3A.5-1b, if the archaeologist

determines that any portion ofthe SPA or the off-site elements should be monitored for potential

discovery of as-yet-unknown cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

implement such monitoring in the locations specified by the archaeologist. USACE should review and

approve any recommendations by archaeologists with respect to monitoring.

> Should any culhral resources, such as sffuctural features, unusual amounts ofbone or shell, artifacts, or

architectural remains be encountered during any construction activities, work shall be suspended in the

vicinity ofthe find and the appropriate oversight agency(ies) (identified below) shall be notified

immediately. The appropriate oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified archaeologist who shall

conduct a field investigation ofthe specific site and shall assess the significance ofthe find by evaluating

the resource for eligibility for listing on the CRHR and the NRHP. Ifthe resource is eligible for listing

on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to disturbance or destruction, the actions required in

Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b shall be implemented. The oversight agency shall be

responsible for approval ofrecommended mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light of the

approved land uses and shall implement the approved mitigation before resuming constmction activities

at the archaeological site.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the Cify of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

The project applicant, in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an archaeological sensitivity training

program is developed and implemented during a pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The

sensitivity training pro$am shall provide information about nofification procedures when potential

archaeological material is discovered, procedures for coordination between construction personnel and

monitoring personnel, and information about other treatment or issues that may arise ifcultural resources

(including human remains) are discovered during project construction. This protocol shall be communicated to

all new construction oersonnel durins orientation and on a poster that is placed in a visible locafion inside the

34"5-2
(Addendum)

106
-28

Resolution No. 10670

Page 84 of 140

Page 413

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThere have been no human remains

discovered during the course ofgrading
and construction in the project.

Sacramento
County
Coroner; Native
American
Heritage
Commission;
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

During all
ground

disturbing
activities, for
any project
phase.

constructionjob hailer. The phone ofthe USACE cultural resources staff also be

included.

The on-site sensitivity training shall be carried out each time a new confactor wiil begin work in the APE

and at the beginning of each construction season by each contractor.

If unanticipated discoveries ofadditional historic properties, dehned in 36 CFR 800. I 6 (l), are made during

the constouction ofthe project, the USACE shall ensure that they will be protected by implementing the

following measures:

> The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, ifgiven the authority to halt construction

activities, shall ensure that work in that area is immediately halted within a 1 0O-foot radius of the

unanticipated discovery until the find is examined by a person meeting the professional qualifications

standards specified in Section 2.2 of Attachment G of the HPMP. The Constnrction Manager, or

archaeologicai monitor, if present, shall noti$ the USACE within 24 hours of the discovery.

> The USACE shall notify the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) within one working day of an

unanticipated discovery and may initiate interim treatment measures in accordance witlt this HPTP.

Once the USACE makes a formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the USACE will notify

the SHPO within 48 hours of the determination and afford the SHPO an opportunity to comment on

appropriate heatment. The SHPO shall respond within 72 hours ofthe request to consult. Failure ofthe

SHPO to respond within 72 hours shall not prohibit the USACE from implementing the treatment

measures.

The project applicants shall be requied to submit to the City proofofcompliance in the fonn ofa completed training

roster and copy oftaining materials.

Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with California

Health and Safety Code Procedures.

In accordance with the Califomia Health and Safety Code, ifhuman remains are uncovered during ground-

disturbing activities, including those associated with off-site elements, the project applicant(s) ofall project

phases shall immediately halt all ground-disturbing activities in the area ofthe find and notiff the

Sacramento County Coroner and a professional archaeologist skilled in osteological analysis to determine the

nature ofthe remains. The coroner is required to examine all discoveries ofhuman remains within 48 hours

of receiving notice of a discovery on private or public lands (California Health and Safety Code Seclion

7050.5tb]). If the coroner determines that the remains are those ofa Native American, he or she must contact

the NAHC by pl.rone within 24 hours of making that determination (Califomia Health and Safety Code

Section 7050[c]).

3A,$,3
(Addendum)

106
:29

Resolution No. 10670
Page 85 of 140

Page 414

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe owner/applicant has provided

Geotechnical Report to the City. The

Geotechnical report for the subdivision is

on file with the City.

Geology and Soils

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Depadment

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and
ground-

acting on notification ofa discovery ofNative American human remains are identified in Section 5097.9 of
the California Public Resources Code.

Upon the discovery ofNative American remains, the procedures above regarding involvement ofthe
applicable county coroner, notification ofthe NAHC, and identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall

be followed. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall ensue that the immediate vicinity (according

to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards and practices) is not damaged or disturbed by

further development activity until consultation with the Most Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most

Likely Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the site to inspect the site and make

recommendations. A range ofpossible treatments for the remains may be discussed: nondestructive removal

and analysis, preservafion in place, relinquishment ofthe remains and associated items to the descendants, or

other culturally appropriate treatrnent. As suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Statutes of2006), the

concerned parties may extend discussions beyond the initial 48 hours to allow for the discovery ofadditional

remains. AB 2641(e) includes a list of site protection measures and states that the project applicant(s) shall

comply with one or more of the following requirements:

> record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center,

> use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement, or

> record a reintemment document with the county.

The project applicant(s) or its authorized representative of all project phases shall rebury the Native

American human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate dignity on the property in a location

not subject to further subsurface disturbance ifthe NAHC is unable to identifu an Most Like'ly Descendant or

if the Most Likely Descendant fails to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being ganted access to

the site. The project applicant(s) or its au*rorized representative may also reinter the remains in a location not

subject to further disturbance if it rejects the recommendation of the Most Likely Descendant and mediation

by the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. Ground disturbance in the zone of
suspended activity shall not recommence without authorization from the archaeologist'

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

The project applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof ofcompliance in the form of a completed

training roster and copy oftraining materials.

Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and Implement Appropriate

Recommendations. Before building permits are issued aad construction activities begin any project

development phase, the project applicant(s) of each project phase shall hire a licensed geotechnical engineer

to prepare a final geotechnical subsurface investigation report for the on- and off-site facilities, which shall be

3A.7-1a
(FPASP
EIRUEIS)

106
-30

Resoiution No. 10670
Page 86 of 140

Page 415

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

Compliance with this condition has been

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

Compliance with this condition has been

monitored through constmction
inspection by the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Depafinent

City of Folsom
Community

disturbing
activities.

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and

ground-
disturbing
activities.

Before the start
ofconstruction
activities.

submitted for review and approval to the appropriate City or county department (identified below). The final
geotechnical engineering report shall address and make recommendations on the following:

site preparation;

soil bearing capacity;

appropriate sources and types of fill;

potential need for soil amendments;

road, pavement, and parking areas;

sfructural foundations, including retaining-wall design;

grading practices;

soil conosion of concrete and steel;

erosion/winterization;

> seismic ground sbaking:

> liquefaction; and

> expansive/unstablesoils.

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the geotechnical investigation shall

Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities. All earthwork shall be monitored by a qualified

geotechnical or soils engineer retained by the project applicant(s) of each project phase. The geotechnical or

soils engineer shall provide oversight during all excavatron, placement of fill, and disposal of materials

removed from and deposited on both on- and off-site construction areas.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach appiicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion
issued, the project applicant(s) ofeach project phase that would be

Control Plan. Before grading permits are

located within the City ofFolsom shall

retain a California Registered Civil Engineer
erosion control plan shall be submitted to the

grading and

sradins

3A.7-1b
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.7-3 (FPASP
ErwErs)

106
-31

106

-32

Resolution No. 10670
Page 87 of 140

Page 416

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed and all
improvement plans in the subdivision to
verifi compliance with mitigation
measure.

Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before and
during
earthmoving
activities.

permits
Hillside

for all new development. The plan shall be consistent with the City's Grading Ordinance, the City's

Development Guidelines, and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading

associated with development for all project phases.

For the two off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills, the project applicant(s) ofthat phase shall retain a

Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

control plan shall be submitted to the El Dorado County Public Works Department and the El Dorado Hills

Community Service District before issuance of grading permits for roadway construction in El Dorado Hills.

The plan shall be consistent with El Dorado County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance

and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with roadway

development.

For the off-site detention basin west ofPrairie City Road, the project applicant(s) ofthat phase shall retain a

California Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

control plan shall be submitted to the Sacramento County Public Works Deparfinent before issuance of a

grading permit. The plan shall be consistent with Sacramento County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment

Control Ordinance and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with
construction of the detention basin.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and maintenance schedule of
all erosion and sediment control measures, a description ofmeasures designed to control dust and stabilize

the construction-site road and entrance, and a description of the location and methods of sttirage and disposal

of construction materials. Erosion and sediment control measures could include the use ofdetention basins,

berms, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering ofstockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion.

Stabilization on steep slopes could include construction ofretaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after

construction. Stabilization ofconstruction entrances to minimize trackout (control dust) is commonly

achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The project

applicant(s) shall ensure that the construction conhactor is responsible for securing a source of transportation

and deposition of excavated materials.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 34,.9-1 (discussed in Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality -
Land") would also help reduce erosion-related impacts.

Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations. The project applicant(s) of all project

phases shall either install subdrains (which typically consist ofperforated pipe and gravel, sunounded by

nonwoven geotextile fabric), or take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer

for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused by surface infiltration, water seepage, and

perched water during the winter months away from building foundations.

3A.7-s (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-33

Resolution No. 10670
Page 88 of 140

Page 417

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance witlt this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with tbis Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020- The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The Citv and its

City ofFolsom
Community
Deveiopment
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval

of smalliot
final maps and

building
permits for all
discretionary
development
project,

including all
on- and off-site
elements and

implementation
throughout

earthmoving
activities in the
Ione and
Mehrten
Formations.

To further reduce construction-generated GHG emissions, the project applicant(s) any particuiar

discretionary development application shall implement all feasible measures for reducing GHG emissions

associated with construction that are recommended by SMAQMD at the time individual portions of the site

undergo construction. Such measures may reduce GHG exhaust emissions from the use ofon-site equipment,

worker commute trips, and truck trips carrying materials and equipment to and from the SPA, as well as

GHG emissions embodied in the materials selected for construction (e.g., concrete). Other measures may

pertain to the materials used in construition. Prior to releasing each request for bid to contractors for the

construction of each discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) shall obtain the most

cunent list of GHG reduction measures that are recommended by SMAQMD and stipulate that these

measures be implemented in the respective request for bid as well as the subsequent construction contract

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary developmentwith the selected primary contractor. The
andthe

Construction-Generated GHG Emissions.Implement Additional Measures to

atethat substantiates

Assess the Signilicance of the Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required.

To minimize potential adverse impacts on previously unknown potentially unique, scientifically important
paleontological resources, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases where construction would occur in the

Ione and Mehrten Formations shall do the following:

> Before the start of any earthmoving activities for any project phase in the lone or Mehrten Formations,

the project applicant(s) shall retain a quaiified paleontologist or archaeologist to tain all construction

personnel involved with earthmoving activities, including the site superintendent, regarding the

possibility of encountering fossils, the appearance and types of fossils likely to be seen during

constuction, and proper notification procedures should fossils be encountered.

> Ifpaleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the construction crew shall

immediately cease work in the vicinity ofthe find and notifi the appropriate lead agency (identified

below). The project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the resource and

prepare a recovery plan in accordance with Society ofVertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The

recovery plan may include, but is not limited to, a field survey, construction monitoring, sampling and

data recovery procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen recovered, and a report of
findings. Recommendations in the recovery plan that are determined by the lead agency to be necessary

and feasible shall be implemented before construction activities can resume at the site where the

paleontological resources were discovered.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Paleontological Resources are Discovered,Personnel Education, Stop WorkConduct

3A.4-l (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.7-10
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and

106

-35

106
-34

Resolution No. 10670
Page 89 of 140

Page 418

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



project
construction.

considered infeasible for The

report, including the substantiation
approved by the City, in consultation with SMAQMD prior to the release of a request for bid by the project

applicant(s) for seeking a primary conhactor

requiring that the list of feasible measures be

to manage the construction ofeach development project. By
established prior to the selection ofa primary contractor, this

measure requires that the ability of a cottractor to effectively implement the selected GHG reduction

measures be inhereni to the selection process.

SMAQMD's recommended measures for reducing conskuction-related GHG emissions at the time of writing
this EIR/EIS are listed below and the project applicant(s) shall, at a minimum, be required to implement the

following:

> Improve fuel efficiency from construction equipment:

' reduce unnecessary idling (modiff work practices, install auxiliary power for driver comfod);

' perform equipment maintenance (inspections, detect failures early, conections);

. train equipment operators in proper use of equipment;

. use the proper size ofequipment for thejob; and

. use equipment with new technologies (repowered engines, electric drive trains).

> Use alternative fuels for electricity generators and welders at consfuction sites such as propane or solar,

or use electrical power.

> Use an ARB-approved low-carbon fuel, such as biodiesel or renewable diesel for construction

equipment. (Emissions of oxides of nitrogen [NOx] emissions from the use of low carbon fuel must be

reviewed and increases mitigated.) Additional information about low carbon fuels is available from

ARB's Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program (ARB 2009b).

> Encourage and provide carpools, shuttle vans, hansit passes and/or secure bicycle parking for

construction worker commutes.

> Reduce electricity use in the construction office by using compact fluorescent bulbs, powering off
computers every day, and replacing heating and cooling units with more efficient ones'

> Recycle or salvage non-hazardous construction and demolition debris (goal ofat lcast 75% by weight).

> Use locally sourced or recycled materials for construction materials (goal ofat least 20% based on costs

for building materials, and based on volume for toadway, parking lot, sidewalk and curb materials).

> Minimize the amount of concrete used for paved surfaces or use a low carbon confiete option.

> Produce concrete on-site if determined to be less emissive than transporting ready mix

Resolution No. 10670
Page 90 of 140

Page 419

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant worked with an

organization Urban Wood Rescue which
is a program in association with the

Sacramento Tree Foundation that makes
wood products from large trees that are

removed as a result of development. The
owner/applicant provided most of the
large trees that were removed as a part of
the grading and construction for the
project to Urban Wood Rescue and they

made table, fumiture, etc. from the ffees
that were provided. The remaining trees

and tree canopy was mulched by the
owner/applicant and is stored on site to

use as mulch in the landscape areas

throughout the project. No removed trees

were transponed to the landfill in
accordance with this condition of
approval.

The subdivision is not within any
identified area where contaminated
groundwater is present. Therefore there
is no required Phase I or Phase 2

Environmental Assessment required.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Departrnent

Hazards and llazardous Materials

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
offinal maps

and/or building
permits for all
project phases

requiring
discretionary
approval,
including all
on- and off-site
elements.

Before and

during earth
moving
activities

> Use EPA-certified SmartWay trucks for deliveries and equipment transport. Additional information
about the SmartWay Transport Partnership Program is available from ARB's Hear,y-Duty Vehicle

Greenhouse Gas Measure (ARB 2009c) and EPA (EPA 2009).

> Develop a plan in consultation with SMAQMD to efficiently use water for adequate dust control. This

may consist ofthe use ofnonpotable water from a local source.

t uUO'Oon ,o SyAQMD-recommended measures, construction activity shall comply with all applicable rules and

regulations established by SMAQMD and ARB.

Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program and/or Off-Site Tree
Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees. The h-ees on the project site contain sequestered carbon and

would continue to provide future carbon sequestration during their growing life. For all harvestable trees that

are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
participate in and provide necessary funding for urban and community forestry program (such as

the UrbanWood program managed by the Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute [Urban Forest Ecosystems
Institute 2009]) to ensue that wood with an equivalent carbon sequestration value to that of all harvestable
removed trees is harvested for an end-use that would retain its carbon sequesfation (e.g., furniture building,
cabinet making). For all nonharvestable trees that are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) shall

develop and fund an oflsite hee program that includes a level oftree planting that, at a minimum, increases

carbon sequestration by an amount equivalent to what would have been sequestered by the blue oak
woodland during its lifetime. This program shall be funded by the project applicant(s) of each development
phase and reviewed for comment by an independent Certihed Arborist unaffiliated with the project
applicant(s) and shall be coordinated with the requirements ofMitigation Measure 3.3-5, as stated in Section
3A.3, "Biological Resources - Land." Final approval of the program shall be provided by the City.
Components ofthe program may include, but not be limited to, providing urban tree canopy in the City of
Folsom, or reforestation in suitable areas outside the City. Reforestation in natural habitat areas outside the

City of Folsom would simultaneously mitigate the loss of oak woodland habitat while planting trees within
the urban forest canopy would not. The California Urban Forestry Greenhouse Gas Reporting Protocol shall
be used to assess this mitigation program (CCAR 2008). All unused vegetation and hee material shall be

mulched for use in landscaping on the project site, shipped to the nearest composting facility, or shipped to a

landfill that is equipped with a methane collection system, or combusted in a biomass power plant. Tree and
vegetative material should not be burned on- or off-site unless used as fuel in a biomass power plant.

Complete Investigations Related to the Extent to Which Soil and/or Groundwater May Have Been
Contaminated in Areas Not Covered by the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments and
Implement Required Measures. The project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application
shall conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (where an Phase I has not been conducted), and if
necessary, Phase II Environmental Site Assessments, and/or other appropriate testing for all areas ofthe SPA

3A.4-2b
(FPASP
EItl/EIS)

3A.8-2 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-36

106
-37

Resolution No. 10670

Page 9l of 140

Page 420

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThere are no overhead powerlines

existing within this subdivision and all
proposed and fuhre utility lines to serve

this subdivision will be olaced

City of Folsom
Community

At the
submission of

and include, as necessary, analysis of soil and/or groundwater samples for the potential contamination sites

that have not yet been covered by previous investigations (as shown in Exhibit 3A.8-1) before construction

activities begin in those areas. Recommendations in the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments to

address any contamination that is found shall be implemented before initiating ground-disturbing activities in

these areas.

The project applicant(s) shall implement the following measures before ground-disturbing activities to reduce

health hazards associated with potential exposure to hazardous substances:

> Prepare a plan that identifies any necessary remediation activities appropriate for proposed on- and off-

site uses, including excavation and removal of on-site contaminated soils, redistribution of clean fill
material in the SPA, and closure of any abandoned mine shafts. The plan shall include measures that

ensure the safe transport, use, and disposal of contaminated soil and building debris removed from the

site. In the event that contaminated groundwater is encountered during site excavation activities, the

contractor shall report the contamination to the appropriate regulatory agencies, dewater the excavated

area, and treat the contaminated gloundwater to remove contaminants before discharge into the sanitary

sewer system. The project applicant(s) shall be required to comply with the plan and applicabie Federal,

state, and local laws. The plan shall outline measures for specific handling and reporting procedures for

hazardous materials and disposal ofhazardous materials removed from the site at an appropriate off-site

disposal facility.

> Notify the appropriate Federal, state, and local agencies ifevidence ofpreviously undiscovered soil or

groundwater contamination (e.g., stained soil, odorous groundwater) is encountered during construction

activities. Any contaminated areas shall be remediated in accordance with recommendations made by the

Sacramento County Environmental Management Department, Central Valley RWQCB, DTSC, and/or

other appropriate Federal, state, or local regulatory agencies.

> Oblain an assessment conducted by PG&E and SMUD pertaining to the contents of any existing pole-

mounted.transformers located in the SPA. The assessment shall determine whether existing on-site

electrical transformers contain PCBs and whether there are any records of spills from such equipment. If
equipment containing PCB is identified, the maintenance and/or disposal ofthe transformer shall be

subject to the regulations ofthe Toxic Substances Control Act under the authority ofthe Sacramento

County Environmental Health Department.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Foisom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure. Potential purchasers ofresidential properties near

the transmission lines shall be made aware of the conhoversy sunounding EMF exposure. The Califomia
Department ofReal Estate shall be requested to insert an appropriate notification into the applicant's final
Subdivision Public Reoort aoplication. which shall be provided to purchasers ofproperties within 100 feet

3A.8-6 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-38

Resolution No. 10670

Page 92 of 140

Page 421

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

underground in accordance with the

subdivision's conditions of approval.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

tentative map
applications.

Before issuance

of grading
permits for the
project water
features.

from the 100-1 15kV power line , or within I 50 feet from the 220-230 kV power line . The notihcation would
include a discussion ofthe scientific studies and conclusions reached to date, acknowledge that the

notification distance is not based on specific biological evidence, but rather, the distance where background

levels may increase, and provide that, given some uncertainty in the data, this notification is merely provided

to allow purchasers to make an informed decision.

Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and
Vector Control District. To ensure that operation and design ofthe stormwater system, including multiple
planned detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations ofthe Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector

Control District regarding mosquito control, the project applican(s) ofall project phases shall prepare and

implement a Vector Control Plan. This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the Sacramento-Yo1o

Mosquito and Vector Control District and shall be submitted to the City for approval before issuance ofthe
grading permit for the detention basins under the City's jurisdiction. For the off-site detention basin, the plan

shall be submitted to Sacramento County for approval before issuance ofthe grading permit for the off-site

detention basin. The plan shall incorporate specific measures deemed sufficient by the City to minimize public

health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control

District BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Conhol District 2008). The plan shall include,

but is not limited to, the following components:

> Description ofthe project.

> Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that would control on-site water

levels.

> Goals oftheplan.

> Description of the water management elements and features that would be implemented, including:

. BMPs that would implemented on-site;

. public education and awareness;

. sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal of garbage);

. mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating water levels, biological agents, pesticides, larvacides,

circulating water); and

. stormwater management (consistent with Stormwater Management Plan).

> Long-term maintenance ofthe detention basins and all related facilities (e.g., specific ongoing

enforceable conditions or maintenance.by a homeowner's association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the project applicant(s) shall

coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District to identifo and implement BMPs
based on their potential effectiveness for SPA conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are not limited
to, the following:

34.8-7 (FPASP
ErR/[,rs)

106
-39

Resolution No. 10670

Page 93 of 140

Page 422

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlnes monitoring
standards, fiequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

Hydrology and Water Quality
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Submittal of the
State

Construction
General Permit
NOI and
SWPPP (where
applicable) and

development
and submittal of
any other
locally required
plans and

specifications
before the
issuance of
grading permits

for all on-site
project phases

> build shoreline perimeters as steep and uniform as practicable to discourage dense plant grouth;

> perform routine maintenance to reduce emergent plant densities to facilitate the ability ofmosquito
predators (i.e., fish) to move throughout vegetated axea;

> design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to drain fully and prevent

standing water. The design slope should take into consideration buildup of sediment between

maintenance periods. Compaction during grading may also be needed to avoid slumping and settling;

> coordinate cleaning ofcatchbasins, drop inlets, or storm drains with mosquito treatment operations;

> enforce the prompt removal ofsilt screens installed during construction when no longer needed to

proteci water quality;

> ifthe sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception ofthe inlet and outlet,

submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the available surface area ofwater for mosquito egg-

laying (female mosquitoes can fly tirough pipes); and

> design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other necessary equipment to allow for

easy dewatering ofthe unit ifnecessary (Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

The project applicant(s) ofthe project phase containing the off-site detention basin shall coordinate

mitigation for the off+ite with the affected oversight agency (i.e., Sacramento County).

Acquire
lSSUanCe

Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare
of grading permits, the project applicant(s) of all projects disturbing one or more acres (including

and Implement SWPPP and BMPs. Prior to the

phased construction of smaller areas which ate part of a larger project) shall obtain coverage under the

SWRCB's NPDES stormwater permit for general construction activity (Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including
preparation and submittal ofa projeclspecific SWPPP at the time the NOI is filed. The project applicant(s)

shall also prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment control and engineering plans and

specifications for pollution prevention and control to Sacramento County, City ofFolsom, El Dorado County

(for the off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills under the Proposed Project Alternative). The SWPPP and

other appropriate plans shall identify and speciff:

> the use ofan effective combination ofrobust erosion and sediment control BMPs and construction

techniques accepted by the 
'local jurisdictions for use in the project area at the time of construction, that

shall reduce the potential for runoffand the release, mobilization, and exposure ofpollutants, including

legacy sources ofmercury from project-related construction sites. These may include but would not be

limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization measues, sedimentation ponds, inlet

protection, perforated riser pipes, check dams, and silt fences

> the implementation ofapproved local plans, non-stormwater management conhols, permanent post-

construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance responsibilities;

3A.9-l (FPASP
ErFt/EIS)

I06
-40

Resolution No. 10670
Page 94 of 140

Page 423

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). TheNDES Permit

Cify ofFolsom
Public Works
Department

and off-site
elements and
implementation
throughout
project
construction.

Before approval
of grading plans

and building

> the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could be present in stormwater drainage

and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants, and other tlpes of materials used for

equipment operation;

> spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to prevent or clean up spills ofhazardous

waste and ofhazardous materials used for equipment operation, and emergency procedures for

responding to spills;

> personnel training requirements and procedwes that shall be used to ensure that workers are aware of
permit requirements and proper installation methods for BMPs specified in the SWPPP; and

> the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to implementation ofthe SWPPP.

> Where applicable, BMPs identified in the SWPPP shall be in place throughout all site work and

constuctior/demolition activities and shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. BMPs

may include, but are not limited to, such measures as those listed below.

> Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in disturbed areas to minimize

discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in compliance with state and local standards in

effect at the time ofconstruction. These measures may include silt fences, staked straw bales or wattles,

sediment/silt basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation.

> Establishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas disturbed by construction by slowing

runoffvelocities, trapping sediment, and enhancing filhation and transpiration.

> Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to conhol erosion and runoffby convefng surface

runoff down sloping land, intercepting and diverting runoff to a watercourse or channel, preventing sheet

flow over sloped surfaces, preventing runoffaccumulation at the base of a grade, and avoiding flood

damage along roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved SWPPP shall be maintained and available at all times on the construction site.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements, Calhans shall

coordinate with the development and implementation ofthe overall project SW?PP, or develop and

implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water quality

degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained in Those Plans.

Before the approval of grading plans and building permits, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

submit final drainage plans to the City, and to El Dorado County for the off-site roadway connections into El

Dorado Hills, demonstrating that off-site upstream runoffwould be appropriately convgyed through the SPA,

3A,9-2 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-41

Resolution No. 10670

Page 95 of i40

Page 424

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



requires the implementation of BMP'S,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline

modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

permits of all
project phases.

and that project-related on-site runoffwould be appropriately contained in detention basins or managed with
through other improvements (e.g., source controls, biotechnical stream stabilization) to reduce flooding and

hydromodfi cation impacts.

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

> an accurate calculation ofpre-project and post-project runoffscenarios, obtained using appropriate

engineering methods, that accurately evaluates potential changes to runoff, including increased surface

runoff;

> runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and other, smaller storm

events as required) shall be performed and the trunk drainage pipeline sizes confirmed based on

alignments and detention facility locations finalized in the design phase;

> a description of the proposed maintenance program for the on-site drainage system;

> projecfspecific standards for installing drainage systemsl

> City and El Dorado Counry flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with
them;

Implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in the erosive force of flows beyond a

specific range ofconditions needed to limit hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorphology.

These BMPs will be designed and constructed in accordance with the forthcoming SSQP Hydromodification

Management Plan (to be adopted by the RWQCB) aad may

include, but are not limited to, the following:

> use oflow knpact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in stormwater nrnoffat the point of
origination (these may include, but are not limited to: surface swales; replacement of conventional

impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces [e.g., porous pavement]; impervious surfaces disconnection;

and trees planted to intercept stormwater);

> enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow duration characteristics;

> bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing vegetative and rock stabilization,

and inset floodplain restoration features that provide for enhancement ofriparian habitat and

maintenance ofnahual hydrologic and channel to floodplain interactions;

> minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility outfall channel with the existing

receiving channel gradient to reduce flow velocity; and

> minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankment, and other encroachments into the

channel and floodplain conidor, and utilize open bottom box culverts to allow sediment passage on

smaller drainage courses.

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction ofthe City of Folsom Community Development

and Public Works Departments and El Dorado Counfy Department ofTransportation that 100-year (0.01

Resolution No. 10670

Page 96 of 140

Page 425

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicanthas
submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has prepared storm

drain design reports and provided storm

drain calculations for all ofthe proposed

storm drainage features and

detentior/water quality and

hydromodifi cation basins necessary to

serve this subdivision. These reports
have been reviewed and approved by the

Community Development and Public

Works Departrnents.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Public Works
Department

Prepare plans

before the
issuance of
grading permits

for all project
phases and off-
site elements
and

implementation
throughout
project
constmction.

AEP) flood flows would be appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to people or damage to

structures within or down gradient ofthe SPA would not occur, and that hy&omodification would not be

increased from pre-development levels such that existing stream geomorphology would be changed (the

range of conditions should be calculated for each receiving water iffeasible, or a conservative estimate

should be used, e.g., an Ep of I +10% or other as approved by the Sacramento Stormwater Quality
Partnership and/or City of Folsom Public Works Department).

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with El Dorado County.

Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance PIan, Before approval of the grading

permits for any development project requiring a subdivision map, a detailed BMP and water quality

maintenance plan shall be prepared by a qualified engineer retained by the project applicant(s) the

development project. Drafts ofthe plan shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom and El Dorado County for
the off-site roadway connections into El Dorado Hills, for review and approval concunently with
development oftentative subdivision maps for all project phases. The plan shall finalize the water quality

improvements and further detail the structural and nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project. The plan

shall include the elements described below.

> A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis ofproposed conditions incorporating the proposed

drainage design features.

> Predevelopment and post development calculations demonshating that the proposed water quality BMPs

meet or exceed requirements established by the City ofFolsom and including details regarding the size,

geometry, and functional timing of storage and release pursuant to the "'Stormwater Quality Design

Manual for Sacramento and South Placer Regions" ([SSQP 2007b] per MDES Permit No. CAS082597

WDR Order No. R5-2008-0142, page 46) and El Dorado County's NPDES SWMP (County of El

Dorado 2004).

> Source conkol progams to control water quality pollutants on the SPA, which may include but are

limited to recycling, street sweeping, storm dlain cleaning, household hazardous waste collection, waste

minimization, prevention of spills and illegal dumping, and effective management ofpublic hash

collection areas.

> A pond management component for the proposed basins that shall include management and maintenance

requirements for the design features and BMPs, and responsible parties for maintenance and funding.

> LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality maintenance plan. These may

include, but are not limited to:

. surface swales;

. replacement ofconventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces (e.g., porous pavement);

. impervious surfaces disconnection; and

3A.9-3 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-42

Resolution No. 10670
Page 97 of 140

Page 426

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

There are no existing or proposed dams

upstream from this subdivision and

therefore there is no requirement to
perform the analysis required in this

condition ofapproval.

The owner/applicant has implemented
noise reducing construction practices

included as part ofthe required Noise

Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
through construction inspection.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Noise and Vibration
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
submittal to the
City oftentative
maps or
improvement
plans.

Before and
during
construction
activities on the
SPA and within
El Dorado
Hills.

. trees planted to intercept stomwater.

New stormwater facilities shall be piaced along the natr.ral drainage courses within the SPA to the extent

practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage pattems. The reduction in runoffas a result of the LID
configurations shall be quantified based on the runoffreduction credit system methodology described in

"stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix
D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detention basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to handle

these runoffvolumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U,S. 50 interchange improvements, it is anticipated that

Caltrans would coordinate with the development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or

develop and implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water

quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with El Dorado County and Caltrans.

Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and Make
Improvements if Necessary. Prior to submittal to the City of tentative maps or improvement plans the

project applicant(s) of all project phases shall perform conduct studies to determine the extent of inundation

in the case of dam failure. Ifthe sfudies determine potential exposure ofpeople or structures to a significant

risk offlooding as a result ofthe failwe of a dam, the applicants(s) shall implement of any feasible

recommendations provided in that study, potentially through drainage improvements, subject to the approval

of the City of Folsom Public Works Department.

Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise Control Plan, and

Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitiye Receptors, To reduce impacts associated with
noise generated during project related construction activities, the project applicant(s) and their primary

conhactors for engineering design and construction of all project phases shall ensure that the following

requirements are implemented at each work site in any year ofproject construction to avoid and minimize

construction noise effects on sensitive receptors. The project applicant(s) and primary construction

contractor(s) shall employ noise-reducing construction practices. Measures that shall be used to limit noise

shall include the measures listed below:

> Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7 a.m. andT p.m.

Monday through Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.

> All construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located as far as possible from nearby

noise-sensitive land uses.

3A.9-4 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.11-1
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

-43

106
-44

Resolution No. 10670

Page 98 of 140

Page 427

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesBlasting has been necessary tluoughout
the cowse ofgrading and construction in
this subdivision. The blasting has not
been within 2000 feet ofany sensitive
recentor. The blastins conhactor has

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before and

during
bulldozing and
blasting
activities on the

> All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with noise-reduction intake and

exhaust mufflers and engine skouds, in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations. Equipment

engine shrouds shall be closed during equipment operation.

> All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent idling.

> Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g., using welding

instead ofriveting, mixing concrete offsite instead ofon-site).

> Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating equipment (e.g.,

compressors artd generators) as planned phases are built out and fuhre noise sensitive receptors are

located within close proximity to futue construction activities.

> Written notification ofconstruction activities shall be provided to all noise-sensitive receptors located

within 850 feet ofconstruction activities. Notification shall include anticipated dates and hours during

which construction activities are anticipated to occrlr and contact information, including a da1'time

telephone number, for the project representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are deemed

excessive. Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels (e.g.,

closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification.

> To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers (e.g., lead curtains, sound baniers) shall be constructed to reduce

construction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive land uses. The baniers shall be designed

to obstruct the line ofsight between the noise-sensitive land use and on-site construction equipment.

When instal'led properly, acoustic barriers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately 8-10

dB (EPA 1971).

> When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged construction noise, noise-

attenuating buffers such as structures, truck trailers, or soil piles shall be iocated between noise sources

and fuflue residences to shield sensitive receptors from construction noise.

> The primary contractor shall prepare andimplement a construction noise management plan. This plan

shall identify specific measwes to ensure compliance with the noise control measures specified above.

The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City of Folsom before any noise-generating construction

activity begins. Construction shall not commence until the construction noise management plan rs

approved by *re City of Folsom. Mitigation for the two off-site roadway connections into El Dorado

County must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofthe applicable project phase with El Dorado

County, since the roadway extensions are outside ofthe City ofFolsom's jurisdictional boundaries.

Implement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Groundborne Noise or Vibration
from Project Generated Construction Activities.

> To the extent feasible. blasting activities shall not be conducted within 275 feet ofexisting or futr.re

sensitive receptors.

3A.11-3
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-45

Resolution No. 10670

Page 99 of 140

Page 428

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

obtained a blasting permit from the City
and the Community Development
Department has verified compliance with
the permit tlrough construction
inspection.

The owner/applicant has implemented

noise reducing construction practices

included as part ofthe required Noise

Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
tlrrough construction inspcclion.

There are no sensitive receptors within
600 feet of any on-going construction
and grading activity in the subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

SPA and within
El Dorado Hills
and the County
of Sacramento

Before
submittal of
improvement
plans for each

project phase,

and during
project
operations for
testing of
emergency
generators.

> To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted within 50 feet of existing or future

sensitive receptors.

> All blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blxting personnel licensed to operate in the

Srate of Califomia.

> A blasting plan, including estimates ofvibration levels at the residence closest to the blast, shall be

submitted to the enforcement agency for review and approval prior to the commencement ofthe first

blast.

> Each blast shall be monitored and documented for groundbourne noise and vibration levels at the nearest

sensitive land use and associated recorded submitted to the enforcement agency.

Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary Sources'

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project shall implement the following

measures to reduce the effect ofnoise levels generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be

located within 600 feet ofany noise-sensitive receptor:

> Routine testing and preventive maintenance ofemergency electrical generators shall be conducted

during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All electrical generators sball be

equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices in accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

> Extemal mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate featues designed to reduce

noise emissions below the stationary noise sowce criteria. These features may include, but are not

limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms or enclosures that incorporate noise-reduction

features, such as acoustical louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be

oriented so that major openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are directed away from nearby noise-

sensitive receptors.

> Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary noise

source criteria established in this aralysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daltime [7
a.m. to l0 p.m.l and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7

a.m.l). Reduction ofparking lot noise can be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible

from noise sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding

for noise-sensitive land uses.

Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary noise

source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the da1'time [7
a.m. to 10 p.m.l and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m. to 7

a.m.]). Reduction ofloading dock noise can be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as

possible from noise sensitive land uses, constructing noise barriers between loading docks and 4oise-

3A.lt-5
(FPASP
Era|/Ers)

106

46

Resolution No. 10670
Page 100 of 140

Page 429

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
aCofOin
the
appropriate
phase of
developme
nt ofthe
project.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
aCofOin
the
appropriate
phase of
developme
nt ofthe
project.

The landscape and sheetscape plans for
the subdivision include the required

masonry walls in the required height and

required locations. The Community
Development Departrnent will monitor
compliance during construction and

verifr that the sound walls are complete
prior to issuance ofa Certificate of
Occupancy in the subdivision,

The Community Development
Department will monitor compliance

during
sound

construction and veriS that the
walls are complete prior to

issuance of a Certificate ofOccupancy in
the subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
building
occupancy

Prior to
building
occupancy

sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for norse-

sensitive land uses.

Exterior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall design and construct noise barriers, as detailed below,

to reduce traffic noise levels below the City ofFolsom exterior criteria of60 dB Ldn.

> 6-foot tall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property

boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak Avenue Parkway.

> For the proposed Traditional Subdivisions portion ofthe project, a 7-foot tall solid noise barrier, relative

to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

> For the proposed Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions ofthe project, an 8-foot tall

solid noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries

adjacent to White Rock Road.

Suitable materials for the traffic noise baniers include masonry and precast concrete panels. The overall

banier height may be achieved by utilizing a banier and earthen berm combination. Other materials may be

acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical consultant pilor to use.

Banier height requirements are based on a property boundary setback of I 1 7 -122 feet from the ultimate

alignment ofWhite Rock Road under the approved Capital Southeast Connector project. If 90 days prior to

pulling building permits for the Toll Brothers site, it is determined that there is no evidence that the Wlite
Rock Road improvements are funded and moving forward, as described under the approved Capital

Southeast Connector project, the project applicant shall obtain the services of a noise consultant to reconduct

a site-specific acoustical analysis based on the actual property boundary setback to determine the appropriate

noise reduction measures to reduce traffrc noise levels in accordance with adopted City ofFolsom noise

standards.

Interior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following construction design features

have been implemented.

> For the firstrow ofhomes located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing upper-floor

building facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

> Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for a1l residences in this development to

allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve compliance with the applicable

interior noise level criteria.

4.13-l
(Addendum)

4.13-2
(Addendum)

106

-47

106
-48

Resolution No. 10670
Page 10i of 140

Page 430

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved all traffic control plans
required for the construction of both
off-site and on-site improvements
for this subdivision to verifu
compliance with City ordinances and
to minimize delays to the travelling
public.

There are no off-site elements outside

the City limits for this subdivision.

The City Fire Department has reviewed

and approved all proposed improvements

for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifu adequate fire flow prior to
buiiding permit issuance in the

subdivision.

Services
City ofFolsom
Public Works
Department

City of Folsom
Fire
Department,
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of all
relevant plans

and/or permits

and during
construction of
all project
phases.

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and
issuance of
occupancy
permits or final
inspections for
all project
phases.

ln

constructionr access to existing land uses shall be maintained at all times, with detours used as necessary

during road closures. Traffrc control plans shall be submitted to the appropriate City or County department or

the California Departrnent of Transportation (Caltrans) for review and approvai before the approval of all

project plans or permits, for all project phases where implementation may cause impacts on haffic.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the Clty of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties and Caltrans).

Incorporate California Fire Code; City ofFolsom Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD
Requirements, if Necessary, into Project Design and Submit Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire

Department for Rer.iew and Approval. To reduce impacts related to the provision ofnew fre services, the

project applicant(s) of all project phases shall do the following, as described below.

l. Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire

Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other applicable requirements based on the

City of Folsom Fire Department fire prevention standards.

Improvement plans showing the incorporation automatic sprinkler systems, the availability of adequate fire

flow, and the locations ofhydrants shall be submitted to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and

approval. In addition, approved plans showing access design shall be provided to the City of Folsom Fire

Department as described by Zoning Code Section 17.57.080 ("Vehicular Access Requirements"). These

plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting equipment. The

installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire

Deparftnent. The design and operation of gates and barricades shall be in accordance with the Sacramento

County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard, as required by the City ofFolsom Fire Code.

2. Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations Document Submittal List to the City of
Folsom Community Development Department Building Division for review and approval before the issuance

of building permits.

In addition to the above measures, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall incorporate the

provisions described below for the portion ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service axea, ifit is determined

tkough City/El Dorado County negotiations that EDHFD would serve the 1 78-acre portion of the SPA.

3A.14-1
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3L.14-2
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-49

106
-50

Resolution No. 10670
Page 102 of 140

Page 431

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The Cify Fire Deparhnent has reviewed

and approved all proposed impovements
for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifr adequate fire flow prior to
building permit issuance in the

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal,rnent of Specific Plan hfrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Fire
Department,
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Traflic and
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and
issuance of
occupancy
permits or final
inspections for
all project
phases.

A phasing

analysis shall be

perfomred prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented

3. Incorporate into project designs applicable requirements based on the EDHFD fire prevention standards.

For commercial development, improvement plans showing roadways, land splits, buildings, fire sprinkler

systems, fire alarm systems, and other commercial building improvements shall be submitted to the EDHFD
for review and approval. For residential developmen! improvement plans showing property lines and

adjacent streets or roads; total acreage or square footage of the parcel; the footprint of all structures; driveway
plan views describing width, lengh, turnouts, tumarounds, radiuses, and surfaces; and driveway profile

views showing the percent gade from the access road to the structure and vertical clearance shall be

submitted to the EDHFD for review and approval.

4. Submit a Fire Prevention Plan Checklist to the EDHFD for review and approval before the issuance of
building permits. In addition, residential development requiring automation fire sprinklers shall submit

sprinkler design sheet(s) and hydraulic calculations from a Califomia State Licensed C-l 6 Contractor.

The City shall not authorize the occupancy ofany structues until the project applicant(s) have obtained a

Certificate of Occupancy from the City of Folsom Community Development Departrnent veri$ing that all

fire prevention items have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction ofthe City ofFolsom Fire Department

and/or the EDHFD for the 178-acre area ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area.

Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs. The project applican($ of all prqect phases

shall incorporate into their project designs fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom

Fire Code, antVor EDHFD for those areas ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area and shall verify to City

ofFolsom Fire Department that adequate water flow is

available, prior to approval of improvement plans and issuance ofoccupancy permits or final inspections for
all project phases.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Folsom

Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection l). To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue

Ravine Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to

consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine

Road intersection (Intersection l).

3A.14-3
(FPASP
ErRl/ErS)

3A,15-1a
(FPASP
EIRI/EIS)

106
-51

106
_{t

Resolution No. 10670

Page 103 of 140

Page 432

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

pal,rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Trafhc knpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building perrnit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Depadment

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

and when fair
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented
and when fair
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing
analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements at the Sibley
that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine RoadStreet/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 2)' To ensure

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftw'o

left-tum lanes, two through lanes, and one righltum lane. The applicant shall pay its proporttonate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection

(Intersection 2).

The .l,pplicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Scott Road (West)/White Rock Road

Intersection (Intersection 28). To ensure that the Scott Road (West),Mhite Rock Road intersection operates

at an acceptable LOS, a traflic signal must be installed.

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway Intersection

(Intersection 41). To enswe that the Hillside Drive/Xaston Valley Parkway intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist ofone dedicated left tum lane and

two ihrough lanes, and the westbound approach must be reconfigwed to consist of two through lanes and one

dedicated right-tum lane. The applicant shall fimd and construct these improvements

3A.15-1b

(FPASP
ErRvErs)

3A.15-lc
(FPASP
EravErs)

3A,15-le
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-53

106

-54

106

-55

Resolution No. 10670
Page 104 of 140

Page 433

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructwe
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Couaty Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento

County Public
Works
Department and

Caitrans

Sacramento
County Public
Works
Department

determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the frst
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the frst
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

Before project
build out.

Design of the
White Rock
Road widening
to four lanes,

from Grant Line
Road to Prairie

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parlrway/Liddle Road Intersection

(Intersection 44). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway,Middle Road intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, control all movements with a stop sign. The applicant shall fund and construct these

improvements.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom

Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 2). To enswe that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom

Boulevard intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, this intersection must be grade separated including
'Jug handle" ramps. No at grade improvement is feasible. Grade separating and extended (south) Hazel

Avenue with improvements to the U.S. 50/Hazel Avenue interchange is a mitigation measue for the

approved Easton-Glenbrough Specific Plan development project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate

share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a progam
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard intersection

(Sacramento County Intersection 2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/White

Rock Road Intersection and to White Rock Road widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to
Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Intersection 3). Improvements must be made to ensure that the

Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS. The cunently County

proposed White Rock Road widening project will widen and realign White Rock Road from the Rancho

Cordova City limit to the El Dorado County line (this analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and build

alternatives will widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City road to the El Dorado County Line).

This widening includes improvements to the Grant Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road

3A.15-1f

(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1h

(FPASP
ErRvErs)

3A.15-Ii
(FPASP

f,IR/EIS)

106
-56

106

-f,/

r06
-58

Resolution No. 10670
Page 105 of 140

Page 434

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic knpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento
County Public
Works
Department

City Road, with
Intersection
improvements
has begun, and
because this
widening
project is
environmentally
cleared and

irlly tunded,
it's construction
is expected to
be complete
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
alternative is

built.

Before project
build out.
Construction of
phase two of
the Hazel
Avenue
widening, from
Madison
Avenue to
Cunagh Downs
Drive, is
expected to be

completed by
year 2013,
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
alternative is

to be the through movement. The improvements include two eastbound ttrough lanes, one eastbound right

tum lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound right tum lanes, two westbound left hlm lanes and

two westbound tlrough lanes. This improvement also includes the signalization ofthe White Rock Road and

Grant Line Road intersection. With implementation of this improvement, the intersection would operate at an

acceptable LOS A. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between

Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive (Roadway Segment 10). To ensure that Hazel Avenue

operates at an acceptable LOS between Cunagh Downs Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue

must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part ofthe County adopted Hazel Avenue widening
project.

3A.rs-lj
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-59

Reso'luiion No. 10670
Page 106 of 140

Page 435

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit in
the
subdivision

This subdivision wilt pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

El Dorado
County
Department of
Transportation

complete. The
applicant shall
pay its
proportionate

share of funding
of
improvements
to the agency
responsible for
improvements,
based on a
proglam
established by
that agency to
reduce the
impacts to
Hazel Avenue
between
Madison
Avenue and

Cunagh Downs
Drive
(Sacramento

County
Roadway
Segnent 10).

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
oroiect ohase

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock

Road/Windfield Way Intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 3). To ensure that the White Rock

Road/Windfield Way intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the intersection must be signaiized and

separate northbound left and right tr.rn lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by

that agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection (El Dorado County

Intersection 3).

3A.15-ll
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-60

Resolution No. 10670
Page 107 of 140

Page 436

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
pennit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Irnpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior 1o

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF). Ciw Traffic Imoact Fees

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and
Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation
and the City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

Calhans

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Belore project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out.

Construction of
the Sacramento

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S, 50 as an

alternative to improvements at the Folsom Boulevard/U.S, 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans

Intersection 4). Congestion on eastbound U.S. 50 is causing vehicles to use Folsom Boulevard as an altemate

parallel route until they reach U.S. 50, where they must get back on the freeway due to the lack of a parallel

route. It is preferred to alleviate the congestion on U.S. 50 than to upgrade the intersection at the end ofthis
reliever route. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by tlat agency to reduce the impacts to the

Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the

Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 eastbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes

should be added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east ofFolsom Boulevard. This was

recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/ State

Route 16 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12). To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches must be reconfigured

to consist ofone left-turn lane aad one shared tkouglr/right-turn lane. Protected left-tum signal phasing must

be provided on the northbound and southbound approaches. Improvements to the Grant Line Road/State

Route 16 intersection are contained within the County Development Fee Progtam, and are scheduled for
Measure A funding.

Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans, Sacramento County, and the City of
Rancho Cordova.

The applicant shal1 pay its proportionate share offimding ofimprovements to the agency responsible.for

improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line
Road/State Route l6 intersection (Ca'ltrans Intersection 12).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S, 50 between

Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus-carpool (HOV) lane must be

constructed. This improvement is cunently planned as part of the Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool Lane and

3A.15-lo
(FPASP
ErRyErs)

3A.1s-1p
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-lq
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-61

106
-62

106

-63

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 08 of 140

Page 437

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and
Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and
Community
Enhancements
Project is
expected to be

completed by
year 2013,

before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
altemative is
complete.
Construction of
the Sacramento
50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and
Community
Enhancements
Project has

started since the

writing of the
Draft EIS/EIR.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Community Enhancements Project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to

reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment

1).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U,S. 50 between

Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at

an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be constructed.

This improvement was recommended in the Traffrc Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shatl pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50

between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segrnent 3).

3A.15-1r
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-64

Resolution No. 10670
Page 109 of 140

Page 438

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), CiE Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Counfy Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City ofRancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works
and Sacramento

County
Depaf,tment of
Transportation

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
dwing which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U,S. 50 between

Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U.S, 50 between

Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Seginent 16). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Westbound

U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 16).

Participate in tr'air Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U.S. 50 between

Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment l8). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be constructed.

This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Anaiysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchange project.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

3A.15-ls
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-lu
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1v
(FPASP
EIFYEIS)

106

-65

106

-66

106

-67

Resolution No. 10670
Page I l0 of 140

Page 439

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrasfruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and

Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 EastboundlFolsom

Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4), To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable

LOS at the Folsom Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to the Pmirie City
Road diverge must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis

Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor

Mobility Fee Progam. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to r€duce the impacts to

the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Eastbound/Prairie

City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge 5). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

at the Prairie City Road off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane ftom the Folsom Boulevard merge must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility
Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge (Freeway Diverge 5).

3A.15-lw
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1x
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-68

106

-69

Resolution No. 10670
Page ll1 of140

Page 440

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastnrcture
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision wili pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Crty of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first'subdivision
map to
determine
dwing which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie
City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable

LOS at the Prairie City Road onramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Sheet - Scott Road

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound,{Prairie City Road direct merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Eastbound/Prairie
City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8). To ensure

that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak

Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptable to Caltrans should be implemented to

eliminate the unacceptable weaving conditions. Such an improvement may involve a "braided ramp".

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S, 50

Eastbound i Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave (Freeway Weave 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.50 Eastbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Merge (Freeway Merge 9). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott

Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbounil/ Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

3A.15-ly
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-lz
(FPASP
EINUEIS)

3A,15-1aa
(FPASP
ErwErs)

106
-70

106
-71

106
-1t

Resolution No. 10670

Page I 12 of 140

Page 441

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision wili pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructr:re
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

map to

determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50

Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23). To ensure that Westbound

U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the

westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Sheet - Scoft Road offramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge
(Freeway Merge 23).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.50 Westbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 29). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at

an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that ends at the Prairie City Road offramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Oak Avenue Parkway

would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this fieeway segnent must be implemented
by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 WestboundiOak Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 29).

3A.15-1dd
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1ee
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-73

r06
-74

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 13 of 140

Page 442

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastnrcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fe€s collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
paynent of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
palnnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and
Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and
Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
fust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out, A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Westbound/Prairie

City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32)' To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off
ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor

Mobitity Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding ofimprovements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32).

Participate in Fair Share
City Road Direct Ramp

Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Westbound/Prairie
Merge (Freeway Merge 33). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off
ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor

Mo6ility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 33).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom

Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

at the Folsom Boulevard Diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge must be

constructed. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This auxiliary lane

improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share offimding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Folsom

Boulevard diverge (Freeway Diverge 34).

3A.15-1ff
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1gg
(FPASP
EIWEIS)

3A.15-1hh
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-/5

106

-76

106
-77

Resolution No. 10670

Page1l4of140

Page 443

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pa1'ment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation
and City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out, A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before approval
of improvement
plans for all
project phases

any particular
discretionary
development
application that
includes
residential and

commercial or
mixed-use
development.
As a condition
ofproject
aDDloval and/or

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/I{azel
Avenue Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 38). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard offriimp
diverge must be conshucted. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor
Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding ofimprovements to the

agency responsibie for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

the U.S. 50 Westbound,/Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 38).

Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development Concunent with Housing Development,

and Develop and Provide Options for Altemative Transportation Modes. The project applicaat(s) for any

particular discretionary development application including commercial or mixed-use development along with
residential uses shall develop commercial and mixed-use development concurrent with housing development,

to the extent feasible in light ofmarket realities and other considerations, to internalize vehicle trips.

Pedestrian and bicycle facilities shall be implemented to the satisfaction ofthe City Public Works
Department. To frrther minimize impacts from the increased demand on area roadways and intersections, the

project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application involving schools or commercial

centers shall develop and implement safe and secure bicycle parking to promote alternative transportation

uses and reduce the volume ofsingle-occupancy vehicles using area roadways and intersections. The project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall participate in capital

improvements and operating funds for transit service to increase the percent oftravel by transit. The project's

fair-share participation and the associated timing ofthe improvements and service shall be identified in the

project conditions of approval and/or the project's development a$eement. Improvements and service shall

be coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT.

3A.15-1ii
(FPASP
EIR/T,IS)

3A.15-2a
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-78

106

-79

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 15 of 140

Page 444

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Pian Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic knpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal,rnent of Specific Plan Infrastnrcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Inftastnrcture
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infiastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
fees to

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom

Community
Development
Department

as a condition
ofthe
development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Concunent with
construction for
all project
phases.

Concunent with
construction for
all project
phases.

As a condition
ofproject
approval and/or
as a condition
ofthe
development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to

Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program. The project applicant(s) for
any particular discretionary development application shall pay an appropriate amount into the City's existing

Trinsportation System Management Fee Progam to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travei

on area roadways and intersections.

roadways and intersections.

nay fun Cost of Identified Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Fee Program. In

accordance with Measure W, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application

shall provide fair-share contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program to fully fund

improvements only required because ofthe Specific Plan.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the Sibley

Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2). To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine

Road intenection operates at a LOS D with less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound approach

must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lane, fwo through lanes, and one dedicated right-tum lanp. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus study

3A,15-2b
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-2c
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-3
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4a
(FPASP
EIRUEIS)

106

-80

106
-81

r06
-82

106

-83

Resolution No. 10670

Page I 16 of 140

Page 445

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



a building
permit,

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Trafftc Impact Fees

and Sacramento Comty W'ide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Departmenl

approval ofthe
hrst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frst subdivision
map to

determine
during which
project phase

the

or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley

StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection (Folsom Intersection 2).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the Oak Avenue
Parkway/East Bidwell Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 6), To ensure that the Oak Avenue

Parkway/East Bidwell Street intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound (East Bidwell Street)

approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-hrn lanes, fow tbrough lanes and a right-turn lane, and

the westbound (East Bidwell Street) approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left tum lanes, four

through lanes, and a right-tum lane. It is against the City ofFolsom policy to have eight lane roads because of
the impacts to non motorized traffrc and adjacent development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay r Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the East Bidwell
Street/College Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 7). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street/College

Street intersection operates at acceptable LOS C or better, the westbound approach must be reconfigwed to
consist of one left-turn lane, one left-through iane, and two dedicated righrtum lanes. The applicant shall pay

its proportionate share of frrnding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other

appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell
Street/Nesmith Court intersection (Folsom Intersection 7).

3A.15-4b
(FPASP
EIR/IIS)

3A.15-4c
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-84

106
-85

Resolution No. 10670
Pagell7of140

Page 446

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
paynnent of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected Fior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento CounW Wide

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frst subdivision
map to
determine
dwing which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
burld out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
fust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be oerformed

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the East Bidwell
StreeUlion Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2l), To ensure that the East Bidwell Street /Iron

Point Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to

consist oftwo left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a righttum lane, and the southbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, fow tlrough lanes and a right-tr.rn lane. It is against the City of
Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because ofthe impacts to non motorized traffic and adjacent

development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Serpa Way/

Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23). To improve LOS at the Serpa Way/ hon Point

Road intersection, the nodhbound approaches must be reshiped to consist ofone left-turn lane, one shared

left-through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Serpa Way/lron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Empire Ranch

Road/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 24), To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road /
kon Point Road intersection operates at a LOS D or better, all ofthe following improvements are required:

The eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right-

h.rn lane. The westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, one throush lane.

3A.15-4d
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4e
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4f
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

t06
-86

106

-87

106
-88

Resolution No. 10670
Page 118of140

Page 447

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
palment of Specific Plan Infrastruchue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval ofthe
fust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

and a through-right lane. The northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes,

tkee through lanes, and a right-tum lane. The southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo
left-tum lanes, three through lanes, and a righiturn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Empire Ranch Road / Iron Point Road

Intersection Before project build out. A phasing analysis should be performed prior to approval ofthe first
subdivision map to determine during which project phase the improvement should be built. (Folsom

Intersection 24).

The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley
Parkway Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley

Parkway intersection operates at an acceptable LOS the southbound approach must be reconligured to consist

oftwo left-tum lanes, two through lanes, and two right-tum lanes. The applicant shall fund and construct

these improvements,

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/White
Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3), To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White

Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E or better this intersection should be replaced by
some type of grade separated intersection or interchange. Improvements to this intersection are identified in
the Sacramento County's Proposed General Plan. Implementation ofthese improvements would assist in
reducing traffic impacts on this intersection by providing acceptable operation. Intersection improvements

must be implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to

reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection

3).

3A.15-4g
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-4i
(FPASP
ErwErs)

106
-89

106

-90

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 19 of 140

Page 448

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision witl pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal.rnent of Specific Plan Infrasfucture
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specilic Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis dhould
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
pmject phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be oerformed

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between
White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7), To improve

operation on Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this roadway segment must

be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento County and the City ofRancho
Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and

Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). The identified improvement would more

than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segment.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements t0 Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between

Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Ilighway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). To improve
operation on Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this roadway segment could be

widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho

Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City ofRancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Gant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and

Jackson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). The identified improvement would more than

offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 project on this roadway segment.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between
Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments l2-13),
To improve operation on Hazel Avenue between Cunagh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 westbound ramps,
this roadway segment could be widened to eight lanes. This improvement is inconsistent with Sacramento

CounW's general plan because the county's policy requires a maximum roadway cross section of six lanes.

3A.1s-4j
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4k
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-41
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-91

106

-92

106
-93

Resolution No. 10670
Page 120 of 140

Page 449

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
pemit,

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the foilowing improvements with the
paynent of Specific Plan Inftastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

pnor to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Analysis shown later indicates that improvements at the impacted intersection in this segment can be

mitigated (see Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4q). Improvements to impacted intersections on this segment will
improve operations on this roadway segment and, therefore; mitigate this segment impact. The applicant shall

pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on

a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue between Cunagh Downs Drive
and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvemenfs to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between

Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22). To improve

operation on White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this roadway segment must

be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035 MTP but is not included in the

Sacramento County General Plan. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by

Sacramento County. The identified improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to

the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 project on this roadway segment. However, because ofother development in the

region that would substantially increase haffic levels, this roadway segment would continue to operate at an

unacceptable LOS F even with the capacity improvements identified to mitigate Folsom South of U.S. 50

impacts. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to White

Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between

Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28). To

improve operation on White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road, this

roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented

by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway

Segment 28).

3A.15-4m
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4n
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-94

106

-95

Resolution No. 10670
Page 121 of 140

Page 450

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be nerformed

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock
Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County l)' To ensure that the White Rock
Road/Carson Crossing Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane must

be converted into a separate free right turn lane, or double right. Improvements to this intersection must be

implemented by El Dorado County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to

reduce the impacts to the White Rock RoarVCarson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County 1).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50

Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection l). To ensure that the Hazel Avenuefu.S. 50

westbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the westbound approach must be reconfigured

to consist of one dedicated left turn lane, one shared left *rough lane and three dedicated right-tum lanes.

Lnprovements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento County. The applicant

shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements,

based on a progam established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel AvenueAJ.S. 50 Westbound

Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Iatersection l).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1), To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane could be

constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Cahans State Route 50

Conidor Svstem Manasement Plan: therefore. it is not likelv to be imolemented bv Caltrans bv 2030.

3A.15-4o
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-4p
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4q
(FPASP
EIRTEIS)

106
-96

106
-97

106
-98

Resolution No. 10670
Page 122 of 140

Page 451

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan krfrastructrue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

pnor to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
appfoval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
prilject phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Construction ofthe Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line

Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic from U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the

project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound US 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue, an additional

eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with dre Concept Facility in

Caltrans State Route 50 Conidor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by

Caltrans by 2030, Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road

and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic off of U,S. 50 and partially

mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to

the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiltary lane should

be converted to a mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see

mitigation measure 3A.15-4t). Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This

improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calhans State Route 50 Corridor System

Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the

Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with
limited access, could divert some trafftc offof U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share of fi:nding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5).

3A.15-4r
(FPASP
ErRl/ErS)

3A.15-4s
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-99

r06

r00

Resolution No. 10670
Page 123 of 140

Page 452

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific P'lan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Departrnent of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
lust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be oerformed

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segment 6), To ensure that Eastbound US 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie

City Road slip on ramp should merge with the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak

Avenue Parkway off ramp (see Mitigation Measures 3A.15-4u, v and w), and the southbound Prairie City
Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full
auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment must

be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as

may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to

reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway

Segment 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 Eastbound /
Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 6). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should stan the eastbound auxiliary lane that

extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.1 54u, w and x), and

the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over tle Oak Avenue Parkway offramp
and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Sfeet - Scott Road offramp. Improvements to

this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip
ramp merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 Eastbound /
Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7).

To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on

ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp
(see mitieation measure 3,{.15-4u. v and x), and the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be

3A.15-4t
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4u
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4v
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

l0l

106

702

142

I03

Resolution No. 10670
Page 124 of 140

Page 453

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
pennit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements witl the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

pnor to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell
Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this fieeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share of firnding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave

7).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 8). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, ihe southbound Oak Avenue Parkway-loop on ramp should merge with the easibound

auxiliary lane that starts at the southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on ramp and ends at the East

Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, v and w). Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Calhans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge

(Freeway Merge 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound /
Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 27), To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that ends at the East Bidwell Sheet - Scott Road offramp. The slip on ramp fiom southbound Empire

Ranch Road slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment

must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge
(Freeway Merge 27).

3A.15-4w
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4x
(FPASP
EIFI/EIS)

r06

r04

r06

10s

Resolution No. 10670

Page 125 of 140

Page 454

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
subdivision

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal,rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546n building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Regency project in
accordance with previous conditions of
approval. The Phase 1 portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 545 dwelling
units, The VTSM for the Phase 2 portion
of the Regency project has not yet been

approved by the City Council.

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA

has executed a construction contract with
Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to construct
the Capital Southeast Connector from
Prairie City Road to East Bidwell Sheet.

The conshuction contract was executed

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

lmprovement
should be built,

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
fust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Prior to
issuance of
phase I
building
permits.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie
City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35), To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane

that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard offramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Prairie City Road

slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be

implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may

be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce

the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35).

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway #6), Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers Site, the

project applicant shall construct the intersection as shown in Figure 4-2 of the Addendum:

Northbound: one thru lane and one left tum lane in a 15O-foot pocket with 60-foot taper;

Southbound: one thru lane and one right turn lane in a 1 50-foot pocket with 60-foot taper;

Westbound: one shared lane, plus a 300-foot northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street to

receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second northbound lane on East Bidwell Street starting from

Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300-foot acceleration lane); and

> Control: side-street-stop-control;

Note that unsignalized left tums to East Bidwell Street are against City poiicy. The northbound acceleration

lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signalization will be triggered as part ofthe entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal at

this location is included in Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and plan area fees paid by the Project contribute

towards its construction in the future.

East Bidwell StreetMhite Rock Road. hior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant shall

implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority project has programmed to relocate and

signalize the East Bidwell Street/lVhite Rock Road intersection as shown in the October 2017 geometric

conceptual drawing, or equivalent improvements (i.e., three southbound approach lanes, four eastbound

approach lanes. and three westbound approach lanes). Figure 4-3 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual

3A.15-4y
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

4.17-t
(Addendum)

4.17-2
(Addendum)

106

106

106

107

106

108

Resolution No. 10670

Page 126 of 140

Page 455

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
subdivision

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Yes

in December of2020. Grading and

construction commenced in April 2021.
The project will include the relocation
and signalization of the existing White
Rock Road,/East Bidwell Street
intersection. The owner/applicant will
pay the Sacramento County
Transportation Development Fee prior to
issuance ofall building permits in the

subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans for the
construction of these required
improvements including the plans for the

modification to the existing traffic signal
at the intersection ofEast Bidwell Street

and Mangini Parkway. These

improvements are cunently under
construction.

The required improvements in thrs

condition have been completed and

accepted by the City. These

improvements were constructed as part

of the off-site improvements for the

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Coi'nmunity
Development
Department

Signalize the
intersection and
conduct all
geometric

improvements,
with the
exception ofthe
second

northbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase I
building
permits.

Construct the
second

northbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 2

building
permits.

Construct all
geometric
improvements
with the
exception of
one thru

intersection layout for this mitigation. Under this scenario, fair share is defined as the project's

responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee. The project applicant is

required to pay the Sacramento County Transportation Development Fee. Option A can be considered to
be implemented once the JPA has let contracts for construction ofthe new intersection. This will insure

that the mitigation is constructed before project traffic adds five or more seconds of delay to the

intersection.

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Street{lftite Rock Road intersection with the existing geometry.

Figure 4-4 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.

East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway, Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant

shall signalize the intersection ',vith the following geometry (Figue 4-5 of the Addendum):

> Northbound: One left-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two thru lanes, and one right-

turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper (the second thru lane shall be developed 300 feet

south of the intersection);

> Southbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane, and one right-
turn lane in a I 5O-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper;

> Eastbound and westbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane,

and one right-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper.

Note that northbound East Bidwell street wiil remain at two lanes fiom Mangini Parkway to US 50.

East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway. Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers site, the project applicant

shall reconstruct the intersection with the following geometry (Figure 4-6 ofthe Addendum):

> Northbound approach: One thru lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150-foot taper;

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 150-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one through lane;

> Westbound approach: One left turn lane in a 60-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one tlrough lane;

4.17-3
(Addendum)

4.17-4
(Addendum)

r06

109

106

110

Resolution No. 10670

Page 127 of 140

Page 456

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit in
the
subdivision

Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7
subdivision.

The Community Development

Departmeni has approved the plans for
the reconstruction and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek

Parkway intersection in accordance with
this condition.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

northbound lane
prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second thru
northbound lane
prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Construct all
geometric

improvements
with the
exception of
one thru
northbound lane
and one thru
southbound
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second thru
northbound lane

and the second

tbru southbound
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

> Southbound departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left turn

traffic. The acceleration lane should be in a 300-foot pocket plus an appropdate taper.

Note that unsignalized left nims to East Bidwell Street are against City policy. The southbound accelention
lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signatization will be triggered as part ofthe entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal at

this location is included in FPASP, and plan area fees paid by the project applicant contribute towards its

construction in the future,

East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parlrrvay. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant

shall reconshuct and signalize the intersection as shown in Figure 4-7 ofthe Addendum:

> Northbound approach: One U-tum lane in a I S0-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two through lanes, and

one right turn lane in a 1 50-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 240-foot pocketpius 60-foot taper, and two through lanes.

The second southbound through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way.

> Westbound approach: One rigbt tum 
'lane, 

plus one left-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

The above mitigations are consistent with the ultimate geometry for East Bidwell near Alder Creek Pkwy and

builds on conditions ofapproval from neighboring projects.

4.17-5
(Addendum)

106

il1

Resolution No. 10670
Page 128 of 140

Page 457

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
Phase 3

subdivision

Yes

Yes

The Capital Southeast Connector-JPA
project is cunently under construction.
The Connector project will implement
and complete Option A in this condition.
The owner/applicant shall implement the

required improvements to the
intersection in compliance with this
condition prior to issuance ofthe first
Certificate of Occupancy in the Phase 3

(Traditional Subdivision) portion of the
project.

The Phase 1 Sanitary Sewer
infrastructure including the off-site
sewer trunk main, the Alder Creek
Parkway sewer lift station and forccd
main to serve this subdivision have been

constructed by the FPA landowners and

have been completed and accepted by
the City and are cunently in operation.

The City obtained a letter from Regional
San which provides verification that
there is adequate capacity in the existing
Regional San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire
Folsom Plan Area at buildout.
Confirmation from Regional San was

required because the Folsom Plan Area
is served by the existing Regional San

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Deparfinent

Utilities and Service Systems

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

Prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Parkway. Prior to project buildout, the project applicant shall implement

either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Caprtal Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has programmed to realign this

portion ofWhite Rock Road and build a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-Turns. Expand or
construct a signalized intersection as follows:

> Southbound: A single shared lane for left and right turns.

> Eastbound: A thru lane and a lefi/u-tr.rn in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Westbound: A thru lane and a right-turn in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Signalize with protected phasing for left-turns and U-turns.

> Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority adopted

standards.

(B) Channelize the White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Pkwy intersection on the existing White Rock Road

alignment to restrict tuming movements to westbound right tums and southbound right trarns. The westbound

right turn requires a 365-foot deceleration lane, and the southbound right tum requires a 960-foot acceleration

lane. Figwe 4-8 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual layout for the mitigated intersection.

Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance Facilities and Implement On'
and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the

approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of
all project phases shall submit proofto the City ofFolsom that an adequate wastewater conveyance system

either has been constructed or is enswed through pa),ment ofthe City's facilities augm.entation fee as

described under the Folsom Municipal Code Title 3,Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee - Folsom

South Area Facilities Plan," or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater conveyance

infrastruchre and off-site force main sufficient to provide adequate sewice to the project shall be in place for
the amount ofdevelopment identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe final map and issuance of
building permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the City.

Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity, The project applicant(s) of all project
phases shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the SRWTP for new wastewater flows generated by the

project. This shall involve preparing a tentative map-level study and paying connection and capacity fees as

identified by SRCSD. Approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases shall

not be granted until the City verifies adequate SRWTP capacity is available for the amount of development

identified in the tentative map.

4.17-6
(Addendum)

3A.16-1
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

34.16-3
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

I

112

106

113

106

114

Resolution No. 10670
Page 129 of 140

Page 458

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Lift Station on Iron Point Road. The City
Sewer Lift Station and Forced Main
which connects to the Regional San Lift
Station has been accepted by the City
and is currently in operation.

The owner/applicant has conshucted the

necessary infrastructure to provide
potable water to the subdivision. The
potable Phase 1 water infrashucture for
the Folsom Plan Area has been reviewed,

approved and accepted by the City and is

cunently in operation.

The off-site potable water infrastrucfire
to serve the subdivision has been

reviewed, approved and accepted by the

City and is cunently in operation. In
addition, the City has verified that the
off-site potable water infrastructure is

adequate to sewe the subdivision.

Tlis condition is not applicable to this

subdivision. The water supply for this
subdivision is provided by the City of
Folsom Water Treatment Plant rather
than an Off-Site Water Treatment Plant

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department afld
City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. a. Prior to approval of any small-lot tentative

subdivision map subject to Govemment Code Section 66473.7 (SB 221), the City shall comply with that

statute. Prior to approval of any small-lot tentative subdivision map for a proposed residential project not

subject to that statute, the City need not comply with Section 66473.7, or formally consult with any public

water system that would provide water to the affected area; nevertheless, the City shall make a factual

showing or impose conditions similar to those required by Section 66473.7 to ensure an adequate water

supply for development authorized by the map. b. Prior to recordation ofeach final subdivision map, or prior

to City approval of any similar project-specific discretionary approval or entitlement required for
nonresidential uses, the project applicant(s) ofthat project phase or activity shall demonstrate the availability

of a reliable and sufficient water supply from a public water system for the amount of development that

would be authorized by the hnal subdivision map or project-specific discretionary nonresidential approval or

€ntitlement. Such a demonstration shall consist of information showing that both existing sources are

available or needed supplies and improvements will be in place prior to occupancy.

Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site
Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the approval of
the final subdivision map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, the project appiicant(s) of
any particular discretionary deveiopment application shall submit proofto the City ofFolsom that an

adequate off-site water conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured or other sureties to the

City's satisfaction. The off-site water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to provide adequate service to the

project shall be in place for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval of the

final subdivision map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be

ensured to the satisfaction ofthe City. A certificate ofoccupancy shall not be issued for any building within
the SPA until the water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such building has been constructed and

is in place.

Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity (if the Off-Site Water Treatment Plant
Option is Selected), If an off-site water treatment plant (WTP) alternative is selected (as opposed to the on-

site WTP alternative), the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall

demonstrate adequate capacity at the off-site WTP. This shall involve preparing a tentative map-level study

and paying connection and capacity fees as determined by the City. Approval ofthe final project map shall

not be granted until the City verifres adequate water treatment capacity either is available or is certain to be

available when needed for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe
final mao and issuance ofbuildine oermits for all proiect phases. A certificate of occupancy shall not be

3A.18-l
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.18-2a
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.18-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

115

106

r16

106

tt7

Resolution No. 10670
Page 130 of 140

Page 459

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfred
prior to
approval of
a future
TMP

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works

Department will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management

Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to

any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make

sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction ofthe
City.

Additional Measures

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval offirst
tentative map or
discretionary
approval within
SPA that would
place sensitive
receptors along
roadways that
quarry trucks
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
Highway 50.

issued for any building within the SPA until the water treatment capacity sufficient to serve such building has

been conskucted and is in place.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures

to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from

Quarry Truck Traffic. The City of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento

Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of
Sacramento, with the input ofthe City of Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova and other interested parties,

including representatives of quarry project applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved

entitlements for the Teichert quarry project in November 2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a

development agreement that requires Teichert's participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to

implement roadway capacity and safety improvements required to improve the compatibility of truck haffic
from the quaries with the future urban development in the Folsom Specific Plan area and other jurisdictions

that will be affected by quany truck traffic. The development a$eement adopted by the County for the

Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate sales from Teichert's facility untii a TMP
is adopted. The City ofFolsom does not have direct jurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or
Walltown quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion ofthe
County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the quanies, has indicated that it intends

to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's
authority to control the activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or other actions, such as the

approval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate quarry truck traffic, that

would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, tle City of
Folsom considers itselfa "responsible agencl'(as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR

Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a futue TMP, if such TMP
calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction of the City. In a responsible

agency role, the City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and

approval ofthe environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such documentation is

prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section I 5096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as ofthe completion ofthis FEIR/FEIS,
the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation

within its jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the implementation of as-yet uncertain

components. Accordingly, formulation of the precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative air quality

impacts pursuant to the TMP is not cunently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and

intended mitigation shategy to address the cumulative impacts ofquarry truck traffic tlrough the SPA, the

City shall implement, or cause to be implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are

within its authodty to control. In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or haffic
measures imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the risk ofcancer to sensitive receptors along routes

within the SPA from toxic air contaminant emissions to no more than 296 in one million (SMAQMD 2009.

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure AIR-
l-Land
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

118

Resolution No. 10670

Page 131 of 140

Page 460

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



March. Recommended Protocol for Evaluating the Location of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major
Roadways, Yersion2.2:7), or such different threshold of significance mandated by SMAQMD or ARB at the
time, if any. With this mitigation, the cumulative air quality impacts from truck toxic air contaminants would
be less than significant.

As an altemative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quary project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and
Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure exposure of sensifive receptors to TACs generated by quarry truck traffic
to the 296-in-one-million tlreshold of significance identified above. The City encourages implementation of
the following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to discuss mitigation strategies,

implementation, and cost.

r A site-specific, projecrlevel screening analysis and/or Health Risk Assessment (HM) should be

conducted by the City of Folsom and funded by the truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors
(e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA that would be located along the sides ofroadway segments that are

identified in Table 4-4 as being potentially significant under any ofthe analyzed scenarios. Each project-

level analysis shall be performed according to the standards set forth by SMAQMD for the purpose of
discloswe to the public and decision makers. The project-level analysis shall account for the location of
the receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, the projected fuhre traffic volume

for the year 2030 (including the proportion of diesel kucks), and emission rates representative ofthe
vehicle fleet for the year when the sensitive land uses would first become operational and/or occupied. If
the incremental increase in cancer risk determined by in the HM exceeds 296 in one million (or a
different threshold of significance recommended by SMAQMD or ARB at the time, if any), then project
design mitigation should be employed, which may include the following:

. Increase the setback distance between the roadway and affected receptor. If this mitigation measure is

determined by the City of Folsom to be necessary, based on the results of the HRA, the quarry kuck
applicant(s) should pay the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s) and the City of
Folsom a fee that shall serve as compensation for lost development profit and lost City tax revenues, all
as determined by the parties. Said mitigation fee shall be determined in consultation with the quarry
project applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of
Folsom. No quarry trucks shall be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or
within the SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

' Implement tiered tree planting of fine-needle species, such as redwood, along the near side of the
roadway segments and, iffeasible, along the roadway 500 feet in both directions ofthe initial planting
(e.g., 500 feet north and south of a roadway that runs east-west) to enhance the dispersion and filtration
ofmobile-source TACs associated with the adjacent roadway. These tees should be planted at a density

such that a solid visual buffer is achieved after the hees reach maturitv. which breaks the line of sisht

Resolution No. 10670

Page 132 of 140

Page 461

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
approval of
a future
TMP

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works
Department will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management
Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to
any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make
sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction ofthe
City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval offirst
tentative map or
discretionary
approval within
SPA that would
piace sensitive
receptors along
roadways that
quarry kuck
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
50.

between U.S. 50 and the proposed homes. These trees should be planted before occupation of any

affected sensitive land uses. This measure encourages the planting ofthese trees in advance ofthe
construction ofpotentially affected receptors to allow the trees to become established and progess
toward maturity. The life of these trees should be maintained tkough the duration of the quarry

projects. The planting, cost, and ongoing maintenance ofthese trees should be funded by the quarry
project applicant(s).

. To improve the indoor air quality at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the

occupancy of the affected residences and schools:

. equip all affected residences and school buildings developed in the SPA with High Efficiency Particle

Anesting (HEPA) filter systems at all mechanical air intake points to the interior rooms;

' use the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to maintain all residential units under

positive pressure at all times;

. locate air intake systems for HVAC as far away from roadway air pollution sources as possible; and

. develop and implement an ongoing education and maintenance plan about the filhation systems

associated with HVAC for residences and schools.

To the extent this indoor air quality mitigation would not already be implemented as part ofthe Folsom South
of U.S. 50 Specific PIan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project
applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of any
residence or school within the SPA.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures
to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Traffic. The City
of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck
Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of Sacramento, with the input of the City of
Folsom, the City ofRancho Cordova and other interested parties, including representatives of quarry project
applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert quany project in
November 2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a development agreement that requires Teichert's
participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to implement roadway capacity and safety improvements
required to improve the compatibility of truck traffic from the quarries with the future urban development in
the SPA and otherjurisdictions that will be affected by quarry truck ftaffic. The development agreement
adopted by the County for the Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts ofannual aggregate sales from
Teichert's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City ofFolsom does not have directjurisdiction over the

Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the
unincorporated portion ofthe County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the
quarries, has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to
adoption of a TMP. The City's authority to control the activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or
other actions, such as the approval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure
NOISE-1-Land

(FPASP
ErRyErs)

106

119

Resolution No. 10670
Page 133 of 140

Page 462

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



quarry truck traffic, that would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing

reasons, the City ofFolsom considers itself a "responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA
Guidelines, CCR Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a future
TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jwisdiction of the City.
In a responsible agency role, the City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for
consideration and approval ofthe environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such

documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as of the completion ofthis FEIR/FEIS,

the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation

within its jurisdiction, or the impacts drat could arise from the of as yet uncertain components. Accordingly,
formulation of the precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative noise impacts pursuant to the TMP is
not cunently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and intended mitigation strategy to

address the cumuiative impacts of quarry truck traffic tkough the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to
be implemented those portions ofthe TMP (as described above) that are within its authority to control. In
implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or traffic measures imposed by the City within the

SPA reduce the taffic noise exposure to sensitive receptors along routes within the SPA so as to ensure that

sensitive receptors are not exposed to interior noise levels in excess of45 dBA, or increases in interior noise

levels of 3 dBA or more, whichever is more restrictive. With this mitigation, the cumulative noise impacts

from truck traffic would be less than significant.

As an altemative (or in addifion) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quany project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and

Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure interior noise levels for sensitive receptors to noise generated by quarry

truck traffic would not exceed 45 dBA or increase of 3 dBA over existing conditions, as identified above.

The City encourages implementation ofthe following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City ofFolsom to discuss mitigation shategies,

implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis should be conducted by the City ofFolsom and funded

by the quarry truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA

that would be located along the sides ofroadway segments that are identified in Table 4-8 as being
potentialiy significant under any of the analyzed scenarios. The analysis should be conducted using an

approved three dimensional haffrc noise modeling piogram (i.e,, TNM or SoundPlan). Each projecl
level analysis should be performed according to the standards set forth by the City ofFolsom for the

purpose of disclosure to the public and decision makers. The projecrlevel analysis should account for
the location ofthe receptors relative to the roadway, their distance fiom the roadway, and the projected

future traffic volume for the vear 2030 (includine the oercentase ofheaw trucks). Ifthe incremental

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 34 of 140

Page 463

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



The FPA landowners have satisfied all of
the mitigation measures for the design
and construction ofthe Phase i Water

City ofFolsom
Community
Development

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of

>

increase in fiaffrc noise levels are determined to exceed the threshold of significance recommended by

the City of Folsom, then design mitigation should be employed, which may include the following:

Model the benefits ofsoundwalls (berm/wall combination) along the quarry truck hauling roadways and

affected receptors not to exceed a total height ofeight feet (two-foot berm and six-foot concrete mason

wall). If this mitigation measure is determined by the City ofFolsom to be inadequate, additional three

dimensional traffic noise modeling should be conducted with the inclusion of rubberized asphalt at the

expense ofthe quarry truck applicant(s). No quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway

segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation has been agreed upon by the

City of Folsom and fees for construction of said mitigation are paid by the quarry truck applicant(s).

Implement the installation ofrubberized asphalt (quiet pavement) on roadway segments adjacent to

sensitive receptors that carry quarry trucks if soundwalls do not provide adequate reduction of traffic

noise levels. The inclusion of rubberized asphalt would provide an additional 3 to 5 dB oftraffic noise

reduction. The cost ofconstruction using rubberized asphalt should be bome by the quarry truck
applicant(s). Said mitigation fee should be determined in consultation with the quarry project

applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of Folsom. No
quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or within the

SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

To improve the indoor noise levels at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the

occupancy ofthe affected residences and schools:

. Conductaninteriornoiseanalysisoncedetailedconstructionplansofresidencesadjacenttoaffected
roadways are available to determine the required window package at second and third floor receptors to

achieve the interior noise level standard of45 dB Ldn without quarry trucks.

. Determine the interior quarry truck haffic noise level increases at second and third floor receptors

adjacent to affected roadways compared to no quarry truck conditions. Window package upgrades are

expected to be necessary due to the traffic noise level increases caused by quarry trucks along affected

roadways. Quarry truck applicant(s) should pay for the cost ofwindow package upgades (increased

sound transmission class rated windows) required to achieve the interior noise level standard of45 dB

Ldn with the inclusion of quarry truck traffic.

To the extent this noise mitigation would not already be implemented as part ofthe Folsom South of
U,W. 50 Specific Plan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project

applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet ofany
residence or school within the SPA.

Coordinate and Fund the Backbone Infrastructure and Off-Site Water Facility Alternative. The project
applicant shall participate in the FPASP owners' group and shall fund and contribute their fair share to the
backbone infrastructue and off-site water facility altemative improvements. The project applicant shall

N/A106

120

Resolution No. i0670
Page 135 of 140

Page 464

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



and Sewer Backbone Infrastructure to
serve the first of development in the
FPA. The Phase 1 backbone
Infrasfucture was completed and

accepted by the City in 20 I 8 and is

curently in use in the FPA and being
owned and operated by the City. Ttre off-
site water facility altemative
improvements were not implemented.
The water for the FPA was provided
through the conservation of existing
water in the Cify. The new water supply
altemative was validated in 2014.

Department and

City of Folsom
Public Works
Department

building
permits for any
project phase,

the project
applicant shall
demonshate to
the City's
satisfaction the
fair share

contribution
towards
implementation
ofBackbone
Infrastructure
and Off-Site
Water Facility
improvements
and associated
required
mitigation as

identified in the
Folsom South of
U.S. Highway
50 Backbone
Infrastructure
Mitigated
Negative
Declaration
(December

2014) or the
Revised
Proposed Off-
Sile Water
Facility
Alternative
Addendam to
the FPASP
EINEIS

coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures detailed in the Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50 Backbone Infrastucture Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014):

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-l: Design above ground pump station and storage tank facilities

to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-2: Develop and implement a landscaping plan for pump station

and storage tank facilities to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-1: Prepare and ImplementNOX Reduction Plan

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-2: Pay Off-site Miligation Fee to SMAQMD to off-set NOX
Emissions Generated by Construction.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-4: Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of
NOA and, if necessary, Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Conhol Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV'l: Conduct Special-Status Plant Surveys; Implement Avoidance

and Mitigation Measures or Compensatory Mitigation

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion (BO) for
Federally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the Biologicai Opinion for Impacts

on Valley Elderberry Longhom Beetle.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-4: Westem Spadefoot Toad

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-5: Westem Pond Turtle

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swatnson's Hawk Nesting Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-7: Tricolored Blackbird

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8: Nesting Raptors

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds and Migratory Birds

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-10: Special-Status Bats

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 Master Streambed Alteration
Agreement

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-13: Conduct Surveys to ldentifl' and Map Valiey Needlegrass

Grassland; Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation, if necessary

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and

Section 401 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of
Wetlands, Other Waters of the U.S., and Waters of the State

Resolution No. 10670
Page 136 of 140

Page 465

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



(approved

December
2012); as

applicable.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-15: Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak

Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak Trees Removed and Implement Measures to Avoid and

Minimize Indirect lnpacts on Oak Trees and Oak Woodland Habitat Retained On-Site.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-1 1: American Badger

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-l: Comply with the applicable procedwes in the FAPA and

implementation of applicable historic property heatment plans

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site

Monitoring if Required, Stop Work if Culnral Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of ttre

Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are

Encountered and Comply with Califomia Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vi-l: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC

Requirements and Implement Appropriate Recommendations.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure M-3: Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(a): Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and

Erosion Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-S(b): Prepare and Implement the appropriate Grading and

Erosion Control Plan for the detention basin West ofPrairie City Road.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-l: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and

Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure MI-l: Greenhouse Gas Emissions

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XVI-I: Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control
Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 Water knprovements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water hnptovements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XII-I North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

In addition, the project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures

detailed in the Revised Proposed Off-Site llater Facility Alternative Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS
(approved Decemb er | 1, 2012):

> 3F.1-2a: Enhance Exterior Appearance of Structural Facilities.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 137 of 140

Page 466

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



> 38.1-2b: Prepare Landscaping Plan.

> 38.1-3a: Conformance to Construction Lighting Standards.

> 38.1-3b: Prepare and Submit a Lighting Master Plan.

> 38.2-la: Develop and Implement a Construction NOX Reduction Plan.

> 38.2-lc: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and a Particu'late Matter Monitoring Program

during Construction.

> 38.2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors.

> 38.2-3b: Conduct Project-Level DPM Screening and Implement Measures to Reduce Annual DPM to

Acceptable Concentrations.

> 3B.4-1a: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction.

> 38.4-1b Prepare and Implement an Off-site Wafer Facilities Climate Action Plan.

> 34.5-1a: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement.

> 3A.5-1b: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the California Register of
Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Deshuction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or
Destruction Cannot be Avoided.

> 3A.5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring ifRequired, Stop

Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatment

or Avoidance as Required.

> 3A.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with
Califomia Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> 3B.7-la: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off-site Water Facilities and

Implement Required Measwes,

> 38.7-lb: Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final Pipeline Design.

> 38.7-4: Implement Corrosion Protection Measures.

> 3B.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work ifPaleontological Resouces axe

Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as

Required.

> 3B.8-1a: Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous Materials in Compliance with
Relevant Regulations and Guidelines.

> 3B.8-ib: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Management Plan.

> 3B.8-5a: Conduct Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment for Selected Alignment.

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 38 of 140

Page 467

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThe Capital Southeast Connector - JPA
project commenced construction in April
2021. Since the project is now complete
this condition has been satisfied.

CD (E)M

> 3B.8-5b: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan.

> 3B.8-7a: Keep Conshuction Area Clear of Combustible Materials.

> 3B.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment.

> 3B.9-la: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> 38.9-lb: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction Dewatering in Accordance with
the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

> 3B.9-3a: Prepare and lmplement Drainage Plan(s) for Structural Facilities.

> 3B.9-3b: Ensure the Provision ofSufficient Outlet Protection and On-site Containment.

> 38.1 1-l a: Limit Construction Hours.

> 3B.i 1-1b: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging.

> 38.11-1c: Maximize the Use of Noise Barriers.

> 38.1 I -1 d: Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction.

> 3B.I I -le: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing Noise Complaints.

> 38.11-3: Implement Operational Noise Minimization Measures.

> 38.l2-1 : Provide for Continued Recreational Access as Identified in Mitigation Measure 3.14-1a.

> 38.15-1a: Prepare Traffic Conhol Plan.

> 38.15-lb: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions.

> 38.16-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground Services Alert.

> 38. i 6-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and knplement Appropriate Installation Methods to

Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions.

> 38.l7-la: Implement Construction Dewatering Best Management Practices.

> 38.17-1b: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program.

> 3A.18-1: Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability.

> 3.A.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site
Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured.

lAhile Rock Road Shoulder Improvements
The owner/applicant shall construct shoulder improvements along the project's entire frontage of
westbor.rnd White Rock Road to the satisfaction of the City prior to approval of the first small lot
final map. In lieu of constructing the aforementioned interim shoulder improvements, the
owner/applicant may enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City and post

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 39 of 140

Page 468

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



YesThis condition will apply to the futrue
Phase 3 (Traditional Subdivision) and

therefore does not apply to the Phase lF
subdivision.

cD (E) (P)

cD (E) (P)

M

M

adequate security to the City's satisfaction to ensure construction ofsaid improvements; the
secwity shall be for a minimum period of 10 years.

If shoulder improvements are constructed andlor funded by the owner/applicant, then said costs
may be included in any applicable fee program established and approved for the Folsom Plan
Area subject to approval by the Cify and the actual costs expended by the owner/_applicant may
therefore be eligible for a credit and/or reimbursement.

If construction of the Capital Southeast Connector Project between Scott Road and the El Dorado
County line has commenced during the term of the required Subdivision Improvement
Agreement, then the shoulder improvement condition will be deemed satisfied and the security
shall be released to the owner/applicant.

The owner/applicant shall presewe the oak trees shown in the blue color on the attached Site Plan
Exhibit for the Traditional Subdivision. The owner/applicant shall also make every attempt to
preserve the tree shown in red on the attached Site Plan Exhibit provided that the City Arborist
concurs(sincethisoaktreewillbeapproximately3'lowerthanadjacentpadgrades). The
additional land created from elimination of lots 49, 56, and 57 as shown on the Site Plan Exhibit
shall be incorporated into the adjacent residential lots to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department. Consistent with FPASP Policy 10.19, the Community Development
Director will allow modifications to the development standards to order to accommodate
preservation of the oak tree on Lot 62 as shown on the attached Site Plan Exhibit. This condition
shall be satisfied orior to anoroval ofthe Final Mao for the Traditional Subdivision.

21.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 140 of 140

Page 469

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



This page intenti.onally Ieft blank
to facilitate double-sided printing .

CI?Y OF

FOLS()l\[
DIATIIC'IVE IY NATURE

Page 470

12/13/2022 Item No.16.



!, 1:5jr!.1 ri t r1!,ri

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 1211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10963 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Helix Environmental
Planning, Inc. for Environmental Consulting Services for the

Benevento Family Park Project

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10963 - A Resolution Authorizing
the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. for
Environmental Consulting Services for the Benevento Family Park Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom Parks and Recreation Master Plan (PRMP) was approved by the City
Council in20l5. The PRMP identifies a future 19.0-acre park site, referred to previously as

Park Site #51 andnow known as Benevento Family Park (Benevento). Resolution No. 10133,

approved by the City Council on June 12,2018, established the new name. The park site is

located on Broadstone Parkway and Carpenter Hill Drive. It has three main elevation tiers with
alarge stock pond in the middle that terraces down toward Vista del Lago High School which
is adjacent to the site.

At the August 25,2020 City Council meeting, a design contract was approved with Wilson
Design Studios Landscape Architects (WDSLA) for the planning and design of Benevento

Family Park as well as Neighborhood Park #3 (now named Prospector Park) in the Folsom

Plan Area. A public workshop was held on May 19,2022, and a second public workshop was

held on June 9, 2022. The participants at the public workshops assisted in the development of
the conceptual Master Plan and voted for their preferred Master Plan, which formed the Master

Plan subsequently presented to the Parks & Recreation Commission.

I
Page 471

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



At the August 2, 2022 Parks and Recreation Commission meeting, the Commission
unanimously approved the Master Plan for Benevento Family Park. This Master Plan includes:

o Parking lots for 119 vehicles (one parking lot entrance off Broadstone Parkway and
one parking lot entrance off Carpenter Hill Road)

o Concrete pathways
o Decomposed granite pathways
o Four (4) lighted pickleball courts
o Children's play area
o All gender restroom
. Shade structures
o Eight (8) lighted sand volleyball courts
o Multi-use field
o Drought tolerant planting
o Wood platform at existing pond
o Two (2) bocce courts

The next step in the park planning process, is to prepare and process the required California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documentation for the project. CEQA requires public
agencies to inform decision makers and the public about the potential environmental impacts
of proposed projects, and to reduce those environmental impacts to the extent feasible. Staff
is recommending Helix Environmental Planning, Inc., perform the Environmental Consulting
Services for the Benevento Family Park Project.

After the CEQA process is completed, the environmental document, which will include the
Master Plan, will be brought before the City Council for approval.

POLICY i NUT,N

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (A)(l) and 236J20 of the Folsom Municipal Code,
professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those

costing $66,141 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

On September 19, 2022, the Parks and Recreation Department issued a Request for Proposal
(RFP) for Environmental Consulting Services for Benevento Family Park. The RFP was

distributed to qualified environmental consultants that had previously worked with the City of
Folsom. Three proposals were received, and they were subsequently reviewed by Parks and

Recreation Department staff. All three proposers were qualified and the scope of work
presented by each was basically the same. The deciding factor for choosing a preferred
consultant was the proposed fee. Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. had the lowest fee.

2
Page 472

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



$78"250.00Helix Environmental Planning, Inc
$82,46s.00Ascent Environmental, Inc
$82,614.00Environmental Planning Partners, Inc.

Staff is recommending the CEQA environmental consulting contract for Benevento Family
Park be awarded to Helix Environmental Planning, Inc.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The cost for the Environmental Consulting Services for the Benevento Family Park Project is

included in the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Capital Improvement Plan. Funding for the contract will
include $50,000 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds and the remaining $28,250 will
be from the Park Impact Fund (Fund 412).

ATTACHMENT

1. Resolution No. 10963 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Helix Environmental Planning,Inc. for Environmental Consulting
Services for the Benevento Family Park Project Proposals and Maps

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks & Recreation Director

J Page 473

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



Attachment 1

Resolution 10963

4 Page 474

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



RESOLUTION NO. 10963

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AI\
AGREEMENT WITH HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING,INC. FOR

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE BENEVENTO FAMILY
PARK PROJECT

WHEREAS, the 2015 Parks and Recreation Master Plan identifies a future park site previously
known as Pak Site #51 and now known as Benevento Family Park; and

WHEREAS, two public workshops were held to gather community input on the design of
Benevento Family Park; and

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Commission approved the Master Plan for Benevento
Family Park at their Augustz,2022 Parks & Recreation Commlssion meeting; and

WHEREAS, staff issued a Request for Proposal to qualified consultants for environmental
consulting services for the Benevento Family Park Project, and received three proposals; and

WHEREAS, all three proposers were equally qualified, and Helix Environmental Planning,
Inc. had the lowest fees for environmental consulting services for the Benevento Family Park Project;
and

WHEREAS, the cost of environmental consulting services is included in the Fiscal Year 2022-
23 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Budget. The contract amount will be split between in American
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds in the amount of $50,000 and the remaining $28,250 would utilize the
Park Impact Funds (Fund 412).

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOTVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that
the City Manager is authorized to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Helix
Environmental Planning, Inc, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, for Environmental consulting
services for Benevento Family Park project, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $78,250.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 00000
Page I of I

MAYOR

Page 475

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



This poge intentionolly left blank
to focilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSON{
DISTINCTIVE bY NAIURE

Page 476

12/13/2022 Item No.17.



i rl ,i' i .:* .{_'}'\:{

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No. 10964 * A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 3,A' Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 3,A' Subdivision.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase

3,A. Subdivision was approved by the City Council on March 10,2020.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and
Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A'

Subdivision. The Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A. Subdivision will
create a total of 135 single-family high density (SFHD) residential lots. With the approval of
the Final Map, the subdivision process for this phase will be complete.

MEETING DATE: r2n312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10964 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 3.A. Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A. Subdivision

X'ROM: Community Development Department

I

Page 477

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



-fattlE

ll
\. I

\\t\r1t\

- 
tr",\\

I rgatirrF 
\

b*d

t :

:l
1

HOMSSTTES
!--G,Uta- als iLa tt

The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3.A. Subdivision is located on the north side of White
Rock Road, east of Oak Avenue Parkway, south of Mangini Parkway in the Folsom Plan Area
(FPA) (see above).

POLICY / RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance
require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A.

Subdivision have been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City
departments. The Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved

2

MANGINI PARKWAY

v
r',

Fi
trl

zr!

v
o

PHASE 34.

v

v

WHITE ROCK ROAD

f

Page 478

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been

satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 34 Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information
concerning when the condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit,

etc.), which City department is responsible to verifu that it has been satisfied, and comments
or an explanation on how the condition was satisfied. This subdivision is consistent with the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) in regards to zoning and unit count.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1D Subdivision (PlJ l9-091) on March
I0,2020 in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project
is consistent with this Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all
mitigation measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition,
none of the conditions described in Section21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section
15162 of the CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have

occurred. Therefore, no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10964 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A' Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the
Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 34' Subdivision

2. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A' Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A' Subdivision Final Map

4. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A. Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 34' Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map

Submitted

a
J

Page 479

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



PAM JOHNS, Community Development Director

4
Page 480

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 10964 _ A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION

IMPROVBMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFFERS OF
DEDICATION FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISIONO AND APPROVAL OF THE
FINAL MAP FOR THB TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISION

Page 481

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



RESOLUTION NO. 10964

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFFERS OF'DEDICATION FOR THE

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISION, AND APPROVAL OF
THE FINAL MAP FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT F'OLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A

SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,{ subdivision
has been reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch Phase 3,A. subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all offers
of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 34 subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 34' subdivision is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute
the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as
Toll Brothers West, Inc. in a form acceptable to the City Attorney and accept the offers of dedication
for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A' subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10964
Page I of I

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Page 482

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 2

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 34. SUBDIVISION
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

Page 483

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Code Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
City Clerk
50 Natoma Street

Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF'FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 2Q22, by and

between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Toll West,Inc. which will do

business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc., a Delaware Corporation hereinafter referred to

as "Subdivider".
RECITALS

A. Subdivider has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land

located within the corporate limits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the

Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the

Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council

of the City.

The proposed subdivision of land is commonly known and described as Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Phase lF Subdivision and is herein referred to as the "subdivision".

Subdivider has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of
the public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit
A), including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, curbs, gutters,

bikeways, storm drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public
utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by

the City. The foregoing improvements, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,

are hereinafter referred to as 
o'the required improvements".

B

C

Page 484

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



D. City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the

Subdivider first enteis into and executes this subdivision improvement agreement with the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

l. Perlirrrnance of Work. Subdivider agrees to furnish, construct, and install at his own

expense the required improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications

of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development

Department, and is incorporated herein by rcference, along with any changes or

modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,

changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer. The

approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be rnodified by the

Subdividei as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved

in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,

as shown on Exhibit A, is THREE MILLION EIGHTY-NINE THOUSAND SIX
HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00).

Z. Work: Sarislirction ol'Clity lurginegt. All of the work on the required improvements is

to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's

Improvement Stanaards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable

Ciiy ordinances or state and fbderal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer'

3. Workl Timc f'or (lommenccrng$t arrcl Perlbtnancc. Work on the required

impr&ements shall be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months

from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen ( l5) calendar days prior to the

commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall notiff the City Engineer in writing

of the date fixed by subdivider for commencement of the work.

4. Time of llssence: Extension,

a. 'Iime is gf the essence of this Agreement. The date for completion of the work

of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 1 6.36.1 10 of
the Folsom MuniciPal Code.

lnrproygrnent Sec_r]rity, Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the

Subdivider shall furnish the CitY:

a, Improvement security in the sum of THREE MILLION EIGHTY-NINE
TNOUSAND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY.FOUR AND OO/1OO DOLLARS
($3,089,634.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the total

estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the cost of any

other obligation to be performed by Subdividcr under this Agreement,

conditioned upon the f'aithful performance of this Agreement; and

b. Separatc improvement security in the sum of THRIIE MILLION EIGHTY-
TTIINN THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND OO/IOO

DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the

2

5

Page 485

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



6.

7

estimated cost of constructing the rcquired improvements, securing payment to

the contractor, subcontractor and to pelsons furnishing labor, materials, or

equipment to them for the construction of the required improvements'

c. The subdivider shall deposit with the city THREE THOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to correct deficiencies and conditions caused by the

Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

construction of the subdivision.

d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (10%)

construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California,

and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.

In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the

checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for

inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established by the CitY.

Inclcuurificaliorr and l-lold ]larmlcsq. The Subdivider shall indemnily, protect, defend,

save and hold the City harmless from any and all claims or causes of action for death or

injury to persons, or damage to property resulting from intentional or negligent acts,

".rori, 
or omissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's officers, employees, volunteers, and

agents during performance of this Agreement, or in connection with Subdivider's work,

oi fro- any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent

caused, in whole or in part, by the willful misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of
Subdivider or its employees, subcontractots, or agents, or by the quality or character of
Subdivider's work. It is understood that the duty of Subdivider to indemnify and hold

harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil
Code. Acceptance by City of insurance certificates and endorsements required under

this Agreement does not relieve Subdivider fi'om liability under this indemnification

and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to

any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have

beln determined to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this

Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, Subdivider acknowledges and agrees to

the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of considcration.

Subdivider shall, at his own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

employeei, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satisfy any judgement that may be

rendered against the City in any such aotions, suits or legal proceedings, or result

thereof.

3

Page 486

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



8. Insurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perform any ofthe

R.q"t*a Improvements shall, at their expense, rnaintain in effect for the duration of

this Agreemint or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever

first occurso not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City. The

maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of

insurance is a material element of this Agreement. I'he failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be

treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

a.

b.

Minirnurn l-intits crl'lnsularrce. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than:

L Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per

occuffence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage'

2. Automobile Liability; $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage'

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's

Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
California and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

Dccluctibles ancl Sell:lnsurecl ltctentions. Any deductibles or self-insured

r.t"ntiont shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the

City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such dcductibles or self-insured

retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related

investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Other Insuratrce Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to

contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to

be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products

and completed operations of the Subdivider; premises owned,

leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borrowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain

no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the

City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

The Subdivider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance

as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunieers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the

City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the

Subdivider's insurance and shall not oontribute with it.

4

c

A

B

Page 487

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies

shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
offi cials, employees or volunteers.

'I'he Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer

shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,

officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
perforrned by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or

cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after

thiny (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt

requested, has been given to the City.

d. As{reptlrlility ol'lrrsurqr:s. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's

rating of not less than A: VII.

cr. Vqritjqation of C . Concunently with the execution of this Agreement,

the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy

are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its

behalf. the City reserves the right to require complete, cerlified copies of all
required insurancc policies at any time,

Title to Improvements. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements

constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon

c6mpletion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. fhe City

Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such

improvernents have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications,

approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City lmprovement Standards and

Siandard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws

and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

Wananty Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defbctive

materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Wananty Security)

throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year following
completion and written acceptance of the improvements (Warranty Security Period). The

amount ofthe Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction

of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreement,

which shall be retaincd for the Warranty Security Period.

5

C.

D

9

10.

Page 488

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



11.

t2.

13,

14

ttepair or fteeenslructic;n ol'I)irf'cctivE !Vo.t'k or Materiqls. If, within the Warranty Security
peiiod or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work

done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications referred to herein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory part or parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act

promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

repaiis or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may; at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus fifteen percent (15%) within

thirry (30) <lays of the date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agre-e that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall

guarantee and secure the faithful perfonnance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Watranty Security Period.

Subdivicler Not Agcnt ol'ClitJ,. Neither Subdivider nor any of Subdivider's agents or

contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Subdividcr's obligations under this Agreement.

Notice o1'Ureach arlcl Det'ault. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

.tiditorr, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this

Agreement, or of any portion thereof'

[]reach ol'Agrecntcnt-]. Perlbunange By $uretyJrr City. ln the event of any such notice,

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the

seiving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen ( I 5) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may take possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

planior other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

therefor,

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument,

6

Page 489

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



l5 Notices. All notices reqlired under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to city shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers Westo Inc., a
Delaware CorPoration

2330 East Bidwell Street, Suite 201

Folsom, CA 95630

ATTN; Greg Van Dam, Vice President - Land Development

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attornev's Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,

the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to

any other relief to which he may be entitled.

17. Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in

int"di, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City

may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's

Office.

7

Page 490

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SUBDIVIDER

Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West, Inc.,
A Delaware Corporation

BY: BY:

Print Name: Print Name:

Title

DA'f

CITY OF FOLSOM, a Municipal Corporntion

Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Pam Johns
COMMLINITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

Title:

DATE:

DA

DATE

DA'I

DA

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF ..SUBDIVIDER'' MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section I 189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase IF Subdivision

8

Page 491

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ExhibitA

FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estimqte Summary

for
Toll Brothers - Phose 7F

Total Costs Phase lF

Total

$ 4,423,606

Cost to

jomplete
5 I,ogg,elc

Cost

I ol4
Page 492

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Es{mote tol

Toll Btolhers - Phase 7F

Unlt Prlce

s 200.0-q

S 1,ooo,oo 
.

$ zo.oo 
"S 4,soo.oo.

S t,ooo.oo

S l,soo.oo

I soo4o

. $ 4s.00

$ s5.00

s 60.00

5 -s.o!-$ 7o.oo

S Bo.oo

5 5,ooo.oo

$_ . 7,ooo,oo

s 9,000.00

I 11,ooo,oo

S 4,soo.oo

$ 3,s00,00

S soo,oo

$ 3,500,09

5 t,soo.oo

Total

I 6,660.00

$ _ 33,3oo.oo

$. ?tzr8go.oo

$ __!ap!a!0

Cort to
Complete

16,650.00

16.6s0.00

7,990.00

46,578,00

18,000.00

20,200.00

300,00

100,00

S .. 93,168,00

23,175,00

11,852.s0

8,790,00

11,992.50

16,3lo.oo
55,240.00

27,s00.00

38,500,00

13,s00,00

5,500.00

24,750.00

35,000,0t|
500.00

5 272,67o.os

%

Item No quantlty Unlt DascrlFtlon

Slte Preparatlon & Earthwork

500.00

Complete

100%

s0%

80%

80%

80%

\Wo
80%

80%

(

a

1

1

33.3 Ac Clearhg&Grubblng
33,3 AC Eroslon Control

Sanltary Sewer Systern

Potable water Dlstrlbutlon svstem

Subtotal Gradlng & Slte Prep $ 39,960.00

50,00 s 19,9$0,00LF 6" Sanltary Sewer, PVC SDR 26

LF 8" Sanllary Sew€r, PVC soR 26

EA 48" Standard Sanltary Sewer Manhole

cA 4'r sanltsry sewer Servlce

EA 6" tlushlng Branch

EA ConnccttoExlstln8SewerMaln

LF 12" storm Draln, RCP cl lll
LF 15" storm Drah, RCP CL lll

LF 18r'Storm Draln, RcP cL lll

LF 24" storm Draln, RcP C[ lll

LF 30r'storm Draln, ftCP CL lll

LF 36" Storm Draln, RcP c[ lll

EA 48"standardstormDrelnManhole
EA 60" Standatd Storm Draln Manhole

EA 72"Standard storm Drain Manhole

EA 84r'storrn Draln Manhole

EA TvpeGOt-7 (On'6radel Dralnage lnlet

EA Modltled Type 'B' Dralnage lnlet

EA Connect to Existln8 storm Drain Maln

799

?,32'?

20

t0t
1

I

1,030

43r.
293

359

466

1,381

11

11

3

11

20

2

4,s0s
213

23

15

101

3

1

$

s
$(

s
(
$

subtotal Sewer S 455,840,00

Storm Draln System

1

3

4
J

6

7

I
I
10

11

12

t3

S 46,350,00

$ 23.705.00

$ 32,620.00

$ tto,qso,oo
5 ss,ooo.oo.

$ 77,000.00

$ 27,ooo,oo

S 11,ooo,oo

5004

s0%

50t6

. 50%

5096

. 50%

50%

s096

so%

_ 50%

sw6

so94

$ tu,sgo.oo

$ za,ses.oo

$ tg,soo.oo

$ * zo,ooo.oo

(

s
$

s
$

I
$

$

$

s

$

$
d

1

2

3

4
q

6

7

I

Subtotal storm Draln $ 545,220.00

$ ss.oo s 247.775.00

50,00 $ 10,6s0.00

$ 1,000o0

..016 ...
0+6

$ 46,ooq,9o o%

$ ?100030 016

$ 101,000,00 o%

s 7,s00,00

$ 3,5oo,oo

5,000,00 0%

LF 8" Water Maln, PVC C900 CL 235

lF 6" Water Maln, PVC C900 Ct 235

EA 8" Gate Valve

fA Fire Hydrant Assembly (6" l-ead & Appurt€nanccs)

EA 1" Woter Scrvicc

EA 4" Blow-Ofl Valve & Box

EA 2" lrrlgatlon servlce

EA connection to Exlstlng Wtter Maln

0%

247,775.00

10,650,00

46,000.00

75,000.00

101,000,00

7,500,00

3,500.00

5,ooo.oo

096

s

$
(
d

$

$

$

ss

Subtotal potable Water S 495,425,00 s

lol 4

Page 493

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



FOTSOM PLAN AREA
cost Estlmaaerot

Totl Drolhe6 - Phase 7F

Itsm No Quahtlty Unlt Doscrlptlon

ConcrctG

Unlt Ptlco

$ 2o.oo

$ 2s.oo

s 20,00

$ 17,00

s 6.00

5_ 3o.oo

$ 300.00

S z,soo.oo

S 8o,oo

s 20,00

s 5.oo

s 2oo.oo
300.00

s r,0g
$ 15.00

$ 11,600.00

Subtoial Stteet tlBhtt & JolntTrench

Total

$ 4,140.00

$ 2,1oo.oo

3s.000.00

$ 2z5,2so.oo

s 187,700.00.

$ 880,00

i *,,___uqq$_
$ . 1,5110.00

S 1g2.oo

s 2,970.00

232,000.00

$ 1,045,000.00

Cost to
complote Complats

%

$

I
2

3

4

5

6

8

1,028

722
7,lro
206

30,027

138

7

t4

2,816

9,385

t76
5

5

96

198

tF Modltled Type 2 Vertlcal curb & Gutt€r (V 6" ABI

!F Modlfled TVpe ? E"Vertlcal Curb & Gutter (w/ 6" AB)

LF Modltled TVpe 1 Rolled Curb & Gutter

!F S"TypeScurb
SF Sldewalk(6" PcCl6" ABI

[F Modllled Type 5 Medlsn Curb

EA Concrote Survey Monument

EA Sldewalk curb REmp

Ton Asphalt Concrete (Type'8'!

Ton Aggregate Sase (class 2l

SF PBvement Merklngs

€A StreetNameSlsnPost
EA Stop Slgn (R1-11 on Street Name Post (Sl8n Only)

LF 12'Whlte strlpe llmlt Line (Stop Llne]

LF 4" krlgatlon Sleeve, schedule 80 PVc

Subtotal Concrete $ 405,714.00

096

096

0'6
0'6
096

096

20,560,00

18,050.00

142,200,00

3,502,00

180,162.00

4,140.00

2,100,00

35,000,00

4O5,714,00

0'6

096

$

$

s
s
s
$

$

s

s

Strc€twork

t
2

3

5

6

7

096-

016

0'6
0s
096

225,280.00
187,700.00

880,00
1,O00,00

1,500,00

192.00

2,970,00

LoT Jolnt Trench Excovatlon & Backflll

EA Str€etllght Servlce Polnt

EA LED StreetllSht {lncludlng condult, wlrlng &

appurtenances)

Subtotalstreelwork $ 419,522.00

S 8,ooo.oo $ BoS,ooo.oo

S 5,ooo.oo S s,ooo.oo

016 $ 808,000.00

0% $ s,000,00

$ 232,000,00

$ 1,o45,ooo.oo

s

Street ll8hts & Jolnt Trench

1
t
3

101

1

20
s

3ol 4

Page 494

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



FOTSOM PIAN AREA
Cost Estlmote lot

Toll Erothers - Phose 1F

]t€mNo Quantlty Unlt osscrlptlon
landscaplnE & sound walls

Unlt Ptlce

5 s.oo

$ ls.oo

Subtotal tandscaplng & Sound walls

Total

59,665.00

s44,110,00

603.775.00

$ 4,021,4s6.00

$ 402,150.00

Cosl to
Complotc complete

o%9
10096 $

59,555.00

s s9,55s,00

%

11,933

15,546

5F Landscape & lrrlgatlon
SF Masonry Sound Walls

s

i
5

fotel
contlnSency

Total Cost Estlmate

summBrv Phaso 1F

slte PrGparatlon & [arthwork
Sanltary Sewor System

Storm Drsln System

Potrble Water Dlstrlbullon S$tem
Concr€ie

Streetwotk
su€et uEhts & Jolnt Trench

Landscaplng & Sound walls
Contlnrency (t0%)

s 4,{23.606.00

Total cost

{ 39,960.00

$ 46s,8ro.oo

$ t,0/15r000.00

$ 601,775.00

$ 4o2,1so,oo

TOTALS $ l,lZl,soe.oo

S z8o88o.oo

$ 3,089,63/t.00

Cost to Complete

$ 16,650.00

$ 93.168.00

$ 2rt,610.00

S 49c,{2E.oo

$ {05,714.00

l- . {r9r[21.00
3 1,0{1000.00

$ 59,665.00

I 280,880,00

$ 3,0891634,00

3

t@

- $ i4s,zzo.oo
$ 496,425.00

L , 405,71400

$ 419,522,00

4ot 4
Page 495

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



BOND #
PREMIUM:-

PERFORMANCE BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation in the State of
California, and Toll West, Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a

Delaware Corporation, (hereinafter designated as "Principal") have entered into an agreement where

by principal agiees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, which said

ugrl.rn"nt, daied _ 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F

SuUOivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereofl and,

WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for

the faithful performance of said agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, We, the PrinciPal, and

*f,,"d t" * th. c,* i,li#lH;il:111+il#t't?ilil1J$;iH"?'$-"$'i?f"#i3ffi'11ff"'.
HUNDRED THIRTy-Fouir AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00), lawful money of the United

States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

successors, executors, and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these presents.

'Ihe condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep

and perform the covenants, condiiions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof

made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein

specified, and inall respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnifu and save

harmless the City, its oificers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall

become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor,

there shall be included costs and rcasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees,

incuryecl by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any

judgrnent rendered.

The surety hereby stipulatcs and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition

to the terms of ttre agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications

accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive

notice bf any iuch change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to

the work or to the specifications.

Page 496

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on .2022,

BY
(PRTNCTPAL)

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

(suRErY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

Page 497

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



BOND #
PREMIUM

I,ABOR & MATEzuALS BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation of the State of
California, and Toll West,Inc. which will do business in California as Toll Brothers West,Inc., a
Delaware Corporation (hereinafter designated as "Principal"), have entered into an agreement

whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated public improvements, which said

agreement, dated _ 2022, and identified as the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase lF
Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and made a part hereofi and,

WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the

performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Folsom to secure

the claims to which reference is made in Title t5 (cornmencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code of the State of California;

NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly
bound unto the City of Folsom and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and other

persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code

of Civil Procedure, in the sum of THREE MILLION EIGHTY-NINE THOUSAND SIX
HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND 00/f00 DOLLARS ($3,089,634.00) for materials furnished or

labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the llnemployment Insurance Act with respect to

such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount

hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the face

amount thereof, cost and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred

by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed

as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to thc benefit ofany and

all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title l5 (commencing with
Seotion 30S2) olParl 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their

assigns in any suit brought upon this bond'

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and

void, otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or

addition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any

manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,

extension, alteration, or addition.

Page 498

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on . 2022.

BY
(PRTNCIPAL)

(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(sURETY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

Page 499

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 3

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISION
FINAL MAP

Page 500

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



OWNER'S STATEMENT CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

THE UNDERSIGNO OOES HEREBY flATE frAT WE ARE THE ONLY PARTIES HAVING ANY RECORD TILE
INTEREST IN THE REAL PROPERN NCLUO@ WIfrIN frE EOUNDARIES OF THIS FINAL MP OF
'TOILBROTHERS AT FOLSOM MNCH PHASE 3{ AND THE CONSENT FROM NO OTHER PERSON IS

NECES$RY. AND WE CONSENT TO THE PREPARATION AND RECORDATION OF THIS FINA MAP AND DO
HEREBY DEDICATE AS PUBLIC RGflS OF WAY, AND AS UTILIry ENEMENTS, MANANTA COURI.
GAEWAY DRIVE, GMN1TE POIM ORVE. RIMROCK DRIVE, OAK AVENUE PARtrAY, MANGINI PARruAY.
BUCK SGE STRES, EOULDER CREEK WAY. COPPERWOOD WAY. MANANITA WAY, PATINA WAY AND

WE DO HEREEY DEDISTE FOR SPECIFIC PURPOSES IHE FOLLOWNG:

1, A PUBLIC EASEMENT FOR THE INSTTLATION AND MAIN]ENANCE OF DMN, SS, SMR NO
WATER PIPES ND FOR UNOERGROUND WIRES ND CONOUIIS FOR ELECNbAL TELEVISION ND
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING

THERETO ON. OVER. UNDER NO ACROSS LOIS A B, C AND IHOSE STRIPS OF UND SHOWN
HEREN AND OES IGNATED 'PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT' (PUE),

2, A PUSLIC EASEMENT FOR PEOESTRIAN ACC€SS ON, OVER AND ACROSS LOTS A, B. C, D ANO

THOSE STRIPS OF UND SHOWN HEREON AND OESIGNATED "PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ENEMENI'
(PAE),

3. A PUBLIC EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY FOR THE INSTALUIION, REPAIR, REMOV{ OR

REPLACEMENT OF LANDSCAPING TOGETHER WTH ANY AND ALL APPURTENANCES PERTAINING
IHERETO ON OVER, UNOER, ACROSS NO ABOVE LOTS A, B, C AND THOSE STRIPS OF UNDS
SHOWN HEREON NO DESIGNAED'LNOSCAPE ilSEMENT' (LE).

4. A PUBLIC EASEMENTFOR CONSNUCTION AND MINIAININGCENTRALIZED MAIL DELVERYBOXES,

PEDESTALS AND SUBS TOGEftER WIB ANY AND AL APPURENANCES PERTAINING THERETO
INCLUDING PEDESIRAN ACCESS FOR DELIVERY ANO RECEIN OF MAIL ON, OVER ND ACRNS
STRIPSOFLANDFVE(5)FEETINWIDTHCONTIGUOIS ANDOUTSIDEALLRIGHISOF-WAY.

IHEREBY STATE THAT IHAVE EWINED THIS FINAL MP OF'TOLI BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH
PMSE 34'NO FIND IT TO BE SUBSTANTIAILY TAE SAME A5 THE TENTATIVE MAP APPROWD BY THE

CIflCOUNCIL OFTHE CIryOF FOLSOM, ANOTHATALL PROVISIONS OFTHE SUBDIVISION MAPACTANO

ALL APPL]CNLE CIry OROINANCES HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WITH.

STEVEN R, KRAHN. RCE49291
CIryENGINEER
crry oF FoLsoM
LICENSE EPIRES: 09/30/2024

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EUMINED THIS FINAL MAP OF'TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM MNCH
PHASE3A'AND I AM SATISFIEOTHATSAID MAP ISTECHNIMLLY CORRECT,

VICINITY MAP
N.T-S.

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT
GERALD A. YOUNG. L.S. 3852

CIrySURVEYOR
LICENSE EXPIRES: 6/30/2024

OR VERIFIES ONLY THE

IDENIIfl OF THE INOVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE OOCUMENT TO WHICN THIS CERTIFICATE IS

AfrACHEO, NO NOT

DATEi _

TOLLWEST INC. WHICH WILL DO EUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA
AS TOLL BROTHERS WEST INC.,
A DEUWARE CORPORATION

STATE OFC&IFORNIA

COUNTYOF

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT

NAME: GREGORYS.VAN DAM
TIILE: VICEPRESIDENT

DATE

ON- BEFOREME,- ANOTARY PUBLIC

PERSONALLY APDWSD
ffiO PROWO TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE TO BE THE PERSON(S) WHOSE

NAME(S) IS/ARE SUBSCRIBEO TO THE WIIHIN INSNUMENT ANO ACKNOWLEDGEO TO ME HAT
HgSH4Hry EXECUTED ilE SAME IN HIS/HEMHEIR AUTHORIZED CAPAOryOES). AND THAT BY

HIS/HEMHEIR SIGNATURE(S) ON THE INSTRUMENT THE PERSON(S), OR THE ENTITY UPON BEHALF OF

MICH THE PERSON(S) ACTEO, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.

I CERTIry UNDER PENALry OF PERJURY UNDERTHE UWS OFTHE STATE OF C{IFORNIATHAT THE

FOREGOING PAMGUPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

WMESS MYUND AND OFFICI{SEAL,

I HEREBY SIATETHATffE CIfr COUNCILOF THE CIry OF FOLSOM HASAPPROVEO THIS FIN{ MAP OF
.TOLL EROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 34' ANO HAS ACCEPTED, ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLIC.

SUBJECT TO IMPROVEMENTS. ALL RIGHTS{F-WAY AND ASEMENTS OFFERED HEREON FOR

DEDICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THAT OFFER AND HAS APPROWD THE
ABANDONMENT OFTHE ilSEMENTS LISTED HEREON,

BYI
CHRISTA FREEMANTLE
CIWCLERK

DATE|_
NAME: SCOfr ESPING
TltE: ASSISTANT SECRETARY

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

DATE

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME

WPRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESS IS COUNfl

W COMMISSION EXPIREST _MY COMMISION NUMBER:

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

RECORDER'S STATEMENT
NIS MP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY OIRECTION ANO IS reEO UPON A FIELD SURVEY IN

CONFORMNCE WTH THE REOUIREMENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION MAP ACT ANO LOCAL OROINANCE AT
frE R€OUEST OF TOLL WEST INC. WHICH WILL DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA AS TOLL BROftERS WST
INC,, A DEUWARE CORPORATION IN APRIL 2021. I HEREBY STATE TtsAT THIS FINAL MF SUBSTANTNLY
CONFORMS TOTHE CONotrIONALLY APPRoWD IENTATVE MAP] THAT ftE MONUMENTS wiLL 8E 6 THE

CSMfrERNOWLL OCCUPYTHE POSITIONS AS INDICATED NO WILL BE SET BY DECEMBER 31.2021.
AND THAT $IO MONUMENTS WILL BE SUFICIENTIO EMBLE THE SURVfl TO BE RETUCED.

FILEDTHTS.'.....'...'........_oAyOF _,2022,AT_ M.tNBOOK_OFMAPS,
AT PAGE- ATIHE REOUESTOF MACSY&SOMPS CVIL ENGINEERS, INC, TtrLETOTHE LAND

INCLUDED INTHIS FINAL MAP BEINGWSTED AS PER CERTIFICATE NO, ON
FILE IN THISOFFICE-

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IDENTIfl OF THE INDVIDUAL WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFIilTE IS

AIACHED, NO NOT TBE TRUIHFULNESS ACCURACY OR VALIDIfr OF ilAT DOCUMENT.

DOCUMENT NO.:_
MACMY & SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEERS. INC.

DONNAALLREO
SACMMENTO COUNW RECORDER

STATEOF CALIFORNIA

SIAIE OF C{IFORNIA F€E: S_

PAUL FERGUSON, JR.. PLS 9265

ilPIMTION DATE: MARCH 31,2024

couNfl 0F_
ON- BEFORE A NOTARY PUSLIC

OATE:
PERSONALLY APPAREO-
WHO PROVED 10 ME ON THE SASIS OF SATISFAC-6F!-EVi6?frEEJ6-EE-iFE-FEFE6iiS'frEG
NAME(S) ISARE SUESCRIBED TO THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAI
HgSHtrHEY EXECUED THE SAME IN HIS/HEMHEIR AUTHORIZEO CAPACIry(IES), AND THAT tsY

HF/HEMSR SIGMTURE(S)ON TNE NSMUMENTTHE PERSON(S). OR THE ENTIfl UPON BEHALF OF

WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED. EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT,

I CERTIFY UNDER PENIfr OF PERJURY UNDER THE UWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORN1A THAIfrE
FOREGOING PARAGWH IS TRUE AND CORRECT,

WITNESS MY HANO AND OFFICAL SEAL.

NAVD88 BENCHMARK-CITY OF FOLSOM

BENCHMARK"TS l!g4lle!=!915
BRASS OISK STAMPED CIfl OF FOLSOM BM 7A'ON THE NORTHERLY CORNER OF
ABUTMENTON THE NORTHSSERLYSIDE OFruDER CREEK, LOCATION OFSITE IS
F€fl DUE WEST OF E. EIDWELL STREET ND 23OO FEET DUE NORTH OF
APPROXiMATEUTITUDE:N38037'31.49 LONGn!OE:W121007'29.50'

NAVD88

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIEED IN THAI CERIAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 24, 2021 AS
DOCUMENT NO,202111241370 OFFIChL RECORDS OF SACilMENTO COUNW, BEING A PORIION OF

SECTIONS 19& 20. TOMSHIP9 NORTH, RANGE8 EAST, M.0.8.M.

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNW . CALIFORNIA

A CONCREE BRIDGE
APPROXIMAELY 3OOO

WHITE ROC( ROAD.

ELEVAIION OF 36.15 WAS ESIABLISHED SY A DiFFERENTIAL LWEL CIRCUIT FROM COUNry BENCHMARK
UO1&OO9 STAMPED "K-856'IN FEBRUARY 2014 BYMACEY ANO SOMPS CIVILENGINEERS. INC.

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 1 OF .12

'"1^..^ l"*_

a'

-.,t(
18

19

+

SEE SHEET 2 FOR TRUSTEE'S STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME

WPRINCIPAL PUCE OF BUSINESS IS COUW

wcoMMrssroN ExPtREs _MYcoMMrssloN NUMBER:

mAC[tY&s0mPS
9UM* $Mffi

,ils6?, €s)Drr8!

Page 501

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



BFNFFICIARY'S STATFMFNT NOTFS NOTFS CONTINIJFI)
FOLSOM RAL ESTAE SOUTH. LLC, A DEUWME LilITEO LABILIry COMPANY. AS BENEFICARY UNDER
DEED OF TRUST AND ASSIGNMENT OF ENTS WITH FIXTURE FILING, RECORDED AUGUST 24, 2020. AS
DOCUMENI NUMEER 2O2OO824E9O AND AMENOEO / MODIFIED BY DOCUMENI NUMBERS 202101220066,
202207050793, 2022470W95 AND 202209010514, oFF|C|AL RECORDS HEREgy CONSENTS TO THE

RECORDATIONOFfrISMAPNOTHESUBDIV]SIONOFTHEUNDSSHOWNHEREON,

1. ALL CURE DIMENSIONS ARE MDUS. DELTA AND ARC LENGTH. ALL DISTANCES SHOWN ARE
GROUNO DISTANCESANDARE IN FEETAND DECIMALSTHEREOF, DUE TO ROUNDING THE SUM OF
INOIVIDUAL DIMENSIONS MAY NOT EOUAL THE OVERALL DIMENSION.

THIS FINAL MAP CONTAINS 60.239! ACRES GRO$ CONSISTING OF 135 RESIDENTIAL LOTS,
6 LflERED LOTSAND 1 LARGELOT(38).

"GEOTECHNICru ENGINEERING STUDY - UPDATE FOR REGENCY AT FOLSOM UNCH"
(PROJECTNO.EITO$.q2) WAS PREPARED BY YOUNGDAHL CONSULTING GROUP, INC IN MAY,
2019 AND IS AVAILABLE FOR PUELIC INSPECTION AT BE CIW OF FOLSOM COMMUNIN
DryELOPMENT DEPARTMENT.

ALL FRONT RESIOENTIAL LOT CORNERS WILL BE SET IN THE SIDEWALKWITH A 1.OO F@T OFFSET
ON THE SIDE PROPERry LINE EMNDED WIH A 1'DIAMEER BMSS DISC STAMPEO "LS 92S'.
WHERE SIDEWALK IS OETACHED, FRONT CORNERS WILL BE SET IN THE SIDEW&K ON frE SIDE
LOT LINE WITH A 7.00 FOOT OFFSET WITH A 1" DIAMETER BmSS DISC STNPED 'LS 9265" (SEE
DETAILSON SHEET3).

RAR RESIDENTIAL LOr CORNERS W|LL BE SETAS FOLLOWS (UNLESS SHOm OTHERWISE)
5.1. FoR LOTS 25-29,3343,5091,94107, COMMoN LINES OF 4946,47/4E, 110/111, 114/115 N0

REAR NGLE POINT OF LOT 110 WLL BE SET WTH A 
'8'REBAR 

AND PUSTIC CAP STAMPED
'LS 926t.

5.2. FoR LOTS 1-24. 108. 10S. 111-r13. 117-135. THE COMMON LIN€S OF r1r116 WLL gE SET WfrH
A 4,@ FOOT OFFSET ON THE SIDE LOT LINE WITH A 

'A'REBAR 
AND PBSTIC CP STAMPED

"LS 9205' (SEE DETAIL ON SHEil 3)-
5.3. FORTHECOMMONLTNESOFLOTS2930/3385,30/31.31132Mt&47t49,4!4t49t5A,92t93AND

RAR ANGLE POINTS OF LOTS 1,9,10,24,91 ffiICH FALL WIAN A MASONRY
SOUND/RETAINING WALL. WILL BE SET WtrH A 3/4' BRASS TAG STAMPED 'LS 9265' TO THE
FACE OF WALL 2.OO FOOTAAOVE GROIND OR ON TOP OF TH€ WALL.

20. PROPERil SUBJECT TO frE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENT ENTfrLED
'FIRSTNENDEDAND RESTATED TIER 1 OEVELOPMENTAGREEMEM'RECORDED JULY 15.2014, IN

BOOK 20I40715, AT PAGE 426 OF OFFICAL RECORDS,
. D@UMENT(S) DECLARING MODIFICATONSTHEREOF RECORDED JANIARYA,2016AS

BMK 201@129, PAGE0381 OF OFFICIALRECORDS,
. DOCUMENT(S)OECLARINGMODIFICATONSTHEREOFRECORDEDJANUARY29,20l6AS

B@K 201@129. PAG€ 0382 0F OFFTCAL RECOmS.
. 'PARTIAL SSIGNMENT ANO SSUMPTION AGREEMENT REUTIVE TO THE FOLSOM SPECIFIC

PUN AMENDED ND RESTATED TIER 1 DryELOPMENT AGREEMEM' RECORDED AUGUST
24.2020. tN800K20200824.PACE08930FOFFtCt[RECORDS.

. DOCUMENT(S) DECURING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBEB 6. 2O2O N
B@K20201006, PAGE 1311 0F OFFTCBL RECOmS,

21, PROPERry SUBJECT IO AN EASEMENT OVER SAID UND FOR AVIdTION AND INCIDENTAL
PURPOSES, AS GMNTED TO THE COUMY OF SACRAMENTO AND THE CIry OF FOLSOM. IN DEED
RECORDEDJULYl5,Al4 FOOK)20140715(PAGE)427.ANo(BoOK)20140715(PAGE)5$,OFF|C|AL
RECORDS.

22, PROPERry SUBJECT TO THE TERMS ND PROVISIONS CONTAINEO IN THE OOCUMENT qNTILED
'FIRSTAMENDEDANO ESTATEDTIER 1 OEVELOPMENTAGREEMENT'RECORDEDJULY 15 2014. IN

BOOK 201 40715. AT PAGE 552.
. .PAMAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT REBTIVE TO THE FOLSOM SPECIFIC

PUN AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENTAGREEMENI'RECORDED MAY 29,2015,
IN BOOK 201505A, PAGE 1409 AND RE-RECORDED JULY 9. 2015, IN BOO( 2OI5O7O9, AT PAGE
1409.

. DOCUMENT(S) DECURING MOOIFICATIONS THEREOF RECOROED JULY 11, 2017 AS BOOX
20170711, PAGE 0163 0F OFF|C|AL RECORDS.

. 'PARTIAL ASSIGNMENI AND NSUMPTION AGREEMENT REUTIVE TO THE FOLSOM SPECIFIC
PSN AMENDEO AND RESTATEO TIER 1 DryELOPMENT AGREEMENT" RECORDED
AUGUsT24. ?020. AS B@K202@824, PAGEO8gOF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

. OOCUMENT(S) DECLARING MODIFICATPNS THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 6, 2O2O AS
BOOK 4201006, PAGE 0733 OF OFFICA RECORDS.

23. PROPERfl SUBJECT TO SSEMENTS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONSS CONTAINED IN ffE DEED
FROM AEROJET ROCKMYNE. INC,, AN ONIO CORPORATION FORMERLY KNOWN AS
AEROJET.GENEML CORPOMTION, AS GMNTOR, TO OAK AVENUE HOLDINGS. LLC, A DEUWARE
LIMITED LIA8IL1fr COMPANY, AS GMNTEE, RECOrcED MAY 29. 2015, (BOOK) 20150529 (PAGE)
1402, ANo REtrECORDED JULY 9,2015, (BOOK) 201507@ (PAGE) 143 AND JULY 14, 2015, (BmK)
20150714 (PAGE) 0682, ALL OF oFFICIAL RECORDS.

24, THE LAND LIES WIIH THE BOUNDARIES OF PROPOSED SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICTNO 

'
25. PROPERry SUSJECT TO frE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENI ENTITLED

'AGREEMENT AFFECTING REAL PROPERfl (NCLUSIONARY HOUS]NG AGREEMENT)' PER
DOCUMENT NUMBER 2021 040206 1 5.

2

3

NAME

TtrLE]

DATE

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICER COMPLETING BIS CERTIFICATE VERIFIES ONLY THE
IDENTIfr OF THE INDIVIDUI WHO SIGNED IHE DOCUMENT IO WICts THIS CERTIFICAIE IS
ANACHFD ANN NOTTHF TRIITHRN NFSS AC'I IRACY OR VAI IOIN OF THAT DO'IIMFNT

5.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNW OF

oN________j__ BEFORE ANOTARYPUBLIC

PERSONALLY APPARED 

-

WHo PRoVED To ME oN nE BAsIs oF sATIsFActr-VED-Ei6m-EEETR-36i1s)re-
NAME(S) IS/ARE SUESCRIBEO TO THE WTHIN INSTRUMENT ANO ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT
HESHEtrHEY EXECUTED BE SAME IN HIS/HEMHEIR AUTHORIZEO CAPACfr(IES). AND THAT 8Y
HIS/HERtrHEIR SIGNAruRE(S) ON frE INSRUMENT IH€ PERSON(S), OR IHE EMIry UPON BEHALF OF
WHICN THE PERSON(S)ACTED, EXECUTED THE INSTRUMENT.

I CERTIFY UNDER PENALfl OF PERJURY UNDERTHE LAWS OFTHESTATE OFC&IFORNIATHATTHE
FOREGOING PffiAGUPH ISTRUEAND CORRECT,

WITNE$ MYHAND AND OFFICIALSEAL.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11,

LOTS DANO ESHOWN HEREON SHAL! BEGRANTED IN FEE SIMPLE 
'OTHE 

PRESERVEAI FOLSOM
MNCH OWNERS ASSOCATION S COMMON ARES FOR PRIVAE RECRilTION AND FOR THE
EENEFITAND GENEML USE OF IHE LOTS SHOWN HEREON.

SIGNATURE PRINTEO NAME

wPRTNCTPALPLACEOFBUSTNESSIS_COUNry

W CWMISSION EXPIRES:_MYCOMMISSION NUMBER: _

LOIS A. B AND C ARE UNDSCAPE LOTS IO BE DEEDED IN FEE TO THE CIry OF FOLSOM AND
MAINTAINED EYTHE CIryOF FOLSOM.

LOT F ISAN OPEN SPACELOTANDWLL BE DEEDED IN FEE TOTHECIryOF FOLSOM BYSEPAffiTE
DOCUMENl.

URGE LOI 38 15 FOR FUTURE PHASED DEVEIOPMEN] AND IS TO BE PHNED CONSISTENT WtrH
THE DEVELOPERS AGREEMENT

THIS MAP IS A PORTION OF ftE VESTING TENTATIVE MAP SUBDIVISION, TOLL BROTHERS AT
FOLSOM RANCH RESOLUTION NO. 1O4M PASSEO AND AOOPTED 8Y THE CIfl COUNCIL, CW OF
FOLSOM, MARCH 10,2020,

THE UND DESCRIBEO HEREIN LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARY OF THE CIil OF FOLSOM COMMUNIfr
FACtLtlES D|STRiCT 20131 (WATER FAC|L|TIES & SUPPLY), AS O|SCLoSED 8Y THAT CERTAIN
ASSESSMENT MAp, RECORDEO OECEMBER 30,2013, AS (BOOK) 20121230 (PAGE) 31r, ANO tS

SUBJECTTO ANY FUTUREASSESSMENTTHEREOF,

lHE SNO DESCRIBED HEREIN LIESWITHIN THE BOUNDARY OFTHE CIfl OF FOLSOM COMMUNIry
FACILITIES D1STRICT NO.17 {WILLOW HILL PIPELINE), AS DISCLOSED BY IHAT CERTAIN
ASSESSMENT MAP, RECORDED FESRUMY 24. 2015, AS (BOOK) 20150224 (PAGE) 424. AND IS

SUBJECTTO ANY FUTUREASSESSMENTTHEREOF.

26, PROPERry SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENT ENTITLEO
"DECSRATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS, TOLL BROIHERS AT FOLSOM NCH .

BENEFICIARY'S STATEMENT
OAKAVENUE HOLOINGS, LLC, A OELAWARE LIMIED LASILII COMPANY, AS BENEF1CIARY UNOER DEEO
OF TRUST ND ASSIGNMENT OF RENTS WTH flMRE FITING, RECORDED AUGUST 24, 2020, AS
DOCUMENT NUMSER 2O2OO82@89I, AND AMENDED / MOOIFIED BY DOCUMENT NUMBERS 202101220065,
2O22O7O5O7g, ANO 2022070S796, OFFICIAL RECORDS HEREBY CONSENIS IO THE RECORDATION OF
THISMAPANDTHESUSDIVISIONOFTtsEWDSSHOWNHEREON,

12,

14.

27.

PMSES 2 AND 3' RECORDED MARCN 17, 2022 AS DOCUMENT NO. 202203171115 AND OfrO8ER 19,

2022. AS DOCUMENT NO. 202210r$586. BOTH OF OFFICTAL RECORDS.

PURSUANT TO SECTION S434(G) OF THE SUBDVISION ACT THE FILING OF IHIS FIN{ MAP SHALL
CONSTITUTE ABANDONMENT OF THE ASEMENTS LISTEO BELOW, NOT SHOWN HEREON, THAT

wlTHlN THE SUUECT PROPERnT
69 IRREVOCBLE OFER OF DEDICA]]ON OVER OAK AVENUE AS SHOWN ON 223 PM 5 (NEW
RIGHT.OF-WAY DEDICATED WITH TH IS MAP)
PRilOUSLYDEDICATED RIGHTOF-WAY FOR ROAD AND UTIL]TIES (MNGNI PARMAY) PER
20170329 OR 0533 ALONG frE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF PARCEL 58 PER DN

20211r?41370 (NEW RTGHTOF-WAY DEDICAEo WIH nE MAP)

THE WO LIES WITHIN THE BOUNORIES OF PROPOSEO SCHOOL FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 3 AS DISCLOSED BY THAT CERTAIN ASSESSMENT MAP, RECORDED JULY 7 2006 IN

BOOK 103, PAGE 9 OF MAPS OF NSESSMENT AND COMMUNIT FACILtrIES, AS (BOOK) 20060707
(PAGE) ffi2, OFFICIAL RECORDS,

THE UND DESCRIBEO HEREIN LES WITHIN THE BOUNOARY OFTHE CIfl OF FOLSOM, COMMUNIW
FACIL1TIES DISTRICT NO, 18 (FOLSOM PLAN AREA . WIDE IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVNES). N
DISCLOSED BY THAT CERTAIN ASSESSMENT MP. RECORDED OECEMSER 9, 2015 AS
(BOOK) 20151209 (PAGE) 427. ANO IS SUUECT TO ANY FUTUREASS$SMENTTHEREOF.
. DOCUMENT(S) DECLARING MODIF]CATIONS THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 16, 2018 AS

BOO( 20181116, PAGE 065 0F OFFICIAL RECORDS.

B.

NAME:

Ti[E:
DATE

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OftER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERTIFICAE VERIFIES ONLY THE
DENNry OF THE INDIVIDUA WHO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO WHICH NIS CERTIFICATE IS
ANACHFD ANN NOT THF TRI )THF( N NFSS ACCI ]RACY OR VAI I DIW OF THAT DOC1 ]MFNT

15. THE UNO DESCRIEED HEREIN LIESWITHIN THE BOUNOMY OFTHE CIfl OF FOLSOM COMMUNIW
FACtLtTtES OISTR|CT NO. 23 (FOLSOM UNCH) TMPROVEMENT ARA NO.7, RECORDED OEC€MBER
20, 2Q21 AS BOOK 20211220. PAGE 0571 0F oFFCIAL RECORDS. BASIS OF BEARINGS

STATEOF CALIFORNiA

COUNTYOF

16, PROPERTY SUSJECT TO COWNNTS. COND1TIONS AND RESTRICTIONS AS CONTAINED IN TH€
DEEO FROM CATHERINE HOLTHOUSE MANGIN1 ND ALBERT O. MANGINI (WHO ACOUIRED TITE N
ALBERT D. MNAGIN0, W|FE AND tsUSBANO, RECORDED SEflEMBER 12, 2@2, (8OOK) 2@20912
(PAGE) 282, OFFTCAL RECOROS AND RE-RECORDED MY 9,2007, (BOOK) 20070509 (PAGE) 525,
OFFICIAL RECOROS.

17. PROPERTY SU&ECT TO COVENNTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS, ASSESSMENTS,
LIENS, CHARGES, TERMS ND PROVISIONS PER 20041124 O.R. 1838, THE EFFECT OF A DOCUMENT
nlED 'auficulM DEED", RECORDED MAY 29 2015, (BOOK) 20150529 (PACE) 1400, OFF|C|AL
RECORDSAND RE-RECORDEDJULY9.2O15, (8@K)20150709 (PAGE) 140], OFFICIAL RECORDS.

18, PROPERrySU&ECTTO EROJflSPECIAL PLNNINGORDIMNCE PER BOOK20@0323, PAGE 1516
OF OFFICIAL RECORDS,

19. PROPERrySUBJECTTOTHETERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONSANDSTIPUUTIONS AS CONTAINEO
IN THE AGREEMEM ENTtrLED 'UATER SUPPLY AND FACILITIES FINNCING PUN ND
AGREEMENT', BY ND BEMEN THE CIryOF FOLSOM, AND FOLSOM REAL ESTAIE SOWH, LLC. ET
AL, REcoRoEo JANUaY 24 201 3, {B@K) 201 &1 21 (PAGE) 1 382, oFFlclAL REcoRosr AMENoMENT
TO ftE WATER SUPPLY AND FACILITIES FINNCING PUN AND AGREEMENT, RECORDED JUNE 3,

414, BOOK 20140603, FAGE 959, OFFCIro RECORDS| AND AMENDMENT TO THE WAER SUPPLY
AND FACILITIES FIMNCING PUN AND AGREEMENT, RECOROED JUNE 3. 2014. BOOK 20140603,
PAGE 960, OFFICIAL RECORDS,

THE ESRING NORIH 00"46'03' WEST BEMEEN FOUND MONUT4ENTS ON THE WST LINE OF SECTiON
20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, SNGE 8 ffiT, MOUNT DIABLO MERIDIAN A5 SHOWN ON THE PARCEL MAP
FILED FOR RECOrc ON OCTOBER 11, 2012, IN B@K 218 G PARCEL MAPS, AT PAGE 17, SACMMENTO
COUNflRECORDS ISfrE BNIS OF BEARINGS FORTHIS MAP.

ON- EEFORE ME,-, ANOTNY PUBLIC

PERSONALL" 49OEARE]
WHO PROVEO TO ME ON THE BASIS OF SATISFACTORY ryPENCE TO 8E THE PERSON(S) WHOSE
NAME(S) IS/AR€ SUBSCRIBED TO THE WNIN NSTRUMENT AND ACNOWLEDGEO TO ME THAT
HSSHEtrHfl EXECUED THE SAME IN HFiHEMHEIR AUfrORIZED CAPACIry(IES), AND THAT BY
HIS/HEMHEJR SIGNATURE(s) ON THE INSTRUMENTTHE P€RSON(S), OR THE ENNry UPON BEilLF OF
WHICH THE PERSON(S) ACTED, EXECUTEDTHE INSTRUMENT. F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A.

BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN GNT DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 24,2021 AS
DOCUMEN] NO.202111241370, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMEMO COUNfl. BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONS 19 &20,TOWNSHIP9NORIN, RANGES SST, M,D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

I CERTIFY UNOER PEMLfr OF PERJURY UNOER ffE LAWS OF IHE STAIE OF CALIFORNIATUT IHE
FOREGONG PARAGMPH IS MUE AND CORRECT.

WITNESS W HANDAND OFFICII SAL.

SIGNATIRE PRINTEOMME

W PRINCIPALPUCE OFEUSINESS IS COUNry

MY COMMISSION
DECEMBER 2022

SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND AND REFERENCES

COMMISSION NUMBER: _ mACIAY&somPs
flotx@5 PwxE6 tuRBos

cAsor 06ftise SHEET 2 OF 12

Page 502

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



RESULTANT PARCEL 3A
DN 201905301373

(PARCEL 5 - 223 PM 5) frl:ua*m',";::t'n"
LEGEND

PARCEL 14
2J6 PM l0 ej

q
o
g
q

()
AC

BM

BNOY

c/L
DCR

DE

DN

EVA

toD
LE

(oA)

OR

PAE

PUE

(R)

RS

SMUD

/*_t\:/

---

SECTION CORNERAS NOTED

t8'REBffi WB USTTC CP STNPED "LS fl60" rO BE Sfl PER (1)

FOUNO 

'O'RE8AR 
WITH PUSTIC CAP STNPEO'1.S.45S'PER 216 PM 17

SET STANDARD CIryOF FOLSOM MONUMENTWL STAMPED'LS 9265'

sfl3/4"IRON PIPEWITH PUSTIG PLUG STAMPEO'LS 92S'
SET 5/8" REMR WTts PUSTIC CAP STNPED'TS 92S"

SET 3/4" BMSS TAG STAMPED "LS 9265"

DIMENSION POINT +
APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF
DIRT ROrc ACCESS EASEMENT
PER 3070 0R 628

ri

it
E6'IOO PER

oN2017032W527 /PER

tDN-
SMUD ASEMENTPER69'PDPER

238M5
RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE

ACRES

BOUNOARY

CENERLINE
DECSMTION OF CONWNTSANO RESTRICIIONS

DUNAGE SSEMENT
DOCUMENT NUMBER. OR
EMERGENCY WHICLE ACCESS EAS€UENT

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION

$NOSCAPE EASEMENT

OVEULL

OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SACMMENTO COUNfl
PEDESNIAN ACCESS EASEMENT

_L ( 0 a0 160 320::
SC[E: 1"=160'

69 toDPER --l
DN20l?03296$ |

JAFf^1i)',"#J3,?

PER
2017032S59

REFERENCES
(1) 236
(2) DN

(3) DN

(4) DN

\5) a3
(6) DN
(7) 218

201 90S0 1 373 (OM AVE LU)
201 90e80s92 (W TO CrYl
202111241370 OOLL LU)

<6

,i; q

95 RF:'-o r

'rN i1

r6 F
ES

28 PROPERryLINE

PARCEL MP
PUBLC UNLIfl ilSEMENT
MDhL BWING
RECORD OFSUWEY
RIGfr{F,WAY
SOUARE EET
SACMMENIO MUNICIPAL UTILIry OSTRICT

PM5
2019080809S (RMTO CtrY)

w&.1111)

I

t_oa l{-a
Ei lEi
€nlEn

I

SHEET INDEX NUMBER

BOUNDARY

LOTLINE

LOT LINE & RIGfr OF WAY

EXISTNG RIGHT-OF-WAY
CENTER LINE

5'

?;
lie

f DIA BMS DISKryP,

L

c/L,4

q

5

6'

FRONT LOT CORNER. DETACHED SIDEWALK

TYPICAL 7'OFFSET

.1614)

s.6714)

SECTION LINE
ADJACENT PROPERry LINE

123.e914)

92.r314) SHEETINDEXLINE

$.6r(4)
BMSS DIS((ryP)

I

I
12.s'PUE

"t
e lF

3les te
E tc
"l

m:-l

FRONT LOT CORNER. ATTACHED SIDEWALK
TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

sr',oopen J
DN 2017032S533 '

I

-l-
zl

SUfrERS RIGHB
RELINOUSED (6)

RAR LOT LINE

o

e

REBRCAP

REAR LOT CORNER
ilPICAL4'OFFSET

N65"09'55',V
18.e(4) r 05.94'(4)

N86"0714'E SEE DETAIL "A'
ON SHEET 11

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

BEING PARCEL 58 OESCRIBEO IN TMT CERTAIN GWT DEED RECORDED NOVEMAER 24, 2O2I AS

DOCUMENT NO.202111241370, OFFICIAL RECOrcS OF SACMMENTO COUNfl, BEING A PORTION OF

SECNONS 19E20,TOWNSHIP 9 NORTN, RANGES AST. M,D.B.M.

CITYOF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTOcoUNTY . CALIFORNIA

100.0013x4)
I

PmcEL 2 I59RS26 ,

FOUND 2Jl2' BMSS CAP DECEMBER 2022PER (4 SIAMPED AS

I

-1

irq:

/

\

N73"03'02W

115
PER

LOT

ir-i:

DN 202203171
MR

I
\

LOT F

LOT E

I

,s-
te
IE

103

92

90

91

93

9

94

102

99

101

97

100

107106

r

L

=
Iooo
Bo
3

115

114

76

77

64

7473

67

72

80

68

71

81

69

82

n

84

3

42

7

85

87

86

49

44

33

26

25

48

UU
d
F

oI

24

65

4

47

10

11

78
79

267

32

28

30

12

21

13

20

14

19

15

18

16

17 I

38

129135 130t34 131132133

55 60595857

4

7036

5BOULDER

GRANITE POINT

45

0
4t

o
2

LARGE LOT 38

LARGE LOT 38

I

lr

I

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES AND BASIS OF BEARINGS
mACxtY&somPs
flotics PWx4s luffiorc@5CdeR6h' subraRddl!.cae$73 ps)ftjrs SHEET 3 OF 12

Page 503

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



I

I

I

--l

I

I

I

F
L-

/ o"""o*,** ca"nn,,"a o, ot"l

l--AccEss 
EASEMENTPER s70 0R628

ROAO I
I

I

I
I

*SMUDEASEMENT
, PER 870m6 0.R.1617

PARCEL 14
236 PM 10

I

l

RESULTANT PARCEL 3A
DN 201905301J73

(PARCEL 5 - 223 PM 5)

69'PDPER
23PM5

58'IO0PER -{
DN 2017032S527

------:L-::- -- -- ---- -- ----- - - ---+
It

I

I

\_-
-!-

3q PUE/PASLE PER
0N202203251m---l

I

I
I

30'ruE/PELE PER
DN 20220n5162

I

I

----l
I

+
PER N89'm'06'E(2)(4) 1541 &IoAXBNDY)

PARKIVAY

I

I

I

IE

N89"06!6'E

4S2.50' U
Eo

r'$
t
E

LOT C
6,179SF

PUE/LWAE

35

49

I 69'IOD PER
I 0N20t7032S533

PUE
LE

134

c
E
o
U
fz
U

o

<a.

,inq

EEN

d=&
e-{

20

I

ro
F
ul
t!tI
U)
ul
uJa

A=3'4!3' BOULDER CREEK WAY -\.
=4T€:- 

-LR=29m 4:364i43i L=16 &,

N89'06!6"E 722.97
103.S

319.06

-leF-lz5"e-63rr
00":!

bl
xl
pl

s/

49 x'

22'

I

ls

22'

f
3,

J

€l

56

30'
F0utF
U(,

oI
@

22'

39 U
toFgD

46 69 68

3E
14 44 43 42 41 40 39

rz.s pue -J f-12.5'PUE

POINT DRIVE
SEE SHEET 7

GATEWAY DRIVE Curue Table

L€nglh

27.27'

13.24'

1 1_69'

27.O2

13.24

27.27'

24.64'

D6b

4\A'23

4'38',23',

22'1954',

6a 13r

4'3823',

4'3923',

6a1',31'

35.00'

17.m

30.00

2S.00

1700

35.00'

22ArO

cl

c2

c3

c4

c5

c6

Line Table

lssfr

10.00'

15.79'

10!q

B&r n9

N00'53SU

N05'21'23'E

N00'ssv

L1

L2

L3
+

F|NAL MAP (PN 1e-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEEO RECORDED NOWMBER 24. 2021 AS

DOCUMENT NO,202111241370, OFFOru RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNfl, BEING A PORTION OF
SECTIONS I9 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH. RANGEE ilST, M.D,B,M.

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNry . CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 4 OF 12

4.m'

a-,J;:--
lr
I I 8.339 sFrl
| +18.5 ruE
ri r1'PAE

---t-
125 PUE

52
4,725 SF

49
4,870 SF

A=3'12!9^

A=3"{43"
L:14-90'

48
6,527SF

2
4.860 SF4,860 SFI

4,982 SF

A=30'505Y

R=30.@'4.22'1954'

11
6,071 SF

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES
*!#" m_mk:g!*#.*

Page 504

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



PARCEL 1A

2J6 PM 10

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

30 PUSPMEPER
DN rc2432515@

L__
28'IOD PER

T-
28
DN

67 66

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 5 OF 12

0204080::
SCALE: 1"=40'

2? /2s pUE

Line Table

Lsnglh

3.15'

24-Q9'

10 03'

46.21'

gsing

N85'479U

N35'08'41'E

N35'0439^E

t1

12

B

t4

Curve Table

5314

59.6

D6lb

8"0d00'

8'06'00'

378.00

42ZN

c1

c2

BOULDER CREEK WAY

65

MANGINI PARKWAY

64

SEE SHEET 6

--i-

Yoot
=a

LOT C
26,179SF

PUE/LEFAE

MANZANITA
COURT

st
F
UJ
UJ
Ia
tJJ
LU
U)

( L1
Prn 99

&

135

69

r

oI

122

I

22

.t1

;t
.&/

I
DCR. ARil2A PER
DN 202101S$6

u
to
Yoo
&
=d

2? _\
81.66N89'3?'54',E

LOT F
13S4C

OPEN SPACE

s

s

55

58 63

4,
PARCEL

2021 1 1 1370
28

24
5)2235(PMCEL

DNI

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 3A
BEING PARCE! 58 DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECOROED NOVEMSER 24, 2O2I N
DOCUMENT NO.202111241370. OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SCSMENTO COUNfl. BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONS 19 &20, TOWSHP9 NORTH, MNGE 8 ilST, M,D,B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

+
lnmmY&s0mPs
4ottffi Pffia sffir@sftdeR4'dr r!bt0 F.d[ 4s673 €G)tlile SHEET 5 OF 12

L=3.08' 
)

12.5PUE --t

62
7,3S SF

60
6,300sF56

6,300sF

--T---
12.5'PUE

E2'13'42',

130
6,481 SF1U

7,020sF

12.5 PUE

l__ __ _

Page 505

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



SEE SHEET 5 F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 34.
BEING PARCEL 58 OESCRIBED ]N THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED NOVEMEER 24, 2021 AS
DOCUMENT NO.202111241370, OFFOru ffiCORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONS 19&20, TOMSHIP 9NORft,RANGEE AST. M,0.8.M.

CITYOF FOLSOM . SACMMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

mtGItY&s0mPs
dctilEs PNi&a 3uRvffi

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 6 OF 12

5958 6056 62
P"l

r

N89'06m'E s1

N89'06'6'E3S.S

GRANITE POINT DRIVE

a2

4

69 e'/ |

:*/ /
.k---'/ /

-a^- / /
--so-v i

f-qQ / i
eFl

rV

l

I
s

4

SY

+
70

5/
fr

dl

B:

I

0204080

-

ts
F
uJ
tu
Ia
UJ
Ula

I

I N7B'41 07'w

I ursJ /

I rl*l
lil
r6t
l=lI bt

SALE: 1'=4O'

Curue Table

L€nglh

s.{'
s9.66'

I 1.69

2.97

13.08'

$.55

Delh

8"06'00

8.0d00'

22'19V"

24.58 36'

8"0600'

378.00'

42.00'

30.00

50.00'

30.m'

4m_00

c1

c2

a
c5

c6

Line Table

27.@'

12.49

923

6.97'

king

N72'$ 2ilW

N49'015rWF)

N07'3350"E

N15'52'07'E

N00'0855"W

L1

a
L3

L4

L5

SHEET 6 OF 12

22'

LOT F
13!524C

OPENSPACE

/ DCR-ARS 1

foNzoaa3171

]2-5PUE

__l_

DCR -ARA 14 PER
0N2022101905S PARCEL 28

DN 202r 1 1241370
(PARCEL 5 - 223 PM 5)

rL3
F-o
I

)PER-I I1ls i

t
--T--

12.5 PlE

^.o.ol\:t'/

.N,

't +. F
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

'9

88

s6€
s&€.Frs

SEE SHEET ,10

--'t --- .--,,,' '\,z 4,
a

11J Nm'57',26'E

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

sFJ
12.5'PUE 1

76
6,374

--l----
12.5'PUE

71
6S0SF

12,5 PUE

6368
6,&0sF

12.5'PUE

_____L

L=17,35

122
6,46s SF

teS,PuF

121
6.300sF

N02'214'W 118
6,726SF

LOT D
4,s3 SF

l=21 32'

116
8,208 SF

L=1.66'

r2.5'PUE
--\-

'115
8 336 SF

Page 506

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS. SEE SHEEI 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES MANG
SEE SHEET 4

PARKWAY 5!

I

56
@

,,"1
50 51 52 53 18.5 55

49
N89"6'06^E 381

n I

l--12.5 PUE
47 U

Eo
39 30'

13 rzs'pue --l

FUU
EF
@ 68

U(, l:

o
@

n'

Ig

f- -----\€,GRANITE POINT DRIVE N8e"o6'06^E
-8.91s - -..1- 390.Sf- ii 12.5'PUE N89.S'6E

<G'

db d

qEN

=6 
h

=N 
r

eg

a

F

LI

zl

I

I
I

I

I

t-g

I

*lUI
tlbl
drol<l

I

I

ig
t-

I

71

(o
F
ul
uJIa
uJ
ula-9

b5 +-3 5

oo
E

a

261.5(OA)

L 69 IOD PER
DN417032S$3 =t

d
U)zU
?
Y
o

81

185 18.S

3

N29'4d5A E A=36"3/,43, tu

^ L=173 89, tu
-e--;.c-<_!

"v\@
_!3q'- - q07-5

ol<i
a1

PATINA WAY s

3
ai
gl

1

i

=
(- LOT E

SEE SHEET 9

-T--r
I

1?.5 PUE --]
23 1

22 12.5 ruE
39 30

PUE

IV

2 22

Curue Table

Lnglh

15.74

14.4'

19.26

20.73'

137.n'

19.99

19.99

Delb

1'52'2f

1"344"

2"17'24',

2\728'

41'5155'

v,37'14

x17 2t
2'172t

481.50'

518.50

481.50'

518.50',

250.00

229.40'

s0.00'

500.00

ci

Q

c3

u
c5

c6

c6

c7

26
-dnrcwnv 

oRrve
111.@

DRIVE F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

+
6/ 12.5pUE r

22'

Line Table

L€nglh

14.25'

4.00'

14.25'

4.m'

B&ins

N00'5354^W

N89'06!6"E

N00's'g w

N89.0406',E

L1

L2

L3

L4

SEE SHEET 8
GATEWAY DRIVE BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED NOV€MBER 24,2021 AS

DOCUMENT NO 202111241370 OFFICAL RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUW, BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONSl9&20,TOWNSHIP9NGTH,RANGESAST,M.O.&M,

CIryOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 7 OF 12

PE1f

L

PUE

12,9PUE

_L___

69
E,747 SF

_)
12.5'PUE

-_tr_

r,'fo, I

tl
!l
tl

40
4,950 SF

46
4,932SF

--L-';;:

N8S'06'06'E

70
9,028 SF

L-i85 PUE

T-F 11'%E

12.5'PUE

82
8,495 SF

L___l_

ll
_J-r

SF
38

11'PAE
18.5 PUEl

I
I

6,917

---T | --,

,1'iTr-

9,495SF

R=30O0

L=1 1.69'

u
8.632 SF

85
12,894SF

0204080

--:SLE: l"-4O'
nAClhY&sonPs
ildNEF Uf,B 9UffiOE

h,c^sm €$rtlne

Page 507

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



I\4ANGINI PARKWAY SEE SHEET 7 E

I
l

I

I

a,
rl

i

I

22 n lrl
l--12.5'PlE _' F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

22

22
12.5'P!E -l EEiNG PARCEL 58 DESCRISED IN ftAT CERTAIN GMM DEED RECORDEO NOVEMBER 24, 2021 N

DOCUMENT NO.2O21I1?4I370, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF $CMMENTO COUNW. BEING A PORTDN OF

SECTISS 19&20,TOWSHIP 9NORTH, MNGES EAS, M.D,B,M,= Fr2.s PUE

Uo
@

o
5
@2'

F
UuE
F

CITYOF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

39' = lnACl([Y&s0mPS
EreNEru PNXM SUffi
i0scG*6R4.M sd.s0 ena oss4 pr6)rlrF

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 8 OF 12
22

22

-+
Curue Table

LengS

1324

27.27'

13.24'

27.21'

4'823"

4'92!
&"3823'

4"3823'

17.00'

35.m

17.00'

3500

cl

c2

g

Line Table

4.00'

400'

Beadng

N00'50'08'w

N00.s'08'w

LI

v

GATEWAY DRIVE
60.00

I

i=

r
I

RI

LOT E

LOT A 22' 2Z

15.50'

ts
ooo
Eo

=

F
uJ
ul
I
U)
LrJ
tJ.la

<h

;5d
gH N

Eo'

d= Iss

49
10.00 1 4.00' I-----t-----

12.5'PUE

=E
d
u)zu
?

o

+
PUE

96

o20{ao

--:SCALE: 1"=40'
69 IOD PER

DN2017032$533

94 9J

LARGE LOT 38
13.4204C

22' 12.5 PUE.
I

49 2A' 22

---!c6:!q10:E391!e- --l
o

F
tll
ulIa
ul
ula

39 30'

<oE
FsS

Nd

COPPERWOOD
R=m.m'

L=11.69'

106

LARGE LOT 38
13.420rAC

39'

EAST OUMER CORNER OFSECTION 19
NOTHiNG FOUND, NOTHING Sfl

12.5 PUE

4,725 SF

I

-'1
I

I

I

104
6,660SF

101
11,728 SF

L=l159,

R=30.00'

100
7,$8SF

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

SEE SHEET 12
SHEET 8 OF 12

Page 508

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



92
7,691 5F

7,161 SF

12.5'PUE

90
7,161 St

I
I

I

,51
6,300sF

SEE SHEET 7 YO,uot>E6P>16
dl

SEE SHEET 6
I

84 ll a285 81
12.5 PUEL______ ---{ EO

rto
79__.@___

rI

I

I

--t

,9
86 ,i

2/ ,'
2'

12.5'PUE

+
114

87

) 22

F
Ud
E
FI
uro-F<l

o
6

=ooo
=o

=

11J

-t

r=

l=

I

I

I

I

I

I

IL rrz
!

F 12.5 PUE

o
F
lrl
I,JJ

Ia
ul
tU
U)

Curue Table

LsngS

1.9'

D6h

0.6's'978!0c1t
97

\

\
\
I

Line Table

Lenglh

1249'

Beadng

L1

@
F
tIl
tIl
Ia
ul
ul
U)

iz.s PUE --l

98
\

\,
\E
,t

111

+I

\

110
99

D
0204080

--:SruE: 1"=4O'

)
22

I

I
I
I

22

109
100

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)
TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

RANCH PHASE 3A
_-l

-usq.9qs!-39!29COPPERWOOD
I

I

I107

108
BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED IN TMT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED NOVEMBER 24, 2021 AS

DOCUMENT NO, 202111241370, OFFICI{ RECORDS OF SACMMENTO COUW, BEING A rcRTION OF
SECNONS I9 &20. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGES SST, M.D-B.M.I- 106

)

101
102 103 104

CITYOFFOLSOM I SACRAMENTOCOUNW . CALIFORNIA

SEE SHEET 8
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 9 OF 12

12_3PUE
105

SEE SHEET,lO

2

mAC[hY&s0mPS
ilNE6 UiS IURWOB
rcd hM FlsDtu. Sh rs,R6drh. dsm F6r$ne

Page 509

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



L-31.11'

I2,5'PUE

107
7,7mSF

R=978!0' A=0"394'

106
6,660SF

^br;>
p+

F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

EEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED N MT CEMAN GMNT DEED RECOROEO NOVEMEER 24, 2@1 S
DOCUMENT NO.202111241370, SFIChL RECOroS OF SACMMEMO COUNry, BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONS 19 & 20, TOWNSHIP 9 NORB, MNGE 8 gST, M,D.B.M,

clTYoF FoLSoM . SAGMMENTocoUNTY . CALIFoRNIA

%.
f,.

,"

l'.
12.5 PvE 

) SEE SHEET 6
88/

<3 / t)sPUE
114

mAGnY&s0mPS
ildEm ?urs 3ulM
rMcde@Dtu $brqtud!e ar$73 €16lmns

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 10 OF 12

=/o)
F
ul
ul-
U)
I,JJ
ula

89

3

F
2
N
I

/
90

I

I
LOT F

13.4524C
OPEN SPACE

ns'eve )

I
I
I
I

i
I +

91

\

I

\

rZ
\e

\3

\'
l

I

PARCET 28
DN 202111241370

(PARCEL 5 - 223 PM 5)

92

o2040ao

--:SALEi t"=40'

)
94

93

PUE

coynlo-8.D*SI'rae-
IU-\s-

I

I

I

I

I

6
F
ul
ul
I
o)
trl
uJ
a

- -T-
12.5 PUE

D

Fi

1

'r05 I

I

I

I

I

I

l
J

I

I

I

\L----r-
12.5 PUE

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES. BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

LARGE LOT 38
13.42HC

SEE SHEET 1 1 SHEET 10 OF ,12

Page 510

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



SEE SHEET 1O t----
I DN 202111241370

(PARCqL 5

-l
PARCEL 28

1r.5PUE]
22' ljrzs'eue 

tO8
22

t N57.15!7"W

t\
l\
t\\\
__L_-----

ILOT J

OF FOLSOM
DN

l-.=

Ng.2rq5E

\

o! NO.<

=

22J t7) d>
uq
s.N1A7

4814'
I

I

J

\ IL
s239 (o ) 16.3E(1)

\
I

I

(
I

i

\ ctlY OF

DETAIL'A"
1'= 20

J

PARCEL 28
DN 202111241370

OCR -ARS 1 ER
DN 20243171115

LOT F
13.62SC

t
c{

F
tll
ut
I
U'
UJ
lrJ
u)

LARGE LOT 38
13.420SC

1

OPEN SPACE

RELINOUSHED

-----"1-'

-r
- J2.5 P.U.E.

ABUNERS RGMS
-l

I

I

I

I

I

I

ABUMRS RIGHTS

SEE DETAIL "A"
ON THIS SHEET

- <rlH;.iff3t3"e-"-

- 
.- - ird'iiiilrEiirsdii-

\- Cn LrunS. qLOrOLOWl,t

l.?.X136?iFS !3i " " o* "'

s

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

+
F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

BEING PARCEL 58 DESCRIBED IN THAT CERTAIN GMNT DEED RECORDED NOWMBER 24. 2021 S
DOCUMENT NO,202111241370, OFFICII RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUW, BEING A rcRTION OF

SECNONS I9 &20. TOWNSHIP 9 NORTH, RANGE 8 ilST, M,D,B,M,

CITYOFFOLSOM . SACRAMENTOCOUNTY . CALIFORNIA

0 30 60 120::
SC[E: 1"=60'

lnACI0[Y&s0mPSq@EB 
'HIR 

IURWOB
rcxcdr* insotu tuh19F6* L. casft €!6)mjie

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 11 OF 12

Page 511

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



FOUNDZBMSS DISK
PER (1X5X7)STAMPED
NSHOM ;h;

105

I

-l

SEE SHEET 1O

I 108
F-i2.s'PUE

SEE SHEET 8

{
lr

2

t4

=
2l

3S' 30'

39 30'

04 105 106

LARGE LOT 38
13.42MC

w(3)

CITY OF FOLSOI'
--sAbi?A-NililidEoij-Nd

I

1o7 |

I

I 44.74'

L J

n=zroo.oo o=4.0139

\
_r-------

I LOTF
1

\

..!:g.1,18,(tl- 
.-' - "- "

dL
\
I

I

\ F
lll
ul
Ia
LrJ
lrJa*G.

O=h

FTN

76n

eq

B
t"
o
U
fz
U

Y
o

F
9

1/ oce-aaeateea,,/
t 

//- 

oN2oua317r15

t
0z

o
a

PERtoD59'-l

ABUreRS RIGHTS
RANOUISfrED(3)LOT A

76.53'

FOLSOM
DN 201S8080S3 I

APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF
DIRT ROAD ACCESS SSEMENT
3070 0R 62E

o 30 60 120

--E-
SC'[E: l-=60'

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES & BASIS OF BEARINGS, SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND & REFERENCES

+
F|NAL MAP (PN 19-091)

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM
RANCH PHASE 3A

BEING PARCEL 59 DESCRIBED IN TUT CERTAIN GWT DEED RECOROEO NOVEMBER 24,2021 N
DOCUMENT Nq 202111241370. OFFOru RECORDS OF SACRAMENTO COUW, BEING A PORTION OF

SECTIONS 19 & 20. TOWNSHIP 9 NORN, RANGE8 SST, M.D.8.M-

CIry OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIAI# FOUND2i/2'O.0.
BMSS CAP PER(7)

STAMPEDASSHOWN

mAo[itY&s0mPs
ROrtE* Dl.m* SURWOS
roscdB.R+fr' subr0Rse ses73 pomjre

DECEMBER 2022

SHEET 12 OF 12

Page 512

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 4

TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A VESTING
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 513

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



:l

ii
Affil@
\91--------*=F--

!l_5--.:-- -
JT

VICINITY MAP

A r*rar

I;
tl
t:
t!

lSlAWE MP NrcRUu

I :\ I

t..t! I I

-=-"--:--1
*An rF

Nd
3

ItI
:

t1

:g

COVER SHEET
VESTING TENTATTVE SUBDTVISION MAP

* To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch
-CL -.@

Li ; lr

LIL4IJ

MAGKAY&SltMPS

Page 514

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



PW\&- Ijim'PN

Llo

r*

-1.i., 
t

.-:---:

nl
i

PRELMINARY GRADING & DRAINAGEPLAN PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLANLOTTiNG PLAN

-:_-.Jl

-r..--
t[-{I

'+-

(!)'---*ltc- e-#!tu <W
-_::'ll

WEf Mffi

i_-l

#
TRADITIONAL HOMESITES

\ESTING TENTATTVE SUBDIVISION MAP

--(_- To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch

L

-1..1,
i'i

:;--:j
.I

+

cruNc,\ND

.o-.--',ei!fu

o.-..glel-

ffi W f#u

MACKAY&$tlmPs

Page 515

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 5

TABLE OF CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL
BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A VESTING

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Page 516

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROT}TERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-{191)

WEST OFEASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTH OTWHITEROCKROAD, EASTOF OAKAVENUEPARKWAV,ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY

GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY EnrTsrNra PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans and
the final map for the project. The
approved improvement plans are in

substantial compliance with the
preliminary grading and drainage
plans, the preliminary site and ufility
plans, the tree preservation/removal
plans, the preliminary landscape plans

and the community design guidelines.

The final map for this subdivision is ir
substantial compliance with the
approved Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I,M,B

Condition of Approval

Final Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community Development

Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced below:

I . General Plan/Specific Plan Amendmcnt Exhibit, dated Janvry 24,2020
2. Illustrative Master Plan Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
3. Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps, dated February 5,2020
4. Backbone Infrastructurc Exhibit, dated February 5, 2020

5. Conccptual Phasing Exhibit, dated Jantary 24, 2020
6. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated February 5, 2020

7. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated February 5, 2020
8. Preliminary Tree Preseruation/Removal Plan, dated February 5,2020
9. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated January 24,2020
I 0. Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated January 24, 2020
1 1 . Local Road Section Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
12. Trall System Modification Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
13. walkability Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
14. Trailhead and Signage Exhibit, dated Janvry 24, 2020
15. Dog Park Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
16. Model Home Complex Exhibit, dated Ianuary 24,2020
I 7. Product Mix Exhibit, dated January 24,2020
18. Streetscene Exhibit, dated August 30,2019
19. Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated August 30, 2019
20. Residential Design Details, dated August 30,2019
21. Color and Materials Board, dated August 30, 2019
22. Inclusionary Housing Plan, dated March'7, 2019

Thc Gcncral Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendmcnt, Development Agreemcnt Amcndments,

Planned Development Permit, Design Review, and Inclusionary Housing Plan are approved for the

development of a 8O4-unit single-family residential subdivision (Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch).

Implementation ofthe project shall be consistent with the above referenced items and these conditions of

Mitigation
Measure

#

Resolution No. 10670

Page I of l4l

Page 517

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)

WEST OF N,AST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF' WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF' OAK A TENUE PARKWAY, ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

GPA. SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY IrrlIISIN'l PI,AN
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

'Improvement plans for East Bidwell
Street, Mangini Parkway, Regency
Parkway and the subdivision have
been approved by the City and these

improvements are currently under
construction.

The smalllot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase 3A subdivision
was approved by the City Council on
March 10, 2020.

The small-lot vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Phase 3,A subdivision
was approved by the City Council on
March 10,2020.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the both the required on-site and off-
site improvements for the Phase 3.A

subdivision.

Responsible
Department

CD (PXE)

cD (P)

cD (E)

CD (PXE)(B)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

When
Required

G, I

M

M

OG

Condition of Approval

Plan Submittal
A11 civil engineering, improvement, and landscape and irrigation plans, shall be submitted to
the Community Development Department for review and approval to ensure conformance with
this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards and other requirements ofthe City of
Folsom.

Validity
This approval of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map shall be valid for a period of
twenty four months pursuant to Section 16. 16. 1 10A of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Subdivision Map Act. The term of the approved Inclusionary Housing Agreement shall track
the term of the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, as may be extended from time to
time pursuant to Section 16.16.110.A and 16.16.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code and the

Subdivision Mao Act.
FMC Compliance
The Small-Lot Final Map shall comply with the Folsom Municipal Code and the Subdivision
Map Act.

Development Rights
The approval of this Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map conveys the right to
develop. As noted in these conditions of approval for the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, the City has identified improvements necessary to develop the subject
parcels. These improvements include on and off-site roadways, water, sewer, storm drainage,

landscaoins. sound-walls. and other improvements.

Mitigation
Measure

#

2.

J

4.

5.

Resolution No. 10670

PageZ of 141

Page 518

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT CN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, trAST OF OAK A TENUE PARJ<WAY, AND

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AI\D INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PI,AN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The final map for the Phase 3,A

subdivision includes all required public
right-of-way and public utility
easements necessary to serve all lots in
the subdivision. The public right-of-
way and public utility easements are

shown on the final map. Thc
residential streets seruing the lots in
this subdivision are public and are

shown on the final map.
The required street names are shown
on the final map for the subdivision.

Responsible
Department

cD (EXP)

cD (EXP)

When
Reouired

M

M

Condition of Approval

Public Right of Way Dedication
As provided for in the First Amended and Restated Development Agreement (ARDA) and the

Amendments No. 1 and 2 thereto, and any approved amendments thereafter, the

owner/applicant shall dedicate all public rights-of-way and corresponding public utility
easements such that public access is provided to each and every lot within the traditional home
portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map (Lots 1-214). In addition, public utility cascments shall be provided
for public utilities within private streets to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

Stea Names
The street names identified below shall be used for the Final Small-Lot Maps:
Avazedo, Black Sage, Blue Oak, Blue Sky, Boulder Creek, Bridgeview, Brookview, Clearview,
Clubhouse, Cold Creek, Copperwood, Coyote Ridge, Creekwood, CresMew, Dalea, Dawn
Light, Deer Park, Eagle View, Edgewood, Emerald Glen, Fallen Leaf, Fountain Heights, Fox
Hollow, Gateway, Glenbrook, Glenridge, Goldenrod, Granite Point, Grey Hawk, Gully,
Heather Glen, Heritage Oaks, Iron Oak, Japanese Maple, Knollbrook, Lone Tree, Longview,
Manzanita, Maple, Meadow Crest, Midway, Monument, Nettle, Oak Bridge, Oakridge, Olive
Orchard, Pacific Wren, Panorama, Paradise, Patina, Pinyon Pine, Quail Run, Rainbow Ridge,
Ravine, Redtail, Regency Parkway, Rimrock, Robinwood, Rock Ridge, Rocky Creek, Rocky
Point, Sagewood, Salvia, Scenic, Skymeadow, Skpvay, Springcreek, Starling, Sundown, Sunny
Oaks, Sunnyview, Sweetwater, Timber, Upland, Vale, Valley View, White Cedar, Wildwood.

Mitigation
Measure

#

6

Resolution No. 10670

Page 3 of 141

Page 519

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TTIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 1949I)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF'WHIIT ROCK ROAD, trAST OF OAK A!'A,NUE PARJ(WAY, AI\D

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJ(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMEI\DMENTS, SLVTSM, PI) I'DD]UTT'T A NTI INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisfies this condition.
The subdivision improvement
agreement will be executed by the City
Manager upon approvai by the City
Council.

The owncr/applicant complied with all
applicable mitigation measures from
the FPASP FEIR/EIS and other
approved environmental documents
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Additionally, construction
inspection and monitoring is being
conducted throughout construction by
the CiW and/or its Consultants.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (PXE)(B)
PW, PR, FD,

PD

CD

When
Reouired

OG

OG

Condition of Approval

Indemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its agents,

officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or its agents,

officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the City or any of its
agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or legislative body
concernilg the project, which claim, action or proceeding is brought within the time period
provided therefore in Government Code Section 66499.37 or other applicable statutes of
limitation. The City will promptly notify the owner/applicant of any such claim, action or
proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in
the defense, the owner owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemniff
and hold harmless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, prrsuant to this condition.
The City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim,
action or proceeding if both of the following occur:

The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and

The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith
a

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such claim,
action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. The

owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless ofwhether a Final
Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this project.

Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
The Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision map is expressly conditioned upon compliance
with all environmental mitigation measures identifred in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Pian
(FEIR/EIS) as amended by the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch CEQA Addendum dated

February-2l2} (Attachment 31 to the staff report)

Mitigation
Measure

#

9.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 4 of l4l

Page 520

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT FN r949r)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTHOFWI{ITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAKAYEI{UEPARI(WAY, AIil)

SOIJ-IH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AI\D INCIIJSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivision and verified that it is in
compliance with Amendment No. 1

and No. 2 to the First Amended and
Restated Tier I Development
Agreement.

The owner/applicant has funded and
participated in a MMRP reporting
program performed by the City's
consultant (Helix) and/or City staff.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E)

cD (P)

When
Required

M

OG

Condition of Approval

ARDA and Amendments
The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. I and 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement and any approved amendments

thereafter by and between the City and the owner/applicant ofthe project including but not
limited to Amendment No . 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development
Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Easton Valley Holdings, LLC, Amendment
No. 2 to the First Amcnded and Restatcd Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between thc
City of Folsom and West Scott Road, LLClToll West Coast, LLC, Amendment No. 2 to the

First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the City of
Folsom and Oak Avenue Holdings, LLC, and Amendment No. 3 to the First Amended and

Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and Folsom Real

Estate South. LLClToll West Coast, LLC.
Miligation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program
pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources Code 21081.6. The

mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

FEIR/EIS and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Addendum to the FPASP EIfuEIS have been

incorporated into these conditions ofapproval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects

on the environment. These mitigation monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the

mitigation measure column. Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation
monitoring (e.g., staff and consultant time).

Mitigation
Measure

#

10.

11

Resolution No. 10670

Page 5 of l4l

Page 521

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THf, TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJf,CT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OT OAK AVENIIE PARKWAY, AI\D

SOUTH OF MANGIMPARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMEIIDMENTS, SLVTSM,PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARYHOUSINGPLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/appiicant provided onsite
security during construction and has

incorporated line of sight guidelines
into landscaping plans at intersections
which have been reviewed and
approved by the City.

The owner/applicant has paid all
current taxes and fees associated with
this subdivision.

The owner/applicant has paid all taxes
and fees associated with this
subdivision and filed a tax segregation
request for applicable taxes.

Responsible
Department

POLICE/SECURITY R.E QUIREMENT

PD

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE REOUIREMENTS

CD (PXE)

cD (E)

When
Required

G, I,B

M

M

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety rneasures shall be
considered:

a A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be

constructed around the perimeter of construction areas.

a Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances.

a Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at intersections
or screen overhead lighting.

Taxes and Fees
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at the rate
and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendment No. 1 to the
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Develonment Asreement.
Assessments
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay off any existing assessments against the property, or
file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees.

Mitigation
Measures

fr

12

13

t4.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 6 of l4l

Page 522

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit.

The City has not yet utilized any
outside services for any type of legal
issues for this subdivision. Ifat any
time during the development of this
subdivision, any outside legal services
were necessary, the owner/applicant
would be required to comply with this
condition.

Comments

The Owner/Applicant shall pay all
required City fees and Folsom Plan
Area wide fees prior to issuance of
building permits.

CD (PXE)

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (P), Pw,
PK

OG

When
Reouired

B

url&r\ I

FPASP Development Impact Fees
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area development
impact fees in place at the time of approval or subsequently adopted consistent with the Public

Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, unless

exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant shall be subject to all applicable Folsom
Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees in effect at such time that a building permit is

issued. These fces may includc, but are not iimited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee,

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation

Management Fee, Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment Fee,

Housing Trust Fee, etc.

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on this
project will begin on the date of final approval (March 10,2020), or otherwise shall be

governed by the terms of Amendments No. I and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at

tlre fee rate set forth in the PFFP and the ARDA.
Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services ofoutside legal counsel to assist in the

implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing and/or revising

agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City utilizes the services of such

outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant ofthe outside counsel

selected, the scope ofwork and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City
for all outside legal fees and costs incurred and documented by the City for such services. The
owner/applicant may be required, at the sole discretion of the City Attomey, to submit a deposit

totheCityfortheseservicespriortoinitiationoftheservices. Theowner/applicantshallbe
responsible for reimbursement to the City for the services regardless of whether a deposit is
req uired.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

16

CoNDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN

WEST OTEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD,EASTOF OAKAVENUEPARKWAY,AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARJ(WAY

19-091)

DASP PLAI{PD AND

#

15.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 7 of 14l

Page 523

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EASTOF OAKAVENUE PARJ(WAY,AND
SOI,TTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DAAMEIIDMENTS, SLVTSM, PDPERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLA}[
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The City has provided notice to the
owner/applicant for various
Consultants perlorming services for
the development ol this subdivision.
The City has collected deposits in
advance of such work for construction
inspection rclated serviccs for this
subdivision.

The Community Development
Department has verified that the
proposed walls and fences for the

subdivision are in compliance with the

Folsom Ranch Central Design
Guidelines.
The owner/applicant is currently
constructing the on-site and off-site
public improvements for the Phase 3A
subdivision. The public improvements
will serve all of the lots in the
subdivision. The Phase 3A subdivision
is not part ofthe Age-Restricted
Regency development which consists
ofPhasel&Phase2.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (PXE)

GRADING PERMIT

cD (PXE)

cD(E), PW,
FD

When
Required

G, I,M,B

G, I,B

B

Condition of Approval

Consultant Services
Ifthe City utilizes the services ofconsultants to prepare special studies or provide specialized

design review or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide notice to the

owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and the

owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred and documented in utilizing
these services, including administrative costs for City personnel. A deposit for these services

shali be providcd prior to initiating review of thc Grading Plan, Final Map, improvcment plans,

or besinnins inspection. whichever is applicable.

lltalls/Fences/Gates
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors ofthe walls, fences, and gates shall

consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit and Details, dated Jantary 24,2020
subjcct to review and approval by the Community Development Dopartment to cnsure

consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines.

Roadway Improvement Phasing
The owner/applicant shall construct the following improvements as shown on the Small-Lot
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map with each applicable phase. Roadways shall be to the

ultimate horizontal and vertical alignment unless otherwise noted.

For the purposes of these conditions, phasing of the project is defined per Figure ES-6 of the

Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019 (Attachment 3 i to the staff report)
and the following:

Phase I consists ofthe first 305 age-restricted dwelling units within Regency Phase l, all
located on the eastern portion ofthe Project site and labeled as"2021" on Figure ES-6 of
the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20, 2019 (Attachment 31 to the staff

a

report). Phase 1 also includes an additional 45 model home units that would be used for
sales and marketing pwposes initially. Conditions of approval for Phase I shall be met

before issuance ofthe first building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

!fr

17

18.

l9

Resolution No. 10670
Page 8 of l4l

Page 524

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OT EASTBIDWELLROAD,NORTEOFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEIYT]E PARKWAY,AND
SOUTHOFMANGIMPARKWAY

GPA" SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\
Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment

When
Required

Condition of Approval

Phase 2 consists ofthe next 377 dwelling units (240 age-restricted dwelling units located
within Regency Phase I on the eastem portion of the Project site, and 1 37 Traditional
Subdivision units located on the western portion ofthe project site.) These units are labeled
as"2022" on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20,2019
(Attachment 31 to the staffreport). Conditions ofapproval for Phase 2 shall be met before

issuance ofthe 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home units) or
the first building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the project site.

a Phase 3 consists of the remaining 543 dwelling units (466 age-restricted dwelling units

within Regency Phase I and 2 plus 77 Traditional Subdivision units) These units are labeled

as"2023" and2024 on Figure ES-6 ofthe Transportation Impact Analysis datedNovember
20,2019 (Attachment 3 1 to the staff report). Conditions of approval for Phase 3 shall be

met before issuance ofthe 546'h age restricted building permit for Regency Phase l/Phase 2

or the I 38th building permit for the Traditional Subdivision within the Project site.

The following conditions defined the roadway improvements which shall be installed for each

phase, as described above

MitigationIt

Resolution No. 10670

Page 9 of 14l

Page 525

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



The
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the subdivision. The owner/applicant
is currently constructing the required
on-site and off-site public
improvements for the Phase 3A
subdivision. The public improvements
will serve all of the lots in the

subdivision. The Phase 3A subdivision
is not a part ofthe phased portion of
the 593 age-restricted dwelling units
which are included in the approved
Regency Phase 1 & Phase 2 vesting
tentative subdivision map.

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

Phasing of Roadways

Roadway construction shall be phased as described in the Transportation Impact Analysis and

as shown on Figure ES-6 of the Transportation Impact Analysis dated November 20, 2019

(Attachment 3 1 to the staff report) . Changes in the timing and/or progression of construction of
homes may result in a change in the timing and/or sequencing ofroadway construction subject

to review and approval by the Community Development Department.

Phase i
r Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street to Driveway #4 located on the south

side of Mangini Parkway as a two-lane roadway prior to issuance of the first building
permit in Regency Phase L

r Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F.

. Construct Mangini Parkway/Driveway #4 intersection, East Bidwell Street/Regency

Parkway intersection, and intemal project roads as required to access to new homes.

Phase 2
o Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-lane

roadway prior to issuance ofthe first Traditional Subdivision buiiding permit within the

project.
. Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway #1 prior to issuance of

the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the project.

. Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #1 to White Rock Road as an EVA access

prior to issuance ofthe first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the Project.

o Construct Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway #l intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #2

intersection, Mangini Parkway Driveway #4 intersection, and intemal project roads as

required to access new homes.
r Consfuct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from Street F to planned bridge over

creek at the westem of the Phase 2 active adult homes.

Phase 3

r Construct Oak Avenue Parkway from Driveway #l to White Rock Road as a two-lane

roadway prior to issuance ofthe 138th Traditional Subdivision building permit within the

project.

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 10 of 141

Page 526

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the hrst
building
permit.

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent

with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the

approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study.

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Denartment

B

B

When
Required

Mangini Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Mangini Parkway from East Bidwell Street westerly to Driveway #4 ("Street C") as a

two-lane roadway prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase I building permit.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Condition of Approval

Construct Regency Parkway from prior terminus to Mangini Parkway prior to issuance of
the 546th Regency Phase I building permit within the project.

All driveway intersections and the Oak Avenue ParkwayiMangini Parkway intersection shall be

constructed as the corresponding portions of those roads are built.

a

Phasing of Improvements to SpeciJic Interseclions

Irnprovements to specific intersections identified in the November 20,2019, Transportation
Impact Study (Attachment 3 t to staff report) shall be constructed as follows in Condition Nos

22^52:

Mitigation
Measures

22.

2t

WN,ST OF f,,AST BIDWELLROAD,NORTIIOFWIilTE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENTIEPARI(WAY,AND
SOUTH OF MAIiGINI PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RAI\CH PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTITERS AT

HOUSING PLAIIPD

#

Resolution No. 10670
Page 11 ofl4l

Page 527

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PART(WAY, ANI)
SOI]TII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMEI{DMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the frst
building
permit in
Phase 3A

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306th
building
permit.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These rcquired
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed
and.approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.
This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 306'h building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Reouired

B

B

,B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Mangini Parkway from Driveway #4 ("Street C") to Oak Avenue Parkway as a two-
lane roadway prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit within the
project.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Traditional Subdivision building pcrmit.

Regency Parkway (Segment l)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from East Bidwell Street to Street F

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 building permit.

Regency Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Regency Parkway as a twolane roadway from Street F to the planned bridge over
creek at the westem edge ofthe Regency Phase I Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306th Regency Phase 1 building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

fi

23

25

Resolution No. 10670

Page 12 of i4l

Page 528

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT F'OLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OT OAK AVEI\TIE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM PTI PE',RIVTIT AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3A.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546th building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, The VTSM for thc
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.
The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Reouired

B

B

Condition of Approval

Regency Parkway (Segment 3)

Construct Regency Parkway as a two-lane roadway from the eastem edge ofthe planned bridge
over the creek bisecting the project site to Mangini Parkway.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase ll2 building permit exciuding the 45 modcl home building permits).

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 1)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a twolane roadway from Mangini Parkway to Driveway 1

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

#

26

27

Resolution No. 10670

Page l3 of 141

Page 529

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the frst
building
permit in
Phase 34.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 138th

building
permit in
Phase 3.A

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent

with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Required

B

tulvtprt r

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as an EVA from Driveway I to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway (Segment 2)

Construct Oak Avenue Parkway as a twolane roadway from Driveway I to White Rock Road.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the 138th Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

29

CoI\DITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OT WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\TIE PARKWAY, AIID
SOITTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

19491)

PLANPDDA
!t

28.

Resolution No. 10670
Page l4 of 141

Page 530

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL F'OR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCII PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK RON), EAST OF OAK AVEI\IJE PARI(WAY, AI\[D

SOUTH OF MANGII\I PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. A}ID INCLU$ONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3A

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 138s
building
permit in
Phase 3A

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E). PW.
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway I (Stage 1)

Construct Driveway as shown in (Figure 43 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

a

a

a

Northbound: Oak Ave Parkway shall be banicaded south ofDriveway I and configured as

an EVA;
Southbound: one shared throughJeft lane;

Westbound: one shared lane;

Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Oak Avenue Parkway/Driveway 1 (Stage 2)

Conshuct driveway as shown in (Figure 44 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

Northbound: one shared through-right lane with a I 50' right turn taper;

Southbound: one shared through-left lane;
Westbound: one shared lane;

Control : side-sheet-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuaace of i38'h Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

30

31

Resolution No. 10670

Page l5 of 141

Page 531

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3,A

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3A

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. Thesc required
improvements are included in the
approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under

construction.

cD (E), PW,
FD

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), Pw,
FD

B

B

When
Reouired

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 46 of the Novembet 20,2019 Transportation Impact

Study):

Northbound: one shared lane;

Westbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;

Eastbound: one through lane and one right turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;

Control : side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

M an gi ni P arkway/D riv ew ay 2

Condition of Approval

Oak Avenue Pqrlaa'ay,lDriveway 1 (Cumalative Right-of-Ihy)

Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City of Folsom for future construction of the ultimate

Driveway 1 intersection (Figure 45 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact Study):

. Northbound: one lefttum'lane with 150' pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a 150' right tum taper;

o Southbound: one lef}-tum lane with 150'pocket plus 60'taper, one through, and one shared

through-right lane with a 1 50 right tum taper;
. Westbound: one shared lane;
o Eastbound: one shared lane;
e Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance ol first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

33

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROA-D, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARKWAY, AI{I)
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

PROJECT (PN 19491)COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

AND INCLUSIONARYPDPERMITDASPGP PLANSL

#

32

Resolution No. 10670

Page l6 of l4l

Page 532

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COI\DITIONS OFAPPROV AL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19.091)

WEST OF EASTBIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OFWIIITO ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVEIYTIE PARKWAY,ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN
Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
thc 546'h

building
permit in
Phase 2

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit.

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546th building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase 1 portion ofthe
Regency project consists of593
dwclling units, The VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this intersection
and are curently under construction.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reouired

B

B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parkway/Regency Parkway (Driveway 3)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 47 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

o Northbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
. Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase 112 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

M angini P arkway/D r iv ew ay 4

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 48 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Snrdy):

a

a

a

Northbound: one shared lane;

Westbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
Eastbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a I 50' pocket with 60'taper;

Control : side-sheet-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

Mitigation
Measures

35

Resolution No. 10670
Page l7 of 141

Page 533

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



coNDrTroNs oF AppRovAL FoR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RATICH PROIECT (PN 19491)
WEST OT'EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK RON), EAST OF OAK AVNNUE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTII OF MAI\GIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMEIYTS, SLVTSM, PD ptr.pt\ifiT ANT! INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLA}[

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306th

building
permit in
Phase 1

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 306e
building
permit in
Phase I

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance ofthe 306'h production
building permit in the Toll Brothers at
Folsom Ranch Regency project. The
Phase I portion ofthe Regency project
consists of593 dwelling units.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 306'h building permit in
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch
Regency project. The Phase I portion
ofthe Regency project consists of 593
dwelling units.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), PW
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

Mangini Parhttay/Driveway 5 (Stage 1)

Construct driveway as shown in (Figure 49 of the November 20,2019 Transportation Impact
Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;
r Westbound: one shared through-leftturn lane;
. Eastbound: one shared through-right turn lane;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306'h Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

M angini Parkway/Driveway 5 Right-of-llay

Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City ofFolsom for future construction ofthe ultimate
Mangini Parkway/Driveway 5 intersection (Figure 50 of the November 20, 2019 Transportation
Impact Study):

. Northbound: one shared lane;

. Southbound: one right tum lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper and one shared through-left
lane;

o Westbound: one tbrough-right lane and one left turn lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
o Eastbound: one through-right lane and one left tum lane in a 60' pocket with 60'taper;
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of 306'h Regency Phase 1 building permit (excludes 45 model home

unit building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

36.

)t

Resolution No. 10670

Page l8 of 141

Page 534

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase L

Comments

The Comrnunity Development
Deparhnent has reviewed and
approved the public and private
improvement plans for the subdivision
and verified that these improvements
are consistent with the approved
Transportation Impact Study. These
required improvements are included in
the approved plans for this intersection
and are currently under construction.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6) Stage 1

o Northbound: one through lane and one left tum lane in a 1 50' pocket with 60' taper;
o Southbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;
o Eastbound: one shared lane;
o Westbound departure: two lanes separated by amedian for two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
. Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

Construct driveway as follows:

Mitigation
Measures

38.

#

Resolution No. 10670
Pagel9of141

Page 535

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TTIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWNLL ROAD, NORTII OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MAI{GII\II PARKWAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PER]VIIT, A]\D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

This
condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
thc 546'h

building
permit in
Phase 2

Comments

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546th building permit in
the Phase 2 portion ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project. The Phase I portion ofthe
Regency project consists of 593

dwelling units, The VTSM for the
Phase 2 portion ofthe Regency project
has been approved by the City
Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Recuired

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway 6)

Modify driveway as shown in (Figure 5l of the November 20,2019, Transportation Impact
Study), unless intersection has been signalized:

o Northbound: one through lane and one left turn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;

r Southbound: one through lane and one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60'taper;
. Eastbound: one shared lane, plus a 300' northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street

to receive left-turns from Regency Parkway (a second NB lane on East Bidwell Street

starting from Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300' acceleration lane);

o Westbound departure: two lanes separated by a median for two access gates sha11 be subject

to City Engineers prior approval.
o Control: side-street-stop-control.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency

Phase 112 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

39

Resolution No. 10670

Page 20 of 141

Page 536

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The final map for the subdivrsron
includes the required right-of-way for
the Mangini Parkway,iRegency
Parkway intersection. The right-of-
way dedication is shown on the final
map.

Responsible
Department

cD(E),PW,
FD

B

When
Reouired

Condition of Approval

Mangini Pa*waylRegency Parkway (Driveway 6) Nght-of-l{ay

The owner/applicant shall dedicate right-of-way to City ofFolsom for future construction ofthe
ultimate Mangini ParkwaylDriieway 6 intersection (Figwe 52 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study):

e Northbound: one left tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two tluough lanes, and a

right firn lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper;
o Southbound: one right tum lane in a 150' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and two

left tum lanes in a250' pocket with 120'taper. (Note that the FPASP assumed a single
southbound left tum lane.);

o Westbound: one shared left-through-right lane, and one right hrn lane;
r Westbound departure: two lanes separ:ated by a median for two access gates shall be subject

to City Engineers approval-
r Eastbound: one shared lane

Timing: Prior to issuance of first Regency Phase 1 building permit

Mitigation
Measures

#

40.

ResolutionNo. 10670

Page 21 of 141

Page 537

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
perrnit.

Comments

The required stop control for the
various street intersections are shown
on the approved plans for the
subdivision. The Community
Development Deparhnent will veriff
compliance with this conditionprior to
building perrnit issuance.

Responsible
Deoartnent

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reauired

B

Condition of Approval

Stop Conhol shall be installed at the following five locations within the Regency Phase I
portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

o Regency ParkwdStreet A (two-way+top+onhol). Stop on A, no control on Regency
e Regency Parkway/Street D (two-way-stop-conlrol). Stop on D, no control on Regency
. RegencyParkway/Sheet E (a1l-way-stop-conhol).
o Regency Parkway/Stre€t F (two-way-stop-control). Stop on Fn no contol on Regency.
o Street D/Street S (a1l-way-stop-control).

Roundabouts may replace stop conffol at internal intersections with authorization Aom the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in Figure M,page73 of theNovember20,2Al9,
Transportation Impact Study.

Timing: prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

Phase 1 Internal Stop Contral

Mitigation
Measures

#

4l

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page22 ofl4l

Page 538

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the first
building
permit in
Phase 3A.

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 3066
building
permit in
Phase 1.

The required stop control for the
various street intersections will be
shown on the approved plans for the

Phase 3,A' subdivision .The

Community Development Department
will verifu compliance with this
condition prior to building permit
issuance in Phase 3,A..

Comments

The required stop control for the

various street intersections is shown on

the approved plans for the subdivision.
The Community Development
Department will verify compliance
with this condition prior to issuance of
thc 306th building permit in Phase l.

cD (E), Pw,
FD

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Reouired

B

Phase 2 Internal Stop Control (Traditional Sabdiision)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations:

o Street TA,/Street TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TA.
o Street TA"/Sheet TG (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TG, no control on TA.
o Street TB/Street TC (two-way-stop-control). Stop on TC, no control on TB

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in preceding Figvre 25, page 74.

Timing: prior to issuance of the first Traditional Subdivision building permit.

Phase 1 Internal Stop Control (Regency Phase 1)

Stop Control shall be installed at the following locations within the Regency Phase 1 portion of
the To11 Brothers at Folsom Ranch project:

. Regency Parkway/Street G (two-way-stop-control). Stop on G, no control on Regency.

. Regency Parkway/Street H (two-way-stop-control. Stop on H, no control on Regency.

Roundabouts may replace stop control at internal intersections with authorization from the City
Engineer. Location of Stop Control is shown in Figure Z4,Page 73 ofthe November 20'2019,
Transportation Impact Study.

Timing: prior to issuance of the 306th Regency Phase I building permit (excludes 45 model

home unit building permits).

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

43

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTE OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTJE PARI(WAY, AND
SOUTH OF MANGIII PARI(WAY

RANCIT PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM

ANI} INCLUSIONARYPDDA
fi

42

Resolution No. 10670

Page 23 of l4i

Page 539

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546n
building
permit in
Phase 2.

Comments

The required stop control for the
various steet intersections will be
shown on the approved plans for the
future Phase 2 subdivision. The
Community Development Departrnent
will verify complianoe with this
condition prior to building pemit
issuance in Phase 2.

Responsible
DeDartment

cD (E), Pw
FD

When
Reouired

B

Stop Control shall be installed at any internal Regency Phase 2 intersections with four (or more)
legs as directed by the City Engineer. Rormdabouts may replace stop control at intemal
intersections with authorization from the City Engineer.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency
Phase 1/2 buililing permit excluding the 45 model home building permits),

Regency Phase 2 Internal Stop Control

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

#

44.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 24 of I4l

Page 540

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the i386
building
permit in
Phase 3A..

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the public improvement
plans for the subdivision and verified
that these improvements are consistent
with the approved Transportation
Impact Study. These rcquired
improvements are included in the

approved plans for this roadway
section and are currently under
construction.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

B

When
Required

Condition of Approval

Implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) has programmed to realign

this portion of White Rock Road and building a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-
Tums. Expand or construct a signalized interscction as follows:

. SB: A single shared lane for left and right tums.
o EB: A through lane and a left/U-tum in 300' pocket plus taper.

. WB: A through lane and a right-tum in 300' pocket plus taper.

. Signalize with protected phasing for left tums and U-turns.
o Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority adopted standards.

(B) Channelize the intersection on the existing White Rock Road alignment to restrict turning

movements to westbound right turns and southbound right tums. The westbound right tum
requires a 365' deceleration lane, and the southbound right turn requires a 960' acceleration lane

(Figure 53 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study).

Timing: Prior to opening the segment of Oak Avenue Parkway between Driveway I and White

Rock Road, or prior to issuance ofthe 138'h Traditional Subdivision building permit, whichever

occurs first.

OR

Oak Ave Parkway/ll/hite Rock Rd

Mitigation
Measures

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIIITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENTIE PARI(WAY, AI\ID
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY

PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITTONS OFAPPROVAL FORTIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCII

HOUSINGPLAI\SL PDGP
#

45

Resolution No. 10670

Page 25 of l4l

Page 541

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit.

Comments

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA
has executed a construction contmct
with Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to
construct the Capital Southeast
Connector from Prairie City Road to

East Bidwell Street. The construction
contract was executed in December of
2020. Grading and consffuction
commenced in April 2021. The project
will include the relocation and

signalization of the existing White
Rock Road/East Bidwell Street
intersection. The project is expected to
be complete in the Spring of 2022.The
owner/applicant will pay the
Sacramento Counry Transportation
Development Fee prior to issuance of
all building permits in the subdivision.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Required

B

Condition of Approval

Signalize the existing White Rock Rd/East Bidwell Street intersection implementing either (A)

or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Corurector Joint Powers Authorify (JPA) project has programmed

to relocate and signalizc the East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road intersection as shown in the

October 20i7 geometric conceptual drawing , or equivalent improvements (i'e., three

southbound approach lanes, four eastbound approach lanes, and three westbound approach

lanes). Figure 54 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study provides a conceptual

intersection layout for this mitigation. Under option A, fair share is defined as the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch Project's responsibility to the Sacramento County Transportation

Development Fee. The Applicant is required to pay the sacfamento county Transportation

Development Fee. Option A can be considered to be implemented once the JPA has let

contracts for construction of the new intersection. This will ensure that the mitigation is
constructed before project traffic adds 5 or more seconds of delay to the intersection'

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Strcet/White Rock Road intersection with the

existing geometry. Figure 55 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study provides

a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the flrst Regency Phase I building permit.

OR

East Bidwell St/llhite Rock Road

Mitigation
Measures

46.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OFWHITEROCKROAD, EAST OFOAKAVTNUEPARKWAY,AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TTIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

ANDPDPERMIT EOUSINGDA
#

Resolution No. 10670

Page 26 of 141

Page 542

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTH OFWHITE ROCKROAD, trAST OF OAK AVENT,IEPARKWAY, AND

SOIITH OF MANGIM PARKWAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, ANTI TN'T,ITSI(INARY HOUSINGPLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building
permit in thc
subdivision.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546th

building
permit in the
Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the improvement plans for
the construction of these required
improvements including the plans for
the modification to the existing traffic
signal. These improvemcnts are

cunently under construction.

This condition ofapproval will be
satisfied during the development ofthe
future Phase 2 portron (Regency Phase

2) ofthe Toll Brothers at Foisom
Ranch project. The vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Phase 2

(Regency) portion ofthe project has

been approved by the City Council.

Responsible
Denartment

cD (E), Pw,
FD

cD (E), Pw,
FD

When
Required

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Mangini Pkwy

Signalize the intersection with the following geometry figure 56 of the November 20,2019,
Transportation Impact Study) :

. NB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one right-tum
lane in a 150'pocket with a 60' taper;

o SB: One left-hrrn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through iane, and one right-hrrn
lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;

. EB and WB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one
right-tum lane in a 2OO'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: prior to issuance of first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Mangini Pkwy

Expand the intersection and update signal configuration as follows (Figure 57 ofthe November
20, 2019 Transportation Impact Study):

a

a

NB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, two through lanes, and one right{urn
lane in a 150' pocket with a 60' taper (the second through lane should be developed 300'
south of the intersection);
SB: One left-turn lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one dght-turn
lane in a 150'pocket with 60'taper;
EB and WB: One left-tum lane in a 200' pocket with 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right-turn lane in a 200'pocket with 60'taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency

Phase ll2 building permit excludinglhe 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

t+

47

48.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 27 of 141

Page 543

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COIIDITIONS OF' APPROVAL F'OR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUN PARKWAY, AND
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARKWAY

GPA, SPA,DA rlTrmllTtmd CY DE II]VTTTPD AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PI,AN
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit in thc
subdivision.

Condition
will be
satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
the 5461h

building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has approved the plans for
the reconstruction and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek
Parkway intersection in accordance
with this condition.

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit gading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Department for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be

constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance ofthe 5461h building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
ofthe project.

Responsible
Deuartment

cD (E), PW
FD

cD (E), PW,
FD

When
Reauired

B

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway

Reconstruct and signalize the East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway intersection as showr in
Figure 58 of the November 20,2019, Transportat'ion Impact Study:

. NB Approach: One U-tum lane in a I 50' pocket with a 60' taper, one through lane, and one

right tum lane in a 1 50' pocket plus 60' taper.
. SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane'

. WB Approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase I building permit.

East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parlalay

Reconstruct and modify signal at the East Bidwell St/Alder Creek Parkway intersection as

shown in Figure 59 of the November 20,2019, Transportation lmpact Study:

a

a

NB Approach: One U-tum lane in a 150'pocket with a 60' taper, two through lanes, and

one right turn lane in a I 50' pocket plus 60' taper.

SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 240' pocket plus 60' tapcr, and two through lanes. The

second SB through lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way, the estimated taper for
merging the two southbound lanes into one should be 660 feet long based on a 55 mph
design speed and 12-foot lane width.
WB Approach: One right tum lane, plus one left-tum lane in a 200' pocket plus 60' taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance ofthe first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546th overall Regency

Phase 1/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

49.

50.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 28 of 141

Page 544

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTHOFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY,ANI)

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJ(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY EOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance of
the 546h
building
permit in
Phase 2 of
the Regency
project.

Comments

The required improvements in this
condition have been completed and
accepted by the City. These
improvements were constructed as part
of the off-site improvements for the
Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7

subdivision.

The owner/applicant will be required
to submit grading and improvement
plans to the Community Development
Department for review and approval to
construct these required
improvements. The required
improvements will have to be
constructed and accepted by the City
prior to issuance ofthe 546m building
permit in the Regency Phase 2 portion
ofthe project.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E), PW
FD

cD (E), PW
FD

When
Reouired

B

Condition of Approval

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parhoay

Reconstruct the East Bidwell SVSavannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry
(Figure 60 ofthe November20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

. NB Approach: One shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;

. SB Approach: One left tum lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

. WB Approach: One left tum lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;

. SB departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left
tum traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 1 building permit.

East Bidwell St/Savannah Parkway

Reconstruct the East Bidwell SVSavannah Pkwy intersection with the following geometry
(Figure 61 ofthe November 20,2019, Transportation Impact Study):

o NB Approach: One through lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150' taper;
. SB Approach: One left turn lane in a 150' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;
o WB Approach: One left tum lane in a 60' pocket plus 60' taper, and one through lane;
o SB departure: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left

tum traffic. The acceleration lane shall be in a 300' pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Timing: Prior to issuance of the first Regency Phase 2 building permit (546'h overall Regency
Phasel/2 building permit excluding the 45 model home building permits).

Mitigation
Measures

#

51

52.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 29 of I4l

Page 545

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

During the course of grading and
construction for the subdivision no

mine shafts or tunnels were located or
discovered.

The owner/applicant has provided
copies of fully executed rights-of-entry
from privately owned parcels that

adjoin the Toll Brothers at Folsom
Ranch project. The fully executed

rights-of-entry are on file with the

Community Development Department.

Comments

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the phasing plan for Phase 1

ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

Regency project. The City Engineer
has approved the phasing plan to
verify that the proposed roadway and

infrastructure is appropriate for each

phase.

CD (E)

CD (E)

Responsible
Department

cD (E), PW,
FD

G, I

G

When
Required

G, I,M

Mine Shaft Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts,

tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project site, with
specific recommendations for the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet all applicable

health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be prepared by an

appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. AII remedial plans shall be reviewed and approved

bv the City prior to approval ofgrading plans.

Utilities shall be constructed concurrent with the roadway phasing, as deemed appropriate

and necessary to support the particular phase by the City Engineer.

A particular development phase may be developed into sub-phases in which the roadway

and utility phasing may change. If sub-phasing is proposed, the City Engineer shall

determine what roadway and utility improvements are appropriate and necessary to sewe

the sub-phase.

I

a

Utility I nfr astructure

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry
For any improvements constructed on private property that are not under the ownership or
control ofthe owner/applicant, all rights-of-entry, and ifnecessary, a permanent easement shall

be obtained and provided to the City. All rights of entry, construction easements, either
permanent or temporary and other easements shall be obtained as set forth in Amendments No.

I and 2 to ARDA, which shall be fully executed by all affected parties and shall be recorded

with the Sacramento County Recorder, where applicable, prior to approval ofgrading andior
imorovement olans.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

55

54.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIilTE ROCK ROAD, EAST OT OAK AVEIITJE PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OFMANGIM PARKWAY

RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM

DASP HOUSING PLAIIPD AND

#

53.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 30 of 141

Page 546

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits and

copies are available from the
Community Development Department.
The owner/applicant has obtained all
required State and Federal permits
including Section 401 water quality
certification and copies are available
from the Community Development
Denartment.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved and will review and approve
all proposed traffic control plans

necessary to construct the required
subdivision improvements. Grading
and constnrction of the subdivision
improvements commenced in August
of 2020 and will continue through to
the second quarter of2022.

Comments

cD (PXE)

cD (E)

Responsible
DeDartment

CD (E)

G, I

G

When
Reouired

G

State and Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide evidence

that said permits have bcen obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject to staff revicw
orior to approval of any grading or improvement plan.

llat er Quality C ertffi c atio n
A water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act is required before

issuance ofthe record of decision and before issuance ofthe Section 404 permit. Before
construction in any areas containing wetland features, the owner/applicant shall obtain water
quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater
oualitv certification shall be implemented pursuant to the permit conditions.

Condition of Approval

Prepare TrafJic Control Plan.
Prior to construction, a Traffic Control Plan for roadways and intersections affected by
construction shall be prepared by the owner/applicant. The Traffic Control Plan prepared by the

owner/applicant shall, at minimum, include the following measures:

Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity during non-construction periods,

possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision of construction signage

Maintaining altemate one-way traffic flow past the lay down area and site access when
feasible.

Hear,y trucks and other construction transport vehicles shall avoid the busiest commute
hours (7 a.m. to 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to 6 p.m. on weekdays).

A minimum 72-hour advance notice of access restrictions for residents, businesses, and

local emergency response agencies. This shall include the identification of altemative routes

and detours to enable for the avoidance ofthe immediate construction zone.

A phone number and City contact for inquiries about the schedule ofthe construction
throughout the construction period. This information will be posted in a local newspaper,

via the City's web site, or at City Hall and will be updated on a

a

o

monthlv basis.

Mitigation
Measures

58

57

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTII OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\TJE PARKWAY, AND
SOUTH OF MATIGII\I PARI(WAY

RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF'APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTTIERS AT FOLSOM

ANI)PD PERNIIT IIOUSING PLAII

#

56

Resolution No. 10670

Page3l ofl41

Page 547

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans for all
infrastructure improvements required
to serve this subdivision. The City
Engineer has rcviewed and approved
all required improvement plans to
serve this subdivision. Copies of the
improvement plans are available from
the Community Development
Deoartment.

The owner/applicant submitted
improvement plans in accordance with
the City's Standard Specifications.

Comments

The owner/applicant retained a

geotechnical engineer and
implemented recommendations for this
mitigation measure. A geotechnical

report outlining these

recommendations is available from
Communitv Develooment Department.

cD (PXE)

Responsible
Department

cD (E) PW

cD (E)

I

When
Reouired

G

M

Standard Construction Specijications and Details
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes

and trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other improvements shall be provided
in accordance with the latest edition ofthe City ofFoTsom Standard Construction Sneclfications
and Details andthe J D--^^^)..,.^- t/

L an ds lide /S lop e F ailure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately licensed engineer during the grading activities
to identifl' existing landslides and potentiai slope failure hazards. The said engineer shall be

notified a minimum of two days prior to any site cleanng or grading to facilitate meetings with
the grading contractor in the field.

Improvement Plans
The improvement plans for the required public and private subdivision improvements necessary

to serve any and all phases ofdevelopment shall be reviewed and approved by the Communiry
Development Department prior to approval of a Final Map.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS

60.

6l

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTHOTWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVNNUEPARKWAY,AND
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

19-091)OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN

ANDPDDASP PLAN

59.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 32 of 141

Page 548

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OT EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIilTE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVEI\TIE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DAAMf,NDMENTS, SLWSM,PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARYHOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has installed all
sewer and water infrastructure within
the street right ofway. The outfall
sewer line has been installed within
easements or planned right ofway
within future streets.

Responsible
Deoartment

CD (E)

When
Reouired

Condition of Approval

Water and Sewer Infrastructure
All City-owned water and sewer infrastructure shall be placed within the street right of way. In
the event that a City-maintained public water or sewer main needs to be placed in an area other
than the public right ofway, such as through an open space corridor, landscaped area, etc., the
following criteria must be met;

a

a

a

The owner/applicant shall provide public sewer and water main easements

An access road shall be designed and constructed to allow for the operations, maintenance
and replacement of the public water or sewer line by the City along the entire water and/or
sewer line alignment. However, no access road is required within the two pedestrian paseos

(Lot BI and BJ) as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map)
In no case shall a City-maintained public water or public sewer line be placed on private
residential property.
The domestic water and irrigation system owned and maintained by the City shall be
seoaratelv metered oer Citv ofFolsom Slazdard Construction Specilications and Details.

Mitigation
Measures

#

62

Resolution No. 10670
Page 33 of 141

Page 549

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19491)
WEST OF EASTBIDWELLROAD, NORTIIOFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEI{UE PARKWAY,AND

SOTITH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAII

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant submitted a

Lighting Plan for all roadways and this
subdivision in accordance with the
Design Guidelines and City Standards
for Street Lighting. A copy of the
lighting plans are available from the

Community Development Department.

The owner/applicant has coordinated
with all various utility agencies. All
required utility easements are shown
on the final map for this subdivision.

Responsible
Department

CD (P)

CD (PXE)

When
Required

I

M

Condition of Approval

Lighting Plan
The owneriapplicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to the

Community Development Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with the Folsom
Ranch Central District Design Guidelines:

a

a

a

Shield or screen iighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill on

adjacent properties;
Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential areas

and passing motorists;
For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures that are of
unusually high intensity or that blink or flash;

Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened

lighting, and appropriate signage in the office/commercial areas to prevent iight and glare

from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and

Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscaping design in
the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall
site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to light only the sign face with no

off-site slare.
Utility Coordination
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion ofthis project
with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall provide

the Citv with written confirmation of public utilitv service prior to approval of all final maps.

Mitigation
Measures

#

63.

64.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 34 of 141

Page 550

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TTIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN T9.091)
WEST OFEAST BMWELLROAD,NORTHOT'WIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, A.l\D INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PI"AI\

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owneriapplicant has reconstructed
a portion of East Bidwell Street to the
satisfaction of the Community
Development Department. There is a

general note on the approved
improvements plans requiring
compliancc with this condition.

A11 proposed utility service to the lots
in this subdivision have been placed
underground.

The Owneriapplicant has completed
the infiastructure allowing for the
water meter fixed nehvork system.
Meters will be fumished and installed
during home construction for each

individual metered connection.
The approved improvement plans for
this subdivision include vertical
concrete curb in compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
Department

cD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E). EwR

cD (PXB)

When
Reouired

I, OG

M

I

I

Condition of Approval

Rep I acin g H azardou s F ac ilitie s
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public
sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site frontage and./or

boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Department.

Future Utility Lines
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be placed

underground within and along the perimeter ofthe project at the developer's cost. The
owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground easements for the electrical
facilities that will be necessary to service development of the proiect.

Water Meter Fixed Network System
The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish and install all infrastructure associated with
the water meter fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water meter within
the project.

Vertical Curb
All curbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether natural or manicured, and where parking is

allowed shall be vertical.

Mitigation
Measures

#

65

66.

67

68.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 35 of 141

Page 551

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

All Class II bike lanes have been
constructed in accordance \ rith the
Speoific Plan, Design Guidelines and
City standards.

Responsible
Deoarfuent

CD (EXP)

'When

Required

I

Condition of Approvat

Class II Blke Lanes
All Class II bike lanes shall be striped, anil the legencls painted to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department. No parking shall be permitted within the Class II bike
lanes.

Mitigation
Measurei

#

69.

ResolutionNo. 10670
Page 36 of 141

Page 552

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition
will be
satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building
permit the
various phase

of
development.

The approved landscape plans for East

Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway and
White Rock Road include the required
sound walls with the required
heights.along all of these public streets
in accordance with the
recommendations of the noted
acoustical study.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve

all site plans for each and every lot in
the subdivision to veriff compliance
with this condition.cD (EXP)I,O

Noise Barriers
Based on the Environmental Noise Assessment (the "2019 Noise Assessment") prepared by
Bollard Acoustical consultants on November 24,2019, the following measures shall be

implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department:

r 6-foottall solid noise barriers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all

residential property boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak

Avenue Parkway prior to occupancy ofany residences adjacent to the aforementioned

streets.

r For the proposed Traditional Subdivision portion of the project located at the northeast

comer of white Rock Road and oak Avenue Parkway, a 7-foot-tall solid noise barrier,

relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent

to white Rock Road prior to occupancy of any residences adjacent to white Rock Road.

r For the proposed Regency Phase I and Phase 2 portions ofthe project (which are located at

the northwest corner of the intersection of White Rock Road and East Bidwell Street and

north of white Rock Road in the central portion of the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

project site), an 8-fooftall solid noise barrier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be

constructed along all residential properfy boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

r Suitable materials for the traffic noise barriers include masonry and precast concrete panels.

The overall barrier height may be achieved by utilizing a barrier and earthen berm

combination. Other materiais may be acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical

consultant and approved by the Community Development Department prior to use.

r Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall be provided for all residences in this

development to allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve

compliance with the applicable interior noise level criteria.

r For the first row ofhomes located within the Traditional Subdivision portion ofthe project

located along white Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing second-floor building
facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

70.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 37 of 141

Page 553

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOMRANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OFEAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTII OFWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVEI\UE PARI(WAY,ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJ(WAY

GPA, SPA.DA AMENDMEIYTS. SI,VTSM. PD PERMIT. A}iD INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAI\
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The Owner/applicant has provided
updated Master Plans for approval
prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Copies of the Master Plans are

available from the Community
Development Department. The storm
drainagc systcm lor thc subdivision
provides for no net increase in run-off
under post development conditions.

Responsible
Department

cD(E), EWR,
PW

When
Reouired

G, I

Condition of Approval

Master Plan Updates
The Ciry has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm Drainage Master Plan, Wastewater Master
Plan, and Water Master Plan. The owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to the

approved master plans, if applicable, for the proposed changes to the master plans as a result of
the proposed project, The updates to the master plans for the proposed project shall be reviewed
and approved by the City prior to approval ofgrading and/or improvement plans.

The plans shall be accompanied by engineering studies supporting the sizing, location, and

timing of the proposed facilities. Improvements shall be constructed in phases as the project

develops in accordance with the approved master plans, including any necessary off-site
improvements to support development ofa particular phase or phases, subject to prior approval

by the City. Off-site improvements may include roadways to provide secondary access, water

transmission lines or distribution facilities to provide a looped water system, sewer trunk mains

and lift stations, water quality facilities, non-potable water pipelines and infrastructure, and

drainage facilities including on or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure from that

shown on the approved master plan shall be permitted unless and until the applicable master

plan has been revised and approved by the City. Final lot configurations may need to be

modified to accommodate the improvements identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the

City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these studies and the latest edition of
the City of Folsom Standard Construction Specifications and Details. andthe Desien and
Procedures Manual and Imorovement Standards.

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-offunder post-development
conditions.

Mitigation
Measures

fi

7T

Resolution No. 10670

Page 38 of l4l

Page 554

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

YesThe Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit from the State

Regional Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for
stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),

which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeiing. The

Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and

SRWQCB,

CommentsResponsible
DeDartment

CD (E)

When
Required

G, I

Condition of Approval

Best Management Practices
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that meet

the requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality Control Board.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a Stormwater

Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) that

comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley RWQCB, to

reduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed information about the SWPPP and

BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

Each proposed project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek

and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The

owner/applicant shall establish a baseline of conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow

conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and 1OO-year storm events. These baseline conditions

shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the stormwater system on the Specific Plan

Area. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring program shall be

submitted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be

designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standafds, which are described in

Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Watcr Quality," arc met and shall be designed as off-stream

detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson

Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, sha11 be monitored to ensure that pre-project

conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as necessary. The

mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met for 5 consecutive

years without undertaking corrective measures to meet the performance standard.

Mitigation
Measures

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWIilTE ROCKROAD,EAST OF OAKAVENT]EPARKWAY, AIID
SOUTII OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

RANCTT PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHA TOLL BROTHERS ATFOLSOM

ANDPD PERMIT HOUSINGDA
#

7Z

Resolution No. 10670
Page 39 of l4l

Page 555

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

The Community Development
Department, the Fire Department and

the Parks & Recreation Department
have reviewed and approved the Fuel

Modification Plan (FMP) for the

subdivision. The fuel modification
easement, where applicable, is shown

on the finai map for this subdivision.

Comments

The owner/applicant has complied
with this provision and completed
periodic on-site cleaning and sweeping
ofthe proiect site.

Responsible
Department

When
Required

Litter Control
During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and sweeping of
all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned

Prepare fuel modification plan (FMP).
The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification Plan consistent with the FPA Open Space

Management Plan to the City for review and approval by the city. Final approval of the plan

shall occur prior to the issuance of a building permit for any new construction. A Fuel

Modification Plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans showing fuel modification zones

indicated with applicable assessment notes, a detailed landscape plan and an irrigation plan. A
fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall be prepared by one of the following: a

Califomia state licensed landscape architect, or state licensed landscapc contractor, or a

landscape designed, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the Fire Code Official.

Notification of fuel modification requirements are to be made upon sale to new property owners.

Proposed changes to the approved Fuel Modification Plan sha'll be submitted to the City for
approval prior to implementation.

The owner/applicant shall dedicate a 3O-foot-wide fuel modification easement(s) for all
residential properties located adjacent to open space areas within the development. The

owner/applicant shall dedicate easements, if applicable, for the required fuel modification

buffer. The fuel modification easement(s) shall be shown on the Final Map. The

owner/applicant shall be responsible for the maintenance of the fuel modification areas until
such time that the City takes ownership of the open space areas that are to be deeded to the City
within thc project site.

CD (P), FD

cD (E)

M,B

OG

73

74

of the seasonbefore the
FIRE DEPT

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD,NORTH OFWIIITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAY,AND
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARKWAY

FOLSOM RATTCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAI, FOR TEE TOLL BROTIIERS AT

HOUSING PLANPDGP
4

Resolution No. 10670
Page 40 of I 41

Page 556

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

YesThe owner/applicant has designed and

received approval for all weather
access improvements and fire hydrants
for this subdivision. Permits for
vertical construction will not be issued
prior to these improvements being
completed. As of May 1,2022,rhe
City has issued approximately 1300

Certificates of Occupancy in the
Folsom Plan Area.

CommentsResponsible
Department

cD (P), FDG, I,M,B

When
Reouired

Condition of Approval

All-Weather Access and Fire Hydrants
The owner/applicant shall provide all-weather access and fire hydrants before combustible
materials are allowed on any project site or other approved alternative method as approved by
the Fire Department. All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed)

shall be provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on any project

site or other approved altemative method as approved by the Fire Department. (All-weather
access is defined as six inches ofcompacted aggregatebase fiom May I to September 30 and

two inches asphalt concrete over six inches aggregate base from October to April 30). The

building shall have illuminated addresses visible from the street or drive fronting the property.

Size and location of address identification shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire

Departrnent.
. Residential Fire-Flow with Automatic Fire Sprinkler System: The required fire-flow for the

proposed residential portion ofthe project is determined to be 875 GPM for one hour.

o All public streets shall meet City ofFolsom Street Standards.
o The maximum length ofany dead-end street shall not exceed 500 feet in accordance with the

Folsom Fire Code (unless approved by the Fire Department).
o All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be provided

before combustible material storage or vertical construction is allowed. All-weather access is

defined as 6" of compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and 2"AC over 6" AB from
October I to April 30

o The first Fire Station planned for the Folsom Plan Area may be required to be completed
and operational at the time that the threshold of 1,500 occupied homes within the Folsom
Plan Area is met.

Mitigation
Measures

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RAI{CH PROJECT (PN

WEST OFEAST BIDWELL ROAD,NORTHOTWHITE ROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENT]E PARKWAY,ANI)
SOTIIH OF MANGIM PARKWAY

19-091)

AND TNCLUSIONARYPD PERMITDA PLAII

75

Resolution No. 10670

Page 4l of l4l

Page 557

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measure

!

LANDSCAPE/TREE PRESERVATION REOUIREMENTS

Resolution No. 10670
Page 42 of 141

Page 558

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satislied?

YesThe owner/applicant obtained a Tree

Permit from the Community
Development Department for the
removal ofprotected oak trees that
were impacted by the grading and
construction ofPhase 1 ofthe Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.

The owner/applicant paid inJieu
fees for the removal of some trees,

the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
El Dorado County for the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protccted trees in accordancc with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within
the Phase I portion ofthe
subdivision were fenced offaround
their boundaries in advance ofthe
commencement of grading and
construction and the City verified
compliance by inspecting the fence
in advance of grading.

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

CD (PXE)

When
Required

G, I

Condition of Approval

following:

o A Tree Permit Application containing an application form, iustification statement, site map,

preservation progmm, and arborist's report shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom by the

owner/applicant for issuance of a Tree Permit prior to commencement of any grading or site

improvement activities.

A Mitigation Plan shall be prepared by the owner/applicant to mitigate for the removal of
the protected canopy oak Trees and Isolated oak Trees within the development site. The

Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shall consist of replacement trees and/or payment

of"In-Lieu" fees on a diameter inch bases consistent with 10-14, 10-15 ofthe FPASP.

Replacement trees may be located within the boundaries of the development parcel, a

natural parkway, landscape corridor or passive or preserve open space zone, preferably

within the Folsom Plan Area. The Mitigation Plan for the Isolated Oak Trees shal1 be

subject to review and approval by the City. The Mitigation Plan for the Canopy Oak Trees

shall be consistent 
"riith 

the mitigation requirements established by the Folsom Plan Area

Specific P1an.

The Conservation Areas shall be fenced prior to construction. In addition, oak trees to be

preserved within the Passive Recreation Open Spaces shall be fenced with high-visibility
fencing prior to starting construction. The fencing shall be installed outside the tree

preservation zone of oak trees, and shall surround the entirety of the tree preservation zone

area. Parking of vehicles, equipment, or storage of materials is prohibited within the Tree

Protection Zone of Protected Trees at all times. Signs shall be posted on exclusion fencing
stating that the enclosed trees are to be preserved. Signs shall state the penalty for damage

to, or remova'l of, the protected tree.

a

Tree
and

the
forCode

protected

include

of

shall
Municipal

This

removalfor
Folsomof

preserved.

mltrgate

be
City

to
the

permit,
of

trees
16

to
12.

removal

impacts

tree
Chapterwith

indirect

obtainshall

mlnlmlze
accordance

and
trees

owner/applicantThe

Preservation,
heritage

Mitigation
Measure

WNST OF EAST BTDWELL ROAD,NORTH Otr'WHITEROCKROAD, EAST OF OAKAVENUEPARJ(WAY,AND
SOUTH OF MANGINI PARJCVYAY

BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-O9T)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL

ARYANDSL PDDA

#

'76.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 43 of 14 I

Page 559

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has retained an

ISA certified project arborist. The
project arborist was on-site during
the removal ofall protected oak trees

and was present during grading
within the hee protection zone
(TPQ of those hee that were to be
preserved. All ofthe preserved trees

were identifid tagged and TP Z
fencing was placed around them
prior to commencement of grading
in Auzust of 2020.

cD (PXE)

Responsible
Department

G

When
Required

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall retain an ISA certified project arborist for implementation ofthe
project The project arborist shall be responsible for overseeing onsite tee removal and tree

preservation. Oak trees located adjacent to construction areas that may be indirectly
impacted due to work within or near the Tree Protection Zone shall be identified and tagged

by the project arborist during constuction activities. The indirectly impacted tees shall be

monitored by the project arborist for five years in accordance with the Conceptual Oak Plan

and FPASP EIR/EIS Mitigation Measure 3A.3-5. Trees that appear to be dead or dying
within five years of project implementation will be replaced as per the requirements of this

Plan.

a

Mitigation
Measure

#

77

Resolution No. 10670
Page 44 of 141

Page 560

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



COIIDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTIIERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WIilTE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENT]E PARKWAY, AIII)
SOUTH OF MANGIIN PARI(WAY

GPA, SPA,DAAMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, INCLUSIONARY ITOUSING PLAII
Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance of a

building permit
in the
subdivision.

Yes

Comments

The Community Development
Department is currently reviewing
the landscape and streetscape plans
for this subdivision. Prior to plan

approval, the Community
Development Department will
rcview the plans for compliance with
this condition.

The landscape and irrigation
improvements for all open space

parcels in the subdivision will be
constructed upon completion ofthe
roads and lots that adioin them.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (P)(E)

cD (P)

When
Required

B

I, OG

Condition of Approval

Landscaping Plans
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape architect
and approved by the City prior to the approval of the first building permit. Said plans sha'll

include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree planting exhibit
demonstrating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to the satisfaction.ofthe
Community Development Department. The tree exhibit shall include all street hees, accent

trees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trecs proposed within the development. Said

plans shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations, Govemor's declarations and

restrictions pertaining to water conservation and outdoor landscaping.

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient requirements

as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own Water Efftcient
Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply with any new ordinance.

Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to the most current American National

Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified tree care professionals. Tree

topping for height reduction, view protection, light clearance or any other purpose shall not be

allowed. Speciatty-style pruning, such as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved

landscape plans and shall be implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period. The

owner/applicant shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage.

Owneriapplicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to landscape

water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought conditions on all
landscaoins in the Toll Brothers proiect.

Right of Way Landscaping
Landscaping along all road rights ofway and in public open space lots shall be installed when
the adjoining road or lots are constructed.

Mitigation
Measure

!

78.

'79

Resolution No. 10670

Page 45 of l4l

Page 561

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCE PROJf,CT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, f,AST OF OAK AVEI\IUE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA. SPA. DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERl}trT, AIID INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

Comments

The required subdivision
improvement agreement is included
as part ofthe City staffreport
accompanying the final map for City
Council approval. The resolution
approving the final map for this
subdivision includes a statement
authorizing the City Manager to
execute the subdivision improvement
agteement for the subdivision along
with approval of the final map.
The owner/applicant has executed an
Inclusionary Housing Agreement
with the City. The agreement allows
the owner/applicant to provide an in-
lieu fee assigned to each building
permit in the subdivision. The in-lieu
housing fee will be paid at the time
of buildins nermit i ssuance.

Responsible
Department

MAP REQUIREMENTS

cD (E)

cD (P)(E)

When
Required

M

M

Condition of Approval

Subdivision Imp rovement Agreement
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agreement with the City, identifying all required improvements, if any, to be
constructed with each proposed phase ofdevelopment. The owneriapplicant shall provide
security acceptable to the City. guaranteeing construction of the improvements.

The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan
The Final Inclusionary Housing Plan shall be approved by the City Council, and the
Inclusionary Housing Agreement approved by the City Attomey shall be executed prior to
recordation ofthe first Small-Lot Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

Mitigation
Measures

80.

81

Resolution No. 10670
Page 46 of 141

Page 562

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed the
subdivisions CC & R's and verified
that all required disclosures in this
condition of approval are included.

CD (P) PKM

Department of Real Estate Public Report
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the homebuyers in the Department of Real Estate Pubiic
Report and the CC&R's for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project the following items:

l) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity to the

proposed subdivision, and that the public parks may include facilities (basketball courts,

a baseball field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground equipment) that may
generate noise impacts during various times, including but not limited to evening and

nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also disclose that the existing public parks

include nighttime sports lighting that may generate lighting impacts during evening and

nighttime hours.

2) The soil in the subdivision may contain naturally occurring asbestos and naturally
occurring arsenic.

3) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or historic
object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance of any archaeological
site or historic property, is prohibited.

4) The project site is located within close proximity to the Mather Airport flight path and

that overflight noise may be present at various times.

5) That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or used for
agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by written
disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City ofFolsom, advising any

transferee ofthe potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding agricultural
operations which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the County of
Sacramento concerning any such property within the County zoned for agricultural uses

within one mile of the subject property being hansferred.

6) The project site is located adjacent to the future JPA Connector which may generate

noise impacts during various times including but not limited to evening and nighttime
hours.

82

Resolution No. 10670
Page 47 of 141

Page 563

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



cor\DrTloNs oF APPROVAL FOR TIrE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCII PROJECT (PN 19-091)
W['ST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARI(WAY, AND

SOUTII OF MANGINI PARI(WAY
GPA" SPA. DAAMENDMENTS. SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AI\D INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Comments

The owner/applicant has dedicated a

12.5' PUE along all roadway utility
corridors as well as internal streets

within the subdivision. The public
utility easements are shown on the
frnal map.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved the phasing plan for Phase

3A ofthe Toll Brothers oroiect.
The owner/applicant provided all
necessary public utility easements,
grant deeds, offers ofdedication or
temporary construction easements
required to build all ofthe required
Backbone Infrastructure needed to
serve the subdivision. These were
recorded with Sacramento County
Recorder bv separate instrument.
The owner/applicant has installed
new benchmarks per the direction of
the City Engineer and the new
benchmarks have been placed in
compliance with this condition of
approval.

Responsible
Department

CD (E)

CD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

When
Required

M

M

M

M

Condition of Approval

P u b lic Utility E as e me nts
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities on
properties adjacent to the public and private streets. A minimum oftwelve and one-half-foot
(12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas and
Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all public and private street
rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate
extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of the public utility easements

adjacent to public and private right ofway may be reduced with prior approval from public
utilitv companies.
Final Map Phasing
Should multiple Final Maps be filed by the owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall be to the
satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

B ac kb o n e I nfr astr uctu re
As provided for in the ARDA and the Amendment No. 1 thereto, the owner/applicant shall
provide fully executed grant deeds, legal descriptions, and plats for all necessary Infrastructure
to serve the project, including but not limited to lands, public rights ofway, public utility
easements, public water main easements, public sewer easements, irrevocable off'ers of
dedication andtemporary construction easements. All required easements as listed necessary
for the Infrastructure shall be reviewed and approved by the City and recorded with the
Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of the
ARDA, and any amendments thereto.
New Permanent Benchmarks
The owner/applicant shall provide and establish new permanent benchmarks on the [NA\D 88)
datum in various locations within the subdivision or at any other locations in the vicinity ofthc
projecVsubdivision as directed by the City Engineer. The type and specifications for the
permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the Cify. The new benchmarks shall be placed by
the owner/applicant within 6 months from the date ofapproval ofthe vesting tentative
subdivision map.

Mitigation
Measures

#

83

84.

85.

86.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 48 of 141

Page 564

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance of a

building permit.

Condition will
be satisfied prior
to issuance of a

building permit.

Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

The owner/applicant has executed all
ofthe required Specific Plan
Infrastructure Fee

CreditiReimbursement Agreemcnts

for the Phase 3A subdivision. The
executed agreements are on file with
the Community Development
Department.

The Community Development
Department shall verify that the

owner/applicant has provided the

required recorded copy ofthe final
map to the CDD prior to building
nermit issuance in the subdivision.
The Community DeveloPment
Department shall verify that the

owner/applicant has provided the

required recorded copy ofthe final
map to the FCUSD prior to building
permit issuance in the subdivision.

Comments

The final map for this subdivrston
includes the required easement for
the placement of centralized mail
delivery units. The USPS will
provide the owner/applicant with the

location of the mail delivery unit and

will providc a concrete pad for thc
placement is the specified location in
the subdivision.

cD (P),
FCUSD

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

Responsible
Department

M

M

B

When
Required

Recorded Final Map
Prior to issuance ofbuilding permits, the owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova

Unified School District with a copy of the recorded Final Map.

C redit Reim b ur s em e nt Agre em ent
Prior to the recordation of the first Small-Lot Final Map, the owner/applicant and City shall

enter into a credit and reimbursement agreement for constructed improvements that are included

in the Folsom Plan Area's Public Facilities Financing Plan.

Recorded Final Map
Prior to the issuance of building permits, the owner/applicant sha1l provide a digital copy of the

recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the Community Development Department. The

exception to this requirement are model homes; subject to approval of the Community

Development Department, building permits for model homes only may be issued prior to
recordins olthe Final Mao.

Condition of Approval

Centralized Mqil Delivery Units
All Final Maps shall show easements or other mapped provisions for the placement of
centralized mail delivery units. The owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for the

placement of any centralized mail delivery unit. Specifications and location of such base shall

be determined pursuant to the applicable requirements ofthe U. S. Postal Service and the City

of Folsom Community Development Department, with due consideration for street light

location, traffic safety, security, and consumer conveniencc.

Mitigation
Measures

88.

89.

90.

WEST OFEASTBIDWELL ROAD,NORTH OTWIIITEROCKROAD, EAST OF'OAKAVENUE PARKWAY' AND
SOUTE OF MANGTM PARKWAY

RANCH PROJECT GN 19-091)COI\DITIONS OF A}PROVAL F'OR THE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM

DASP HOUSINGPLANPD AND

#

87

Resolution No. 10670
Page 49 of 141

Page 565

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Denartment

When
Required

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

#

ARCHITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

Resolution No. 10670
Page 50 of 141

Page 566

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit.

The Community Development
Department will review and approve
all site and building plans in the

subdivision to veriff compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the
subdivision.

cD (P) (B)B

The Regency Phase I portion ofthe Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project

(Lots l-590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) shall comply with
the following architecture and design requirements:

L This approval is for five, one-story master plans in four architectural styles with three

color and material options each for the Regency portion of the Toll Brothers project.

The applicant shall submit building plans that comply with this approval and the

attached building elevations dated August 30,2019.

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Regency single-family and

townhome residential tmits sha1l be consistent with the submitted building elevations,

materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

3. The Community Development Department shall approve the individual lot permits to

assure no duplication or repetition of the same house, same roofline, same elevation

style, side-by-side, or across the sheet from each other.

4. All mechanical equipment shall be ground-mounted and concealed from view of
public streets, neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings- For lots abutting

the open space areas, mechanical equipment shall be located out ofview from open

space axeas.

j. Decorative light fixtures, consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design

Guidelines and unique to each architectural design theme, shall be added to the front
building elevation of each Master Plan to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

6. A minimum of one street shall be planted in the front yard of each residential lot
within the subdivision. A minimum of two trees are required along the sheet-side of
all comer lots. All front yard irrigation and landscaping shall be installed prior to a

Building Permit Final.

7. A maximum of 25'/o of the townhome product located on interior lots shall been
permitted to have a side entry at the primary entrance location to the residence

9t

Resolution No. 10670

Page 51 of 141

Page 567

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofa
building permit.

Condition
Satislied?

Yes

The Community Development
Department will review and approve

all site and building plans in the

subdivision to verify compliance
with this condition prior to building
permit issuance on all lots in the

subdivision.

Comments

This condition has been satisfied
with the approval ofthe Phase 34'
design review by the Planning
Commission.

cD (P) (E)

CD (P) PR

Responsible
Department

B

B

When
Required

Mechanical Equipment Screening
All mechanical equipment shall be concealed fiom view ofpublic and private streets,

neighboring properties and nearby higher buildings where practicable to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Department.

Design Review Approval
Prior to issuance of a building permit for any residential units within the traditional
Subdivisions (Lots 1-21 4 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map) and

Regency Phase 2 (421 unmapped residential units) portions ofthe Toll Brothers at Fo'lsom

Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review and/or Planned Development

approval from the Planning Commission for all residences to be built within the

aforementionedportionsoftheprojectarea. Ifthearchitectureisnotconsistcntwiththe
Folsom Ranch cental District Design Guidelines, the owner applicant may modify the plans

or apply for a modification to the Design Guidelines to be reviewed by the Planning

Commission.

In addition, the final design ofthe clubhouse within the Regency Phase I portion ofthe project

shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. If other clubhouse

structures are proposed with the Regency Phase 2 portion ofthe project or the traditional

Subdivision portion ofthe project, they will also be subject to review and approval by the

Plannins Commission.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

93

92.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUf, PARKWAY, AND
SOI]TII OF MAIIGIM PARKWAY

PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH

AND INCLPD PERMITDA

Resolution No. 10670

Page 52 of 141

Page 568

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCII PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELLROAD, NORTTI OFWIIITN ROCK ROAD, trAST OF OAKAVENUE PARKWAT AI\'D
SOUTH OF MAIIGIM PARKWAY

GPA, SPA, DAAMENDMENTS, SLVTSM. PD PERMIT. AND INCLUSIONARY IIOUSING PLAI{
Condition
Satisfied?

Yes

Yes

The creation of
the Phase 2

regency private
amenity lots
will be part of
the future Phase

2 subdivision.
Condition wili
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
342"d building
oermit.
Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
59Oth building
permit.

Comments

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks
Plan for the required park land
transfers and the modified plans are

on file with the Community
Development Department.

The final map for this subdivrsron
includes the creation ofLot D (5
acres) and includes a note that Lot D
will be granted to the Regency HOA
by separate instrument. The other
lots in Phase 1 will be created with
future phased maps in the Regency
project.

The Community Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development of the
Regency age-restricted project to
verify compliance with this
condition.
The Community Development
Department will monitor the
progress of development of the
Regency age-restricted project to
verify compliance with this
condition.

Responsible
DeDartment

PARKS AND

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

When
Required

B

M, OC

B, OG

B, OG

Condition of Approval

The owner/applicant shall modify the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks Plan to identify the

relocated public park lands that are outside of the project area prior to issuance of the first
building permit for Regency Phase l The relocated parklands shall include 8 acres adjacent to
the planned Local Park No. 4 (LP4) which is 2.3 acres in size, resulting in a 10.3-acre park site

The remaining 2 acres shall be relocated adjacent to Local Park No. 2 (LP2) which is 1.1 acres

insize,resultingina3.l-acreparksite. Finalparklandlocationandsizeshallbeapprovedby
the Parks and Recreation Director.
The owner/applicant shall provide 7.5-acres ofprivate recreation facilities within the
"Regency" Phase 1 Subdivision (Lot D: 5.0-acres)(Lot G: 0.5-acres)(Lot F: 0.5-acres)

and "Traditional Homes" Subdivision (Lot E: 1.5-acres) portions ofthe proposed project as

shown on the Small Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivision Maps. The final size and location of
the private amenity within the "Regency" Phase 2'Subdivision as shown on the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch Master Plan Exhibit will be determined with approval of the future
entitlements associated with "Regency" Phase 2.

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (342nd building permit) within Phase lB of the

Regency Phase 1 Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated

January 24,2020, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private amenity and

maintain continual progress until completion.

Prior to issuance of the last building permit (590th building permit) in Phase I C of the

Regency Phase I Active-Adult Community as shown on the Conceptual Phasing Exhibit, dated

January 24,2029, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe two private dog-park
amenities and maintain continual progress until completion.

Mitigation
Measures

94.

9s

96-

97

Resolution No. 10670

Page 53 of 141

Page 569

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)
WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK RON), EAST OF' OAK AVENUE PART(WAY, AND

SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY
GPA, SPA, DA AMENDMENTS, SLVTSM, PD PERMIT, AND INCLUSIONARY HOUSING PLAN

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
137'h building
permit in Phase
J

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to
issuance ofthe
last building
permit in Phase

1

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Ooen Space

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Ooen Soace

Comments

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The Community Development and
Parks Departments will monitor the
development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

Responsible
Deoartment

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

When
Reouired

B, OG

B

G, I, OG

G, I, OG

Condition of Approval

Prior to issuance of the l37th building permit within Traditional Subdivision portion of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project, the owner/applicant shall begin construction ofthe private
amenity and maintain continual progress until complefion.

Prior to the issuance ofthe last building permit within Regency Phase 1, the owner/applicant
shall complete grading of the public trails on Lots H, I, J, and N, and the Class I trail parallel
to Mangini Parkway on Lots Q and R, as shown on the Toll Brothers Public Trails System
Modification Exhibit and Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map , dated lanuary 24, 2020.

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance ol all graded subdivision trails and
completed Class I trail parallel to Mangini Parkway within the responsibility of the
development Homeowner's Association (HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City.
The City shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result ofthese trails
until the transfer of Open Space ownershio to the City is complete.

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance of all private trail connections within the
responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association (HOA) in perpetuity. The City
shall not incur any maintenance responsibility or expense as a result of these private trail
connections to the public trails within the subdivision.

Mitigation
Measures

#

98

99

100.

101

Resolution No. 10670
Page 54 of 141

Page 570

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition shall
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Parkland.

Yes

Condition
Satisfied?

Condition will
be satisfied
prior to City
acceptance of
Open Space

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and

approved the CC&R's for the

subdivision that include this
restriction and will monitor the
oroiect to ensure compliance.

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

The owner/applicant has modified
the FPASP Land Use Plan and Parks

Plan for the required park land

transfers and the modified plans are

on file with the Community
Development Department.

Comments

The Community Development and

Parks Departments will monitor the

development ofthe project to verify
compliance with this condition.

cD (E) (P)

Responsible
Department

cD (E) (P),

PR

OG

When
Required

OG

The Regency Phase 1 (Lots 1'590 as shown on the Small-Lot Vesting Tentative Subdivrston

Map dated october I7 , 2019) and the Regency Phase 2 unmapped portions of the Toll Brothers

at Folsom Ranch project shall be limited to age-restricted (Age 55+) residential units.

The owner/applicant shall update the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to reflect all changes and

modifications to the General Plan Land Use and Specific Plan Land Use diagrams, tables, and

exhibits to reflect changes resulting from the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project prior to
issuance of the first building permit to the satisfaction of the Community Development

Department.

G, I

Parkland dedications shall be calculated as net acreage.103

104.

B

cD (E) (P),

PR

cD (E) (P),
PR

The owner/applicant shall include the maintenance ofall 86.1-acres ofOpen Space (Measure

W Open Space) and fuel modification buffers, in accordance with the Folsom Plan Area Open

Space Master Plan, within the responsibility of the development Homeowner's Association
(HOA) until the Open Space is deeded to the City. The City shall not incur any maintenance

responsibility or expense as a result of this Open Space until the transfer of Open Space

ownership to the City is complete. In addition, the Open Space shall not be deeded to the City
until development on both sides adjacent to thc Open Space are complete and at such a time

the Citv is readv to take ownership.

Condition of ApprovalMitigation
Measures

105.

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF VTHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, ANI)
SOUTH OF MANGIM PARI(WAY

FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)CONDITIONS OFAPPROVAL FORTHE TOLL BROTHERS AT

HOUSINGSL PDD.4,

#

t02.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 55 of 141

Page 571

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Project Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP). Table I below describes the mitigation measures ftom

the FPASP (May 2011) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility Altemative (November 2012), Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014), the Westland Eagle Specific Plan Amendment (September

201 and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR TIIE TOLL BROTHERS AT FOLSOM RANCH PROJECT (PN 19-091)

WEST OF EAST BIDWELL ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD, EAST OF OAK AVENUE PARKWAY, ATID

SOUTH OF MANGINI PARKWAY
DA AI\DINCLU$ONARY

Condition
Satisfied?

Ycs

Yes

Comments

The Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch

subdivision does not have any frontage

along US HWY 50 and therefore this
condition does not apply to the

subdivision.

The construction staging area for the

subdivision is not located near any

existing sensitive biological resources,

land uses or existing residences. The
construction area is shown on the plans

for the subdivision and the plans have

Mitigation Measures

Responsible
Agency

Aesthetics
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department.

Timing

1. Plans and

specifications:
before approval
of grading plans

and building
permits

2. Construction:
before the
approval of
occupancy
permits
associated with
residential and

commercial
units

3. Maintenance:
in perpetuity

Before approval
of grading plans

and during
construction for
all project
phases.

Mitigation Measures

Construct and Maintain a Landscape Corridor Adjacent to U,S. 50. The project applicant(s) for any

particular discretionary development application adjacent to U.S. 50 shall fund, construct, and maintain a

landscaped conidor within the SPA, south of U.S. 50. This conidor shall be 50 feet wide, except that the

landscaped conidor width shall be reduced to 25 feet adjacent to the proposed regional mall. Landscaping

plans and specifications shall be approved by Caltrans and the City ofFolsom, and constructed by the project

applicant(s) before the start ofearthmoving activities associated with residential or commercial units.

Landscaped areas would not be required within the preserved oak woodlands. As practicable, landscaping

shall primarily contain native and/or drought tolerant plants. Landscaped corridors shall be maintained in
perpetuity to the satisfaction ofthe City ofFolsom.

Screen Construction Staging Areas. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

and material storage areas as far away from sensitive biological resources andapplication shall locate staging
sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage areas shall

before the approval of grading plans for all project
uses in earlier development phases to the

be approved by the appropriate agency (identified below)
phases and shall be screened from adjacent occupied land

maximum extenl practicable. Screens mdy include, but are not limited to, the use of such visual baniers such

Mitigation
Number
(Source)

3A,1-l

(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.r-4 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

19.

#

106

-t

106
t

Resolution No. 10670

Page 56 of 141

Page 572

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

been approved by the Community
Development Department.

The Community Development

Department (CDD) has reviewed and

approved lighting plans for subdivision.
The plans are in compliance with the

condition of approval.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
ofbuilding
permits.

as berms or fences. The screen design shall be approved by the appropriate agency to further reduce visual

effects to the extent possible.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shail be

developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and./or Sacramento Counties, and Caltrans) to reduce to the extent

feasible the visual effects ofconskuction activities on adjacent project land uses that have already been

developed.

Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and Implement a Lighting
Plan.

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall:

> Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-intensity nighttime lighting and glare as

part ofthe Folsom Specific Plan design guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to design

features, namely directional shielding for street lighting, parking lot lighting, and other substantiai light

sources, that would reduce effects ofnighttime lighting. In addition, consideration shail be given to the

use of automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting features to further reduce excess nighttime light.

> Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to prevent the light from shining off of the surface

intended to be illuminated.

To reduce impacts associated wittr light and glare, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall:

> Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct &e light downward and prevent light spill on adjacent

properties.

> Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime sporting activities, and/or security

shall be screened or aimed no higher than 45 degrees above straight down (half-way between straight

down and straight to the side) when the source is visible from any off-site residential property or public

roadway.

> For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use oflight fixtures that are ofunusually

high intensity or brightness (e.g., harsh mercury vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or

that blink or flash

> Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or finish, neutral,

earth-toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby

roadways.

> Desigt exterior on-site lighting as an integral part ofthe building and landscape design in the Folsom

Specific Plan area, Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally consistent with the overall site design.

3A.1-s (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-3

Resolution No. 10670

Page 57 of 141

Page 573

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on hle with the City.

Air Quality
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of all
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where

applicable, for
all project
phases.

> Lighting ofoff-site facilities within the City ofFolsom shall be consistent with the City's General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe off-site detention basin shall be consistent with Sacramento County General Plan

standards.

> Lighting ofthe two local roadway connections from Folsom Heights off-site into El Dorado Hills shall

be consistent with El Dorado County General Plan standards.

A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within the each agency's jurisdictional boundaries (specified

below) shall be submitted to the relevant jurisdictional agency for review and approval, which shall include

the above elements. The lighting plan may be submitted concunently with other improvement plans, and

shall be submitted before the installation of any lighting or the approval ofbuilding permits for each phase.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the

approved lighting plan.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by Construction of On-Site

Elements. To reduce short-term construction emissions, the project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application shall require their contractors to implement SMAQMD's list of Basic

Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices, and Enhanced

Exhaust Control Practices (list below) in effect at the time individual portions ofthe site undergo

construction. In addition to SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction operations shall comply with

all applicable SMAQMD rules and regulations.

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices

> Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not limited to soil piles,

graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access roads.

> Cover or maintain at least two feet offree board space on haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other

loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways

should be covered.

> Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible hackout mud or dirt onto adjacent public

roads at least once a day. Use of dry power sweeping is prohibited.

> Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 1 5 miles per hour (mph).

3A.2-la
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-4

Resolution No. 10670
Page 58 of l4i

Page 574

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



> All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as soon as possible.

In addition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used.

> Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment offwhen not in use or reducing the time of idling to 5

minutes (as required by the state airbome toxics control measure [Title 13, Section 2485 ofthe
Califomia Code ofRegulations]). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the

entrances to the site.

> Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to manufactLuer's

specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in
proper condition before it is operated.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas

> Water exposed soil with adequate flequency for continued moist soil. However, do not overwater to the

extent that sediment flows offthe site.

> Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed 20 mph.

> Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in disturbed areas as soon as possible.

Water appopriately until vegetation is established.

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads

> Install wheel washers for all edting trucks, or wash off all trucks and equipment leaving the site.

> Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to l2-inch layer ofwood chips,

mulch, or gravel to reduce generation ofroad dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

> Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the construction site

regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action within 48 hours. The
phone number of SMAQMD and the City contact person shall also be posted to ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices

> The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City ofFolsom Community Development

Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating that the heavy-duty (50 horsepower [hp] or more) off-road
vehicles to be used in tle construction project, including owned, leased, and subcontractor vehicles, will
achieve a project wide fleet-average 20% NOX reducnon and 45To particulate reduction compared to the

most cunent Califomia Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at the time of construction.

Acceptable options for reducing emissions may include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel
products, altemative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-heatment products, and/or other options as

they become available. The project applican(s) of each project phase or its representative shall submit to

the City of Folsom Community Development Department and SMAQMD a comprehensive inventory of all
off-road construction eouinment- eoual to or sreater than 50 hn- that would be used an assresate of40 or

Resolution No. 10670
Page 59 of 141

Page 575

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department
shall not grant
any grading
permits to the
respective
project
applicant(s)
until the
respective
project
aonlicant(s)

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction for
all project
phases.

more hours during any portion ofthe construction project. The inventory shall include the horsepower .

rating, engine producfion year, and projected hours ofuse for each piece ofequipment. The inventory shall

be updated and submitted monthly throughout the duration ofthe project, except that an inventory shall not

be required for any 30-day period in which no construcfion activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the

use ofheary-duty off-road equipment, the project representative shall provide SIIfr{QMD with the

anticipated construction timeline including start date, and name and phone number ofthe project manager

and on-site foreman. SMAQMD's Constuction Mitigation Calculator can be used to identify an equipment

fleet that achieves this reduction (SMAQMD 2007a). The project shall ensure that emissions from all off-
road diesel powered equipment used on ttre SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for more than three minutes in
any one hour. Any equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired

immediately, and the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours of identification of
noncompliant equipment. A visual suwey ofall in-operation equipment shall be made at least weekly, and

a monthly summary of the visual suwey results shall be submitted thrcughout the duration of the project,

except that the monthly summary shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no construction

activity occurs. The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type ofvehicles surveyed as well as

the dates of each srnvey. SMAQMD staffand/or other offrcials may conduct periodic site inspections to

determine compliance. Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede other SMAQMD or state rules or
regulations.

If at the time of construction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or new guidance applicable to
constmction emissions, compliance with the regulation or new guidance may completely or partially

replace this mitigation ifit is equal to or more effective than the mitigation contained herein, and if
SMAQMD so permits.

Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to Off-Set NOx Emissions Generated by Construction of On-
Site Elements,

Implementation ofthe project or the other four other action altsmatives would result in construction-
generated NOx emissions that exceed the SMAQMD threshold of signifrcance, even after implementation of
the SMAQMD Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices (listed in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a). Additionally,
Mitigation Measure 3A.4-1 (Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG
Emissions, pages 3A.4-14 to 15) has the potential to both reduce and increase NOx emissions, depending on
the types ofaltemative fuels and engine tlpes employed. Therefore, the project applicant(s) shall pay

SMAQMD an off-site mitigation fee for implementation of any of the five action altematives for the purpose

of reducing NOx emissions to a less-than-significant level (i.e., less than 85 lb/dar. All NOx emission
reductions and increases associated with GHG mitigation shall be added to or subtracted from the amount
above the construction threshold to determine off-site mitigation fees, when possible. The specific fee

amounts shall be calculated when the daily construction emissions can be more accurately determined: that

is, ifthe City/USACE select and certify the EIR/EIS and approves the Proposed Project or one ofthe other

3A.2-lb
(FPASP
ErRrErs)

106
-5

Resolution No. 10670
Page 60 of 141

Page 576

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City,

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Heiix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior

have paid the
appropriate off-
site mitigation
fee to
SMAQMD.

City ofFolsom
Comrnunity
Development
Department

Crty ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of all
grading plans

by the City.

Before issuance

of subdivision
maps or
improvement
plans.

four other action City and the applicants must establish the which development

would occur, and the applicants must develop a detailed

with each project development phase shall be conducted

SMAQMD staff before the approval of grading plans by

construction schedule. Calculation of fees associated

by
the

the project applicant(s) in consultation with
City The project applicant(s) for any particular

discretionary development application shall pay into SMAQMD's off-site constructlon mitigation tund to

further mitigate construction generated emlsslons ofNOx that exceed SMAQMD'S daily emlsslon threshold

of 85 lblday The calculation of dailyNOx emissions shall be based on the cost rate established by

SMAQMD at the time the calculation and payment are made. At the time of writing this EIRYEIS the cost

rate is $16,000 to reduce i ton ofNOx plus s% administrative fee (SMAQMD 2008c). The determination

of the final mitigation fee shall be conducted in coordination with SMAQMD before any ground disturbance

occurs for any project phase. Based on information avai'lable at the time ofwriting this EIR/EIS, and

assuming that ionstruction would be performed at a consistent rate over a l9-year period (and averaging of
22 work days per month), it is estimated that the off-site construction mitigation fees would range &om

$517,410 to $824,149, depending on which altemative is selected. Because the fee is based on the mass

quantity of emissions that exceed SMAQMD's daily threshold of significance of 85 lb/day, total fees would

be substantially greater ifconstruction activity is more intense during some phases and less intense during

other phases ofthe l9-year build out period, and in any event, based on the actual cost rate applied by

SMAQMD. (This fee is used by SMAQMD to purchase off-site emissions reductions. Such purchases are

made tluough SMAQMD's Heary Duty Incentive Program, tkough which select owners of heary-duty

equipment in Sacramento County can repower or retrofit their old engines with cleaner engines or

technologies.)

-analy,eandniscloseProjectedPMroEmissionConcentrationsatNearbySensitiveReceptorsResu1ting

fromConstruction of On-Site Elements. Prior to construction of each discretionary development entitlement

of on-site land uses, the project applicant shall perform a project-level CEQA analysis (e'g., supporting

documentation for an exemption, negative declaration, or project-specific EIR) that includes detailed

dispersion modeling of construction-generated PMro to disclose what PMro concentrations would be at nearby

sensitive receptors. The dispersion modeling shall be performed in accordance with applicable SMAQMD

guidance that is in place at the time the analysis is performed. At the time of writing this EIPJEIS,

SMAqMD's most cunent and most detailed guidance for addressing construction-generated PMro emissions

is found in its Guide to Air Quality Assessment in Sacramento County (SMAQMD 2009a). The projectlevel

analysis shall incorporate detailed parameters ofthe constmction equipment and activities, including the year

during which construction would be performed as well as the proximity ofpotentially affected receptors,

including receptors proposed by the project that exist at the time the construction activity would occur.

Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation PIan to Reduce Operational Air
Pollutant Emissions. To reduce operational

shall implement all
emrsslolls, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary

development
Specific Plan

application measures prescribed ln the SMAQMD-approved Folsom Plan fuea
Air Quality Mitigation Plan (AQMP) (Tonence Planning 2008), a copy ofwhich 1S included

Appendix c2. The AQMP is intended to improve mobility, reduce vehicle miles taveled, and improve air

3A.2-1c
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.2-2 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-6

106

Resolution No. 10670

Page6l of14l

Page 577

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on hle with the City.

The Cify and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.T\e
compliance table is on file with the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval ofall
grading plans

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the
approval ofall
grading plans
by the
SMAQMD and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

quality as required by AB 32 and SB 375. The AQMP includes, among others, measures designed to provide

bicycle parking at commercial land uses, an integrated pedestrian/bicycle path network, transit stops with
shelters, a prohibition against the use the wood-burning fireplaces, energy star roofing materials, elechic
lawnmowers provided to homeowners at no charge, and on-site transportation altematives to passenger vehicles
(including light rail) that provide connectivity wittr other local and regional altemative transportation networks.

Develop and Implement a Plan to Reduce Exposure of Sen$itive Receptors to Construction-Generated
Toxic Air Contaminant Emissions. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development
application shall develop a plan to reduce the exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by project
construction activity associated with buildout ofthe selected alternative. Each plan shall be developed by the
project applicant(s) in consultation with SMAQMD. The plan shall be submitted to the City for review and
approval before the approval of any grading plans.

The plan may include such measures as scheduling activities when the residences are the least likely to be

occupied, requiring equipment to be shut offwhen not in use, and prohibiting heavy truck from idling.
Applicable measures shall be included in all project plans and specifications for all project phases.

The implementation and enforcement of all measures identified in each plan shall be funded by the project
applicant(s) for the respective phase of development.

Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air
Contaminants, The following measures shall be implemented to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to
Toxic Air Contaminants.

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to emit TACs or host TAC-
generating activity (e.g., loading docks) shall be located away {iom existing and proposed on-site

sensitive receptors such that they do not expose sensitive receptors to TAC emissions that exceed an

incremental increase of 10 in I million for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest comer

ofthe SPA shall be set back as far as possible from the boundary of the corporation yard and/or relocated

to another area.

> Where necessary to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to an incremental increase of i0 in I million
for the cancer risk and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0, proposed commercial and industrial
land uses that would host diesel tmcks shall incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main
propulsion engine idling time through altemative technologies such as, IdleAire, electrification oftruck
parking, and altemative energy sources for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely hlned off

> Signs shall be posted in at all loading docks and truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered
delivery trucks must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to
reduce idline emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

34.2-4t
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.2-4b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-8

106
-9

Resolution No. 10670

Page 62 of 141

Page 578

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant obtained approval

for an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan

from the SMAQMD prior to

cornmencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

approved Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan

is on file with the Community
Development Department.

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measrire. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.

This subdivision is residential and is not
adjacent to any odorous land uses and is

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Deparknent

Before the
approval ofall
grading pians

by the City and

throughout
project
construction,
where
applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before the

approval of
building
permits by the

City and

throughout
project
conskuction,
where

Motor Vehicle Idling, which was approved by the California Office of Administrative Law in January

200s

Implement the following additional guidelines, which are recommended in ARB's Land Use Handbook:

A Community Health Perspective (ARB 2005) and are considered to be advisory and not regulatory:

. Sensitive receptors, such as residential units and daycare centers, shall not be located in the same

building as dry,cleaning operations that use perchloroethylene. Dry-cleaning operations that use

perchloroethylene shall not be located within 300 feet of any sensitive receptor. A setback of 500 feet

shall be provided for operations with two or more machines.

' Large gasoline stations (defined as facilities with a throughput of 3.6 million gallons per year or greater)

and sensitive land uses shall not be sited within 300 feet of each other. Small gasoline-dispensing

facilities (less than 3.6 million gallons ofthroughput per year) and sensitive land uses shall not be sited

within 50 feet of each other.

throughout the construction period.

Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Odorous Emissions.

Thi project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall implement the

following measures:

> The odor-producing potential ofland uses shall be considered when the exact type offacility that would

occupy areas zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses is determined. Facilities that have

the potential to emit objectionable odors shall be located as far away as feasible from existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site corporation yard near the southwest comer

ofthe SPA shall be set back as far as possible +^* {"^ L^,,-,1"-, comoratinn vard relocatedof the and/or

3A.2-s (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.2-6 (FPASP
EIRIEIS)

r06
-10

106
-11

Resolution No. 10670

Page 63 of 141

Page 579

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

not adiacent to the future Corporation
Yard.

The Owner/applicant has received a
NPDES permit from the State
Regional Water Quality Control
Board (SRWQCB). The NDES
Permit requires the implementation
of BMP's, monitoring and reporting
for stormwater runoff. The NPDES
Permit includes a Storm Water

Biological Resources

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

applicable, for
all project
phases.

Before approval
of improvement
and drainage
plans, and on an

ongoing basis

throughout and

after project
construction, as

to another area. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit exposure to TAC

emissions.)

> Before the approval ofbuilding permits, odor control devices shall be identified to mitigate the exposure

ofreceptors to objectionable odors if a potential odor-producing source is to occupy an area zoned for
commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses. The identified odor control devices shall be installed

before the issuance of certificates of occupancy for the potentially odor-producing use. The odor

producing potential of a source and control devices shall be determined in coordination with SMAQMD

and based on the number ofcomplaints associated with existing sources ofthe same nature.

> The deeds to all properties located within the plan area that are within one mile ofan on- or off-site area

zoned or used for agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by a written

disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of Folsom, advising any transferee ofthe
potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding agriculhral operations, which disclosure shall direct

the transferee to contact the County of Sacramento conceming any such property within the County

zoned for agricultural uses within one mile ofthe subject property being transfened.

> Truck loading docks and delivery areas shall be located as far away as feasible from existing and

proposed sensitive receptors.

> Signs shall be posted at all loading docks and truck loading areas which indicate that diesel-powered

delivery trucks must be shut offwhen not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to

reduce idling emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial

Motor Vehicle Idling, which was approved by California's Office of Administrative Law in January

2005. (This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

> Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential to host diesel tucks shall

incorporate idle reduction strategies that reduce the main propulsion engine idling time through

altemative technologies such as, IdleAire, electrification oftruck parking, and altemative energy sources

for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be completely turned off. (This measure is also required by
Mitigation Measure3A.2-4b to limit TAC emissions.)

Design Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid and Minimize
Erosion and Runoffto All Wetlands and Other Waters That Are to Remain on the SPA and Use Low
Impact Development treatures.

To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrology, the project applicant(s) for any
particular discretionary development application shall include stomwater drainage plans and erosion and

sediment control plans in their improvement plans and shall submit these plans to the City Public Works
Department for review and approval. For off-site elements within Sacramento County or El Dorado County

iurisdiction (e.e., off-site detention basin and off-site roadway connections to El Dorado Hills), plans shall be

3A.3-la
(FPASP
ErR/EIS)

106

-12

Resolution No. 10670

Page 64 of 141

Page 580

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP),
which outlines monitoring standards,
frequency and baseline modeling.
The Owner/applicant has submitted
monthly reports to the City and
SRWQCB. There are no off-site
elements outside the City limits for
this subdivision.

required for all
project phases.

wetlands and other waters that would remain on-site. Detailed information about stormwater runoff standards

and relevant City and County regulation is provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality."

The project applican(s) for any particular discretionary development entitlement shall implement stormwater

quality treatment conhols consistent with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South

Placei Regions in effect at the time the application is submitted. Appropriate runoffcontols such as berms,

storm gates, off-sheam detention basins, overllow collection areas, filtration systems, and sediment traps

shall be implemented to control siltation and the potentral discharge ofpollutants. Development plans shall

incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) features, such as pervious strips, permeable.pavements,

biorelention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain gardens, where

appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on water_quality,

hydroiogy, and stream geomorphology and is specified as a method for protecting water quality in the

pioposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems shall be used for all roadway crossings over

wetlands and other waters that are retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain

the natural and restored channels ofcreeks, including the associated wetlands, and would be designed with

sufficient span width and depttr to provide for wildlife movement along the creek conidors even duling high-

flow or flood events, as lpecified in the 404 permit.

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary

development application shall prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement

Best Managemint Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Constnrction Stormwater Permit from the

Central Vailey RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction. Detailed information about the

SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Qualiry."

Each project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek and associated

tributiries, or to Buifalo Creek, Carson Creek, and Coyote Creek. The project applicant(s) shall establish a

baseline of conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be established for 2-, 5-, and

100-year storm events. These baseline conditions shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the

stormwater system on the SPA. The baseline conditions, monitoring standards, and a monitoring program

shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be

designed and constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,

"Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be designed as off-stream detention basins. Discharge sites

into Aldei'Creek and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek, Coyote Creek, and Buffalo

Creek. shall be monitored to ensure that pre-proiect conditions are being met. measures shal'l be

Resolution No. 10670
Page 65 of 141

Page 581

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and
verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The Owneriapplicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit
requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP). which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has recorded
Declarations of Covenants &
Restrictions (DCR's) in compliance with
the requirements of the USACE permit.

The DCR's are shown on the final map.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of
grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbhg
activities for
any project
development
phase

containing
wetland
features or other
waters of the
U.S. The MMP
must be

approved before
any impact on
wetlands can

occur.

Mitigation shall
be implemented
on an ongoing
basis

tbLroughout and

after

implemented as necessary. The mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring standards are met
for 5 consecutive years without undertaking conective measures to meet the perfomance standard.

See FEIR/FEIS Appendix S showing that the detention basin in the northeast corner ofthe SPA has been
moved off stream.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected
oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado County for the roadway connections, Sacramento County for the
detention basin west ofPrairie City Road, and Caltrans for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements) such that
the performance standards described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met.

Secure Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditionsl Ensure No Net
Loss of Functions and Values of Wetlands, Other Waters of the U.S., and Waters of the State.

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans and before any groundbreaking activity associated

with each distinct discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) for any particular
discretionary development application requiring fill ofwetlands or other waters ofthe U.S. or waters ofthe
state shall oblain all necessary permits under Sections 401 and 404 ofthe CWA or the state's Porter-Cologne
Act for the respective phase. For each respective discretionary development entitlement, all permits,

regulatory approvals, and permit conditions for effects on wetland habitats shall be secured before
implementation of any grading activities within 250 feet ofwaters ofthe U.S. or wetland habitats or lesser

distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, including waters
ofthe state, that potentially support Federally listed species. The project applicant(s) shall commit to replace,
restore, or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance with USACE and the Central Valley RWQCB) the

acreage ofall wetlands and other waters ofthe U.S. that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded with
implementation of project plans for that development increment. Wetland habitat shall be restored, enhanced,

and/or replaced at an acreage and location and by methods agreeable to USACE, the Central Valley
RWQCB, and the City, as appropriate, depending on agencyjurisdiction, and as determined during the
Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes. As part ofthe Section 404 permitting process, a draft
wetland mitigation and monitoring plan (MMP) shall be developed for the project on behalfofthe project
applicant(s). Before any ground-disturbing activities in an area that would adversely affect wetlands and

before engaging in mitigation activities associated with each discretionary development entitlement, the

project applicant(s) shall submit the draft wetland MMP to USACE, the Central Valley RWQCB,
Sacramento County, El Dorado County, and the City for review and approval ofthose portions ofthe plan

over which they have jurisdiction. The MMP would have to be finalized prior to impacting any wetlands.
Once the final MMP is approved and implemented, mitigation monitoring shall continue for a minimum of 5
years from completion of mitigation, or human intervention (including recontouring and grading), or until the
performance standards identified in the approved MMP have been me! whichever is longer.

As part ofthe MMP, the project applicant(s) shall prepare and submit plans for the creation of aquatic habitat
in order to adequatelv offset and reolace the aquatic functions and services that would be lost at the SPA.

3A.3-lb
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

106

-13

Resolution No. 10670
Page 66 of 14i

Page 582

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



account for the temporal loss of habitat, and contain an adequate margin of safety to reflect anticipated

success. Restoration ofpreviously altered and degraded wetlands shall be a priority ofthe MMP for
offsetting losses of aquatic functions on the SPA because it is typically easier to achieve functional success in

restored wetlands than in those created from uplands. The MMP must demonstrate how the aquatic functions

and values that would be lost through project implementation will be replaced.

The habitat MMP for jurisdictional wetland features shall be consistent with USACE's and EPA's April 10,

2008 Final Rule for Compensatory Mitigation for Losses ofAquatic Resources (33 CFR Parts 325 and332

and 40 CFR Part 230) and USACE's October 26, 2010 Memorandum Re: Minimum Level of Documentation

Required for Permit Decisions. According to the Final Rule, mitigation banks should be given preference

over other types ofnritigation because a lot ofthe risk and uncertainty regarding mitigafion success is alleviated

by the fact that mitigation bank wetlands must be established and demonshating functionality before credits can

be sold. The use ofmitigation credits also alleviates temporal losses ofwetland f.rnction while compensatory

wetlands are being established. Mitigation banks also tend to be on larger, more ecologically valuable parcels

and are subjected to more rigorous scientific study and planning and implementation procedures than typical
permittee-responsible mitigation sites (USACE and EPA, 2008). Permittee-responsible on-site mitigation areas

can be exposed to long-term negative effects ofsunounding development since they tend to be smaller and less

buffered than mitigation banks. The Final Rule also establishes a preference for a '\natershed approach" in

selecting locations for compensatory mitigation project locations, that mitigation selection must be "appropriate

and practicable" and that mitigation banks must address watershed needs based on criteria set forth in the Final

Rule. The watershed approach accomplishes this objective by expanding the informational and analltic basis of
mitigation project site selection decisions and ensuring that both authorized impacts and mitigation are

considered on a watershed scale rather than only project by Foject. This requires a degree offlexibility so that

district engineers can authorize mitigation projects that most effectively address the case-specific circumstances

and needs ofthe watershed, while remaining practicable for the permittee. The SPA includes portions ofthe
Alder Creek, Buffalo Creek, Coyote Creek, and Carson Creek Watersheds. The majority ofthe SPA is within

the Alder Creek Watershed Alder Creek and Buffalo Creek are part of the Lower American River Watershed.

Carson Creek and Coyote Creek are part of the Cosumnes River Watershed. Mitigation credits may be available

within the Cosumnes Watershed, but not within the American River Watershed and not within the sub-

watersheds ofthe SPA. Therefore, aquatic habitats may need to be restored or created on the SPA and adjacent

off-site lands, preferably within the affected watersheds, in order to successfuily replace lost fimctions at the

appropriate watershed scale where loss of firnction would occur. It is not likely feasible to provide

compensatory mitigation for all aquatic resource impacts on site.

Therefore, a combination of on-site and off-site permittee-responsible mitigation and mitigation banking

would likely be necessary to achieve the no-netloss standard.

The SPA is located within the service areas of several approved mitigation banks (e.g., Bryte Ranch, Clay

Station, Fitzgerald Ranch, and Twin City Mitigation Bank). The majority of compensatory mitigation for

wetland impacts is proposed to be accomplished at an agency approved mitigation bank or banks authorized

to sell credits to offset imoacts in the SPA. The aoolicants' bioloeical consultant. ECORP, has identified

construction, as

required.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 67 of !41

Page 583

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



availability of approximately 3 I vemal pool credits and 228 seasonal wetland credits at mitigation banks

whose service area includes the SPA. Additional credits may also be available from pending, but not yet

approved, mitigation banks. However, availability is subject to change and, as noted above, a combination of
mitigation bank credits and permittee-responsible on and off-site mitigation may be necessary to fully offset

project impacts on wetlands and other waters of the U.S. If USACE determines that the use of mitigation

bank credits is not sufficient mitigation to offset impacts within the SPA, the October 26, 2010 Memorandum

Re: Minimum Level of Documentation Required for Permit Decisions requires USACE to specifically

demonstrate why the use ofbank credits is not acceptable to USACE in accordance with Section 33 CFR

332.3(a)(1).

Compensatory mitigation for losses of stream and intermittent drainage channels shall follow the Final Rule

Guidilines, which specify that compensatory mitigation should be achieved through in-kind preservation,

restoration, or enhancement within the same watershed, subject to practicability considerations. The wetland

MMP shall address how to mitigate impacts on vemal pool, seasonal swale, seasonal wetland, seep, marsh,

pond, and intermittent and perermial stream habitat, and shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented

io avoid and/or mitigate any off-site project-related impacts. The wetland compensation section ofthe habitat

MMP shall include the following:

> Compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites. In General, compensatory

mitigation sites should meet the following criteria, based on the Final Rule;

. located within the same watershed as the wetland or other waters that would be lost, as appropriate and

practicable;

. located in the most likely position to successfully replace wetland functions lost on the impact site

considering watershed-scale features such as aquatic habitat diversity, habitat connectivity, available

water sowces and hydrologic relationships, land use trends, ecological benefits, and compatibility with

adjacent land uses, and the likelihood for success and sustainability;

> A complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site preservation areas and off-

site compensatory mitigation areas, including wetland functional assessment using the California Rapid

Assessment Method (CRAM) (Collins et al. 2008), or other appropriate wetland assessment protocol as

determined through consultation with USACE and the USFWS, to establish baseline conditions;

> Specific creation and restoration plans for each mitigation site;

> Use of CMM to compare compensatory wetlands to the baseline CMM scores from wetlands in the

SPA. The compensatory wetland CMM scores shall be compared against the highest quality wetland of
each type from the SPA;

CRAM scores, or other wetland assessment protocol scores, from the compensatory wetlands shall be

compared against the highest quality wetland scores for each wetland tlpe to document success of
compensatory wetlands in replacing the firnctions ofthe affected wetlands to be replaced;

Resolution No. 10670
Page 68 of 14i

Page 584

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



> Monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements, and the following elements:

' ecological performance standards, based on the best available science, that can be assessed in a

practicable manner (e.g., performance standards proposed by Barbour et al. 2007). Performance

standards must be based on attributes that are objective and verifiable;

r assessments conducted annually for 5 years after construction or restoration of compensatory wetlands

to determine whether these areas are acquiring wetland functions and to plot the performance trajectory

ofpresewed, restored or created wetlands over time.

I assessments results for compensatory wetlands shall also be compared against scores for reference

wetlands assessed in the same year;

. assessments atalysis conducted annually for 5 years after any construction adjacent to wetlands

preserved on the SPA to determine whether these areas are retaining firnctions and values. Assessments

results for wetlands preserved on site shall also be compared against scores for reference wetlands

assessed in the same year;

. analysis of assessments data, including assessment of potential stressors, to determine whether any

remedial activities may be necessary;

' corective measures ifperformance standards are not met;

. monitoring of plant communities as performance criteria (annual measwe of success, during monitoring

period) and success criteria (indicative of achievement of mitigation habitat requirement at end of
monitoring period) for hydrologic function have become established and the creation site "matures"

over time;

. GIS analysis of compensatory wetlands to demonstrate actual acreage of functioning wetland habitat;

. adaptive management measures to be applied if performance standards and acreage requirements are

not being met;

' responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

r responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifring success or prescribing

implementation or corrective actions.

A final operations and management plan (OMP) for all on- and off-site permittee-sponsored wetland
preservation and mitigation areas shall be prepared and submitted to USACE and USFWS for review,

iomment and preliminary approval prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA. The

plan shall include detailed information on the habitats present within the preservation and mitigation areas,

the long-term management and monitoring ofthese habitats, legal protection for the preservation and

mitigation areas (e.g., consewation easement, declaration ofrestictions), and funding mechanism

information (e.g., endowment). A final OMP for each discretionary development entitlement affecting

wetlands must be approved prior to construction.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 69 of 141

Page 585

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior

to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Califomia
Departrnent of
Fish and Game
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department.

Before the
approval of
grading and

improvement
plans, before
any ground

disturbing
activities, and

during project
construction as

applicable for
all project
phases.

has determined that the project an individual permit. In
detail proposed wetland

lts final stage once approved

by USACE, the MMP for the project is expected to restoration, enhancement, and/or

replacement activities that would ensure no net loss of aquatic functions m the pro]ect vicinity Approval and

implementation of the wetland MMP shall alm to tully mitigate all unavoidable impacts on jurisdictional

waters ofthe U .s., including jurisdictional wetlands. In addition to USACE approval, approval by the Cify,

Sacramento County, El Dorado County, and the Cenhal Valley RWQCB, as appropriate depending on

agency jurisdiction, and as determined during the Section 401 and Section 404 permitting processes, will also

be required. Approvals from Sacramento County and El Dorado County shall be required for impacts

resulting from oftsite project elements occurring in these counties, such as the off-site detention basin in

Sacramento County and the roadway connections into E1 Dorado County. To satisfy the requirements of the

City and the Central Valley RWQCB, mitigation of impacts on the nonjurisdictional wetlands beyond the

jurisdiction of USACE shall be included in the same MMP. All mitigation requirements determined through

this process shall be implemented before grading plans are approved. The MMP shall be submitted to

USACE and approved prior to the issuance of any permits under Section 404 of the CWA. Water quality

certification puisuant to Section 401 ofthe CWA will be required before issuance of a Section 404 permit.

Before construction in any areas containing wetland features, the project applican(s) shall obtain water

quality certification for the project. Any measures required as part ofthe issuance ofwater quality

certifi cation shall be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom'sjurisdictional boundaries must be

deveioped by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans, El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Avoid Direct Loss of Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests, To mitigate impacts on Swainson's

hawk and other raptors (including bunowing owl), the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a

qualified
the SPA

biologist to conduct preconstruction surveys and to identify active nests on and within 0.5 mile of
and active bunows on the SPA. The suweys shall be conducted before the approval ofgrading

and/or improvement plans (as applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the

beginning of construction for all project phases. To the extent feasible, guidelines provided in Recommended

Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk

Technical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. Ifno nests are

found, no fluther mitigation is required.

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's hawks and other raptors shall be avoided by

establishing appropriate buffers around the nests. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area

until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified biologist has determined in

consultation with DFG that reducing the buffer would not result in nest abandonment. DFG guidelines

recommend implementation of a

oualified bioloeist and the CiW

3A.3-2a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-14

Resoiution No. 10670
Page 70 of 141

Page 586

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

vcrificd compliancc with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file witl the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of
grading,

improvement,
or construction
plans and

before any
ground

disturbing
activity in any
project
development
phase that
would affect
Swainson's
hawk foraging
habitat.

likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring ofthe nest by a qualified biologist during and after

construction activities will be required if the activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

Ifactive bunows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City for review and approval before

any ground-disturbing activities.

The City shall consult with DFG. The mitigation plan may consist of installation of one-way doors on all
burrows to allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and conskuction of artificial bunows within the project
vicinity, as needed; however, bunow owl exclusions may only be used ifa qualified bioiogist verifies that the

bunow does not contain eggs or dependent young. Ifactive bunows contain eggs and/or young, no

construction shall occur within 50 feet ofthe burrow until young have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there

are no owls inside burrows, these bunows may be collapsed.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jwisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), such that the performance

criteria set forth in DFG's guidelines are determined to be met.

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2b: Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan.

To mitigate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall

prepare and implement a Swainson's hawk mitigation plan including, but not limited to the requirements

described below.

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans or before any ground-disturbing activities, whichever

occurs first, the project applicant(s) shall preserve, to the satisfaction ofthe City or Sacramento County, as

appropriate depending on agencyjurisdiction, suitable Swainson's hawk foraging habitat to ensure 1:1

mitigation ofhabitat value for Swainson's hawk foraging habitat lost as a result ofthe project, as determined

by the City, or Sacramento County, after consultation with DFG and a qualified biologist-

The I :1 habitat value shall be based on Swainson's hawk nesting distribution and an assessment of habitat

quality, availability, and use within the Ciry's planning area, or Sacramento Countyjurisdiction. The

mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the Staff
Report Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the Central Valley of
California, which call for the following mitigation ratios for loss of foraging habitat in these categories : I : I if
within I mile of an active nest site, 0.75:1 if over I mile but less than 5 miles, and 0.5:1 if over 5 miles but
less than 10 miles from an active nest site. Such mitigation shall be accomplished through credit purchase

from an established mitigation bank approved to sell Swainson's hawk foraging habitat credits to mitigate
losses in the SPA, if available, or through the transfer offee title or perpetual conservation easement. The

mitigation land shall be located within the known foraging area and within Sacramento County. The City, or
Sacramento County if outside City jurisdiction, after consultation with DFG, will determine the

appropriateness of the mitigation land.

3A.3-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-15

Resolution No. 10670

PageTlofl4l

Page 587

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Before approval of such proposed mitigation, the City, or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin,

shall consult with DFG regarding the appropriateness ofthe mitigation. Ifmitigation is accomplished through

conservation easement, then such an easement shall ensure the continued management ofthe land to maintain

Swainson's hawk foraging values, including but not limited to ongoing agricultural uses and the maintenance

of all existing water rights associated with the land. The conservation easement shall be recordable and shall

prohibit any activity that substantially impairs or diminishes the land's capacity as suitable Swainson's hawk
habitat.

The project applicant(s) shall transfer said Swainson's hawk mitigation land, through either conservation

easement or fee title, to a third party, nonprofit conservation organization (Conservation Operator), with the

City and DFG named as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a qualified
conservation easement land manager that manages land as its primary function. Additionally, the

Conservation Operator shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation organization that meets the criteria of
Civil Code Section 815.3(a) and shall be selected or approved by the City or County, after consuitation with
DFG. The City, or County, after consultation with DFG and the Conservation Operator, shall approve the

content and form ofthe conservation easement. The City, or County, DFG, and the Conservation Operator

shall each have the power to enforce the terms ofthe conservation easement. The Conservation Operator

shall monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms of the easement.

The project applican(s), after consultation with the City, or County ofjurisdiction, DFG, and the

Conservation Operator, shall establish an endowment or some other financial mechanism that is suffrcient to

fund in perpefuity the operation, maintenance, management, and enforcement ofthe conservation easement.

If an endowment is used, either the endowment funds shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands

within the City's jurisdiction or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin to be dishibuted to an

appropriate third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they shall be submitted directly to the third-party
nonprofit conservation agency in exchange for an agreement to manage and maintain the lands in perpetuity.

The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or transfer any interest of any conservation easement or
mitigation land it acquires without prior written approval of the City and DFG. Mitigation lands established

or acquired for impacts incuned at the off-site detention basin shall require approval from Sacramento

County prior to sale or transfer ofmitigation lands or conservation easement.

Ifthe Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, manage, maintain, and enforce the

interest shall be hansferred to another entity acceptable to the City and DFG, or Sacramento County and

DFG depending on jurisdiction ofthe affected habitat. The City Planning Department shall ensure that

mitigation habitat established for impacts on habitat within the City's plarming area is properly established

and is functioning as habitat by reviewing regular monitoring reports prepared by the Conservation Operator

of the mitigation site(s). Monitoring of the mitigation site(s) shall continue for the fust 10 years after

establishment ofthe easement and shall be frnded through the endowment, or other appropriate funding
mechanism, established by the project applicant(s). Sacramento County shall review the monitoring reports

for impacts on habitat at the off-site detention basin.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 72 of 141

Page 588

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

The Ciry and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

construction in the Summer 0f2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior

to colxrencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.T\e
compliance lable is on file with the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval ofany
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Before the
approval of any
ground-

disturbing
activity within
500 feet of
suitable nesting
habitat as

applicable for
all project
phases.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County and Caltrans).

to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey

for any project activity that woutd occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March l-August

3 I). Thi preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any activity occurring

within 500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub vegetation.

The survey shall be conducted within i4 days before project activity begins.

Ifno tricolored blackbird colony is presenl no firther mitigation is required. Ifa colony is found, the

qualified biologisl shall establish a buffer around the nesting colony. No project activity shall commence

within the buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms that the colony is no longer active. The size ofthe

buffer shall be determined in consultation with DFG. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100 to 500 feet,

depending on the natue ofthe project activity, the extent ofexisting disturbance in the area, and other

relevant circdmstances.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries (i.e., U.S. 50

interihange improvements) must be developed by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase in

consultation with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans) and must be sufficient to achieve the

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Nesting Colonies. To

performance criteria described above,

Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts, The project applicant of all project phases

containing potential bat roosting habitat

Surveys shall be conducted in the fall to
shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct surveys for roosting bats.

determine ifthe mine shaft is used as a hibernaculum and in spring

and/or summer to determine if it is used as

emergence surveys to note the presence or
the number and species ofbats using the roost shall beemergence. Ifevidence ofbat use is observed,

determined. Bat detectors may be used to supplement survey efforts. Ifno bat roosts are found, then no

further study shall be required.

Ifroosts ofpallid bat or Townsend's big-eared bats are determined to be present and must be removed, the

bats shall be excluded from the roosting site. A mitigation program addressing compensation, exclusion

methods, and roost removal procedures shall be developed in consultation with DFG before implementation.

Exclusion methods may include use of one-way doors at roost entrances (bats may leave but not reenter), or

sealing roost entrances when the site can be confirmed to contain no bats. Exclusion efforts may be restricted

during periods of sensitive activity (e.g., during hibemation or while females in maternity colonies are

nursing young). The loss of each roost (if any) will be replaced in consultation with DFG and may include

construction and installation ofbat boxes suitable to the bat species and colony size excluded from the

original roostins site. Roost replacement will be implemented before bats are excluded from the gng11ql

a matemity or day roost. Surveys shall consist ofevening
absence ofbats and could consist ofvisual surveys at the time of

3A.3-2c
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.3-2d
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-16

106

-17

Resolution No. 10670

Page 73 of 141

Page 589

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

U.S. Army
Corps of
Engineers,
Sacramento

District; U.S.
Fish and

Wildlife
Service; and

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before *re
approval ofany
grading or
improvement
pians, before
any ground

disturbing
activities within
250 feet of said
habitat or lesser

distance
deemed

sufficiently
protective by a
qualified
biologist with
approval from
USFWS, and on
an ongoing
basis

throughout
construction as

applicable for
all project
phases as

required by the
mitigation plan,

BO, and/or
BMPs.

roost sites. Once the replacement roosts are constructed

original roost site, the mine shaft may be removed.
and it is confirmed that bats are not present in the

methods to protect existing vemal pools during and after project construction, a detailed monitoring plan, and

reporting requirements.

As described under Mitigation Measure 3A.3-1a, an MMP shall be developed that describes details how loss

ofvemal pool and other wetland habitats shall be offset, including details on creation ofhabitat, account for

the temporal loss ofhabitat, contain performance standards to ensure success, and outline remedial actions if
performance standards are not met.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application potentially affecting vernal

pool habitat shall complete and implement a habitat MMP that will result in no net loss of acreage, functi.on,

and value of affected vernal pool habitat. The final habitat MMP shall be consistent with guidance provided

in Programmatic Formal Endangered Species Act Consultation on Issuance of404 Permits for Projects with

Relatively Small Effects on Listed Vernal Pool Crustaceans within the Jurisdiction ofthe Sacramento Field

Office, Califomia (USFWS 1996) or shall provide an altemative approach that is acceptable to the City,

USACE, and USFWS and accomplishes no net loss of habitat acreage, function, and value.

The project applicant(s) frir any particular discretionary development application "potentially affecting vernal

pool'habitat" shall ensure that there is sufficient upland habitat within the target areas for crealion and

iestoration ofvernal pools and vemal pool complexes to provide ecosystem health. This standard shall be

accomplished by requiring the project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application affecting

vernal pool or seasonal wetland habitat to identify the extent of indirectly affected vernal pool and seasonal

wetland habitat, either by identiffing all such habitat within 250 feet ofproject construction activities or by

providing an altemative technical evaluation. Ifa lesser distance is pursued, this distance shall be approved

by USFWS. The project applicant(s) shall preserve acreage ofvernal pool habitat for each wetted acre ofany
indirectly affected vernal pool habitat at a ratio approved by USFWS at the conclusion ofthe Section 7

consultation. This mitigation shall occur before the approval of any grading or improvement plans for any

project phase that would allow work within 250 feet of such habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently
protective by a qualified biologist with approval from USFWS, and before any ground disturbing activity

within 250 feet ofthe habitat or lesser distance deemed sufficiently protective by a qualified biologist with
from USFWS. The will not be to this measure for

3A3-Zg
(FPASP
EIWEIS)

106
-18

Resolution No. 10670
Page 74 of l4l

Page 590

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to conmencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City,

California
Department of
Fish and Game
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the
approval of
grading or
improvement
plans or any
construction
activities
(including
clearing and

grubbing) that
affect the bed
and bank or
riparian and
freshwater
marsh habitat
associated with
Alder Creek
and other on-
site or off-site
drainage
channels and

ponds.

0r indirect impacts that have already been to the satisfaction of USFWS through another BO

or mltlsatron plan (i.e., if impacts on specific habitat acreage ate mitigated by one project phase OI element,

the project applicant(s) will not be required to mitigate for it again in another phase ofthe project).

A standard set ofBMPs shall be applied to construction occuning in areas within 250 feet of off-site vernal

pool habitat, or within any lesser distance deemed adequate by a qualified biologist (with approval from

USFWS) to constitute a sufficient buffer from such habitat. Refer to Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water

Quality - Land' for the details of BMPs to be implemented.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

developed by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected

oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Mitigation Measure 3A,3-4a: Secure and Implement Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement.

The project applican(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall obtain a Section I 602

shea-mbed alteration agreement from DFG for all construction activities that would occur in the bed and bank

of Alder Creek and other drainage channels and ponds on the SPA. As a condition of issuance ofthe
streambed alteration agreement, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

application affecting riparian habitat shall hire a qualified restoration ecologist to prepare a riparian habitat

MMP. The draft MMP shall describe specific method(s) to be implemented to avoid and/or compensate for

impacts on the stream channel of Alder Creek and other drainage channels within DFG jurisdiction, and the

bed and banks ofthe on-site ponds. Mitigation measures may include establishment or restoration ofriparian
habitat within the project's open space areas along preserved stream corridors, riparian habitat restoration off-

site, or preservation and enhancement of existing riparian habitat either on or offthe SPA. The compensation

habitat shall be similar in composition and structure to the habitat to be removed and shall be at ratios

adequate to offset the loss ofriparian habitat functions and services at the SPA. The riparian habitat

compensation section of the habitat MMP shall include the following:

> compensatory mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these mitigation sites;

> complete assessment ofthe existing biological resources in both the on-site and off-site preservation and

restoration areas;

> site-specific management procedures to benefit establishment and maintenance ofnative riparian plant

species, including black willow, anoyo willow, white alder, and Fremont cottonwood;

> a planting and inigation program ifneeded for establishment ofnative riparian trees and shrubs at

strategic locations within each mitigation site (planting and irrigation may not be necessary if
preservation of functioning riparian habitat is chosen as mitigation or ifrestoration can be accomplished

without inigation or planting);

> in kind reference habitats for comparison with compensatory riparian habitats (using performance and

success criteria) to document success;

3A.3-4a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-19

Resolution No. 10670
Page 75 of 141

Page 591

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020.The
compliance table is on file with the City.

Califomia
Department of
Fish and Game,
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval

ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

> monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements (compensatory riparian habitats

shall be monitored for a minimum period of five years);

> ecological performance standards, based on the best available science and including specifications for

native riparian plant densities, species composition, amount ofdead woody vegetation gaps and bare

gound, and survivorship; at a minimum, compensatory mitigation planting sites must achieve 80%

survival of planted riparian trees and shrubs by the end of the five-year maintenance and monitoring

period or dead and dying fiees shall be replaced and monitoring continued until 80% survivorship is

achieved;

> corrective measures ifperformance standards are not met;

> responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and

> responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifying success or prescribing

implementation or corrective actions.

Any conditions ofissuance ofthe Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be implemented as part ofproject
construction activitie! that adversely affect the bed and bank and riparian habitat associated with Alder Creek

and other drainage channels and ponds that are within the project area that is subject to DFG jurisdiction. The

agreement shall be executed by the project applicant(s) and DFG before the approval of any grading or

improvement plans or any construction activities in any project phase that could potentially affect the bed and

bank of Alder Creek and other on-site or off-site drainage channels under DFG jurisdiction and their

associated freshwater marsh and riparian habitat.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach

applicable project phase with the Caltrans.

Conduct Surveys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement Avoidance and

Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

retain a qualified botanist to conduct preconstruction surveys to determine ifvalley needlegrass grassland is

present on the SPA. This could be done concunently with any special-status plant surveys conducted on site

is special-status plant surveys are floristic in nature, i.e. require that all species encountered be identified, and

require preparation ofa plant community map. Ifvalley needlegrass grassland is not found on the SPA, the

boianist shall document the findings in a letter report to the City ofFolsom, and no further mitigation shall be

required. Valley needlegrass grassland was not found in any ofthe off-site project elements

Ifvatley needlegrass grassland is found on the SPA, the location and extent ofthe community shall be

mapped and the acreage of this community t1pe, if any, that would be removed by proj ect implementation

shall be calculated. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application
affecting valley needlegrass grassland shall consult with DFG and the City of Folsom to detemine

appropriate mitigation for removal ofvalley needlegrass grassland resulting from project implementation.

Mitigition measrxes shall include one or more of the following components sufficient to achieve no net loss

ofvallev needlesrass erassland acreage: establishment ofvalley needlegrass grassland within project's open

3A.34b
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-20

Resolution No. 10670
Page 76 of 141

Page 592

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe owner/applicant obtained a Tree
Permit from the Community
Development Department for the
removal ofprotected oak trees that
were impacted by the grading and
construction of Phase 3 of the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch project.

The Tree Permit was approved prior
to commencement of grading and
construction in the Summer of 2020.
The owner/appiicant paid in-lieu
fees for the removal of some trees,
the City approved a Tree
Replacement Plan for another
portion of the tree that were removed
and preserved existing oak trees in
El Dorado County for the remaining
mitigation for the total number of
protected trees in accordance with
this condition.

The Conservation Easements within the

Phase 3 portion of the subdivision were
fenced offaround their boundaries in
advance of the commencement of
grading and construction and the City
verified compliance by inspecting the

fence in advance of grading.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase

containing
protected trees

or oak
woodland.

space areas currently characterized by annual grassland, establishment ofvalley needlegrass grassland off-
site, or presewation and enhancement of existing valley needlegrass grassland either on or offthe SPA. The

applicant(s) shall compensate for any loss ofvalley needlegrass grassland resulting from project
implementation at a minimum I :1 replacement ratio.

Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace Native Oak
Trees Removed, and Implem€nt Measures to Avoid and Minimize Indirect Impacts on Oak Trees

Retained On Site. The project applicant(s) shall prepare an oak woodland mitigation and monitoring plan.

The project applicant(s) ofall on- and off-site project phases containing oak woodland habitat or individual
trees shall adhere to the requirements described below, which are consistent with those outlined in California
Public Resources Code 21083.4. Pu$uant to Sacramento County General Plan policy, the acreage of oak

woodland habitat for determining impacts and mitigation requirements was calculated as the oak tree canopy

area within stands of oak trees having greater than 1 0% cover plus a 30-foot-radius buffer measured from the

outer edge ofthe hee caropy. Oak trees located in areas greater than 30 feet fiom stands meeting the greater

than 10% tree canopy cover criterion were considered isolated trees and not part ofthe blue oak woodland

community. Mitigation for impacts on isolated oak trees is discussed separately below.

> Preserve approximately 399 acres ofexisting oak woodland habitat in the SPA (this acreage is based on

the extent of oak woodland habitat as determined from aerial photograph interpretation; however,

following completion ofground verification by a qualified arborist, the actual amount ofoak woodland

present within impact areas could be slightly greater or lesser than the amount calculated from aerial

photograph and, therefore, the amount preserved could also be siightly greater or lesser than 399 acres).

> Create 243 acres ofoak woodland habitat in the SPA by planting a combination ofblue oak acorns,

seedlings, and trees in the following SPA locations:

. Non-wooded areas that are adjacent to or contiguous with the existing oak woodland habitat.

. Preserve and passive open space zones tluoughout the SPA.

. Open space areas that are adjacent to existing oak woodlands that will be impacted by project grading

(i.e. catch slopes).

. Other practical locations within the SPA in or adjacent to open space.

' Oak Woodlands Mitigation Planting Criteria

The following oak woodland mitigation planting criteria shall be used to create oak woodland habitat:

> A minimum of 55 planting sites per acre (with a total of 70 units, as defined below) will mitigate for one

acre of oak woodland impacts. A combination ofacorns, seedlings, and various sizes of container trees

(#1 container, #5 container, #15 container) or transplanted hees shall be incorporated into the planting

design. Mitigation acreage that is planted solely with larger oak trees (no acoms) shall have a minimum

of 35 planting sites per acre. The units are defined as follows:

3A.3-s (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-21

Resolution No. 10670
Page 77 of 141

Page 593

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



. One established acorn equals one unit (acoms will be over planted to maximize potential germination).

. One oak seedling equals one unit.

' One #1 container oak tree equals two units.

. One #5 container oak tree equals three units.

. One #15 container oaktree equals fourunits.

. One 24-inch boxed oak tree equals six units.

. One transplanted oak tree equals four units per trunk diameter inch (dbh).

. Native non oak species characteristic of oak woodlands shall be included in the mitigation planting plan

to augment overall habitat values. Each non oak tree species shall represent unit values described above

for oak trees, but non oak species shall comprise no more than l0% ofthe mitigation plantings.

> Preserve and protect existing off-site oak woodland habitat. Existing, unprotected oak woodland habitat

within Sacramento and El Dorado Courties may be secured and placed under conseryation easement in

lieu of onsite mitigation measures ifnecessary. The off-site locations would be managed as oak

woodland habitat in perpetuity.

> Create oak woodlands offsite. Plant a combination ofblue oak acorns, seedlings, and trees at off-site

location(s), ifneeded to achieve the creation goal of243 acres ofnew blue oak woodland habitat. This

measwe would only be needed if243 acres ofblue oak woodland could not be created in the SPA. Off-

site creation shall follow the same guidelines as outlined in the Mitigation Planting Criteria for onsite

creation. Off-site tree planting shall occur at sites within Sacramento County that should naturally

support blue oak woodland and shall be used to restore former blue oak woodland habitat that has been

degraded or removed through human activities. Restoration shall be designed to result in species

composition and densities similar to those in the SPA prior to project development. Planted areas shall

be placed under conservation easement and managed as oak woodland habitat in perpetuity.

> The oak woodland mitigation plan prepared by the project applicant(s) shall include a maintenance and

monitoring program for any replacement trees. The program shall include monitoring and reporting

requirements, schedule, and success criteria. Replacement oak trees shal1 be maintained and monitored

for a minimum of eight years from the date ofplanting and inigation shall be provided to planted trees

for the fust five years after planting. Any replacement trees that die during the monitoring period shall

be replaced in sufficient numbers to achieve 80% suwival rate for planted trees by the end ofthe eight-

year maintenance and monitoring period. Dead and dying trees shall be replaced and monitoring

continued until 80% survivorship is achieved. Security acceptable to the City and suffrcient to cover

maintenance and monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department.

The security will be forfeited ifthe project applicant or designated responsible party fails to provide

maintenance and mooitoring and meet the success criteria.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 78 of 141

Page 594

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Isolated Oak Tree lVlitigation

The project applicant(s) ofall on-site project phases containing oak woodland habitat or isolated trees and the

off-site Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue interchange improvements to U.S. 50; Rowberry Drive
Overcrossing; and the underground sewer force main shall develop a map depicting the tree canopy ofall oak

trees in the survey area and identifying the acreage of tree canopy that would be preserved and the acreage

that would be removed. A tree permit for removal of isolated oak trees (those not located within the

delineated boundary of oak woodland habitat) shall be obtained from the City Planning Director. As a

condition ofthe tree removal permit, project applicant(s) shall be required to develop a Planting and

Maintenance Agreement. The City's Tree Preservation Code requires compensatory mitigation and the City
and the project applicants have developed a plan, as set forth Section 10 ofthe Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan (attached to this EIR/EIS as Appendix N) specifically to avoid and minimize adverse effects on isolated

oak trees from project development and to provide compensatory mitigation for removal ofprotected trees in
the SPA. ln addition to the language contained in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the following elements

shall be included in a protected tree mitigation plan to be developed by the project applicants and agreed

upon by the City:

> Project applicant(s) ofprojects containing isolated oak trees shall retain a certified arborist or registered

professional forester to perform a determinate survey oftree species, size (dbh), condition, and location

for all areas ofthe project site proposed for tree removal and encroachment ofdevelopment. The

condition of individual trees shall be assessed according to the American Society of Consulting Arborists

rating system with the following added explanations:

. 5 = Excellent; No problems - tree has no structural problems, branches are properly spaced and tree

characteristics are nearly perfect for the species.

. 4 = Good; No apparent problems - tree is in good condition and no apparent problems from visual

inspection. Ifpotential structual or health problems are tended at this stage, future hazard can be

reduced and more serious health problems can be averted.

. 3 = Fair; Minor problems - There are some minor stnrctural or health problems that pose no immediate

danger. When the recommended actions in an arborist report are completed conectly the defect(s) can

be minimized or eliminated.

. 2 = Poor; Major problems - the tree is in poor condition, but the condition could be improved with
conect arboricultural work including, but not limited to: pruning, cabling, bracing, bolting, guying,

spraying, mistletoe removal, vertical mulching, and fertilization. If the recommended actions are

completed correctly, hazard can be reduced and the rating can be elevated to a 3. Ifno action is taken

the tree is considered a liability and should be removed.

' 1 = Hazardous or non conectable condition - the tree is in extremely poor condition and in non-

reversible decline. This ratins is assiqned to a tree that has structural and/or health problems that no

Resolution No. 10670
Page 79 of 141.

Page 595

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



amount oftree care work or effort can change. The issues may or may not be considered a dangerous

situation. The tree may also be infested with a disease or pest(s) that is non-controllable at this time and

is causing an unacceptable risk of spreading the disease or pests(s) to other hees.

. 0 = Dead - the tree has no significant signs of life (dead or very close to being dead).

Isolated Oak Tree Mitigation Planting Criteria

> The determination for whether an isolated hee shall be preserved, removed without compensation, or

removed with compensatory mitigation shall be based on the condition and size ofthe hee as follows:

. Trees rated 0 or 1 may be removed with no mitigation.

. Trees rated 2 may be removed at 50% of the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

. Trees rated 3, 4, and/or 5 may be removed at the normal Folsom Municipal Code mitigation.

. Native isolated oaks measuring 24 inches or greater dbh for a single trunk or 40 inches or more for a

multi-trunked tree and rated a 3 to 5 shall be retained, unless retaining wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall
(from bottom of footing to the top of the wal[) would be required to protect the tree(s) from mass

grading ofthe SPA properties.

' Native oaks measuring between I 2 and 24 inches dbh and rated a 4 or 5 shall not be removed or

mitigated unless wall(s) higher than 4 feet tall (from bottom offooting to the top ofthe wall) would be

required to protect the tree(s) from mass grading ofthe SPA properties. Trees in this size class but rated

2 or 3 shall not be removed unless unreasonable costs to save the tree(s) (gteater than the cost of
implementing the isolated oak tree mitigation planting criteria described here) would resuit.

. Native oaks measuring 5 inches or greater dbh but less than 1 2 inches dbh shall not be removed unless

unreasonable costs to iave the hee(i) (greater than the cost ofimplementing the isolated oak tree

mitigation planting criteda described here) would result.

' Native oak trees measuring 1 inch or greater dbh but less than 5 inches dbh may be preserved to receive

a Small Tree Preservation Credit (STPC). Any tree that is to be considered for preservation credit shall

be evaluated, included in the arborist report, and shall have been found to be rated. a 3,4, or a 5. Credits

shall only be accepted ifthe tree protection zone (TPZ) (i.e., the outer edge ofthe tree canopy drip line)

is protected with fencing in the exact manner that 5 inches dbh and greater hees are protected on a

construction site, and the spacing is equal to the proper tree spacing dictated by the Folsom Master Tree

List. STPC shall not count ifthey the tree is in a poor growing space due to its position within the TPZ

of another protected tee to be preserved. The City shall accept the preservation of native oak trees in
this size class as credit towards the total removed inches based on the following STPC crileria:

> Folsom Municipal Code requires one ofthe following be planted as compensation for each diameter inch

of protected tree removed:

Resolution No. 10670

Page 80 of i41

Page 596

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Complianee was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing

. half of a 24-inch box tree;

' one #15 container hee;

. two #5 container trees; or

. $150 inJieu payment or other fee set by City Council Resolution.

> The Planting and Maintenance Agreement shall include a planting plan, planting and inigation design

details, and a weaning schedule for the establishment period. The plan shall incli.rde a 5-year

establishment period for trees and 8 years for planted acorns with an annual monitoring report that

includes conections needed with proposed work plan, and notice ofcompliance within 90-days ofannual

monitoring report. Security in an form acceptable to the City and sufficient to cover maintenance and

monitoring costs for eight years shall be provided to the City Planning Department. The security will be

forfeited ifthe project applicant or designated responsible party fails to fulfrll the Planting and

Maintenance Agreement.

> To avoid and minimize indirect impacts on protected trees to remain on the SPA, the project applicant(s)

of all affected project phases shall install high visibility fencing outside the outer edge of the drip lines of
all trees to be retained on the SPA during project construction. The fencing may be installed around

groups or stands of fiees or whole wooded areas bust must be installed so that the drip lines of all trees

are protected. Grading, henching, equipment or materials storage, parking, paving, inigation, and

landscaping shall be prohibited within the fenced areas (i.e. drip lines of protected trees). Ifthe activities

listed cannot be avoided within the drip line ofa particular tree, that tree shall be counted as an affected

tree and compensatory mitigation shall be provided, or the tree in question shall be monitored for a

period offive years and replaced only ifthe tree appears to be dead or dying within five years ofproject

implementation.

Tkough a combination ofthe mitigation options presented above along with the proposed on-site

preservation ofblue oak woodland habitat in the open space areas, the project applicant(s) can satisfu the

mitigation requirements for removal of hees protected under the Folsom Municipal Code while also -

mitigating the impacts on oak woodland habitat, as determined thLrough consultation with the Sacramento

County Planning Department (for County off-site impacts only) and/or the City of Folsom.

Mitigation for the U.S. 50 interchange improvements must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach

applicable project phase with Caltrans.

Conduct Environmental Awareness Training for Construction Employees.

Prior to beginning construction activities, the Project Applicant shall employ a qualified biologist to develop

and conduct environmental awaxeness training for construction employees. The training shall describe the

importance of onsite biological resources, including special-status wildlife habitats; potential nests of special-

status birds; and roosting habitat for special-status bats. The biologist shall also explain the importance of
other responsibilities related to the protection ofwildlife during construction such as inspeclqg ppgqlre4qlg1

(Addendum)
ws-1106

-t',

Resolution No. 10670
Page 8l of 141

Page 597

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement ofgrading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on frle with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

California
Department of
Fish and Game,

and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Califomia
Deparhnent of
Fish and Game,
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, within
suitable tadpole
habitat.

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gmbbing or
clearing, within
suitable
northwestem
pond turtle
habitat.

and looking under vehicles and machinery prior to moving them to ensure there are no lizards, snakes, small

mammals, or other wildlife that could become trapped, injured, or killed in construction areas or undet

equipment.

The environmental awareness program shall be provided to all construction personnel to briefthem on the

life history of special-status species in or adjacent to the project area, the need to avoid impacts on sensitive

biologicairesources, any terms and conditions required by State and federal agencies, and the penalties for

not cJmplying with biological mitigation requirements. Ifnew construction personnel are added to the

project, ihe conhactor's superintendent shall ensure that the personnel receive the mandatory training before

itarting work. An environmental awareness handout that describes and illustrates sensitive resources to be

avoided during project construction ard identifies all relevant permit conditions shall be provrded to each

person.

Conduct Preconstruction Western Spadefoot Survey.

The Project Applicant(s) shall retain a qualifred biologist to conduct a preconstmction western spadefoot

survey within 48 hours of the initiation of construction activity within suitable tadpole habitat (e.g., vemal

pools, seasonal wetlands, and drainages with standing water) for westem spadefoot. Iflo westem spadefoot

individuals are found during the preconstruction survey, the biologist shall document the findings in a letter

report to CDFW and the City, and no further mitigation shall be required. Ifwestem spadefoot individuals

are found, the qualified biologist shall consult with CDFW to determine appropriate avoidance measures.

Conduct Preconstruction Northwestern Pond Turtle Survey'

The Project Applicant($ shall retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction northwestern pond

turtle survey within 48 hours of the initiation of construction activity within suitable habitat for northwestem

pond turtle. Ifno northwestern pond turtles are found during the preconstruction suwey, the biologist shall

document the findings in a letter report to CDFW and the City, and no further rnitigation shall be required. If
northwestern pond turtles are found, the qualified biologist shall capture and relocate the turtles to a suitable

preserved location in the vicinity ofthe project.

ws-2
(Addendum)

tlwPT-1
(Addendum)

I06
-23

106

-24

Resolution No. 10670
Page 82 of l4l

Page 598

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Yes

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have

reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

On June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps
ofEngineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Department.

On June 10,2019, the US Army Corps
of Engineers, in consultation with the
City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-constniction

compliance requirements for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. All required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Departrnent.

Califomia
Department of
Fish and Game,
and City of
Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department;
U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers;

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of grading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

During all
construction
phases

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground

disturbing
activities,
including
gnibbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Preconstruction Nesting Bird Survey,

The Project Applicant shall conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey of all areas associated with
construction activities on the pmject site within i4 days prior to commencement ofconsfuction during the

nesting season (1 February tlrough 3 1 August).

If active nests are found, a no-disturbance buffer around the nest shall be established. The buffer distance

shall be established by a qualifred biologist in consultation with CDFW. The buffer shall be maintained until
the fledglings are capable of flight and become independent ofthe nest, to be determined by a qualifted

biologist. Once the young are independent ofthe nest, no further measures are necessary. Pre-consfruction

nesting surveys are not required for construction activity outside ofthe nesting season.

Comply with the ProEammatic Agreement.

The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a management framework for
identifring historic properties, determining adverse effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required

under Section 106 ofthe National Historic Preservation Act. This document is incorporated by reference. The

PA is available for public inspection and review at the Califomia Office of Historic Preservarion 1725 23rd

Street Sacramento, CA 95816.

Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the California Register of Historic
Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or
Destruction Cannot be Avoided.

These steps may be combined with deliverables and management steps performed for Section 106 provided
that management documents prepared for the PA also clear'ly reference the California Register ofHistorical
Resources (CRHR) listing criteria and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Prior to ground

disturbing work for each individual development phase or off-site element, the applicable oversight agency
(City ofFolsom, El Dorado County, Sacramento County, or Caltrans), or the project applicant(s) ofall
project phases, with applicable oversight agency, shall perform the following actions:

> The project applicant shall retain tle services ofa qualified archaeologist to perform an inventory of
cultural resources within each individual development phase or off-site element subject to approval

under CEQA. Identified resources shall be evaluated for listing on the CRHR. The inventory report shall

also identifr locations that are sensitive for undiscovered cultural resources based upon the location of

tlB-1
(Addendum)

3A.Sla
(Addendum)

(Addendum)
345-1b

106

-25

106

26

106

a7

Resolution No. 10670
Page 83 of 141

Page 599

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



known resources, geomorphology, and topography. The inventory report shall specify the location of
monitoring of ground-disturbing work in these areas by a qualified archaeologist and monitoring in the

vicinity of identified resources that may be damaged by construction, if appropriate.

> The identification ofany sensitive locations subject to monitoring during construction ofeach individual

development phase shall be performed in concert with monitoring activities performed under the PA to

minimize the potential for conflicting requirements.

> For each resource that is determined eligible for the CRHR, the applicable agency or the project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the

services ofa qualified archaeologist who shall determine if implementation ofthe individual project

development would result in damage or destruction of"significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources.

These findings shall be reviewed by the applicable agency for consistency with the significance

tluesholds and heatment m€asures provided in this EIfuEIS.

> Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid impacts on eligible or listed

resources. Altematively, these resources may be preserved in place ifpossible, as suggested under

California Public Resources Code Section 2i083.2. Avoidance of historic properties is required under

certain circumstances under the Public Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800.

> Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the project applicant(s) ofall project phases

(under the applicable agency's direction) shall prepare and implement treatment measues that are

determined to be necessary by a qualified archaeologist. These measues may consist of data recovery

excavations for resources that are eligible for listing because ofthe data they contain (which may

contribute to research). Altematively, for historical architectural, engineered, or landscape features,

treatment measures may consist of a preparation of interpretive, nanative, or photographic

doc'umentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable oversight agency for consistency

with the significance tlresholds and standards provided in this EIR/EIS.

> To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation Measure, the archaeologist

retained by either the applicable oversight agency or the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall

prepare an appropriate prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant prehistoric, ethnographic,

and historic themes and research questions against which to determine the significance of identified

resources and appropriate treatment.

> These steps and documents may be combined with the phasing ofmaragement and documents prepared

pursuant to the FAPA to minimize the potential for inconsistency and duplicative management efforts.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Resolution No. 10670

Page 84 of 141

Page 600

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesOn June 10, 2019, the US Army Corps

ofEngineers, in consultation with the

City, SHPO, the tribes and consulting
parties determined that the entire Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Regency
project has satisfied its pre-construction

compliance requirgments for cultural
resources and may proceed with
construction. Al1 required compliance
letters are on file with the Community
Development Department. Compliance

with this condition is monitored through
construction inspection.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department;
U.S. Army
Corp of
Engineers

Before approval
ofgrading or
improvement
plans or any
ground
disturbing
activities,
including
gnrbbing or
clearing, for
any project
phase.

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring If Required, Stop Work if
Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatment or
Avoidance as Required,

To reduce potential impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of all
project phases shall do the following:

> Before the start ofground-disturbing activities, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a

qualified archaeologist to conduct training for construction workers as necessary based upon the

sensitivity ofthe project APE, to educate them about the possibility of encountering buried cultural

resources and inform them ofthe proper procedures should cultural resowces be encountered.

> As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b, if the archaeologist

determines that any portion ofthe SPA or the off-site elements should be monitored for potential

discovery of as-yet-unknown cultural resources, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

implement such monitoring in the locations specified by the archaeologist. USACE should review and

approve any recommendations by archaeologists with respect to monitoring.

> Should any cultural resources, such as sffuctural feahues, unusual amounts ofbone or shell, artifacts, or

architecfural remains be encountered during any construction activities, work shall be suspended in the

vicinity ofthe find and the appropriate oversight agency(ies) (identified below) shall be notified

immediately. The appropriate oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified archaeologist who sha1l

conduct a field investigation ofthe specific site and shall assess the significance ofthe find by evaluating

the resource for eligibility for listing on the CRHR and the NRHP. If the resource is eligible for listing

on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to disturbance or destruction, the actions required in

Mitigation Measures 3A.5-la and 3A.5-1b shall be implemented. The oversight agency shall be

responsible for approval ofrecommended mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light of the

approved land uses and shall implement the approved mitigation before resuming construction activities

at the archaeological site.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Calhans).

The project applicant, in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an archaeological sensitivity haining
program is developed and implemented during a pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The

sensitivity training program shall provide information about notification procedures when potential

archaeological material is discovered, procedures for coordination between construction persomel and

monitoring personnel, and information about other treatment or issues that may arise ifcultural resources

(including human remains) are discovered during project construction. This protocoi shall be communicated to

all new construction oersonnel during orientation and on a poster that is placed in a visible location inside the

3A"$2
(Addendum)

106
:28

Resolution No. 10670
Page 85 of 141

Page 601

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThere have been no human remarns

discovered during the course ofgrading
and construction in the project.

Sacramento
County
Coroner; Native
American
Heritage
Commission;
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

During all
ground
disturbing
activities, for
any project
phase.

constructionjob trailer. The phone number ofthe USACE culhual resources staffmember shall also be

included.

The on-site sensitivity taining shall be canied out each time a new contractor will begin work in the APE
and at the beginning of each construction season by each contractor.

Ifunanticipated discoveries ofadditional historic properties, defined in 36 CFR 800.16 0), are made during
the construction ofthe project, the USACE shall ensure that they will be protected by implementing the
following measures:

> The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, ifgiven the authority to halt construction

activities, shall ensure that work in that area is immediately halted within a 100-foot radius ofthe
unanticipated discovery until the find is examined by a person meeting the professional qualifications
standards specified in Section 2.2 of Attachment G of the HPMP. The Construction Manager, or
archaeological monitor, ifpresent, shall notifu the USACE within 24 hours ofthe discovery.

> The USACE shall notifr the State Historic Preservation Offrcer (SHPO) within one working day of an

unanticipated discovery and may initiate interim heatment measures in accordance with this HPTP.

Once the USACE makes a formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the USACE will notify
the SHPO within 48 hours of the determination and afford the SHPO an opportunity to comment on

appropriate treatment. The SHPO shall respond within 72 hours of the request to consult. Failure ofthe
SHPO to respond within 72 hours shall not prohibit the USACE from implementing the treatment

measwes.

The project applicants shall be required to submit t0 the City proofofcompliance in the form ofa completed taining
roster and copy ofhaining materials.

Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with California
Health and Safety Code Procedures

In accordance with the California Health and Safety Code, ifhuman remains are uncovered dwing ground-

disturbing activities, including those associated with off-site elements, the project applicant(s) of all project
phases shall immediately halt all ground-disturbing activities in the area ofthe find and notiff the
Sacramento County Coroner and a professional archaeologist skilled in osteological analysis to determine the
nature ofthe remains. The coroner is required to examine all discoveries ofhuman remains within 48 hours
ofreceiving notice ofa discovery on private or public lands (Califomia Health and Safety Code Section
7050.5[b]). Ifthe coroner determines that the remains are those of a Nafive American, he or she must contact
the NAHC by phone within 24 hours of making that determination (Califomia Health and Safety Code
Section 7050[c]).

After the coroner's findings are complete, the project applicant(s), an archaeologist, and the NAHC-
designated Most Likely Descendant shall determine the ultimate treatment and disposition of the remains and

take appropriate steps to ensure that additional human interments are not disturbed. The responsibilities for

3At3
(Addendum)

106
:29

Resolution No. 10670
Page 86 of 141

Page 602

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe owner/applicant
Ceotechnical Report City. The

subdivision is

has

to the

Geotechnicai report
on file with the City

for the

Geology and Soils
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and

ground-

acting on notification of a discovery ofNative
the Califomia Public Resources Code.

training roster and copy oftraining materials.

human remains are 5097.9 of

Upon the discovery ofNative American remains, the procedures above regarding involvement ofthe

applicable county toroner, notification ofthe NAHC, and identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall

be^followed. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall ensure that the immediate vicinity (according

to generally accepted cdtural or archaeological standards and practices) is not damaged or distubed by

further <levelopmint activity until consultation with the Most Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most

Likely Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the site to inspect the site and make

recommendations. A range ofpossible treatments for the remains may be discussed: nondestructive removal

and analysis, preservation in piace, relinquishment of the remains and associated items to the descendants, or

other cuituraliy appropriate treatment. As suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Stanrtes of2006), the

concerned pariies ruy .*t.nd dir.ussions beyond the initial 48 hours to allow for the discovery of additional

remains. Ab 2641(e)includes a list of site protection measlues and states that the project applicant(s) shall

comply with one or more of the following requirements:

> record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center,

> use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement, or

> record a reinternment document with the county

The project applicant(s) or its authorized representative of all project phases shall rebury the Native

Am#caa human remains and associated grave goods with appropriate dignity on the property in a location

not subject to further subsurface dishrbance ifthe NAHC is unable to identiff an Most Likely Descendant or

ifthe Most Likely Descendant fails to make a recommendation within 48 hours after being granted access to

the site, The projlct applican(s) or its authorized representative may also reinter the remains in a location not

subject to furthe; distuibance if it rejects the recommendation of the Most Likely Descendant and mediation

by ihe N,*tC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. Ground disturbance in the zone of

suspended activity shall not recommence without authorization from the archaeologist.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

The project applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof ofcompliance in the form of a completed

3A.7-1a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-30

Resolution No. i0670
Page 87 of 141

Page 603

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Compliance wi*r this condition has

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

condition has been

monitored through construction
inspection by the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community

disturbing
activities-

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and

ground-
disturbing
activities.

Before the start
of construction
activities.

submitted for review and approval to the appropriate City or county department (identified below). The final

geotechnical engineering report shall address and make recommendations on the following:

> site preparation;

> soil bearing capacify;

> appropriate sources and types offiil;
> potential need for soil amendments;

> road, pavement, and parking areas;

> shucturalfoundations, includingretaining-walldesign;

> grading practices;

> soil conosion ofconcrete and steel;

> erosion/winterization;

> seismic ground shaking;

> liquefaction; and

> expansive/unstablesoils.

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the geotechnical investigation shall

include subsurface testing of soil and groundwater conditions, and shall determine appropriate foundation

designs that are consistent with the version ofthe CBC that is applicable at the time building and grading

permits are applied for. All recommendations contained in the final geotechnical engineering report shall be

implemented by the project applicant(s) of each project phase. Special recommendations contained in the

geotechnical engineering report shall be noted on the grading plans and implemented as appropriate before

ionstruction begins. Design and construction of all new project development shall be in accordance with the

CBC. The pmject applicant(s) shall provide for engineering inspection and certification that earthwork has

been performed in conformity with recommendations contained in the geot€chnical report.

Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities. All earthwork shall be monitored by a qualified

geotechnical or soils engineer retained by the project applicant(s) ofeach project phase. The geotechnical or

soils engineer shall provide oversight during all excavation, placement offill, and disposal ofmaterials

removed from and deposited on both on- and off-site construction axeas.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Ei Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Implement the Grading and Erosion Control Plan. Before gtading permits are

issued, the project applicant(s) ofeach project phase that would be located within the Ciy ofFolsom shall

retain a Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and

erosion control plan shall be submitted to the City Public Works Department before issuance of gadqg

3A.7-lb
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.7-3 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-31

106

-t2

Resolution No. 10670
Page 88 of 141

Page 604

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed and all
improvement plans in the subdivision to
verifu compliance with mitigation
measure.

Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Deparfinent

Before and
during
earthmoving
activities.

permits for all new deveiopment. The plan shall be consistent with the City's Grading Ordinance, the City's
Hillside Development Guidelines, and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading

associated with deveiopment for all project phases.

For the two off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills, the project applicant(s) ofthat phase shall retain a

Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

conhol plan shall be submitted to the El Dorado County Public Works Department and the El Dorado Hills
Community Service District before issuance of grading permits for roadway construction in El Dorado Hills.
The plan shall be consistent with El Dorado County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance

and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with roadway

development.

For the off-site detention basin west ofPrairie City Road, the project applicant(s) ofthat phase shall retain a

Califomia Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion

control plan shall be submitted to the Sacramento County Public Works Department before issuance of a
grading permit. The plan shall be consistent with Sacramento County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment

Control Ordinance and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with
construction of the detention basin.

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation schedule, and maintenance schedule of
all erosion and sediment conhol measures, a description ofmeasures designed to control dust and stabilize

the construction-site road and entrance, and a description ofthe location and methods of storage and disposal

of construction materials. Erosion and sediment control measures could include the use ofdetention basins,

berms, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering of stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion.

Stabilization on steep slopes could include construction ofretaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after

construction. Stabilization ofconstruction entrances to minimize hackout (control dust) is commonly
achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The project

applicant(s) shall ensure that the construction contractor is responsible for securing a source oftransportation
and deposition of excavated materials.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.9-l (discussed in Section 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality -
Land") would also help reduce erosion-related impacts.

Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations. The project applicant(s) ofall project
phases shall either install subdrains (which typically consist ofperforated pipe and gravel, sunounded by
nonwoven geotextile fabric), or take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or civil engineer

for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows caused by surface infilfration, water seepage, and
perched water during the winter months away from building foundations.

3A.7-s (FPASP
ErwErs)

106
-33

Resolution No. 10670
Page 89 of l4l

Page 605

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance wtth this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

The City and its Environmental
Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of2020. The
compliance table is on file with the City.

Community
Development
Department

City

Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of smalllot
finai maps and

building
permits for all
discretionary
development
project
including all
on- and off-site
elements and

implementation
throughout

During
earthmoving
activities in the
Ione and
Mehrten
Formations.

To further reduce construction-generated GHG emissions, the project applicant(s) any particular

discretionary development application shall implement all feasible measures for reducing GHG emissions

associated with construction that are recommended by SMAQMD at the time individual portions of the site

undergo construction. Such measures may reduce GHG exhaust emissions from the use ofon-site equipment,

worker commute trips, and truck trips canying materials and equipment to and from the SPA, as well as

GHG emissions embodied in the makrials selected for construction (e.g., concrete). Other measures may

pertain to the materials used in construction. Prior to releasing each request for bid to contractors for the

construction of each discretionary development entitlement, the project applicant(s) shall obtain the most

current list of GHG reduction measures that are recommended by SMAQMD and stipulate that these

measures be implemented in the respective request for bid as well as the subsequent construction contract

with the selected primary conhactor. The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development

andsubmit to the

GHG Emissions.Implement Additional Measures to Control

that substantiatesa

Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work
Assess the Significance of the Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required.

To minimize potential adverse impacts on previously unknown potentially unique, scientifically imporlant
paleontological resources, the project applicant(s) of all project phases where construction would occur in the

Ione and Mehrten Formations shall do the following:

> Before the start of any earthmoving activities for any project phase in the Ione or Mehrten Formations,

the project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist or archaeologist to tain all construction

personnel involved with earthmoving activities, including the site superintendent, regarding the

possibility of eniountering fossils, the appearance and types of fossils likely to be seen during

construction, and proper notification procedures should fossils be encountered.

> Ifpaleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities, the construction crew shall

immediately cease work in the vicinity ofthe find and notifz the appropriate lead agency (identified

below), The project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate the resource and

prepare a recovery plan in accordance with Society ofVertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The

recovery plan may include, but is not limited to, a field survey, construction monitoring, sampling and

data recovery procedures, museum storage coordination for any specimen recovered, and a report of
findings. Recommendations in the recovery plan that are determined by the lead agency to be necessary

and feasible shall be implemented before construction activities can resume at the site where the

paleontological resources were discovered.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Resources are Discovered,

3A.4-l (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.7-10
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and

106
--ti

-34

Resolution No. 10670

Page 90 of 141

Page 606

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



considered infeasible for construction of that particular development phase and/or at that point in time. The project
construction.report, including the substantiation for not implementing particular GHG reduction measures, shall be

approved by the City, in consultation with SIvIAQMD prior to the release of a request for bid by the project

applicant(s) for seeking a primary contractor to manage the construction of each development project. By
requiring that the list of feasible measures be established prior to the selection of a primary contractor, this

measure requfes that the ability of a contractor to effectively implement the selected GHG reduction

measures be inherent to the selection process.

SMAQMD's recommended measures for reducing construction-related GHG emissions at the time of wdting

this EIFIEIS are listed below and the project applicant(s) shall, at a minimum, be required to implement the

following:

> Improve fuel efficiency from construction equipment:

. reduce unnecessary idling (modify work practices, install auxiliary power for driver comfort);

. perform equipment maintenance (inspections, detect failures early, conections);

. train equipment operators in proper use of equipment;

I use the proper size ofequipment for thejob; and

r use equipment with new technologies (repowered engines, elechic drive trains).

> Use alternative fuels for electricity generators and welders at construction sites such as propane or solar,

or use electrical power.

> Use an ARB-approved low-carbon fuel, such as biodiesel or renewable diesel for consfuction

equipment. (Emissions of oxides of nitrogen [NOx] emissions from the use of low carbon fuel must be

reviewed and increases mitigated.) Additional information about low carbon fuels is available from

ARB's Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program (ARB 2009b).

> Encourage and provide carpools, shuttle vans, transit passes and/or secure bicycle parking for

construction worker commutes.

> Reduce electricity use in the construction offrce by using compact fluorescent bulbs, powering off
computers every day, and replacing heating and cooling units with more efficient ones.

> Recycle or salvage non-hazardous construction and demolition debris (goal ofat least 75% by weight).

> Use locally sourced or recycled materials for construction materials lgoal ofat least 20% based on costs

for building materials, and based on volume for roadway, parking lot, sidewalk and curb materials).

> Minimize the amount ofconcrete used for paved surfaces or use a low carbon concrete option.

> Produce concrete on-site ifdetermined to be less emissive than transporting ready mix.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 91 of 141

Page 607

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant worked with an

organization Urban Wood Rescue which
is a program in association with the

Sacramento Tree Foundation that makes
wood products flom large trees that are

removed as a result of development. The

owner/applicant provided most of the
large trees that were removed as a part of
the grading and construction for the
project to Urban Wood Rescue and they
made table, furniture, etc. from the trees

that were provided. The remaining trees

and tree canopy was mulched by the

owner/applicant and is stored on site to
use as mulch in the landscape areas

throughout the project. No removed trees

were transported to the landfill rn

accordance with this condition of
approval.

The subdivision is not within any
identified area where contaminated
groundwater is present. Therefore there
is no required Phase 1 or Phase 2

Environmental Assessment required.

City ofFoisom
Community
Development
Departnent

Hazards and llazardous Materials

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before approval
of final maps

and/or building
permits for all
project phases

requiring
discretionary
approval,
including all
on- and off-site
elements.

Before and

during earth
moving
activities

> Use EPA-certified SmartWay trucks for deliveries and equipment transport. Additional information
about the SmartWay Transport Partnership Program is available from ARB's Heavy-Duty Vehicle

Greenhouse Gas Measure (ARB 2009c) and EPA (EPA 2009).

> Develop a plan in consultation with SMAQMD to efficiently use water for adequate dust control. This

may consist ofthe use of nonpotable water from a local source.

In addition to g![trQMD-recommended measures, construction activity shall comply with all applicable rules and

regulations established by SMAQMD and ARB.

Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program and/or Off-Site Tree
Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees. The trees on the project site contain sequestered carbon and

would continue to provide future carbon sequestration during their growing life. For all harvestable trees that

are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall
participate in and provide necessary funding for urban and community forestry program (such as

the UrbanWood program managed by the Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute [Urban Forest Ecosystems

Institute 2009]) to ensue that wood with an equivalent carbon sequestration value to that ofali harvestable
removed trees is harvested for an end-use that would retain its carbon sequestration (e.g., fumiture building,
cabinet making). For all nonharvestable trees that are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) shall

develop and i:nd an off-site tree program that includes a levei oftree planting that, at a minimum. increases

carbon sequestration by an amount equivalent to what would have been sequestered by the blue oak
woodland during its lifetime. This program shall be funded by the project applicant(s) of each development
phase and reviewed for comment by an independent Certified Arborist unaffiliated with the project
applicant(s) and shall be coordinated with the requirements ofMitigation Measure 3.3-5, as stated in Section
3A.3, "Biological Resources - Land." Final approval ofthe program shall be provided by the City.
Components of the program may include, but not be limited to, providing urban tree canopy in the City of
Folsom, or reforestation in suitable areas outside the City. Reforestation in natural habitat areas outside the

City of Folsom would simultaneously mitigate the loss of oak woodland habitat while planting trees within
the urban forest canopy would not. The Califomia Urban Forestry Greenhouse Gas Reporting Protocol shall
be used to assess this mitigation program (CCAR 2008). All unused vegetation and tree material shall be

mulched for use in landscaping on the project site, shipped to the nearest composting facility, or shipped to a
landfill that is equipped with a methane collection system, or combusted in a biomass power plant. Tree and

vegetative material should not be burned on- or off-site unless used as fuel in a biomass power plant.

Complete Investigations Related to the Extent to Which Soil andor Groundwater May Have Been
Contaminated in Areas Not Covered by the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments and
Implement Required Measures. The project applicant(s) for any discretionary development application

shall conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (where an Phase I has not been conducted), and if
necessary, Phase II Environmental Site Assessments, and/or other appropriate testing for all areas ofthe SPA

34.4-2b
(FPASP
ErnyErs)

3A.8-2 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-36

106

-37

Resolution No. 10670
Page 92 of 141

Page 608

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThere are no overhead powerlines

existing within this subdivision and all
proposed and future utility lines to serve

this subdivision will be placed

Cify of Folsom
Community

At the
submission of

and

that
include, as necessary, analysis of soil and/or groundwater samples for the potentiai contamination sites

have not yet been covered by previous investigations (as shown in Exhibit 3A.8-i) before construction

activities begin in those areas. Recommendations in the Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments to

address any contamination that is found shall be implemented before initiating ground-disturbing activities in

these areas.

The project applicant(s) shall implement the following measures before ground-disturbing activities to reduce

health hazards associated with potential exposure to hazardous substances:

> Prepare a plan that identifies any necessary remediation activities appropriate for proposed on- and off-

site uses, including excavation and removal of on-site contaminated soils, redistribution of clean fill
material in the SPA, and closure of any abandoned mine shafts. The plan shall include measures that

ensure the safe transport, use, and disposal ofcontaminated soil and building debris removed from the

site. In the event that contaminated groundwater is encountered during site excavation activities, the

contractor shall report the contamination to the appropriate regulatory agencies, dewater the excavated

area, and treat the contaminated gtoundwater to remove contaminants before discharge into the sanitary

sewer system. The project applicant(s) shall be required to comply with the plan and applicable Federal,

state, and local laws. The plan shall outline measures for specific handling and reporting procedures for

hazardous materials and disposal ofhazardous materials removed from the site at an appropriate off-site

disposal facility.

> Notify the appropriate Federal, state, and local agencies ifevidence ofpreviously undiscovered soil or

groundwater contamination (e.g., stained soil, odorous groundwater) is encountered during construction

activities. Any contaminated areas shall be remediated in accordance with recommendations made by the

Sacramento County Environmental Management Department, Central Vailey RWQCB, DTSC, and/or

other appropriate Federal, state, or local regulatory agencies.

> Obtain an assessment conducted by PG&E and SMUD pertaining to the contents ofany existing pole-

mounted transformers located in the SPA. The assessment shall determine whether existing on-site

electrical transformers contain PCBs and whether there are any records of spills from such equipment. If
equipment containing PCB is identified, the maintenance and/or disposal ofthe transformer shali be

subject to the regulations ofthe Toxic Substances Control Act under the authority ofthe Sacramento

County Environmental Health Department.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom'sjurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento County).

Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure, Potential purchasers ofresidential properties near

the transmission lines shall be made aware of the controversy sunounding EMF exposwe. The Califomia
Department of Real Estate shall be requested to insert an appropriate notification into the applicant's final
Subdivision Public Reoort aonlication. which shall be provided to Durchasers ofproperties within 100 feet

3A.8-6 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-38

Resolution No. 10670
Page 93 of 141

Page 609

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

underground in accordance with the
subdivision's conditions of approval.

The City and its Environmental

Compliance Consultant (Helix) have
reviewed all MMRP conditions and

verified compliance with this Mitigation
Measure. Compliance was verified prior
to commencement of grading and

construction in the Summer of 2020. The

compliance table is on file with the City.

Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

tentative map
applications.

Before issuance

ofgrading
permits for the
project water
features.

from the 100-1 l5kV power line , or within 150 feet from the 220-230 kV power line . The notification would
include a discussion ofthe scientific studies and conclusions reached to date, acknowledge that the

notification distance is not based on specific biological evidence, but rather, the distance where backgound
levels may increase, and provide that, given some uncertainty in the data, this notification is merely provided

to allow purchasers to make an informed decision.

Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and

Vector Control District. To ensure that operation and design ofthe stormwater system, including multiple
planned detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations ofthe Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector

Control Distnct regarding mosquito control, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and

implement a Vector Control Plan. This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the Sacramento-Yolo

Mosquito and Vector Control District and shall be submitted to the City for approval before issuance ofthe
grading permit for the detention basins under the City's jurisdiction. For the off-site detention basin, the plan

shall be submitted to Sacramento County for approval before issuance ofthe grading permit for the off-site

detention basin. The plan shall incorporate specific measures deemed sufficient by the City to minimize public

health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control

Dshict BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008). The plan shall include,

but is not limited to. the following components:

> Description ofthe project.

> Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that would control on-site water

levels.

> Goals of the plan.

> Description of the water management elements and features that would be implemented, including:

' BMPs that would implemented on-site;

. pubtic education and awareness;

' sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal of garbage);

. mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating water levels, biological agents, pesticides, larvacides,

circulating water); and

. stormwater management (consistent with Stormwater Management Plan).

> Long-term maintenance ofthe detention basins and all related facilities (e.g., specific ongoing

enforceable conditions or maintenance by a homeowner's association).

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention basins, the project applicant(s) shall

coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District to identifu and implement BMPs
based on their potential effectiveness for SPA conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are not limited
to, the following:

3A.8-7 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-39

Resolution No. 10670
Page 94 of 141

Page 610

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater

runoff. The MDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline

modeling. The Owner/applicanthas
submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

and Water Quality
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Submittal of the

State

Construction
General Permit
NOi and
SWPPP (where

applicable) and

development
and submittal of
any other
locally required
plans and
specifications
before the
issuance of
grading permits

for all on-site
project phases

build shoreline perimeters as steep and uniform as practicable to discourage dense plant grouth;

perform routine maintenance to reduce emergent plant densities to facilitate the ability ofmosquito

predators (i.e., fish) to move throughout vegetated area;

design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate slopes to drain fully and prevent

standing water. The design slope should take into consideration buildup of sediment between

maintenance periods. Compaction during grading may also be needed to avoid slumping and seftling;

coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with mosquito treatment operations;

> enforce the prompt removal ofsilt screens installed during construction when no longer needed to

protect water quality;

> ifthe sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the exception ofthe inlet and outlet,

submerge the inlet and outlet completely to reduce the available surface area ofwater for mosquito egg-

laying (female mosquitoes can fly through pipes); and

> design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or other necessary equipment to allow for

easy dewatering ofthe unit ifnecessary (Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008).

The project applicant(s) ofthe project phase containing the of-site detention basin shall coordinate

mitigation for the off-site with the affected oversight agency (i.e., Sacramento County).

other appropriate plans shall identify and specifu:

> the use ofan effective combination ofrobust erosion and sediment control BMPs and construction

techniques accepted by the local jurisdictions for use in the project area at the time of construction, that

shall reduce the potential for runoff and the release, mobilization, and exposure ofpollutants, including

legacy sources ofmercury from projecfrelated construction sites. These may include but would not be

limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization measures, sedimentation ponds, inlet

protection, perforated riser pipes, check dams, and silt fences

> the implementation of approved local plans, non-stomwater management controls, permanent post-

construction BMPs, and inspection and maintenance responsibilities;

3A.9-r (FPASP
EIFI/EIS)

106
-40

Resolution No. 10670

Page 95 of 141

Page 611

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

City ofFolsom
Public Works
Department

and off-site
elements and

implementation
throughout
project
construction.

Before approval
ofgrading plans

and building

> the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could be present in stormwater drainage

and nonstormwater discharges, including fuels, lubricants, and other types ofmaterials used for
equipment operation;

> spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to prevent or ciean up spills ofhazardous

waste and ofhazardous materials used for equipment operation, and emergency procedures for
responding to spills;

> personnel training requirements and procedures that shall be used to ensure that workers are aware of
permit requirements and proper installation methods for BMPs specified in the SWPPP; and

> the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to implementation ofthe SWPPP.

> Where applicable, BMPs identified in the SWPPP shall be in place throughout all site work and

consfuctior/demolition activities and shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. BMPs

may include, but are not linited to, such measures as those listed below.

> Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in disturbed areas to minimize

discharge of sediment into nearby drainage conveyances, in compliance with state and local standards in

effect at the time of construction. These measures may include silt fences, staked straw bales or wattles,

sedimentisilt basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation.

> Establishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas dishrbed by construction by slowing

runoffvelocities, trapping sediment, and enhancing filhation and transpiration.

> Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and runoffby conveying surface

runoff down sloping land, intercepting and diverting runoff to a watercourse or channel, preventing sheet

flow over sloped surfaces, preventing runoffaccumulation at the base ofa grade, and avoiding flood

damage along roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved SWPPP shall be maintained and available at all times on the construction site.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements, Calhans shall

coordinate with the development and implementation ofthe overall project SW?PP, or develop and

implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water quality
degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom'sjurisdictional boundaries mustbe
coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans).

Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained in Those Plans.

Before the approval of grading plans and building permits, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall

submit final drainage plans to the City, and to El Dorado County for the off-site roadway connections into El
Dorado Hills. demonstratins that off-site upstream runoffwould be appropriately conveyed through the SPA,

3A.9-2 (FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-41

Resolution No. 10670
Page 96 of 141

Page 612

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



requires the implementation of BMP'S,

monitoring and reporting for stormwater

runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP;, which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/appiicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

and that projectrelated on-site runoffwould be appropriately contained in detention basins or managed with
through other improvements (e.g., source controls, biotechnical sfieam stabilization) to reduce flooding and

hydromodfi cation impacts.

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

> an accurate calculation ofpre-project and post-project runoffscenarios, obtained using appropriate

engineering methods, that accurately evaluates potential changes to runofl including increased surface

runoff;

> runoffcalculations for the l0-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and other, smaller storm

events as required) shall be performed and the tmnk drainage pipeline sizes confirmed based on

alignments and detention facility locations finalized in the design phase;

> a description ofthe proposed maintenance program for the on-site drainage system;

> project-specific standards for installing drainage systems;

> City and El Dorado County flood control design requirements and measures designed to comply with

them;

Implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in the erosive force of flows beyond a

specific range ofconditions needed to limit hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorphology.

These BMPs will be designed and constructed in accordance with the forthcoming SSQP Hydromodification

Management Plan (to be adopted by the RWQCB) and may

include, but are not limited to, the following:

> use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in stormwater runoffat the point of
origination (these may include, but are not limited to: surface swales; replacement of conventional

impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces [e.g., porous pavement]; impervious surfaces disconnection;

and trees planted to intercept stormwater);

> enlarged detention basins to minimize flow changes and changes to flow duration characteristics;

> bioengineered sheam stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing vegetative and rock stabilization,

and inset floodplain restoration features that provide for enhancement ofripariar habitat and

maintenance ofnatural hydrologic and channel to floodplain interactions;

> minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention facility ouffall channel with the existing

receiving channei gradient to reduce flow velocity; and

> minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankment, and other encroachments into the

channel and floodplain corridor, and utilize open bottom box culverts to allow sediment passage on

smaller drainage courses.

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of Folsom Community Development

and Public Works Departments and El Dorado County Department of Transportation

permits of all
project phases.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 97 of 141

Page 613

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional

Water Quality Contro'l Board
(SRWQCB). The NDES Permit

requires the implementation of BMP's,
monitoring and reporting for stormwater
runoff. The NPDES Permit includes a

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SW?PP), which outlines monitoring
standards, frequency and baseline
modeling. The Owner/applicant has

submitted monthly reports to the City
and SRWQCB.

The owner/applicant has prepared storm

drain design reports and provided storm

drain calculations for all ofthe proposed

storm drainage features and

detentior/water quality and

hydromodifi cation basins necessary to

serve this subdivision. These reports
have been reviewed and approved by the

Community Development and Public

Works Departments.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Public Works
Department

Prepare plans

before the
issuance of
grading permits

for all project
phases and off-
site elements
and

implementation
throughout
project
construction.

AEP) flood flows be appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to people or damage to

structures wtthin or down gradient ofthe SPA would not occur, and that hydromodification would not be

increased from pre-development levels such that existing sheam geomorphology would be changed (the

range of conditions should be calculated for each receiving water iffeasible, or a conservative estimate

should be used, e.g., an Ep of I +10% or other as approved by the Sacramento Stormwater Quality
Partnership and/or City of Folsom Public Works Department).

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside ofthe City ofFolsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) ofeach applicable project phase with El Dorado County.

Develop rnd Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan, Before approval of the grading

permits for any development project requiring a subdivision map, a detailed BMP and water quality

maintenance plan shall be prepared by a qualified engineer retained by the project applicant(s) the

development project. Drafts ofthe plan shall be submifted to the City ofFolsom and El Dorado County for
the off-site roadway connections into El Dorado Hills, for review and approval concunently with
development oftentative subdivision maps for all project phases. The plan shall finalize the water quality

improvements and further detail the structural and nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project. The plan

shall include the elements described below.

> A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis ofproposed conditions incorporating the proposed

drainage design features.

> Predevelopment and post development calculations demonshating that the proposed water quality BMPs

meet or exceed requirements established by the City of Folsom and including details regarding the size,

geometry, and firnctional timing of storage and release pursuant to the "'Stormwater Quality Design

Manual for Saffamento and South Placer Regions" (ISSQP 2007b1 per NPDES Permit No. CAS082597

WDR Order No. R5-2008-0142, page 46) and El Dorado County's NPDES SWMP (County of El

Dorado 2004).

> Source control programs to conhol water quality pollutants on the SPA, which may include but are

limited to recycling, street sweeping, storm drain cleaning, household hazardous waste collection, waste

minimization, prevention ofspills and illegal dumping, and effective management ofpublic hash

collection areas.

> A pond management component forthe proposedbasins that shall include management and maintenance

requirements for the design features and BMPs, and responsible parties for maintenance and funding.

> LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water quality maintenance plan. These may

include, but are not limited to:

' surface swales;

. replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces (e.g., porous pavement);

. impervious surfaces disconnection; and

3A.9-3 (FPASP
ErwErs)

106

-42

Resolution No. 10670
Page 98 of 141

Page 614

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

There are no existing or proposed dams

upstream from this subdivision and

therefore there is no requirement to
perform the analysis required in this

condition ofapproval.

The owner/applicant has implemented

noise reducing construction practices

included as part ofthe required Noise

Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
thLrough construction inspection.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

and Vibration
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
submittal to the
City oftentative
maps or
improvement
plans.

Before and

during
construction
activities on the

SPA and within
El Dorado
Hills.

. trees planted to intercept stormwater.

New stormwater facilities shail be placed along the natual drainage courses within the SPA to the extent

practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage patterns. The reduction in runoff as a result of the LID
configurations shall be quantified based on the runoffreduction credit system medrodology described in
"stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix

D4" (SSQP 2007b) and proposed detenfion basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to handle

these runoffvolumes.

For those areas that would be disturbed as part ofthe U.S. 50 interchange improvements, it is anticipated that

Caltrans would coordinate with the development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or

develop and implement its owa SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water'

quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent practicable.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project appiicant(s) of each applicable project phase with El Dorado County and Caltrans.

of the City of Folsom Public Wotks Department.

Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise Control Plan, and

Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors' To reduce impacts associated with
noise generated during project related construction activities, the project applicant(s) and their primary

contractors for engineering design and construction of all project phases shall enswe that the following
requirements are implemented at each work site in any year ofproject construction to avoid and minimize

construction noise effects on sensitive receptors. The project applicant(s) and primary construction

contractor(s) shall employ noise-reducing construction practices. Measures that shall be used to limit noise

shall include the measures listed below:

> Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m.

Monday through Friday, and between 8 a.m. and 6 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays.

> All constnrction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be located as far as possible from nearby

noise-sensitive land uses.

3A.94 (FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.11-l
(FPASP
EInvEIS)

-43

106

-44

Resolution No. 10670

Page 99 of 141

Page 615

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesBlasting has been necessary tluoughout
the course of grading and construction in
this subdivision. The blasting has not
been within 2000 feet ofany sensitive

receDtor. The blasting contractor has

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before and
during
bulldozing and

blasting
activities on the

All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped with noise-reduction

exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, in accordance with manufacturets' recommendations.

intake ard
Equipment

engine shrouds shall be closed during equipment operation.

> All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in use to prevent idling.

> Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g., using welding

instead ofriveting, mixing concrete offsite instead ofon-site).

> Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-generating equipment (e.g.,

compressors and generato$) as planned phases are built out and future noise sensitive receptors are

located within close proximity to fuhre construction activities.

> Written notification ofconstruction activities shal! be provided to all noise-sensitive receptors located

within 850 feet ofconstruction activities. Notification shali include anticipated dates and hours dwing

which construction activities are anticipated to occur and csntact information, including a da1'time

telephone number, for the project representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are deemed

excessive. Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land uses in reducing interior noise levels (e.g.,

closing windows and doors) shall also be included in the notification.

> To the extent feasible, acoustic baniers (e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall be constructed to reduce

consfuction-generated noise levels at affected noise-sensitive land uses. The barriers shall be designed

to obstruct the line of sight between the noise-sensitive land use and on-site construction equipment.

When instatled properly, acoustic baniers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately 8-10

dB (EPA 1971).

> When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to prolonged construction noise, noise-

attenuating buffers such as structures, truck tailers, or soil piles shall be located between noise sources

and future residences to shield sensitive receptors from construction noise'

> The primary contractor shall prepare and implement a construction noise management plan. This plan

shall identify specific measures to ensure compliance with *re noise control measures specified above.

The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City ofFolsom before any noise-generating construction

activity begins. Constmction shall not commence until the construction noise management plan is

approved by the City of Folsom. Mitigation for the two off-site roadway connections into El Dorado

County must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of the applicable project phase with El Dorado

County, since the roadway extensions are outside ofthe City ofFolsom'sjurisdictional boundaries.

Implement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Groundborne Noise or Vibration
from Project Generated Construction Activities.

> To the extent feasible, blasting activities shall not be conducted within 275 feet ofexisting or future

sensitive receptors.

3A.11-3
(FPASP
ErR/XrS)

106

45

Resolution No. 10670
Page 100 of i41

Page 616

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

obtained a blasting permit from the City
and the Community Deveiopment
Department has verified compliance with
the permit tkough construction

inspection.

The owner/applicant has implemented

noise reducing construction practices

included as part ofthe required Noise

Control Plan. Compliance with these

requirements has been monitored
through construclion inspection.

There are no sensitive receptors within
600 feet ofany on-going construction
and grading activity in the subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

SPA and within
El Dorado Hills
and the County
of Sacramento

Before
submittal of
improvement
plans for each

project phase,

and during
proj€ct
operations for
testing of
emergency
generators.

To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted within 50 feet of existing or future

sensitive receptors.

> Ail blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blasting personnel licensed to operate in the

State of Califomia.

> A blasting plan, including estimates ofvibration levels at the residence closest to the blast, shall be

submitted to the enforcement agency for review and approval prior to ttre commencement ofthe first

blast.

> Each blast shall be monitored and documented for goundbourne noise and vibration le\rels at the nearest

sensitive land use and associated recorded submitted to the enforcement agency.

Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary Sources.

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project shall implement the following

meaiures to reduce the effect ofnoise levels generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be

located within 600 feet of any noise-sensitive receptor:

> Routine testing and preventive maintenance ofemergency electrical generators shall be conducted

during the less sensitive daytime hours (i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All electrical generators shall be

equipped with noise control (e.g., muffler) devices in accordance with manufacturers' specifications.

> External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall incorporate featues designed to reduce

noise emissions below the stationary noise source criteria. These features may include, but are not

limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms or enclosures frat incorporate noise-reduction

features, such as acoustical louvers, and exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosues shall be

oriented so that major openings (i.e., intake louvers, exhaust) are directed away from nearby noise-

sensitive receptors.

> Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary noise

source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7

a.m, to 10 p.m.l and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p.m to 7

a.m.]). Reduction ofparking lot noise can be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible

from noise sensitive iand uses, or using buildings and topographic feahres to provide acoustic shielding

for noise-sensitive land uses.

> Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do not exceed the stationary noise

source criteria established in this analysis (i.e., 50 clB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7
a.m. to 10 p.m.] and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour during the night time [10 p m. to 7

a.m.]). Reduction ofloading dock noise can be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as

possible from noise sensitive land uses, constructing noise baniers hetween loadins docks and noise-

3A.lt-5
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-46

Resolution No. 10670

Page 101 of141

Page 617

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
aCofOin
the
appropriate
phase of
developme
nt ofthe
project.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
aCofOin
the

appropriate
phase of
developme
nt ofthe
project.

The landscape and streetscape plans for
the subdivision include the required
masonry walls in the required height and

required locations. The Community
Development Deparhnent will monitor
compliance during construction and

veriff that the sound walls are complete
prior to issuance ofa Certificate of
Occupancy in the subdivision.

The Community Development
Department will monitor compliance
during construction and verifi *rat the

sound walls are complete prior to
issuance ofa Certificate ofOccupancy in
the subdivision.

City of Folsom

Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
building
occupancy

Prior to
building
occupancy

sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for noise-

sensitive land uses.

Exterior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall design and consffuct noise baniers, as detailed below,

to reduce traffic noise levels below the City ofFolsom exterior criteria of60 dB Ldn.

> 6-foot tall solid noise baniers, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property

boundaries adjacent to East Bidwell Street, Mangini Parkway, and Oak Avenue Parkway.

> For the proposed Traditional Subdivisions portion ofthe project, a 7-foot tall solid noise barrier, relative

to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries adjacent to White Rock Road.

> For the proposed Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase 1 and Phase 2 portions ofthe project, an 8-foot tall

solid noise banier, relative to backyard elevations, shall be constructed along all property boundaries

adjacent to White Rock Road.

Suitable materials for the traffic noise baniers include masonry and precast concrete panels. The overall

barrier height may be achieved by utilizing a banier and earthen berm combination. Other materials may be

acceptable but shall be reviewed by an acoustical consultant prior to use.

Barrier height requirements are based on a property boundary setback of 117 -122 feet from the ultimate

alignment of White Rock Road under the approved Capital Southeast Connector project. If 90 days prior to
pulling building permits for the Toll Brothers site, it is determined that there is no evidence that the White
Rock Road improvements are firnded and moving forward, as described under the approved Capital

Southeast Connector project, the project applicant shall obtain the services of a noise consultant to reconduct

a site-specific acoustical analysis based on the actual properfy boundary setback to determine the appropriate

noise reduction measues to reduce traffic noise levels in accordance with adopted City ofFolsom noise

standards.

Interior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures

Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following construction design features

have been implemented.

> For the first-row ofhomes located along White Rock Road, the west-, south-, and east-facing upper-floor
building facades shall maintain minimum window assembly STC ratings of 34.

> Mechanical ventilation (air conditioning) shall bc provided for all residences in this development to

allow the occupants to close doors and windows as desired to achieve compliance with the applicable

interior noise level criteria.

4.13,1
(Addendum)

4.13-2
(Addendum)

106

-47

106

-48

Resolution No. 10670
Page 102 of 141

Page 618

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The Community Development
Department has reviewed and
approved all traffic control plans
required for the construction of both
off-site and on-site improvements
for this subdivision to verifu
compliance with City ordinances and
to minimize delays to the travelling
public.

There are no off-site elements outside

the City timits for this subdivision.

The City Fire Department has reviewed

and approved all proposed improvements

for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifr adequate fire flow prior to
building permit issuance in the

subdivision.

Public Services

City ofFolsom
Public Works
Department

City ofFolsom
Fire
Department,
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before the

approval of all
relevant plans

and/or permits
and during
construction of
all project
phases.

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and

issuance of
occupancy
permits or final
inspections for
all project
phases.

Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Plan, The project applicant(s) of all project

phases shall prepare and implement traffrc contol plans for construction activities that may affect road

rights-of-way The traffic control plans must follow any applicable standards ofthe agency responsible for
Measures typically used inthe affected roadway and must be approved and signed by a professional engineer.

traffic control plans include advertising ofplanned lane closwes, warning signage,

traffic flows when needed, and methods to ensure continued access by emergency
a flag person to direct

vehicles. During project

construction, access to existing land uses shall be maintained at all times, with detours used as necessary

during road closures. Traffic controi plans shall be submitted to the appropriate City or County depaxtment or

the Califomia Departrnent ofTransportation (Caltrans) for review and approval before the approval of all

project plans or permits, for all project phases where implementation may cause impacts on traffic-

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be

coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable pro-ject phase with the affected oversight

agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties and Caltrans).

Incorporate California Fire Code; City ofFolsom Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD
Requirements, if Necessary, into Project Design and Submit Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire
Department for Review and Approval. To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, the

project applicant(s) of all project phases shall do the following, as described below.

1. Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire

Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other applicable requirements based on the

City of Folsom Fire Department fire prevention standards.

Improvement plans showing the incorporation automatic sprinkler systems, the availability of adequate fire

flow, and the locations ofhydrants shall be submitted to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and

approval. In addition, approved plans showing access design shall be provided to the City of Folsom Fire

Department as described by Zoning Code Section I 7.57.080 ("Vehicular Access Requirements"). These

plans shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting equipment. The

installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire

Department. The design and operation of gates and banicades shall be in accordance with the Sacramento

County Emergency Access Gates and Baniers Standard, as required by the City ofFolsom Fire Code.

2. Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations Document Submittal List to the City of
Folsom Community Development Department Building Division for review and approval before the issuance

ofbuilding permits.

In addition to the above measures, the project applicant(s) ofall project phases shall incorporate the

provisions described below for the portion ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area, ifit is determined

through City/El Dorado County negotiations that EDHFD would serve the 178-acre portion ofthe SPA.

3A.14-l
(FPASP
ErR/0rs)

3l\14-2
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-49

r06
-50

Resolution No. 10670

Page 103 of 141

Page 619

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

The City Fire Department has reviewed

and approved all proposed improvements

for the subdivision. The City FD will
verifr adequate fire flow prior to
building permit issuance in the

subdivision.

This subdivision pay share of
the following improvements with the
palment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision,

City ofFolsom
Fire
Department,
City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Before issuance

ofbuilding
permits and

issuance of
occupancy
permits or final
inspections for
all project
phases.

A phasing
analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to

determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented

3. Incorporate into project designs applicable requirements

For commercial development, improvement plans showing

on EDHFD fire prevention standards.

roadways, land splits, buildings, fire sprinkler
shall be submitted to the EDHFDsystems, fire alarm systems, and other commercial building improvements

for revlew and approval. For residential development, improvement plans showing property lines and

adjacent streets or roads; total acreage or square footage ofthe parcel; the footprint ofall structures; driveway

plan views describing width, lengh, tumouts, turnarounds, radiuses, and surfaces; and driveway profi1e

views showing the percent grade fiom the access road to the structure and vertical clearance shall be

submitted to the EDHFD for review and approval.

4. Submit a Fire Prevention Plan Checklist to the EDHFD for review and approval before the issuance of
building permits, kr addition, residential development requiring automation fue sprinklers shail submit

sprinkler design sheet(s) and hydraulic calculations from a Califomia State Licensed C-16 Contractor.

The City shall not authorize the occupancy ofany struchues until the project applicant(s) have obtained a

Certifrcate of Occupancy from the City of Folsom Community Development Departrnent verifring that all

fire prevention items have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction ofthe City ofFolsom Fire Department

and/or the EDHFD for the 178-acre area ofthe SPA within the EDHFD service area.

Incorporate into Project Designs. The of all project phases

shall incorporate into their project designs

for those areas

fire flow requirements based on the Califomia Fire Code, Folsom

Fire Code, and/or EDHFD of the SPA within the EDHFD service area and shall verif, to City

ofFolsom Fire Department that adequate water flow is

available, prior to approval ofimprovement plans and issuance of occupancy permits or final inspections for
all project phases.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Folsom

Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 1), To ensure thal the Folsom Boulevard/Blue

Ravine Road intersection opemtes at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to

consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine

Road intersection (Intersection 1).

3A.14-3
(FPASP
EIWETS)

3A.15-1a
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-51

106

-(t

Resolution No. 10670
Page 104 of 141

Page 620

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
buiiding permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Lnpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements witl tle
pal'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Deparhnent

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

and when fair
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented
and when fair
share funding
should be paid.

A phasing

analysis shall be
performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing
analysis shail be

performed prior
to approval of
the fust
subdivision
map to

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair to Construction of Improvements
^t

the Siblev

StreeVBlue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 2). To ensllle that the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oflwo
left-tum lanes, two through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection

(Intersection 2).

The Applicant Shall Fund Construct Improvements to the Scott Road (West)/White Rock Road

Intersection (Intersection 28). To ensure that the Scott Road (West)'Ailhite Rock Road intersection operates

at an acceptable LOS, a traffrc signal must be installed.

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway Intersection

(Intersection 4l). To ensure that the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left turn lane and

two through lanes, and the westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist oftwo through lanes and one

dedicated right-hrn lane. The applicant shall fund and construct these improvements.

3A,15-1b

(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-lc
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-1e

(FPASP
ErnuErs)

106

-53

106

-54

1'06

-55

Resolution No. 10670

Page 105 of 141

Page 621

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
palment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento

County Public
Works
Department and

Caltrans

Sacramento
County Public
Works
Department

determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing

analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

A phasing
analysis shall be

performed prior
to approval of
the first
subdivision
map to
determine when
the
improvement
should be

implemented.

Before project
build out.

Design of the
White Rock
Road widening
to four lanes,

from Grant Line
Road to Prairie

Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Middle Road Intersection

(Intersection 44). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/l\4iddle Road intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, conhol all movements with a stop sign. The applicant shall fund and constntct these

improvements.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom

Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 2), To enswe that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom

Boulevard intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, this intersection must be grade separated including
'Jug handle" ramps. No at grade improvement is feasible. Grade separating and extended (south) Hazel

Avenue with improvements to the U.S. 50/Hazei Avenue interchange is a mitigation measure for the

approved Easton-Glenbrough Specific Plan development project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate

share offunding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a pro$am
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard intersection

(Sacramento County Intersection 2).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line RoadAilhite
Rock Rord Intersection and to White Rock Road widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to
Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Intersection 3), Improvements must be made to ensure that the

Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS. The cunently County

proposed White Rock Road widening project will widen and realign White Rock Road from the Rancho

Cordova City limit to the El Dorado County line (this ana$sis assumes that the Proposed Project and build
alternatives will widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie City road to the El Dorado County Line).
This widening includes improvements to the Grant Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock Road

3A.15-1f

(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A,15-1h

(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-ri
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-56

106

-57

106
-58

Resolution No. 10670
Page 106 of l4 I

Page 622

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Irnpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento

County Public
Works
Departrnent

City Road, with
Intersection
improvements
has begun, and
because this

widening
project ls
environmentally
cleared and

tuily tunded,
it's construction
is expected to
be complete
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
altemative is

built.

Before project
build out.
Construction of
phase two of
the Hazel
Avenue
widening, from
Madison
Avenue to
Crirragh Dowls
Drive, is
expected to be

completed by
year 2013,
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
altemative is

to be the through movement. The improvements include two eastbound through lanes, one eastbound right

tum lane, two northbound left turn lanes, two northbound right tum lanes, two westbound left turn lanes and

two westbound through lanes. This improvement also includes the signalization ofthe White Rock Road and

Grant Line Road intersection. With implementation of this improvement, the intersection would operate at an

acceptable LOS A. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

Grant Line Road,tVhite Rock Road intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3)'

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between

Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive (Roadway Segment 10). To ensure that Hazel Avenue

operates at an acceptable LOS between Cunagh Downs Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Hazel Avenue

must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part of the County adopted Hazel Avenue widening
project.

3A.1s-lj
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-59

Resolution No. 10670
Page 107 of 141

Page 623

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit in
the
subdivision

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

El Dorado
County
Department of
Transportation

complete. The
applicant shall
pay its
proportionate

share of funding
of
improvements
to the agency
responsible for
improvements,
based on a
pro$am
established by
that agency to
reduce the
impacts to
Hazel Avenue

between
Madison
Avenue and

Cunagh Downs
Drive
(Sacramento

Couty
Roadway
Segment 10).

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
oroiect ohase

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White Rock
RoadAilindfield Way Intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 3). To ensure that the White Rock

Road/Windfield Way intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the intersection must be signalized and

separate northbound left and dght turn lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection (El Dorado County

Intersection 3).

3A.15-11
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106
-60

Resolution No. 10670

Page 108 of 141

Page 624

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
nrior to

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF). Citv Traffic Impact Fees

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation
and the City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

Caihans

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out.
Construction of
the Sacramento

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U'S. 50 as an

alternative to improvements at the Folsom Boulevrrd/U.S, 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans

Intersection 4). Congestion on eastbound U.S. 50 is causing vehicles to use Folsom Boulevard as an alternate

parallel route until they reach U.S. 50, where they must get back on the freeway due to the lack of a parallel

ioute. It is prefened to alleviate the congestion on U.S. 50 than to upgrade the intersection at the end ofthis
reliever route. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the

Folsom Boulevard,/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the

Folsom Boulevard,{J.S. 50 eastbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes

should be added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to east ofFolsom Boulevard. This was

recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project'

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant Line Road/ State

Route 16 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12). To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches must be reconfigured

to consist ofone left-turn lane and one shared through/rightturn lane. Protected left-tum signal phasing must

be provided on the northbound and southbound approaches. Improvements to the Grant Line Road/State

Route 16 intersection are contained within the County Development Fee Program, and are scheduled for
Measure A funding,

Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans, Sacramento County, and the City of
Rancho Cordova,

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of firnding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line

Road/State Route l6 intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S, 50 between

Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus-carpool (HOV) lane must be

constructed. This improvement is currently planned as part ofthe Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool Lane and

3A.15-lo
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A.15-1p
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-1q
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-61

106

-62

106

-63

Resolution No. 10670

Page 109 of 141

Page 625

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
wiil be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdrvision will pay its iair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Crty of Folsom
Cornmunity
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and

Community
Enhancements
Project is
expected to be

completed by
year 2013,
before the first
phase ofthe
Proposed
Project or
altemative is
complete.
Construction of
the Sacramento
50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and
Community
Enhancements
Project has

started since the

writing of the
Draft EIS/EIR.

Befbre project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
shouid be built.

Community Enhancements Project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment

r).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S, 50 between
Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3), To enswe that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at
an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be constructed.
This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50

between Hazel Avenue aad Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3).

3A.15-1r
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-64

Resolution No. 10670
Pagell0of14l

Page 626

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastmcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

City ofRancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works
and Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
deterrrine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between

Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbound U.S 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, an auxiliary lane must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility Fee Program.

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound

U.S. 50 befiileen Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound U.S,50 between

Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 18). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be constructed.

This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary
Lane Project, and included in the proposed Rancho Cordova Parkway interchaage project.

Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

3A.15-1s
(FPASP
EIRVEIS)

3A.15-1u
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-1v
(FPASP
ErwErs)

106

-65

106

-66

r06
-67

Resolution No. 10670

Page lli ofi41

Page 627

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

palment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Inftastructue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
apploval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build oul A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and

Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1 8).

Participate tn Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on u.s. 50 Eastbound/Prairie

City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge t. To ensllle that Eastbound U S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

at the Prairie City Road off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge must be

constructed. This improvement was recommended ln the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.s. 50

Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane improvement ls included ln the proposed 50 Conidor Mobility
improvements, as may beFee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

lmpacts to the U S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge (Freeway Diverge 5).

3A.15-1w
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-1x
(FPASP
ETRyEIS)

106

-68

106

-69

Resolution No. 10670
Page I l2 of 141

Page 628

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastnrcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastnrchue

Fees (SPIF), City Trafftc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

map to

determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie

City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at ar acceptable

LOS at the Prairie City Road onramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor

Mobility Fee Program.

determined by a nexus

impacts to the U.S. 50

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

EastboundlPrairie City Road direct merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate m Fair Share Funding of Improvements to
City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkwav

Reduce Impacts on U,S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie
Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8)' To ensure

"braided ramp"

that Eastbound U S, 50 operates al an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak
implemented toAvenue Parkway off-ramp

eliminate the unacceptable
weave, an improvement acceptable to Caltrans should be

weaving conditions. Such an improvement may involve a

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Easdbound / Pralrie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave (Freeway Weave 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S, 50 Eastbound/Oak

Avenue Parkway Loop Merge (Freeway Merge 9), To ensure that Eastbormd U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott

Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Conidor

Mobility FJe Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

3A.15-ly
(FPASP
ErR/ErS)

3A.15-12
(FPASP
ErwErs)

3A,15-1aa
(FPASP
EIWEIS)

r06
-70

106

-71

106
-72

Resolution No. 10670

Page I l3 of 141

Page 629

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastructue
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the foilowing improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be buiit.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50

Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23). To ensure that Westbound

U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the

westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Caltans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge
(Freeway Merge 23).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 29). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at

an acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbormd auxiliary
lane that ends at the Prairie City Road offramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Oak Avenue Parkway

would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this fleeway segnent must be implemented

by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the

impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 29).

3A.15-ldd
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-1ee
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

-tJ

I06
-74

Resolution No. 10670
Page I l4 of 141

Page 630

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastnrchue

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic ImPact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

pa1'rnent of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees coilected pdor to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the
first subdivision

Participate in Fair Share Funding oflmprovements to Reduce Impacts on

Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50

u.s. 50 Eastbound/Folsom
operates at an acceptable LOS

aI the Folsom Boulevard Diverge, an auxiliary lane ftom the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge must be

constructed. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This auxliary lane

improvement is-included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be iletermined by a nexus study or other appropriate

and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to dte U.S. 50 Eastbound / Folsom

Boulevard diverge (Freeway Diverge 34).

3A.15-1ff
(FPASP
EIFUEIS)

3A.15-1gg
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-1hh
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-75

106

-76

106

-77

Resolution No. 10670

Pagell5ofl4l

Page 631

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan lnfrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Counfy Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation
and City of
Rancho
Cordova
Department of
Public Works

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Deparftnent

map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before approval
of improvement
plans for all
project phases

any particular
discretionary
development
application that
includes

residential and

commercial or
mixed-use
development.
As a condition
ofproject
aooroval and/or

Participate
Avenue Direct
acceptable LOS

diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement ls included ln the proposed 50 Corridor

Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay lts proportionate share of funding of improvements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based

the U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue direct
on a pro$am established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

ramp merge (Freeway Merge 38)

Pedestrian and bicycle facilities shall be implemented to the satisfaction ofthe City Public Works

Department. To firther minimize impacts from the increased demand on area roadways and intersections, the

project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application involving schools or commercial

ienters shall develop and implement safe and secure bicycle parking to promote alternative transportation

uses and reduce the volume of single-occupancy vehicles using area roadways and intersections. The project

applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall participate in capital

improvements and operating funds for transit service to increase the percent oftravel by transtt. The project's

faii-share participation and the associated timing ofthe improvements and service shall be identified in the

project conditions of approval and/or the project's development agreement. Improvements and service shall

be coordinated, as necessary, with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT.

3A.15-1ii
(FPASP
EIR/ErS)

3A.15-2a
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-78

106
-79

Resolution No. 10670

Page I l6 of l4l

Page 632

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Trafiic knpact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan lnftastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transnortation fees collected prior to

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

as a condition
of the
development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Concunent with
construction for
all project
phases.

Concunent with
construction for
all project
phases.

As a condition
ofproject
approval and/or
as a condition
of the
development
agreement for
all project
phases.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
nrior to

Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program. The project applicant(s) for
any particular discretionary development applicalion shall pay an appropriate amount into the City's existing

Transportation System Management Fee Program to reduce the number of single-occupant automobile travel

on area roadways and intersections.

roadways and intersections.

Pay Full Cost of Identilied Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Fee Program. In

accordance with Measure W, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application

shall provide fair-share contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program to fully firnd
improvements only required because ofthe Specific Plan.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Sibley
StreeflBlue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2). To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine

Road intersection operates at a LOS D with less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound approach

must be reconfigured to consist oftwo left-tum lane, trvo through lanes, and one dedicated right-turn lane. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus study

3A.15-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-2c
(FPASP
ErRyErs)

3A.15-3
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4a
(FPASP
EIRI/EIS)

106

-80

106

-81

r06
-82

106

-83

Resolution No. 10670

Page ll1 of 141

Page 633

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payrnent of Specific Plan Infrastn"rcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
piol to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to

determine
during which
project phase

the

or other reliable mechanism paid for by to the impacts to the Sibley

StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection (Folsom Intersection 2).

of Improvements to

Parkway/East (Folsom Intersection 6). To ensure that the Oak Avenue

Parkway/East Bidwell Street intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound (East Bidwell Street)

oftwo left+urn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane, andapproach must
the westbound
through lanes,

be reconfigured to consist
(East Bidwell Stree0 approach must be reconfigured to conslst of two left tum lanes, four

and a nght-turn lane. It 1S against the City of Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because of
the impacts to non motorized traffic and adj acent development; therefore, this improvement ls infeasible.

The Applicant
Street/College

Shall Pay a Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the East Bidwell
Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 7). To ensufe that the East Bidwell Street/College

Street intersection operates at acceptable LOS C or
consist of one left-turn lane, one left-through lane,

better the westbound approach must be reconfigured to

and two dedicated right-turn lanes. The applicant shall pay

its proportionate share of firnding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study orothel

appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell

Street/Nesmith Court intersection (Folsom Intersection 7)'

3A.15-4b
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4c
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-84

106
-85

Resolution No. 10670
Pagell8ofl4l

Page 634

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
pal,rnent of Specific Plan Infrastnrcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Courty Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Trafiic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine

during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be nerformed

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction oflmprovements to the East Bidwell
Street/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2l), To ensure that the East Bidwell Street /Iron

Point Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must be reconfigured to

consist oftwo left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-tum lane, and the southbound approach must be

reconfigured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane. It is against the City of
Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because ofthe impacts to non motorized haffic and adjacent

development; therefore, this improvement is infeasible.

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Serpa Way/
Iron Point Road Intersection @olsom Intersection 23). To improve LOS at the Serpa Way/ Iron Point

Road intersgction, the northbound approaches must be restriped to consist ofone left-tum lane, one shared

leftthrough lanes, and one righltum lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant to reduce the impacts to the Serpa Way/lron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23).

The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the Empire Ranch
Road/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 24), To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road /
kon Point Road intersection operates at a LOS D or better, all ofthe following improvements are required:

The eastbound approach must be reconfigured to consist ofone left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right
tum lane. The westbound aooroach must be reconfisured to consist oftwo left-turn lanes, one through lane,

3A.15-4d
(FPASP
EIWEIS)

3.d.15-4e
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4f
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-86

106

-87

106
-88

Resolution No. 10670
Page I l9 of 141

Page 635

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchfe
Fees (SPIF), City Trafftc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Sacramento
County
Department of
Trarsportation.

prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
appfoval ofth€
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

and a tkough-right northbound approach must be to consist of two left-turn lanes,

three through lanes, and a right-turn lane.

lefltum lanes, three through lanes, and a

The southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two

right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliablefunding of improvements, as may be determined by

mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Empire Ranch Road Iron Point Road

Intersection Before project build out. A phasing

subdivision map to determine during which proj

Intersection 24).

analysis should be performed pnor to approval of the first
built. (Folsomect phase the improvement should be

Applicant Shall Fund and Construct to the Oak Avenue Valley

Parkway Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley

Parkway intersection
oftwo left-turn lanes,

these improvements.

operates at an acceptable LOS the southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist

two through lanes, and two right-tum lanes. The applicant shall fund and construct

Participate in Fair of Improvements to Reduce on the Grant Line RoadAilhite
that the Grant Line Road/WhiteRock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3)' To ensure

Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E or better *ris intersection should be replaced by

some type ofgrade separited intersection or interchange. Improvements to this intersection are identified in

the Sairament,o County's Proposed General Plan. Implementation of these improvements would assist in

reducing traffic impacts on this intersection by providing acceptable operation. Intersection improvements

must bJimplemented by Sacramento County. The appiicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to

reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection

3).

3A.15-4g
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.15-4i
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-89

106
-90

Resolution No. 10670
Page 120 of 141

Page 636

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Tlansportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffrc Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan hfrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be oerformed

in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between

White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). To improve

operation on Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this roadway segment must

bL widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho

Cordova General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share offunding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and

kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). The identified improvement would more

than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 project on this roadway segment'

Participate in Fair Share Funding 0l Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line Road between

Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway (Sacramento
Line Road belween Kiefer Boulevard

County Roadway Segment 8). To improve

operation on Grant Jackson Highway, this roadway segment could be

implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its

proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and

laclson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). The identified improvement would more than

offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 project on this roadway segment.

widened to six lanes. This improvement is

Cordova General Plans; however, it is not
proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho

in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment must be

Participate in Fair Share Funding
Curragh Downs Drive and U.S,50
To improve operation on Hazel Avenue between Cunagh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 westbound ramps,

this roadway segment could be widened to eight lanes. This improvement is inconsistent with Sacramento

Countv's general plan because the county's policy requires a maximum roadway cross section of six lanes.

of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue between

Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13).

3A.rs-4j
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4k
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.t5-4t
(FPASP
EIWETS)

106

-91

106

-92

106
-93

Resolution No. 10670

Page 121 of 141

Page 637

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
pdor to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastruchre
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This pay share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

pnor to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Analysis shown later indicates that improvements at the impacted intersection in this segment can be

mitigated (see Mitigation Measure 3A.15afl. Improvements to impacted intersections on ttris segment will
improve operations on this roadway segment and, therefore; mitigate this segment impact. The applicant shall

pay its proportionate share offunding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on

a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive

and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between

Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22). To improve

operation on White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this roadway segment must

be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035 MTP but is not included in the

Sacramento County General Plan. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by

Sacramento County. The identifred improvement would more than offset the impacts specifically related to

the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 project on this roadway segment. However, because ofother development in the

region that would substantially increase traffic levels, this roadway segment would continue to operate at an

unacceptable LOS F even with the capacity improvements identified to mitigate Folsom South of U.S. 50

impacts. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency

responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to White

Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock Road between

Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing R0ad (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28). To

improve operation on White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road, this

roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented

by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the

agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway

Segment 28).

3A.15-4m
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4n
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

-94

106

-95

Resolution No. 10670
Page 122 of 141

Page 638

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will bs
satisfied
prior to
issuance of

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payrnent of Specific Pian Infrastnrcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Trafftc Impact Fees

and Sacramento Countv Wide

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento
County
Departrnent of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
appoval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be oerformed

to

farticipate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Hazel Avenue/U.S' 50

Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection l). To ensure that the Hazel AvenueAJ.S. 50

westbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the westbound approach must be reconfigured

to consist of one dedicated left turn lane, one shared left tlrough lane and thee dedicated righltum lanes.

hnprovements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento County. The applicant

shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency responsible for improvements,

based on a piogram established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel AvenueIJ.S. 50 Westbound

Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 1).

Conidor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not'likely to be implemented by Caltans by 2030

3A.15-4o
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4p
(FPASP
EIRUEIS)

3A.I5-4q
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-96

106

-97

106

-98

Resolution No. 10670
Page 123 of 141

Page 639

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), Cify Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval of the
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out, A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

Construction ofthe Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line
Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic from U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the

project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements to the agency

responsible for rmprovements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to

Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment l).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound US 50

operates at an acceptable LOS between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue, an additional
eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in
Caltrans State Route 50 Conidor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by

Caltrans by 2030. Construction ofthe Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road

and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and partially

mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to

the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce the

impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound US 50 between

Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary lane should

be converted to a mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp (see

mitigation measure 3A.15-4t). Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. This

improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Calhans State Route 50 Coridor System

Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the

Capitol South East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with
limited access, could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact. The
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of fi.rnding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5).

3A.15-4r
(FPASP
ErnuErs)

3A.15-4s
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106
-99

106

r00

Resolution No. 10670
Page 124 of 141

Page 640

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of

subdivision will pay its

the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastn.rchue

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the

payment of Specific Plan Infrastmcture

Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to

approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

improvement
should be built.

Before project

build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval of the

fust subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed

Segment 6).

in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S.
ensufe that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

should start the eastbound auxiliary lane that

mitigation measure 3A. i5-4u, and x), and

the southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp

and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp. Improvements to

this freeway segment must be imp'lemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of
funding ofimpiovements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and r_eliable

mechanism piid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip

ramp merge (Freeway Merge 6).

Participate tn Funding of Improvements
to Oak Avenue

to on the U.s. 50 Eastbound

Prairie City Road Flyover On
To ensure that Eastbound US 50

ramp should start the eastbound

Ramp Parkway off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7).

operates al an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on

lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp

and the southbound on should be

3A.15-4t
(FPASP

ErwErs)

3A.15-4u
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

3A.15-4v
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

101

106

n2

t42

103

Resolution No. 10670
Page 125 of i41

Page 641

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this
'subdivision.

Sacramento
County
Department of
Transportation.

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing
analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
frrst subdivision
map to
determine
during which
project phase

the

braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway offramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell

Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The

applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding ofimprovements, as may be determined by a nexus

study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave

7).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak
Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 8), To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should merge with the eastbound

auxiliary lane that starts at the southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on ramp and ends at the East

Bidwell Street - Scott Road offramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, v and w). Improvements to this

freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding
of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid

for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge
(Freeway Merge 8).

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S.50 Westbound /
Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 27). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates

at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that ends at the East Bidwell Sheet - Scott Road offramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Empire

Ranch Road slip ramp would merge inlo this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment

must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other apgopriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge
(Freeway Merge 27).

3A.15-4w
(FPASP
EINUEIS)

3A.15-4x
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

r04

106

105

Resolution No. 10670
Page 126 of 141

Page 642

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
subdivision

Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

This subdivision will pay its fair share of
the following improvements with the
payment of Specific Plan Infrastructure
Fees (SPIF), City Traffic Impact Fees

and Sacramento County Wide
Transportation fees collected prior to
building permit issuance in this

subdivision.

This condition will be satisfied prior to
issuance of the 546s buildirg permit in
the Phase 2 portion of the Toll Brothers
at Folsom Ranch Regency project in
accordance with previous conditions of
approval. The Phase 1 portion ofthe
Regency project cpnsists of 545 dwelling
units, The VTSM for the Phase 2 portion
of the Regency project has not yet been

approved by the City Council.

The Capital Southeast Connector -JPA

has executed a construction contract with
Goodfellow Brothers, Inc. to construct
the Capital Southeast Connector from
Prairie City Road to East Bidwell Street.

The construction contract \ryas executed

Sacramento

County
Department of
Transportation.

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

improvement
should be built.

Before project
build out. A
phasing

analysis should
be performed
prior to
approval ofthe
first subdivision
map to
determine

during which
project phase

the
improvement
should be built.

Prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce lmpacts on U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at anCity Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35).

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane

that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard offramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Prairie City Road

slip ramp would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be

implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share offunding ofimprovements, as may

be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce

the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35).

East Bidwell Street/Regency Parkway (Driveway #6), Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers Site, the

project applicant shall construct the intersection as shown in Figure 4-2 ofthe Addendum:

> Northbound: one thru lane and one left turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with 60-foot taper;

> Southbound: one thru lane and one right tum lane in a 15O-foot pocket with 60-foot taper;

> Westbound: one shared lane, plus a 300-foot northbound acceleration lane on East Bidwell Street to

receive left-tums from Regency Parkway (a second northbound lane on East Bidwell Street starting from

Regency Parkway is equivalent to the 300-foot acceleration lane); and

> Control: side-street-stop-control;

Note that unsignalized left nrms to East Bidwell Street are against City policy. The northbound acceleration

lane on East Bidwell Street is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signalization will be higgered as part ofthe entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signai at

this location is included in Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and plan area fees paid by the Project contribute

towards its construction in the future.

East Bidwell StreetMhite Rock Road. Prior to buildout of the Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant shall

implement either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority project has progammed to relocate and

signalize the East Bidwell StreeVlVhite Rock Road intersection as shown in the October 2017 geometric

conceptual drawing, or equivalent improvements (i.e., three southbound approach lanes, four eastbound

approach lanes, and three westbound approach lanes). Figure 4-3 of the Addendum provides a conceptual

3A.15-4y
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

4.17-l
(Addendum)

4.17-Z
(Addendum)

106

106

106

7r7

106

r08

Resolution No. 10670

Page 127 of 141

Page 643

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



of
Occupancy
in the
subdivision

will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit.

in December of 2020. Grading and

construction commenced in April 2021.

The project will include the relocation

and signalization ofthe existing White
Rock Road/East Bidwell Street

intersection. The owner/applicant will
pay the Sacramento County

Transportation Development Fee prior to
issuance of al1 building permits in the

subdivision.

The Community Development

Department has reviewed and approved

the improvement plans for the

construction of these required

improvements including the plans for the

modification to the existing traffic signal

at the intersection ofEast Bidwe'll Street

and Mangini Parkway. These

improvements are currently under

construction.

The required improvements in this

condition have been completed and

accepted by the City. These

improvements were constructed as part

of the off-site improvements for the

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Signalize the
intersection and
conduct all
geometric

improvements,
with the

exception of the

second

nordrbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second
northbound thru
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 2

building
pormits.

Construct all
geometric

improvements
with the
exception of
one thru

intersection.

(B) Signalize the existing East Bidwell Street/White Rock Road intersection with the existing geometry.

Figure 4-4 ofthe Addendum provides a conceptual intersection layout for this mitigation'

East Bidwelt Sheet/Mangini Parkway. Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers Site, the project applicant

shall signalize the intersection with the following geometry (Figure 4-5 of the Addendum):

> Northbound: One left-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two thru lanes, and one dght-

turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper (the second thru iane shall be developed 300 feet

south of the intersection);

> Southbound: One left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane, and one right-

turn lane in a I 50-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper;

> Eastbound and westbound: One leffturn lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, one thru lane,

and one right-tum lane in a 200-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper'

Note that northbound East Bidwell street will remain at two lanes from Mangini Parkway to US 50'

East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway. Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers site, the project applicant

shall reconsfuct the intersection with the following geometry (Figure 4-6 ofthe Addendum):

> Northbound approach: One thru lane and one shared through-right lane with a 150-foot taper;

> Soudrbound approach: One left turn lane in a 1 5O-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one tluough lane;

> Westbound approach: One left tum lane in a 60-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and one thnough lane;

4.17-3
(Addendum)

4.17-4
(Addendum)

I06

109

106

110

Resolution No. 10670

Page 128 of 141

Page 644

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a building
permit in
the
subdivision

Mangini Ranch Phase 2, Village No. 7
subdivision.

The Community Development

Department has approved the plans for
the reconstruction and signalization of
the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek
Parkway intersection in accordance with
this condition.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

northbound lane
prior to
issuance of
phase I
building
permits.

Construct the

second thru
northbound lane
prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

Construct all
geometric
improvements
with the

exception of
one thru
northbound lane

and one thru
southbound
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 1

building
permits.

Construct the
second thru
northbound lane

and the second

tbru southbound
lane prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits.

> Southbound deparhre: Construct a southbound receiving and acceleration lane for westbound left turn

traffic. The acceleration lane should be in a 300-foot pocket plus an appropriate taper.

Note that unsignalized left tums to East Bidwell Street are against City policy. The southbound acceleration

lane on East Bidwell Sheet is an interim configuration until the intersection wanants signalization.

Signalization will be triggered as part ofthe entitlement process on neighboring parcels. A future signal at

this location is included in FPASP, and plan area fees paid by the project applicant conhibute towards its

construction in the future.

East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway. Prior to buildout ofthe Toll Brothers Site, the pmject applicant

shall reconstruct and signalize the intersection as shown in Figure 4-7 ofthe Addendum:

> Northbound approach: One U-turn lane in a 150-foot pocket with a 60-foot taper, two through lanes, and

one right turn lane in a 150-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

> Southbound approach: One left turn lane in a 240'foot pocket plus 60-foot taper, and two through lanes.

The second southbound ttrough lane can be dropped south of Old Ranch Way.

> Westbound approach: One right turn lane, plus one left-turn lane in a 200-foot pocket plus 60-foot taper.

The above mitigations are consistent with the ultimate geometry for East Bidwell near Alder Creek Pkwy and

builds on conditions ofapproval from neighboring projects.

4.17-5
(Addendum)

106

111

Resolution No. 10670
Page 129 of 141

Page 645

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
issuance of
a

Certificate
of
Occupancy
in the
Phase 3

subdivision

Yes

Yes

The Capital Southeast Connector-JPA
project is cunently under construction.

The Connector project will implement

and complete Option A in this condition.

The owner/applicant shall implement the

required improvements to the

intersection in compliance with this

condition prior to issuance of the first
Certificate of Occupancy in the Phase 3

portion of the project.

The Phase I Sanitary Sewer

inftasructure including the off-site
sewer trunk main, the Alder Creek

Parkway sewer lift station and forced

main to serve this subdivision have been

constructed by the FPA landowners and

have been completed and accepted by
the City and are cunently in operation.

The City obtained a

San which provides
letter
verification that

there is adequate capacity in the existing
Regional San conveyance and heatrnent

system to accommodate the entire

Folsom Plan Area at buildout.
Confirmation from Regional San was

required because the Folsom Plan fuea
is served the San

4.17-6
(Addendum)

White Rock Avenue Parkway. Prior to project the project applicant shall implement Prior to
issuance of
phase 3

building
permits

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

ttz
either (A) or (B) below:

(A) The Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) project has proglammed to realign this

portion of White Rock Road and build a partial signal to accommodate anticipated U-Tums. Expand or

construct a signalized intersection as follows:

> Southbound: A single shared lane for left and right tums.

> Eastbound: A thru lane and a left{J-tum in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Westbound: A thru lane and a righttum in 300-foot pocket plus taper.

> Signalize with protected phasing for left-turns and U-turns.

> Geometric design shall be consistent with Capital Southeast Connector Joint Powers Authority adopted

standards.

(B) Channelize the White Rock Road/Oak Avenue Pkwy intersection on the existing White Rock Road

alignment to restrict turning movements to westbound right turns and southbound right tums. The westbound

right tum requires a 365-foot deceleration [ane, and the southbound right turn requires a 960-foot acceleration

lane. Figure 4-8 of the Addendum provides a conceptual layout for the mitigated intersection.

Systems

106

113

3A.rG1
(FPASP
EIR/XIS)

of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance Facilities and Implement Before approval

of fural maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the Community
Development
Department and

City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

approval of the final map and lssuance of building permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of
all project phases shall submit proofto the City ofFolsom that an adequate wastewater conveyance system

either has 6een constructed or is ensured through payment ofthe City's facilities augmentation fee as

described under the Folsom Municipal Code Title 3, Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee - Folsom

South Area Facilities Plan," or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater conveyance

infrastructrue and off-site force main sufficient to provide adequate servlce to the project shall be ln place for
the amount of development identified the tentative map before approval ofthe final map and tssuance of
building permlts for all project phases, or their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and
City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity. The project applicant(s) of all project

phases shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the SRWTP for new wastewater flows generated by the

project. This shall involve preparing a tentative map-level study and paying connection and capacity fees as

id"ntified by SRCSD. Approval ofthe final map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases shall

not be granted until the City verifies adequate SRWTP capacity is available for the amount ofdevelopment

identified in the tentative map.

3A.16-3
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

106

rt4

Resolution No. 10670
Page I 30 of 141

Page 646

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Lift Station on Iron Point Road. The City
Sewer Lift Station and Forced Main
which connects to the Regional San Lift
Station has been accepted by the City
and is currently in operation.

The owner/applicant has constructed the

necessary infrastructffe to provide
potable water to the subdivision. The
potable Phase 1 water infrastructure for
the Folsom Plan Area has been reviewed,
approved and accepted by the City and is

currently in operation.

The off-site potable water infrastructure
to serve the subdivision has been

reviewed, approved and accepted by the

Crty and is cunently in operation. In
addition, the City has verified that the

off-site potable water infrastructure is

adequate to serve the subdivision.

This condition is not applicable to this

subdivision. The water supply for this

subdivision is provided by the City of
Folsom Water Treatrnent Plant rather

than an Off-Site Water Treatment Plant

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and

City of Folsom
EWR
Department

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department and

City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department and
City ofFolsom
EWR
Department

Before approval
offinal maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases,

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of
building
permits for any
project phases.

Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability, a. Prior to approval of any small-lot tentative

subdivision map subject to Government Code Section 66473.7 (SB 221), the City shall comply with that

statute. Prior to approval ofany small-lot tentative subdivision map for a proposed residential project not

subject to that statute, the City need not comply with Section 66473.7, or formally consult with any public

water system that would provide water to the affected area; nevertheless, the City shall make a factual

showing or impose conditions similar to those required by Section 66473.7 to ensure an adequate water

supply for development authorized by the map. b. Prior to recordation ofeach final subdivision map, or prior

to City approval of any similar project-specific discretionary approval or entitlement required for
nonresidential uses, the project applican(s) ofthat project phase or activity shall demonsfrate the availability
of a reliable and sufficient water supply from a public water system for the amount of development that

would be authorized by the hnal subdivision map or project-specific discretionary nonresidential approval or

entitlement. Such a demonstration shall consist of information showing that both existing sources are

available or needed supplies and improvements will be in place pnor to occupancy.

Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off'Site
Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the approval of
the final subdivision map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of
any particular discretionary development application shall submit proofto the City ofFolsom that an

adequate off-site water conveyance system either has been constructed or is ensured or other sureties to the

City's satisfaction. The off-site water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to provide adequate service to the

proj ect shall be in place for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval of the

final subdivision map and issuance ofbuilding permits for all project phases, or their financing shall be

ensured to the satisfacfion ofthe City. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued for any building within
the SPA until the water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such building has been constructed and

is in place.

Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity (if the Off-Site Water Treatment Plant
Option is Selected), If an off-site water treatment plant (WTP) altemative is selected (as opposed to the on-

site WTP altemative), the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall

demonstrate adequate capacity at the off-site WTP. This shall involve preparing a tentative map-level study

and paying connection and capacity fees as determined by the City. Approval ofthe final project map shall

not be granted until the City verifies adequate water toeatment capacity either is available or is certain to be

available when needed for the amount of development identified in the tentative map before approval ofthe
final map and issuance ofbuildine permits for all proiect phases. A certificate ofoccupancy shall not be

3A.18-1
(FPASP
EIRYEIS)

3A.18-2a
(FPASP
EINYEIS)

3A.I8-2b
(FPASP
EIR/EIS)

106

115

106

176

106

lt1

Resolution No. 10670
Page 131 of14l

Page 647

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfred
pdor to
approval of
a future
TMP

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works
Departrnent will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management
Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to
any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make
sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction ofthe
City

Additional Measures

City of Folsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval offirst
tentative map or
discretionary
approval within
SPA that would
place sensitive
receptors along
roadways drat
quarry trucks
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
Highway 50.

issued for any building within the SPA until the water heatment capacity sufficient to serve such building has

been constructed and is in place.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures
to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from
Quarry Truck Traffic. The City ofFolsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento

Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of
Sacramento, with the input ofthe City of Folsom, the City ofRancho Cordova and other interested parties,
including representatives of quarry project applicants. When tle County Board of Supervisors approved
entitlements for the Teichert quarry project in November 2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a

development agreement that requires Teichert's participation in, and fair share firnding of, a TMP to
implement roadway capacity and safety improvements required to improve the compatibility of truck traffic
from the quarries with the future urban development in the Folsom Specific Plan area and other jurisdictions
that will be affected by quarry truck traffic. The development agreement adopted by the County for the
Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts ofannual aggregate sales from Teichert's facility until a TMP
is adopted. The City ofFolsom does not have directjurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or
Walltown quany project applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion of the
County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the quanies, has indicated that it intends
to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's
authority to control the activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or other actions, such as the
approval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate quarry truck traffic, that
would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, the City of
Folsom considers itselfa "responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR
Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements of a future TMP, if such TMP
calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction ofthe City. In a responsible
agency role, the City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and
approval ofthe environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such documentation is
prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as ofthe completion ofthis FEIR/FEIS,
the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation
within its jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the implementation ofas-yet uncertain
components. Accordingly, formulation ofthe precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative air quality
impacts pursuant to the TMP is not cunently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and
intended mitigation strategy to address the cumulative impacts of quarry truck traffic though the SPA, the
City shall implement, or cause to be implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are

within its audrority to control. In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or haffic
measures imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the risk ofcancer to sensitive receptors along routes
within the SPA from toxic air contaminant emissions to no morcthan296 in one million (SMAOMD 2009.

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure AIR-
1-Land

(FPASP
ErR/f,IS)

106

118

Resolution No. 10670
Page 132 of 141

Page 648

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



March. Recommended Protocol for Evaluating the Location of Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major
Roadways, Yercion2.2:7), or such different tkeshold of significance mandated by SMAQMD or ARB at the

time, if any. With this mitigation, the cumulative air quality impacts from truck toxic air contaminants would

be less than significant.

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quarry project applican(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and

Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs generated by quary truck traffic

to the 296-in-one-million threshold of significance identified above. The City encourages implementation of
the following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to discuss mitigation shategies,

implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, project-level screening analysis and/or Health Risk Assessment (HRA) should be

conducted by the City ofFolsom and funded by the truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors

(e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA that would be located along the sides ofroadway segments that are

identified in Table 4-4 as being potentially significant under any ofthe analyzed scenarios. Each project-

level analysis shall be performed according to the standards set forth by SMAQMD for the purpose of
disclosure to the public and decision makers. The project-level analysis shall account for the location of
the receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, the projected future traffic volume

for the year 2030 (including the proportion of diesel trucks), and emission rates representative ofthe
vehicle fleet for the year when the sensitive land uses would first become operational and/or occupied. If
the incremental increase in cancer risk determined by in the HRA exceeds 296 in one million (or a

different theshold of significance recommended by SMAQMD or ARB at the time, if any), then project

design mitigation should be employed, which may include the following:

. Increase the setback distance between the roadway and affected receptor- If this mitigation measure is

determined by the City of Folsom to be necessary, based on the results of the HRA, the quarry truck

applicant(s) should pay the Folsom South ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s) and the City of
Folsom a fee that shall serve as compensation for lost development profit and lost City tax revenues, all

as determined by the parties. Said mitigation fee shall be determined in consultation with the quarry

project applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of
Folsom. No quarry trucks shall be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or

within the SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

. Implement tiered hee planting of fine-needle species, such as redwood, along the near side of the

roadway segments and, if feasible, along the roadway 500 feet in both directions of the initial planting

(e.g., 500 feet north and south of a roadway that runs east-west) to enhance the dispersion and filtration
ofmobile-source TACs associated with the adjacent roadway. These trees should be planted at a density

such that a solid visual buffer is achieved after the hees reach maturitv. which breaks the line of sight

Resolution No. 10670
Page 133 of 141

Page 649

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



Condition
will be

satisfied
prior to
approval of
a futrue
TMP.

The Community Development
Department and the Public Works
Department will work closely to
implement the future Truck Management
Plan (TMP) and coordinate responses to
any future entitlement and CEQA
compliance need for the TMP and make
sure the requirements in this condition of
approval are met to the satisfaction ofthe
City.

City ofFolsom
Community
Development
Department

Prior to
approval offirst
tentative map or
discretionary
approval within
SPA that would
place sensitive
receptors along
roadways that
quarry kucks
would
reasonably use

to access U.S.
50.

between U.S. 50 and the proposed homes. These trees should be planted before occupation ofany
affected sensitive land uses. This measure encourages the planting ofthese trees in advance of the

construction ofpotentially affected receptors to allow the hees to become established and progress

toward mahrity. The life ofthese trees should be maintained through the duration ofthe quarry

projects. The planting, cost, and ongoing maintenance ofthese trees should be funded by the quarry

project applicant(s).

. To improve the indoor air quality at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the

occupancy ofthe affected residences and schools:

. equip all affected residences and school buildings developed in the SPA with High Efficiency Particle

Anesting (HEPA) filter systems at all mechanical air intake points to the interior rooms;

. use the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to maintain all residential units under

positive pressure at all times;

. locate air intake systems for HVAC as far away from roadway air pollution sources as possible; and

. develop and implement an ongoing education and maintenance plan about the filtration systems

associated with HVAC for residences and schools.

To the extent this indoor air quality mitigation would not already be implemented as part ofthe Folsom South
ofU.S. 50 Specific Plan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project
applicant(s) before any quarry kucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet of any
residence or school within the SPA.

Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan or Other Measures
to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Traffic. The City
of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck
Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the County of Sacramento, rvith the input ofthe City of
Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova and other interested parties, including representatives of quarry project
applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert quany project in
November 2010, it also adopted conditions ofapproval and a development agreement that requires Teichert's
participation in, and fair share funding of, a TMP to implement roadway capacity and safety improvements
required to improve the compatibility oftruck traffic from the quarries with the future urban development in
the SPA and otherjurisdictions that will be affected by quarry truck traffic. The development agreement
adopted by the County for the Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts ofannual aggegate sales from
Teichert's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City ofFolsom does not have direct jurisdiction over the
Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the
unincorporated portion ofthe County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the
quanies, has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to
adoption ofa TMP. The City's authority to conhol the activities ofthe quarry trucks includes restrictions or
other actions, such as the apDroval and implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate

Cumulative
Mitigation
Measure
NOISE-I-Land

(FPASP
EINYEIS)

106

119

Resolution No. 10670
Page 134 of l4l

Page 650

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



quarry truck traffic, that would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing

reasons, the City ofFolsom considers itselfa "responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA
Guidelines, CCR Section 15381), in drat it has some discretionary power over some elements of a future
TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction of the City.
In a responsible agency role, the City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for
consideration and approval ofthe environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such

documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.)

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as ofthe completion ofthis FEIR/FEIS,

the City would have to speculate as to those portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation

within its jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the of as yet uncertain components. Accordingly,
formulation of the precise means of mitigating the potential cumulative noise impacts pursuant to the TMP is
not currently feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and intended mitigation strategy to

address the cumulative impacts of quarry fuck traffic through the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to

be implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are within its authority to control. In
implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or traffic measures imposed by the City within the

SPA reduce the traffic noise exposure to sensitive receptors along routes within the SPA so as to ensure that

sensitive receptors are not exposed to interior noise levels in excess of45 dBA, or increases in interior noise

levels of 3 dBA or more, whichever is more restrictive. With this mitigation, the cumulative noise impacts

from fuck haffic would be less than significant.

As an altemative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP w'ithin the SPA, the following measures could
(and should) be voluntarily implemented by the quany project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and

Granite [Walltown]) to help ensure interior noise levels for sensitive receptors to noise generated by quarry

truck faffic would not exceed 45 dBA or increase of 3 dBA over existing conditions, as identified above.

The City encourages implementation of the following measures:

> The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City ofFolsom to discuss mitigation sfrategies,

implementation, and cost.

> A site-specific, pro.ject-level screening analysis should be conducted by the City ofFolsom and funded

by the quarry truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA

that would be located along the sides ofroadway segments that are identified in Table 4-8 as being
potentially significant under any ofthe analyzed scenarios. The analysis should be conducted using an

approved tkee dimensional traffic noise modeling program (i.e., TNM or SoundPlan), Each projecr
level analysis should be performed according to the standards set forth by the City ofFolsom for the

purpose ofdisclosure to the public and decision makers. The projecllevel analysis should account for
the location ofthe receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, and the projected

future traffic volume for the vear 2030 (includins the Dercentase ofheaw trucks). Ifthe incremental

Resolution No. 10670
Page 135 of l4l

Page 651

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



The FPA landowners have satisfied a'll of
the mitigation measures for the design
and construction of the Phase 1 Water

City of Folsom
Community
Development

Before approval
of final maps

and issuance of

increase in haffrc noise levels are determined to exceed the threshold ofsignificance recommended by

the City of Folsom, then design mitigation should be employed, which may include the following:

> Model the benefits ofsoundwalls (berm/wall combination) along the quarry truck hauling roadways and

affected receptors not to exceed a total height of eight feet (two-foot berm and six-foot concrete mason

wall). If this mitigation measure is determined by the City of Folsom to be inadequate, additional three

dimensional traffrc noise modeling should be conducted with the inclusion of rubberized asphalt at the

expense ofthe quarry huck applicant(s). No quarry trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway

segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said mitigation has been agreed upon by the

City of Folsom and fees for construction of said mitigation are paid by the quarry truck applicant(s).

> Implement the installation ofrubberized asphalt (quiet pavement) on roadway segments adjacent to

sensitive receptors that carry quarry trucks if soundwalls do not provide adequate reduction of traffic

noise levels. The inclusion ofrubberized asphalt would provide an additional 3 to 5 dB oftraffic noise

reduction. The cost ofconstruction using rubberized asphalt should be borne by the quarry fuck
applicant(s). Said mitigation fee should be determined in consultation with the quarry project

applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City of Folsom. No

quany trucks should be allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or within the

SPA until said mitigation fees are paid.

> To improve the indoor noise levels at affected receptors, implement the following measures before the

occupancy ofthe affected residences and schools:

. Conduct an interior noise analysis once detailed construction plans ofresidences adjacent to affected

roadways are available to determine the required window package at second and third floor receptors to

achieve the interior noise level standard of45 dB Ldn without quarry fucks.

. Determine the interior quarry truck traffic noise level increases at second and third floor receptors

adjacent to affected roadways compared to no quarry truck conditions. Window package upgrades are

expected to be necessary due to the traffic noise level increases caused by quarry trucks along affected

roadways. Quarry truck applican(s) should pay for the cost of window package upgrades (increased

sound trarsmission class rated windows) required to achieve the interior noise level standard of45 dB

Ldn with the inclusion ofquarry truck traffic.

To the extent this noise mitigation would not already be implemented as part of the Folsom South of
U.W. 50 Specifrc Plan project development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project

applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway that is within 400 feet ofany
residence or school within the SPA.

Coordinate and Fund the Infrastructure and Off-Site Water Facility Alternative. The project

applicant shall participate in the FPASP owners' group and shall fund and contribute their fair share to the

backbone infrastructure and off-site water facility altemative improvements. The project applicant shall

N/A106

120

Resolution No. 10670

Page 136 of 141

Page 652

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



and Sewer Backbone Infrastructure to

serve the first of development in the

FPA. The Phase I backbone

Infrastructure was completed and

accepted by the City in 2018 and is

cunently in use in the FPA and being

owned and operated by the City. The off-
site water facility alternative
improvements were not implemented.

The water for the FPA was provided
through the conservation of existing

water in the City. The new water supply

altemative was validated in 2014.

Department and

City ofFolsom
Public Work
Department

building
permits for any
project phase,

the project
applicant shall
demonstrate to

the City's
satisfaction the

fair share

contribution
towards
implementation
ofBackbone
Infrastructure
and Off-Site
Water Facility
improvements
and associated
required
mitigation as

identified in the
Folson South of
U.S. Highway
50 Backbone
Infrastructure
Mitigated
Negative
Declaration
(December

2014) or the
Revised
Proposed Off
Site Water

Facility
Alternative
Addendum to
the FPASP
EIR/EIS

coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures detailed in the Folsom South of U.S.

Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 20i4): -

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-1: Design above ground pump station and storage tank facilities

to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure I-2: Develop and implement a landscaping plan for pump station

and storage tank facilities to reduce visual impacts.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-1: Prepare and Implement NOX Reduction Plan

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-2: Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to SMAQMD to off-set NOX

Emissions Generated by Construction.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-4: Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of
NOA and, ifnecessary, Prepare and implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure fV-1: Conduct Special-Status Plant Surveys; Implement Avoidance

and Mitigation Measures or Compensatory Mitigation

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion (BO) for

Federally Listed Vemal Pool Invertebrates.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the Biological Opinion for Impacts

on Valley Elderberry Longhom Beetle.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-4: Westem Spadefoot Toad

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-5: Westem Pond Turtle

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swainson's Hawk Nesting Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging Habitat

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-7: Tricolored Blackbird

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8: Nesting Raptors

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds and Migratory Birds

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-10: Special-Status Bats

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 Master Slreambed Alteration

Ageement

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-13: Conduct Surveys to IdentiS and Map Valley Needlegrass

Grassland; Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation, if necessary

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit and

Section 401 Permit and Implement All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of
Wetlands, Other Waters of the U.S., and Waters of the Stat€

Resolution No. 10670
Page 137 of 14i

Page 653

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



(approved

December
2012); as

applicable.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-15: Conduct Tree Survey, Prepare and Implement an Oak

Woodland Mitigation Pian, Replace Native Oak Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and

Minimize Indirect Inpacts on Oak Trees and Oak Woodland Habitat Retained On-Site.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure [V-1 1: American Badger

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-l: Comply with the applicable procedwes in the FAPA and

implementation of applicable historic property heatment plans

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site

Monitoring if Required Stop Work if Culnral Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the

Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are

Encountered and Comply with California Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-l: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC

Requirements and Implement Appropriate Recommendations.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-3: Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activifies.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-5(a): Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and

Erosion Conhol Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure M-5(b): Prepare and Implement the appropriate Grading and

Erosion Control Plan for the detention basin West ofPrairie City Road.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-l: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and

Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VII-I: Greenhouse Gas Emissions

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XVI-1: Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control

Plan.

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure III-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V4 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 Water Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V14 North of U.S. Highway 50 Wato Improvements

> Backbone MND Mitigation Measwe XI-l North of U.S. Highway 50 Water hnprovements

In addition, the project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to implement the following measures

detailed in the,Revked Proposed Off-Site Water Facility Alternative Addendun to the FPASP EIPJEIS

(approved December I l. 2012):

> 38.1-2a: Enhance Exterior Appearance ofStructural Facilities.

Resolution No. 10670

Page I 38 of 14 I

Page 654

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



> 38.1-2b: Prepare Landscaping Plan.

> 38.1-3a: Conformance to Construction Lighting Standards.

> 38.1-3b: Prepare and Submit a Lighting Master Plan.

> 3B.2-1a: Develop and Implement a Construction NOX Reduction P1an.

> 3B.2-lc: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and a Particulate Matter Monitoring Progam

during Construction.

> 3F..2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors.

> 38.2-3b: Conduct Projecllevel DPM Screening and Implement Measures to Reduce Annual DPM to

Acceptable Concentrations.

> 3B.4-la: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction.

> 3B.4-1b Prepare and Implement an Off-site Water Facilities Climate Action Plan.

> 3A.5-la: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement.

> 3A.5-1b: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation ofCultural Resources for the Califomia Register of
Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or

Destruction Carmot be Avoided.

> 3A.5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring ifRequired, Stop

Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Perform Treatment

or Avoidance as Required.

> 34.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with

Califomia Health and Safety Code Procedures.

> 3B.7-la: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off-site Water Facilities and

Implement Required Measures.

> 3B.7-lb: Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final Pipeline Design.

> 3B..74: Implement Conosion Protection Measures.

> 38.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work ifPaleontological Resources are

Discovered, Assess the Significance ofthe Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as

Required.

> 38.8-1a: Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous Materials in Compliance with
Relevant Regulations and Guidelines.

> 3B.8-1b: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Management Plan.

> 3B.8-5a: Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for Selected Alignment.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 139 of 141

Page 655

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



esThe Capital Southeast Connector - JPA
project commenced construction in April
2021. Since the project is now complete

this condition has been satisfied.

cD (E)M

> 3B.8-5b: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan.

> 3B.8-7a: Keep Construction Area Clear of Combustible Materials.

> 3B.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment.

> 3B.9-ia: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs.

> 3B.9-lb: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction Dewatering in Accordance with

the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

> 38.9-3a: Prepare and Implement Drainage Plan(s) for Struchral Facilities'

> 3B.9-3b: Ensure the Provision ofSufficient Outlet Protection and On-site Containment.

> 38.l 1-l a: Limit Construction Hours.

> 38.11-1b: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging.

> 3B.11-1c: Maximize the Use of Noise Baniers.

> 38.1 1 -1 d: Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction'

> 38.11-1e: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for Filing Noise Complaints.

> 38.11-3: Implement Operational Noise Minimization Measures.

> 38.12-1: Provide for Continued Recreational Access as ldentified in Mitigation Measure 3.14-1a.

> 3B.15-la: Prepare Traffic Control Plan.

> 38.15-1b: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions.

> 3B.16-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground Services Alert.

> 3B.16-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate Installation Methods to

Minimize Potential Utility Service Disruptions.

> 38.17-1a: Implement Construction Dewatering Best Management Practices.

> 38.17-1b: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program.

> 3A.18-1 : Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability.

> 3A.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off-Site

Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured.

lVhite Rock Road Shoulder Improvements
The owner/applicant shall construct shoulder improvements along the project's entire frontage of
westbound White Rock Road to the satisfaction of the City prior to approval of the first small lot
final map. In lieu of constructing the aforementioned interim shoulder improvements, the

owner/applicant may enter into a Subdivision Improvement Agreement with the City and post

20.

Resolution No. 10670
Page 140 of 141

Page 656

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



YesThe Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved

the Phase 3A subdivision improvements
plans and all ofthe e:risting oak trees

that are required to be preserved are

currently in place and have been

protected during grading and

construction which commenced in the

fallof 2021. The Community
Development Department has allowed
various revisions to the City
development standards to further
enlance the preservation of the existing
oak trees.

cD (E) (P)

cD (E) (P)

M

M

adequate security to the City's satisfaction to ensure construction of said improvements; the

secwity shall be for a minimum period of i0 years.

If shoulder improvements are constructed and/or funded by the owner/applicant, then said costs

may be included in any applicable fee program established and approved for the Folsom Plan

Area subject to approval by the City and the actual costs expended by the owner/-applicant may

therefore be eligible for a credit and/or reimbursement.

Ifconstruction ofthe Capital Southeast Connector Project between Scott Road and the El Dorado

County line has commenced during the term of the required Subdivision Improvement

Agreement, then the shoulder improvement condition will be deemed satisfied and the security

shall be released to the owner/applicant.

The owner/applicant shall preserve the oak trees shown in the blue color on the attached Site Plan

Exhibit for the Traditional Subdivision. The owneriapplicant shall also make every attempt to
preserve the tree shown in red on the attached Site Plan Exhibit provided that the City Arborist
concurs(sincethisoaktreewillbeapproximately3'lowerthanadjacentpadgrades). The

additional land created from elimination of lots 49, 56, and 5'7 as shown on the Site Plan Exhibit
shall be incorporated into the adjacent residential lots to the satisfaction ofthe Community

Development Department. Consistent with FPASP Policy 10.19, the Cornmunity Development
Director will allow modifications to the development standards to order to accommodate

preservation of the oak tree on Lot 62 as shown on the attached Site Plan Exhibit. This condition
shall be satisfied prior to approval ofthe Final Map for ttre Traditional Subdivision.

21.

Resolution No. 10670

Page 141 of 141

Page 657

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



This page intentionolly left blonk
to facilitate double- sided printing .

FOLSOM
CITY OF

DISTINC!!VE BY I{ATUFE

Page 658

12/13/2022 Item No.18.



r!.'ri..r, 1 ..i: ! ] it'1.
r:r,:1,,i.*i:i ai ..t f: t;

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10966 - A Resolution Accepting
the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Following the passage of Proposition 13 in 1978, many cities began charging fees on new
development to fund public improvements and services such as streets, transit facilities,
sewers, and storm drains. These fees are commonly known as development impact fees. In
order to ensure that these fees were spent in a timely manner and on projects for which they
were being collected, the State Legislature passed a bill known as AB 1600 (Mitigation Fee

Act). This bill applies to developer fees, increased, or imposed on or after January 1, 1989.

AB 1600 enacts Govemment Code Sections 66000-66008 that generally contain four
requirements:

I A local jurisdiction must follow the process set forth in the bill and make certain
determinations regarding the purpose and use of the fees, and establish a

"nexus" or connection between a development project or class of project and

the public improvement being financed with the fee.

The fee revenue must be segregated from the general fund in order to avoid
commingling of public improvement fees and the general fund.

2.

I

MEETING DATE: t211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10966 - A Resolution Accepting the AB1600
Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June

30,2022

F'ROM: Finance Department

Page 659

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



If a local jurisdiction has had possession of a developer fee for five years or
more and has not committed that money to a project or actually spent that
money, then it must make findings describing the continuing need for that
money. In addition, an annual report must be made of fees collected, interest
earned, projects on which fees were expended, and any transfers or loans from
the fee account. This report is to be reviewed by the local agency assessing the
fees.

4. If a local jurisdiction cannot make the findings required under paragraph 3, the

city or county must refund the fees collected.

The attached report provides the information required by Government Code for the

development fees that fall under this disclosure requirement. In some instances, the ending

fund balance amount is less than the remaining appropriation because outstanding advances

and loans are not included in the fund balance. Cash balances are sufficient for the remaining

appropriations. No refunds have been made nor are any required. More information on these

funds and all other capital project funds is available in the annual budget adopted by Council
in June 2022 and in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

This report was compiled with the unaudited City financial records. The audited ACFR will
be available at the end of the current calendar year.

This report has been on file with the City Clerk's office as of November 28,2022

POLICY / RULE

Policy 1 1.6 of the General Plan states:

It is the Policy of the City of Folsom to require new development to bear the cost of its
increased demand/ffict on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a
greater burden on existing residents. Development contributes to the need for the

expansion and extension of the City's circulation, weter, sewer, storm drainoge, and
parks systems and other capital improvements, facilities, and equipment to adequately
serve the development area. Service expansion and extension is not necessarily site-
specific; rather, it is generally related to a larger area and the City as a whole. In order
to accommodate the new development, maintain an acceptable level of service, and
alleviate the effects of the increased demand on City services, it is the policy of the City
of Folsom to require certain necessary improvements as a part of the development
and/or the payment of municipal services and facilities fees consistent with the

proportional effect of the development on such services. . .

ANALYSIS

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 development impact fee funds for all revenues totaled
$42,631,390. Of the $42.63 million, 523,658,118 are impact fees, the remaining $18,973,272

J

2
Page 660

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



are grants, reimbursements, interest, and miscellaneous revenue. Expenditures totaled
$2r,644,72r.

Upon review, it is determined that all fees have been spent or commiffed within 5 years of
receipt, and thus no refunds are required.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10966 - A Resolution Accepting the ,4.81600 Development Fees

Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022
2. The Development Fees Annual Report for the City of Folsom for the Fiscal Year Ended

hne30,2022

Submitted,

Tamagni, Finance Director

J Page 661

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 662

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



RESOLUTION NO. 10966

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE A81600 DEVELOPMENT FEES ANNUAL
REPORT FOR THE FTSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2022

WHEREAS, Policy ll.6 of the General Plan requires new development to bear the cost

of its increased demand/effect on municipal services and facilities so as not to create a greatet

burden on existing residents; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has imposed and collected the Development Impact Fees

based upon several adopted Nexus Reports that were completed in accordance with Government

Code Section 66000, et. al.; and

WHEREAS, Section 66006(b) 2 of the Government Code of the State of California
mandates that the "local agency shall review the information (concerning local agency

improvement fees) made available to the public...at the next regularly scheduled public meeting..."

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby accepts the Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022 on

file in the City Clerk's office.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13ft day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s)

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10966
Page I of I Page 663

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 664

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Development lmpact

Fee Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022

City of Folsom

Page 665

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Table of Contents

lntroduction
Housing Trust Fee Fund.
Humbug Willow Creek Trails Fee Fund
Supplemental Park Fee Fund.
City-Wide Park lmprovement Fee Fund
Police Capital Fee Fund..
Fire Capital Fee Fund
General Capital Fee Fund..
Transportation lmprovement Fee Fund
Drainage Capital Fee Fund
Light Rail lmpact Fee Fund
General Park Equipment Fee Fund.................
Water lmpact Fee Fund
Water Capital lmprovement Fee Fund ..............
Sewer Capital lmprovement Fee Fund..............
Facilities Augmentation Critical Fee Fund
Facilities Augmentation General Fee Fund .......
Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fee Fund.....
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements Fee Fund
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee Fund

1

2
4
6
8
11

.. 13

.. 15

Folsom
Folsom
Folsom
Folsom

Plan Area Transit lmpact Fee Fund
Plan Area Corporation Yard Fee Fund......
Plan Area Specific Plan Capital Fee Fund.
Plan Area Solid Waste Capital Fee Fund ..

17
21

24
26
28
31

34
36
38
40
42
44
46
48
50
52

Page 666

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Annual Report
Development lmpact Fees

For the City of Folsom
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Government Code Section 66006 requires local agencies to submit annual and five year reports detailing the
status of development impact fees. The annual report must be made available to the public and presented to the
public agency (City Council) at least fifteen days after it is made available to the public.

This report summarizes the following information for each of the development fee programs:

1. A brief description of the fee program.
2. Schedule offees.
3. Beginning and ending balances of the fee program.
4. Amount of fees collected and the interest earned.
5. Disbursement information, including operating transfers

ANALYSIS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 all fund revenues totaled $42,631,390.44 while expenditures totaled

$21,644,721.47.

The table below summarizes, by program, the impact fees collected in FY 2021-22.

Fiscal Year End
June 30, 2022

Housing Trust Fund
Humbug-Willow Creek Fee
Supplemental Park Fee
Park lmprovements -

Police Capital
Fire Capital
General Capital
Transportation I mprovement
Drainage Capital lmprovement
Light Rail Transportation
General Park Equip Cap
Water lmpact Fee
Water Capital lmprovement
Sewer Capital
Facilities Augmentation Critical
Facilities Augmentation General
Solid Waste Capital
FPA Highway 50 lmprovement
FPA Highway 50 lnterchang'e
FPA Transit lmpact
FPA Corporation Yard
FPA Specific Plan Capital
FPA Solid Waste Capital

36,080.00
42,365.25

1,010,323.14
169,303.39
247,786.75
365,1 19.50

1,323,715.96
265,676.35
121,968.50
112,358.25
127,619.23
363,450.25

58,693.50

96,108.00
't,273,362.00

2,589,411.00
1 ,315,01 1 .00

840,618.00
12,818,590.00

480,558.00

$
$
$
$

$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

1

Total lmpact Fees Collected $ 23,658,118.07

Page 667

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Housing Trust

Fund221

Section 3.90.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Housing Trust Fund impact fee. The housing
trust fund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, fee deferrals, fee waivers, federal tax credits,
tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds, community development block grants, and HOME funds. The purpose of this fee is to further the
policies, goals and programs of the housing element of the City's general plan and to help facilitate the development of affordable housing
within the City.

Monies in the housing trust fund shall be used to promote the goals and policies of the housing element of the general plan; to implement
any housing assistance plan, program, or guidelines adopted by the City Council; and to increase and improve the supply of housing
affordable to low and very low income households, with priority given to residential projects which include very low income units, as well as
other housing related purposes. Housing trust funds may be used for loans, grants, equity participation or other funding mechanisms to
accomplish these purposes. The housing trust fund may be used to cover reasonable administrative, legal, consulting, or other housing
related expenses, which are not reimbursed to the City through processing fees.

HOUSING TRUST FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Fee per Gross
Square Foot

Office
Retail
Light lndustrial
Heavy I ndustrial/Manufacturing
Light lndustrial/Manufacturing

StatementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t2',1 FY 202'il22

76
76
76
76
tb

1

1

1

1

1

Revenues
Fees
Interest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

1 Loan Receivable

Available Fund Balance

$ e2,230 $

$ $ $61,088
14,628

53,712
21 ,476
15,000

175,956
41 ,916

6,000

11,443
27,568

36,080
21,916

$ $

27 745 6 000

$ 103,462 $ 90,188 $ 223,872 $ 45,011 $ 57,996

500
11,405
3,771

4,067
2,222 956

475
1,954

$ $ 1,310 $
2

$ 94,730

$ 8,732

$ 1,805,096

$ 15,176

$ 75,012

$ 1 ,813,828

$ 6,289

$ 217,583

$ 1,888,839

$ 3,266

$ 41,745

$ 2,106,422

2,429

55,567

't48,167

$

$

$2,

$ 1,813,828 $ 1,888,839 $ 2,106,422 $ 2,148,167 $ 2,203,734

$ 849,683 $ 849,683 $ 841,289 $ 841,289 $ r '10

$ 964,145

Notes:
1 

Loan Receivable are loans issued for development of affordable housing projects.

2

l_1,03s,159_ $ 1,265,132 $ 1,306,877 $ 377.324

Page 668

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Housing Trust

Five Year Revenue Tcst Using First In First Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 103,462 $ 90,188 $ 223,872

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 279,328 103,462 90,188

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 318,662 279,328 103,462

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 262,693 318,662 279,328

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds) - 247,5'16 318,662

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (6-yrs and beyond) 249,620

$ 45,011

223,872

90,188

103,462

279,328

565,01 6

57,996

45,01 1

223,872

50,445

Total Revenue Available

Notes:
During FY 2021-22 $1,000,000 was used to provide funding for a low-income housing project.

Capital lmprovement Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 964,145 $ 1,039,156 $ 1,265,132 $ 1,306,877 $ 377,324

FY 2021-22 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations

Adm inistrative Overhead (interfu nd transfer)

FY2020-21 Projects
Operations

Adm inistrative Overhead (interfu nd transfer)

$ 475
1,954

$ 2,429

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 475

954
$ 2,429

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100%

100o/o

$

$ '1,310

1.956

100o/o

100o/o

't ,310
1,956

$ $

$ 3,266

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 3,266 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2019-20 Proiects
Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfu nd transfer)
$ 4,067

2 .222

100%

100o/o

4,067

2,222
$ $

$ 6,289

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 6,28e $

FY 201 8-1 9 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 11,405

3,771

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Administrative Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 201 7-l 8 Projects
Operations

Administrative Overhead (interfu nd transfer)

$ 11,405

3,771

100%

100%
$

$ 15,176

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 15,176 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 92,230

2,500

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-$ 92,230
2,500

100%
100%

$ 94,730

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

3

$ 94,730 $

Page 669

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Humbug-Willow Greek Fee

Fund 223

Section 4.12.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway .impact fee. The
Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway fund is intended to be utilized with other sources of funding including, but not limited to, the residential
construction tax, capital improvement-new construction service charge, drainage fees, Quimby Act fees, major road fees and park lmprovement
Fee. The purpose of this fee is to further the long-range planning efforts of the General Plan to develop the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway.
New development, and the expansion of existing development within the city, generates the need for financing the planning and construction of
recreational trail, and passive recreational amenities along the Humbug-Willow Creek Parkway.

HUMBUG.WILLOW CREEK FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

276
174
151

0.0670

$

$

$
$

Statementof Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017115 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Grant Reimbursements
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Humbug-Willow Creek Fee Fund

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

$ 146,538
229

2,590,416 2,402,241
244,493

68J23
123,785

40,000
74,160

$ 42,365

985,000
80

$ 107,206 $ 81 ,891 $ 17,265

40 063
$ 2,777,246 $ 2,753,940 $ 273,799 $ 131,424 $ 1,027,445

$ 2,452,183 $$$$ 2,678,645
106,013

544,809
69,653

30,308
79,472

30,202
18,637

$ 2,452,183

$ 325,063

$ (1,118,872)

$ (7e3,80e)

_$ (?e3,8oel

$ 2,784,658

$ (30,718)

$ (7e3,80e)

$ 614,462

$ (340,664)

$ (824,527\

$ 109,780

$ 21,644

$ (1,165,1e1)

$ 48,839

$ 978,606

$ (1,143,546)

_$ (824,5nL

$ (824,527)

$ (1,165,191) $ (1,143,546) $ (164,940)

$ (1,165,1s1) $ (1,143,546) $ (164,940)

Five Year Revenue Test Using Flrst ln First Out Method
$-$-$ s$

$ $$$

4

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Page 670

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20
Oak Parkway
Placerville Rail Trail

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2

Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Lake Natoma Water Front Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail
General Governmeni Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended
$ 30,202

18,637
$ 48,839

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$10}o/o $

1OjYo

30,202
18,637

$ 30,308
79,472

$ 109,780

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 48,83e $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 30,308 $

79,472

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
100o/o

100%

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 109,780 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 626,'199
10,235

69,653
$ 706,087

85% $
100%
1000

$ e1,625534,574
10,235

69,653
$ 614,462 $ 91,62s

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 4,s15
868,568
48,500

1,728,829
28,233

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Expenditures
$ 4,515

37,215

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

jYo

1O0Yo

100%
98Yo

100%
1O0o/o

$
868,568
48,500

1,691,614
28,233

106,013
$ 2,636,915 $ 41,730

106 013
$ 2,784,658

FY 2017-18 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Folsom Lake Trail Phase 2

Lake Natoma Class 1 Trail
Oak Parkway Trail Undercrossing
Placerville Rail Trail

$ 2,499,395

Noies:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ 1,984,345
329,1 60

61,878
124,012

e8% $
100Yo

100o/o

100o/o

1,937,133
329,160
61,878

124,012

47,212

$ 2,452,183 $ 47,212

5
Page 671

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Supplemental Park Fee

Fund 41 1

Section 4.10.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Park lmprovement impact fee. The fee

established by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of
development, including, but not limited io, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new
conshuction service charge levied by Chapter 17.92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32

and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04.The fee established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for
which an account shall be established and funds appropriated, and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The

fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order io assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new

development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

SUPPLEMENTAL PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is no longer charged

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 7l',la FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

$ $ $ $
3,938 5,912 5,703 3,276 2,508

$ 3,e38 $ 5,912 $ 5,703 $ 3,276 $ 2,508

$ $
435

$

$$$

$

$ 3,938

$ 265,525

$ 269,463

$

$ 5,912

$ 269,463

435

5,268

275,375

$

$ 3,276

$ 280,643

$

$ 2,508

$ 283,919

$

$

$

$ 275.375 $ 280,643 $ 283,919 $ 286,427

$ 286,427$ 269,463 $ 275,375 $ 280,643 $ 283.919

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

$ 3,938

3p62
10,491

152,078

96,263

2,731

5,9't2

3,938

3,962

10,491

152,078

98,994 1

5,703

5,912

3,938

3,962

10,491

250,637

3,276

5,703

5,912

3,938

3,962

261,128

2,508

3,276

5,703

5,912

3,938

265,090

$ $

$ 269,463 $ 275,375 $ 280,643$283,919$286,427

Notes:
Result: TheSupplemental ParklmprovementFundreportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthefive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. Perthe2023Capital lmprovementPlan

funds are reserued for the Benevento Family Park project. The Supplemental Park lmprovement Fund will be utilized for a total of $285,000 for this prcject which is

currently in the design phase.

b
Page 672

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Supplemental Park Fee
Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 202'l-22 Proiects
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100a/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ $

Project
Amount

$ $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2020-21 Proiects Expended

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $

$

100% $ $

Project
Amount

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact

Expenditures

$

Fee

FY 2019.20 Proiects Expended

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $ 435

$ 435

100Yo $ 435 $

$ 435 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Impact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
$

Fee

FY 2018-19
(interfund transfer) $ 1O0Yo $

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

FY 201748 Projects
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer) $

$-
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

100% $ $

$ $

7
Page 673

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
City-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Fund 412

Section4.10.0'l0oftheFolsomMunicipal CodeestablishestheprovisionforcollectionofaParklmprovementimpactfee. Thefeeestablished
by this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development, including, but not
limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new construction seryice charge levied by Chapter
17 .92, drainage fees levied by Chapter 1 7.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32 and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04. the tee
established by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated,
and for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance
with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to
serve such development.

CITY-WDE PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Multiple Family
Residential Senior dwelling
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial/lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

7,037
4,675
3,614
2,701
0.476

$
$
$
$
$

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020t21 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 3,819,319
34,929

$ 2,539,916
42,345

2,643

$ 2,034,287
141,800

7,334

446,419
1 9,1 63

1,488

$ 1 ,010,323
(1 19,283)

$

$ 3,854,248 $ 2,584,905 $ 2,183,421 $ 467,070 $ 891,040

$ 5,256,400
$ 21,737

$ 999,904
$ 43,231

145,665
80,371

152,101
21,528

165,512
9,943

$
$

$
$

$
$

$ 5,278,137

$ (1,423,88e)

$ 1,856,322

$ 1 ,043,1 35

$ 1,541,769

$ 432,434

$ 226,036

$ 1,957,386

$ 1,974,203

$ 173,629

$ 293,441

$ 3,931,589

175,455

715,585

$

$

$

$ 432,434 $ 1,974,203 $ 3,931,589 $ 4,225,029 $ 4,940,615

$ 432,434 $ 1,974,203 $ 4,225,029 $ 4,940,615_$_q,e315gg_

8
Page 674

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City-Wide Park lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 432,4_34 $ 1,e74,203 r 

?,i1i:121,
467,070

2,183,421

1,574,538

891,040

467,070

2,183,421

1,399,084

$

$ 432,434 $ 1,974,203 $ 3,931,589 $ 4,225,025 $ 4,940,615

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Livermore Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Projects
Operations
Davies Park
Benevento Park (Empire Ranch Site 51)
Sutter Middle School Gym
Memorial/Celebratory Benches
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 32,305
6,239

26,968
100,000

9,943
$ 175,455

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 175,455 $

1000
100%
100Yo

100%
100%

32,305
6,239

26,968
'100,000

9,943

$ $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

$ 30,727
4,650

15,236
100,000

1,488
21,528

$ 173,629

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100o/o

100%
100o/o

100Yo

0%
100%

$ 30,727
4,650

15,236
100,000

$

1,488
21,528

$ 172,141 $ 1,488

FY 2019-20 Projects
Operations
BT Collins Park
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 37,067
1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

29,733
1,838
6,760

100,000
80,371

80%
100o/o

101o/o

100%
100Yo

$ $ 7,334

$ 226,036

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 218,702 $ 7,334

FY 2018-'19 Projects
Operations
Livermore Park
Johnny Cash Art Park
Johnny Cash Trail Art
Econome Park (Site 44)
Sutter Middle School Gym
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 90,537
(5,518)

(371)
9,216

806,040
100,000

43,231

87,894 $
(5,518)

(371)
9,216

806,040
100,000

$ 2,643

43 231

97Yo

1O0o/.

100Yo

1OjYo

1lQo/o

100o/o

100o/o

I

$ 1 ,043,1 35 $ 1,040,492 $ 2,643

Page 675

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FY 20'17-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Operations
Lew Howard Park
Livermore Park
Johnny Cash Art Park
Econome Park (Site 44)

$ 208,624
377

37,291
34,288

4,975,820

10OYo

1A0o/o

100%
100o/o

100o/o

208,624
377

37,291
34,288

$ $

4,975,820
$ 5,256,400 $$ 5,256,400

Notes:
1 

lnlerfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

10

Page 676

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Police Gapital

Fund 428

Section 3.80.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.

11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and commercial
developmenithroughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and facilities would

be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in the City, and additional

services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses. Under this section

of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund, the fire improvement fund and

the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new construction fee shall be established by resolution

adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use of the fee and the type of
development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or services created by the new residential and commercial

development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the faciliiies and/or services attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 S 1 (part), 1997) All fees

collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the planning,

construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

POLICE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

FY 2017t18

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

FY 2018t19

601
681
156
35

1.012
0.875

$

$
$
$
$
$

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descriotion FY 2019/20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Debt Service - interfund transfer
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

$ 535,099
697

$ 307,384
13,649

376,561
19,536

$ $ 48,085
13,505

$ 169,303
s,3027

$

542,796 $ 321,033 $ 396,098 $ 61,590 $ 178,606

117,796

716

$ 43,185 $ 137,633

500,000
$$

$

$

$

$

$

$

500,000

42,796

400,769

321,033

443,565

$ 1 1 8,512

$ 277,586

$ 764,598

$ 43,185

$ 18,405

$ 1,042,184

$ 1,060,589

$ 137,633

$ 40,973

$ 1,060,589

$ 443.565 $ 764,598 $ 1,042,184 $ t, 101 .562

$ 443,565 $ 764,598 $ r 184 $1,060,589 $1,101,562

11

Page 677

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Police Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (z-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yrs old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Assigned Fund Balance

Total Available Revenue

FY 2021-22Projects
Police HQ Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Methodg 443'565 t lll:3ll $ 396,098

321,033

325,053

61,590

396,098

321,O33

281,868

178,606

61,590

396,098

321,033

144,235

$$

$ 443,565 $ 764,598 $ 1,042,184 $ 1,060,589 $ ',1,101,562

$

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

443,565$764,598$1,042,184$1,060,589$1,101,562

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 137,633

$ 137,633

100%
0%

$ 137,633 $

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 137,633 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpaci
Fee

Expenditures
$Police HQ Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 43,185

$ 43,185

Project Amount
Expended

100%

0%
$ 43,185

$ 43,185 $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Purchase of Police Vehicles

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 117,796

716

$ 1 18,512

Project Amount
Expended

100%

100% 716
$ 1 17,796 $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 118,512 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$-

Non-lmpact
Fee

$

Expenditures
$

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 5oo,ooo

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 785,125$ I ,285,12s 39o/oDebt Ser. on Municipal Svcs. Complex (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (inledund transfer)
$ 1,285,125

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ 500,000 $ 785,125

12
Page 678

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Fire Gapital

Fund 441

Section 3.80.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implementthe City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No.

11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and

commercial development throughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services and

facilities would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in the City,

and additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and businesses.

Under this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police improvement fund, the fire
improvement fund and ihe general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new construction fee shall be

esiablished by resolution adopted by the City Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in the Nexus Studies of: (1) the

use of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or services created by the new

residential and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services aftributable to new development. (Ord. 871

g 1 (part), 1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these improvementfunds and shall be expended solely to

finance the planning, construction and development of the facilities and services identified in the Nexus Studies.

FIRE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
MultFFamily Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit

1,086
1,050
1,083

939
0.634
0.276

Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Description

SfafementofRevenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 20',t9t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021n2

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Debt Service - interfund kansfer
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 2,535,312 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857

$ 832,887
50,565

$ 478,923
46,994

503,670
26,669

77,107
(12,922\

$ 247,787
(2,412)

$ $

$ 883,452 $ 525,916 $ 530,339 $ 64,185 $ 245,374

$ 1,393,613
79,493

$ 2,008,060 $$ 1,785,969
80,049

1,487
80,420
43,784

$

$ 1 ,473,1 06

$ (58e,654)

$ 1,867,505

$ (1,341,58e)

$ 2,535,312

$ 124,204

$ 406,135

$ 1,193,723$3, 124.965

52,86'1-il-2p6d52

$ (1,996,736)

$ 1,599,857

157,800
2,323

$ 160,'123

$ 85,251

$ (396,87s)

$ (311,627)

_$ (311,624$ 2,535,312 193.723 $ 1,599,857

_$___(!e6,8?9I

$ (396,87e)$ t,

13
Page 679

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Fire Capital

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue current Year $ 883,452 $ 525,916 $

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 261,534 667,807

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 305,1 33

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr old Funds) 448,359

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds) 540,325

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years 96,509

530,339

525,91 6

543,602

$

Total Revenue

Assigned Fund Balance

$ 2,535,312 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 $

Total Available Revenue

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$ 2,535,3 12 $ 1,193,723 $ 1,599,857 $

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Proiects

$ 223,947

2,323
70%

100%
$ 157,800

2,323

66,147

$ 160,123 $ 66,147

$

$
2

$ 226,270

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 2,008,060

52,861
$ 2,430,715

52,861

$ 2,483,576

83%
100%

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 422,655

$ 2,060,921 $ 422,655

Station 38 Remodel

General Government Overhead (interfund transfe0

FY 2019-20 Proiects
Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 223,388
43,784

$ 267,172

Project
Amount

Expended

36%
100Yo

$ 80,420
43,784

$ 142,968

FY 2018.19 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 124,204

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 142,968

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 142,308 1

375,444
2

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

Fire Station #39

General Government Overhead (interfund transfe{

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 222,357
2,161,413

,t,487

$ 2.385,257

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 79,493
1 ,393,613

NonJmpaci
Fee

Expenditures

$ 142,820 1

2,342,308

36%
83o/o

100o/o

$ 80,049
1,785,969

1,487

$ 1,867,505 $ 517,752

Debt Service on Fire Station 35 (interfund transfer)

Fire Station #39

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 222,313
3,735,921

36Yo

37o/o

$ 3,958,234

Notes:
1 

lnterfundtransfersareusedtoreimbursetheGeneralFundfortheimpactfeeportionofthedebtservicepaymentsandcapitalexpenses.
2 lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ 1,473,106 $ 2,485,128

14
Page 680

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
General Capital

Fund 445

Section 3.80.0'10 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision to implementthe City General Plan, Urban Development Policy
No. 11.6, and to provide for adequate police, fire and general governmental services and facilities to serve new residential, industrial and
commercial development throughout the City. The City Council determined that the existing police, fire and general governmental services
and facilities would be inadequate to accommodate the needs generated by projected new residential, industrial and commercial growth in
the City, and additional services and facilities were needed to protect and promote the health, safety and welfare of Folsom residents and
businesses. Under this section of the City's Municipal Charter the City established three improvement funds entitled the police
improvement fund, the fire improvement fund and the general government improvement fund. The amount of the capital improvement new
construction fee shall be established by resolution adopted by the Cily Council of the City, and shall be based upon the determination in
the Nexus Studies of: (1) the use of the fee and the type of development on which the fee is imposed; (2) the need for the facilities and/or
services created by the new residential and commercial development; and (3) the reasonable cost of the facilities and/or services
attributable to new development. (Ord. 871 S 1 (part), 1997) All fees collected pursuant to this chapter shall be deposited in these
improvement funds and shall be expended solely to finance the planning, construction and development of the facilities and services
identified in the Nexus Studies.

GENERAL CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Lodging
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
tor Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017t18 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

1,596
''1,596

1,589
228

0.498
0.495

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB '1600 Expenditures
Debt Service - interfund transfer
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 1,242,626
19,876

$ 701 ,310 $ 714,359
3,681

$ 117,263 $ 365,120
9,92137 077 10 224

$ 1,262,502 $ 738,387 $ 718,041 $ 127,487 $ 375,040

$ 1 17,834
600,000

4,617

$ 42,871
'1 ,856,1 1 0

$ 2,505

152,745

$ 1,582 $

7022 1,211

$ 722,451

$ 540,051

$ 828,320

$ 1,901,683

$ (1,163,2e6)

$ 1,368,371

$ 155,250

$ 562,790

$ 205,075

$ 1,582

$ 125,905

$ 767,865

$ 1,211

$ 373,829

$ 893,770

$ 1,368,371 $ 205,075 $ 767,865 $ 893,770 $ 1,267,599

$ 1,368,371 $ 205,075 $ 767,865 $ 893,770 $ '1,267,599

15
Page 681

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



General Gapital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Melhod
$ 1,262,502 $ 205,075 $ 718,041

105,869 _ 49,824

$$ 127,487

718,041

48,242

375,040

127,487

718,041

47,031

$ 1,368,371 $ 205,075 $ 767,865 $ 893,770 $ 1,267,599

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Proiects
Project
Amount

FY 2021-22 Proiects Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 1.211

$ 1,211

1O0Yo $ 1,211 $

$ 1,211 $

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,582

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 1,582

$ 1,582

lOOo/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,582 $-

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 2,095
6,847

Project
Amount

Expended

Software upgrade
Capital Equipment

General Government Overhead (interfund transfe0

FY 201 8-l I Proiects
Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 20'17-18 Proiects

o 4,840
'156,847

2,505

$ 164,192

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 87,620

1 ,856,1 10

2,702

$ 1,946,432

Project
Amount

Expended

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 2,745
150,000

2,505

57To

96%

10oo/o

$ 155,250 $ 8,942

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
49Yo

1000k

1O0o/"

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
100%

57%
47Yo

10OVo

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 107,484
10,350

600,000

4,617

$ 722,451

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 42,871

1 ,856,1 10

2,702

$ 44,749

$ 1,e01,683 $ 44,749

Fiber upgrade (City Hall campus)

Software upgrade

Debt Service on City Hall (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 107,484

18,248

1,285,125

4,617

$

7,898

685,1 25

693,023

2

$ 1,415,474

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General

2 
lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for the impact fee portion of the debt service payments.

16
Page 682

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Transportation lmprovement Fu nd

Fund 446

Section 12.04.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for a transportation improvement fee. The purpose of the fee is to
establish a fund for financing transportation facilities as identified in the circulation element of the city general plan and those studies which identify

specific transportation faciiity improvements called for in the circulation element and the estimated costs thereof. lmprovements include

construction oi new transportition facilities where there are none and reconstruction of existing transportation facilities which are not sufficient to

accommodate increased traffic caused by new development. The area of benefit of the transportation facilities is the entire corporate limits of the

City.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial / Retail
lndushial / Office
Hospital
Hotel / Motel
Other
Additional Land Uses
High Trip Commercial
Gas Stations

FY 20't7t18

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft. $
Per Fueling Station $

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

$
$

$
$
$

$
$

$

8,1 68
5,717
5,717
12.27
5.33

12.27
12.27
s.33

48.67
10,914

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descriotion

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

$ 4,570,833
40,237

974,361
$ 5,585,431

$ 3,058,578
523,814

$ 2,339,992
355,678

1,668,308577 843

$ 547,306 $ 1,323,716
(61,334) (12e,e33)

5,911,747 '18,957,596

$ 4,160,235 $ 4,363,978 $ 6,397,720 $ 20,151,379

$ 1,480,795
1 3,1 86

$ 5,299,363
102,483
91,884

$ 7,927,850
152,118
41,545

$ 8,993,579
117,918
100,682

$ 17,548,721
118,234
152,91072 728

$ 1,566,709

$ 4,018,722

$ 10,201,347

$ 5,493,730

$ (1,333,4e5)

$ 14,220,069

$ 8,121,513

$ (3,757,534)

$ 12,886,574

$ 9,212,179

$ (2,814,45s)

$ 9,129,040

$ 17,819,865

$ 2,331 ,513

$0,314,581

$ 14.220.069 $ '12,886,574 $e, 129.O40 $ 6,314,581 $ 8,646,094

$ 14,220,069 $ 12,886,574 $ 9,129,040 $ 6,314,581 $ 8,646,094

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 5,585,431 $ 4,160,235 $ 4,363,978

4,147,236 5,585,431 4,160,235

2,641,533 3,140,908 604,A27

1,845,869

$ 6,314,581 $ 8,646,094

$ 14,220,069$12,886,574$9,129,040$6,314,581$8,646,094

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

17
Page 683

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Transportation lmprovement Fund
lnterfund Loan

Per Resolution 9815 an interfund loan was approved by the City Council in the amount $5,004,701 to be used for the completion of Econome

Family park. The resolution established the term as ten years at an interest rate equivalent to the quarterly interest earnings by all City

invesiments, (currently approximately 2o/o to 2.5o/o per year). During fiscal year 2018 an interfund loan was made in the amount of $2,000,000
from the Transportation improvement Fund io the Park lmprovement Capital Fund. The Park Capital.lmprovement Fund made a payment of

$1,000,000 plui interest on June 30,2018, $330,000 on June 30,2019, $300,000 in December2019, $300,000 in March 2O21,and $70,000 in

June 2022. As of June 30,2022 the interfund loan has been fully repaid..The Econome Family Park opened on July 12,2018.

Gapital lmprovement Projects

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2021-22 Proiects
East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Gapital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

East Bidwell/ lron Pt US50 Onramp

Green Valley Road Widening
lntelligent Transportation System

Median lmprovement Program

Folsom Lake Xing Satety Improvement

Greenback/ Madison Paving

Orangevale Bridge

Historic District Connectiviity
HSIP Safety lmprovements
lron Point Median

Scott Road Realignment

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 77,328
16,554,198

198,636
74,740
49,704
7,101

23,507
10,942
25,O84
32,902

2,361
25,673
46,726
17,555
3,600

383,683
69,657

152,910
118,234

$ 17,874,539

100%
0%

100%
100o/o

100o/o

100%
100%

960/o

1O0o/o

100o/o

100%
10oo/o

100%
100Yo
100To

100%
22o/o

100o/o

100o/o

$ 77,328 $
16,554,198

198,636
74.740
49,704
7,101

23,507
10,520
25,084
32,902

2,361
25,673
46,726
17,555
3,600

383,683
15,404

152,910
118,234

$ 1,265,667 $ 16,608,872

42'.!

54,253

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Projeci Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 251,7',t2

Non-lmpaci
Fee

Expenditures

East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

Capital SE Connect Seg D3

Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Green Valley Road Widening
lntelligent Transportation System

Median lmprovement Program

Local Streets & Roads Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Orangevale Bridge

Prairie City / Blue Ravine

Rainbow Bridge Repair

Riley Street Feasability Study

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund hansfer)

$ 100Yo
0o/o

100%
100%
1O0To

100%
95%

10oo/o

100o/o

100%
1O0o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100%
43%

100%
10oo/o

251,712
6,322,280

230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
174,992

15,723
34,754
84,430
6,367

342,415
10,306
72,412
62,098

100,682
120,144

230,580
563,324
34,040

830,339
166,019

15,723
34,754
84,430

6,367
342,415

10,306
72,412
26,653

100,682
120,144

$ 2,889,899

6,322,280

8,973

35,445

$

2

$ 9,256,597 $ 6,366,698

18
Page 684

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresFY 2019-20 Projects
@
Empire Ranch Rd lnterchange

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Green Valley Road Widening
lntelligent Transportation System
lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modiflcations

Local Streets & Roads Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement

Prairie City / Blue Ravine
Rainbow Bridge Repair

Riley Sheet Feasibility Study

Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 376,391
289,408
322,717

28,'143
5,893,164

294,278
8,000

34,706
477,280

15,768
30,074
66,054

153,200
41,545

152,'.t18

$ 376,391
289,408
322,717

28,143
5,893,137

271,121
8,000

26,706
477,280

15,768
30,074
66,054

123,050
41,545

152,118

100o/o

100Yo
100Yo
100%
100%

92o/o

100o/o

77To
1O0o/o

100%
100Yo
100Yo

80Yo

100o/o

1000h

$

26
23,157

8,000

15030,
2

1

$ 8,'182,846 $ 8,121,513 $ 61,333

FY 2018-19 Projects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

East Bidwell Frontage lmprovements

East Bidwell lnfill

East Bidwell Widening
East Bidwell / lron Pt Signal Delineation

Greenback / Madison Paving

Green Valley Road Widening
Highway 50 Facilities

lntelligent Transportation System

lron Point Rail Road Crossing Modifications

Median lmprovemenl Program

New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Orangevale Bridge

Rainbow Bridge Repair
Regional Transportation Coordination

ROW Asset Management
Traffic Signal System Upgrade

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 218,007
598

65,808
290,820

2,144,312
704,818

37,841
148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,851
55,000

5,079
251 ,001

91,884

$ 218,007
598

65,808
290,820
416,',174

704,818
37,841

148,291
761,820

3,692
2,396,298

35,395
30,85'l
31,276

5,079
107,370
91,884

1,728,138

23,724

143,631

100%
100%
100o/o

100o/o

19To

100o/o

100%
100Yo
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

57o/o

100To

43o/o

100%
lOOo/"

$

147 707
$ 7,389,223

147 707
$ 5,493,730 $ 1,89s,493

19

Page 685

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

NonJmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2617J18 Proiects
East Bidwell Widening
Empire Ranch Rd Interchange

Green Valley Road Widening
Highway 50 Facilities

lntelllgent Transportation System

New Traffic Signal lmprovement
Orangevale Bridge

Rainbow Bridge Repair
Regional Transportation Coordination

ROW Asset Management
Miscellaneous Road lmprovements

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,530,644

Notes;
1 Governmsntsupport.
2 

lnterfund lransfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing Engineering support

$ 75,954
88,339

104,469

9,785
73,583

423,211

1 70,386

426,438
47,622
23,721

1,220

13,186

72,728

100%

100%

100%
100%

100o/o

10Ao/o

820k

100o/o

100%

lOOo/o

1O0o/o

100o/o

1O0o/o

75,954
88,339

104,469

9,785
73,583

423,211

139,102

426,438
. 47,622

23,721

1,220

13,186

72,728

31,284

$ $

2

1

$ 1,499,359 $ 31,284

20
Page 686

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Devef oper lmpact Fee Complian ce 2022
Drainage Capital

Fund 448

Section 17.95.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a fee to establish a drainage fund. The City

Council declares and finds that it is necessary to adopt and establish the entire City as a zone for the improvement and construction of trunk
and collection drainage facilities, including waterways, pumping plants, levees and other facilities utilized for controlling drainage and storm
waters within the City in order to promote and protect the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare from uncontrolled
drainage and storm water. (Ord. 620 S 1, 1988: Ord. 368 (part), 1978)

For any residential structure, residential subdivision or parcel map, whether for single-family or multiple-family use, the fee shall be $832 per

dwelling unit. For commercial or industrial buildings, commercial or industrial subdivision and all other land uses not otherwise provided for in

this chapter or improvements appurtenant thereto, the fee shall be $5,055 per acre. When only a portion of a site is being developed, the city

engineer may, by written agreement with the property owner, defer that portion of the fees due on the undeveloped portion of the site. (Ord.

620 S 1,1988)

DRAINAGE CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

1,037
1,037
1,037
6,302
6,302

$
$
$
$
$

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017t18 FY 20,l8/19 FY 20',t9t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Grant Reimbursement

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 841 ,335 $ 566,823 $ 512,090 $ 82,407

$ 831,628
9,707

$ 471,222
21,396
74,204

$ 488,461
23,629

$ 459,797
78,174

$ 167,547
68,181

$ 235,728

$ (153,320)

$ 1,064,576

$ 265,676
7,716

42,475
144

T--16.011

$ 272,377
71.744

$ 344,121

$ (28,1 1 0)

$ 911,255

$ 71,862
10,545

$ 147,271
213,348

$ 87,904
89,494

$ 360,619

$ 480,7'16

$ 220,315

$ 177,398

$ 389,425

$ 701,031

$ 537,971

$ (25,881)

$ 1,090,456

$ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $ 1,064,576 $ 911.255 $ 883,145

$ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $ 1,064,576 $ 911,255 $ 883.1 45

21

Page 687

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Drainage Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Flve Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 701,031 $ 566,823

523,633

512,090

552,486

82,407

512,090

31 6,758

316,01 1

82,407

484,727

$ $

$ 701,031 $ 1,090,456 $ 1,064,576 $ 911,255 $ 883,145

Result: Five Year Ravenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 12,195
11,803
3,305
1,070

30,228
48,440

228,141
8,939

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Glenn Drive Storm Drain Outfall Failure

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 12,195
11,803
3,305
1,070

30,228
48,440

228,141

8,939

1O0o/o

100o/o

100o/o

100Yo

10004
100%

1OjYo

100%

2

1

FY 2020-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 344,121 $ 344,121 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ at,zsl
7,307
3,654
5,6'16

32,1 96
1,160

115,543

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

2,370
94,471

Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Flood Plain Mapping
NPDES
Weather Station
Annual NPDES Water Quality
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 67,237
7,307
3,654
5,616

34,566
95,631

115,543
3,015

100%
100%
100%
100%
93%

1o/o

100%

100o/o 3 015

$ 235,728 $ 96,841

2

1

2

1

FY 20'19-20 Projects

$ 332,569

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 11,827

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 17,549
506,635

Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining
Bidwell @ Bluestone Storm Drain Repair
NPDES
Weather Station
Misc Expense

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 29,376
736,1 06

71,100
29,093

5,493
1,026

186,722

3,240

40Yo

31o/o

100o/o

100%
100%
100%

100o/o

100%

229,471
71j00
29,093

5,493
1,026

186,722

3,240
$ 1,062,155 $ 537,971 $ 524,184

22
Page 688

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 7,163 $ 323,432
1 0,1 85

156,862

3,187

$ 177,398 $ 323,432

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Storm Drain Ponds
Willow Creek Estates Storm Drain Lining

Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 330,596
10,185

156,862

3,187

2o/o

100%

1000k

100%

2

1

FY 2017-'18 Projects

$ 500,830

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Flood Plain Mapping
Storm Drain Ponds
Annual Street Projects
Weather Station
Engineering Overhead (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfe0

$ 2,753
14,805
4,380

94,563
232,771

11,348

10004
1O0o/o

10oo/o

100Yo

10oo/o

100%

$ 2,753
14,805
4,380

94,563

232,771

11,348

Expenditures

$

$ 360,620

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support'
2 lnterfund transfers are used io reimburse the General Fund for providing Engineering support

$ 360,620

23
Page 689

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Light Rail lmpact Fee

Fund 451

Section 1 0.50.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Liqht Rail Transportation Service Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to implement the City General Plan, Urban Development Policy No. 17.20, which requires that the City develop a

long range service system to service Folsom residents and businesses. As required by the General Plan, a long range transit plan has
been developed entitled "City of Folsom Light Rail Transit lmplementation Study, Final Report, dated February'1993" (hereafter the
"transit study''), and includes an analysis of the feasibility and financing of: (1 ) Continued city-operated intra-community bus service; (2)

Continued city-operated commuter bus service to downtown Sacramento and/or service to the nearest RT Metro Rail Staiion; and (3)
Extending RT Metro service to Folsom and the preservation of future rights-of-way.

The fee established by chapter 10.50.010 is in addition to any otherfees or charges ortaxes, required by law or city code as a condition
of development, including, but not limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, drainage fees levied by Chapter
17.95, major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04, capital improvement new construction fees levied by Chapter 17.92 and is necessary in

order to assure compliance with the applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for light rail transportation
service infrastructure which is needed to serve such development.

LIGHT RAIL IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwdlings
Commercial Development
lndustrial Development

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

724
498
498

0.230
0.095

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017t't8 FY 2018/{9 FY 20',t9120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 442,305
9,897

270,286
19,781

$ 250,624
21,800

$ $ 46,722
12,872

$ 121 ,969
B 772

$ 452,203 $ 290,067 $ 272,425 $ 59,594 $ 130,740

$ 72,937 $ $ 67,804 $ 127,315 $ 1,321

7 054 3 658 78 176 7 284
143,966

10.745

$ 71,462

$ 200,963

$ 759 905 $ 895,260

$ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326 $ 1,072,462

$ 950,326 $ 1,072,462

79,991

372,212

387,693

$ 154,712

$ 135,355

$ 205,491

$ (145,8e7)

$ 1,096,223

$ 8,605

$ 122,135

$ 950,326

$

$

$ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096 .223

24
Page 690

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Light Rail lmpact Fee

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue CurrentYear $ 452,203 $ 290,067 $ 272'425

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 149,447 452'203 290'067

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 100,106 149'447 452'203

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 58,149 3'543 81 
'528

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

$ 59,594

272,425

290,067

328,240

13,740

59,594

272,425

290,067

436,636

$

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

$ 759,905 $ 895,260 $ 1,096,223 $ 950,326 $ 1,072,462

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
1,321

7,284
$ 8,605 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 15,538

88,827
22,950

Non-lmpact
Fee

48,172
78 176

$ 205,491 $ 48,172

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Light Rail Project
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

1,321

7,284

100%
100%

$ 8,605

FY 2O2O-21 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$-Safety Bumps

Light Rail Project
Historic Folsom Station L&L

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 15,538
88,827
71 ,122
78,176

$ 253,663

100%
100Yo

32o/o

100%

FY 2019-20 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

Expenditures
$SP-JPA Admin

Landscaping
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 30,000
91,209
3,658

$ 124,867

100%
41%

100%

30,000
37,804

3,658

53,406

$ 71,462 $ 53,406

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

FY 2018-19 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpaci Fees

$

Expenditures
$SP-JPA Admin

Landscaping
Historic District Parking Signs
Concrete repairs in Historic District Plaza

Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 27,500
93,873
30,930
46,628
10,745

$ 209,677

Project
Amount

Expended

100%
41%

100%
100o/o

100%

27,500
38,908
30,930
46,628
10,745

54,965

$ 154,712 $ 54,965

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 27,500

45,437

7,054
$ 79,991 $ 53,804

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$-

53,804
SP-JPA Admin
Landscaping
Administrative and Engineering Overhead

$ 27,500
99,241

054

100%
46%

100o/o7
133,795

Notes:
I 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Govemment and Engineering support.

25
Page 691

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
General Park Equipment Capital

Fund 452

Section4.l0.0l0oftheFolsomMunicipal Codeestablishestheprovisionforcollectionof aParklmprovementimpactfee. Thefeeestablishedby
this chapter is in addition to any other fees or charges, or taxes, required by law or city code as a condition of development, including, but not

limited to, the residential construction tax levied by Chapter 17.90, capital improvement-new construction service charge levied by Chapter 17.92,

drainage fees levied by Chapter 17.95, Quimby Act fees levied by Chapter 16.32 and major road fees levied by Chapter 12.04. The fee

establiihed by this chapter is to be collected for park and recreation facilities for which an account shall be established and funds appropriated, and

for which a proposed construction schedule shall be adopted. The fee imposed by this chapter is necessary in order to assure compliance with the

applicable general plan requirements that new development bear the cost for park and recreation infrastructure which is needed to serve such

development.

GENERAL PARK EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Residential
Single Family
Single Family - HD
Multi-Family - LD
Multi-Family
Multi-Family - HD
Mobile Dwellings
Non-Residential
Commercial Development
lndustrial Developmenl

Basis Fee Amount

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$

$

$
$
$
$

$

$

94
94
94
94
94
44

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

0.018
0.018

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20

$ 62,546 $ 73,302
2,458

$ 70,988
2,498

$

FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

83,624
2,344

$ 112,358
160 2 768

$ 63,707 $ 75,760 $ 73,486 $ 85,969 $ 1 15,126

$ 6,378 $ 80,935

--

$ 80,935

$ (5,175)

$ 91,879

$$$ 9,121
149

3,646
't37

12,336
219

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

6,378

57,329

34,550

9,270

64,216

86,704

3,783

82,186

1 50,919

12,555

102,571

233,105

$ 91.879 $ 86,704 $ 150,919 $ 233.1 05 $ 335,676

$ 91,879 $ 86,704 $ 150,91e $ 233,105 $ 335.676

26
Page 692

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



General Park Equipment

Availabls Rgvenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yrs Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Flve Prior Fiscal Years

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 63,707 $ 73,302 $ 73,486

19,s16 13,402 75,760

8,656 - 1,673

91,879 $ 86,704 $ 150,919 $

$ 85,969

73,486

73,650

115,126

85,969

73,486

61,095

233,105 $ 335,676

FY 2021-22 Projects
Project Amount

Expended
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 12,336

219
$ 12,555

100%

100o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

g 12,555 $

$ $12,336
219

FY 2020-21 Projects
parkMaintenanc"rqripE6fr t"--otra*to1
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Project Amount
Expended Expenditures

$-2
1

$ 3,646
137

100o/o

100o/o

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 3,646
137

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 3,783 $ 3,783 $

Projeci Amount
Expended

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2019-20 Proiects
2

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 9,121

149-5- szo-

100%
100%

Percent Funded

$ g,zzo $

$ $9,121
149

Non-lmpact
Project Amount

Expended bV Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
Fee

FY 2018-19 Proiects
Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

Expenditures

$-2$ 80,935

$ 80,935

100o/o

0o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

100o/o

0%

$ 80,935

$ 80,935 $

FY 2017-18 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Park Maintenance Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 6,378

$ 6,378

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse lhe General Fund for providing General Government support.

2 lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund where the equipment costs were expensed.

$ 6,378 $

$ 6,378 $

27
Page 693

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Water lmpact Fund

Fund 456

Section 13.30.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water lmpact Fee. On October 31, 1988, the

Folsom City Council approved and adopted its General Plan (the "General Plan") identifying proposed growth within the city limits and further
identifying ihe impacts of such growth upon public facilities within the city including the impacts on water supply and the water supply system.

The City of Folsom water master plan dated December 1998 (Water Plan) was adopted by the City Council on May 25, 1999 by Resolution

No. OOjg. The water plan analyzed the City's present and projected water supply and facilities demands, and the costs of water conservation

efforts within developed areas of the City.

Section 13.30.030 established a water impact fee which is imposed on the construction of all new commercial, industrial and residential

buildings that are to be served with water supplies owned and treated by the City. This fee shall be imposed on all new construction within the

City, unless such property is otherwise exempt as provided for in Section 13.30.070 of this chapter. The fee established by this chapter is in

addition to any other fees or charges or taxes that are required by law or City code as a condition of development. (Ord. 912 $ 1 (part), 1999).

WATER IMPACT FUND FEE SCHEDULE

Use Cateqory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Commercial
lndustrial / Office

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Acre
Per Acre

$
$

$

$

985
530
326
326

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017t18 FY 2018t19 FY 2019/20 FY 2020t2'l FY 2021t22Description

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

Other Expenses
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

454 001

$ 51e,340 $ 425,079 $ 307,896 $ 547,959 $ 189,1 12

$ 175.872

$ 512,641
6,699

$ 36,004
122,387

$ 330,840
94,239

$ 272,941
34,955

67,733
26,224

$ 127,619
24,747
36,746

$

103,503
$ 158,198

104,226
$ 184,902

47j39
$ 321,886

8,902

$ 158,391

$ 360,949

$ 1,905,321

$ 279,375

$ 145,704

$ 262,424

$ 45,472

$ 2,411,574

$ 232,041

$ 31 5,918

$ 2.457,446

$ 330,788

$ (141,676)

$ 270 $2,773,364

$ 2,266,270 $ 2,4'11,974 $ 2,457 .446 $ 2,773,364 $ 2,631,688

$ $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457,446 $ 2,773,364 $ 2,631,688

28
Page 694

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Water lmpact Fund

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln Flrst Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 519,340 $ 330'840 $ 307'896

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) 216,364 519,340 425'079

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 128,766 216,364 519'340

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 288,035 128'766 216,364

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds) 335,393 288,035 128'766

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years 778,372 928,629 860,001

$ 547,959

307,896

425,079

51 9,340

216,364

756,726

1 73,853

547,959

307,896

425,079

51 9,340

657,561

$

Total Revenue Available

Assigned Fund Balance

Total Available Revenue

$ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457 ,446 $ 2,773,364 $ 2,631,688

$ 2,266,270 $ 2,411,974 $ 2,457 ,446 $ 2,773,364 $ 2,631,688

Notes:
TheWaterlmpactFeeFundreportsfundsbeingheldbeyondthefive-yearsasdescribedbyABl600. Perthe2023CapitallmprovementPlanfundsarereservedfortheEmpire
Ranch Non-Potable Water Well Project. The Waler Capital lmprovement Fund will be utilized for an additional $1,922,634 for this project. The fund will also be utilized for

rebates lo customers to reduce water use in the amount of $200,000-

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 31,946
58,761
44,729

186,449

8,902

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 330,788 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 142,506
17,500
24,896
40,653

6,486

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 232,041 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 158,198

100,000

4,226

Non-lmpact
Fee

$ 262,424 $ e,+So

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 167,416

100,000

3,503

Non-lmpact
Fee

Empire Ranch non-Potable Water Well
Water Delivery Reliability Study
Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 31,946
58,761
44,729

186,449

8,902

100o/o

10oo/o

1000k

100%
IOOYo

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lOOo/o

10QYo

100o/o

lOOo/o

1O0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Expenditures

$

FY 2020-21 Projects

$ 330,788

Project
Amount

Expended Expenditures

$GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Regional Water Authority
Recycled Water
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)
General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 142,506
'17,500

24,896
40,653

6,486

2

1

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 232,041

Project
Amount

Expended Expenditures

$ 8,456GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 166,654

100,000

4,226

95%

100%

100%

FY 2018-19 Projects

$ 270,880

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures

$ 40,725GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 208,141

100,000

3,503

B0Yo

't00%
10oo/o

$ 311,644 $ 270,919 $ 40,725

29
Page 695

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FY 20'17-18 Projects
GSWC lnter-Tie Booster
Regional Climate change analysis

Dry Year and Water Conservation (interfund transfer)

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 154,053 $ 154.004 $ 49

Notes:
1 lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the Water operating Fund. The Water Operating Fund captured the expenses for water conservation'

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 3o,oo4
6,000

118,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$$ 30,004
6,000

118,049

100%
10oo/o

100% 49

30
Page 696

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gomplian ce 2022
Water Connection Fund

Fund 521

Section 13.24.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Water Connection Fee. Water connection
charge was established to provide for the connection of water pipes to the city water system. (Ord 427, 1981 )

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
South Lexington Hills (1)

Mobile Dwellings

Commercial/lndustrial
3/4" meter
1" meter
1 112" meter
2" meter
3" meter
4" meter
6" meter
8" meter
10" meter

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit

Per Unit
Per Unit

3,361
2,'tB5
2,082
2,185

$
$

$
$

$ 3,353

$ 8,360
$ 16,726
$ 26,766
$ s3,547
$ 83,695
$ 167,449

$ 268,010
$ 385,608

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018119 FY 2019/20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22Description

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Other Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 1,403,343
'11.118

$ 892,951
188,406

$ 431,405
175,569

$ 201,146 $
(3,153)

363,450
(91,637)

467

$ 1,414,462 $ 1,081,356 $ 606,974 $ 197,993 $ 272,281

$ 239,219
35,1 58

88,325
9,200

$ 487,545
10,792

$ 1,499,707
9,969

$ 1,222,500
16,393

$

$ 274,377

$ 1,140,084

$ 3,369,394

$ 97,525

$ 983,832

$ 4,509,478

$ 498,337

$ 108,636

$ 5,493,310

$ 1,509,676

$ (1,311,683)

$ 5,601,946

$ 1,238,893

$ (e66,613)

$ 4,290,264

$ 4,509 .478 $ 5,493,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4,290,264 $ 3,323,651

$ 4,509,478 $ 5,4e3,310 $ 5,601,946 $ 4,290,264 $ 3,323,651

31

Page 697

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Water Connection Gapital lmprovement Fund

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 1,414,462 $ 1,081 ,356 $ 606,974

Availabte Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr old Funds) 747 ,906 1 ,414,462 1,081 ,356

AvailableRevenuePriorFiscal Year(3-yrOldFunds) 670,253 747'906 1,414,462

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds) 1 ,017,329 670'253 747 ,906

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs Old Funds) 659,528 1,017,329 670,253

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years 562,004 1,080,995

$ 1 97,993

606,974

1,081,356

1,414,462

747,906

241,573

272,281

1 97,993

606,974

1 ,08'1,356

1,165,047

$

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test mel in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$ 4,509,478 $ 5,493,310 $ 5,601 ,e46 $ 4,2s0,264 $ 3,323,651

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

. Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
4%

10Oo/"

100Yo

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 68,773Water Treatment Plant Backwash & Recycle Water
Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 71,362

1,219,9'11

16,393

2,589
1,219,911

16,393

$

FY 2020-21 Proiects

$ 1,307,666

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 1,238,893 $ 68,773

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 25,314
1,474,393

9,969

$ 1,509,676 $ 127,307

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy $ 109,390

1,517,623

9,969

23%
97Yo

100o/"

$ 84,076
43,231Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfe0

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 1,636,983

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 553,307
395,342

10,792

23Yo

91%

100o/o

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 126,509
361,036

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 426,798
34,306

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 20,747
8,568

59,010

9,200

$ 97,s25 $ 60,087

10 792

$ 498,337 $ 461,103

FY 2018-19 Projects

$ 959,441

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Water Treatment Plant Polymer Reliability & Redundancy

Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrades

Water Treatment Plant Pre-Treatment System lmp

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 43,849

25,820
78,743

9,200

$ 157,612

47Yo

33Yo

75o/o

100Yo

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 23,102
17,252
19,732

32
Page 698

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 6,652
2,592

224,334
5,640

35,1 58

$ 274,377 $ 1,425,372

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

1,419,311
6,060

Ground Water lnvestigation and Supply Grant

Urban Water Management Program

Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Station Reuse

Water Treatment Plant Actiflo/Polymer Capacity

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 6,652
2,592

1,643,646
11,701

35,158

$ 1,699,749

't00%
100Yo

14o/o

48%

100%

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

33
Page 699

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Devefoper lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Sewer Capital

Fund 531

Section 13.25.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a sewer connection charge. This charge shall

be collected prior to the issuance of building permits for commercial/industrial development and dwelling units as established by resolution

of the city council. The purpose of the fee is to establish a fund for financing equipment and capital improvement projects required to

maintain municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of commercial/industrial

developments and dwelling units.

SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Fee AmountUse Categga_
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential

South Lexington Hills 
(1)

Mobile Dwellings

Basis
Per Unit
Per Unit

Per Unit
Per Unit

,073
839

835
949

$

$

$
$

1

Commercial/lndustrial
3/4" inch
'l " inch
1 1l2" inch
2" inch
3" inch
4" inch
6" inch
B" inch
10" inch

$
$

$

$

$

$
$
$
$

1,073
1,073
2,149
3,438
6,446

10,744
21,487
34,379
49,419

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
FeeS

lnterest
Other Revenues

Toiel Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 6,822 $

$ 278,005 $

$ (51,330) $

$ 275,694
9,133

$ 114,800
14,996

56,832
15,655

39,835
13,343

58,694
10,092

$ $ $

$ 284,827

' 
129,796 g 72,487 g 53,178 $ 68,785

g 6,457 $ $ 79,982
327 1,002 160365 949

$$

327

129,469

226,675

$ 1,002

$ 71,485

$ 356,144

949

52,229

427,628

$ 81J42

$ (12,357)

$

$

$ $ 479,857

$ 226,675 $ 356.144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857 $ 467.500

$$ 226,675 $ 356.144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857 467.500

34
Page 700

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Sewer Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Engineering and Gen Government overhead
Sewer Evaluation & Capacity Plan

$ 93,222

Project
Amount

FY 2020-21 Proiects Expended

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 226,675 $ 129,796 $ 72,487

- 226,348 129,796

- 225,345

$$ 53,1 78

72,487
ato 704

224,396

68,785

53,178

72,487

129,796

143,254

$ 226,675 $ 356,144 $ 427,628 $ 479,857 $ 467,500

$ 1,160

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

100%
87%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,160 $
92 062 79 982 12,080

$ 81 ,142 $ 12,080

Non-lmpact

Engineering and Gen Government overhead $

FY 2019-20 Projects

-Engineerinsandc"ncoGililEliGiE"J-

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 949

Fee
Expenditures

$949

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 1,002

1O0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

100% $ 1,002 $

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Engineering and Gen Government overhead $

FY 201 7-1 8 Projects

-stemEvailffiEngineering and Gen Government overhead

327

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 6,457

365
S G,8n

100% $ szt $

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
'lo0%

100o/o 365

g 6,457 $

$ 6,822 $

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government and Engineering support.

35

Page 701

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Fund 536

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom

south area facilities plan. The fee is intended to augment existing City fees and ther'eby provide the necessary means for financing

the construction of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Facilities Augmentation Gritical

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION CRITICAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to development of property in this area please contaci the City

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Descriotion FY 2017118 FY 2018119 FY 2019t20 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

$ (1e7,615) $

$ 242.380 $

$ 44,766 $ 41,867 $ 40.571

$ 44.766 $ 41,867 $ 40,571

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method

$ $
2,306 320 691

$ 2,306 $ 320 $ 6e1 f fiB 

-s 

s35

$$$
335438

$ 199,284
637-E-199,9Z 3,219 $

(2,8ee) $

44,766 $

$
144-S- 
144

$ 294

$ 40,571

_s_tq!g1-

_$___40,991_

$-
59-F- 
5e

$ 276

$ 40,864

_$ 41,1U

_$___41,141

't,987

(1,296)

41,867

$ 2,629
590 1,987

$

$

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Availabls Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Assignad Fund Balance

Total Available Revenue

$ 2,306

3,616

3,490

5,718

4,801

24,835

320

2,306

3,616

3,490

5,718

?6,417

691

320

2,306

3,616

3,490

30,1 48

$ $ $ 438

691

320

2,306

3,616

33,493

$ 40,864

$ 33s

$ 144

69'l

320

2,306

37,345

$ 41,141$ 44,766 $ 4r,867 $ 40,571

$ 44,766 $ 41,867 $ 40,s7',1 $ 40,864 $ 41 ,141

Notes:
'l

The Facilities Augmentation Crititcal Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by AB1600. Per the 2023 capital lmprovement Plan funds are

reserued for the Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrade prcject. The Facilities Augmentation Critical Fund will be utilized for $43,159 for this project'

36
Page 702

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Facilities Augmentation Gritical
Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$5e

$ 59

Non-lmpact

Expenditure

$2

-$-

Fee

s

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 59

$ 59

Project
Amount

Expended

1O0o/o

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditure
sFY 2020-21 Proiects

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Proiects

$ 144

ffi

Project
Amount

Expended

100o/o $ $2

-$-
144

$ 144

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 1,987

$ 1,987

Non-lmpact

Expenditure

$_2

-5-

Fee

s

General Government overhead (inierfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 1,987 100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,987

Project
Amount

Expended
lmpact Fee

Expenditures
$ 2,629

590

$ 3,219

Non-lmpact

Expenditure
s

$ 23,191

$ 23,191

Fee

Water Treatment Plant Lime System Upgrades

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 25,820

590

10%

100% 2

$ 26,410

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditure
s

Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Siation Reuse

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 1,643,646

637

$ 1,644,283

Notes:
2 

Interfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

12o/o

1O0lo

$ 199,284

637

$ 1e9,921 $ 1,444,362

$ 1,444,362

37
Page 703

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Facilities Augmentation General

Fund 537

Section 3.40.010 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a facilities augmentation fee for the Folsom south
area facilities plan. The fee is intended to augment existing City fees and thereby provide the necessary means for financing the construction
of the facilities identified in the Folsom south area facilities plan.

FACILITIES AUGMENTATION GENERAL FEE SCHEDULE

This fee is based on location and lot size. For fees related to development of property in this area please contact the City

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Availabls

Asslgned Fund Balance

Total Available Revenue

$ $ $ $ $
747

7
857

$$

5,670 5,170 932
$ 5,670 $ 5,170 $ 932 $ 864 $ 747

42,774
1,238 139 112 4,970

$ 323,432 $ 17,023 $
426

$ 44.012

$ (38,342)

$ 324,571

$ (31e,402)

$ 18,135

$ (17,203)

$

$

$

$

4,970

(4,106)

426

321

$ 468,241 $ 429,898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

$ 89,509$ 429.898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188

$ 429,898 $ 110,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188 $ 89,509

Five Year Revenue Test Using First In First Out Method
$ 5,670

7,024

6,233

6,059

5,299

399,613

5,170

5,670

7,O24

6,233

6,059

80,341

932

5,170

5,670

7,024

6,059

68,439

864

932

5,'170

5,670

7,024

69,528

747

864

932

5,170

5,670

76,126

$ $ $

$ 429,898 $ 1 10,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,188 $ 89,509

89,509$ 429,898 $ 1 10,497 $ 93,294 $ 89,1 88 $

Notes:
I The Facilities Augmentatlon General Fund reports funds being held beyond the five-years as described by A81600. The Storm Drain Ponds projecl is in process. Per the 2023

Capital lmprovement Plan $1 06,505 of funds are reserued for the Storm Drain Ponds project.

38
Page 704

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Facilities Augmentation General
Capital lmprovement Proiects

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 426

Non-lmpact
Fee

ExpendituresExpended

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2O2O-21 Proiects

$

426

Project
Amount

Expended

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

426 $

426 $

$ $

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects
Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 4,970

$ 4,970

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 4,970

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-1000k

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
s8%

100%

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 4,e70 $

Project
Amount

Expended
$ 29,376

1,112

$ 30,488

Project
Amount

Expended

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 17,023

1,112

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 12,353

2

$ 18,135 $ 12,353

FY 2018-19 Projects
lmpaci Fee

Expenditures
$ 323,432

1,139

$ 324,571

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 7,164Storm Drain Ponds

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2017-18 Proiects

$ 330,596

139

$ 331,735

Project
Amount

Expended

98o/o

100v.

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 7,164

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 42,774

,t,238

$ 44,012 $ 1,600,872

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$ 1,600,872Water Treatment Plant Grading and Pump Station Reuse

General Government Overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 1,643,646

1,238

3%

1O0o/o

$ 1,644,884

Notes:
2 

lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

39
Page 705

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fund

Fund 541

Section 3.20.045 of the Folsom Municipal Code established a capital improvement service charge which shall be collected prior to the issuance
of building permits for all resideniial development and upon application to the finance department for all commercial/industrial development as

established by resolution of the City Council. The purpose of the fee is to establish a fund for financing equipment and capital improvement
purchases required to maintain municipal services at adequate levels as service requirements increase with the construction of
commercial/industrial developments and dwelling units.

SOLID WASTE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Multi-Family Residential
Mobile Dwellings

Commercial/lndustrial
2 yard dumpster
3 yard dumpster
4 yard dumpster
6 yard dumpster
10 yard roll-off
20 yard roll-off
30 yard roll-off
40 yard roll-off

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$

363
166
166

$
$

$

$
$
$
$
$

4,064
4,092
4,149
4,319

13,304
'13,661

14,211
14,519

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017t18 FY 2018t15 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

$ $ $219,702
2,463

122,216
6,813

52,732
8,435

74,494
3,749

$ $ 96,108

$ 222,164 $ 129,029 $ 61,167 $ 78,243 $ g6,tos

$$$
2,278

18,250
2,727

25,0'10
392

27,128
345,234

14,365
1,416

$$

$

$

$

2,278

219,886

21,891

20,977

108,052

241,777

25,402

35,765

349,830

372,362

(294,11e)

385,595

15,781

80,327

91,476

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$ 241.777 $ 349,830 $ 385,595 $ 91,476 $ '171,803

$ 241,777 $ 349,830 $ 385,595 $ e1,476 $ 171.803

40
Page 706

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fund

Available Revenue Cunent Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yrs and beyond)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior FiscalYears

Total Revenue Available

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 222,344 $ 125,029 $ 61,1671e'613 220'801 

133:333

$$ 78,243

13,233

96,1 08

75,695

$ 241,957 $ 349,830 $ 385,595 $ 9't,476 $ 171,803

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

Project Amount
Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact

Expenditures
Fee

Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 14,365

1,416

100o/o

100o/o

14,365

1,416
$ $

$ 15,781 $ 15,781 $

FY 2020-21 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
Garbage Containers
Solid Waste Capital Equipment (interfund transfer)

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 27,128
344,127

107

$ 372,362

Project Amount
Expended

100%

1jOYo

100%

27,128
344,127

$ $

107

FY 2019-20 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 372,362 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Proiects

$ 25,010

392
$ 25,402

Project Amount
Expended

100o/o

100%
$ $25,010

392

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 25,402 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$ 18,250 $

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Garbage Containers
General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 18,250

2,727
$ 20,977

1O0o/o

100% 2 727

FY 2017-18 Projects
Project Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 20,e77 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 2,278 1Oo% $ 2,278 $

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government supporl.

- lnterfund transfers are used lo reimburse the Solid Waste Operating Fund. The Solid Waste Operating Fund captured the expenses
2 

for lhe purchase.

41
Page 707

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lmprovements

Fund 443

Section 3.12O.O4O of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Highway 50 lmprovement Fee. The

purpose of this fee is to fund certain improvements to Highway 50 that serve the Folsom plan area such as, for example: Highway 50

segments from Sunrise to Hazel; Hazel to Folsom Boulevard, Folsom Boulevard to Scott Road, and the Hazel interchange

modifications, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study, and including but not limited to those improvements identified in the

memorandum of understanding dated December 17 , 2014, entered into between the City and Caltrans.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 IMPROVEMENT FEE

Use CFtegory
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$

$

1,398
1,272
1,145
1 ,018

954
890
1.71

1.43
2.03
2.03
1.48

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 20171't8 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 23,256
26-{ 2t282

$ 313,824
(29,124)

$ 379,114
'11,965

$ 1,031,102
49,022

$ 1,273,362
24 086

$ 284,700 $ 391,078 $ 1,080,124 $ 1,257,448

$ $$ $ $
38

$

$ 23,282

$

$

$ 284,700

$ 23,282

$ 307,982

$38

$ 391,040

$ 307,982

$

$ 1,080,124

$ 699,022

$

$ 1,297,448

$ t,779.146

$ 23,282

$ 23,282

$ 699,022 $ 1,779,146 $

$ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1,779,146 $

42
Page 708

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Highway 50 lmprovements

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year $ 23,282 $ 284,700 $ 391,078

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds) - 23,282 284,700

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds) 23,244

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (5-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

$$ 1,080,124

391,078

284,700

23,244

1,297,448

1,080,1 24

39'1,078

284,700

23,244

$ 23,282 $ 307,982 $ 699,022 $ 1,779,146 $ 3,076,594

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$$-0To

0o/o

0%

$

Project
Amount

Expended

$

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$-

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-
FY 2020-2'l Proiects

0%
0o/o

0o/o

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-

$

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $

FY 2018.19
$

38 100%
0o/o

o%

$ 38

$ 38$

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures
$

Expenditures
$-

$ $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$-$

$ 38

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
0%
0%
0Yo

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 2017-'lS Projects
$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0%
0%
0%

$$ $

43
Page 709

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Folsom Plan Area Highway 50 lnterchange Fee

Fund 444

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Highway 50 lnterchange Fee. The
purpose of this fee is to fund a fair share contribution toward certain Highway 50 interchanges that serve the Folsom plan area, such

as,'for example, the Empire Ranch Road interchange, the Oak Avenue parkway interchange, the ScotVBidwell interchange

modifications, the Prairie City Road interchange modifications, and the Rowberry Drive Overcrossing, as described in the PFFP and

the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA HIGHWAY 50 INTERCHANGE FEE

Use Gategory Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019120

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$

$
$
$
$

$

$
$
$
$
$

2,845
2,586
2,326
2,067
1,940
'1,811

3.49
2.93
4.11
4.11
3.0'l

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Description FY 2020121

$ 2,096,084
74,372

$ 2,170,456

FY 2021122

$ 2,589,411
(150,415)

$ 2,438,9S6

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures

AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Available Fund Balance

$ 47,286
52

$ 640,268 $
(12,566)

768,668
25,483

$ 47,338 $ 627,702 $ 794,151

$ $ $ $ $
77

$

$

$

47,338

$-
$ 627,702

$ 47,338

$77

$ 754,074

$ 675,041

$

$ 2,170,4s6

$ 1,469,115

$-

$ 2,438,996

$ 3,639,571

$ 47,338

$ 47,338

$ 675,041 $ 1,469,115 $ 3,639,571 $0,078.567

$ 675,041 $t 115 $3,639,571 $6,078,567

44
Page 710

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Highway 50 lnterchange

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount

Expended

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
47,338$627,703$794,151 $$ 2,170,456

794,15'l

627,703

47,261

2,438,996

2,170,456

794,151

627,703

47,261

$ 47,338 $ 675,041 $ 1,469,1 15 $ 3,639,s71 $ 6,078,567

FY 2021-22 Projects

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 1Yo

0o/o

0o/"

$ $

$ $

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$-$-

$

FY 2020-21 Proiects

Project
Amount

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesExpended

$

$

Project
Amount

Expended

$77

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

c_ $

Impact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

0o/o

0lo
0o/o

FY 2019-20 Proiects
General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 77$00%

0o/o

0o/o

$ 77 $ 77$

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
$$ 0%

0%
0o/o

$

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

FY 2017-'18 Projects
$

$

Noles:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0o/o

0o/o

0%

$ $

$$

45
Page 711

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Folsom Plan Area Transit lmpact

Fund 449

Section 3j2O04O of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Transit Fee. The purpose of this fee is to

fund public transit improvements in the Folsom plan area, including, but not limited to, improvements to the transit corridor, transit
parking, transit stops, and a share of the public transit vehicles, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREA TRANSIT FEE

[Jse Cateoorv
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Basis Fee Amount
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

1,444
1,313
1,182
1,051

984
920
1.76
1.48
2.09
2.09
'1.53

$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$

$
$
$

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 201e119 FY 2019t20 FY 2020121 FY 202'1122

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 24,012
27

$ 325,208
5,680

389,982
13,222

$ 1,064,446
15,331

$ 1,315,011
24,842

$

$ 24,039 $ 330,888 $ 403,204 $ 1,079,777 $ 1,339,853

$$$$

$

$
39

$

$

$

24,039 $

$se
$ 403,165

$ 354,927

$

$ 1,079,777

$ 758,092

$-

$ 1,339,853330,888

24,039$ $1,837,869

$ 24,039 $ 354.927 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869

$ 24,039 $ 354.927 $ 758,092 $ 1,837,869

$s, 177.722

$3, 177.722

46
Page 712

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Transit lmpact

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Total Revenue Available

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
24,0_39 330,888 $ 403,204

24,039 330,888

- 24,039

$ 1,079,777

403,204

330,888

24,000

1,339,853

1,079,777

403,204

330,888

24,000

$

$

$ 24,039 $ 354,927 $ 758,131 $ 1,837,869 $ 3,177,722

Result: Five Year Revenua lest met in accordance with Government Code 60001

Gapital lmprovement Projects
Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees Expenditures
$-

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures

$ $o%
0%
0o/o

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$-

$

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

FY 2020-2'l Projects
$ 0%

0%
0%

$$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$-
FY 2019-20 Proiects

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 39

$ 39

FY 2018-19 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

o0%
0o/o

0%

$ 39

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 3e$

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 0%
o%
o%

$ $

$ $ $

FY 2017-18 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ o%
o%
o%

$ $

$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund lransfers are used lo reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

$ $

47
Page 713

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



City of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Gompliance 2022
Folsom Plan Area Corporation Yard

Fund 459

Section 3120$40 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Corporation Yard Fee. The purpose of this fee is
to fund the cost of land for the corporation yard, and the fair share of the cost of facilities and construction of the city's new corporation yard

necessary to accommodate future growth in the city and the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

FOLSOM PLAN AREACORPORATION YARD FEE

Use Category Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

22,752

580,000

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Sq. Ft.

$ 307,980
5,359

$ 123,134
4,708

$ 661,297
2,760

$ 840,618
6,532

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,369
830
499
239
180
224

0.51
0.35
0.41
0.46
0.37

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017t18 FY2018/19 FY 2019120 FY 2020121 FY 2021122

Revenues
Fees
lnterest
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$

$ 602,752 $ 313,339 $ 127,842 $ 664,057 $ 847,150

$ 580,000 $ 1,995 $ 310,480
16,512

$ 281,332
588

$ 273,516
195

$ 580,000 $

$ 22,752 $

$$

$ 326,992 $

$ (1ee,150) $

$ 334,096 $

1,995

311,344

22,752

281,920

382,137

134,946

$ 273,711

$ 573,439

$ 517 083

$ 22,752 $ 334,096 $ 134,946 $ 517,083 $ r, 090.522

$ 22,752 $ 334,096 $ 134,946 $ 517,083 $ 1,090 .522

48
Page 714

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Corporation Yard

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Purchase Corp Yard Property

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2020-21 Projects

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2019-20 Projects
Purchase Corp Yard Property

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

FY 2018-19 Projects
Purchase Corp Yard Property

FY 2017-18 Projects

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
$ 22,752 $ 313,339 $ 't27 ,842

- 20,757 7,'104

$ 517,083 $ 847,150

243,372

Total RevenueAvailable $ 22'752

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Proiects

Project
Amount

Expended

$ 334,096 $ 1 34,946 $ sl 7,083 $ 1,0e0,522

$ 273,516

195

ffi

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
10oo/o

100o/o

Non-lmpact
lmpact Fee Fee

Expenditures Expenditures

$ 273,516 $

195

$ 273,711 $

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$ 281,332

588

100o/o

100%
$ 281,332

588
$

$ 281,920

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 281,920 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
ExpendituresExpenditures

$ 31o,48o $

16,512
$ 326,992 $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures
g 1,ee5 $ -

$ 310,480

16,512
$ 326,992

100o/o

10oo/o

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

$ 1,995

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 580,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

100yo

$ 580,000 IOQVo

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund ior providing General Government support.

49
Page 715

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2022
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Capital

Fund 472

Section 3.120.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Specific Plan fee. The fee is comprised of 7
subcomponents as follows:
1 . The general capital facilities component of the FPASP fee is to fund acquisition of general capital facilities, including, but not limited to:
furniture, fixtures and equipment for city facilities (including fire and police facilities); police and fire vehicles and uniformed personnel turnout
gear, public works vehicles and equipment, library materials, such as books, computers, and other materials; and other general capital needs
of the city in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.
2. The libra.ry component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a branch library in the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP
and the nexus study.
3. The municipal services center component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of a municipal services center in the Folsom plan

area that allows customers to make utility bill and license payments, register for recreation programs, obtain and file building planning and
permit applications and employment applications, and request code enforcement and other public services, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
4. The police component of the FPASP fee is to fund a police substation to serve the Folsom plan area, which is anticipated to include a public
information counter area, conference rooms, lockers and showers, interview rooms and supervisor offices, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
5. The fire component of the FPASP fee ls to fund two new fire stations to serve the Folsom plan area, as described in the PFFP and the
nexus study.
6. The parks component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of one hundred twenly-five acres of parkland in the Folsom plan area
comprised of two community parks, five neighborhood parks, and two local parks, as described in the PFFP and the nexus study.
7. The trails component of the FPASP fee is to fund the construction of approximately ihirty miles of trails in the Folsom plan area, which
include trails, a Class 1 bike path, Class ll bike lanes, intersection protection, trail bridges, under-crossings, and design costs, as described in
the PFFP and the nexus study.

Use Category

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN FEE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Commercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

$
$
$
$
$
$

$

$
$
$
$

14,008
14,008
10,041
10,041
10,041
10,041

3.06
2.28
2.60
2.83
2.40

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Description

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021t22

Revenues
Fees

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End of Year

$ 225,540
250

$ 3,053,840 $ 4,184,947
234,593

$ 10,215,972 $ 12,818,590
(717,e05)129 911

$ 225,790 $ 3,125,575 $ 4,419,540 $ 10,345,882 $ 12,100,685

192,000
366

$ 312,072 $

71 735

$$$ 766,238
10,842

$

$

$

225,790

$ 7,578,538 $ 17,612,348 $ 28,935,954

$

$ 3,125,575

$ 225,790

$ 192,366

$ 4,227,174

$ 3,35'1,364

$ 312,072

$ 10,033,810

$ 7,578,538

$ 777,080

$ 11,323,606

$ 17,612,348

$ 225,790 $ 3,351,364

50
Page 716

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Specific Plan Capital

Five Year Revenue Test Using First ln First Out Method
Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (S-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater than Five Prior Fiscal Years

Toial Revenue Available $

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Gapital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Proiects
Project Amount

Expended
FPA Neighborhood Park #3
Fire Station #34
Folsom Plan Area Trails
Russell Ranch Bike Trail

Folsom Specific Plan Area Capital Transfer

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)

$ 229,228
117,862

'11,647

280,000

127,500

10,842
$ 777,080

Project Amount
Expended

225,790 $ 3,125,575 $

225,790

4,4'19,540

3,125,575

33,423

1 0,34s,882

4,419,540

2,846,926

1 2,1 00,685

1 0,345,882

4,415,540

2,069,847

$$

225,790 $ 3,351,365 $ 7,578,538 $ 17,6',12,348 $ 28,935,954

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures
100%
1O0Vo

100vo
100ya

100%

100o/o

229,228
117,862

11,647
280,000

127,500

$ $

$
2

1
10 842

FY 2020-2'l Projects
Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 777,080 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 32,072

280,000

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$FPA Neighborhood Park #3

Russell Ranch Bike Trail

$ 32,072
280,000

$ 312,072

Project Amount
Expended

100%

100%

Percent Funded
by lmpact FeesFY 2019-20 Projects

$ 312,072 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

Equipment

General Government overhead (interfund transfer)
$ 192,000

366
$ 192,366

100%
1O0o/o

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

$ 192,000
366-S-_TW-66

$

$

Project Amount
Expended

lmpact Fee
Expenditures
$-

Non-lmpact

Expenditures

$

Fee

FY 2018-19 Projects
$ 00h

FY 2017-18 Projects
lmpact Fee

Expenditures

$ 0%$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund rransfers are used 1o reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.
2 

lnterfund transfers are used 1o reimburse the Public Works Fund. The Public Works Fund captured the expenses for the purchase.

Project Amount
Expended

Percent Funded
by lmpact Fees

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

51

Page 717

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Gity of Folsom
Developer lmpact Fee Compliance 2o22
Folsom Plan Area Solid Waste Capital

Fund 544

Section 3j20.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code establishes the provision for collection of a Solid Waste Fee. The purpose of this fee is

to fund solid waste vehicles and waste container purchases required to maintain the level of municipal solid waste service in the Folsom
plan area described in the PFFP and the nexus study.

Use Category

FOLSOM PLAN AREASOLID WASTE FEE

Basis Fee Amount
Single Family Residential
Single Family Residential High Density
Multi-Family Residential Low Density
Multi-Family Residential Medium Density
Multi-Family Residential High Density
Mixed Use - Residential
Mixed User - Commercial
Office Park
General Cbmmercial
Community Commercial
Regional Commercial

Stafernent of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
for Last Five Fiscal Years

Description FY 2017118 FY 2018/19 FY 2019t20 FY 2020t21 FY 2021122

Per Unit
Per ljnit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit
Per Unit

532
532
353
353
353
353

0.40
0.40
0.40
0.40
0.40

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

Sq. Fi.
Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Sq. Ft.
Sq. Ft.

Revenues
Fees
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
AB 1600 Expenditures
AB 1600 Transfers Out

Revenues less Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balance, End ofYear

Available Fund Balance

$ 8,550 $ 115,876
2 024

$ 8,559 $ 117,900 $ 163,919 $ 387,976 $ 487,822

$ 34,905 $ 216,006
14

I
$ 158,853

5,067
$ 382,189

5,787
$ 480,558

7,264

$$ $

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

8,559 1 17,900

8,559

14

163,905

126,459

$ 34,905

$ 353,071

$ 290,365

$ 216,006

$ 271,817

$ 643,436

$ 8,559 $ 126,459 _$_2eo,gg9_ $ 643,436 $

$ 8.559 $ 126,459 $ 290,365 $ 643,436 $ 915,252

915.252

52
Page 718

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



FPA Solid Waste Capital

Available Revenue Current Year

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (2-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (3-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (4-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Prior Fiscal Year (s-yr Old Funds)

Available Revenue Greater lhan Five Prior Fiscal Years

Five Year Revenue Test Using First In First Out Method
8,559 117,900 $ 163,919

8,559 117,900

- 8,s46

$$ 387,976

163,919

91,541

487,822

387,976

39,454

8,559$126,459$290,365$643,436$915,252

Result: Five Year Revenue test met in accordance with Government Code 66001

Capital lmprovement Projects

FY 2021-22 Projects

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees
Garbage Containers
Equipment Purchases

FY 2020-21 Projects

$ 66,000
349,978

100o/o

43Yo

OYo

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
ExpendituresExpenditures

$ 66,006 $
150,000 199,978

$ 216,006 $ 199,978

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ 34,905

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 34,e05 $

lmpact Fee
Expenditures

$ta

Non-lmpact
Fee

Expenditures

$

$ 14$

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
ExpendituresExpenditures

$ $

$ $

lmpact Fee
Non-lmpact

Fee
Expenditures Expenditures

$$

$ 415,984

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

Garbage Containers

FY 2019-20 Projects

$ 34,905 100o/o

0%
0%

$ 34,905

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact Fees

General Government overhead (interfund transfer) $ 14

$ 14

Project
Amount

Expended

1 o0%
lYo
0%

FY 2018-19 Projects

Percent
Funded by

Impact Fees

$ 0%
0%
0%

$

Project
Amount

Expended

Percent
Funded by

lmpact FeesFY 2017-'i.8 Proiects
$

$

Notes:
1 

lnterfund transfers are used to reimburse the General Fund for providing General Government support.

0%
o%
0o/o

$ $

53
Page 719

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



This poge intenti,onally left blonk
to facilitote double- sided printtng .

F(}LSOT{
CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE AY NATURE

Page 720

12/13/2022 Item No.19.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 121t312022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10961 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit
Grant Applications to the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10961 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Grant Applications to the Sacramento

Area Council of Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) is the metropolitan planning

organization (MPO) for the greater Sacramento region, which is a six-county region including
Sacramento, Yolo, Sutter, Yuba, Placer, and El Dorado counties. SACOG is also the
transportation planning agency for the four-county sub-region of Sacramento, Yolo, Sutter,

and Yuba counties (El Dorado County and Placer County both have their own transportation
planning agencies).

As the transportation planning agency for Sacramento County, SACOG is charged with
receiving the region's transportation and air quality-related tax apportionments from the State

of California. This includes the following sources:

o State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)
o Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ)
o Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP)
o Active Transportation Program (ATP)

Page 721

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



SACOG allocates the State transportation funding on a 100 percent competitive basis,

requiring local agencies to apply for grant funds from one of two programs, the Regional
Program and the Community Design Program. The Regional Program is divided into two
categories : Transformative and Maintenance & Modernization.

The Transformative category focuses on major capital projects, generally in excess of $5

million total project cost, such as bridges, interchanges, and major roadway or transit projects.

Transformative category funding may be allocated over multiple funding rounds. The

Maintenance and Modernization (M&M) category covers almost all other types of projects,

such as minor capacity-enhancing projects, non-motorized transportation, technology, and on-
going maintenance.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 10405 Amending Financial Policies of the City of
Folsom regarding grant administration on April 14, 2020. Section D - Intergovernmental

Revenues, Paragraph A - Grant Applications states, 'oGrant application shall be the

responsibility of the department seeking the grant. Grant applications which require an

expenditure of funds by the City of less than or equal to the City Manager contract authority
amount may be approved by the City Manager prior to submittal to the grantor. All other grant

applications, including any requiring an ongoing commitment of resources or staff, shall be

reviewed and approved by the City Council prior to submittal. In circumstances where it is not
possible for the City Council to approve the grant application prior to submittal, the City
Manager may approve the application subject to the City Council ratification as soon as

practicable to do so.

Requests to the City Council or the City Manager for approval of a grant application shall
identiff anticipated long-term maintenance and/or renovation costs, required City matching

funds, and additional personnel that may be needed if the grant is awarded for a capital project.

With respect to grants for staffing, the source of funds for long-term staffing after the expiration
of the grant shall also be identified in the request for approval of the grant application.

All grant applications on behalf of the City shall be reviewed by the Finance Director before

submittal to the City Council or the grantor."

ANALYSIS

In the previous funding round (2020-21), staff submitted 10 grant applications to SACOG and

was awarded over $11 million in funding for four of the 10 projects;the2020-21 results are

summarized below:

o US5O/East Bidwell Improvement Project (Transformative): $4.6 million
o ITS Master Plan Implementation (M&M): $4.3 million
. US50/Empire Ranch Interchange (Transformative): $2.5 million (staff requested $10

million)

Page 722

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



. Natoma Street Drainage, Phase 2 (M&M): Not awarded

. Folsom-Placerville Rail Trail (M&M): Not awarded
o Oak Avenue Complete Streets (M&M): Not awarded
o Blue Ravine Road Pavement Rehab (M&M):Not awarded
o Folsom Boulevard Bicycle Overcrossing (M&M): Not awarded
o Central Business District Streetscape (CD): $100,000
o American River Canyon Road Diet (M&M): Not awarded

Staff from the Public Works and Parks & Recreation Departments collaborated to compile a
list of candidate projects for possible grant funds. Once the project list was frnalized, staff then

determined the relative priority of each project; this is a requirement of the SACOG grant

program guidelines and will help their selection committee in understanding the priorities of
any agency that submits multiple applications. In this case, staff listed the projects that were
previously submitted as higher priority than newly created projects, but this can be adjusted

prior to submitting the grant applications. The attached table (Table 1) describes the list of
projects identified by staff and the recommended priority ranking.

Grant applications are due on January 25,2023 (M&M category) and February 8,2023
(Transformative category). SACOG staff will review the applications and make funding
recommendations to their committees and Board by April 2023, with final implementation
expected in July 2023.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct financial impact associated with this action at this point. Should the City be

awarded grant funding for any of these projects, the City would be required to provide local
matching funds of approximately I I percent of the amount granted. Once any of the projects

are awarded grant funding staff will retum to Council to identiS the source of the match

required and accept the grant ifapproved.

ENVIRO AI, RE,VIFJ,W

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10961 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Grant Applications
to the Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round

2. Table 1: SACOG 2022-23 Funding Round, City of Folsom Applications

Page 723

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

Page 724

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10961

Page 725

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



RESOLUTION NO. 10961

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO SUBMIT GRANT APPLICATIONS TO
THE SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL OF GOYERNMENTS FOR TH82022.23

FUNDING ROUND

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) is the metropolitan
planning organization responsible for allocating State transportation funds; and

WHEREAS' SACOG has issued a call for applications for the 2022-23 transportation
funding round; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified ten projects that are candidates for State

transportation funds; and

WHEREAS, staff has evaluated the nine projects and has recommended a priority ranking

ofeach project relative to each other; and

WHEREAS, once the projects that are grant fi.rnded are identified, staff will retum to

Council for approval of the source of the required match funding; and

WHEREAS, the projects identified for grant funding are summarized in Table 1 attached

to the staff report for approval of this resolution:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes staff to submit grant applications to the Sacramento Area Council of Governments for
the 2022-23 funding round.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December 2022, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10961
Page I of I Page 726

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



Affachmerft2

SACOG 2022-23 Funding Round, City of
Folsom Applications

Page 727

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



Table 1: SACOG 2022-23 Funding Round - City of Folsom Grant Applications

Analyze potential roundabcut priority locations to determine cost and feasibility

Funding to rehabilitate/repair the existing paved multi-purpose trail system

Construct Class I trail in rail corridor parallel to E. Bidwell Street from north of Oak

Avenue Parkway to Iron Point Road

Between Folsom-Auburn Road and Baldwin Dam Road, widen to four lanes and construct

Class I (or IV) bike facility; intersection capacity improvements at Folsom-Auburn Road
andatBaldwin Dam Road
Asphalt Concrete Pavement resurfacing and ADA access improvements on Blue Ravine
Road between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway

Reduce American River Canyon Drive from four lanes to two lanes with buffered and

widened Class II bike lanes and roundabouts at key intersections along the corridor

Construct bicycle trail tunnel under East Bidwell Street at US-50 between future Dignity
Hospital site and future UC Davis Medical Center site

Planning, preliminary design and environmental clearance for re-alignment of Santa

Juanita Avenue at Placer County line

Construct new freeway interchange at Empire Ranch Road and US 50 (funding request

over multiple funding rcunds)

Realign, replace, and rehabilitate storm drain facilities on Natoma Street between Scott

Street and Riley Street and on Riley Street between Natoma Street and Mormon Street

Blue Ravine Pavement Rehab

American River Canyon Drive Road
Diet

East Bidwell Trail Undercrossing

Santa Juanita Avenue Curve

Roundabout Policy Planning Study

Trail Repair and Maintenance

US5O/Empire Ranch Interchange

Natoma Street Drainage Phase 2

Folsom Placerville Rail Trail

Oak Avenue Complete Streets

7

8

9

01

I

2

-t

4

5

6

Priority Pro.iect Title Project Descriptiorr

Page 728

12/13/2022 Item No.20.



i,, .l ,i l ,'.:' i + j| j
r. .j.1ttl.1i!. l. ;1ti:,i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council conduct the first reading of Ordinance
No. 1335 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom repealing and re-enacting Chapter 8.36 of the
Folsom Municipal Code concerning the Folsom Fire Code.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to complete a triennial update to the City of Folsom fire and
life safety regulations and adopt the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code, based on the
2021 edition of the International Fire Code, with local amendments, pursuant to state law.

Folsom Municipal Code (FMC) Chapter 8.36 Folsom Fire Code currently contains provisions
relative to building inspections and fire safety as written in the 2019 edition of the California
Fire Code, based on the 2018 edition of the International Fire Code, with local amendments.

On January 14,2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance Number 1297, andthe 2019 edition
of the California Fire Code. The 2022 edition of the California Fire Code has been published
by the California Building Standards Commission and is mandated for use statewide on
January 1,2023. It will be applicable for the next three years ending December 31,2025.

I

MEETING DATE: 12113t2022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1335 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 8.36 of the Folsom
Municipal Code Concerning the Folsom Fire Code (Introduction
and First Reading)

F'ROM: Fire Department

Page 729

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



POLICY / RULE

The California Building Standards Commission has amended and adoptedthe202l edition of
the International Fire Code as the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code. California Health
& Safety Code Section 18938(b) mandates that Building Standards Codes, including the
Califomia Fire Code, are applicable to all occupancies in the State of California. Government
Code Section50022.2 grants local agencies the authority to adopt codes by reference.

ANALYSIS

The purpose of this ordinance is to adopt a fire code for the City of Folsom as required by state

law. The State of California requires a triennial update to the statewide fire code and requires

all municipalities to complete the same review. By adoptingthe2022 edition of the Califomia
Fire Code, the City of Folsom will be compliant with state law and consistent with other cities
and counties throughout California by enforcing the latest available edition of the California
Fire Code.

Adoption of the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code provides the City of Folsom with the

ability to make certain local amendments to that code. Pursuant to Califomia Health and Safety

Code Sections 17958.5,17958.7, and 18941.5, the City of Folsom must supply findings of fact
that support the determination that amendments to building standards are necessary because of
local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. The following are the findings of fact:

I. CLIMATIC

(a.) Climate has one of the greatest impacts to fire behavior and other major
emergency events, because it cannot be controlled. Average yearly rainfall for
Folsom is approximately 18 inches and typically occurs from October to April.
Low-level fog is present throughout the winter months and frequently causes

visibility to be reduced. Fog, in conjunction with cold temperatures, may also

cause freezingand slick roadways. These weather-related conditions may cause

delays for emergency responders.

(b.) Summers are arid and warm and there is generally no measurable precipitation.
Temperatures for this dry period range from 70 to lI2 degrees Fahrenheit and

are frequently accompanied by light to gusty winds. The relative humidity
during summer months ranges from 2 to 30 percent, which is arid. The City
contains thousands of acres of open space, which, in conjunction with the dry
and windy conditions, create hazardous situations culminating in grass and

brush fires. Wind-driven fires have led to serious consequences in similar areas

of the state.

(c.) The Sacramento region has extreme variations in weather patterns, too.
Summers are arid and warm, winters are cool to freezing, and fall and spring

2 Page 730

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



can bring any combination of weather patterns together. It is this cyclical

uncertainty that allows weather events such as rapid melting of the snowpack,

which causes flooding in the low-lying valley areas of Sacramento County. The

doubling of average rainfall called an "El Nino" event has occurred from time

to time and causes the grass to mature and grow in excess of six feet high before

it dries out.

Climate is one of the greatest impacts to fire behavior and other major

emergency events because it cannot be controlled. The lower humidity causing

the drying of wildland fuels in the summer months allows for a higher ignition
probability.

2. GEOLOGICAL

(d.)

(a.)

(b.)

(a.)

The City is susceptible to seismichazatds resulting from movement along any

one of several known faults in Northern California. The most serious direct

earthquake hazardthreat is from the damage or collapse of buildings and other

structures due to ground movement. In addition to damage caused by

earthquakes, there is the possibility of earthquake-induced fires starting because

of damage to gas lines, power lines, or heat producing appliances and the

unavailability of water for fire control due to broken water mains.

In addition, unstable slopes have been identified in the City, which present a

significant potential for landslides. In the event of a major earthquake or

landslide, some areas of the City may not be accessible to emergency equipment

and, if bridges or roads are damaged, the Crty may be isolated from outside

assistance.

3. TOPOGRAPHICAL:

Several topographical features bisect the City, including the American River,

Lake Natoma, and Folsom Lake, as well as creeks, natural parkways, open

space, bridges, and railroad tracks. Traffic has to be channeled around several

of these topographical features and limitations, which create traffic congestion

and delays in emergency response. These features are located between the fire
stations located within the City of Folsom.

(b.) The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health, better known as

CallOSHA, requires two firefighters to be located outside when two or more

firefighters are inside of a burning structure. This is known as the "two in-two
out" rule. It is imperative to minimizethe impact of delays affecting the timely
response of the firefighters.

(c.) Increasingly heavy traffic congestion on the City's major streets acts as a barrier

to timely response for fire and emergency vehicles. Several roadways are

a
J Page 731

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



expected to have an increased traffic flow as the City continues to increase in
population.

(d.) Preservation of wetland areas, natural parkways, riparian corridors along

rivers/streams, vernal pools, open spaces, and endangered species habitats have

all contributed to access problems as well as exemption from vegetation

abatement programs. These situations, though very environmentally important,

do increase the demands on the fire service due to the extreme fire hazard

created by fuel loading, limited access, and reduced setbacks'

(e.) More development is extending from the urban core into the grass-covered

sloped areas and brush/tree covered canyons such as the East Area and Folsom

Plan Area, where an increase in slope increases the rate of fire spread.

(f.) Large areas of rural open space and rolling hills with residential development

significantly increase response times. The rural geographical areas not yet

provided with adequate fire protection are subject to a higher degree of risk
without mitigating measures.

In summary, staff believes that the amendment and adoption of the 2022 edition of the

California Fire Code, based on the 2021lntemational Fire Code, with local amendments, is

necessary to provide a reasonable and prudent level of fire and life safety to residents,

businesses, and visitors of the City of Folsom'

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Adopting the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code, based on the 2021 lnternational Fire

Code, with local amendments, as required by state law, and should not cause any financial

impact.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(bX3) of the California

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Ordinance No. 1335 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-Enacting

Chapter 8.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code Conceming the Folsom Fire Code

(Introduction and First Reading)

2. Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Summary of Changes)

4 Page 732

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



3. Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Redlined Version)

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

5 Page 733

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Attachment 1

Ordinance No. 1335 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-Enacting Chapter

8.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning the Folsom Fire Code

Page 734

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



ORDINANCE NO. 1335

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF F'OLSOM
REPEALING AND RE.ENACTING CHAPTER 8.36 OF THE

FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE FOLSOM FIRE CODE

The City Council of the City of Folsom hereby does ordain as follows

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose ofthis ordinance is to repeal Chapter 8.36 ofthe Folsom Municipal Code (the "Code")

in its entirety and re-enact Chapter 8.36 pertaining to the Folsom Fire Code.

Chapter 8.36 pertaining to the Folsom Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and re-enacted to

adopt the2022 edition of the California Fire Code, based on the 2021 edition of the International

Fire Code, with local amendments, to provide for the safeguarding of life, property, and the

environment from hazardous conditions within the City of Folsom.

SECTION 2 FINDINGS

In connection with the amendments enacted by Section 8.36.080 relating to the 2022 edition of the

California Fire Code and its appendices, the Folsom City Council makes the following findings

pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 17958.5,17958.7 and 18941.5. Such changes are

ieasonably necessary because of local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. The

Folsom City Council hereby adopts, pursuant to Section 18941.5 of the California Health and

Safety Code, the following findings of fact:

A. Under this adopting ordinance, specific amendments to building standards are more

restrictive than those contained within the2022 edition of the Califomia Fire Code, based

on the 2021 edition of the Intemational Fire Code. These amendments have been

recognized by the City of Folsom to address the fire problems, hazards, concerns, and

future direction by which the City can establish and maintain an environment that will
afford an acceptable level of fire and life safety to all who live, work, or visit within its
boundaries.

The2022 edition of the California Fire Code and the 2021 edition of the International Fire

Code have been printed and published as a Code in book form within the meaning of
Section 50022.1of the Govemment code of the State of california.

The International Code Council promulgates the International Fire Code. The International

Code Council has conducted open code hearings that permit participation by National,

State, and local code officials; as well as industry representatives, consultants, and other

private parties with an interest in the Intemational Fire Code.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page I of27

B.

c

Page 735

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



D

E.

The International Fire Code, being the202l edition thereof, published by the International
Code Council is a nationally recognized compilation of proposed rules, regulations and
standards promulgated through an open and participatory process.

Under the provisions of Section 18941.5 of the Health and Safety Code, local amendments
are based on climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. The findings of fact
contained herein address each of these situations and present the local situation, which,
either singularly or in combination, cause amendments to be adopted.

1. CLIMATIC:

(a.) Climate has one of the greatest impacts to fire behavior and other major
emergency events because it cannot be controlled. Average yearly rainfall for
Folsom is approximately 18 inches and typically occurs from October to April.
Low-level fog is present throughout the winter months and frequently causes

visibility to be reduced. Fog, in conjunction with cold temperatures, may also
cause freezing and slick roadways. These weather-related conditions may cause

delays for emergency responders.

(b.) Summers are arid and warm and there is generally no measurable precipitation.
Temperatures for this dry period range from 70 to ll2 degrees Fahrenheit and
are frequently accompanied by light to gusty winds. The relative humidity
during summer months ranges ftom 2 to 30 percent, which is arid. The City
contains thousands of acres of open space, which, in conjunction with the dry
and windy conditions create hazardous situations culminating in grass and
brush fires. Wind-driven fires have led to serious consequences in similar areas

of the State.

(c.) The Sacramento region has extreme variations in weather pattems, too.
Summers are arid and warm, winters are cool to freezing, and fall and spring
can bring any combination of weather patterns together. It is this cyclical
uncertainty that allows weather events such as rapid melting of the snowpack,
which causes flooding inthe low-lying valley areas of Sacramento County. The
doubling of average rainfall called an "El Nino" event has occurred from time
to time and causes the grass to mature and grow in excess of six feet high before
it dries out.

(d.) Climate is one of the greatest impacts to fire behavior and other major
emergency events because it cannot be controlled. The drying out of wood and
wildland fuels in the summer months allows for easy ignition.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page2 of27 Page 736

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



2. GEOLOGICAL:

(a.) The City is susceptible to seismic hazards resulting from movement along any one

of several known faults inNorthern California. The most serious direct earthquake

hazardthreat is from the damage or collapse of buildings and other structures due

to ground movement. In addition to damage caused by earthquakes, there is the

possibility of earthquake-induced fires starting because of damage to gas lines,

power lines, or heat producing appliances and the unavailability of water for fire
control due to broken water mains.

(b.) In addition, unstable slopes have been identified in the City, which present a

significant potential for landslides. In the event of a major earthquake or landslide,

some areas of the City may not be accessible to emergency equipment and, if
bridges or roads are damaged, the City may be isolated from outside assistance.

3. TOPOGRAPHICAL:

(a.) Several topographical features bisect the City, including the American River, Lake

Natoma, and Folsom Lake, as well as creeks, natural parkways, open space,

bridges, and railroad tracks. Traffic has to be channeled around several of these

topographical features and limitations, which create traffic congestion and delays

emergency response. These features are located between the fire stations located

within the City of Folsom.

(b.) The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health, better known as

CaVOSHA, requires two firefighters to be located outside when two or more

firefighters are inside of a burning structure. This is known as the "two in-two out"
rule. It is imperative to minimizethe impact of delays affecting the timely response

of the firefighters.

(c.) Increasingly heavy traffic congestion on the City's major streets acts as a barrier

to timely response for fire and emergency vehicles. Several roadways are expected

to have an increased traffic flow as the City continues to increase in population.

Preservation of wetland areas, natural parkways, riparian corridors along

rivers/streams, vernal pools, open spaces, and endangered species habitats have all
contributed to access problems as well as exemption from vegetation abatement

programs. These situations, though very environmentally important, do increase

the demands on the fire service due to the extreme fire hazard created by fuel

loading, limited access, and reduced setbacks.

(d.)

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 3 of27

F

(e.) The rural geographical areas not yet provided with adequate fire protection are

subject to a higher degree of risk without mitigating measures.

The City's proximity to adjoining agencies reduces the amount of fire and medical resources

that are typically available within more densely populated areas. A seamless fire protection

system within Sacramento County and mutual-aid agreements with neighboring county fire

Page 737

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



I.

J

agencies allow for additional support but also reduces coverage of fire stations during initial
and multiple response incidents either in the City or other jurisdictions. Resources from both

El Dorado and Placer Counties are limited mainly by the size of the fire agencies, the

rural/urban development, and extended response times'

G. The City is located in the northeastern portion of Sacramento County and is bordered by
Folsom Lake, Placer, and El Dorado Counties. The City is made up of several distinct areas,

each unique in its own way. Some ofthese areas are gated communities designed for security,

not for expedient emergency response. Some of these access points are remote from main

emergency response routes, extending response times. A first alarmresidential structure fire
assignment draws three fire engines, two ladder trucks, a medic unit, and two battalion chiefs.

Commercial structure fires require one additional fire engine, therefore emptying all fire
stations in the City of Folsom. If the situation intensifies, through simultaneous requests for
service, long term commitments to emergencies, out-of-service emergency vehicles, etc.,

extended response times will occur.

H. The water supply in the City of Folsom makes extensive use of automatic fire sprinkler
systems feasible. The area is favored with sources of high-quality water from private and

municipal water companies.

The National Fire Protection Association statistics indicate that automatic fire sprinkler
systems have established an efficiency record of approximately 96% satisfactory

performance in the United States since 1925.

Based on the aforementioned local climatic, geological, or topographical, conditions, those

specific amendments as specified in the amendments to this ordinance for the 2022 California
Fire Code, are considered reasonable and necessary modifications to the requirements

established pursuant to Section 18941.5. While it is clearly understood that the adoption of
such amendments may not prevent the incidence of fire or other hazards, the implementation
of these various amendments to the code attempt to reduce the severity and potential loss of
life, property, and protection of the environment.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 4 of27 Page 738

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



K. California Health and Safety Code Section 17958.7 requires that modifications or changes

to building standards as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 18909 be expressly

marked and identified as to which each finding refers. Therefore, the City Council finds that

the following table provides code sections that have been modified, and the associated

conditions for modification due to local climatic, geological, and topographical reasons'

Section
Number

Local Climatic/
GeoloeicallTopographical Condition

105 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

106 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

108 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

109 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

110 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

rt2 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

202 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

304 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

311 Ia-d,2a-b,3a-f

317 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

321 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

32r la-d,2a-b,3a-f

503 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

504 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

901 la-d,Za-b,3a-f

903 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

907 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

9t2 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

1031 Ia-d,2a-b,3a-f

1204 |a-d,2a-b,3a-f

4905 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

4906 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

4907 la-d,2a-b,3a-f

Appendix C la-d,2a-b,3a-f

Appendix D la-d,2a-b,3a-f

In connection with the amendments enacted by Section 2 relating to the 2022 edition of the

California Fire Code, with local amendments, the City Council makes the following findings

pursuantto Healthand Safety Code Section 17958.5,17958.7, and 18941.5.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 5 of27

L

Page 739

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



1. The changes are reasonably necessary because of local climatic, geological, or
topographical conditions. The City Council hereby adopt pursuant to Section 18941.5 of
the California Health and Safety Code, the following findings of fact:

(a.) Under this adopting ordinance, specific amendments have been established which
are more restrictive than those adopted by the State of California (California
Building Standards Code) commonly referred to as Title 24 of the California Code

of Regulations.

(b.) These amendments to the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code have been

recognized by the City of Folsom to address the fire problems, hazards, concerns,

and future direction by which the City can establish and maintain an environment

which will afford a level of fire and life safety to all who live, work, or visit within
its boundaries.

(c.) The Findings of Fact are filed separately with the California Building Standards

Commission and City Clerk for the City of Folsom.

SECTION 3 ADOPTION OF THE LSOM FIRE CODE

Chapter 8.36 is repealed and re-enacted to the Municipal Code to read as follows:

Chapter 8.36
FOLSOM FIRE CODE

8.36.010 Short title.

This chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Fire Code."

8.36.020 California Fire Code-Adopted by reference.

There is hereby adopted by the city council of the City of Folsom for the purpose of prescribing

regulations governing the safeguarding of life, property, and the environment from fire and

explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling, and use of hazardous substances, materials

and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the occupancy of buildings and

premises, that certain code known as the 2022 edilion of the California Fire Code with those

amendments adopted by the California Building Standards Commission and based onthe202l
edition of the International Fire Code, in its entirety, and with all other supplements, enata, and

such portions as hereunder deleted, modified, or amended.

8.36.030 Enforcement.

The fire chief of the city is designated as the chief fire official of the city. The fire chief and

his/her designated representatives shall have all the powers of peace officers in enforcing this

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 6 of27 Page 740

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



chapter and may issue orders, notices, citations and make arrests for violations within the

incorporated area of the City of Folsom.

8.36.040 Definitions.

A. Whenever the words "fire code" are used in this chapter, it shall mean the 2022 edition of
the California Fire Code with those amendments adopted by the California Building
Standards Commission and based on the 2021 edition of the International Fire Code, in
its entirety, and with all other supplements, errata, and such portions as hereunder

deleted, modified, or amended.

B. Wherever the word "municipality" is used in the fire code, it shall mean the incorporated

areas in the City of Folsom.

C. Wherever the words oofire code official" are used in the fire code, they shall mean the fire
chief of the City of Folsom, or the designated representatives.

8.36.060 Penalties.

Any person who violates any of the provisions of the code adopted by Section 8.36.020, or fails

to comply therewith, or who violates or fails to comply with any order made hereunder, or who

builds in violation of any detailed statement of specifications or plans submitted and approved

hereunder, or any certificate or permit issued hereunder, and from which no appeal has been

taken, or who fails to comply with such an order as affrrmed or modified by the city council or

by a court of competent jurisdiction within the required time, may be severally for each and

every such violation and noncompliance respectively guilty of a misdemeanor, unless that

provision has been identified as an infraction, and punishable as provided in Section 8.36.080.

The imposition of one penalty for any violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to
continue; and all such persons shall be required to correct or remedy such violations or defects

within a reasonable time, and when not otherwise specified, each day that prohibited conditions

are maintained shall constitute a separate offense. The application of the above penalty shall not

be held to prevent the enforced removal of prohibited conditions.

8.36.070 Repeal of conflicting ordinances.

All former fire prevention ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the

provisions ofthis chapter or ofthe code adopted by this chapter are repealed.

8.36.080 Amendments, additions, deletions.

Chapter 1, being adopted in its entiretyo is amended as follows:

Section 101, General, is hereby amended to read as follows:

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Folsom Fire Code, hereinafter referred to as

"this code."

Ordinance No. 1335
PageT of27 Page 741

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Section 102, Applicabitity, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

l02.T.3lnternational codes. All references in this code to "Intemational" codes such as

Building, Residential, Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes shall mean the appropriate

code adopted by the City of Folsom andlor State of California'

Section 104, Duties and Powers of the Fire Code Official, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

104.8.2.1Contract Inspector. The fire code official or his/her.designated representatives may

require the owner or the person in possession or control of the building or premise to provide,

without charge to the fire department, a special inspector ("Contract Inspector"), when the

department has no technical expertise available to conduct the required inspections.

The Contract Inspector shall be a qualified person who shall demonstrate his/her competence to

the satisfaction of the fire code offrcial, for inspection of a particular type of construction,

operations, fire extinguishing or detection system, or process.

Duties and responsibilities of the Contract Inspector shall include but not be limited to the

following:

(a.) The Contract Inspector shall observe the work assigned for conformance with the

approved design drawings and specifications.

(b.)The Contract Inspector shall firnish inspection reports to the fire code official, building

code official, and other designated persons as required by the fire code official. All
discrepancies shall be brought to the immediate attention of the contractor for correction,

then if uncorrected, to the proper design authority, fire code official, and to the building

code official.
(c.) The Contract Inspector shall submit a final signed report stating whether the work

requiring inspection was, to the best of his/her knowledge, in conformance with the

approved plans and specifications and the applicable workmanship provision of this code

Section 105, Permits, is hereby amended to read:

105.5.29 LP-gas. An operational permit is required for the storage and use of LP-gas.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. A permit is not required for outdoor containers with a total aggregate water capacity of
500-gallons (1893 L) water capacity or less serving a Group R-3 occupancy.

2. Operation of cargo tankers that transport LP-gas.

3. A permit is not required to install or maintain outdoor portable containers of less than

125-gallon (473.2 L) aggregate water capacity.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 8 of27 Page 742

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Section L05o Permits, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

105.5.55 Activities in hazardous fire areas. An operational permit is required to conduct

activities in hazardous fire areas when, in the opinion of the fire code official, it is necessary to

preserve the public health, safety, or welfare. Hazardous fire area shall mean land covered with
grass, grain, brush, or forest, whether privately or publicly owned which is so situated or is of
such inaccessible location that a fire originating upon such land would present an abnormally

difficult job of suppression or would result in great and unusual damage through fire or resulting

erosion.

105.5.56 Motion picture and other filming. An operational permit is required to conduct

activities related to the production of motion pictures, televisions, commercials, and similar
productions.

105.5.57 Christmas tree lots. An operational permit is required to operate a Christmas tree lot.

105.6.25 Fire apparatus access roads. A construction permit is required to construct, altet, or

remove a private fire apparatus access road or other emergency vehicle access road required by

Section 503.1 or Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.57.080. For purposes of this requirement,

altering shall include the installation of traffic calming systems such as stop signs, speed bumps,

humps, pillows, roundabouts, traffic circles, diverters, and other traffic delaying measures.

105.6.26 Roof top obstructions. A construction permit is required for the installation of a roof
top garden or a landscaped roof when constructed on a building's roof.

Section 107, Fees, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

107.7 Administrative costs. When a test or inspection is scheduled and the contractor fails to

perform to the satisfaction of the fire code official or their designee, the contractor will be liable

for all costs incurred by the Fire Department for that test or inspection and the fire code official
may submit a bill for said costs.

107.8 Fee schedule. Fees for plan reviews, services, and inspections conducted by the fire
department shall be charged as set forth in a resolution adopted and amended from time to time

by the city council. A copy of the fee schedule shall be placed on file with the city clerk. For

items where there is no specific fee established, the fire code official shall determine the

appropriate fee based upon consideration of the items listed in the fee schedule that most

resemble the work proposed and the expected staff time involved to perform the required plan

reviews, services, and inspections.

Section 1090 Maintenance, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

109.7 Occupant Count. The supervisor of each place of assembly shall have an effective system

to keep count of the number of occupants present in the assembly area. If at any time, the fire

Ordinance No. 1335
Page9 of27 Page 743

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



code official determines that an accurate count of occupants is not being maintained, the

occupancy shall be cleared until an accurate count can be made'

109.8 Fire Safety Officers. When in the opinion of the fire code official it is necessary for the

preservation oflife or property, due to the hazardous nature ofan event, production, operation or

function, the fire code official shall require the owner or lessee to employ or cause the

employment of one or more approved fire safety officers to be on duty at such place during the

hazardous activity.

Section 111, Means of Appeals, is hereby amended to read:

111.5 Appeals. Whenever the fire code official, or their designee, disapproves an application,

refuses to grant a permit applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of this Chapter or

the Fire Code do not apply or that the true intent and meaning have been misconstrued or

wrongly interpreted, the affected party shall follow the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.09 of
the Folsom Municipal Code.

Section 1120 Violations, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

112.4 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to

comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair, or do work

in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a

permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, may be guilty of a misdemeanor,

punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 or by imprisonment not exceeding six months, or

both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been

served shall be deemed a separate offense.

112.5 Citations. The Fire Chief, and his or her duly authorized representative, may issue

citations for infractions or misdemeanor violations of the Fire Code pursuant to Chapter 5C

(commencing with Section S53.5) of Title 3 of Part 2 of the Penal Code of the State of
California.

Section 11,3, Stop Work Order, is hereby amended to read:

113.4 tr'ailure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served

with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to remove a violation or

unsafe condition, is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be liable for a fine of not less than 500

dollars or more than 1000 dollars.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page l0 of27 Page 744

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Chapter 2, Section 202rDefinitions, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

ELECTRONIC MONITORING SYSTEM shall mean an approved method to electronically

detect and transmit to an approved alarm service provider's Type A (listed) Central Station,

information indicating that the automatic fire sprinkler system or electronic fire detection system

has been activated and shall have the ability to relay the alarm to the Sacramento Regional

Fire/EMS Communications Center in an approved manner.

FUEL MODIFICATION PLAN. A fuel modification plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans

that includes a plot plan showing fuel modification zones indicated with applicable assessment

notes, a detailed landscape plan, and an inigation plan. A fuel modification plan submitted for

approval shall be prepared by a state licensed landscape architect, state licensed landscape

contractor, a landscape designer or an individual with expertise acceptable to the fire code

official.

QUALIFIED ATTENDANT shall mean an individualthat has been trained in the proper

methods of the handling, storage and dispensing of any material, product or substance regulated

by the code. These shall include, but not be limited to ammonia, chlorine, cryogenic fluids,

flammable and combustible liquids and gases. Said attendant must be able to demonstrate to the

satisfaction of the fire code official that he or she possesses adequate knowledge in the subject

area.

SINGLE-PREMISES is a contiguous property under one ownership

TRAINED CROWD MANAGER. Standby personnel, usually security or usher personnel, who

are trained in the proper procedure to exit people from a tent or other place of public assemblage

in an orderly and calm fashion in the event of an emergency.

WASTE OIL is a Class III-B waste liquid resulting from the use of Class III-B combustible

liquids such as waste motor oil, hydraulic oil, lubricating oil, brake fluids and transmission

fluids. It does not include the products classified as Class I, II or III-A liquids or corrosives, toxic

or highly toxic materials as defined in Chapter 2.

Chapter 3, Section 304, Combustible Waste Material, is hereby amended to read:

304.1.1.1 Waste material near ground mounted photovoltaic array. Accumulation of waste

material shall not be permitted underneath nor within 10 feet from a ground mounted

photovoltaic array.

304.1.2 Vegetation. Weeds, grass, vines, brush, branches, trees, or other growth that is capable

of being ignited and/or endangering property, shall be cut down and removed by the owner or

occupant of the property. Vegetation clearance requirements shall also be in accordance with

Chapter 49 of this code and Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.37.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 1 I of27 Page 745

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Chapter 3o Section 311, Vacant Premises, is hereby amended by deleting Exceptions lr2,
and 3 to Section 311.2.2 to read:

311.2.2 Fire protection. Fire alarm, sprinkler and standpipe systems shall be maintained in an

operable condition at all times.

Chapter 3o Section 3150 General Storage, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

315.4.3 Maximum pile size. The maximum single pile dimension for outside storage of
combustible materials, including pallets, shall be 25 feetx 100 feet or 2,500 square feet.

Chapter 3, Section 317, Rooftop Gardens and Landscaped Roofs, is hereby amended to

read:

317.LGeneral. Rooftop gardens and landscaped roofs shall be installed and maintained in

accordance with Sections 317.2 through 317.6.4 of the California Fire Code and Sections 1505.0

and 1507.16 of the California Building Code.

Chapter 3, Section 317, Rooftop Gardens and Landscaped Roofs, is hereby amended by

adding the following to read:

317.6 Access pathways and emergency ventilation. Access and spacing requirements shall be

provided in order to ensure firefighter access to the roof, provide access pathways to specific

areas of the roof, provide for venting cut out areas, and to provide emergency egress from the

roof. For the purpose of access pathways and emergency ventilation, designation of ridge, hip,

and valley does not apply to roofs with 2-in-12 or less pitch. All roof dimensions are measured to

centerlines.

317.6.1Alternative materials and methods. Alternative materials and methods per Section

104.9 for access pathways or venting cut outs may be requested for approval by the fire code

official due to:

l. Unique site-specific limitations.
2. Alternative access opportunities (as from adjoining roofs).

3. Ground level access to the roof area in question.

4. Other adequate venting cut out opportunities when approved by the fire code official.

5. Adequate venting cut out areas afforded by panel set back from other roof top equipment

(for example: shading or structural constraints may leave significant areas open for
ventilation near HVAC equipment).

6. Automatic ventilation device.

7. New technology, methods, or other innovations that ensure adequate fire department

access pathway s and ventilation opportunities.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 12 of27 Page 746

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



317 .6.2 Single and two dwelling unit residential buildings. Installation of roof gardens and

landscaped roofs on single and two dwelling unit residential buildings shall be in accordance

with Section 317 .6.2.1 through 3 17 .6.2.3.

317,6.2.1Hip roof design. Planted sections shall be located in a manner that provides a three

(3') foot wide clear access pathway from the eave to the ridge on each roof slope where the

planted sections are located. The access pathway shall be located at a structurally strong location

on the building such as a bearing wall.

317.6.2.2 Single ridge roof design. Planted sections shall be located in a manner that provides

two three (3') foot wide access pathways from the eave to the ridge on each roof slope where the

planted sections are located.

317.6.2.3 Hips and valleys. Planted sections shall be located no closer than one and one half
(1.5') feet to a hip or a valley if planted sections are to be placed on both sides of a hip or valley.

If the planted sections are to be located on only one side of a hip or valley that is of equal length,

then the planted sections may be placed directly adjacent to the hip or valley. Planted sections

shall not be located closer than three feet (3') below the ridge.

317.6.3 Commercial and industrial buildings and multi-residential buildings containing
three or more dwelling units required access pathways and venting cut outs. Access

pathways and venting cut outs for commercial and industrial buildings and multi-residential

buildings containing three or more dwelling units. Access pathways shall be provided in
accordance with Section 3 17 .6.3 .l through 3 17 .6.3 .6.

EXCEPTION:

1. If the fire code official determines that the roof configuration is similar to that found in
single and two dwelling unit residential buildings, the design requirements found in
section 317.6.2 may be utilized.

317.6.3.1Planted dimension. Planted sections shall be no greater than 150 feet by 150 feet in
distance in either axis.

317.6.3.2 Access pathways. Access pathways shall be established in the design of the roof
garden or landscaped roof installation. Access pathways shall meet the requirements of this

section.

317,6.3.2.1Access pathways perimeter of the roof. There shall be a minimum six (6') foot

wide clear perimeter around the edges of the roof.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 13 of27 Page 747

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



EXCEPTION:

I . If either axis of the building is 250 feet or less, there shall be a minimum four (4') feet

wide clear perimeter around the edges of the roof'

317.6.3.2.2 Access pathway location. The center line axis of access pathways shall run on

structural members or over the next closest structural member nearest to the center lines of the

roof.

317.6.3.2.3 Access pathway center line. The center line axis of the access pathways shall be

provided in both axis of the roof.

317.6.3.2.4 Access pathway alignment. Access pathways shall be in a straight line and provide

not less than four (4') feet clear to skylights, ventilation hatches or roof standpipes.

317.6.3.5 Access pathway around roof access hatches. Access pathways shall provide not less

than four (4') feet of clearance around roof access hatch with at least one not less than four feet

(4') clear pathway to parapet or roof edge.

317.6.3.6 Venting cut out areas. Venting cut outs between planted sections shall be either:

1. An access pathway eight (8') feet or greater in width.

2. An access pathway that is four (4') feet or greater in width and bordering on existing roof
skylights or ventilation hatches.

3. An access pathway that is four (4') feet or greater in width and bordering four (4') feet by

eight (8') feet venting cut outs every twenty (20') feet on alternating sides of the access

pathway.

317.6.4 Roof garden or landscaped roof maintenance plan. The fire code official is authorized

to require an approved maintenance plan for vegetation placed on roofs due to the size of the

garden or landscaping arca, or if materials and plants used may create afn.ehazard to the

building or exposures.

Chapter 3, General Requirements, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

SECTION 321-CLEARANCE OF WEEDS, BRUSH AND VEGETATIVE GROWTH

321.L Defensible space around structures. Any person owning, leasing, controlling, operating,

or maintaining any building or structure upon or adjoining any grass- or brush-covered land or

land covered with flammable growth, and any person owning, leasing, or controlling any land

adjacent to such structures, shall at all times:

1. Maintain around and adjacent to such building, structure, or apiary an effective fire
protection or firebreak made by removing and clearing away, for a distance of not less

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 14 of27 Page 748

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



than 30 feet on each side thereof, all flammable vegetation or other combustible growth.

This includes ornamental plants and trees known to be flammable, including but not

limited to: Acacia, Cedar, Cypress, Eucalyptus, Juniper, Pine, and Pampas Grass.

EXCEPTIONS:
A. Ornamental plants and trees that are individually planted, spaced, and maintained in

such a manner that they do not form a means of transmitting fire from native growth

to the structure.

B. Cultivated ground cover such as green grass, ivy, succulents, or similar plants

provided that they are maintained in a condition that does not form a means of
transmitting fire from native growth to the structure.

2. Maintain any tree adjacent to or overhanging any building or structure free of dead wood.

3. Maintain the roof of any building or structure free of leaves, needles, or other dead

vegetative growth.

321.2 Extra hazard. When the fire code official finds that because of extra hazardous

conditions, a firebreak of only 30 feet around such building or structure is not sufficient to

provide reasonable fire safety, the person owning, leasing, controlling, operating, or maintaining

the building or structure shall maintain around or adjacent to any building or structure an

additional fire protection or firebreak made by removing allbrush, flammable vegetation, or

combustible growth located from 30 to 100 feet from such building or structure, as may be

required by the fire code official. Grass and other vegetation located more than 30 feet from such

building or structure, and less than 18 inches in height above the ground, fr&Y be maintained

where necessary to stabilize the soil and prevent erosion.

321.3 Roadway clearance. The fire code official may require removal and clearance of all

flammable vegetation or other combustible growth for a minimum of 10 feet on each side of
every roadway, whether public or private. The fire code official may enter upon private property

to inspect, remove and clear vegetation and growth as required by this section and may charge

the responsible party for the cost of such action. This section shall not apply to single specimens

of trees, ornamental shrubbery, or cultivated ground cover such as green grass, ivy, succulents,

or similar plants used as ground cover, provided that they do not form a means of readily

transmitting fire. As used in this section, "roadway" means that portion of a highway, private

street, or paved trail improved, designed, or ordinarily used for vehicular travel. The minimum

clearance of 10 feet may be increased if the fire code official determines additional distance is

required to provide reasonable fire safety.

321.4 Fuel modification plan. A fuel modification plan shall be submitted and have preliminary

approval prior to the construction of a structure or any subdivision of land where the structure or

subdivision of land is located within areas designated as a Very High Hazard Severity Zone ot

where a structure is located within 30 feet of an open space area or natural area. The fuel

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 15 of27 Page 749

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



modification plan shall have final approval prior to the issuance of a permit for any new

construction, remodeling, modifi cation, or reconstruction.

321.5 Notice to correct. All notices to clear flammable vegetation and other combustible growth

shall be in writing and in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.37'

321.6 Abatement and penalties. The procedures for the abatement of hazatdous vegetation and

penalties thereof shall be in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8'37'

Chapter 5, Section 503, Fire Apparatus Access Roads, is hereby amended to read:

503.2.1 l)imensions. Fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access roads required by this section

and Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.57.080 shall have an unobstructed continuous width of
not less than27 feet (8230 mm) for all major I primary driveway aisles and an unobstructed

vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches (al 15 mm).

EXCEPTIONS

1. Vertical clearance may be reduced, provided such reduction does not impair access by

fire apparatus and approved signs are installed and maintained indicating the established

vertical clearance when approved.

2. Vertical clearances or widths shall be increased when, in the opinion of the chief, vertical

clearances or widths are not adequate to provide fire apparatus access.

Chapter 5, Section 5030 Fire Apparatus Access Roads, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

503.2.1.1 Group R-3 subdivisions. Fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access roads in

subdivisions comprised solely of Group R-3 occupancies shall have an unobstructed continuous

width of not less than 24 feet(7315 mm) and unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13

feet 6 inches (41l5 mm).

503.2.1.2 Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) roads. All other fire apparatus access roads,

temporary or pelmanent, when approved by the fire code offrcial, shall have an unobstructed width

of not less than 20 feet (6096 mm) and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet

6 inches (a115 mm).

503.2.4 Turning radius. The required turning radius of a fire apparatus access road shall have a

minimum dimension of 25 feet on the inside and 50 feet on the outside.

503.2.5.1 Length. The maximum length of any dead end shall not exceed 500 feet.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 16 of27 Page 750

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



503.2.7 Grade. The gradient for a fire apparatus access road shall not exceed 125%. Where said

fire apparatus access road directly fronts the exterior of a building two or more stories in height,

the gradient for a fire apparatus access road shall not exceed 9o%.

503.2.8 Angles of approach. The angle of approach and angle of departure of fire apparatus

access roads shall not exceed 12.5% or as approved by the fire code official.

503.2.9 Center median islands. Center median islands, such as those used for gate access, shall

provide for a drive lane width of not less than 13 feet 6 inches, or 12 feet for R-3 subdivisions, in
each direction.

503.5.3 Obstruction of gates and barricades. Gates or barricades required by Section 503 shall

not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of vehicles. A "FIRE DEPARTMENT

ACCESS - DO NOT BLOCK" sign shall be posted on the gate or barricade when required by

the fire code official.

503.6 Security gates. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall

be approved by the fire code official. The design and operation ofgates and barricades shall be in
accordance with the Sacramento County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard.

Chapter 5, Section 504, Access to Building Openings and Roofs, is hereby amended by
adding the following to read:

504.1.1 Required access walkways. Required access walkways shall have a minimum clear width
of 5 feet, and shall not have permanent items such as heating and air conditioning units within
them.

EXCEPTIONS:

l. Subdivisions with previous approval of less than 5-foot access walkways due to reduced

setback requirements.
2. City-provided solid waste and recycling containers will be allowed within the access

walkway. The containers shall not be placed under a required emergency escape or rescue

opening.

504.5 Building projections. Comices, parapets, eave openings, and similar projections from a

building shall be designed to support a 330-pound horizontal and vertical load to the leading

edge of the projection. This represents a 250-pound firefighter carrying 80 pounds of equipment

stepping off of a ladder placed against the projection onto the top of the projection.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page 17 of27 Page 751

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Chapter 5, Section 505, Premises Identification, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

505.3 Numbers for one- and two- family dwellings. Numbers for one- and two-family

dwellings shall be a minimum of 4 inches high. Numbers for all other buildings shall be no less

than 6 inches high. The fire code official may require an increase in building address or number

size when necessary due to building size or arrangement, or due to distance from the public way.

Chapter 5, Section 505, Premises ldentification, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

505.3.1 Multiple tenant buildings. Multiple tenant spaces serviced by vehicular access to the

rear through any driveway, alleyway, or parking lot shall have numbers or addresses placed prior

to occupancy on all new and existing buildings as to be plainly visible and legible from the rear

access way when deemed necessary by the fire code offrcial. Multiple tenant spac'es serviced by

rear access through a corridor, exit court, or exit yard shall have approved numbers or addresses

displayed on the rear of the tenant space, when deemed necessary by the fire code official.

Multiple tenant spaces that front on interior walkways or pedestrian malls shall have approved

numbers or addresses placed over the entrance door in all new and existing buildings. An

illuminated annunciator or directory board shall be required at every entrance where deemed

necessary by the fire code official.

505.3.2 Illumination. Address numbers shall be illuminated at night in all new buildings. Signs

shall be internally or externally illuminated. When the luminance or the face of a sign is from an

external source, it shall have an intensity of not less than 5.0 foot-candles. Internally illuminated

signs shall provide equivalent luminance.

Chapter 5, Section 507, Fire Protection Water Supplies, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

507.5.7 Fire hydrant markers. Fire hydrants and other firefighting water sources shall be

identified by the installation of blue raised reflective pavement markers or identified by other

approved means.

Chapter 5, Section 5090 Fire Protection and Utility Equipment Identification and Access, is

hereby amended by adding the following to read:

509.3 Fire control room. Fire sprinkler risers and fire alarm control panels shall be located

inside a room with minimum dimensions of five feet by seven feet. The room shall only be

accessible from the exterior and provided with a door with a clear width of not less than 32

inches and height of not less than 80 inches. A durable sign shall be affixed to the exterior of the

door with the words "FIRE CONTROL ROOM" in letters not less than 3 inches in height. A key

box complying with Section 506 shall be installed adjacent to the door.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 18 of27 Page 752

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



The room must be capable of maintaining a minimum temperature of 40 degrees Fahrenheit. A
clearance of 12 inches shall be provided from the fire sprinkler risers to any adjacent walls. This

room can be shared with other building utilities or fire protection equipment that is not

incompatible. An approved cabinet or container shall be provided to store record plans of the fire

sprinkler system and other fire protection equipment. This room shall not be used for any other

storage.

Chapter 6, Section 603, Fuel-Fired Appliances, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

603.6.6 Spark arrestors. Chimneys used with fireplaces or heating appliances in which solid or

liquid fuel is used shall be maintained with a spark arrester as required for incinerators by the

Mechanical Code.

Chapter 9o Section 901, General, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

901.6.4 Service contracts. A service contract shall be secured and maintained by the building

owner to provide for maintenance, inspection and testing of all fire protection systems. A copy of
the contract shall be provided to the fire code official prior to occupancy.

Chapter 9, Section 903, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

903.2.22 Required locations. An approved automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed in

all buildings 3,600 square feet in floor area or larger.

A. For the provisions of this section, two or more buildings, except one and two family

dwellings, existing entirely within the property lines of one parcel shall be considered a

single building when exterior wall protection is not provided and the aggregate floor area

exceeds 3,599 square feet (334.4S -') when applying California Building Code Section

s03.1.2

B. For the provisions of this section, fire barriers or fire walls shall not apply to eliminate

the installation of an automatic fire sprinkler system'

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Non-combustible, detached canopies open on four sides, not exceeding the basic

allowable square footage in CBC Table 503, used exclusively for the parking or storage

of private or pleasure vehicles and non-combustible storage (includes fuel islands).

903.2.23 Existing buildings.In existing buildings, except one and two family dwelling

buildings, where an automatic fire extinguishing system does not exist, and the floor area of the

building or structure is increased by more than fifty percent (50%) or 1,800 square feet,

whichever is less, or when alterations or repairs within any l2-month period exceed fifty percent

Ordinance No. 1335
Page 19 of27 Page 753

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



(50%) of the value of the existing building or structure, such building or structure shall be made

to conform to Section 903.2.20

903.3.5.3 Passive purge system. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard shall be installed as a loop system (multi-purpose system) and have all toilets connected

as points of passive purge. A standalone residential sprinkler system without points of passive

purge may be installed with approval of the fire code official.

903.3.5.4 Check valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard, with the passive purge requirements, shall have an approved check valve located

between the water meter and the shut-off valve. For standalone residential sprinkler systems, a

separate check valve shall be installed in accordance with design standards.

903.3.5.5 Shut-off valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard shall have a clearly marked shut-off valve located on the exterior of the structure before

the sprinkler system bifurcation.

903.3.5.6 Pressure reducing valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the

NFPA 13D standard, with the passive purge requirements, shall have a pressure reducing valve,

when required, located on the exterior of the structure, after the shut-off valve, and before the

sprinkler system bifircation. The pressure reducing valve shall be installed, with a maximum

static pressure of 80 psi, to prevent the over-pressurization of the fixtures.

903.3.5.7 Hose bib location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D standard,

with the passive purge requirements, shall have hose bib on the exterior of the structure. It shall

be located after the shut-off valve and after the pressure reducing valve, if provided. For

standalone residential sprinkler systems, the hose bib shall be located after the shut-off valve and

before the sprinkler system check valve.

903.4 Sprinkler system monitoring and alarms. Valves controlling the water supply for

automatic sprinkler systems, pumps, tanks, water levels and temperatures, critical air pressures,

and water-flow switches on all sprinkler systems shall be electrically supervised by a listed fire

alarm control unit.

903.4.2 Alarms. Approved audible and visual alarm notification devices shall be connected to

every automatic sprinkler system. Such sprinkler water-flow devices shall be activated by water

flow equivalent to the flow of a single sprinkler of the smallest orifice size installed in the

system. An audible and visual alarmnotification device shall be provided on the exterior of the

building in an approved location. An audible and visual alarm notification device shall be

provided in the interior of the building within each dwelling unit or tenant space and on each

level in approved locations.

903.5.1 Water Suppty Test Adjustment. A water supply test required for the design of a fire

protection system shall be adjusted to 90o/o to account for seasonal and daily pressure

Ordinance No. 1335

Page20 of27 Page 754

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



fluctuations. The adjustment percentage may be further reduced by the Fire Code Official for
areas expected to have a significant water supply demand in the future.

Chapter 9o Section 907, Fire Alarm and Detection Systemso is hereby amended by adding

the following to read:

907.2.30 AII buildings. An approved monitored fire alarm and detection system shall be

installed in all buildings not protected by an automatic sprinkler system with the exception of R-

3 occupancies. Buildings with a floor area less than 500 square feet may be exempt, as

determined by the fire code official, based on building construction material and features,

location, occupancy type, and distance to exposures.

907.2.30.1Fire alarm control panel location. The fire alarm control panel shall be located

inside of a room or closet with an exterior access door with a clear opening width of no less than

32 inches. This room may be shared with other building utilities. Durable signage shall be

provided on the exterior of the door stating "FIRE ALARM PANEL" in letters 3 inches in height

and contrasting to the background.

907.8.5 Obstruction of fire alarm equipment. Fire alarm initiating devices, alarm notification

appliances and annunciators shall not be concealed from view, obstructed, or impaired in any

manner.

907.9.1All existing buildings. In existing buildings, other than one or two-family dwellings,

where a monitored fire alarm and detection system does not exist and the floor area of the

building or structure is increased by more than fifty percent (50%) or 1,800 square feet,

whichever is less, or when alterations or repairs within any I2-month period exceed fifty percent

(50%) of the value of the existing building or structure, such building or structure shall be made

to conform to Section 907.2.30.

Chapter 9, Section 912, Fire Department Connections, is hereby amended by adding the
following to read:

912.2.3 Fire department connections. Fire department connections (FDC's) shall be located

within 50 feet of a fire hydrant, and no closer than 50 feet from the buildings they supply, or

other locations as approved by the fire code official.

Chapter 100 Section 1032, Maintenance of means of egress, is hereby amended by adding
the following to read:

1032.7.1Emergency escape and rescue opening access for 2 and 3 story buildings. Exterior

emergency escape and rescue openings on the second story shall have a minimum clear access of
not less than 5 feet wide X 5 feet deep below the opening(s) for the placement of a ground

ladder. Exterior emergency escape and rescue openings on the third story shall have a minimum

Ordinance No. 1335
Page2l of27 Page 755

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



clear access of not less than 5 feet wide X 7 Yzfeet deep below the opening(s) for the placement

ofa ground ladder.

EXCEPTION:

l. Subdivisions with previous approval of reduced set back requirements.

1032.7.2 Emergency escape and rescue access for buildings 4 stories or more. Exterior

emergency escape and rescue access for buildings 4 stories or more in height shall have an

approved access road no closer than 15 feet from the building and with a width of at least 2l feet

for the proper placement of a ladder truck.

Chapter 12, Section 1205, Solar Photovoltaic Power Systems, is hereby amended by adding

the following to read:

1205.6 Remote electrical disconnect. Photovoltaic circuits shall be equipped with a means for

remote electrical disconnect located downstream from the photovoltaic atray at the point where

the photovoltaic circuit first enters the structure, or at another approved location. The manual

control to operate the remote electrical disconnect shall be located within five feet of the

building's main electrical panel. The remote electrical disconnect shall be listed and meet the

requirements of the California Electrical Code.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Photovoltaic circuits contained in rigid or electrical metallic tubing running between the

array combiner box and the main electrical panel which are entirely exterior to the

building need not be equipped with a means of remote electrical disconnect other than the

disconnects intrinsic to the system.

2. Photovoltaic circuits contained in rigid or electrical metallic tubing running between the

array combiner box and the main electrical panel that run through the interior of the

building when installed a minimum of 18" below the roof assembly when measured

parallel to the surface of the roof.

3. The photovoltaic system inverter may be used for remote electrical disconnect when the

inverter is located immediately upstream of the roof penetration where the circuit enters

the structure

Chapter 33, Section 3311, Access for Firefighting, is hereby amended to read:

3311.1 Required access. Fire and emergency access roads shall be installed and maintained in

accordance with Section 503 and Folsom Municipal Code Section 17'57.080.

Ordinance No. 1335
Page22 of27 Page 756

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



EXCEPTION:

1. When approved, temporary fire and emergency vehicle access roads may be used until
permanent roads are installed. Temporary access roads shall be provided with an all-

weather road surfac e of 2 inches of asphalt concrete over 6 inches of 95Yo compacted

aggregate base from October lst through April 30th each year. Temporary access roads

may be provided with an all-weather road surface of 6 inches of 95o/o compacted

aggregate base from May lst through September 30th each year.

3311.3 Premise identification. Prior to and during construction, an approved address sign shall

be provided at each fire and emergency vehicle access road entry into the project.

Chapter 33, Section 3313, Water Supply for Fire Protection, is hereby amended to read:

3313.1 When required. Required fire hydrants shall be installed and accepted prior to

combustible materials arriving on site or vertical construction commencing.

Chapter 49, Section 4g}srWildfire Protection Building Construction, is hereby amended

by adding the following to read:

4905.3.1 Local agency establishment of limits. The establishment of limits for the Wildland

Urban Interface Fire Area's required construction methods shall be applied to land within the

City of Folsom designated as aLocal Agency Very-High Fire Hazard Severity Zone andlorto

buildings or structures that are located within 30 feet of an open space area or natural area.

Chapter 49, Section 4g06rVegetation Management, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

4906.2.1Local agency application. Buildings or structures located in the following areas shall

maintain the requiredhazardous vegetation and fuel management:

l. Land designated within the City of Folsom as a Local Agency Very-High Fire Hazard

Severity Zone.
2. Land within 30 feet of an open space area or natural area.

Chapter 49, Section 4907, Defensible Spaceo is hereby amended by adding the following to
read:

4907.1,.1Local agency defensible space. Buildings or structures located within 30 feet of an

open space area or natural area shall maintain defensible space as outlined in Government Code

51175 - 51189, Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.36, and Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.37.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page23 of27 Page 757

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Chapter 90, Section 9001-9010, Suppression and Control of Wildfire Risk Areas, is hereby

amended by adding the following to read:

9001 - Scope. The unrestricted use of grass-, grain-, brush- or forest-covered land in
wildfire risk areas is a potentialhazardto life and property from fire and resulting erosion.

Safeguards to prevent the occurrence offires and to provide adequate fire-protection
facilities to control the spread of fire that might be caused by recreational, residential,

commercial, industrial, or other activities shall be in accordance with Chapter 90.

9002 - Restricted Entry. The fire chief shall determine and publicly announce when

wildfire risk areas shall be closed to entry and when such areas shall again be opened to

entry. Entry on and occupation of wildfire risk areas, except public roadways, inhabited

areas or established trails and camp sites which have not been closed during such time
when the wildfire risk area is closed to entry, is prohibited.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Residents and owners of private property within wildfire risk areas and their invitees

and guests going to or being upon their lands.

2.Entry, in the course of duty, by peace or police officers, and other duly authorized

public officers, members of a fire department and members of the United States

Forest Service.

Section 90030 Trespassing on Posted Property.

9003.1 General. When the fire chief determines that a specific area within a wildfire risk
area presents an exceptional and continuing fire danger because ofthe density ofnatural
growth, difficulty of terrain, proximity to structures or accessibility to the public, such

areas shall be closed until changed conditions warrant termination of closure. Such areas

shall be posted as hereinafter provided.

9003.2 Signs. Approved signs prohibiting entry by unauthorized persons shall be placed on

every closed area.

9003.3 Trespassing. Entering and remaining within areas closed and posted is prohibited.

EXCEPTION:

1. Owners and occupiers of private or public property within closed and posted areas,

their guests or invitees, and local, state, and federal public officers and their
authorized agents acting in the course of duty.

9004 - Smoking. Lighting, igniting or otherwise setting fire to or smoking tobacco,

cigarettes, pipes, cigars, or other smoking materials in wildfire risk areas is prohibited.

EXCEPTION:

Ordinance No. 1335
Page24 of27 Page 758

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Places of habitation or within the boundaries of established smoking areas or campsites as

designated by the fire code official.

9005 - Spark Arrestors. Chimneys used in conjunction with fireplaces, barbecues,

incinerators, or heating appliances in which solid or liquid fuel is used, upon buildings,

structures or premises located within 200 feet (60 960 mm) of wildfire risk areas, shall be

provided with a spark arrester constructed with heavy wire mesh or other noncombustible

material with openings not to exceed ll2 inch(I2.1 mm).

9006 - Small Unmanned Aircraft. Small, unmanned aircraft liable to start or cause fire

shall not be possessed, flown, projected, or caused to be projected into or across wildfire
risk areas.

9007 - Open-Flame Devices. Welding torches, tar pots, decorative torches and other

devices, machines, or processes liable to start or cause fire shall not be operated or used in
or upon wildfire risk areas, except by permit from the fire chief.

Flame-employing devices, such as lanterns or kerosene road flares, shall not be operated or

used as a signal or marker in or upon wildfire risk areas.

EXCEPTION:

1. The proper use of fuses at the scenes of emergencies or as required by standard

railroad operating procedures.

9008 - Use of Fire Roads and Firebreaks. Motorcycles, motor scooters and motor

vehicles shall not be driven or parked upon, and trespassing is prohibited upon, fire roads

or firebreaks beyond the point where travel is restricted by a cable, gate, or sign, without
the permission of the property owners. Vehicles shall not be parked in a manner which

obstructs the entrance to a fire road or firebreak.

EXCEPTION:

L Public officers acting within their scope of duty.

9010 - Liability for Damage. The expenses of fighting fires which result from a violation
of this chapter shall be a charge against the person whose violation caused the fire.

Damages caused by such fires shall constitute a debt of such person and are collectable by

the fire chief in the same manner as in the case of an obligation under a contract, expressed

or implied.

Ordinance No. 1335

Page25 of27 Page 759

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Appendix B, Section 8105n Fire Flow Requirements for Buildings, is hereby amended to

read:

8105.2 Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings. The minimum fire-flow and flow

duration for buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings shall be as specified in Table

B10s.1.

EXCEPTION:

1. A reduction in required fire-flow of up to 50 percent, as approved, is allowed when the

building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance

with Section 903.3.1.1. The resulting fire-flow shall not be less than 1,500 gallons per

minute (567 S L/min) for the prescribed duration as specified in Table B I 05 . 1 .

Appendix C, Table ClD2.lrRequired Number and Spacing of X'ire Hydrants, is amended to

read:

TABLE CIO?.I
REQUIRED NUMBER AND SPACING OF FIRE HYDRANTS

Appendix Do Fire apparatus access roads, is amended by adding the following to read:

The minimum fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access road widths throughout this appendix

will be 27 feet (24 feet for subdivisions comprised solely of Group R-3 occupancies).

Ordinance No. 1335

Page26 of27

FIRE.FLOW
REQUIREMENT

MINIMUM
NUMBER OF
IIYDRANTS

AVERAGE SPACING
BETWEEN
IIYDRANIS a'b'c (feet)

MAXIMUM DISTANCE
FROM ANY POINT ON
STREET OR ROAD
F'RONTAGE TO
HYDRANTd

1,750 or less 1 300 150

1,751-2,250 2 300 150

2,251-3,250 J 300 150

3,251- 4,000 4 300 150

4,001 - 5,000 5 300 150

5,001 - 5,500 6 300 r50

5,501 - 6,000 6 250 150

6,001 - 7,000 7 2s0 150

7,001 or more 8 or more" 200 t20

Page 760

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



SECTION 4 SEVERABILITY

-

Ifany section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion ofthis ordinance is for any reason held to be

invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court or competent jurisdiction, such decision

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby

declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause,

phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections,

clauses, phrases, or portions be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 5 EF'F'ECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and adoption,

provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption in a

newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City Council

on December 13, 2022 andthe second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City Council

on January 10,2023.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member

the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council

of the City of Folsom, State of California, this tenth day of January 2023by the following vote, to

wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1335
Page27 of27 Page 761

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Attachment 2
Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Summary of Changes)

Page 762

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Attachment 2
Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Summary of Changes)

SECTTON 8.36.010

F'MC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

8.36.010 8.36.010 Short Title No changes

sEcTroN 8.36.020

f'MC Code Section Title Description of Change
20t9 2022

8.36.020 8.36.020 California Fire
Code- Adopted
by reference

Updated dates; clarified

SECTION 8.36.030

FMC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

8.36.030 8.36.030 Enforcement No changes

sEcrroN 8.36.040

FMC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

8.36.040 8.36.040 Definitions Updated dates

SECTION 8.36.060

FMC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

8.36.060 8.36.060 Penalties No changes

SECTION 8.36.070

FMC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

8.36.070 8.36.070 Repeal of
Conflicting
Ordinances

No changes

Attachment 2- Summary of Changes
Page 1 of4 Page 763

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



SECTION 8.36.080

FMC Code Section Title Description of Change
2019 2022

104 r04 General Updated verbiage to match 2022 CFCto
Duties and Powers of Fire Code Official

104.7.2.r 104.8.2.1 Contract
Inspector

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

t05.6.27 105.5.29 LP-gas Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

105.6.s2 105.5.ss Activities in
hazardous fire
AIEAS

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

105.6.s3 105.5.s6 Motion picture
and other filmine

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

r05.6.54 105.5.57 Christmas Tree
Lots

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

t05.7.26 10s.6.25 Fire apparatus
access roads

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

105.7.27 r05.6.26 Roof top
obstructions

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

106 107 Fees Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

106.6 t07.7 Administrative
costs

Updated code number

t06.7 107.8 Fee Schedule Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

108 109 Maintenance Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

108.7 r09.7 Occupant count Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

108.8 109.8 Fire safety
officers

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

109 111 Means of
Appeals

Updated code number and Title to match
2022 CFC

109.1 1 11.5 Appeals Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

110 r12 Violations Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

110.3.5 112.5 Citations Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

110.4 t12.4 Violation
penalties

Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

rt2 113 Stop work order Updated code number to match 2022 CFC

t12.4 r13.4 Failure to comply Updated code number to match 2022 CFC,

202 202 Definitions Updated verbiage to match 2022 CFC

Attachment 2- Summary of Changes

Page 2 of 4 Page 764

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



SECTION 8.36.080
FMC Code Section Title Description of Change

2019 2022
903.2.2r 903.2.22 Required

locations
Update code number to match 2022 CFC

903.2,20.1 903.2.23 Existing
Buildines

Update code number to match 2022 CFL

903.5.5 903.5.1 Water Supply
Test Adiustment

Update code number to match 2022 CFL

907.8.5.1 907.8.5 Obstructions of
fire alarm
equipment

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

1 03 1 1032 Section:
Maintenance of
means of egress

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

1 03 1 7 1 1032.7.1 Emergency
escape and rescue
openings access

for2and3 story
buildines

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

103t.7.2 1032.7.2 Emergency
escape and rescue
access for
buildings 4

stories or more

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

1204 t205 Solar
Photovoltaic
Power Systems

Section number to match 2022 CFC

1204.5.4 t205.6 Remote electrical
disconnect

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

3310 331 1 Access for
Firefiehtine

Section number to match 2022 CFC

33 10.1 331 1 .1 Required Access Update code number to match 2022 CFC

3310.3 331r.3 Premise
Identification

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

33t2 3313 Water Supply for
Fire Protection

Section number to match 2022 CFC

3312.1 3313,1 When required Update code number to match 2022 CFL

4906 4906 Vegetation
Management

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

4907.r.2 4907.r.r Local agency
defensible space

Update code number to match 2022 CFC

Attachment 2- Summary of Changes
Page 3 of4 Page 765

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Added.Chapter
90

Suppression and
control of
wildfire risk
areas

;1,,'r, , :i. \r ,,iI

',1 I ll i,)i
: l,l..r, . 1. r,'.i; I l,'l ,. t tlt-.,,'(,,l l; I

Attachment 2- Summary of Changes
Page 4 of 4 Page 766

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Attachment 3

Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Redlined Version)

Page 767

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Attachment 3
Folsom Fire Code 2022 Adoption (Redlined Version)

The proposed Folsom Fire Code includes the adoption of the 2022 edition of the California Fire

Code, based on the 202l lntemational Fire Code. In addition, it includes local amendments because

of local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. Changes are identified in red for deleted

items and in blue for added or modified items. Wording in black has no change from the previous

code adoption.

Chapter 8.36
FOLSOM FIRE CODE

Sections:

8.36.010 Short title.

8.36.020 California Fire CodrAdonted bv reference.

8.36.030 Enforcement.

8.36.040

8.36.060 Penalties.

8.36.070 Repeal of conflicting ordinances.

8.36.080 Amendments.additions.deletions.

8.36.010 Short title.

This chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Fire Code." (Ord. XXXX $ 3 (part), 2022)

8.36.020 California Fire Code-Adopted by reference.

There is hereby adepted by the eity eetxreil ef the €ib ef Felsem for the purpese ef preseribing

Fremtses; that ee"d

editien ef the Jnternatienal Fire eede, in its entirety; and rvith all ether supplements; errata; and

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page I of20

Page 768

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



There is hereby adopted by the city council of the City of Folsom for the purpose of prescribing

regulations governing the safeguarding of life, property, and the environment from fire and

explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling, and use of hazardous substances, materials

and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the occupancy of buildings and

premises, that certain code known as the 2022 edition of the California Fire Code with those

amendments adopted by the California Building Standards Commission and based on the 202I
edition of the International Fire Code, in its entirety, and with all other supplements, enata, and

such portions as hereunder deleted, modified, or amended.

8.36.030 Enforcement.

The fire chief of the city is designated as the chief fire official of the city. The fire chief and his/her

designated representatives shall have all the powers of peace officers in enforcing this chapter and

may issue orders, notices, citations and make arrests for violations within the incorporated area of
the City of Folsom. (Ord. XX)O( $ 3 (part), 2022)

8.36.040 Definitions.

A, Whenever *te wefds '

A. Whenever the words "fire code" are used in this chapter, it shall mean the2022 edition of the

California Fire Code with those amendments adopted by the California Building Standards

Commission and based on the 2021 edition of the International Fire Code, in its entirety, and with
all other supplements, effata, and such portions as hereunder deleted, modified, or amended.

B. Wherever the word "municipality" is used in the fire code, it shall mean the incorporated areas

in the City of Folsom.

C. Wherever the words "fire code official" are used in the fire code, they shall mean the fire
chief of the City of Folsom, or the designated representatives.

8.36.060 Penalties.

Any person who violates any of the provisions of the code adopted by Section 8.36.020, or fails to
comply therewith, or who violates or fails to comply with any order made hereunder, or who builds
in violation of any detailed statement of specifications or plans submitted and approved hereunder,

or any certificate or permit issued hereunder, and from which no appeal has been taken, or who
fails to comply with such an order as affirmed or modified by the city council or by a court of
competent jurisdiction within the required time, may be severally for each and every such violation
and noncompliance respectively guilty of a misdemeanor, unless that provision has been identified
as an infraction, and punishable as provided in Section 8.36.080. The imposition of one penalty

for any violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to continue; and all such persons shall

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page2 of20

Page 769

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



be required to correct or remedy such violations or defects within a reasonable time, and when not

otherwise specified, each day that prohibited conditions are maintained shall constitute a separate

offense. The application of the above penalty shall not be held to prevent the enforced removal of
prohibited conditions. (Ofi.1269 $ 3 (part), 2017)

8.36.070 Repeal of conflicting ordinances.

All former fire prevention ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the

provisions of this chapter or of the code adopted by this chapter are repealed. (Ord. 1269 5 3 (part),

2017)

8.36.080 Amendments, additionso deletions.

Chapter 1, being adopted in its entirety, is amended as follows:

Section 101, General, is hereby amended to read as follows:

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Folsom Fire Code, hereinafter referred to as

"this code."

Section 102, Applicability, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

l02.T.3lnternational codes. A11 references in this code to "Intemational" codes such as Building,

Residential, Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes shall mean the appropriate code adopted

by the City of Folsom and/or State of California.

+e+ead:

Section 104, Duties and Powers Of The Fire Code Official, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

+04J2;I 104.8.2.1 Contract Inspector. The fire code official or hisiher designated

representatives may require the owner or the person in possession or control of the building or

premise to provide, without charge to the fire department, a special inspector ("Contract

Inspector"), when the department has no technical expertise available to conduct the required

inspections.

The Contract Inspector shall be a qualified person who shall demonstrate hislher competence to

the satisfaction of the fire code offrcial, for inspection of a particular type of construction,

operations, fire extinguishing or detection system, or process.

Duties and responsibilities of the Contract Inspector shall include but not be limited to the

following:

(a) The Contract Inspector shall observe the work assigned for conformance with the approved

design drawings and specifi cations.

(b) The Contract Inspector phall furnish inspection reports to the fire code official, building code

official, and other designated persons as required by the fire code official. All discrepancies shall

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 3 of20

Page 770

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



be brought to the immediate attention of the contractor for correction, then if uncorrected, to the

proper design authority, fire code official, and to the building code official.

(c) The Contract Inspector shall submit aftnal signed report stating whether the work requiring

inspection was, to the best of hislher knowledge, in conformance with the approved plans and

specifications and the applicable workmanship provision of this code.

Section 105, Permits, is hereby amended to read:

lW 105.5.29 LP-gas. An operational permit is required for the storage and use of LP-gas.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. A permit is not required for outdoor containers with a total aggregate water capacity of 500-

gallons (1S93 L) water capacity or less serving a Group R-3 occupancy.

2. Operanon of cargo tankers that transport LP-gas.

3. A permit is not required to install or maintain outdoor portable containers of less than 125-

gallon (473.2L) aggregate water capacity.

Section 105, Permits, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

+0$$$J 105.5.55 Activities in hazardous fire areas. An operational permit is required to

conduct activities in hazardous fire areas when, in the opinion of the fire code official, it is
necessary to preserve the public health, safety, or welfare. Hazardous fire area shall mean land

covered with grass, grain, brush, or forest, whether privately or publicly owned which is so situated

or is of such inaccessible location that a fire originating upon such land would present an

abnormally difficult job of suppression or would result in great and unusual damage through fire

or resulting erosion.

+0$$$$ 105.5.56 Motion picture and other filming. An operational permit is required to

conduct activities related to the production of motion pictures, televisions, commercials, and

similar productions.

+e$$j"4105.5.57 Christmas tree lots. An operational permit is required to operate a Christmas

tree lot.

14#|/16105.6.25 Fire apparatus access roads. A construction permit is required to construct,

alter, or remove a private fire apparatus access road or other emergency vehicle access road

required by Section 503.1 or Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.57.080. For purposes of this

requirement, altering shall include the installation of traffic calming systems such as stop signs,

speed bumps, humps, pillows, roundabouts, traffic circles, diverters, and other traffic delaying

measures.

195,7,27 105.6.26 Roof top obstructions. A construction permit is required for the installation of
a roof top garden or a landscaped roof when constructed on a building's roof.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 4 of20

Page 771

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Section +QG I07, Fees, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

146"6 107.7 Administrative costs. When a test or inspection is scheduled and the contractor fails

to perform to the satisfaction of the fire code official or their designee, the contractor will be liable

for all costs incurred by the Fire Department for that test or inspection and the fire code official
may submit a bill for said costs.

146H- 107.8 Fee schedule. Fees for plan reviews, services, and inspections conducted by the fire
department shall be charged as set forth in a resolution adopted and amended from time to time by

the city council. A copy of the fee schedule shall be placed on file with the city clerk. For items

where there is no specific fee established, the fire code official shall determine the appropriate fee

based upon consideration of the items listed in the fee schedule that most resemble the work
proposed and the expected staff time involved to perform the required plan reviews, services, and

inspections.

Section +€&109, Maintenance, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

+08#109.7 Occupant Count. The supervisor of each place of assembly shall have an effective

system to keep count of the number of occupants present in the assembly area. If at any time, the

fire code official determines that an accurate count of occupants is not being maintained, the

occupancy shall be cleared until an accurate count can be made.

+e8$109.8 Fire Safety Officers. When in the opinion of the fire code official it is necessary for

the preservation of life or property, due to thehazardous nature of an event, production, operation

or function, the fire code official shall require the owner or lessee to employ or cause the

employment of one or more approved fire safety offtcers to be on duty at such place during the

hazardous activity.

Section +€+111, Bear*eflAppeals, Means of Appeals, is hereby amended to read:

+g++-111.5 Appeals. Whenever the fire code official, or their designee, disapproves an

application, refuses to grant a permit applied for, or wl.ren it is claimed that the provisions of this

Chapter or the Fire Code do not apply or that the true intent and meaning have been misconstrued

or wrongly interpreted, the affected party shall follow the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.09 of
the Folsom Municipal Code.

Section +14112, Violations, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

++04112.4 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to

comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair, or do work in
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a
permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, may be guilty of a misdemeanor,

punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 or by imprisonment not exceeding six months, or

both such fine and imprisonment. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been

served shall be deemed a separate offense.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 5 of20

Page 772

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



1+$J".$112.5 Citations. The Fire Chief, and his or her duly authorized representative, may issue

citations for infractions or misdemeanor violations of the Fire Code pursuant to Chapter 5C

(commencing with Section 353.5) of Title 3 of Part 2 of the Penal Code of the State of California.

Section +4!-ll3, Stop Work Order, is hereby amended to read:

++2J.113.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served

with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to remove a violation or unsafe

condition, is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be liable for a fine of not less than 500 dollars or

more than 1000 dollars.

Chapter 2, Section 202, GeneralDefinitions, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

ELECTRONIC MONITORING SYSTEM shall mean an approved method to electronically

detect and transmit to an approved alarm service provider's Type A (listed) Central Station,

information indicating that the automatic fire sprinkler system or electronic fire detection system

has been activated and shall have the ability to relay the alarm to the Sacramento Regional

Fire/EMS Communications Center in an approved manner'

FUEL MODIFICATION PLAN. A fuel modification plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans

that includes a plot plan showing fuel modification zones indicated with applicable assessment

notes, a detailed landscape plan, and an irrigation plan. A fuel modification plan submitted for

approval shall be prepared by a state licensed landscape architect, state licensed landscape

contractor, a landscape designer, or an individual with expertise acceptable to the fire code official.

QUALIFIED ATTENDANT shall mean an individual that has been trained in the proper methods

of the handling, storage and dispensing of any material, product or substance regulated by the code.

These shall include, but not be limited to ammonia, chlorine, cryogenic fluids, flammable and

combustible liquids and gases. Said attendant must be able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the

fire code official that he or she possesses adequate knowledge in the subject area.

SINGLE-PREMISES is a contiguous property under one ownership.

TRAINED CROWD MANAGER. Standby personnel, usually security or usher personnel, who

are trained in the proper procedure to exit people from a tent or other place of public assemblage

in an orderly and calm fashion in the event of an emergency.

WASTE OIL is a Class III-B waste liquid resulting from the use of Class III-B combustible liquids

such as waste motor oil, hydraulic oil, lubricating oil, brake fluids and transmission fluids. It does

not include the products classified as Class I, II or III-A liquids or corrosives, toxic or highly toxic

materials as defined in Ar+iel+S0Chapter 2.

Chapter 3, Section 304, Combustible Waste Material, is hereby amended to read:

304.1.1.1 Waste material near ground mounted photovoltaic array. Accumulation of waste

material shall not be permiued underneath nor within 10 feet from a ground mounted photovoltaic

array.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 6 of20

Page 773

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



304.l.2Vegetation. Weeds, grass, vines, brush, branches, trees, ot other growth that is capable of
being ignited and/or endangering property, shall be cut down and removed by the owner or

occupant of the property. Vegetation clearance requirements shall also be in accordance with

Chapter 49 of this code and Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.37.

Chapter 3, Section 311, Vacant Premises, is hereby amended by deleting Exceptions 1,2, and3 to

Section 3I1.2.2 to read:

311.2.2 Fire protection. Fire alarm, sprinkler and standpipe systems shall be maintained in an

operable condition at all times.

Chapter 3, Section 315, General Storage, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

315.4.3 Maximum pile size. The maximum single pile dimension for outside storage of
combustible materials, including pallets, shall be 25 feet X 100 feet or 2,500 square feet.

Chapter 3, Section 317, Rooftop Gardens and Landscaped Roofs, is hereby amended to read:

317.1 General. Rooftop gardens and landscaped roofs shall be installed and maintained in

accordance with Sections3l7.2 through 317.6.4 of the California Fire Code and Sections 1505.0

and 1507.16 of the California Building Code.

Chapter 3, Section 317, Rooftop Gardens and Landscaped Roofs, is hereby amended by adding

the following to read:

317.6 Access pathways and emergency ventilation. Access and spacing requirements shall be

provided in order to ensure firefighter access to the roof, provide access pathways to specific areas

of the roof, provide for venting cut out areas, and to provide emergency egress from the roof. For

the purpose of access pathways and emergency ventilation, designation of ridge, hip, and valley

does not apply to roofs with 2-in-12 or less pitch. All roof dimensions are measured to centerlines.

3lT.$.lAlternative materials and methods. Alternative materials and methods per Section 104.9

for access pathways or venting cut outs may be requested for approval by the fire code official due

to:

1.

2.

a
J.

4.

5.

Unique site-specifi c limitations.

Alternative access opportunities (as from adjoining roofs).

Ground level access to the roof area in question.

Other adequate venting cut out opportunities when approved by the fire code official.

Adequate venting cut out areas afforded by panel set back from other roof top equipment (for

example: shading or structural constraints may leave significant areas open for ventilation

near HVAC equipment).

Automatic ventilation device.6

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
PageT of20

Page 774

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



7. New technology, methods, or other innovations that ensure adequate fire department access

pathways and ventilation opportunities.

317.6.2 Single and two dwelling unit residential buildings. Installation of roof gardens and

landscaped roofs on single and two dwelling unit residential buildings shall be in accordance with

Section 317 .6.2.1 through 317 .6'2.3.

317.6.2.1Hip roof design. Planted sections shall be located in a manner that provides a three (3')

foot wide clear access pathway from the eave to the ridge on each roof slope where the planted

sections are located. The access pathway shall be located at a structurally strong location on the

building such as a bearing wall.

317.6.2.2 Single ridge roof design. Planted sections shall be located in a mannet that provides

two three (3') foot wide access pathways from the eave to the ridge on each roof slope where the

planted sections are located.

317.6.2.3 Hips and valleys. Planted sections shall be located no closer than one and one half (1 '5')

feet to a hip or a valley if planted sections are to be placed on both sides of a hip or valley' If the

planted sections are to be located on only one side of a hip or valley that is of equal length then

the planted sections may be placed directly adjacent to the hip or valley. Planted sections shall not

be located closer than three feet (3') below the ridge.

317.6.3 Commercial and industrial buildings and multi-residential buildings containing

three or more dwelling units required access pathways and venting cut outs. Access pathways

and venting cut outs for commercial and industrial buildings and multi-residential buildings

containing three or more dwelling units. Access pathways shall be provided in accordance with

Section 317 .6.3.1through 317 .6.3.6.

Exception: If the fire code official determines that the roof configuration is similar to that found

in single and two dwelling unit residential buildings, the design requirements found in section

317.6.2 may be utilized.

317.6,3.1Planted dimension. Planted sections shall be no greater than 150 feet by 150 feet in

distance in either axis.

3l7.6.3.2Access pathways. Access pathways shall be established in the design of the roof garden

or landscaped roof installation. Access pathways shall meet the requirements of this section.

317.6.3.2.1Access pathways perimeter of the roof. There shall be a minimum six (6') foot wide

clear perimeter around the edges of the roof.

Exception: If either axis of the building is 250 feet or less, there shall be a minimum four (4') feet

wide clear perimeter around the edges of the roof.

317.6.3.2.2 Access pathway location. The center line axis of access pathways shall run on

structural members or over the next closest structural member nearest to the center lines of the

roof.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 8 of20

Page 775

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



317.6.3.2.3 Access pathway center line. The center line axis of the access pathways shall be

provided in both axis of the roof.

317.6.3.2.4 Access pathway alignment. Access pathways shall be in a straight line and provide

not less than four (4') feet clear to skylights, ventilation hatches or roof standpipes.

317.6.3.5 Access pathway around roof access hatches. Access pathways shall provide not less

than four (4') feet of clearance around roof access hatch with at least one not less than four feet (4')

clear pathway to parapet or roof edge.

317.6.3.6 Venting cut out areas. Venting cut outs between planted sections shall be either:

l. An access pathway eight (8') feet or greater in width.

2. An access pathway that is four (4') feet or greater in width and bordering on existing roof
skylights or ventilation hatches.

3. An access pathway that is four (4') feet or greater in width and bordering four (4') feet by eight

(8') feet venting cut outs every twenty (20') feet on alternating sides of the access pathway.

317.6.4 Roof garden or landscaped roof maintenance plan. The fire code official is authorized

to require an approved maintenance plan for vegetation placed on roofs due to the size of the

garden or landscaping area, or if materials and plants used may create afirehazard to the building

or exposures.

Chapter 3, General Requirements is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

SECTION 32I-CLF,ARANCE OF WEEDS, BRUSH AND VEGETATIVE GROWTH

3z|.|Defensible space around structures. Any person owning, leasing, controlling, operating,

or maintaining any building or structure upon or adjoining any grass- or brush-covered land or

land covered with flammable growth, and any person owning, leasing, or controlling any land

adjacent to such structures, shall at all times:

1. Maintain around and adjacent to such building, structure, or apiary an effective fire protection

or firebreak made by removing and clearing away, for a distance of not less than 30 feet on

each side thereof, all flammable vegetation or other combustible growth. This includes

ornamental plants and trees known to be flammable, including but not limited to: Acacia,

Cedar, Cypress, Eucalyptus, Juniper, Pine, and Pampas Grass.

EXCEPTIONS:

A. Ornamental plants and trees that are individually planted, spaced, and maintained in

such a manner that they do not form a means of transmitting fire from native growth to

the structure.

B. Cultivated ground cover such as green grass, ivy, succulents, or similar plants

provided that they are maintained in a condition that does not form a means of transmitting

fire from native growth to the structure.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page9 of20

Page 776

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



2. Maintain any tree adjacent to or overhanging any building or structure free of dead wood.

3. Maintain the roof of any building or structure free of leaves, needles, or other dead vegetative

growth.

321.2 Extra hazard. When the fire code official finds that because of extra hazardous conditions,

a firebreak of only 30 feet around such building or structure is not sufficient to provide reasonable

fire safety, the person owning, leasing, controlling, operating, or maintaining the building or

structure shall maintain around or adjacentto any building or structure an additional fire protection

or firebreak made by removing all brush, flammable vegetation, or combustible growth located

from 30 to 100 feet from such building or structure, as may be required by the fire code official.

Grass and other vegetation located more than 30 feet from such building or structure, and less than

18 inches in height above the ground, ffi&y be maintained where necessary to stabilize the soil and

prevent erosion.

321.3 Roadway clearance. The fire code official may require removal and clearance of all

flammable vegetation or other combustible growth for a minimum of 10 feet on each side of every

roadway, whether public or private. The fire code official may enter upon private property to

inspect, remove and clear vegetation and growth as required by this section and may charge the

responsible party for the cost of such action. This section shall not apply to single specimens of
trees, ornamental shrubbery, or cultivated ground cover such as green grass, ivy, succulents, or

similar plants used as ground cover, provided that they do not form a means of readily transmitting

fire. As used in this section, "roadway" means that portion of a highway, private street, or paved

trail improved, designed, or ordinarily used for vehicular travel. The minimum clearance of 10 feet

may be increased if the fire code official determines additional distance is required to provide

reasonable fire safety.

321.4 Fuel modification plan. A fuel modification plan shall be submitted and have preliminary

approval prior to the construction of a structure or any subdivision of land where the structure or

subdivision of land is located within areas designated as a Very High Hazard Severity Zone ot

where a structure is located within 30 feet of an open space area or natural area. The fuel

modification plan shall have final approval prior to the issuance of a permit for any new

construction, remodeling, modifi cation, or reconstruction.

321.5 Notice to correct. All notices to clear flammable vegetation and other combustible growth

for shall be in writing and in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.37.

321.6 Abatement and penalties. The procedures for the abatement of hazardous vegetation and

penalties thereof shall be in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.37.

Chapter 5, Section 503, Fire Apparatus Access Roads, is hereby amended to read:

503.2.1 Dimensions. Fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access roads required by this section

and Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.57.080 shall have an unobstructed continuous width of
not less than27 feet (8230 mm) for all major / primary driveway aisles and an unobstructed vertical

clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches (4115 mm).

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 10 of20

Page 777

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



EXCEPTIONS:

1. Vertical clearance may be reduced, provided such reduction does not impair access by fire

apparatus and approved signs are installed and maintained indicating the established vertical

clearance when approved.

2. Vertical clearances or widths shall be increased when, in the opinion of the chief, vertical

clearances or widths are not adequate to provide fire apparatus access.

Chapter 5, Section 503, Fire Apparatus Access Roads, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

503.2.1.1 Group R-3 subdivisions. Fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access roads in

subdivisions comprised solely of Group R-3 occupancies shall have an unobstructed continuous

width of not less than 24 feet (7315 mm) and unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13

feet 6 inches (a115 mm).

503.2,1.2 Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) roads. All other fire apparatus access roads,

temporary or perrnanent, when approved by the fire code official, shall have an unobstructed width

of not less than 20 feet (6096 mm) and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet

6 inches (4115 mm).

503.2.4 Turning radius. The required turning radius of a fire apparatus access road shall have a

minimum dimension of 25 feet on the inside and 50 feet on the outside'

503.2.5.1 Length. The maximum length of any dead end shall not exceed 500 feet.

503.2.7 Grade. The gradient for a ftre apparatus access road shall not exceed I2.5%. Where said

fire apparatus access road directly fronts the exterior of a building two or more stories in height,

the gradient for a fire apparatus access road shall not exceed 9olo.

503.2.8 Angles of approach. The angle of approach and angle of departure of fire apparatus access

roads shall not exceed 12.5% or as approved by the fire code official.

503.2.9 Center median islands. Center median islands, such as those used for gate access, shall

provide for a drive lane width of not less than 13 feet 6 inches, or 12 feet for R-3 subdivisions, in

each direction.

503.5.3 Obstruction of gates and barricades. Gates or barricades required by Section 503 shall

not be obstructed in any manner, including the parking of vehicles. A "FIRE DEPARTMENT

ACCESS - DO NOT BLOCK" sign shall be posted on the gate or barricade when required by the

fire code offrcial.

503.6 Security gates. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access road shall be

approved by the fire code official. The design and operation of gates and barricades shall be in

accordance with the Sacramento County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard.

Chapter 5, Section 504, Access to Building Openings and Roofs, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 11 of20

Page 778

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



504.1.1 Required access walkways. Required access walkways shall have a minimum clear width

of 5 feet, and shall not have permanent items such as heating and air conditioning units within

them.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Subdivisions wilh previous approval of less than 5-foot access walkways due to reduced

setback requirements.

2. City-provided solid waste and recycling containers will be allowed within the access

walkway. The containers shall not be placed under a required emergency escape or rescue

opening.

504.5 Building projections. Cornices, parapets, eave openings, and similar projections from a

building shall be designed to support a 330-pound horizontal and vertical load to the leading edge

of the projection. This represents a 250-pound firefighter carrying 80 pounds of equipment

stepping off of a ladder placed against the projection onto the top of the projection.

Chapter 5, Section 505, Premises Identification, is hereby amended by adding the following to

read:

505.3 Numbers for one- and two- family dwellings. Numbers for one- and two-family dwellings

shall be a minimum of 4 inches high. Numbers for all other buildings shall be no less than6 inches

high. The fire code official may require an increase in building address or number size when

necessary due to building size or arrangement, or due to distance from the public way.

Chapter 5, Section 505, Premises Identification, is hereby amended by adding the following to

read:

505.3.1 Multiple tenant buildings. Multiple tenant spaces serviced by vehicular access to the rear

through any driveway, alleyway, or parking lot shall have numbers or addresses placed prior to

occupancy on all new and existing buildings as to be plainly visible and legible from the rear access

way when deemed necessary by the fire code official. Multiple tenant spaces serviced by rear

access through a corridor, exit court, or exit yard shall have approved numbers or addresses

displayed on the rear of the tenant space, when deemed necessary by the fire code official.

Multiple tenant spaces that front on interior walkways or pedestrian malls shall have approved

numbers or addresses placed over the entrance door in all new and existing buildings. An

illuminated annunciator or directory board shall be required at every entrance where deemed

necessary by the fire code official.

505.3.2 Illumination. Address numbers shall be illuminated at night in all new buildings. Signs

shall be internally or externally illuminated. When the luminance or the face of a sign is from an

external source, it shall have an intensity of not less than 5.0 foot-candles. Intemally illuminated

signs shall provide equivalent luminance.

Chapter 5, Section 507, Fire Protection Water Supplies, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 12 of20

Page 779

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



507.5.7 Fire hydrant markers. Fire hydrants and other firefighting water sources shall be

identified by the installation of blue raised reflective pavement markers or identified by other

approved means.

Chapter 5, Section 509, Fire Protection and Utility Equipment Identification and Access, is hereby

amended by adding the following to read:

509.3 Fire control room. Fire sprinkler risers and fire alarm control panels shall be located inside

a room with minimum dimensions of five feet by seven feet. The room shall only be accessible

from the exterior and provided with a door with a clear width of not less than 32 inches and height

of not less than 80 inches. A durable sign shall be affixed to the exterior of the door with the words

"FIRE CONTROL ROOM" in letters not less than 3 inches in height. A key box complying with

Section 506 shall be installed adjacent to the door.

The room must be capable of maintaining a minimum temperature of 40 degrees Fahrenheit. A
clearance of 12 inches shall be provided from the fire sprinkler risers to any adjacent walls. This

room can be shared with other building utilities or fire protection equipment that is not

incompatible. An approved cabinet or container shall be provided to store record plans of the fire

sprinkler system and other fire protection equipment. This room shall not be used for any other

storage.

Chapter 6, Section 603, Fuel-Fired Appliances, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

603.6.6 Spark arrestors. Chimneys used with fireplaces or heating appliances in which solid or

liquid fuel is used shall be maintained with a spark arrester as required for incinerators by the

Mechanical Code.

Chapter 9, Section 901, General, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

901.6.4 Service contracts. A service contract shall be secured and maintained by the building

owner to provide for maintenance, inspection and testing of all fire protection systems. A copy of
the contract shall be provided to the fire code offrcial prior to occupancy.

Chapter 9, Section 903, Automatic Sprinkler Systems, is hereby amended by adding the following

to read:

q4E#-J#:I03.Z.2Z Required locations. An approved automatic fire sprinkler system shall be

installed in all buildings 3,600 square feet in floor area or larger.

a. For the provisions of this section, two or more buildings, except one and two family dwellings,

existing entirely within the property lines of one parcel shall be considered a single building when

exterior wall protection is not provided and the aggregate floor area exceeds 3,599 square feet

(334.45 m21 when applying California Building Code Section 503.1.2

b. For the provisions of this section, fire barriers or fire walls shall not apply to eliminate the

installation of an automatic fire sprinkler system.

EXCEPTION:

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 13 of20

Page 780

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



Non-combustible, detached canopies open on four sides, not exceeding the basic allowable square

footage in CBC Table 503, used exclusively for the parking or storage of private or pleasure

vehicles and non-combustible storage (includes fuel islands).

W+903.2.23 Existing buildings. In existing buildings, except one and two family dwelling

buildings, where an automatic fire extinguishing system does not exist, and the floor area of the

building or structure is increased by more than fifty percent (50%) or 1,800 square feet, whichever

is less, or when alterations or repairs within any l2-month period exceed fifty percent (50%) of
the value of the existing building or structure, such building or structure shall be made to conform

to Section 903.2.20.

903.3.5.3 Passive purge system. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard shall be installed as a loop system (multi-purpose system) and have all toilets connected

as points of passive purge. A standalone residential sprinkler system without points of passive

purge may be installed with approval of the fire code official'

903.3.5.4 Check valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard, withthe passive purge requirements, shall have an approved check valve located between

the water meter and the shut-off valve. For standalone residential sprinkler systems, a separate

check valve shall be installed in accordance with design standards.

903.3.5.5 Shut-off valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D

standard shall have a clearly marked shut-off valve located on the exterior of the stn*eturestructure

before the sprinkler system bifurcation.

903.3.5.6 Pressure reducing valve location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA

13D standard, with the passive purge requirements, shall have a pressure reducing valve, when

required, located on the exterior of the structure, after the shut-off valve, and before the sprinkler

system bifurcation. The pressure reducing valve shall be installed, with a maximum static pressure

of 80 psi, to prevent the over-pressurization of the fixtures.

903.3.5.7 Hose bib location. A residential sprinkler system designed to the NFPA 13D standard,

with the passive purge requirements, shall have hose bib on the exterior of the structure-te-assist

.Itshallbelocatedaftertheshut-offvalveandafterthepreSsure
reducing valve, if provided. For standalone residential sprinkler systems, the hose bib shall be

located after the shut-off valve and before the sprinkler system check valve. ln-+Aei+ien-,-Ar
in

903.4 Sprinkler system monitoring and alarms. All-+Yalves controlling the water supply for

automatic sprinkler systems, pumps, tanks, water levels and temperatures, critical air pressures,

and water-flow switches on all sprinkler systems shall be electrically supervised by a listed fire

alarm control unit.

903.4.2 Alarms. Approved audible and visual alarm notification devices shall be connected to

every automatic sprinkler system. Such sprinkler water-flow devices shall be activated by water

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 14 of20

Page 781

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



flow equivalent to the flow of a single sprinkler of the smallest orifice size installed in the system.

An audible and visual alarm notification device shall be provided on the exterior of the building

in an approved location. An audible and visual alarm notification device shall be provided in the

interior of the building within each dwelling unit or tenant space and on each level in approved

locations.

903# 903.5.1 Water Supply Test Adjustment. A water supply test required for the design of a

fire protection system shall be adjusted to 90Yo to account for seasonal and daily pressure

fluctuations. The adjustment percentage may be further reduced by the Fire Code Official for areas

expected to have a significant water supply demand in the future.

Chapter 9, Section 907, Fire Alarm and Detection Systems, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

907.2.30 All buildings. An approved monitored fire alarm and detection system shall be installed

in all buildings not protected by an automatic sprinkler system with the exception of R-3

occupancies. Buildings with a floor area less than 500 square feet may be exempt, as determined

by the fire code official, based on building construction material and features, location, occupancy

type, and distance to exposures.

907.2.30.1Fire alarm control panel location. The fire alarmcontrol panel shall be located inside

of a room or closet with an exterior access door with a clear opening width of no less than 32

inches. This room may be shared with other building utilities. Durable signage shall be provided

on the exterior of the door stating "FIRE ALARM PANEL" in letters 3 inches in height and

contrasting to the background.

9O7^85-t 907.8.5 Obstruction of fire alarm equipment. Fire alarm initiating devices, alarm

notification appliances and annunciators shall not be concealed from view, obstructed, or impaired

in any manner.

907.9,1All existing buildings. In existing buildings, other than one or two-family dwellings,

where a monitored fire alarm and detection system does not exist and the floor area of the building

or structure is increased by more than fifty percent (50%) or 1,800 square feet, whichever is less,

or when alterations or repairs within any l2-month period exceed fifty percent (50%) of the value

of the existing building or structure, such building or structure shall be made to conform to Section

907.2.30.

Chapter 9, Section 9l2,Fire Department Connections, is hereby amended by adding the following
to read:

912.2.3 Fire department connections. Fire department connections (FDC's) shall be located

within 50 feet of a fire hydrant, and no closer than 50 feet from the buildings they supply or other

locations as approved by the fire code official.

Chapter 10, Section +83+,1032. Maintenance of means of egress, is hereby amended by adding the

following to read:

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 15 of20

Page 782

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



+031+-t 1032.7.1Emergency escape and rescue opening access for 2 and 3 story buildings.
Exterior emergency escape and rescue openings on the second story shall have a minimum clear

access of not less than 5 feet wide X 5 feet deep below the opening(s) for the placement of a ground

ladder. Exterior emergency escape and rescue openings on the third story shall have a minimum

clear access of not less than 5 feet wide X 7 % feet deep below the opening(s) for the placement

ofa ground ladder.

EXCEPTION:

l. Subdivisions with previous approval of reduced set back requirements.

1+3+H 1032.7.2 Emergency escape and rescue access for buildings 4 stories or more.

Exterior emergency escape and rescue access for buildings 4 stories or more in height shall have

an approved access road no closer than 15 feet from the building and with a width of atleast2T

feet for the proper placement of a ladder truck.

Chapter 12, Section W,I205, Solar Photovoltaic Power Systems, is hereby amended by adding

the following to read:

1J44F/. 1205.6 Remote electrical disconnect. Photovoltaic circuits shall be equipped with a

means for remote electrical disconnect located downstream from the photovoltaic anay at the point

where the photovoltaic circuit first enters the structure, or at another approved location. The

manual control to operate the remote electrical disconnect shall be located within five feet of the

building's main electrical panel. The remote electrical disconnect shall be listed and meet the

requirements of the California Electrical Code.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Photovoltaic circuits contained in rigid or electrical metallic tubing running between the array

combiner box and the main electrical panel which are entirely exterior to the building need not be

equipped with a means of remote electrical disconnect other than the disconnects intrinsic to the

system.

2. Photovoltaic circuits contained in rigid or electrical metallic tubing running between the array

combiner box and the main electrical panel that run through the interior of the building when

installed a minimum of 18" below the roof assembly when measured parallel to the surface of the

roof.

3. The photovoltaic system inverter may be used for remote electrical disconnect when the

inverter is located immediately upstream of the roof penetration where the circuit enters the

structure.

Chapter 33, Section 33+8,3311, Access for Firefighting, is hereby amended to read:

33+eJ 3311.1 Required access. Fire and emergency access roads shall be installed and

maintained in accordance with Section 503 and Folsom Municipal

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 16 of20

Code Section 17.57.080

Page 783

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



EXCEPTION:

When approved, temporary fire and emergency vehicle access roads may be used until permanent

roads are installed. Temporary access roads shall be provided with an all weather road surface of
2 inches of asphalt concrete over 6 inches of 95o/o compacted aggregate base from October lst
through April 30th each year. Temporary access roads may be provided with an all weather road

surface of 6 inches of 95Yo compacted aggregate base from May lst through September 30th each

year.

JJ+m 3311.3 Premise identification. Prior to and during construction, an approved address sign

shall be provided at each fire and emergency vehicle access road entry into the project.

Chapter 33, Section 33+?-3313, Water Supply for Fire Protection, is hereby amended to read:

tg14 3313.1 When required. Required fire hydrants shall be installed and accepted prior to

combustible materials arriving on site or vertical construction commencing.

Chapter 49, Section 4905, Wildfire Protection Building Construction, is hereby amended by

adding the following to read:

4905.3.1 Local agency establishment of limits. The establishment of limits for the Wildland

Urban Interface Fire Area's required construction methods shall be applied to land within the City

of Folsom designated as a Local Agency Very-High FireHazard Severity Zone andlor to buildings

or structures that are located within 30 feet of an open space area or natural area.

Chapter 49, Section 4906, , Vegetation Management

is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

4906.2.1Local agency application. Buildings or structures located in the following areas shall

maintain the required hazardous vegetation and fuel management:

1. Land designated within the City of Folsom as a Local Agency Very-High Fire Hazard

Severity Zone.
2.Landwithin 30 feet of an open space area or natural area.

Chapter 49, Section 4907, Defensible Space, is hereby amended by adding the following to read:

49ryl-J2 4907.|.1-Local agency defensible space. Buildings or structures located within 30 feet

of an open space area or natural area shall maintain defensible space as outlined in Government

Code 51 175 - 51189, Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.36, and Folsom Municipal Code Section

8.37.

Chapter 90. Section 9001-9010" Suppression and Control of Wildfire Risk Areas. is herebv

amended bv addins the followine to read:

9001 - Scope. The unrestricted use of grass-. grain-. brush- or forest-covered land in wildfire risk

areas is a potential hazard to life and propertv from fire and resulting erosion. Safeguards to prevent

the occurrence offires and to provide adequate fire-protection facilities to control the spread offire
Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 17 of20

Page 784

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



that might be caused by recreational" residential" commercial. industrial. or other activities shall be

in accordance with Chapter 90.

9002 - Restricted Entrv. The fire chief shall determine and publicly announce when wildfire risk

areas shall be closed to entry and when such areas shall again be opened to entry. Entry on and

occupation of wildfire risk areas. except public roadways. inhabited areas or established trails and

camp sites which have not been closed during such time when the wildfire risk area is closed to

entry. is prohibited.

EXCEPTIONS:

1. Residents and owners of private property within wildfire risk areas and their invitees and

guests going to or being upon their lands.

2

officers. members of a fire department and members of the United States Forest Service.

Section 9003 - TRESPASSING ON POSTED PROPERTY'

9003.1 General. When the fire chief determines that a specific area within a wildfire risk area

presents an exceptional and continuing fire danger because ofthe densitv ofnatural grovrth"

difficulty of terrain. proximitv to structures or accessibilitv to the public. such areas shall be closed

until changed conditions wanant termination of closure. Such areas shall be posted as hereinafter

provided.

9003.2 Signs. Approved siens prohibiting entry by unauthorized persons shall be placed on every

closed area.

9003.3 Trespassing. Entering and remaining within areas closed and posted is prohibited.

EXCEPTION:

1. Owners and occupiers of private or public properf,v within closed and posted areas. their
guests or invitees" and local. state" and federal public officers and their authorized agents

acting in the course of duty.

9004 - Smokine. Lighting. ieniting or otherwise setting fire to or smoking tobacco. cigarettes.

pipes. cigars" or other smoking materials in wildfire risk areas is prohibited.

EXCEPTION:

Places of habitation or within the boundaries of established smoking areas or campsites as

designated by the fire code official.

9005 - Spark Arrestors. Chimnelzs used in conjunction with fireplaces. barbecues. incinerators. or

heating appliances in which solid or liquid fuel is used. upon buildings" structures or premises

located within 200 feet (60 960 mm) of wildfire risk areas. shall be provided with a spark arrester

constructed with heavy wire mesh or other noncombustible material with openings not to exceed

712 inch (J27 mm\.
Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 18 of20

Page 785

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



9006 - Small Unmanned Aircraft. Small. unmanned aircraft liable to start or cause fire shall not

be possessed. flown. projected. or caused to be projected into or across wildfire risk areas.

9007 - OLen-Flame Devices. Welding torches. tar pots" decorative torches and other devices.

machines. or processes liable to start or cause fire shall not be operated or used in or upon wildfire
risk areas" except by permit from the fire chief.

Flame-employing devices. such as lanterns or kerosene road flares. shall not be operated or used as

a signal or marker in or upon wildfire risk areas.

EXCEPTION:

1. The proper use of fuses at the scenes of emergencies or as required by standard railroad

operating procedures.

9008 - Use of Fire Roads and X'irebreaks. Motorcycles. motor scooters and motor vehicles shall

not be driven or parked upon. and trespassing is prohibited upon. fire roads or firebreaks beyond

the point where travel is restricted by a cable. gate. or sign" without the permission of the prope4v

owners. Vehicles shall not be parked in a manner which obstructs the entrance to a fire road or

firebreak.

EXCEPTION:

1 D,,Lli^ ^f{:^--" on+inc ..,:+L:- +L^:* -^^-^ ^f '1"+.'

9010 - Liabilitv for The exnenses of fishtins fires which from a violation of this

chapter shall be a charge against the person whose violation caused the fire. Damages caused by

such fires shall constitute a debt of such person and are collectable by the fire shief in the same

marurer as in the case of an obligation under a contract. expressed or implied.

Appendix B, Section B105, Fire Flow Requirements for Buildings, is hereby amended to read:

B105.2 Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings. The minimum fire-flow and flow
duration for buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings shall be as specified in Table

8105.1

EXCEPTION:

A reduction in required fire-flow of up to 50 percent, as approved, is allowed when the building is

provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page 19 of20

Page 786

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



903 .3. I . 1 . The resulting fire-flow shall not be less than I ,500 gallons per minute (5678 L/min) for

the prescribed duration as specified in Table B 105.1 .

Appendix C, Table Cl02.l, Required Number and Spacing of Fire Hydrants, is amended to read:

TABLE C102.1

REQUIRED NUMBER AND SPACING OF F'IRE HYDRANTS

(Ord. 1269 $ 3 (part), 2017)

Appendix D, Fire apparatus access roads, is amended by adding the following to read:

The minimum fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access road widths throughout this appendix

will be 27 feet.

Exception:

1. The minimum fire apparatus and emergency vehicle access road widths will be 24 feet

for subdivisions comprised solely of Group R-3 occupancies.

Attachment 3- Redlined Version
Page20 of20

FIRE.FLOW
REQUIREMENT

MINIMUM
NUMBER OF'

HYDRANTS

AVERAGE SPACING
BETWEEN HYDRANTS

",b't (feet)

MAXIMUM
DISTANCE FROM

ANY POINT ON
STREET OR ROAD

FRONTAGE TO
HYDRANTd

1,750 or less I 300 150

1,751-2,250 2 300 150

2,25r -3,250
a
J 300 150

3,251- 4,000 4 300 150

4,001 - 5,000 5 300 150

5,001 - 5,500 6 300 150

5,501 - 6,000 6 2s0 150

6,001 - 7,000 7 250 150

7,001 or more 8 or more" 200 120

Page 787

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



This page intentionally left blCInk

to facilitqte double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSOT{

Page 788

12/13/2022 Item No.21.



:r ,{:1 :.i:{ { }lvi
t. , tr.r.1!11 a: ,'.1: !.

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Community Development Department recommends that the City Council conduct the First

Reading of Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom repealing and re-

enacting Chapter 14 of the Folsom Municipal Code concerning the Folsom Building Code.

BACKGRO / ISSUE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to update building safety regulations and adopt the 2022

California Building Codes pursuant to state law.

Presently, the Folsom Municipal Code (FMC) Title 14 - Buildings and Construction, contains

provisions relative to building safety regulations and is based on the 2019 editions of the
-California 

Building Codes based on the 2018 Intemational Building Codes. These Code

include the Building Code, Residential Code, Electrical Code, Plumbing Code, Mechanical

Code, Historical Building Code, Energy Code, Green Code, Existing Building Code, Property

Maintenance Code and Pool and Spa Code.

The2022 edition of the California Building Codes (Title 24),incorporating the202l editions

of the Intemational Codes, have been published by the California Building Standards

Commission and are effective as state law January 1,2023.

I

MEETING DATE: r2n312022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Repealing and Re-enacting Certain Chapters of Title 14,

"Buildings and Construction", of the Folsom Municipal Code

Concerning Enforcement of Folsom Building Codes

(Introduction and First Reading)

F'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 789

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



POLICY / RULE

Triennially the California Building Standards Commission publishes the California Building
Codes which take effect 180 days after publication according to state statute. Califomia Health
& Safety Code Section 18938(b) mandates that Building Standards Codes, including the
California Building Codes, are applicable to all occupancies in the State. Health & Safety Code

Section 18941.5 allows cities to amend building standards contained in the California Codes

based on specified criteria prior to the effective date of the codes. Government Code Section
50022.2 grants local agencies the authority to adopt codes by reference.

ANALYSN

The purpose of this ordinance is to repeal the existing codes and adopt the new building and

construction codes for the City of Folsom as required by state law. The majority of the 2022
California Building Standard Codes were modeled after the 2021 International Codes, the
National Electrical Code and the Uniform Plumbing and Mechanical Codes. While these codes

are similar in structure and content, some adjustments to the adoptionprocess are necessary to
complete references in the Folsom Municipal Code. Staff has compared the amendments made

to the presently adopted 2019 California Building Codes to the provisions contained in the
2022 California Building Codes. In developing the amendments for these new codes, staff
looked to provide a clear, cost-effective and equivalent level of sustainability and life safety to
the citizens of Folsom. No "technical" amendments were proposed; only clarifications of those

administrative requirements unique to our City.

In summary, staff believes that the proposed amendments and adoption of the 202I
International Building Codes, as amended by the State of California and publishedasthe2022
California Building Codes, are necessary to provide a reasonable and prudent level of
construction, sustainability and life safety to citizens and visitors to the City of Folsom.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The impact of adoptingthe2022 California Building Standards Codes with local amendments

should not cause any significant impact. However, although increasing the life safety and

sustainability of City Facilities, the 2022 Energy Code for residential and non-residential
buildings cannot help but increase their costs. It is anticipated that these costs will continue to
decrease somewhat as more systems are installed and competition for services increases.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section
15061(bX3) (Review for Exemption) of the California Environmental Quality Act.

2 Page 790

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



ATT

Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Reenacting Certain

Chapters of Title 14, "Buildings and Construction", of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning

Enforcement of Folsom Construction Codes. (Introduction and First Reading)

RECOMMENDATION - CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom

Repealing and Reenacting Certain Chapters of Title 14, "Buildings and Construction", of the

Foisom Municipal Code Conceming Enforcement of Folsom Construction Codes.

(Introduction and First Reading)

Reviewed and Approved,

Pam Johns
Community Development Director

J Page 791

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



ATTACHMENT 1

ORDINANCE NO. 1336 . AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
FOLSOM REPEALING AND REENACTING CERTAIN

CHAPTERS OF TITLF. 14, OOBUILDINGS AND
coNSTRUCTIONo',o OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE

CONCERNING ENFORCEMENT OF FOLSOM BUILDING
CODES (INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING)

Page 792

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



ORDINANCE NO. 1336

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM REPEALING AND RE.
ENACTING CERTAIN CHAPTERS OF TITLE I ,"BAILDINGS AIID

CONSTRUCTION", OF THE FOLSOM MUNTCIPAL CODE
CONCERNING ENFORCEMENT OF' FOLSOM BUILDING CODES

THE CITY COLINCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM HEREBY DOES ORDAIN AS

FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this ordinance is to repeal and re-enact certain chapters of Title 14,

"Buildings and Construction", of the Folsom Municipal Code ("The Code") to provide

procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction

bodes and to adopt and enforce rules and regulations supplemental to this Code as may be

deemed ,r.ce5ury to clariff the application of the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations,

rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this Code.

Unless superseded or expressly repealed, references in City forms, documents and regulations to

chapters and sections of the former Folsom Construction Codes shall be construed to apply to

conisponding provisions contained within the new Folsom Construction Codes.

SECTION 2 CHANGES TO FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE

Chapters 14.02, 14.04,14.08, 14.12,14.16, 14.19, 14.20,14.22, 14.23, 14.26 of Title 14

of the Folsom Municipal Code are hereby amended to read as follows:

Title 14

BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION
. Chapters:

14.02 Building Code
14.04 Residential Code

14.08 Electrical Code
14.12 Plumbing Code

14.16 Mechanical Code

14.19 Energy Code
14.20 Green Building Standards Code

14.22 Historical Building Code

14.23 Existing Building Code

14.24 ProPertY Maintenance Code

14.26 Referenced Standards Code

Chapter 14.02

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 1 of23 Page 793

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



BUILDING CODE

Sections:
t4.02.0t0
14.02.015
14.02.020
14.02.030
r4.02.040
14.02.045
14.02.050
14.02.055
14.02.060
14.02.070
14.02.080
14.02.085

Title
Definitions
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Right of entry
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Building Code

Violation-Nuisance
Enforcement
Penalties
Enforcement procedures
Conflicts

14.02.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Building Code."

14.02.015 Definitions
For purpose of this chapter, the following terms shall have the meaning set forth in this section.

"Building Codes" or "Code" shall mean the Folsom Construction Codes and each and every

ordinance codified therein as adopted by the city council of the City of Folsom by ordinance,

including, but not timited to, the Folsom Building Code, the Folsom Residential Code, the

Folsom Electrical Code, the Folsom Mechanical Code, the Folsom Plumbing Code, the Folsom

Energy Code, the Folsom Fire Code, the Folsom Green Standards Building Code (CALGreen),

the Folsom Referenced Standards Code, the Folsom Property Maintenance Code, the Folsom

Historical Building Code, Folsom Existing Building Code and the Folsom Swimming Pool, Spa

and Hot Tub Code. This shall also apply to references to the "Uniform Codes" found within the

Folsom Municipal Code.

14.02.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Construction Codes. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretations of all the provisions of this Code and the referenced technical codes. The terms

"code official", "administrative authority", 'oauthority having jurisdiction", and "City" are to be

considered synonymous with the terms "Chief Building Official", "Building Official",
"Department of Building Safety" and 'oBuilding Department" as they appear in the Code or the

technical codes. The city council shall budget and appropriate such City funds for the Division of
Building Safety as it may deem necessary for the proper operation of the division.

14.02.030 Purpose.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page2 of23 Page 794

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



The purpose of the Folsom Building Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or

limb, health, property, and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, construction,

installation, quality of materials, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of all buildings

and structures within this jurisdiction, and certain equipment specifically regulated herein, and to

provide procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom

Construction Codes and to adopt and enforce rules and regulations supplemental to this Code as

may be deemed necessary to clariff the application of the provisions of this Code. Such

interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this

Code.

14.02.040 Adoption by Reference.

Subject to the additions, amendments, or deletions set forth in Section 14.02.050 of this chapter,

the California Building Code, 2022 Edifion, based on the 2021 International Building Code,

including Appendix Chapter I, published as Part 2, Volumes 1 and 2,Title 24, C.C.R., published

by the International Code Council, is adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth

herein to provide technical requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement

of the provisions of the Folsom Building Codes. One copy of the Folsom Building Code and any

and all amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department

and shall be available for use and examination by the public.

14.02.45 Right of Entry.
The code enforcement officer, the fire chief, the chief building official, or their designees shall

be authorized to enter upon private property or public property as provided for in Section

1.09.025 of the Folsom M oal Code to enforce the provisions of this title, or for the pu{pose

of making any inspection, reinspection or test of any work performed pursuant to this title.

14.02.050 Additions, Amendments, or Deletions to Folsom Building Code.

The Folsom Building Code is amended as follows:

CHAPTER 1, DIVISION II
A. Section 101.1 Title- Insert the words "City of Folsom" as the name ofjurisdiction. This

shall apply to any of the adopted codes wherever the name of the jurisdiction is to be

inserted.

Section 101.2 Scope-Delete the words "California Residential Code" and insert, in lieu
thereof, the words "Folsom Residential Code".

Section 101.4 Referenced codes-Delete in its entirety and revised to read as follows:

101.4 Referenced codes. The other codes listed in Sections 101.4.1 through 101.4.7 and

referenced elsewhere in this Code shall be considered part of the requirements of this

Code to the prescribed extent of each reference. If another code is referenced elsewhere

in this Code and has not been adopted, then that section shall be considered invalid.

Where there is a conflict between the administrative requirements in this Code and those

in other adopted technical codes, the more restrictive or specific requirements shall apply.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page3 of23

B.

C.

Page 795

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



Exception: Administrative requirements in the City of Folsom Fire Code

Any references to the International Residential Code, Residential Code for One- and

Two-family Dwellings, or California Residential Code shall be deleted and the words

"Folsom Residential Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time to

time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the National Electrical Code or California Electrical Code shall be

dellted and the words o'Folsom Electrical Code adopted by the City of Folsom and

amended from time to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Fuel Gas Code shall be deleted and the words

"Folsom Plumbing Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time to time"

shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Plumbing Code or Califomia Plumbing Code shall be

deleted and the words o'Folsom Plumbing Code adopted by the City of Folsom and

amended from time to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Mechanical Code or California Mechanical Code

shall be deleted and the words "Folsom Mechanical Code adopted by the City of Folsom

and amended from time to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Property Maintenance Code shall be deleted and the

*o.dr "Folsom Property Maintenance Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended

from time to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Fire Code or California Fire Code shall be deleted and

the words "Folsom Fire Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time to

time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Zoning Code shall be deleted and the words "Folsom

Zoning Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time to time" shall be

inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the International Energy Conservation Code shall be deleted and the

words "Folsom Energy Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time to

time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Any references to the California Historical Building Code shall be deleted and the words

"Folsom Historical Building Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time

to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof.

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 4 of23 Page 796

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



Any references to the Califomia Existing Building Code shall be deleted and the words

"Folsom Existing Building Code adopted by the City of Folsom and amended from time

to time" shall be inserted in lieu thereof'

Any references to the International Private Sewage Disposal Code shall be deleted.

101.4.1 Electrical. The provisions of the Electrical Code adopted by the City of Folsom

and amended from time to time shall apply to the installation of electrical systems,

including alterations, repairs, replacement, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and

appurtenances thereto.

101.4.2 Plumbing and Gas. The provisions of the Plumbing Code adopted by the City of
Folsom and amended from time to time shall apply to the installation alterations, repairs

and replacement of plumbing systems, including equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings

and appurtenances, and where connected to a water or sewage system and all applicable

aspects of a medical gas system. The provisions shall also apply to the installation of gas

piping from the point of delivery, gas appliances and related accessories.

101.4.3 Mechanical. The provisions of the Mechanical Code adopted by the City of
Folsom and amended from time to time shall apply to the installation, alterations, repairs,

and replacement of mechanical systems, including equipment, appliances, ftxtures,

fi1ingJand/or appurtenances, including ventilating, heating, cooling, air conditioning and

refrigeration systems, incinerators, and other energy-related systems.

101.4.4 Property maintenance. The provisions of the Property Maintenance Code,

adopted by the City of Folsom, and amended from time to time shall apply to existing

struitures and premises; equipment and facilities; light, ventilation, space heating,

sanitation, life and fire safety, hazards; responsibilities of owners, operators and

occupants; and occupancy of existing premises and structures and shall be enforced along

with the requirements of Title 8, 'oHealth, Sanitation and Welfare", of the Folsom

Municipal Code. Where there is a conflict between Title 8 of the Folsom Municipal Code

and' the Folsom Property Maintenance Code, the more restrictive shall apply.

101.4.5 Fire prevention. The provisions of the Fire Code adopted by the City of Folsom

and amended from time to time shall apply to matters affecting or relating to structures,

processes and premises from the hazard of fire or explosion arising from the storage,

handling ot ,6" of structures, materials or devices; from conditions hazardous to life,

property or public welfare in the occupancy of structures or premises; and from the

ionstruction, extension, repair, alteration or removal of fire suppression and alarm

systems or fire hazards in the structure or on the premises from occupancy or operation.

101.4.6 California Energy Code and California Green Building Standards Code. The

provisions of the California Energy Code and California Green Building Standards Code

adopted by the City of Folsom shall apply to all matters governing the sustainable and

"tr"igy 
efhciency design and construction of those structures regulated by the Folsom

Construction Codes as adopted by the City of Folsom.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 5 of23 Page 797

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



F

D

E.

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 6 of23

101.4.7 Califomia Historical Building Code. The provisions of the California Historical

Building Code adopted by the City of Folsom are intended to facilitate, by means of
alternative solutions, the restoration of change of occupancy so as to preserve their

original or restored architectural elements and features, to encourage energy

conservation, disabled access and a cost-effective approach to preservation, and to

provide for the safety of the building occupants of those structures regulated by the

Folsom Construction Codes as adopted by the City of Folsom'

101.4.8 California Existing Building Code. The provisions of the California Existing

Building Code adopted by the City of Folsom are intended to establish the minimum

requirements to safeguard the public health, safety and general welfare through structural

strength, means of egress facilities, stability, access to persons with disabilities,

sanitation, adequate lighting and ventilation and energy conservation; safety to life and

property from fire and other hazards attributed to the built environment; and to provide

iuf"ty to firefighters and emergency responders during emergency operations.

Section 105.3.1 Action on application-Add a new paragraph at the end to read:

"Without approval of the Building Official, no new or additional permits shall be issued

to any property or person who has any outstanding violations of this Code or any other

code of this jurisdiction."

section 105.3.2 Time limit of application-Amend to read as follows:

An application for a permit for any proposed work shall be deemed to have been

abandoned 9 months after the date of filing, unless such application has been pursued in

good faith or a permit has been issued; except that the Building Offrcial is authorized to

grant one extension of time for a period not to exceed 9 months. The extension shall be

requested in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated'

Section 105.5 Expiration-Amend to read as follows:

Every building permit shall become invalid if the work authorized by such permit has not

conlmenced to the satisfaction of the Building Offrcial within 12 months of permit

issuance, or if work commences within 12 months and more than 180 calendar days

elapses between approval of required inspections. The Building Official shall be

authorized to grant one extension of time for a period not to exceed 180 calendar days for

permits that have not yet expired. The extension shall be requested in writing and

justifiable cause demonstrated. In order to renew action on a permit after expiration, a

new full permit fee shall be paid based on the current fee schedule adopted by the City. If
action otr * expired permit also requires an additional plan review, a full plan review

shall be paid based on the current fee schedule adopted by the City.

All buitding permits shall be valid for up to two years after the issuance date as long as

the requirements in the previous paragraph are complied with. The Building Official is
authorized to extend a permit beyond this period if the work authorized by the permit is,

Page 798

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



in the opinion of the Building Official, being diligently pursued but only upon written

request by the permittee and evidence acceptable to the Building Official indicating

substantial progress. Review of the request and granting of an approved time extension

beyond two years shall be made by the Building Official and any additional fees shall be

paid based on the current fee schedule as adopted by the City'

G. Section 108.3 Building Permit Valuations--Amend to read as follows:

109.3 Building Permit Valuations. The applicant for a permit for a new building or

structure or additions or alterations to an existing building or structure shall provide a

reasonable estimated permit value at time of application. The value to be used in
computing the building permit and building plan review fees shall be, including labor,

the total of all construction work for which the permit is being issued, as well as

grading, roofing, siding, electrical, plumbing, gas, heating, air conditioning, elevators,

fire extinguishing systems, permanent mechanical equipment and systems as well as

any other items which will require plan review andlor inspection. When permitted

work includes an alteration to an existing structure, or includes work outside of the

standard calculated fee areas determined by square footage cost tables, the applicant

shall provide legitimate actual/contracted project costs to establish the additional non-

calculated valuation of the total permitted project. Value for donated andlor

discounted materials and labor shall be established at typical market rates. If, in the

opinion of the Building Official, the valuation is underestimated on the application,

the permit shall be denied, unless the applicant can show detailed estimates

acceptable to the Building Official.

Exceptions: The Building Official is authorized to omit the cost of land, permiuing

fess and finish materials that are not required for code compliance.

Final building permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official.

H. Section 109.1 Payment of fees-Add an additional paragraph to read as follows:

When submittal documents are incomplete or revised so as to require additional plan

review after the second review, final review, or when the project involves deferred

submittal items as defined in Section 107.3.4.1, an additional plan review fee shall be

charged at the rate as set forth by resolution of the City Council'

I. Section 109.4 Work commencing before permit issuance-Add an additional sentence to

read as follows:

The minimum investigative fee for commencing work before permit issuance shall be

equal to and in addition to the amount of the normal permit fee as set forth by resolution

of the City Council for the first offense and four times the amount of, and in addition to,

the normal permit fee for second and subsequent offenses. The payment of such

investigative fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with other provisions of
this Code, the technical codes, or from any penalty prescribed by law.

Ordinance No. 1336
PageT of23 Page 799

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



J Section 109.6 Refunds-Amend to read as follows:

Refunds. The Building Official shall be permitted to authorize refunding of a fee paid

hereunder which was erroneously paid or collected.

The Building Official shall be permitted to authorize refunding of not more than 80

percent of the permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued in

accordance with this Code.

The Building Offrcial shall be permitted to authorize refunding of not more than 80

percent of the plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a plan

ieview fee has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any examination time has been

expended.

The Building Official shall not be permitted to authorize refunding of any fee paid except

upon written application filed by the original permittee not later than 90 calendar days

aiter the date ol fee payment. Under no circumstances shall there be a refund of either fee

if the plan review or building permit has expired.

Section 110 Inspections-Add additional section to read as follows:

Section 110.7 Reinspections is added as follows:

110.7 Reinspections. A reinspection fee may be assessed for each inspection or

reinspection when any of the following conditions exist:

1. Such portion of work for which inspection is called is not completely ready.

Z. Previous written or verbal correction notices have not been complied with.

3. The job address is not clearly posted and clearly visible from the street or the

front of the building.
4. The inspector has no access to the work to be inspected.

5. The approved plans are not readily available to the inspector.

6. The building permit, application, appropriate documents, or any previous

correction notice(s) are not available at thejob site.

7. Deviating from the approved plans requiring further approval of the Building

Official.

This section shall not be interpreted as requiring reinspection fees the first time an

inspection is not approved for failure to comply with the requirements of this Code, but

as controlling the practice of scheduling inspections before the project is completely

ready for such inspections, the inspection site is not accessible to the building inspector

or when plans and/or permit documents are not available to the building inspector at the

site where the inspection is to be performed.

To obtain a reinspection, the applicant, or hislher designee, shall hrst pay the reinspection

fee in accordance with resolution adopted by the City Council.

K.

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 8 of23 Page 800

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



L

In instances where reinspection fees have been assessed, no additional inspection of the

work will be performed until the reinspection fees have been paid.

Section 111.1 Use and occupancy-Amend to read as follows:

No building or structure shall be used, occupied, or furnished in whole or in part, and no

change in the existing use or occupancy classification of a building or structure or portion

thereof be made until the Building Official has issued a certificate of occupancy therefore

as provided herein.

Issuance of a certificate of occupancy shall not be construed as an approval of a violation

of the provisions of this Code or of other ordinances of the jurisdiction. Certificates

presuming to give authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this Code or of other

ordinances of the jurisdiction shall not be valid.

M. Section 1 1 1.3-- Add a second paragraph to read as follows:

Temporary occupancy may occur only upon application for a Temporary Certificate of
Occupancy and the clearance for the connection of the gas and electrical utilities is

granted and payment is made for the additional inspections remaining to grant final

approval for occupancy of the entire building. In the event the building is not completed

and ready for final inspection in the time prescribed by the Building Official or if the

building is occupied prior to receiving a Certificate of Occupancy, the Building Official
shall be authorized to cause the building to be vacated and the utilities disconnected until
such time as the building is completed, final inspections are conducted and a Certificate

of Occupancy is issued as set forth above.

14.02.055 Violations-Nuisance.
Any violation of any code as adopted and amended by ordinance shall be, and the same is

declared to be, unlawful and a public nuisance.

14.02.060 Enforcement.
Unless otherwise set forth in this title, the Chief Building Official or hislher designee, shall

enforce the provisions of title pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1 .08 to I . 1 0, inclusive, of the

Folsom Municipal Cadg.

14.02.070 Penalties.
The following penalties shall apply to any violation of a provision of this title, unless a different

penalty is otherwise established by the city council and specifically set forth by ordinance:

A. A violation of any provision of this title shall be an administrative violation as defined in
Section 1.08.020, of Chapter 1.08, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code. In addition to

enforcement by any procedure set forth in Chapters 1.08 to 1.10, inclusive, any violation
of this title shall be punishable as a misdemeanor, which shall be punishable by a fine not

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 9 of 23 Page 801

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



to exceed $1,000, or by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than 6 months, or by

both such fine and imprisonment.
B. Each of the sanctions for administrative violations identified in Section 1.09.013 of

Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code shall be available for enforcement of
the provisions of this Chapter.

C. In addition to the criminal penalty set forth in Section 14.02.070(4) of this chapter, based

upon the standards for the imposition of administrative sanctions set forth in Section

1.09.014 of Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code, a violation of any

provision of this title shall be deemed a Level E violation, as that term is described in
Section I.09.0I2 of Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code. The range of
monetary sanctions available for violation of this Chapter shall be as forth in Section

1.0e.0r2(A) (s).

1 4.02.080 Enforcement Procedures.

A. Prior to the suspension, revocation, or denial of any license or permit, the assessment of
any fee, penalty, or change, or the commencement of any other enforcement action

pursuant to this title, the director of the Development Department shall

follow the procedures as set forth in Sections 1.09.020 to 1.09.048, inclusive, of Chapter

1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code. The rights to judicial review set forth in
Section 1.09.050 to 1.09.052, inclusive, of Chapter 1.09 of Title 1 of the Folsom

Municipal Code shall apply.
B. A notice to correct or stop order shall be served in accordance with the provisions of

Section 1.09.023 of Chapter 1.09, Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

1. Unless otherwise set forth in this title, if the violation that is subject of the notice

of correct concerns the failure to apply for andior obtain a valid permit, the time

allowed for application for a permit shall be no less than 7 calendar days and no

more than 30 calendar days. A stop order shall accompany the notice to correct,

and shall remain in effect pending the review of and decision on any permit

application.
2. Unless otherwise set forth in this title, if the violation that is the subject of the

notice to correct concerns (a) the failure to comply with conditions placed on a

permit or other entitlement issue by the City or (b) a violation of any provision of
this title, the time allowed to correct the violation shall be a minimum of 24 hours

and a maximum of 90 calendar days, depending upon the type of action that will
be necessary to correct the violation. If the violation creates a potential risk of
harm to persons or property, a stop order may accompany the notice to correct, and

shall remain in effect until the violation has been remedied to the satisfaction of
the director of the Community Development Department.

C. If the Director of the Community Development Department determines that there has

been a good faith effort to correct the violation(s) set forth in a notice to conect, the

director may extend the deadline for compliance for a reasonable period of time. Any
such extension shall be memorialized in writing and a copy shall be sent by first class

mail to all responsible persons.

D. A notice of administrative violation may be issued pursuant to the procedures established

in Section 1.09.024 of Title 1 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 10 of23 Page 802

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.02.085 Conflicts.
In the event of any conflict between this Code and any law, rule, or regulation of the Federal or

State Government, that requirement which establishes the higher standard of safety shall govern.

Failure to comply with such standard of safety shall be a violation of this Code.

Chapter 14.04
RESIDENTIAL CODE

Sections:
14.04.010
14.04.020
t4.04.030
14.04.040
14.04.050

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Residential Code

14.04.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the 'oFolsom Residential Code."

14.04.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Residential Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretations of all the provisions of the Folsom Residential Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.04.030 Purpose.
The purpose of this Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or limb, health,

ptop"rty, and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, construction, installation,

quality of materials, use and occupancy, location and maintenance of all buildings and structures

within this jurisdiction, and certain equipment specifically regulated herein, and to provide

procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction
-Codes 

and to enforce rules and regulations supplemental to this Code as may be deemed

necessary to clari$'the application of the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and

regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.04.040 Adoption by Reference.

Subject to the additions, amendments, or deletions set forth in Section 14.04.050 of this chapter,

the 
-California 

Residential Code, 2022Edition, based on the 2021Intemational Residential Code

for One- and Two-family Dwellings, including Appendix Chapters AH and AJ published as Part

2.5, Title 24, C.C.R., published by the International Code Council, is adopted and made part of
this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical requirements and the procedures for

administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes. One copy

of the Folsom Residential Code and any amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the

Community Development Department and shall be available for use and examination by the

public.

14.04.050 Additions, Amendments, or Deletions to Folsom Residential Code.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 1l of23 Page 803

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



C

The Folsom Residential Code is amended as follows:

A. Section Rl01.1 Title- Insert the words "City of Folsom" as the name ofjurisdiction.

B. Table R301.2 --- Shall read as follows:

Appendix AJ Existing Buildings and Structures---Amend the following sections to read as

follows:
a. AJ 102.4.1 Energy efficiency. Replacement windows shall comply with the 2022

California energy Code and the 2022 California Green Building Standards Code

(CALGreen).

b. AJ301.2 Water closets. Where any water closet is replaced with a newly

manufactured water closet, the replacement water closet shall comply with the

requirements of the 2022 California Plumbing Code and 2022 California Green

Building Standards Code (CALGreen).

c. AJ30l.3 Electrical. Exceptions 1,2 and 3. The words'Chapters 34 through 43'

shall be replaced with the words '2022 california Electrical code'.

d. AJ501.5.1 Materials and methods. In this section and in the Exception to this

section, the words 'Chapters 34 through 43' shall be replaced with the words '2022

California Electrical Code'.

e. AJ501.5.3.3 Ground-fault circuit-intemrpter. The words 'Chapters 34 through 43'

shall be replaced with the words '2022 California Electrical Code'.

f. AJ501.5.3.5 Clearance. The words'Chapters 34 through 43' shall be replaced with
the words '2022 California Electrical Code'.

Chapter 14.08
ELECTRICAL CODE

Sections:
14.08.0r0
14.08.020
14.08.030
14.08.040

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 12 of23

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

2022CR.C TABLE R301.2

CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA

GROUND
sNow
LOAD

WIND DESIGN SEISMIC
DESIGN

CATEGORY

SUBJECT TO DAMAGING FROM
WINTER
DESIGN
TEMP

ICE BARRIER
UNDERI"AYMENT

REQUIREI)

FLOOD
HAZARDS

AIR
FREEZING

INDEX

MEAN
ANNUAL

TEMPSpeed
(MPH) Exposure

Topographic
Effects

Special
Wind

Resion

Wind
Borne
I)ehiis

Weathering Frost Line Depth Termite

N/A 110 ult
90 asd

c No No No
CRC: C
CBC: DI

Moderate 12, Heavy 30F No Refercnce <1500 60.6 F

rWhen designing with the CBC per Section 1613.3'5' Refer€nce Table 1613.3'5 (2)

Page 804

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.08.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Electrical Code."

14.08.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Electrical Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretations of all the provisions of the Folsom Electrical Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.08.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Electrical Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or

Umb, nealttr, property and public welfare and to protect against hazatds that may arise from the

use of electricityby regulating and controlling the design, construction, and installation, quality

of materials, location and operation of electrical equipment, wiring and systems, and to provide

procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction
^Codes 

and to enforce rules and regulations supplemental to this Code as may be deemed

necessary to clariff the application of the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and

regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.08.040 Adoption by Reference.

The California Electrical Code, 2022 Edition, based on the 2020 National Electrical Code,

published as Part 3, Title 24, C.C.R., published by the National Fire Protection Agency, is

adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical

requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the

Foisom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Electrical Code and any amendments

thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall be available

for use and examination by the public.

PLUMBING CODE
Chapter 14.12

Sections:
14.t2.010
t4.12.020
14.12.030
14.r2.040
t4.12.050

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Plumbing Code

14.12.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Plumbing Code."

14.12.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Plumbing Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretationr of all the provisions of the Folsom Plumbing Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 13 of23 Page 805

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.12.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Plumbing Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or

timb, health, property and public welfare, and to protect against hazards that may arise from the

use of plumbing and fuel gas piping and systems by regulating and controlling the design,

construction, installation, quality of materials, location and operation of plumbing and fuel gas

systems within the City, and to provide procedures for administration and enforcement of the

piovisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to enforce rules and regulations supplemental

io this Code as may be deemed necessary to clariff the application of the provisions of this Code.

Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of
this Code.

14.12.040 Adoption by Reference.

Subject to the additions, amendments, or deletions set forth in Section 14.12.050 of this chapter,

the California Plumbing Code, 2022 Edition, based on the 2021 Uniform Plumbing Code,

including Appendix Chapters A, B, D, and G published as Part 5, Title 24, C.C.R., published by

the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, is adopted and made part of
this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical requirements and the procedures for

administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes. One copy

of the Folsom Plumbing Code and any amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the

Community Development Department and shall be available for use and examination by the

public.

14.12.050 Additions, Amendments, or Deletions to Folsom Plumbing Code.

The Folsom Plumbing Code is amended as follows:

A. Section I04.3.2 Plan Review Fees, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

B. Section 104.5 Fees, and all of its subsections shall be deleted in their entirety

c. Table 104.5 Plumbing Permit Fees, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

MECHANICAL CODE
Chapter 14.16

Sections:
14.16.010
14.16.020
14.16.030
r4.r6.040
14.16.050

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Mechanical Code

14.16.010 Title
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Mechanical Code."

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 14 of23 Page 806

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.16.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction'
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Mechanical Code. The Chief Buitding Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretations of all the provisions of the Folsom Mechanical Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.16.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Mechanical Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life

or limb, health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design,

construction, instaflation, quality of materials, location, operation, and maintenance of use of
heating, ventilating, cooling, refrigeration systems, incinerators and other miscellaneous heat-

producing appliances within the City, and to provide procedures for administration and

enforcemint-of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to enforce rules and

regulations supplemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clarifr the application of
the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity

with the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.16.040 Adoption by Reference.

Subject to the additions, amendments, or deletions set forth in Section 14.16.050 of this chapter,

the Califomia Mechanical Code, 2022 Edition, based on the 2021 Uniform Mechanical Code

published as Part 4, Title 24, C.C.R., published by the International Association of Plumbing and

Mechanical Offrcials, is adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to

provide technical requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the

provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Mechanical Code and any

amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall

be available for use and examination by the public.

14.16.050 Additions, Amendments, or Deletions to Folsom Mechanical Code

The Folsom Mechanical Code is amended as follows:

A. Section 104.3.2 Plan Review Fees, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

Section 104.5 Fees, and all of its subsections are hereby deleted in their entirety

Table 104.5 Mechanical Permit Fees, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

ENERGY CODE
Chapter 14.19

B.

C.

Sections:
14.19.010
14.19.020
14.19.030
14.t9.040

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 15 of23

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

Page 807

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.19.010 Title
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Energy Code."

14.19.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction'
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Energy Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and render

interpretations of all the provisions of the Folsom Energy Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.19.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Energy Code is to provide minimum standards to safeguard life or

limb, health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, construction,

installation, quality of materials, location, operation, and maintenance or use of energy and

energy systems within the City, and to provide procedures for administration and enforcement of
the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to enforce rules and regulations

suppiemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clarifu the application of the

p.ouirionr of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with
the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.19.040 Adoption by Reference.

The California Energy Code, 2016 Edifion, published as Part 6, Title 24, C.C.R., published by

the International Code Council, is adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth

herein to provide technical requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement

of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Energy Code and

any amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and

shall be available for use and examination by the public.

GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE
Chapter 14.20

Sections:
14.20.010
14.20.020
14.20.030
14.20.040
t4.20.050

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Green Building Standards Code

14.20.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Green Building Standards Code."

14.20.020 AuthorityHaving Jurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Green Building Standards Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce,

and render interpretations of all the provisions of the Folsom Green Building Standards Code and

the other referenced technical codes.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 16 of23 Page 808

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.20.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Green Building Standards Code is to improve public health, safety

and general welfare by enhancing the design and construction of buildings through the use of
building concepts having a reduced negative impact or positive environmental impact and

encouraging sustainable construction practices, and to provide procedures for administration and

enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to enforce rules and

regulations supplemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clariff the application of
the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity

with the intent and purpose of this Code.

Ordinance No. 1336
PagelT of23 Page 809

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.20.040 Adoption by Reference.

The California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen Code), 2022 Edition, excluding

Appendix Chapters A4, A5 and 46.1, published as Part 11, Title 24, C.C.R., is adopted and

-uA" part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical requirements and the

pro""d.r."r for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction
-Codes. 

One copy of the Folsom Green Building Standards Code and any amendments thereto,

shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall be available for use

and examination by the public.

HISTORICAL BUILDING CODE
Chapter 14.22

Sections:
t4.22.010
14.22.020
t4.22.030
14.22.040

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

14.22.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Historical Building Code."

14.22.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Historical Building Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and

render interpretations of all the provisions of Folsom Historical Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.22.030 Purpose.
The purpose of ttre Folsom Historical Building Code is to provide building regulations for the

rehabilitation, preservation, restoration (including related reconstruction), of relocation of
buildings or structures designated as historic buildings. Such building regulations are intended to

facilitate, by means of alternative solutions, the restoration of change of occupancy so as to

preserve their original or restored architectural elements and features, to encourage energy

conservation, disabled access and a cost-effective approach to preservation, and to provide for

the safety of the building occupants. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in

conformity with the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.22.040 Adoption by Reference.

The California Historical Building Code, 2022Edition, published as Part 8, Title 24, C'C.R., is

adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical

requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the

Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Historical Building Code and any

amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall

be available for use and examination by the public.

Ordinance No. 1336

Page 18 of23 Page 810

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



EXISTING BUILDING CODE
Chapter 14.23

14.23,010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Existing Building Code."

14.23.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Existing Building Code. The Chief Building Offrcial shall administer, enforce, and

render interpretations of all the provisions of Folsom Existing Code and the other referenced

technical codes.

14.23.030 Purpose.
The provisions of the California Existing Building Code adopted by the City of Folsom are

intended to establish the minimum requirements to safeguard the public health, safety and

general welfare through structural strength, means of egress facilities, stability, access to persons

with disabilities, sanitation, adequate lighting and ventilation and energy conservation; safety to
life and property from fire and other hazards attributed to the built environment; and to provide

safety to firefighters and emergency responders during emergency operations. Such

interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this

Code.

14.23.040 Adoption by Reference.
The California Existing Building Code, 2022 Edition, published as Part 10, Title 24, C.C.R., is

adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical

requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the

Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Existing Building Code and any

amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall

be available for use and examination by the public.

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE
Chapter 14.24

Sections:
14.23.0r0
14.23.020
14.23.030
14.23.040

Sections:
14.23.010
t4.23.020
t4.23.030
14.23.040
14.23.050
14.23.010

Ordinance No. 1336
Page 19 of23

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference
Additions, amendments or deletions to Folsom Property Maintenance Code

Title.

Page 811

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Property Maintenance Code."

14.23.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Property Maintenance Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and

render interpretations of all the provisions of Folsom Property Maintenance Code and the other

referenced technical codes. '

14.23.030 Purpose.
The purpose of the Folsom Property Maintenance Code is to provide minimum standards to

ensure public health, safety and welfare insofar as they are affected by the continued occupancy

and maintenance of structures and premises, and to provide procedures for administration and

enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to enforce rules and

regulations supplemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clariff the application of
the provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity
with the intent and purpose of this Code. The Folsom Property Maintenance Code is not to be

construed to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group of persons

who will or should be especially protected or benefitted by its terms.

14.23.040 Adoption by Reference.

Subject to the additions, amendments, or deletions set forth in Section 14.23.050 of this chapter,

based on the 202I lntenational Property Maintenance Code, published by the International Code

Council, is adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical

requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the

Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Property Maintenance Code and any

amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall

be available for use and examination by the public.

14.23.050 Additions, Amendments, or Deletions to Folsom Property Maintenance Code.

The Folsom Property Maintenance Code is amended as follows:

Section 101.1 Title- Insert the words "CiW of Folsom" as the rutme ofjurisdiction.

Section 102.10 Other laws-Add one additional sentence to read as follows: "Whenever

the requirements of this code conflict with Title 8, 'Health, Sanitation and Welfare' in the

Folsom Municipal Code or the State of California requirements, the more restrictive
requirements shall govern."

Section 103.5 Fee-Remove the words "indicated in the following schedule" and insert,

in lieu thereof, the following: "adopted by resolution by the city council."

Section 112.4 Failure to comply-Remove the words "of not less than [AMOLINT]
dollars or more than [AMOIINT] dollars" and insert, in lieu thereof, the following: "as

established in Title 14, Chapter 14.02, Sections 14.02.070 and 14.02.080 of the Folsom

Municipal Code."

Ordinance No. 1336
PageZ} of23

A.

B.

C

D

Page 812

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



E. Section 302.4 Weeds-Delete this section in its entirety

F. Section 304.l4lnsect screens-Insert the dates "January I to December 31".

G. Section 602.3 Heat supply-Insert the dates o'October I to May 1".

H. Section 602.4 Occupiable work spaces-Insert the dates "October 1 to May 1."

REFERENCED STANDARDS CODE
Chapter 14.26

Sections:
14.26.010
14.26.020
t4.26.030
14.26.040

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

14.26.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the'oFolsom Referenced Standards Code."

14.26.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Referenced Standards Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and

render interpretations of all the provisions of Folsom Referenced Standards Code and the other
referenced technical codes.

14.26.030 Purpose.
The purpose of this Code is to provide procedures for administration and enforcement of the
provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to adopt and enforce rules and regulations

supplemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clarifu the application of the
provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with
the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.26.040 Adoption by Reference.
The California Referenced Standards Code, 2022 Editron, published as Part 12, TitIe 24, C.C.R.,
is adopted and made part of this title as though fully set forth herein to provide technical
requirements and the procedures for administration and enforcement of the provisions of the

Folsom Construction Codes. One copy of the Folsom Referenced Standards Code and any

amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in the Community Development Department and shall

be available for use and examination by the public.

SWIMMING POOL AND SPA CODE
Chapter 14.28

Sections:

Ordinance No. 1336
Page2l of23 Page 813

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



14.28.010
14.28.020
r4.28.030
t4.28.040

Title
Authority Having Jurisdiction
Purpose
Adoption by reference

14.26.010 Title.
This Chapter shall be known and cited as the "Folsom Swimming Pool and Spa Code."

14.26.020 AuthorityHavingJurisdiction.
The Chief Building Official of the City is designated to be the authority having jurisdiction of the

Folsom Referenced Standards Code. The Chief Building Official shall administer, enforce, and

render interpretations of all the provisions of Folsom Swimming Pool and Spa Code and the

other referenced technical codes.

14.26.030 Purpose.
The purpose of this Code is to provide procedures for administration and enforcement of the

provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes and to adopt and enforce rules and regulations

supplemental to this Code as may be deemed necessary to clariff the application of the

provisions of this Code. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformity with
the intent and purpose of this Code.

14.26.040 Adoption by Reference.

Based on the Swimming Pool and Spa Code, 2021Edition, is adopted and made part of this title
as though fully set forth herein to provide technical requirements and the procedures for
administration and enforcement of the provisions of the Folsom Construction Codes. One copy

of the Folsom Referenced Standards Code and any amendments thereto, shall be kept on file in
the Community Development Department and shall be available for use and examination by the
public.

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY
If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason

held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such

decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining chapters of this ordinance. The City
Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each section, subsection,

sentence, clause, phrase or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections,

subsections, clauses, phrases or portions to be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTON 4 EFFECTIVE DATE
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption

in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

Ordinance No. 1336
Page22 of23 Page 814

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



This ordinance was introduced at the regular meeting of the City Council for the first reading on

December 13,2022, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City Council
ofJanuary 10,2023.

On a motion by Councilmember seconded by Councilmember
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council

of the City of Folsom, State of California, this tenth day of January 2023 by the following vote,

to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1336
Page23 of23 Page 815

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



This page intentionally Ieft blank
to focilitate double- sided printtng .

CITY OF

FOLSOl\{
DISTIXCTIVE BY NATUEE

Page 816

12/13/2022 Item No.22.



{'

il .':ii;'1,"j,{}l\t I
:. ::rl1!r 1!,:l *. t tf r'i:

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 121t312022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Report on Traffic Roundabout Fact-Finding Mission and

Direction to Staff Regarding Future Consideration of a Traffic
Roundabout Policy

F''ROM: Public Works Department

BACKGRO / ISSIIE

The Public Works Department recently conducted a fact-finding mission to visit communities

that are in the process of implementing "roundabout first" policies when determining what
form of traffic control should be implemented at intersections in their communities. Staff and

consultants from Kimley-Horn & Associates will provide a sunmary of the mission, discuss

the general challenges and opportunities associated with the use of roundabouts in lieu of
traffic signals, and will seek direction whether or not to bring a roundabout policy to Council
for future consideration.

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

1

Page 817

12/13/2022 Item No.23.



This page intentionally Ieft blank
to focilitate double- sided printing .

CITY OF

FOLSONI
DISTINCTIVE BY NATUiE

Page 818

12/13/2022 Item No.23.



Book 1 Page92
Folsom Public Financing Authority

September 13,2022

Meetinq Minutes

Joint Gitv Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agencv / Folsom Public Financinq
Authoritv / Folsom Ranch Financins Authoritv / South of 50 Parkins AuthoriW Meetinq

September 13. 2022

ROLL GALL:

CITY COUNCIUBOARD PRESENT
Vice MayorA/ice Chair Rosario Rodriguez
Council/Board Member Sarah Aquino
Council/Board Member YK Chalamcherla
Council/Board Member Mike Kozlowski
Mayor/Board Chair Kerri Howell

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
CFO Stacey Tamagni
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

CONSENT GALENDAR:

16. Approval of the July 12, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / Public
Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Meeting Minutes

17. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the
Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50
Parking Authority Monthly lnvestment Reports for the Month of June 2022

Motion made by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, seconded by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski
to approve the Consent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember{s):
NOES: Gouncilmember(s):
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s):

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor
Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 8:55 pm.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City ClerUBoard Secretary

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor/Board Chair

Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
None
None
None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council Page 819

12/13/2022 Item No.24.



This page intentionally Ieft blqnk
to facilitate double- side d printing .

CITY OF

FOLSOM
DIgTINC?IVE EY IIATURE

Page 820

12/13/2022 Item No.24.



Book 1 Page 69

Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority
November 8,2022

Meetinq Minutes

Joint Citv Council/ Folsom Ranch Financinq Authoritv Meetins

November 8. 2022

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers/Board
Members Present:

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers/Board
Members Absent:

None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
CFO/F|nance Director Stacey Tamagni

PUBLIC HEARING:

12. Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 20 (Russell
Ranch) SpecialTax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

i. Resolution No. 10948 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Authorizing the lssuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 20
(Russell Ranch) Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022the Execution of a First Supplemental
lndenture Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase
Contract, and Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of other Documents in
Connection therewith

ii. Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the lssuance, Sale, and Delivery of not to
Exceed, $15,000,000 Aggregate PrincipalAmount of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022; Approving the
Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and
Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement,
Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official Statement to be
Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase
Contract and Execution and Delivery of each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary
to lmplement the Proposed Financing

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation, noting the correction of the resolution
number in item 12(ii) to Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public hearing was
closed.

DMFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council
Page 821

12/13/2022 Item No.25.



Book 1 Page 70

Folsom Ranch Public Financing Authority
November 8,2022

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 10948.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquinon Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 010 - Folsom Ranch FA.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherlan Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting a17.45 pm.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City ClerUBoard Secretary

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor/Board Chair

DMFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council
Page 822

12/13/2022 Item No.25.



i. _:.!ar:.a t.1r.t:1:

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Finance Department recommends that the City Council receive and file the City of Folsom,

the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority monthly

Investment Reports for the month of September 2022'

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Under the Charter of the City of Folsom and the authority granted by the City Council, the

Finance Director is responsible for investing the unexpended cash of the City Treasury. The

primary objectives of the City's investment policy are to maintain the safety of investment

principal, provide liquidity to meet the short and long-term cash flow needs of the City, and

earn a market-average yield on investments. The City's portfolio is managed in a manner

responsive to the public trust and is consistent with state and local laws and the City's
investment policy. The Finance Department hereby submits the investment reports for the

City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing

Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority for

the month of September 2022.

MEETING DATE: 1211312022

AGENDA SECTION: Joint Meeting Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment

Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking

Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of
September2022

FROM: Finance Department

1

Page 823

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



POLI / RIII,E

1. Section 3.30.010(a) of the Folsom Municipal Code states "the term 'city' shall

encompass the city of Folsom, the Folsom community redevelopment agency, and all
other agencies and instrumentalities ofthe city under either the direct or indirect control

of the city council, and this chapter regulates the investment of all moneys of those

agencies."

2. Section 3.30.030(0 of the Folsom Municipal Code states that "the city's chief
investment officer shall each month submit an investment report to the city council,

which report shall include all required elements as prescribed by California

Government code section 53646."

3. California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659 sets forth the state law
governing investments for municipal govemments in California.

4. Section 3.30.020(9) of the Folsom Municipal Code states that*all city cash shall be

consolidated into one general bank account as set out in this code and invested on a
pooled concept basis. Interest earnings shall be allocated to all city funds and subfunds

according to fund and subfund cash and investment balance on at least a quarterly

basis."

ANALYSIS

Overview
The City has diversified investments in accordance with the City Investment Policy and

Government Code. The City of Folsom's total cash and investments are invested on a pooled

basis as required by the Folsom Municipal Code.

The Portfolio Summary of the City's current report includes a "Pooled Equity Section"

identiffing the Redevelopment Successor Agency's (RDSA) and Folsom Public Financing

Authority's (FPFA) portion of the investment pool. The RDSA and FPFA list these amounts

under "Cash" in their respective sections. Currently, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
(FRFA) has no funds invested in Pooled Equtty.

City of Folsom

Total Cash and Investments
The following graph illustrates the City's monthly cash and investment balances for fiscal
years 201 9 through 2023 . Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result of typical

receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital improvements.

As of September 30,2022, the City's cash and investments totaled $194,536,119; an increase

of $48,091 ,909 (33%) from September 30, 2021'

2
Page 824

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



+2018/19

City of Folsom Total Cash and lnvestments
(Fiscal Year)

-2o|9l2o -202o12I 
+2o21hz ..la-2022123

Total City Cash and Investments

Monthly
2022-23 Chanse

ocT NOV DEC JAN

2021-22

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

JUN

Yearly oh

Change

APR

o

9220

92oo

s180

S16o

5140

S12o

Sloo

The following chart shows the City's monthly cash and investment balances and percentage

change for Fiscal Year 2022-23 alongwith the yearly dollar and percentage changes.

Jul
Aug
sep

$ 799,093,877

$ 193,398,740

$ 194,536,1 19

$ 163,280,753

s 149,509,252

_$ 146,444,211

s 35,813,124

$ 43,889,488

$ 48,091,909
-3%

22%

29%
33%

-8%

l%

The City's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by

anticipated revenuss and the liquidity of its cash and investments. However, on September 30,

2022thecash and investments portfolio was not in compliance with Section 3.30.020(c) ofthe
Municipal Code, which states that less than 50o/o of the City's total cash be invested for a period

longer than one year. The total cash invested longer than one year as of September 30 was

50.85%. Finance Department staff were aware of the non-compliance, and determined

anticipated revenues and upcoming maturities would be sufficient to remedy the situation, as

opposed to liquidating longer term investments. As of October 31, 2022, the cash and

investments portfolio was once againin compliance, with cash and investments invested longer

than one year at 49.23% of the total portfolio.

-2%

a
J

Page 825

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



To Maturity as of September 30,2022

4-5 Yrs

70,224,8OO

0 Days

20,oBL,126
1 Day

2t,387,357
3.4 Yrs

28,599,s16

2-3 Yrs

30,763,632
15.2%

Days

33,5O2,945
t6,6%

33,300,539
16.5%

184-365 Days

24,269,863.
L2,0%

Investment Performance
The City's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2022 is
presented in Attachment 1 to this report. Portfolio investment earnings (including pooled

equity earnings for the RDSA and FPFA) for the three-month quarter ended September 30,

2022totaled $1,002,887 . Thetotal rate of retum of the investmentportfolio forthe same period

was 1.90o/o.

The following graph illustrates the total dollar amount and allocation percentages for
September 30,2021and September 30, 2022. The percentages in this graph are based on book

value.

4 Page 826

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



City of Folsom Portfolio Allocation

$1 00,000,000

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

$20,000,000

$-
Corporate US Agencies & Municipal
Bonds Treasuries Bonds

Cash - Money Market
Checking

Local
Government
lnvestment

Pool

commercial certificalesof
Paper Deposit

oSeptember 30, 2021 City Portfolio rSeptember 30, 2022 City Portfolio

82.62%

11,85%

A detailed listing of the portfolio holdings as of September 30, 2022 is included in Attachment

2 to this report.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LAIF) yield typically moves in the same direction as

market yields, but is less volatile, lagging somewhat behind market moves. This can be seen

in the chart on the next page, illustrating the historical monthly change in yield from July 2020

through September 2022for LAIF and two-year US Treasury securities. The effective rate of
return for the City Portfolio is also included.

Beginning March 11,2022 the Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) has increased the

Federal Funds Rate six times, most recentiy on Nove mber 2, 2022 to a rate of 3 .7 5%-4.0t0Yo,

up from 0.00-0.25% at the stan of the year. Another rate hike is expected December 14,2022,

most likely another .50%. The FOMC has stated that its goal is to get inflation to a2o/o target

range. While these rate hikes have reversed the trend of inflation increasing, it still remained

at 7.75o/o year over year as of October (down from the high of 9.06% in June), signaling the

likelihood of increases continuing into 2023, although projected at a slower pace than seen in
2022.

5
Page 827

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



Yield Comparison
July 2020 - September 2022

4.50Vo
4.000h
3.500h
3.000h
2.50o/o
2.000h
1.500h
1.000
0.50',h
0.009/o

I
/

1$ eo! +{eJ" {rt {p* 1$ eo! *r"p $f $S t$ eol

+I,AIF ..*2 Yr Trsy {_city

A listing of transactions for the first quarter of fiscal year 2023 is included in Attachment 3 to

this report.

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency

Total Cash and Investments
The RDSA had total cash and investments of $7,276,790 as of September 30, 2022. This is a

decrease of $198,085 (3%) since September 30,2021. The cash held by the RDSA is
comprised of city-held funds, as well as 2011 bond proceeds to be utilized for housing and

non-housing projects. These proceeds held by the Agency are broken out individually in the

Portfolio Management Summary in Attachment 1.

The following table and graph illustrate the monthly balances and their respective percentage

changes for the reporting period. Monthly fluctuations in cash and investments are the result

of typical receipt of revenues less expenditures for operations, debt service, and capital

improvements.

6
Page 828

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



Fols om Re developme nt Succes sor Age ncy

2022-23

Monthly
Change 2021-22

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Change

Yeady o/o

Change

-29%

Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency Total Cash and Investrnents

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$0
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

tr2020-21 a202t-22 42022-23

The RDSA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The RDSA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2022 is
presented in Attachment 1. The RDSA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter

ended June 30, 2022 totaled $35,666. The effective rate of return for the RDSA investment
portfolio for the same time period is 1.93%.

Folsom Public Financing Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The FPFA cash and investments totaled $32,593,924 as of September 30,2022. This is a
decrease of $6,138,733 (16%) from September 30, 2022. Monthly fluctuations in cash and

investments are the result of typical receipt of debt service repayment revenues and the

subsequent debt service expenditures. The following table and graph illustrate the monthly
balances and their respective percentage changes for the reporting period.

Jul
Aug
sep

$ 10,299,687

$ 7,276,599

s 7,276,790

$ 10,454,334

$ 7,474,685

s 7,474,875

$ (154,648)

$ (198,086)

$ (198,085)0%

29%

0%

-r%
-3%

-3%

7 Page 829

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



Folsom Public Financing Authority

2022-23

Monthly
Change

Monthly
Change

Yearly $
Chanse

Yearly o/"

Chanse-,,,,2021

Jul
Aug

Sep

$ 38,743,267

$ 38,743,274

s 32,593,924

$ 43,982,425

$ 43,982,425

$ 38,732,656

$ (5,239,158)

$ (5,239,151)

$ (6,138,733)
0%

-16%

0%

-l2%r

-12%

-12%

-16%

Folsom Public Financing Authority Total Cash and Investments

s65,000,000

$55,000,000

$45,000,000

$35,000,000

s25,000,000
Jut Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

82020-21 824 -22 a2422-23

The FPFA's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by
anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FPFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2022 is
presented in attachment 1. The FPFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended

September 30,2022 totaled $268,345. The effective rate of return for the FPFA investment
portfolio for the same time period is2.94o/o.

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The FRFA cash and investments totaled $1 15,730,000 as of September 30,2022, an increase

of $20,440,000 from the prior year. This increase is due to the issuance of $11,855,000
Community Facilities District No. 23 IA1 (Folsom Ranch) Local Obligations on May 11,2022

and $9,430,000 Community Facilities District No. 23 IA3 (Folsom Ranch) Local Obligations

8
Page 830

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



on August 10,2022. The only other activity within FRFA was the maturing of $845,000 of
local obligations held by FRFA on September 1,2022.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by

anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
The FRFA's Portfolio Management Summary report for the month of September 2022 is
presented in attachment l. The FRFA's investment earnings for the three-month quarter ended

September 30,2022 totaled $1,312,573. The effective rate of return for the FRFA investment

portfolio for the same time period is 4.77%;o.

South of 50 Parking Authority

Total Cash and Investments
The South of 50 Parking Authority cash and investments totaled $0 as of September 30,2022.

The Authority's projected cash needs for the next six months are sufficiently provided for by

anticipated revenues and the liquidity of its cash and investments.

Investment Performance
There is no investment activity for the South of 50 Parking Authority.

ATTACHMENTS

1. City of Folsom, Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, Folsom Public Financing

Authority, and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Portfolio Management Summary

September 2022
2. City of Folsom Portfolio Holdings as of September 30,2022
3. City of Folsom Transaction Summary, First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2023

Submitted,

Finance Director
Agency Finance Offrcer
Folsom Public Financing Authority Treasurer
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Treasurer
South of 50 Parking Authority Treasurer

9 Page 831

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



ATTACHMBNT 1

Page 832

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



W
City of Folsom

Combined City of Folsom, Redevelopment
Successor Agency, FPFA & FRFA

Portfolio Summaries
September 3A,2022

S) ltlatoma St.

Folrom, cA 956ixl

(sl6)/ff|116m0

IF'(()]tF$()N{I

Citv of Folsom
Cash

Certificate Of Ooposit

CommercialPsper

Corporale Bond

FFCB Bond

FHLB Bond

FHLMC Bond

FNMA Bond

Local Govsrnment lnvestmont Pool

Mon6y Market

Municipal Bond

Troasury Note

Tol8l , Averego

Cash

Non-Housing 201 14 Proeeds
Houshg 20118 Proceeds

Money Market

Toial, AYerege

YTM O CoEt

Flco Amount
Shereg

Dayr to
Mrtudtu

D!y! to
Mrturltv

Accru€d
lnt mtCorl Vrltra

2,523,096-00

I 1,095,557.43

29,581,605.54

24,0t9,749.64

t0,ggr,E:to.00

23,007,140"65

5,473,436.50

1,849,240.00

25,065,281,02

12,920,103.8i

53,570,892.20

1,968,750.00

CciVllm
171,837.14

2.591,295.00

4,512,477.',t7

780.38

Cut Vrlue

517,647.58

1,276.M

32"075,0@,00

Book

Vilue

Eook
Vrlue

Book
Vrlue

Book
Vrlue

Book
Vrlua

Mr.kot
Vrlue

Mrrkot
Vrlue

Msl*ot
Vrlil.

ilarkot
Vrlue

%ol
Porttolb

2.140Ph

2.6E8%

2.603%

2.274%

2561Yo

2-577

2.122%

2.724%
't"3{t0%

2,280Vo

2"Oil%
1.102o/o

2,523,096.00

r 1,1 12,000.00

30,000,000.00

23,S46,@0.00

11,000,m0.00

23,100,000.@

5,5(X),0@.ff)

2,m,(p0.00
25,065,281.02

12,920,1(Xt.81

54,2,l5,qt0.00

2,000,000.00

2,523,090.00

11,096,33,t.28

29,753,650.09

23,972,E80.86

10,96S,003. t6
23,OE6,2S2,37

5,48:t,006,53

r,870,759.48

25,005,281.02

12,920,103.81

53,612,071.86

1,970,6S6"43

2,523,096.00

10,710,540.82

29,695,600.00

22,2Vt,30d..12

10,623,420"00

21,886,192.00

5.391,885.00

r,78E,300.00

25,065,28't "02
12,920,103.81

50,704,608.55

1,903,120.00

%of
Porltolio

53,714.66

147,838.43

52.57e,17

88,429.71

32,808.34

729"17

1

938

95

746

689

s65

296

060

1

1

932

441

1"24

5,46

14.75

11.77

5.41

I 1.36

2.70

0.9E

12.12

0.35

26.67

$ 202,fl0,682.79 | 202,t2s,178.29 i 195,419,it51.32 572 0 805,e01.27

228,470.92

730-87 0"98

100.00

lnlereat Total Rrte

Cily of Folsom Csh and lnvestrnents (excludlng RDSA, FPFA & FRFA amdrnts)

Red€valopment Sucssor Agency (lncludsd in RDSA lnv€stment Report)

PuHic Financing Authority (includsd in PFA lnv€stment Report)

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (included in FRFA lnvestment Report)

Total Pooled Equlty

$ 194,536.119.42

7,276,009-3'1

517,647.56

3 202.329.776.29

96.15%

3"60%

o.z60h

o-00%

r(E.00%

Redsveboment Sucms*or Aoencv YTM a Cdt
Fso Amoqnu

Shrru!
Accrued

lntgmt
thol

Porifollo

1.350%t r,2f6,7a9.ag 0 7,276,788.09 0 7,278,7E9.09 $ 7.2?6,7E9.69

2.010%

2.O',t096

2.010%

2.810%

l7'1,a37-14

2,591,295.00

4,512,877.17

760.38

517,647,56

1,274,0/.

9t,0761000.00

17',t,437.14

2,591,295.00

4,s12,877.17

780.38

171,837.14

2,591,295.00

4,512,8nJ7
780"38

rl

2.6
35.61

62.02

0.01

100.qt

t00.00

Faca AmounU
Sha6

Deyr to
Mltu?ltv

Dtyt to
Mrlurlty

Accruad

lntamit

Accrugd

hterert

Yooi
Por1lolloFohom Publlc Financino.Autharltu YTM ro cort

C6h
Money Markst

Municipal Bond

Totrl , Aversgo

Folsom Ranch FinanclngAuthorlty YTM eDcort
itunicipalBond

Totel, Avarago

71,302.17

2.74a% I 12,593,923.80 i 32,503,823.00 $ 32,593,923.60 $ 32,593,923.00 2lo5 $ t'1,902.17

2.010%

2,A11%

2.7ffiV.

517,647.50

I,276.04

32.075,m0"00

5t7,647.58

1,278.04

32,075.000.00

1.59

o.00

s"41

1

I
2633

Ftce Amount
Share!

'hol
Portiolio

,'y;wr-

Coat Vrlue
4.691% 115.7E1.000.0 115,730,{l(X}.@ 11s.730.000.@ 115.730,000.00 7475 437,321.47 1(x100
,0.081% I 115,730,000.00 I t15,73q000.00 I 11s,730,000.00 $ 11s,730,000,00 7f75 $ 4t7,321.47 100.00

l,lovember 30. 2022

$ r,002,887.28

35,605.93

284,445,22

Siacey Tamagni, Finance Diredor Oate

Page 833

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 834

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



City of Folsom

Portfolio Holdings
Portfolio Holdings for lnv, Report
Reporl Format: By Transactlon
Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Security Type
Average By: Face Amount / Shares

As of 9/30/2022

Dsrcrlptlon lstugt Coupon
Rate

Fac€ Amugharc! %otPorfollo

cash
Wells Faroo Cesh Wells Faroo 0.000 523.098"00 0.26

Wells Faroo Cash Wells Faroo 2.700 2,000.000.00 0.98

Sub Total / Averaoe Cash 2.140 2.523.096.00 1.24

Allv Bank 2,95 121912025 Allv Bank 2.950 246.000_00 o.12

American ExDreEE National Bank 3.15 5h 1 12027 American Express Nalional Bank 3.1 50 246,000.00 o.12

larclavs Bank 1 .95 2nU2O27 Barclavs Bank 1,950 247.OO0.OO o.12

Belmont Savinos Bank 2.75 311412023 Belmont Savinos Bank 2.750 246.000.00 0.'12

ieneficial Bank 2"15 1011812022 Beneficial Bank 2.150 247.OOO.OO 0_'l

BMW Bank of Notlft. Amefica2.s 412512025 BMW Bank of North America 246.000.00 o_12

CaDltal One Bank (USA) NA 3.5 7/2712027 Caoital One Bank (USA) NA 3.500 245,000.0( o,12

;aoitial One NA 3.5712712027 CaDitial One NA 3.500 245.000.00 o.12

CFD Community Bank 3.4 1213112024 CFD Community Bank 3"400 245.000.00 o_12

)om€nitv Capital Bank 2.8 411412026 Comenity Capltal Bank 2,600 249.000.00 o,12

Connexus 3.4 8/1 5/2025 Connexus 3.400 249.000-00 o-12
Discover Bank 3.2 511912027 Discover Bank 3.200 246.000.00 0.12

Eaolemark Savinos Bank 2-9 611312025 Eaolemark Savinos Bank 2_900 246.000.00 o.12

EsEenliaf FCU A.55 121 512023 Essential FCU 3.550 245.000.00 0.12

Farme/s & Mercfi anl.s Banks.3 gl27 12023 Farmefs & Merdhanls Bank 3.300 245,000.00 o"'t2
First Natlonal Bank Paraoould 2.6 611012024 First National Bank Paraoould 2.604 249.000.00 o.12

Greenstate CU 3.1 511412027 ireenstale CU 3.100 249.000.0c 0.12
Jelferson Finencial Fcu 2.45 1111012022 Jefferson Finencial FCU 2.451 245.000.00 0-1

Jonesboro state Bank 1.1 121812026 Jonesboro Stat€ Bank 1.100 249.000.00 0.12

Keamey Bank 2.45 1113012023 Keamey Bank 2.454 247,000.00 0.12

Lafavefte FCU 3.2 512612026 Lafevette FCU 3.200 249.000"00 o-12

Leader Bank NA2.55 412212025 Leader Bank NA 2.550 246.000.00 0_12

Medallion Bank 2.15 11l1'll2o22 Medalllon Bank 2.150 247.000.00 o.'t2
Moroan Stanlev Bank. NA 2.2 7 12512024 Moroan Stanlev Benk. NA 2.200 247.000_00 0.12
Moroan Stanlev Private Bank. N42.2711812024 Moroan Stanlev Private Bank. NA 2,200 247,OOO,OO 0.12
Nalional Coooeralive Bank. NA 5.4 122'll2O2S National Coooerative Bank. NA 3-400 245.000.0c o.12

Neiohbors FCU 3.3 911912023 Neiohbors FCU 3.300 245,000.00 4.12

New York Community Bank 0.65 Sl1Ol2O24 {ew York Community Bank 0.550 249.000.00 0,12

Oceanf irst Bank NA 3.25 7 I I 12024 Oceantirst Bank NA 3.250 246.000.00 o,12

Pentaqon FCU 1.4 211812025 P€ntaoon FCU 1 249,000.00 o.'t2
,referred Bank 4 9l?ol2o27 Preferred Bank 4.000 249.000.00 0.1:

Procrowth Eank'1.2 812212024 ProGrowth Bank 1.200 249,000.00 0.12

afra National Bank of NY 2 312412025-22 Safra National Bank of NY 2.00t 247,000_00 o.12

Sharonview FCU 3.400 249.000,00 0.12
State Bank of lndia Chicaoo 3.85 912312027 State Bank of lndia Chicaqo 3.850 245,000.00 o.12

rte Bank of lndia NY 3.35 6/1/2027 ate Bank of lndia NY 3.350 245.000.o0 0.

Svnchronv Bank 3.'l 5l2Ol2O25 ivnchronv gank 3.1 00 246.000.00 o.12

Synovus Bank '1.45 1011712022 vnovus Bank 1 450 248,000.00 0.12
Texas Exchanse Bank, SSB 1.2512110/202A Texas Exchanoe Bank. SSB 1.25( 249.000.00 o.12
Third Federal S&L of Cleveland 3.5 612812027 Third Federal S&L of Cleveland 3.500 245.000,00 o.12
Tovota Financial Savinqs Bank 0.65 91912024 Tovota Financial Savinas Bank 0.650 249,000.00 o.12
JBS Aank USA 2.9 41312024 UBS Bank USA 2.900 249.000.00 0.12

Uinta Countv Bank2.6 ?i1612023 Uinta County Bank 2,600 246,000,00 o.12

USAlliancs Financial 3.45 812612027 USAlliance Financlal 3.450 245.000_00 0.

Wells Femo National Bank West LV 1.9112912023 Wells Faroo National Benk West L\ 1.90( 249.000.00 o.12

Sub Total lAveraoe Ceriiflcat€ Of Deoosit 2.650 1 1.1 12.000.00 5.46

BofA Securitles lnc. O 1Ol2Ol2O22 lBofA Securities lnc. 0.0001 5.000.000.001 2.46

ciliqrouo Global Markets 0 3/1/2023 lCitiorouo Global Markets 0.0001 5,000.000.001 2.46
)reditAoricole CIB NY O 11114/2022 lcredit Aoricole CIB NY 0.0001 5.000.000.00[ 2.46

Credit Aoricole CIBNY O 11nAl2O22 lCreditAorlcole CIB NY 0.0001 2.500.000.001 1.23

MUFG Bank Ltd/NY o 121'1412022 IMUFG Bank Ltd/NY o.000t 2.500.000.001 123
I\IUFG Bank Ltd/NY O 21112A23 IMUFG BanK LId/NY 0.0001 5.000.000.001 2.46

Page 835

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



,tatixis NY 0 111912023 Nalixis NY 0.000 2.500.000-00 1.23

Natixis NY 0 5l'1512023 Natixis NY 0.000 2,500,000.00 1.23

Sub Total / Averaoe Commercial Paper o.oo0 30.000.000.00 14"75

Bank of America Corp 0.8 212412026-22 Bank of Am€rica Coro 0.800 2,000,000.00 0^98

Bank of America Coto 4 51512026-22 Bank of America corp 4.000 2.000.000.00 0.98

Bank of Montreal 1.22311712026-22 Bank of Montreal 1.220 2,000,000.00 0.98

Bank of Montreal Sleo 7 l$Ol?o25-2'l Bank of Montreal 1_O00 2,000,000.00 0.98

of NY Mellon 3.5 3.500 1,000,000.00

4
Finance

0,98

Paclflc Llfe GF ll 1.2 612412025

rrril, rilrdilus vurP-

Pacilic Life GF ll 1.200 1.500.000,00 0.74

PNC Bank N42.7 1't1112022-22 PNC BanK NA 2.700 2,000,000_00 0.98

Roval Bank of Canada Var- Coro 311812025 Royal Bank of Canada 3.600 3.000.000.00 1.47

US Bank NA Cincinnali 2.85 112312023-22 US Bank NA Cincinnati 2.850 2,446,000.00 1.20

Sub Total / Averaoe Coroorate Bond 2,541 23.946.000.00 11.77

FFCB Bond

FFCB 0.68 ',1212012023 FFCB o.680 2.000.000.00 0.98

FFCB 1.75 2t25n025 FFCB 1.750 2.000.000.00 0.98

FFCB 2.625 6t10t2024 FFCB 2,825 3.000.000"00 1"47

FFoB2.8'1112512025 FFCB 2.800 2.000.000.00 0.98

F F CB 4.'t25 10t',t7 I 2023 FFCB 4.125 2.000.000.00 0.98

Sub Toial / Aversoe FFCB Bond 2.417 1 1.000,000.00 5.41

FHLB Bond

FHLB 0,6 1211712024-21 FHLB 0_6001 2,000,000.001 0.98

FHLBO.T 4t24t2025-22 FHLB 0.7001 500.000.001 o.25

FHLB 1.375 8126t2026-22 FHLB 1.3751 2,000,000.001 o.98

FHLA2.S7 7t271202&23 FHLB 2.9701 2.000.000.001 0.98

FHLB 3 712212026-22 IHLB 3.0001 2.000.000.001 0.98

FHLB 3.05 7t2812023-23 FHLB 3.0501 2,000,000.001 0.98

FHLB 3.35 8t24t2023-22 FHLB 3.350 I 2.000.000.001 0.98

FHLB 3.875 911512023 FHLB 3.875 I 2,000,000.001 0.98

FHLB 4 7t24t2025-22 FHLB 4"0001 1.250.000.001 0.61

FHLB Step 112712027-23 FHLB 1.0001 2.000.000.001 0.98

FHLB Step 211812025-22 FHLB 1,0001 1,350,000.001 0.66

FHLB SleD 712912026-21 FHLB 0.7001 2.000.000.001 0.98

FHLB SteD 812812024-22 FHLB 3.0001 2.000,000.001 0.98

Sub Tolal / Av€raoe FHLB Bond 2.2741 23.100.000.001 11.36

FHLMC Bond

FHLMC O.25 Al24l2A23 IFHLMC 0.2501 1.500.000.001 0.74

FHLMC 2.3 511712023-22 IFHLMC 2.3001 3,000.000.001 1.47

FH LMC 2.55 12t22t2023-22 IFHLMC 2.s501 1.000.000.001 0.4s

1.7861 5.500.000.001 2.74

FNMA Bond

FNMA 0.375 At2512025 FNMA 0.3751 2.000.000.001 0_98

olal / Av€n(te FNMA Bond 0.3751 2,000,000.001 0.98

LocaiGovemment lnvestment Pool

l-AlF City LGIP lAlF Citv 1.350 19.996.097.671 9.8

I.AIF FPFA LGIP LAIF FPFA 1.350 5.069.183.35 I 2.49

Sub Total / Averaoe Loeal Government lnvestment Pool 1.350 25.065.28'1.021 12.32

Money
Wells Faroo MM lwetts 2.280 8.431.257 17 4"14

Wells Faroo MM lwells Farso 2.280 4.488.846.64 2.21

inev Markel I 2.280 12.920.103_61 6.35

Bond

Alameda countv GoBs 3.28 811/2023 Alameda Countv GOBs 3.280 500,000.00 o.25

Alemeda Counlv GOBs 3.46 Sl1l2O27 Alameda Countv GOBs 3.460 500.000.00 0.25

Alvord USD GOB9 1.062 th 12025 Alvord USD GOBS 1.062 1.280.000.00 0_63

Antelooe Vallev CCD 2,016 81112027 Antelooe Vallev CCD 2.016 1.000,000.00 0.49

Belmont-Redwood Shore6 SD o.389 81112a23 Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.369 125,000.00 0.06

Balmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.838 81112024 Belmon!Redwood Shores SD 0.638 250,000.00 0.12

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0-369

Beverlv Hills PFA Lease Rev 0.499 6/1

Shores SD Ser o 369 0.08

HiIIs PFA LeasE 61112024 leverlv Hills PFA Lease Rev 0.730 300,000.00 o.15

Bevorlv Hills USD 2.45 81112024 Bevsrly Hills USD 2.450 1.000.000.00 0-49

Beverlv Hills USD 2.65 81112025 Beverlv Hills IJSD 2.650 780,000.00 0_38

Page 836

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



7 4t1t2026 Bev€rly Hills USD 2.700 'l.o00.000.o0 0.49
Val 1.051 12t1t2026-21 CA St DWR Cent Val Proi 1 051 1.625.000.00 0.80

Carson RDASA TABS 0.981 300.000.00 0.15
12024 CATSON RDASA TAB9 1.188 400.000.00 0.20

Carson ROASA TAB9 1.2AA il112025 Carson RDASA TABs 1.244 300.000.00 0-15
Cilrus CCD GOBs 0.669 400.000.00 0.20

Citrus CCD GOBS 0.A19 El1l2O25 Citrus CCD GOBs 0,819 400.000.00 o.20
975 1.975 1.265.000.00 0.62

Colton USD 0-702 81112023 Colton USD o.702 1.000.000.00 0.49
12024 colton usD 0.882 1.000.000.00 0.4s

Revenue CSU Revenue Bonds 0,563 615.000.o0 0.30
CSU Revenue Bonds 0,685 11t112024 ;SU Revenue Bonds 0.685 500.000.00 0.25

1 Davis RDA-SA TABS 1.750 625,000.00 0.31
Davis RDA-SA TABE 2 91 1 12025 )avis RDA.SA TABS 2.000 435_000.00 o-21
Dixon tlSD 0,953 8/ Dixon USD o-953 100.000.00 0.05

Folsom Cordova USD lmD Dist 2 2.000 160,000 00 0.08
Folsom Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2101112023 Folsom Cordova USD lmo Dist 2 2.O00 165.000.00 0.08
Folsom Cordovs U ) lmp Dlst 2 2101112024 Folsom Cordova USD lmo Dist 2 2.OOl 1.000,000.00 0.49
Folsom Cordova USD lmo Disl221ol1l2025 Folsom Cordova USD lmp Dist 2 2.000 1.040.000.00 0.51

'De 
ESD 0,970 300.000.00 0.15

Hope ESD 1.170 285,000.00 0.14
Los Altos SD 1 101'|12024 Los Altos SD 1^000 2.000.000.00 0.98

o.679 811t2026 Marin CCD GOs 0.679 900,000.00 0.44
Moreno Vallev USD 1.671 140,000,00 0.07

tuloreno Vallev USD 1.941 8l'112024 Moreno Valley USD '1.941 195.000.00 0.10
81112025 Moreno Vallev USD 2.203 100,000.00 0,05

Moreno Valley USD 2.328 110.000.00 0-05
RDA-SA 0.961 Moroen Hill RDA-SA 0.961 1.425.000.00 o.70

Oak Grove SD 0.501 600 000 00 0.29
SD GOBs )xnard SD GOBs 0.820 345.000.00 o.17

Oxnard UHSD 1.256 500,000.00 o.25
Palomar CCD 0.881 81112025 Palomar CCD 0.881 300.000.00 o.15

8t'v2024 Pitlsburo USD 0"670 680.000.00 0.33
Rancho Santiaqo CCD GOBs 0.634 1.000.000-00 0.49

PFA 1.847t1t2023 Riverside cntv PFA 1.840 195.000.00 0.10
Sacramento Reo. Sar Sacramento Reo, Sanitation Dislric 1.O42 2.305.000_00 1.13
San Bernardino CCD 0.335 81112023 an Bernardino CCO 0.335 1.500.000.00 o"74

San Bernardino CCO 0.605 1,000,000.00 o.4s
San Jose Everoreen CCD 0"S2'l 9t112O25 San Jose Everqreen CCD 0.921 1.000.000,00 0.49

17A8/U2026 San Jose RDA-SA 3.176 2.170.000.00 1.07
Jose San Jose RDA-SA 3.228 1.500.000.00 o.74

an Jose RDASA TABS 2-828 81112023 SAN JOSE RDASA TABS 2.824 500.000,00 0.25
San Jose San Jose USO 1,014 700.000.00 0.34
Santa Clarita PFA Lease Santa Clarita PFA Lease Rev 0.976 355.000-00 o.17

anta Clarita PFA Lease Rev 1.178 81112025-20 Santa Clarita PFA Lease Rev 1- 176 360.000.00 0.18
SF BART Rev Bon( t2.621 7t1t2023-17 SF BART Rev Bonds 2.621 735,000.00 0.36
St. of Texas GOB'9 3.011 101112026-25 St of Texas GOB'S 3.011 2.000.000.00 o.98

10t1t2022 Stste of CA GO 2.500 1.000.000.00 0.49
State of Califomia G( 2.37510t1t2026 Slate of California GO 2.375 1,600,000.00 0.79
Univ of CA Revenue 0.628 5/1512023-23 Unlv ofCA Revenue 0.628 125.000"00 00

0.833 511512024-24 Univ of CA Revenue 0.833 250.000.00 0.12
9 Univ of CA Revenue 2.657 500,000.00 0.25

7t1t2025 Jniv of CA Revenue 3.063 985.000_00 0,48
Revenue 3.063 7/1/2025 univ ol CA Revenue 3-063 2.000,000.00 0-98

West Contra Costa I sD't-76't 8t1t2024 West Contla Costa USD 1.761 1.000.000.00 0.49
Yosemite CCD 0.56' 411t20.23 Yosemite CCD 0.561 '1.000.000.00 0.49

)semite CCD 0"804 81112024 Yosemite ccD 0.804 500.000"00 0.25
Yosemlte ccD 1 -1 4 An 12023 Yosemite CCD 1140 750.000-00 0.37
Yosemite CCD 1.35 811t2026 Yosemite CCD 1,350 680.000-00 0-33

Yosemite CCD 1-350 820,000.00 0.40
Yosemit€ CCD 1.44 81112024 Yosemlte CCD 1.440 300.000.00 0.15
Yosemite CCD 1.689 81112025 Yosemit€ ccD 1-689 750.000.00 0.37

1 Yosemite CCD 1.912 250.O00_00 0.12
Sub Total / Averaoe MuniciDal Bond 1.661 54.245.000.00 26.67

T-Note 0.1 25 1211512023 reasury 0.125 2-000.000.00 0.98
sub Total / Average reasury Note o.125 2.000.000.00 0.98

Page 837

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 838

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



City of Folsom
Transactions Summary

Transaction Summary - lnveslment Report
Portfolio / Report Group: City of Folsom

Group By: Action

Begin Date: o7lo1l2o22, End Date: osl3ol2022

Dcecrlptlon Securlty Typc
Settcilont

Dete
liaturlty

Deb
Faco

Amt Sh.rer Prlnclp.l YTTI@
Co6t

Alameda County GOBS 3,28 8/1/2023 Municipal Bond al24l2a22 w1t2o23 500,000.00 3.280
Alameda County GOB9 3.4A thnl27 Municipal Bond

Bond
8t24t2022
811512022

u'112027 I 500,000.00

I e4i6d66
3.460
3.301

Barclavs Bank 1. g 5 212312027 Cediticate Of DeDosit 8t31t2022 212312027 247 I 232.222"2, 3,402
)aoitial One Bank (USA) NA 3.5712712027 Certificate Of DeDosit 7127t2022 7t27t2027 245.000.0c 245.000.00 3:500

Capitial One NA 3.6712712027 Certiflcate Of DeDosit 7t27t2022 712712027 245.000 00 3.500
CFD Communitv Bank3.4 1213112024 lertificate Of Deposit 7122!2022 12t31t2024 245.000 00 3 400
)itisrouoclobalMa|kels 4 811 512024-23 Coroorate Bond 4t15t2022 4n5t2024 2,000.000.00 2.000.000.00 4,00c

Connexus 3.4 811512025 Certiticate Of DeDosit 8t15t2022 8t15t2025 249,000.00 3.40C

Credit Aoricole CIB NY O 1111412022 lommercial Paoer 911412022 11t14t2022 5.000.000^00 4.975.006.94 2.965
tFcB 4.125 10t17t2023 FFCB Bond 9t20t2022 10t17t2o23 2.000 000 00 1.S99.660.00 4.144

FHLB 3.35 A12812023-22 FHLB Bond 8t30t2022 8t28t2023 t.000.000.00 2.000.000.0c 3.350
FHLB 3,875 9t15t2023 FHLB BONd 9115t2022 911512023 1.998.740.0C 3_940
FHLB 47t24t2025-22 FHLB Bond 712912022 7t24t20.2s 't.250.000,00 1 250 000 0c 4.000
FHLB Sleo el28l2124-22 rHLB Bond 8130r2022 812812024 .000.000.00 2.000.000.00 3_878

oroan Hill RDA-SA 0.961 91112025 MuniciDal Bond 4t4t2022 9t1t2025 't.425.000.o0 1.317.S39,75 3"562
MUFG Bank LldlNY 0121412022 ommercial PaDer sh4l2a22 12114t2022 2.479.544.1 3.257
MUFG Bank LldlNY 0 2t1r2023 Commercial Paoer 4t1t2022 211t2023 5.000.000.00 4.9't7.200.0A 3.295
Natlxls NY 0 5/1 5/2023 Commercial PaDer 8t19t2022 5t15t2Q23 2.4XO.695.1' 3.816
Prsf€n€d Sank 4 g I ?O I 2027 )ertiticaie Of Deoosit 9130t2022 913012027 240,000.( 249.000.0t 4.000
San Jose RDA-SA 3.176 81112028 MuniciDal Bond 81412A22 8111202t 2.152.140.9A 3.396
San Jose RDA-SA 3.228 81112027 Municipal Bond sh6t2022 thl2a27 1 1.441.260-Ot 4.120
San Jose USD 1.014 8l'112027 MuniciDai Bond 4t22t2022 ant2027 700,000.00 624,904.00 3,390
Sharonview FCU 3,4 Al1 512025 Certificate Of DeDosit 8115t2022 8115t2025 249.000.00 3.400

late Bank of lndia Chicaoo 3.85 9/2312027 Certificate Of Deoosit 9t23t2022 u23t2421 245.000.00 245,000,00 3.850
UsAllisnca Financlal 5.45 6l26l2Ln Certificate Of Deoosit sl26no22 8n6t2027 245.000.00 3.450
Yosemite CCD 1.35 81 1 I 2026 Municipal Bond st1st2022 81112026 820.000"00 738.172.20 4.171
Yosemite CCD'1,35 81 1 12026 MuniciDal Bond 7nz20a 8111202A 623,981.60 3.550
Sub Total / Average Buy 37 37.O95.'t40.S6

Matured

Belmont-Redwood Shores SD 0.269 afil2o22 Municipal Bond 81112022 81112022 300.oo0.o0 0.000
Belmont-Redwood Shores SD Ser B 0.269 81112022 Municipal Bond 8t1t2022 8t1t2422 140,000.00 140.@0.00 0.000
cabriilo ccD 1 "91 3 gt't t2022 Municioal Bond at1t2Q22 at1no22 230,000.00 0 000
Carson RDASA TABS 0-909 8/1/2022 fiunicipal Bond 8l'12022 ant2022 400.000.00 400.(po.00 0.00c
CreditAoricolo CIBNY O 812512022 Commercial Paper 8t25t2022 8t25t2022 5.000.000"00 5.000.000.0c 0.0c
Davis RDA-SA TAB9 1,72 51112022 MuniciDal Bond 9t't20n 91112022 .225.000.o0 1,225.000.00 0,00c
First Bank of Hlohlghd Patk 2.2 812312022 ertlficete Of Deposit 8t2312022 812312022 247.OOO.O0 0.00c
l.A cnry RDA Rsf Aulfi2gt1r2022 Municioal Bond 9t1na22 9,t1t2022 1.235.000.00 't.235.000.0c 0.000
MUFG Bank LldlNY o7t2512o22 Commercial Paoer 712512022 7125t2022 5,000,000.00 0.000
MUFG Bank LtdlNY Ogt1St2022 Commercial Pap€r 9t1512022 9t1912022 2.500.000.00 2.500.000.0c 0.00(
Murrieta ROA-SA TAB9 2.5 thl2,22 l\Iuniciosl Bond 4t1t2022 ah12022 250.000.00 250.000-00 0.000
Natlxis NY 0 8l1sl2o22 Commercial Paoel an912022 8t15t2022 5.000.000.oc 0.000
Oxnard SD GOBS 0.587 81112022 unicipal Bond 81112022 8t1t2022 700.000.0c 0.00c

mard UHSD 0.372 8l 1 12022 uniciDal Bond 4t1t2o22 anno22 250,000.0c 0.000
San Jose RDA-SA 2.63 81112022 [IuniciDal Bond 811t2022 8t1t2022 't.000.000.0c o.000
San Jose RDA-SA 2.83 8rll2122 Municipal Bond 8t1t2022 8t1t2022 1.000.000.00 't.000.000.0c 0.000
T|AA, FSB 2.28116t2022 Certificate Of Deoosit 811612022 4t16t2022 247.OOO"OO 247,O00.0C 0.000
Toyota Motor Credllcotp O 7l2Ol2O22 Commercial Paper 7t20t2022 7t20t2022 2.500.000.00 0.000
Wells Faroo & Co 2.825712212022 oroorate Bond 7t2212022 7t22t2022 1,000.000.00 1,000.000.00 0.000
West Contra Costa USD 1.434 th 12022 ilIuniciDal Bond 8t1t2022 81112022 360.000.00 0.000
Wsst Sacramento Area Flood Control Aov 1,847 91112 Municipal Bond 9t1t2022 91112022 200.000.00 200.000.00 0.000
Yosemite CCD 0.75 8nl2o22 Municloal Bond anDo22 8t1t2922 550_000_oo 550 000.00 0,000
Sub Total / Average Matured 29.334.000.

seil
Apple Bank for Savings2.4 4l2gl2o24 Certificate Of DeDosit 9121t2022 4t2912024 246.000,00 23s.112.oo1 o ooo
Ravmond James Bank. NA 1.95 8/2312023 Cerlilicate Of Deoosit 9t2',1t2022 8n3t2023 247,000.00 242.060.001 0.000
Sub Total /Average Sell 493.000-00 48't,'t72.001

Page 839

12/13/2022 Item No.26.



This pnge intentiono,Ily W blank
to facilitate double- sided printing .

FOLSOl\{
cttY OF

DISTINCTIVg BY NA?UFE

Page 840

12/13/2022 Item No.26.


	Top
	12/13/2022 Item No.1.	Staff Presentation on New State Housing Laws
	12-13 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION ON NEW STATE HOUSING LAWS

	12/13/2022 Item No.2.	City Manager's Financial Update for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2022-23
	12-13 STAFF REPORT CITY MANAGER'S FINANCIAL UPDATE FIRST QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

	12/13/2022 Item No.3.	Approval of November 8, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	12-13 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 8, 2022

	12/13/2022 Item No.4.	Receive and File SB-165 Annual Reports for Community Facilities Districts No. 13, No. 14, No. 2013-1, No. 16, No. 17, No. 18, No. 19, No. 20, No. 21, No. 22, and No. 23 to Comply with the Local Agency Special Tax Bond and Accountability Act
	12-13 STAFF REPORT SB 165 ANNUAL REPORTS FOR CFD SPECIAL TAX BOND AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

	12/13/2022 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10950 - A Resolution Repealing Prior Resolution No. 8153, Adopting an Updated Records Retention Schedule, and Authorizing Destruction of Certain City Records in Accordance with the Records Retention Schedule
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10950 UPDATED RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

	12/13/2022 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10951 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 2021-22 Enhancing Law Enforcement Activities Growth Special Account, Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10951 FY 2021-22 COPS GRANT GROWTH FOR PURCHASE OF TECHNOLOGY AND EQUIPMENT

	12/13/2022 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10952 - A Resolution Accepting Fiscal Year 2022-23 Citizen's Option for Public Safety (COPS) Grant for the Purchase of Technology and Equipment to Improve Police Operations in Accordance with State Requirements and Appropriation of Funds
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10952 FY 2022-23 COPS GRANT FOR PURCHASE OF TECHNOLOGY AND EQUIPMENT

	12/13/2022 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10953 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Renewal of the Service Agreement with Dropcountr, Inc. for Use of the Dropcountr Base Platform, Dropcountr Business and the HOME+ Irrigation Module for Two Years
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10953 AGREEMENT WITH DROPCOUNTR INC

	12/13/2022 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10954 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Peterson Brustad Inc. for the Water Storage Tank and Cathodic Protection Systems Inspection Program
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10954 AGREEMENT WITH PBI FOR THE WATER STORAGE TANK AND CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM

	12/13/2022 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10955 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with The Permanente Medical Group, Inc. (TPMG) to Provide the Folsom Fire Department a Medical Director
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10955 CONTRACT WITH PERMANENTE MEDICAL GROUP FOR FIRE MEDICAL DIRECTOR

	12/13/2022 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10956 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Dump Truck and Appropriation of Funds
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10956 AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL AUTO FLEET GROUP DUMP TRUCK

	12/13/2022 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10957 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with National Auto Fleet Group for the Purchase of a Valve Truck and Appropriation of Funds
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10957 AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL AUTO FLEET GROUP VALVE TRUCK

	12/13/2022 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10958 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 22-060) with Bender Rosenthal, Inc. for Right of Way Services for the Natoma Alley Rehabilitation and Replacement Project and Appropriation of Funds
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10958 AMENDMENT NO 1 AGREEMENT WITH BENDER ROSENTHAL NATOMA ALLEY PROJECT

	12/13/2022 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10959 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Council to Cancel the Invitation for Bids for the Water Meter Replacement Program
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10959 CANCEL THE INVITATION FOR BIDS WATER METER REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

	12/13/2022 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 10960- A Resolution Authorizing the Public Works Department to Install All-Way Stop Sign Control at the Intersection of Montrose Drive and Lowe's/Trader Joe's Shopping Center and Home Goods/Target Shopping Center
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10960 MONTROSE DRIVE ALL WAY STOP SIGN

	12/13/2022 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 10962 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1F Subdivision
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10962 TOLL BROTHERS FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 1F SUBDIVISION

	12/13/2022 Item No.17.	Resolution No. 10963 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. for Environmental Consulting Services for the Benevento Family Park Project
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10963 HELIX ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING BENEVENTO FAMILY PARK PROJECT

	12/13/2022 Item No.18.	Resolution No. 10964 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10964 TOLL BROTHERS FOLSOM RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISION

	12/13/2022 Item No.19.	Resolution No. 10966 – A Resolution Accepting the AB1600 Development Fees Annual Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10966 AB1600 DEVELOPMENT FEES ANNUAL REPORT

	12/13/2022 Item No.20.	Resolution No. 10961 – A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Grant Applications to the Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round
	12-13 STAFF REPORT RES 10961 GRANT APPLICATIONS SACOG FUNDING

	12/13/2022 Item No.21.	Ordinance No. 1335 – An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 8.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning the Folsom Fire Code (Introduction and First Reading)
	12-13 STAFF REPORT ORD 1335 FIRE CODE INTRO AND FIRST READING

	12/13/2022 Item No.22.	Ordinance No. 1336 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Repealing and Re-Enacting Certain Chapters of Title 14, "Buildings and Construction", of the Folsom Municipal Code Concerning Enforcement of Folsom Construction Codes (Introduction and First Reading)
	12-13 STAFF REPORT ORD 1336 FOLSOM BUILDING CODES INTRO AND FIRST READING

	12/13/2022 Item No.23.	Report on Traffic Roundabout Fact-Finding Mission and Direction to Staff Regarding Future Consideration of a  Traffic Roundabout Policy
	12-13 STAFF REPORT ROUNDABOUT POLICY

	12/13/2022 Item No.24.	Approval of the September 13, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting Minutes
	12-13 STAFF REPORT JOINT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 13, 2022

	12/13/2022 Item No.25.	Approval of the November 8, 2022 Joint City Council / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting Minutes
	12-13 STAFF REPORT JOINT CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 8, 2022

	12/13/2022 Item No.26.	Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50 Parking Authority Monthly Investment Reports for the Month of September 2022
	12-13 STAFF REPORT MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORTS FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2022

	Bottom

